
Summons to attend meeting of

Full Council

Date:      Tuesday, 7 July 2020
Time:      6.00 pm
Venue:   Virtual Meeting - Zoom Committee Meeting 
with Public Access via YouTube

To: All Members of Council

Issued by: Sam Wilcock, Democratic Services
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Friday, 26 June 2020

Public Document Pack

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Full Council – Agenda

Agenda
1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information 

(Pages 17 - 19)

2. Apologies for Absence 

3. Declarations of Interest 
To note any declarations of interest from the Councillors.  They are asked 
to indicate the relevant agenda item, the nature of the interest and in 
particular whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which is not on the 
register of interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for 
inclusion.

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
To agree the minutes of the meetings held on the 21st and 26th May 
2020.

(Pages 20 - 35)

5. Lord Mayor's Business 
To note any announcements from the Lord Mayor

6. Public Forum (Public Petitions, Statements and 
Questions) 

Public forum items can be about any matter the Council is responsible for 
or which directly affects the city.  Submissions will be treated in order of 
receipt and as many people shall be called upon as is possible within the 
time allowed within the meeting (normally 30 minutes).  Further rules 
can be found within our Council Procedure Rules and the Virtual 
Meetings Procedure Rules within the Constitution.

Please note that the following deadlines apply to this meeting:

a. Public petitions and statements: Petitions and written statements 
must be received by 12 noon on Monday 6 July 2020 at latest.  One 
written statement per member of the public is permitted.

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/34176/Part+4.1%28a%29+Council+procedure+rules+PDF.pdf/af5dfa3a-9cac-aebc-e497-84855f639435
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/34176/Virtual+Meeting+Procedure+Rules.pdf/696fc572-7d70-d641-fb18-2323ad7f95e8
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/34176/Virtual+Meeting+Procedure+Rules.pdf/696fc572-7d70-d641-fb18-2323ad7f95e8


Full Council – Agenda

b. Public questions: Written public questions must be received by 5pm 
on Wednesday 1st July 2020 at latest.  A maximum of 2 questions per 
member of the public is permitted.  Questions should be addressed to 
the Mayor or relevant Cabinet Member.

c. Members of the public who wish to present their public forum in 
person during the video conference must register their interest by giving 
at least two clear working days notice prior to the meeting by midday on 
Friday 3rd July 2020.

Public forum items should be e-mailed to 
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk  

Further information can be found within the public information sheet 
attached to this agenda.

7. Petitions Notified by Councillors 
Please note: Up to 10 minutes is allowed for this item.

Petitions notified by Councillors can be about any matter the Council is 
responsible for or which directly affects the city.  The deadline for the 
notification of petitions to this meeting is 12 noon on Monday 6 July 
2020.

8. Council's Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative 
Impact Assessment Policy 

(Pages 36 - 616)

9. Equality and Inclusion Annual Report 2019-2020 

(Pages 617 - 
738)

10. Motions 
Note:
Under the Council’s constitution, 30 minutes are available for the 
consideration of motions. In practice, this realistically means that there 
is usually only time for one, or possibly two motions to be considered. 
With the agreement of the Lord Mayor, motion 1 below will be 
considered at this meeting, and motion 2 is likely to be considered, 
subject to time. Details of other motions submitted, (which, due to time 
constraints, are very unlikely to be considered at this meeting) are also 
set out for information.

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Full Council – Agenda

MOTIONS RECEIVED FOR FULL COUNCIL – 7th July 2020

1. Golden Motion - City of Hope: Rebuilding a more inclusive 
Bristol 

City of Hope: Rebuilding a more inclusive Bristol 

Full Council notes:
1. Coronavirus (covid-19) has seen 306,862 confirmed cases in the 

UK; 43,081 people nationally have died from covid-19, including 
some 262 people in the Bristol area, while the Financial Times 
estimates more than 65,700 excess deaths in total*; our thoughts 
are with their loved ones.

2. The accompanying economic impact is the worst since the Great 
Depression, and has seen 52,400 Bristolians furloughed, alongside 
significant job losses and financial hardship, increased foodbank 
usage, over £80 million support needed for Bristol businesses 
through the council, and a record national economic contraction 
of 20.4%.

3. Recessions and protracted economic crises always 
disproportionately affect those who are already vulnerable, living 
in poverty, and/or in insecure employment; something recognised 
in the campaigns to extend free school meals, support victims of 
domestic abuse and violence, house homeless people, including 
those with No Recourse to Public Funds, and provide additional 
help for asylum seekers.

4. This pandemic has disproportionately impacted on Black, Asian 
and Minority Ethnic communities, both in terms of numbers 
affected and proportion of deaths, but also the socio-economic 
impact; the pandemic has also disproportionately impacted on 
older people and disabled people, compounded by the 
Government’s decision to discharge people with the virus back 
into care homes and initial national shortages of personal 
protective equipment.

5. In weeks, the Government’s public position shifted from 
“provid[ing] whatever funding is needed for councils to get 
through this and come out of the other side” to not “want[ing] 
anybody to labour under a false impression that what they are 
doing will be guaranteed funded by central government”; as a 
result Bristol faces an £82 million gap, while all councils and 
communities, according to the LGA, “face an existential crisis.”

6. The horrendous death of George Floyd, and protests following it, 
further highlighted systemic racism around the world; the 
removal of the statue of Edward Colston has presented an 
opportunity for institutions in the City to re-examine their history 
and their current anti-racist equality practices. 



Full Council – Agenda

Full Council believes:
1.  We want the Government to succeed in tackling the pandemic, 

but it has sadly fallen short in its management to date from 
preparedness to responsiveness, to an inability to work cohesively 
enough with local government or our NHS – thus presiding over 
the second highest deaths per million of any country.

2. The Mayor and administration have been right to call on 
Government to compensate Councils for both rising costs and 
falling revenues resulting from their efforts to lead the city 
through the pandemic.

3. Black Lives Matter. We have a duty to understand the real, whole 
story of Bristol, and what it means to different communities, and 
to tackle systemic racism  in order to lead positive change and 
rebuild Bristol, but not in the image of the unequal city which 
existed before.

4. Rebuilding a City of Hope, where nobody is left behind, requires 
investment to ensure a relentless focus on dismantling all 
structural inequalities to ensure that everyone believes that our 
recovery will benefit them and that it does.

Full Council resolves:
1. To record our heartfelt thanks to all council staff and other key 

workers, especially those on the frontline, who have worked even 
harder than ever throughout the pandemic to keep us all safe and 
keep Bristol moving.

2. To make delivering the UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 
explicit outcomes for our work – with a commitment to 
equalities, anti-racism, and tackling poverty – to underpin 
rebuilding a better Bristol through inclusive and sustainable 
growth.

3. To lobby the Government to introduce the Real Living Wage and, 
until that time, work with employers in our respective wards to 
engage with the Mayor and Trade Unions’ Living Wage City 
initiative.

4. To ask the Mayor to push the Combined Authority and 
Government to commit to the SDGs, with a real emphasis on 
tackling unemployment among young people, and preventing any 
rise in people who are not in education, employment, or training. 

5. To ask the Mayor to review the Equality Impact Assessment 
process to ensure it further informs decision-making, and to add 
deprivation/class to the 2010 Equality Act protected 
characteristics; in addition, auditing race equality across council 
departments and requiring specific anti-racist actions in their 
Equality Plans with targets for continued positive change in 
employment and service delivery.

6. To work to ensure that the recommendations of the Marmot 
Review into health inequalities are woven into the approach of 
the Council, the One City Plan, and all recovery planning.



Full Council – Agenda

*Figures correct when submitted – 25 June
To be moved by Councillor Ruth Pickersgill (Labour – Easton) 

2. Supermarkets Compact.

This Council regrets the prevalence of negative issues from a range of 
sources within the retail and distribution sector that hamper the city’s 
sustainability aspirations. The supermarkets have made many adaptions 
to keep the city running during the lockdown from which we can learn 
but need to be extended to deliver greater permanent benefits. 

These issues include, but not exclusively:
•  extensive usage of a wide range of packaging materials
•  continuing use of materials, particularly plastics, with poor recycling 
outcomes
•  excessive levels of wastage, particularly of food
•  increasing heavy vehicular distribution-miles, both cross-countries and 
within the city

Council further regrets that precious resources and taxpayers’ money 
have to be used to resolve and mitigate some of these issues, where this 
is an option.

Council regrets that it lacks the regulatory powers to control the negative 
outcomes from some large commercial organisations.

This Council notes the announcements and actions by more 
conscientious firms to address some of these issues to reduce their costs 
and be more responsible. 

This Council notes the unacceptable level of food poverty in our city

This Council notes the increasing challenges around goods delivery 
vehicles in our city which is attempting to reduce the volume of traffic 
and improve air quality

This Council notes that a successful plan to deliver carbon neutrality by 
2030 will require committed leadership to inspire common purpose in 
everyone and across all groups in our city

This Council notes that much customer packaging places volume and 
disposal demands on the city’s waste services, while their bulk packaging 
is also unsustainable though disposed through commercial operators.

This Council notes that a proposal to address these issues supported by 
research and a dossier of detailed responses by all of the eight major 
supermarkets has been prepared by a BCC scrutiny committee and was 



Full Council – Agenda

commended by a committee of the Core Cities team.

It indicated how focused and co-operative use of BCC resources might 
deliver multiple benefits, including:
•  waste/plastics reduction
•  food-saving
•  reduction in delivery-miles
•  rewarding sustainable practice
•  getting out our sustainability message though big players to the 
shopping public
•  tackling at source some resulting issues that our taxpayers presently 
have to fund so re-allocating reduced costs,  and greater savings, to the 
originators

Council therefore resolves to launch the first core-city co-operative 
initiative of its kind:

A Supermarkets Compact agreed with the major chains in Bristol where 
the City council sets a small number of key criteria that will benefit the 
city and promotes a ‘Kitemark’- type scheme awarding recognition as 
each is achieved. This would applaud good practice, in a competitive 
market increasingly sensitive to improving sustainability, and open up 
opportunities for reaching out to customers, with rising credentials 
displayed on their premises and promotional literature. 

Such a scheme would be a simple and highly visible way of advancing our 
sustainability ambitions.  It would be co-operative, competitive and 
catalytic while fair and sustainable.  It would be a cost-effective way for 
this city to offer mutual solutions to long-standing common problems.  It 
would be a bold advance in the crucial community engagement measures 
to deliver real-life sustainability, closer to source.

This council resolves to request the incumbent administration to instruct 
officers to take forward this proposal.

Motion to be presented by:  Cllr. Anthony Negus (Cotham, LibDem 
councillor)
Date of submission: 25th June 2020

3. Restoring Political Partnership Working

“Council was disappointed to learn of concerns over a lack of 
collaborative working within the West of England Combined Authority 
(WECA).

Whilst there appears to be some dispute over the accuracy of this 
assessment or assertion, Council calls on the Mayor to use this moment 
as a chance to restate his early promise and commitment to ‘renew our 



Full Council – Agenda

democracy’ in Bristol by pursuing a more inclusive form of executive 
decision-making. 

At present, many members feel marginalised through withheld 
information, and find the ‘opportunity to contribute’, shape or influence 
policies which impact our city extremely limited.

Council agrees with the Mayor that often a ‘collective effort ensures 
maximum impact’.  

Whilst it is still too early to determine the true scale of the effect on the 
local authority’s finances arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, Council 
urges the Mayor to embrace a genuine all-Party approach to tackling this 
public health crisis.  Moves to secure extra support from Central 
Government to cover these costs need to be cooperative and 
coordinated.

To this end, Council asks that the Mayor convene a Party Group Leaders 
meeting at the earliest possible juncture with the aim of achieving cross-
party consensus and joint strategy in the lobbying of Central Government 
and West of England Combined Authority. 

The challenges confronting our city in this regard dictate that traditional 
rivalries should be put aside for the greater good of maintaining essential 
frontline services upon which Bristolians depend.”

Motion to be moved by: Cllr Mark Weston
Date of submission: 25th June 2020

4. Expanding Adult Training Programmes

“This Council welcomes the recent adult training initiatives introduced by 
Government such as the National Retraining Scheme and, regionally, the 
WECA Employment & Skills Plan, designed to help adults access better 
jobs or pursue new careers due to changes in the economy.

“Whilst the social and economic impact of the Corona virus has yet to 
unfold over the months and possibly years ahead, it is vital that all those 
who are unfortunately made unemployed as a result of this crisis have 
access to full-time, vocational, technical or traditional craft 
apprenticeships.

“Council believes that this challenge could best be met by a revival in 
city-based learning hubs like the often wrongly maligned former 
polytechnics and Government industrial training centres.  Sadly, 
provision such as the Skillscentre network closed in 1993 but they served 
as a highly effective means or bridge into employment.  Restoration of 
these institutions can equip people with the skills needed to adapt to the 



Full Council – Agenda

new world of work and help fill any identified skills gaps in the regional 
workforce.

“Accordingly, Council calls in the Mayor to work through WECA to make 
the urgent case to Government for a greatly expanded and accelerated 
investment programme, to create additional sites in the city to cater for 
the anticipated surge in demand for these services, at least in the short 
to medium term.”

Motion to be moved by: Cllr Matt Melias
Date of submission: 25th June 2020

5. Mitigating the effects of the Clean Air Plan on the most affected 
and most deprived residents.

Council notes that there is now no longer one Bristol plan that will 
reportedly deliver the governments clean air criteria in the period 
required. Despite many reservations from scrutiny, cabinet has given its 
approval to a plan which may have to be modified in the light of changing 
conditions as a result of the pandemic. Nevertheless the following 
considerations still apply to the present situation of determining the final 
version.

Council regrets that no public consultation was carried out on the specific 
plan adopted by the Cabinet which was different to the two options put 
forward to the public.
 
Council has concerns about how this will impact on the way that goods 
and people move within and around the clean air zones, and anticipating 
and mitigating potential poor outcomes.

Council is concerned that the capability of the present system of ‘public’ 
transport to sustainably accommodate is inadequate, certainly in the 
short and medium-term.
 
Council is concerned about the effects of greater vehicle movements 
outside the zones to avoid charges on small roads not designed for this 
and the impact on safety, congestion, necessary infrastructure work and 
migrated poorer quality air. 
 
Council is concerned that deprivation being given the highest rating 
alongside public health in the approach to the clean air problem – rather 
than confronting the central issue and mitigating any poor outcomes- 
there are no meaningful exemptions or concessions for people in the 
central zone except a possible £2000 grant to enable replacement for a 
diesel car.
 



Full Council – Agenda

This council resolves to ask the Mayor to examine meaningful ways to 
ease the transition into this new plan for those people most affected and 
least capable of coping with the outcomes including, but not exclusively, 
the following:

• A longer transition period for phasing out ownership by residents in 
the inner zone of all private diesel cars, focusing on pre-Euro6 
models.

• Preparation and consultation on an impact analysis, and resulting 
mitigation, for the closure of the eastbound Cumberland Basin to 
all vehicles except buses.

• Alternative provisions for access to the many hospitals (including 
sufficient information and warnings) within the zone including the 
extension of the present hospital bus network to collect from car 
parks outside the zone.

• Examining how to provide additional funds where needed to top up 
the likely £2000 so-called scrappage scheme in order that this may 
deliver more sustainable and cleaner private cars held in the zone.

• Developing transitional arrangements for alternative travel by bus
• Exempting disabled people from zone restrictions
• Exempting Diesel vehicles that meet Euro6 standards from the 

diesel ban, to allay risk that these may be replaced by poorer 
quality older petrol vehicles, delivering worse outcomes.

Council instructs the Chief Executive to write a letter to Government with 
the resolution of Council.
 
Motion to be moved by: Cllr Anthony Negus (Lib Dem)
Date of submission: 25th June 2020

6. Atonement and Reparation for Bristol’s role in the Transatlantic 
Traffic in Enslaved Africans (TTEA)

This council notes that:

1. Bristol played a major role in the Transatlantic Traffic in Enslaved 
Africans (TTEA) which saw at least 15 million Africans forcibly 
trafficked to the Caribbean and America with many thousands losing 
their lives during the crossing from Africa to the Americas on ships 
registered in Bristol. A significant amount of the institutional and 
corporate wealth of our city was founded through this hugely 
regrettable inhumane episode in our collective history. ‘By the latter 
half of the century, Bristol’s position had been overtaken by Liverpool. 
But even as late as 1789, the trade to Africa and the West Indies was 
estimated to have comprised over 80 per cent of the total value of 
Bristol’s trade abroad.’ (1)

2. Around 2 million people of African descent live in the United Kingdom 



Full Council – Agenda

itself, including an estimated 30,000 plus in Bristol which includes a 
high percentage of African Caribbean descendants. (2) 

3. In 1833 the British Government used £20 million to compensate 
enslavers, the debt for which was not paid off until 2015. Formerly 
enslaved persons received no compensation.

4. ‘The United Nations Basic Principles and Guidelines on the ‘Right to A 
Remedy and Reparation for Victims of Gross Violations of 
International Human Rights Law and Serious Violations of 
International Humanitarian Law’ provides a framework for the 
reparatory justice system including, among other measures: an 
investigation of the facts, an official acknowledgment, and apology, a 
receipt of answers; an opportunity for victims to speak in a public 
forum about his/her experiences and to be actively involved the 
reparatory justice process. 

5. The various  efforts made by community activists and movements 
including the Countering Colston Campaign,  the Council’s legacy 
steering committee, the International Network of Scholars and 
Activists for Afrikan Reparations (INOSAAR), the Pan-Afrikan 
Reparations Coalition in Europe (PARCOE), CARICOM (Caribbean 
Community and Common Market) Reparations Committee, the Stop 
The Maangamizi Campaign, the Global Afrikan People's Parliament 
(GAPP), The Afrikan Emancipation Day Reparations March Committee; 
and many others who have been working for many years to raise 
awareness of the lasting impact of enslavement.

6. The progress made in educating young people in Bristol on African 
Caribbean and ‘Black’ history, culture and achievements through the 
city-wide One Bristol Curriculum.

Full Council believes: 

1. It must be a priority for Bristol to actively acknowledge this history and 
actively seek to bring about reconciliation and reparations by lending 
and leading its voice as an institution towards remedial holistic 
reparations and action towards the legacies that continue to plague 
contemporary life for descendants of the African Caribbean enslaved. 
The continuation of harm and discrimination manifests itself in but is 
not limited to: over representation in the mental health system, 
discrimination within the criminal justice system, poverty and 
disadvantage.  

2. The International Decade for People of African Descent, proclaimed by 
UN General Assembly resolution 68/237 and to be observed from 
2015 to 2024, provides a solid framework for the United Nations, 
Member States, civil society and all other relevant actors to join 



Full Council – Agenda

together with people of African descent and take effective measures 
for the implementation of the programme of activities in the spirit of 
recognition, justice and development. Such a process is long overdue 
in Bristol.

Full Council resolves: 

To call on the Mayor or other appropriate council agency to:

1.  Ensure the scope of the commission recently announced includes an 
audit to trace the flow of wealth from the (TTEA) into the city of 
Bristol and its citizens and down the generations to the present day. 
The commission should also call on those Bristol institutions, families 
and corporations with historic ties to (TTEA) to share their 
understanding of their role, and clarify what measures they will put in 
place to work with African Caribbean heritage communities, to agreed 
measures and implement steps towards holistic reparations for 
African Caribbean heritage communities.

2. Write to the Prime Minister to request that the UK government 
immediately establishes an All-Party Parliamentary Commission of 
Inquiry for Truth & Reparatory Justice to acknowledge, apologise and 
instigate reparations for the (TTEA) the experience and extent of 
which is further understood by campaigners as the Maangamizi. (3)

3. Write to the Chancellor to raise concerns about how tax payers were 
until 2015 paying back compensation paid to enslavers. A petition 
gaining 10,000 signatures expresses the disgust at this fact, which 
many people, not just those of African Caribbean descent, find 
completely abhorrent. (4) 

4. To ensure all schools in Bristol are implementing the ‘One Bristol 
Curriculum’, and request that independent private schools and 
academies do so as well.

5. Carry out an audit to establish the living conditions for people of 
African descent living in council housing and other dwellings and see 
that it is fit for purpose.

6. In collaboration with CORE (Commission of Racial Equality) and other 
partners, seek to scrutinise and lobby the health and criminal justice 
systems including but not limited to providing and resourcing 
culturally competent mental health provision for African descent 
people inside and outside of the prison service and better 
representation in terms of ethnicity on parole boards. 

7. To protect and support long-standing black-led cultural institutions of 
the city that continue to be severely underfunded and under 



Full Council – Agenda

resourced, either through direct council intervention or by brokering 
relationships with institutions in the city. Such institutions must 
include the Malcolm X Centre, the Kuumba Centre, the Docklands 
Settlement and the Rastafari Cultural Centre.

Motion to be moved by: Cllr Cleo Lake, Green Group
Date of submission: 25 July 2020 

Footnotes

1) https://www.bristolmuseums.org.uk/stories/bristol-transatlantic-
slave-trade/
   

2) Estimates based on most recent census (2011)

3) The terms of reference for this commission of inquiry should 
focus on the need to inform the public of the nature of 
colonialism and enslavement, as well as its long-term 
consequences including present-day impacts upon both 
individuals and communities. The Commission’s work should be 
of a participatory nature, calling for submissions from all those 
with knowledge of the nature and impacts of colonialism and 
slavery. 

This will aim to include, but not be limited to, testimony from: 
individuals, organisations, academics, communities, and nations. 
Affected communities and individuals must have their own voice, 
agency, and self-determined solutions in effecting reparatory 
justice and steps must be taken to facilitate their participation in 
any reparatory process in which the United Kingdom is engaged.

Ultimately the goal is to secure holistic reparations - including but 
not limited to financial compensation - as defined by the UN’s 
‘Basic Principles and Guidelines’. These include mechanisms for 
restitution, compensation, rehabilitation, satisfaction and 
guarantees for non-repetition. See notes below.

4) https://www.change.org/p/refund-our-taxes-paid-to-
compensate-enslavers  

Notes:
 
Basic Principles and Guidelines on the Right to a Remedy and Reparation 
for Victims of Gross Violations of International Human Rights Law and 
Serious Violations of International Humanitarian Law

https://www.bristolmuseums.org.uk/stories/bristol-transatlantic-slave-trade/
https://www.bristolmuseums.org.uk/stories/bristol-transatlantic-slave-trade/
https://www.change.org/p/refund-our-taxes-paid-to-compensate-enslavers
https://www.change.org/p/refund-our-taxes-paid-to-compensate-enslavers


Full Council – Agenda

Adopted and proclaimed by General Assembly resolution 60/147 of 16 
December 2005
 
1. Restitution should, whenever possible, restore the victim to the 
original situation before the gross violations of international human 
rights law or serious violations of international humanitarian law 
occurred. Restitution includes, as appropriate: restoration of liberty, 
enjoyment of human rights, identity, family life and citizenship, return to 
one’s place of residence, restoration of employment and return of 
property.

2. Compensation should be provided for any economically assessable 
damage, as appropriate and proportional to the gravity of the violation 
and the circumstances of each case, resulting from gross violations of 
international human rights law and serious violations of international 
humanitarian law, such as:
(a) Physical or mental harm;
(b) Lost opportunities, including employment, education and social 
benefits;
(c) Material damages and loss of earnings, including loss of earning 
potential;
(d) Moral damage;
(e) Costs required for legal or expert assistance, medicine and medical 
services, and psychological and social services.

3. Rehabilitation should include medical and psychological care as well as 
legal and social services.

4. Satisfaction should include, where applicable, any or all of the 
following:
(a) Effective measures aimed at the cessation of continuing violations;
(b) Verification of the facts and full and public disclosure of the truth to 
the extent that such disclosure does not cause further harm or threaten 
the safety and interests of the victim, the victim’s relatives, witnesses, or 
persons who have intervened to assist the victim or prevent the 
occurrence of further violations;
(c) The search for the whereabouts of the disappeared, for the identities 
of the children abducted, and for the bodies of those killed, and 
assistance in the recovery, identification and reburial of the bodies in 
accordance with the expressed or presumed wish of the victims, or the 
cultural practices of the families and communities;
(d) An official declaration or a judicial decision restoring the dignity, the 
reputation and the rights of the victim and of persons closely connected 
with the victim;
(e) Public apology, including acknowledgement of the facts and 
acceptance of responsibility;
(f) Judicial and administrative sanctions against persons liable for the 
violations;



Full Council – Agenda

(g) Commemorations and tributes to the victims;
(h) Inclusion of an accurate account of the violations that occurred in 
international human rights law and international humanitarian law 
training and in educational material at all levels.

5. Guarantees of non-repetition should include, where applicable, any or 
all of the following measures, which will also contribute to prevention:
(a) Ensuring effective civilian control of military and security forces;
(b) Ensuring that all civilian and military proceedings abide by 
international standards of due process, fairness and impartiality;
(c) Strengthening the independence of the judiciary;
(d) Protecting persons in the legal, medical and health-care professions, 
the media and other related professions, and human rights defenders;
(e) Providing, on a priority and continued basis, human rights and 
international humanitarian law education to all sectors of society and 
training for law enforcement officials as well as military and security 
forces;
(f) Promoting the observance of codes of conduct and ethical norms, in 
particular international standards, by public servants, including law 
enforcement, correctional, media, medical, psychological, social service 
and military personnel, as well as by economic enterprises;
(g) Promoting mechanisms for preventing and monitoring social conflicts 
and their resolution;
(h) Reviewing and reforming laws contributing to or allowing gross 
violations of international human rights law and serious violations of 
international humanitarian law.

Other notes:
- Legacies of British Slave-ownership - UCL: 

https://www.ucl.ac.uk/lbs/ 
- Basic Principles and Guidelines on the Right to a Remedy and 

Reparation – UN Office of the High Commissioner: 
https://www.ohchr.org/en/professionalinterest/pages/remedyan
dreparation.aspx 

- Stop the Maangamizi Campaign: 
https://stopthemaangamizi.com/

7. Big spending - basics neglected 

This council views, with concern, the imbalance in spending by the 
Mayor.
We have had over £250,000 a year spent on an ex-Manager in the 
Growth and Regeneration Department, who was then involved in 
recruiting his successor, who then chose to contract the ex-Manager, at 
significant cost to the council budget on ongoing projects.

A major part of the work was killing off the Arena Project at Temple 

https://www.ucl.ac.uk/lbs/
https://www.ohchr.org/en/professionalinterest/pages/remedyandreparation.aspx
https://www.ohchr.org/en/professionalinterest/pages/remedyandreparation.aspx
https://stopthemaangamizi.com/


Full Council – Agenda

Meads.
We now know that another Consultant was paid similar sums to give 
advice on closing the Arena Project, who had previously worked on 
developments at Filton.

We have yet to get the full story of the Mayors £50M plus failed gamble 
on his Energy Company.
Meanwhile vulnerable people, nervously considering venturing out after 
lockdown, are further hampered by lack of public toilets in our city.

Council therefore request that in the emergency budget due to come to 
council shortly, there is a fundamental change towards allocating funds 
for the basic and desirable services that residents and valued visitors 
need.

Motion to be moved by: Cllr Gary Hopkins, Lib Dem Group
Date of submission: 25 July 2020 

Signed

Proper Officer
Friday, 26 June 2020



www.bristol.gov.uk 

Public Information Sheet

Inspection of Papers - Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at https://www.bristol.gov.uk/council-meetings 

Covid-19: changes to how we hold public meetings

Following changes to government rules, we will use video conferencing to hold all public meetings, 
including Cabinet, Full Council, regulatory meetings (where planning and licensing decisions are made) 
and scrutiny.

Councillors will take decisions remotely and the meetings will be broadcast live on YouTube.

Members of the public who wish to present their public forum in person during the video conference 
must register their interest by giving at least two clear working days’ notice to Democratic Services of 
the request.  To take part in the meeting, you will be required to register for a Zoom account, so that 
Democratic Services is able to match your named Zoom account to your public forum submission, and 
send you the password protected link and the instructions required to join the Zoom meeting to make 
your statement or ask your supplementary question(s).

As part of our security arrangements, please note that we will not permit access to the meeting if 
your Zoom credentials do not match your public forum submission credentials. This is in the 
interests of helping to ensure a safe meeting environment for all attending or observing proceedings 
via a live broadcast.  

Please note: Members of the public may only be invited into the meeting for the duration of their 
submission and then be removed to permit the next public forum participant to speak.

Changes to Public Forum

Petitions, Statements and Questions must be about a matter the Council has responsibility for or 
which directly affects the city.  For further information about procedure rules please refer to our 
Constitution https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution 

Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee Members and will be published on the 
Council’s website before the meeting.  Please send it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk.  
The following requirements apply:

Petitions from members of the public
 Petitions will be presented to the Council first.  
 Petitions must include name, address and details for the wording of the petition.  
 The person presenting a petition will be asked to read out the objectives of the petition with one 

minute allowed.  
 A written reply will be provided to the lead petitioner within 10 working days of the Full Council 

meeting.

Page 17

Agenda Item 1

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/council-meetings
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution
mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


www.bristol.gov.uk 

Statements
 Statements should be received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting.  
 There can be one statement per person and subject to overall time constraints, a maximum of one 

minute is allocated for presentation. 
 Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper.
 For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine articles that 

may be attached to statements.
Questions
 Questions should be received no later than three clear working days before the meeting.  
 A maximum of two written questions per person can be submitted.  
 At the meeting, a maximum of one supplementary question may be asked, arising directly out of 

the original question or reply.

 Your intention to attend the meeting to speak must be received no later than two clear working 
days in advance. The meeting agenda will clearly state the relevant public forum deadlines.

By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and 
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the Committee, published on the 
website and within the minutes. Your statement or question will also be made available to the public 
via publication on the Council’s website and may be provided upon request in response to Freedom of 
Information Act requests in the future.

We will try to remove personal and identifiable information.  However, because of time constraints we 
cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement contains information 
that you would prefer not to be in the public domain.  Other committee papers may be placed on the 
council’s website and information within them may be searchable on the internet.

During the meeting:

 There will be no debate on public forum statements or petitions.  
 Public Forum will be circulated to the Committee members prior to the meeting and published on 

the website.
 If you have arranged with Democratic Services to attend the meeting to present your statement or 

ask a question(s), you should log into Zoom and use the meeting link provided which will admit you 
to the waiting room.

 The Chair will call each submission in turn and you will be invited into the meeting. When you are 
invited to speak, please make sure that your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would 
like Members to consider. This will have the greatest impact.

 Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. This may be as 
short as one minute, and you be muted if you exceed your allotted time.

 If there are a large number of submissions on one matter, a representative may be requested to 
speak on the group’s behalf.

 If you do not attend the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken your 
statement will be noted by Members.

For further information about procedure rules please refer to our Constitution 
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution

Page 18

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution


www.bristol.gov.uk 

The privacy notice for Democratic Services can be viewed at www.bristol.gov.uk/about-our-
website/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all virtual 
public meetings including Full Council and Cabinet meetings are now broadcast live via the council's 
webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting will be broadcast (except where there are confidential or 
exempt items).  

Other formats and languages and assistance for those with hearing impairment

You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in 
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer.  Please give as much notice as 
possible.  We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular 
meeting.

Page 19

http://www.bristol.gov.uk/about-our-website/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services
http://www.bristol.gov.uk/about-our-website/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services
http://www.bristol.public-i.tv/site/


Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Full Council

21 May 2020 at 2.00 pm

Present:- Mayor Marvin Rees
Councillors: Lord Mayor Councillor Jos Clark, Deputy Lord Mayor Councillor Carole Johnson, 
Peter Abraham, Donald Alexander, Nicola Beech, Nicola Bowden-Jones, Harriet Bradley, Mark Bradshaw, 
Tom Brook, Fabian Breckels, Tony Carey, Craig Cheney, Barry Clark, Jos Clark, Stephen Clarke, 
Harriet Clough, Eleanor Combley, Asher Craig, Chris Davies, Mike Davies, Carla Denyer, Kye Dudd, 
Richard Eddy, Jude English, Martin Fodor, Helen Godwin, Paul Goggin, Geoff Gollop, John Goulandris, 
Fi Hance, Margaret Hickman, Claire Hiscott, Helen Holland, Gary Hopkins, Chris Jackson, Hibaq Jama, 
Carole Johnson, Steve Jones, Anna Keen, Tim Kent, Gill Kirk, Cleo Lake, Jeff Lovell, Brenda Massey, 
Olly Mead, Matt Melias, Graham Morris, Anthony Negus, Paula O'Rourke, Steve Pearce, Celia Phipps, 
Ruth Pickersgill, Kevin Quartley, Liz Radford, Rippington, Jo Sergeant, Afzal Shah, Steve Smith, 
Paul Smith, Clive Stevens, Jerome Thomas, Mhairi Threlfall, Estella Tincknell, Jon Wellington, 
Mark Weston, Lucy Whittle, Chris Windows and Mark Wright

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information

The Lord Mayor welcomed all attendees to the meeting which was the first Full Council meeting taking 
place using video technology.

2. A General Public Info Sheet - during Covid

The public information sheet was noted.

3. Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Councillor Lesley Alexander, Bolton, Brain, Khan and Mead.

4. Election of Lord Mayor

Councillor Carey moved that Councillor Jos Clark be elected as Lord Mayor for the 2020-2021 municipal 
year.

Public Document Pack

Page 20

Agenda Item 4



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Councillor Holland seconded the motion.

Upon being put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED:
That Councillor Jos Clark be elected as Lord Mayor of the City and County of Bristol for the 2020-2021 
municipal year.

Councillor Jos Clark then signed the declaration of acceptance of the office of Lord Mayor of the City and 
County of Bristol.

The Lord Mayor then made her inaugural speech to Full Council.

5. Election of Deputy Lord Mayor

Councillor Mike Davies moved that Councillor Carole Johnson be elected as Deputy Lord Mayor for the 
2020-2021 municipal year.

Councillor Hance seconded the motion.

Upon being put to the vote, it was 

RESOLVED:
That Councillor Carole Johnson be elected as Deputy Lord Mayor of the City and County of Bristol for 
the 2020-2021 municipal year.

Councillor Johnson then signed the declaration of acceptance of office of Deputy Lord Mayor of the City 
and County of Bristol.

On the motion of the Lord Mayor, seconded by Councillor Hance, upon being put to a vote, it was

RESOLVED:
That a vote of thanks be approved by Full Council to the retiring Deputy Lord Mayor and retiring Deputy 
Lady Mayoress in recognition of their work and duties carried out during the last municipal year.

6. Minutes of the Previous Meeting

On the motion of the Lord Mayor, seconded by Councillor Kent, it was

RESOLVED: 

Page 21



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

That the minutes of the meeting of the Full Council held on the 17 March 2020 be confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Lord Mayor.

7. Declarations of Interest

None received.

8. Lord Mayor's Business

The Lord Mayor reported that the Lord Mayor’s Chain of Office had not yet been recovered.  She was 
wearing a different set which was a gift to the City from The Society of Bristolians in London from the first 
President and Chairman in 1939.

9. Written public statements

Two public statements had been received that were relevant to an item on the agenda.  

Ref No Name Title
PS01 Mary Page Chief Executives Appointment
PS02 Councillor Clive Stevens Chief Executives Appointment

These were noted by Full Council.

10. Update from Youth Mayors

The Full Council received a progress report from Youth Mayor Oliver Bouchier on behalf of the Youth 
Council.

RESOLVED 
That the report from the Youth Council be noted.

11. Dates and times of Full Council meetings 2020-2021

The Full Council considered a report on the dates and times of Full Council meetings for 2020-2021.

The Lord Mayor moved the report and the recommendations contained therein.

Councillor Johnson, Deputy Lord Mayor, seconded the motion.

It was then:

Page 22



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

RESOLVED:
The dates and times of Full Council meetings for 2020-2021 be agreed, as set out in the report as 
follows 

6pm, Tuesday 7 July 2020
6pm, Tuesday 8 September 20120
6pm, Tuesday 10 November 2020
2pm, Tuesday 8 December 2020
2pm, Tuesday 12 January 2021
2pm, Tuesday 23 February 2021 (budget Council meeting)
2pm, Wednesday 3 March 2021 (reserve, additional budget meeting, if required) 
6pm, Tuesday 16th March 2021

12. Establishment of Committees 2020-2021

The Full Council considered a report on the establishment of committees for 2020-2021.

The Lord Mayor moved the report and the recommendations contained therein.

Councillor Johnson, Deputy Lord Mayor, seconded the motion.

It was then:

RESOLVED:

1. The following committees be established;

a. Overview and Scrutiny bodies:
- Overview and Scrutiny Management Board
- People Scrutiny  Commission (Health Sub Committee of the People Scrutiny Commission)
- Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission
- Communities Scrutiny Commission
- Resources Scrutiny Commission

Joint bodies: 
- Joint Health Scrutiny Committee
- Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the purpose of jointly scrutinising the 

Bristol, North Somerset and South Gloucestershire Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnerships (STP)

- West of England Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee (“The WECA 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee”)

- Joint Overview and Scrutiny Arrangement comprising of the Constituent Councils of the 
West of England Combined Authority, the Mayor and North Somerset Council (“

Page 23



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

- The Joint Overview and Scrutiny Arrangement”) 
- West of England Combined Authority Audit Committee (“The WECA Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee”)

b. Regulatory Committees:
- Development Control Committee A
- Development Control Committee B
- Public Safety and Protection Committee
- Public Rights of Way and Greens Committee

c. Appeals Committee

d. Other (non-executive) Committees:
- Audit Committee
- Human Resources Committee
- Selection Committee
- Area Committees 1 to 6

e. Statutory Committees:

- The position in relation to the Licensing Committee was noted.

- It was noted that the Health and Wellbeing Board did not need to be formally re-
established as it remained extant.

2. That the Chairs and Vice Chairs be appointed as outlined in Appendix B;

13. Allocation of Committee seats 2020-2021

The Full Council considered a report seeking approval of the allocation of seats on committees in 
accordance with the statutory requirements concerning political balance.

The Lord Mayor moved the report and the recommendations contained therein.

Councillor Johnson, Deputy Lord Mayor, seconded the motion.

It was then:

RESOLVED:

That Full Council:
 

Page 24



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

1. Approved the allocation of committee seats as set out.

2. Noted that no vacancies of the Licensing Committee had been reported.  

3. Agreed that all Members of Council be appointed to serve on an Appeals Committee comprising 
of any 3 Members of Council, subject to them having first received the necessary training and 
not having been involved in the original decision which is the subject of an appeal.

4. Agreed that the Council be represented (as per paragraph 14) on the following joint bodies: 
- Joint Health Scrutiny Committee
- Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the purpose of jointly scrutinising the 

Bristol, North Somerset and South Gloucestershire Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership

- West of England Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee
- Joint Overview and Scrutiny Arrangement comprising of the Constituent Councils of the 

West of England Combined Authority, the Mayor and North Somerset Council (“The Joint 
Overview and Scrutiny Arrangement”

- West of England Combined Authority Audit

5. Noted the position in relation to the membership of the Health and Wellbeing Board as per 
paragraph 15 of the report.

6. Agreed that named members would be provided for the Committee memberships by the party 
group whips (to be sent to the Monitoring Officer).  If named substitutes were not also 
provided, then any councillor of the relevant group may attend a meeting as a substitute, other 
than in the case of:
- a Development Control Committee, where the substitute must be a member of another 

Development Control Committee (and be appropriately trained).
- any scrutiny commission, where the substitute may not be a member of the executive.

14. Appointment of Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service

The Full Council considered a report seeking approval of the appointment of the Council’s Chief Executive 
and Head of Paid Service with effect from 22nd May 2020.

The Lord Mayor moved the report and the recommendations contained therein.

Councillor Johnson, Deputy Lord Mayor seconded the report.

Councillor Hopkins moved the following amendment:

1. That Mike Jackson be appointed Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service with effect from 22nd May 
2020 on a permanent contract.

Page 25



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

2. Full Council adopts a Performance Management Panel as previously agreed at its meeting of 14th 
March 2017, to work with the same terms of reference set out at that time save that, the panel will not 
consider a financial performance bonus.

Following debate on the amendment, upon being put to the vote by way of a roll call, the amendment 
was LOST (30 members voting in favour, 35 against, with 1 Abstention)

Following debate on the original recommendation, upon being put to a vote it was:

RESOLVED:
That Mike Jackson be appointed Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service with effect from 22nd May 
2020 on a permanent contract.

15. Constitution Update: Members Code of Conduct for Development Control Committees

The Full Council considered a report which proposed a revised Member Code of Conduct for Development 
Control Committees within the Constitution.

The Lord Mayor moved the report and the recommendations contained therein.  

Councillor Johnson, Deputy Lord Mayor, seconded the report.

It was then:

RESOLVED that Full Council adopt the revised Member Code of Conduct for Development Control 
Committees.

16. Constitution Update: Members Code of Conduct for Licensing Committee and Public 
Safety and Protection Committee

The Full Council considered a report which proposed a revised Member Code of Conduct for Licensing 
Committee and Public Safety and Protection Committee within the Constitution.

The Lord Mayor moved the report and the recommendations contained therein.  

Councillor Johnson, Deputy Lord Mayor, seconded the report.

It was then:

Page 26



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

RESOLVED that Full Council adopt the revised Member Code of Conduct for Licensing Committee and 
Public Safety and Protection Committee.

17. Constitution Update: Virtual Meetings Procedure Rules

The Full Council considered a report which proposed revised Virtual Meetings Procedure Rules within the 
Constitution.

The Lord Mayor moved the report and the recommendations contained therein.  

Councillor Johnson, Deputy Lord Mayor, seconded the report.

Following a debate, it was:

RESOLVED that Full Council adopt the revised Virtual Meetings Procedure Rules.

Meeting ended at 3.35 pm

CHAIR  __________________

Amendment to the resolution of the appointment of Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service report 
(Amendment)
Marvin Rees Against
Councillor Peter Abraham For
Councillor Donald  Alexander Against
Councillor Nicola Beech Against
Councillor Nicola Bowden-Jones Against
Councillor Harriet Bradley Against
Councillor Mark Bradshaw Against
Councillor Tom Brook Against
Councillor Fabian Breckels Against
Councillor Tony Carey For
Councillor Craig Cheney Against
Councillor Barry Clark Against
Councillor Jos Clark No vote recorded
Councillor Stephen Clarke For

Page 27



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Councillor Harriet Clough For
Councillor Eleanor Combley For
Councillor Asher Craig Against
Councillor Christopher Davies For
Councillor Mike Davies Against
Councillor Carla Denyer For
Councillor Kye Dudd Against
Councillor Richard Eddy For
Councillor Jude English For
Councillor Martin Fodor For
Councillor Helen Godwin Against
Councillor Paul Goggin Against
Councillor Geoff Gollop For
Councillor John Goulandris For
Councillor Fi Hance For
Councillor Margaret Hickman Against
Councillor Claire Hiscott For
Councillor Helen Holland Against
Councillor Gary Hopkins For
Councillor Christopher Jackson Against
Councillor Hibaq Jama Against
Councillor Carole Johnson Against
Councillor Steve Jones For
Councillor Anna Keen Against
Councillor Tim Kent For
Councillor Gill Kirk Against
Councillor Cleo Lake For
Councillor Jeff Lovell Against
Councillor Brenda Massey Against
Councillor Olly Mead No vote recorded
Councillor Matthew  Melias For
Councillor Graham Morris For
Councillor Anthony Negus For
Councillor Paula O'Rourke For
Councillor Steve Pearce Against
Councillor Celia Phipps Against
Councillor Ruth Pickersgill Against
Councillor Kevin Quartley For
Councillor Liz Radford For

Against
Councillor Jo Sergeant Against
Councillor Afzal Shah Against

Page 28



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Councillor Steve Smith For
Councillor Paul Smith Against
Councillor Clive Stevens For
Councillor Jerome Thomas For
Councillor Mhairi Threlfall Against
Councillor Estella Tincknell Against
Councillor Jon Wellington Against
Councillor Mark Weston For
Councillor Lucy Whittle Against
Councillor Chris Windows For
Councillor Mark Wright For
Rejected

Page 29



Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Full Council

26 May 2020 at 2.00 pm

Members Present:-
Councillors: Mayor Marvin Rees, Peter Abraham, Donald Alexander, Lesley Alexander, Nicola Beech, 
Nicola Bowden-Jones, Harriet Bradley, Mark Bradshaw, Mark Brain, Tom Brook, Fabian Breckels, 
Tony Carey, Craig Cheney, Barry Clark, Jos Clark, Stephen Clarke, Harriet Clough, Eleanor Combley, 
Asher Craig, Chris Davies, Mike Davies, Carla Denyer, Kye Dudd, Richard Eddy, Jude English, 
Martin Fodor, Helen Godwin, Paul Goggin, Geoff Gollop, John Goulandris, Fi Hance, Margaret Hickman, 
Claire Hiscott, Helen Holland, Gary Hopkins, Chris Jackson, Hibaq Jama, Carole Johnson, Steve Jones, 
Tim Kent, Sultan Khan, Gill Kirk, Cleo Lake, Jeff Lovell, Brenda Massey, Olly Mead, Matt Melias, 
Graham Morris, Anthony Negus, Paula O'Rourke, Steve Pearce, Celia Phipps, Ruth Pickersgill, 
Kevin Quartley, Liz Radford, Rippington, Jo Sergeant, Afzal Shah, Steve Smith, Paul Smith, Clive Stevens, 
Jerome Thomas, Estella Tincknell, Jon Wellington, Mark Weston, Lucy Whittle, Chris Windows and 
Mark Wright

Officers in Attendance:-

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information

The Lord Mayor welcomed all attendees to the meeting.

2. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bolton, Keen and Threlfall.

3. Declarations of Interest

The Lord Mayor confirmed that customers of Bristol Energy need not declare an interest.

The following interests were declared:

 Councillor Bradshaw was the Council appointed non-executive director of Bristol Holdings Limited.  
The role was not remunerated.

Public Document Pack

Page 30



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

 Councillor Gollop recorded a non-pecuniary interest that as Chair of Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board (OSMB) was an observer at the Shareholders Group.  

 Councillors Gollop and Hiscott, as Members of OSMB, had sight of reports and advice that had not 
been made available to other Councillors and they had received instruction not to refer to them at 
the meeting.

 Councillor Pearce had a non-pecuniary interest as he was a Council appointed non-executive 
director to Bristol Energy.

4. Public Forum (Public Petitions, Statements and Questions)

Public statements:
The Full Council received and noted the following statements from members of the public and members 
of Council (which were also referred to the Mayor for his consideration/information):

PS01 David Saunders
CS01 Cllr Mark Weston 
CS02 Cllr Clive Stevens
CS03 Cllr Geoff Gollop

Public Questions:
The Full Council noted that the following questions had been submitted by members of the public and 
members of Council.

PQ01&02 Michael Owen
PQ03&04 Suzanne Audrey
PQ05&06 Andrew Brown 
PQ07&08 Barry Cash
PQ09&10 Merche Clark
PQ11&12 Mary Page
CQ01 Cllr Marg Hickman
CQ02 Cllr Don Alexander
CQ03&04 Cllr Tim Kent
CQ05 Cllr Martin Fodor
CQ06 Cllr Jerome Thomas
CQ07 Cllr Mark Weston

Within the time available, the Mayor responded verbally to questions PQ03 & PQ04,  PQ11 & PQ12, 
CQ01, CQ02, CQ03 & CQ04, CQ05, CQ06 and CQ07 also responding to supplementary questions.

5. Motion: Bristol Energy Company

Councillor Hopkins moved the following motion:

Page 31



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

“This Council is increasingly concerned that all major decisions relating to Bristol Energy are being taken 
behind a legal cloak of commercial confidentiality. By so doing, proper scrutiny of (and accountability for) 
this – at best – speculative venture is being limited and Members unreasonably constrained from 
expressing concerns about the Municipally-owned company.

The Cabinet decision of 3rd March – which concerned an operational report update - was treated as a 
wholly exempt item of business ‘by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.’ This grants exempt status to information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).

In addition to excluding most Members from accessing this deemed sensitive information, the Mayor 
even removed the ability to call-in any decision taken, apparently on the grounds of urgency.

However, Council believes these restrictions are meant to be qualified and not absolute in their 
operation, nature or scope.  Information ceases to be exempt when the public interest in disclosure 
outweighs the supposed public interest in maintaining the exemption.

Now, it has been reported that EY have been engaged in various activities relating to assessing the future 
viability of this failing business – including disposal of its customer book. In the current circumstances, 
Council asserts that the public’s right or need to know overrides the judgement to withhold knowledge 
around an enterprise which has already required considerable public investment to underpin its business 
plan.

The use of secrecy is also acting as an oppressive gag on Members from airing their views or knowledge in 
this matter. This is not acceptable or reasonable. Accordingly, Council calls on the Mayor to lift these 
embargoes around Bristol Energy and:-
(i) Offer on-going briefings to all Members on the present position and options available to the Authority;
(ii) Allow an open and honest debate to take place about this company – free from the threat of criminal 

(or any other) charges, penalties or sanction;
(iii) Prior to this year’s local elections, reaffirm his commitment not to exceed the agreed total cash 

funding envelope for this energy supply business which has been set at £37.7m;
(iv) Confirm that any payments made to Bristol Energy under delegated powers will be notified to Party 

Group Leaders and OSM within 24 hours.
(v) To ensure clarity, transparency and demonstrate genuine recognition that lessons have been learned 

in this matter, an independent inquiry into governance and financial decision-making will be 
established. Membership of this body to be cross-party and agreed in consultation with the sponsors 
or supporters of this resolution. A report on its findings to be brought back to Full Council for further 
consideration.  Council notes that a further resolution in relation to this serious matter is to follow and 
be taken in closed session.”

The motion was seconded by Councillor Steve Smith

Following debate, upon being put to the vote, the motion was LOST (32 For, 34 Against) 

Page 32



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

6. Exclusion of Press and Public

Resolved - That under s.100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting for the following item(s) of business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph(s) 3  (respectively) of Part 1 of schedule 12A 
of the Act.

Meeting ended at 4.20 pm

CHAIR  __________________

Motion: Bristol Energy Company (Motion)
Marvin Rees Against
Councillor Peter Abraham For
Councillor Donald  Alexander Against
Councillor Lesley Alexander For
Councillor Nicola Beech Against
Councillor Nicola Bowden-Jones Against
Councillor Harriet Bradley Against
Councillor Mark Bradshaw Against
Councillor Mark Brain Against
Councillor Tom Brook Against
Councillor Fabian Breckels No vote recorded
Councillor Tony Carey For
Councillor Craig Cheney Against
Councillor Barry Clark Against
Councillor Jos Clark No vote recorded
Councillor Stephen Clarke For
Councillor Harriet Clough For
Councillor Eleanor Combley For
Councillor Asher Craig Against
Councillor Christopher Davies For
Councillor Mike Davies Against
Councillor Carla Denyer For
Councillor Kye Dudd Against

Page 33



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Councillor Richard Eddy For
Councillor Jude English For
Councillor Martin Fodor For
Councillor Helen Godwin Against
Councillor Paul Goggin Against
Councillor Geoff Gollop For
Councillor John Goulandris For
Councillor Fi Hance For
Councillor Margaret Hickman Against
Councillor Claire Hiscott For
Councillor Helen Holland Against
Councillor Gary Hopkins For
Councillor Christopher Jackson Against
Councillor Hibaq Jama Against
Councillor Carole Johnson Against
Councillor Steve Jones For
Councillor Tim Kent For
Councillor Sultan Khan For
Councillor Gill Kirk Against
Councillor Cleo Lake For
Councillor Jeff Lovell Against
Councillor Brenda Massey Against
Councillor Olly Mead Against
Councillor Matthew  Melias For
Councillor Graham Morris For
Councillor Anthony Negus For
Councillor Paula O'Rourke For
Councillor Steve Pearce Against
Councillor Celia Phipps Against
Councillor Ruth Pickersgill Against
Councillor Kevin Quartley For
Councillor Liz Radford For

Against
Councillor Jo Sergeant Against
Councillor Afzal Shah Against
Councillor Steve Smith For
Councillor Paul Smith Against
Councillor Clive Stevens For
Councillor Jerome Thomas For
Councillor Estella Tincknell Against
Councillor Jon Wellington Against
Councillor Mark Weston For

Page 34



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Councillor Lucy Whittle Against
Councillor Chris Windows For
Councillor Mark Wright For
Rejected

Page 35



Full Council – Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy

Full Council
7 July 2020

Report of: Strategic Director, Growth and Regeneration

Title: Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy

Ward: Citywide   

Member Presenting Report: Councillor Afzal Shah

Recommendation
That having consulted upon its proposed policy for the five year period from 2020-2025, and having had 
regard to the guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, the 
Licensing Authority for Bristol resolves to :-

(i) determine its statement of licensing policy with respect to the exercise of its licensing functions in 
respect of a period of five years beginning with 1 August 2020 annexed as Appendix 1,
(ii) direct that this policy be published on the Council’s web pages before that date.
(iii) determine that it is not appropriate to publish a Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy at this time.
(iv) to approve a consultation on a draft Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy in respect of the city 
centre with a revised boundary which will exclude the Broadmead area, annexed as Appendix 2.

Summary
To consider the responses to the consultation on the Council’s proposed Statement of Licensing Policy 
under Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 and to determine the policy for the five year period beginning 
with 1 August 2020. The Licensing Authority is under a duty to keep its policy under review and make 
such revisions as appropriate during each five year period.

To consider the response to the consultation on the Council’s proposed Cumulative Impact Assessment 
Policy under section 5A of the Licensing Act 2003.  In light of the evidence determine that it is not 
appropriate to adopt a policy at this time, but approve that officers carry out a public consultation in 
respect of a draft Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy for the city centre which would exclude 
Broadmead due to the lack of evidence in supporting its retention within the area of the CIA.  

The significant issues in the report are:
• Licensing policy context and role of Full Council (paras.4-5)
• Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy evidence (paras.13-15)
• Consultation responses (para.12)

Page 36

Agenda Item 8



Full Council – Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy

Policy

1. The report recommends adoption of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy for a five year 
period as required under statute.  It is recommended that no Cumulative Impact Assessment 
Policy is published at this time.  However in light of the information received from Avon and 
Somerset Constabulary the report seeks approval to carry out a consultation on a Cumulative 
Impact Assessment Policy for the city centre.  The draft policy largely mirrors the one that is 
currently in place for the city centre with the exception of a revised boundary which excludes the 
Broadmead area.  Evidence received in relation to the existing Cumulative Impact Areas located 
outside of the centre is insufficient to support their retention.  In addition, in their response, 
Avon and Somerset Constabulary state that these Cumulative Impact Areas are no longer a 
necessary requirement.  

Consultation

2. Internal
The licensing working group has consulted with officers from the Council’s legal services and 
licensing teams.

3. External
A list of all those individuals and organisations who have participated in the consultation process 
is contained in Appendix 3.

Context

4. The Licensing Authority must in respect of each five year period determine and publish a 
statement of Licensing Policy.  Before determining such a policy section 5(3) of the Licensing Act 
2003 places a statutory duty on the Authority to consult.   The Licensing Authority is under a 
duty to keep its policy under review and make such revisions as it considers appropriate during 
each five-year period.  Section 5(3) applies in relation to any review of an Authority’s policy as it 
applies in relation to the determination of that policy.  Where revisions are made the authority 
must publish a statement of the revisions or the revised licensing statement. Only the Full 
Council can make these decisions, no delegation is permitted to committees or officers of these 
tasks.  The Licensing Committee established an officer/member working group to provide 
practical assistance to the Full Council in meeting its obligation to keep its Statement of Licensing 
Policy under review.

5. The Council’s current policy includes reference to a number of Cumulative Impact Areas.  When 
the policy was published in August 2015 cumulative impact was a concept introduced in the 
Government’s Section 182 Guidance issued under the Licensing Act 2003.  The Policing and 
Crime Act 2017, with effect from 6 April 2018, introduced cumulative impact policies into law so 
that they now have a legal footing.

The Licensing Act 2003 now states a licensing authority may publish a document (a Cumulative 
Impact Assessment) stating that it considers that the number of premises licences or club 
premises certificates is at such a level that it would be inconsistent with the promotion of the 
licensing objectives to grant any further licences or certificates in that area and restrict changes 
to licensable activities of existing licences.

Page 37



Full Council – Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy

A Cumulative Impact Assessment must set out the evidence for the authority's opinion and 
before publishing the assessment the authority must consult with those affected, including the 
public, businesses and responsible authorities.  The assessment must be reviewed every three 
years.  A Cumulative Impact Assessment policy is a separate policy document to the Council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy.

6. The officer/member working group undertook a call for evidence to seek the views of the 
responsible authorities under the Licensing Act 2003 and other interested parties with regard to 
the operation of the existing Cumulative Impact Areas prior to the full consultation.  This helped 
inform the subsequent consultation survey.   

7. The draft policy (attached at Appendix 1) is a new policy however it reproduces the majority of 
the previous policy with amendments including:

a. Introduction of Cumulative Impact Assessments into the Licensing Act 2003 (para 
6.3.6). 

b. The removal of the Model Operating Schedules from the Statement of Licensing 
Policy.  Template Operating Schedules will be published separate from the policy to 
help inform applicants (para 2.14). 

c. The importance of integration with other relevant local strategies (para 2.15).
d. The adoption of the Agent of Change principle into the policy (para 8.1).

A full list of all changes is available at Appendix 4.

8. At a meeting of Full Council on 16 July 2019 approval was given to consult on a new draft policy. 
The consultation initially ran from 1 August 2019 to 31 October 2019, and was then extended 
until 14 November 2019 for reasons detailed below.  156 responses were received to the survey 
with a further 43 written responses received separate to the survey. 

9. With regard to the Statement of Licensing Policy and a Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy 
Section 5(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 requires the Council to consult with:

(a) the chief officer of police for the licensing authority’s area,
(b) the fire and rescue authority for that area,
(ba) each Local Health Board for an area any part of which is in the licensing authority's 
area,]
(bb) each local authority in England whose public health functions within the meaning of the 
National Health Service Act 2006 are exercisable in respect of an area any part of which is in 
the licensing authority's area,]
(c) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders of 

premises licences issued by that authority,
(d) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders of club 

premises certificates issued by that authority,
(e) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders of 

personal licences issued by that authority, and
(f) such other persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of businesses 

and residents in its area.

Page 38



Full Council – Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy

The Council is not required, for example, to consult with all premises licence holders or club 
premises certificate holders.  Para 2.8 of the Council’s current Statement of Licensing Policy 
states:

The Council is able to go beyond the minimum statutory requirements.  It has actively sought the 
views of all stakeholders on its proposals and not just those persons who are representative of 
them.

The same approach has been followed with this consultation.  Letters advising of the 
consultation were sent to all premises licence holders at the premises licence holders address, as 
specified on their premises licence.  Section 33 of the Licensing Act 2003 states: 

33 Notification of change of name or address

(1) The holder of a premises licence must, as soon as is reasonably practicable, notify the 
relevant licensing authority of any change in—

(a) his name or address,

A number of letters were returned to the licensing authority as undelivered as the addressee 
had gone away.  Where this occurred a further letter was sent to the licensed premises address 
to inform the occupier of the consultation.  Officers attended a meeting of the Bristol @ Night 
Advisory Panel where they were advised that many premises licence holders had not received 
the letter.  To ensure all parties had the opportunity to respond a further letter was then sent to 
the address of all licensed premises in Bristol, and the consultation was extended by a two week 
period to 14 November 2019 to allow adequate time to respond.

10. In addition to contact with premises licence holders (and Club Premises Certificate holders) 
contact was also made with local residents groups, a variety of charities, legal firms, and local 
Business Improvement Districts.  All of the responsible authorities under the Licensing Act 2003 
were also consulted.  The consultation survey was also available on the Council’s Consultation & 
Engagement Hub.

11. Information submitted by Avon and Somerset Constabulary is attached at Appendix 5.  
Clarification was sought on a number of points which resulted in a further submission, attached 
at Appendix 6.

12. Copies of all survey responses to the consultation, the Secretary of States guidance, the draft 
policy that was consulted upon and the current policy are available in ModernGov Library.  All 
members should consider the full responses as part of their consideration of this report.

Proposal

13. Following the consultation outlined at paragraphs 8-10 officers have produced a revised draft 
Statement of Licensing Policy attached as Appendix 1.  The issues raised through the 
consultation process and officers comments where appropriate are included in Appendix 7.  

14. The results from the consultation survey with regard to each of the existing Cumulative Impact 

Page 39



Full Council – Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy

Areas are attached at Appendix 8.  Information submitted by Avon and Somerset Constabulary is 
attached at Appendix 5 and Appendix 6.   In relation to the existing Cumulative Impact Areas for 
Clifton, Gloucester Road, Whiteladies Road and Bedminster and Southville the working group 
considered that the submissions do not provide sufficient evidence to support the adoption of a 
Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy at this time.  The working group also noted that Avon and 
Somerset Constabulary did not support there retention.  It is important to recognise that a policy 
can only be introduced if there is evidence to show it is warranted, it cannot be aspirational.  The 
authority must distinguish between statements of support and evidence.  The changes in 
legislation as a result of the Policing and Crime Act 2017, referenced in paragraph 5, place a 
greater burden of responsibility on the Licensing Authority to justify implementing Cumulative 
Impact Areas.  The council can review the requirement for any Cumulative Impact Area at any 
time should evidence suggest they are necessary to promote the licensing objectives.  

15. In relation to the city centre Cumulative Impact Area the working group considered that there 
was sufficient evidence to justify its retention.  The working group agreed with Avon and 
Somerset Constabulary’s recommendation to exclude the Broadmead area from the scope of the 
policy on the basis there is insufficient evidence to justify its inclusion.  The working group 
considered that no changes were necessary to the existing scope (reasons) for the city centre 
Cumulative Impact Area.  The area continues to have a significant concentration of alcohol led 
late night venues and the evidence presented by Avon and Somerset Constabulary shows the 
area continues to witnesses a high number of Police related incidents and other related crime 
and disorder including public nuisance and risk to public safety.  It is proposed that the main 
focus of the policy will be on alcohol led establishments and premises that keep customers in the 
area at times when the promotion of the licensing objectives is most challenging.  

The draft Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy is attached at Appendix 2.  It is recommended 
that a public consultation is carried out in relation to this amended city centre Cumulative 
Impact Assessment Policy to ensure all relevant factors have been considered.  This includes 
considering the impact of Covid-19 on the hospitality sector within the city centre area which has 
caused severe disruption.  This does mean that no Cumulative Impact Area will be in place for 
the city centre from 1 August 2020.  However the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy makes 
it clear that the cumulative impact of licensed premises can still be taken into account 
irrespective of the absence of a policy.  The consultation should run for a two month period with 
the results being brought back to the Licensing Committee for consideration.  Should the 
Licensing Committee approve a Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy for the city centre a report 
will be brought back to Full Council in order to update the Statement of Licensing Policy with a 
summary of the Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy.

16. As mentioned at paragraph 7 it is proposed to remove the Model Operating Schedules from the 
policy.  As detailed at Appendix 7 comments were received regarding the approach taken by the 
Authority in relation to the Model Operating Schedules.  The working group considers that it 
would be appropriate to remove the Schedules in their entirety as minimum standards that are 
expected of all operators.  Instead the amended Schedules, attached at Appendix 9 will be 
available as Template Operating Schedules to provide information to applicants on conditions 
that may be appropriate for certain types of licensed venues.  As with the current Pools of 
Conditions this will not form part of the Statement of Licensing Policy but will be available for 
applicants and responsible authorities to drawn upon as necessary.  This approach will help 
ensure that each licence is tailored to the individual needs of the premises concerned. 

Page 40



Full Council – Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy

17. A copy of all written responses to the consultation is attached at Appendix 10.

Other Options Considered

18. No other options considered.  

Risk Assessment

The publication of the Statement of Licensing Policy is a statutory requirement and a new policy 
must be published by 1 August 2020.  Failure to do so would leave the Council open to legal 
challenge.  The adoption of a Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy is discretionary.  However if 
published the policy must set out the evidence to support the authority’s opinion that it would 
be inconsistent with the promotion of the licensing objectives to grant any further relevant 
authorisations in respect of premises in any given area designated under the policy.  Insufficient 
evidence to support such a policy is held by the Council at this time.  Adoption of a policy 
without sufficient evidence would leave the Council open to legal challenge.

Public Sector Equality Duties

8a) Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker 
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected 
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the 
need to:

i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under 
the Equality Act 2010.

ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, 
to the need to --

- remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic;

- take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled 
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons' 
disabilities);

- encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in 
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –

- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.

Page 41



Full Council – Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy

8b) Officers have completed an Equalities Impact Assessment for each policy attached as Appendix 
11.  The risks identified were minimal and the policy ensures that the Council is well placed to 
identify any adverse impact in respect of all protected groups when it is engaged in considering 
applications.  

Legal and Resource Implications

Legal

Officer comments within this report reflect the collective views of relevant officers including 
representatives of the Head of Legal Services.

The Licensing Authority must, in respect of each five year period, consult upon, determine and 
publish its statement of Licensing Policy. This is a function that cannot be the responsibility of 
the Council’s Executive (i.e. The mayor and cabinet). It is a decision that only the full council may 
make; delegation to Committees or officers is not permitted.

The Licensing Act 2003 places a statutory duty on the Authority to consult with specified persons 
and bodies and the report reflects that this has been done in connection with the draft policy 
previously agreed by full council. The full council must now consider the responses that have 
been made.

Case law guides on what constitutes lawful consultation and from this some key principles have 
been established. In summary, those being consulted must:

(i) be provided with material upon which a decision is likely to be made;
(ii) be given enough time for intelligent consideration of that material and to respond to it;
(iii) be given the opportunity to make considered representations; and
(iv) have those representations conscientiously taken into account before a decision is made

The consideration of the responses and the decision whether to adopt this proposed policy are 
called “licensing functions” in The Act. The Council must carry out its licensing functions with a 
view to promoting the four licensing objectives, which are –

- the prevention of crime and disorder
- public safety
- the prevention of public nuisance
- the protection of children from harm

The statement of licensing policy must include a summary of any cumulative impact assessment 
which has been published.

In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have
regard to—

(a) its own published policy, and
(b) any guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182.

Page 42



Full Council – Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy

The council’s current policy is here

The Secretary of State’s guidance is here

Members will appreciate that guidance, whether national or local, is not a set of rules such as 
would be found in legislation. The obligation is to “have regard to” the guidance contained in 
these documents. In making the decision for the Council’s next policy Members are entitled to 
depart from guidance with good reason, providing of course that in doing Members are 
genuinely acting with a view to promoting the licensing objectives and not for any other 
purpose. There should be a clear record of those reasons should members decide to depart from 
guidance. It is essential that all members read the consultation responses, the existing policy, the 
secretary of state’s guidance, this report and its appendices in full before making their decision.

Once the Council has determined its policy for the next five year period it must be published 
before it comes in to effect; for a decision in line with the recommendation this would require 
publication before 1 August 2020.

(Legal advice provided by by Anne Nugent Team Leader after discussion with Ashley Clark 
(Regulatory lawyer) 11/6/2020)

Financial Revenue - There are no direct financial implications expected as a direct consequence 
of approving the New Licencing policy, other than any costs of publishing and communicating 
the details of the new policy, which will be met from existing Licensing Service budgets. Any 
increase in operational demand on enforcement will be managed from within existing resources 
in the normal way

(Financial advice provided by Kayode Olagundoye, Interim Finance Business Partner, Growth 
and Regeneration, 09/06/2020)

Land- Not applicable

Personnel - There are no HR implications evident.

(Personnel advice provided by Celia Williams HR Business Partner – Growth and Regeneration, 
09/06/2020)

Appendices:
Appendix 1: Draft Statement of Licensing Policy
Appendix 2: Draft Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy
Appendix 3: List of persons who responded to the consultation
Appendix 4: List of all amendments to the Draft Statement of Licensing Policy
Appendix 5: Avon and Somerset Constabulary consultation response
Appendix 6: Avon and Somerset Constabulary clarification response
Appendix 7: Comments received in respect of the draft Statement of Licensing Policy
Appendix 8: CIA survey responses
Appendix 9: Template Operating Schedules
Appendix 10: Written consultation responses.

Page 43

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/33940/Licensing+Policy+Final+2015.pdf/3c50a7f1-d18d-4768-bbca-82e0067e3d25
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf


Full Council – Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy

Appendix 11: Equality Impact Assessment for the removal of the Cumulative Impact Areas and 
the Draft Statement of Licensing Policy.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:

None

Page 44



APPENDIX 1 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



2   

 

 

 

Contents 

1. Introduction        3 

2. Purpose and Scope       5 

3. The Four Licensing Objectives     11 

3.1 Prevention of Crime and Disorder     11 

3.2 Public Safety        13 

3.3 Prevention of Public Nuisance     15 

3.4 Protection of children from harm     19 

3.5 Health Bodies Acting as Responsible Authorities  20 

4. Administration, exercise and delegation of functions  21 

5. The Film Classification Body     23 

6.1 Licensing of Premises and Places    24 

6.2 Flyposting and nuisance advertising    26 

6.3 Cumulative Impact       27 

6.4 Content of Regulated Entertainment    28 

6.5 Licensing Hours       30 

6.6 Young People and alcohol      31 

6.7 Young people and films      34 

6.8 Restricted 18 category films     34 

7. The Licensing Authority as a responsible authority  35 

8 Licensing and planning permission    37 

9 Enforcement        37 

 

APPENDICES 

A List of persons who made representations to the Council in its consultation exercise 

prior to determination of this policy 

B Film Classification Policy 

 

Page 46



3   

 

 

 

 

 

Introduction 
 

1.1 The Licensing Act gained Royal Assent on 10 July 2003 and replaced  regimes 
previously administered by either the Licensing Justices or the local authority with a 
unified system of  licensing under the control of the local authority. The new regime 
came into effect on 24 November 2005. The Council set up a Licensing Committee 
as part of these changes. 
 

1.2 The licensing regime is “applicant led”. When a proper application is made the 
Licensing Authority is obliged to grant permission for what is sought unless 
satisfied, after considering  “relevant representations”, that it is appropriate for the 
achievement of the licensing objectives that steps should be taken that fall short of 
what the applicant wanted. For example modification of conditions, exclusion of 
activities or rejection of the application. Relevant representations are 
representations made by ‘responsible authorities‘ or other person that are received 
within fixed timescales and which concern the likely effect of granting the 
application on the promotion of the licensing objectives   

 
1.3 The licensing regime places a great responsibility on applicants themselves.  

Application forms need to be completed and advertised properly. Failure may result 
in an application not being one that the authority must determine.  The legislation 
also places responsibilities on those permitted to make  representations to do so in 
a timely fashion.  Late representations are not permitted.  If there are no relevant 
representations about an application that has been properly made and advertised 
etc. the Council will have  no option in law but to grant it in line with what was  
applied for.   

 
1.4 By way of example, where no relevant representations are made on an application 

for a premises authorisation, the Council may only attach the mandatory conditions 
specified by the Act and conditions that are consistent with the applicant’s operating 
schedule.  Operating schedule conditions can only be modified where relevant 
representations are received and where the Council deems it appropriate to modify 
them to promote the licensing objectives.   The test of relevance includes that the 
representations are received within the time allowed by statute. 

 
1.5 It will therefore be appreciated that  the regime can only work effectively if, among 

other things, applicants adopt a responsible approach in the way they complete and 
advertise their applications and that any relevant representations upon applications 
are received on time. 

 
1.6 The Act requires the Council to carry out its licensing functions with a view to 

promoting the following specific objectives – called “the licensing objectives”:  
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; and 

 The protection of children from harm. 
 

1.7 The Council must also have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
and must also have regard to its own statement of licensing policy.   

Page 47



4   

 

 

 

1.8 The importance of Bristol’s statement of  Licensing Policy, in ensuring that local 
circumstances are taken into account in the decision making process of the Council 
(and by the courts in any appeal), should not be underestimated. 

 
1.9 Through this policy the Council hopes that residents and visitors to Bristol will be 

able to enjoy their leisure time safely without fear of violence, intimidation or 
disorder while at licensed premises. In addition, and in response to concerns about 
the impact of longer trading hours on behaviour and disturbance at night, we give 
the protection of local residents a central place in our strategy. 

 
1.10 In terms of enforcement  our aim is to target those premises which are causing 

problems within our communities and to apply a lighter touch for the majority of 
businesses and community activities, which enhance peoples’ lives by providing 
worthwhile opportunities for the enjoyment of leisure time without having a negative 
impact. Premises where inspections identify conditions are  not being observed, 
that produce disorder, or threaten public safety, or generate public nuisance, or 
threaten the well-being of young people will be targeted for enforcement action.  

 
1.11 An effective Licensing Policy, alongside other initiatives, works to promote the 

positive aspects of the flexibility afforded to applicants under the Act, such as 
promotion of tourism, increased leisure provision and encouraging the regeneration 
of both the city centre and local centres.  It also facilitates control of   the negative 
impacts such as increase in noise, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and crime and 
disorder.  

 
1.12 Bristol is a major regional entertainment centre and regularly attracts in excess of 

30,000 people into its city centre at weekends. The main entertainment areas are 
located within the city centre, Stokes Croft, Southville and Gloucester Road. Bristol 
has a rich history of creative music. The underground Bristol music scene from the 
1990s produced bands such as Massive Attack, Portishead and Tricky and through 
its approach to drum and bass and trip hop produced a unique and distinctive 
Bristol sound. Bristol’s  cultural diversity plays a leading role in shaping the 
entertainment offer in the city and is showcased with the St Pauls Carnival which 
attracts  around 100, 000 residents and visitors in a celebration of the city’s Afro 
Caribbean culture and its history.. The Bristol Harbour Festival, which is the largest 
free event in the South West and attracts over 250,000 visitors, points back to the 
city’s maritime history.  Bristol Pride gives recognition to the LGBTQ community 
whilst South Bristol’s Upfest event celebrates the strong links in the city between 
music and graffiti art.  Bristol also has an impressive food scene which has won 
many accolades and awards in recent years.  Food led venues have helped change 
the character and feel of a number or areas of the city and the Council recognises 
the importance of the food industry in the night time economy.  The Council is keen 
to promote the cultural life of Bristol and so licensing is approached with a view to 
encouraging forms of licensable activity consistent with the licensing objectives. 

 
1.13 This policy builds on the work carried out by the Council to maintain Bristol as a 

dynamic, innovative and attractive place to live, work and relax. The policy has 
been prepared to promote the four licensing objectives and to be consistent with 
other local relevant policies and strategies developed by the Council. The Council 
wishes to secure proper integration with local crime prevention, planning, transport, 
tourism and cultural strategies by ensuring the licensing statement is consistent with 
the aims and objectives of these strategies. The Council is proud of how the night 

Page 48



5   

 

 

 

time economy is managed and in 2010 was one of the first cities to be awarded a 
Purple Flag by the Association of Town Centre Managers in recognition of this 
work.  This award has been retained following reassessments. 

1.14 The Act requires the Council to consult upon and determine a statement of licensing 
policy for every 5 year period and to keep it under review in the interim. All reviews 
will be subject to prior consultation with stakeholders and any revised policy will be 
published.  

 
1.15 This policy was approved by Bristol City Council on 7 July 2020 and came into 

effect on 1 August 2020. 
 
2. Purpose and Scope 
 

2.1 The Licensing Authority for Bristol (‘the Council’) makes this Statement of Licensing 
Policy in accordance with section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003. (“The Act”). 

 
2.2 The policy sets out how Bristol will exercise its licensing functions.  Licensing 

functions are the duties and powers of the Council in its capacity as “the Licensing 
Authority”.  No licensing functions may be discharged by the Council’s executive 
(the elected mayor and his cabinet) .The vast majority of licensing functions cannot 
be undertaken by the Council itself, but are the responsibility of a special Licensing 
Committee which has been established by the Council. The responsibilities and 
powers are detailed in the Act.  Bristol’s statutory Licensing Committee comprises 
between ten and fifteen councillors appointed by the whole Licensing Authority, that 
is,  the Full Council.   

 
2.3 The law does not allow the Licensing Committee or Council officers to be 

responsible for consulting upon and determining this statement of licensing policy or 
keeping it under review.   

 
2.4 The Licensing Committee is directly responsible for most Licensing Functions. 

These include the following activities that are required to be authorised under The 
Act (“licensable activities”): 

 

 The retail sale of alcohol:   
 Including licensing of individuals (personal licences) and licensing of 

premises including wholesale of alcohol to members of the public and 
purchases via the internet or mail order. 

 

  The supply of alcohol to members of registered clubs 
 

 The provision of regulated entertainment in the presence of an  
audience:  

 (Regulated entertainment includes film exhibitions; performances of a play; 
indoor sporting events; boxing or wrestling events; live music performances; 
playing of recorded music and dance performances – unless criteria for 
various exemptions that are available is met) 

 

 The provision of late night refreshment:  
(Supply of hot food or drink from premises from 23.00 to 5.00 hours the 
following day). 

Page 49



6   

 

 

 

2.5 These licensable activities typically require authorisation. The word “authorisation” 
in this policy includes all licences, certificates, temporary event notices and any 
other permission that can be given under the Act.  In practice most business relates 
to the type of authorisation called a premises licence and examples given in this 
policy usually reflect that fact. However, the principles and purposes reflected in the 
policy should be applied to all types of authorisation where relevant. 

 
 All references to “The Licensing Committee” in this document mean the Committee 

established under section 6 of the Act, but also where the context permits it 
includes  the sub committees and officers who are authorised by that Committee to 
exercise licensing functions.  (From time to time other Council bodies may be able 
to exercise licensing functions and this policy also applies when those bodies are 
making licensing decisions). 

 
2.6 The Act requires the Council to actively seek the views of the following persons 

upon the proposals contained in this policy: 
 

- The chief officer of police; 
- The Fire and Rescue Authority; 
- The Director of Public Health 
- each Local Health Board  
- such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders of 

premises licences, club premises certificates and personal licences issued by that 
authority; 

- such other persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of 
businesses and residents in Bristol. 

-  
2.7 The Act requires the Council to consult with those persons or their representatives 

who have a special interest in the licensing policy.  In this policy those with a special 
interest are sometimes referred to as  “stakeholders”. 

 
2.8 The Council is able to go beyond the minimum statutory requirements.  It has 

actively sought the views of all stakeholders on its proposals and not just those 
persons who are representative of them. 

 
2.9 The Council extends its thanks to all of those who took the time to make their views 

known on its proposed statement of licensing policy and the revisions to it.  A full list 
of all of those who did so is attached at Appendix A. 

  
 

2.10 There are a number of statutory provisions that apply to every action the Council 
takes as a public authority.  These include, for example: 

 

 its duty to have regard to the interest of Bristol’s Council tax payers; 

 its obligations to act compatibly with rights conferred under the European 
Convention of Human Rights 

 its general and specific duties under Equalities Law 

 its obligations under Crime and Disorder legislation. 
 

2.11 The Licensing Act itself places an obligation on the Council to carry out its licensing 
functions with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives, namely: 

Page 50



7   

 

 

 

 

 the prevention of crime and disorder 

 public safety 

 the prevention of public nuisance 

 the protection of children from harm. 
 

2.12 The Council is committed to fulfilling all of its obligations when exercising Licensing 
Functions. 

  
Summary of the decision making process on applications for authorisations 
 
2.14 Most applications need to be supported by an operating schedule. The schedule 

must specify (among other things) the steps the applicant proposes to promote 
each of the licensing objectives.  

 
 Uncontested applications 
 

If no responsible authority or other person makes a relevant representation then, 
providing the application has been validly made and the applicant shows it has 
been advertised as required by law, the licensing authority must grant the 
application as set out in the operating schedule and the only conditions that can be 
imposed are the mandatory conditions under the Licensing Act 2003 and those 
conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule.  The Act still requires 
that the Licensing Authority have regard to relevant policy and guidance and act 
with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives when it is dealing with 
uncontested applications, just as is the case where relevant representations are in 
play; but the Authority cannot, in the absence of relevant representations, exercise 
substantial discretion.  The judgment of what conditions, consistent with the 
operating schedule, should be imposed on the authorisation falls to be made by 
duly authorised officers in such cases.  
  
Apart from the mandatory conditions, which are standard conditions applying to all 
relevant applications and are to be found in the Act or in Ministerial Orders, there is 
no obligation under The Act to impose any conditions. In cases where no relevant 
representations are received the licensing authority has power to impose conditions 
but only ones that are consistent with the steps advanced in the operating schedule.   
There is no legal obligation to impose a condition in respect of each and every step 
that may be contained in the operating schedule in such a case; there is simply a 
power to do so and that power must be exercised having regard to national 
guidance and local policy and acting with a view to promoting the four licensing 
objectives. That is:-  
 
- only conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule may be 

imposed (but they do not have to be imposed); 
- regard must be had to the Ministerial guidance and to local policy when 

deciding whether any conditions need to be imposed and if so what should 
be imposed; 

- when considering these matters and making decisions the Authority must act 
with a view to promoting the Licensing objectives. 
 

It is a matter for applicants to decide how to set out the steps they propose to take 
to promote the licensing objectives when they complete their operating schedules, 

Page 51



8   

 

 

 

providing they act in accordance with their statutory obligations and do not make 
any false or misleading statements.   
 
In order for this policy to be effective it is especially important that applicants comply 
with their obligation to provide the information prescribed on the form.  This can be 
particularly important when providing a description of the premises, when providing 
information to describe the activities applied for or when responding to questions 
intended to ensure the protection of children from harm. 
 
For example, the Authority expects applicants to accurately describe the type of 
premises, their general situation and layout and any other information which could 
be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives.  What is relevant will vary 
from case to case but the following can reasonably be expected to be relevant to 
the consideration and evaluation of the licensing objectives and to therefore form 
part of the prescribed information required to make a compliant application: 
 
- any proposed use that is contrary to existing planning consents; 
- where the planned operation of the premises changes through the proposed 

licensed period. For example some licensed premises provide a food led offer 
during the day and early evening before changing to a drink led offer during later 
hours 

- the proximity of the premises to residential accommodation, schools etc.  
- any features that might pose special risks such as ornate suspended ceilings. 

 
Separate from this policy the Council publishes a number of templates that 
applicants may wish to refer to when completing an application.  They contain 
example conditions that may be relevant for particular types of premises for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. It should be made clear that the individual 
templates are guides only and cannot cover all eventualities.  Equally the conditions 
contained within them may not be appropriate for all applications.  It is a matter for 
applicants to decide how to set out the steps they propose to take to promote the 
licensing objectives when they complete their operating schedules, providing they 
act in accordance with their statutory obligations and do not make any false or 
misleading statements.   
 
In cases where no relevant representations have been received, the licensing 
authority does not have to impose conditions to reflect all of the steps that have 
been advanced by the applicant. In some cases to do so could result in onerous 
conditions being imposed on the licence. The delegated officer determining an 
application where there are no relevant representations has limited discretion about 
which conditions should be imposed that are in line with the steps advanced. The 
officer should only impose conditions when it is considered appropriate to do so 
having regard to the Secretary of State’s guidance, to this policy and acting with a 
view to promoting the four licensing objectives.  
 
The conditions contained within the templates have been developed in consultation 
with responsible authorities and have been subject to statutory consultation.  This 
policy does not aim to tell applicants what steps they should advance (other than 
expecting adherence to the legal obligation on applicants laid down in and under 
the Act) and nor does it seek to control the content of any relevant representations 
that any person or body may choose to make.  However it is hoped that the 

Page 52



9   

 

 

 

templates will be of assistance to applicants and responsible authorities alike, when 
making applications or evaluating them. 
 
It should be made clear that the individual templates cannot cover all eventualities.  
For example there may be premises that operate as a restaurant for most of the 
time but that cease serving food at some point during the night and then function as 
an alcohol led late night bar or entertainment venue.  In such cases applicants may 
wish to look at the templates for each type of venue, to guide their application. The 
appendixes will be kept under review and further developed as appropriate.   
 
Contested applications 
 
Where relevant representations are made the application must be determined by 
either the full Licensing Committee or one of its duly authorised sub committees.  In 
Bristol it is usually a sub-committee that determines such applications and this 
determination will usually take place at a hearing.  The sub−committee in such 
cases has full discretion to take such steps that are set out in the Act as it considers 
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. These steps may include modifying 
the conditions that are in line with those proposed in the operating schedule (see 
preceding paragraph) (or in the case of variations, on the existing authorisation) 
and/or rejecting the application in part, and/or excluding a licensable activity; or 
wholly rejecting the application. In the case of applications to vary existing licences 
the Council expects responsible authorities and relevant persons to limit 
representations to the detail of the application itself and tailor any proposed 
conditions accordingly. 
 
In exercising its discretion, the licensing sub−committee must have regard (amongst 
other things) to this licensing policy. Therefore, in drawing up their operating 
schedule, applicants should find it helpful to read this policy carefully and to 
understand what is expected by the licensing authority in order to promote the 
licensing objectives. As stated previously in this statement of policy, this does not 
mean an applicant has to apply in line with this policy. However it will enable 
applicants to decide if their prospective application might benefit from discussion 
with responsible authorities, for example to assuage any concerns that might 
otherwise result in relevant representations being made on the application. 
 
The Licensing Authority will ensure that all personal data is processed fairly and 
lawfully and only kept for as long as is necessary. It will also ensure that personal 
data is kept secure and not disclosed unlawfully to another party. 
 
Any conditions imposed on licences must be compliant and complied with under the 
General Data Protection Regulation rules. 
 
When agreement is reached after relevant representations are received 
 
In some cases agreement is reached between applicants and those who have 
made relevant representations as to how the licensing objectives may be promoted 
in the particular case. Three things need to be borne in mind in this situation: 
 
(i) the Act does not give applicants a power to amend their applications; 

Page 53



10   

 

 

 

(ii) if all relevant representations are withdrawn then the position is that there are 
no relevant representations and the Authority may only grant the application in 
line with what was applied for; 

(iii) if relevant representations are not withdrawn the application would usually 
have to proceed to a full hearing. 
 

In Bristol a process has been established to deal with this situation that is in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act, as follows: 
 
If all parties state in writing that they consider a hearing can be dispensed with then 
the sub-committee has a discretion (which cannot lawfully be delegated to officers) 
to dispense with a hearing.  In deciding whether or not to dispense with a hearing 
the sub-committee is exercising a licensing function.  As such it is required to have 
regard to any relevant guidance as well as to this policy and it must act with a view 
to promoting the licensing objectives.  
 
The sub-committee receives a verbal report from a licensing officer who will provide 
any information needed to enable the committee to evaluate the agreement against 
the licensing objectives.  If the sub-committee agrees that what has been agreed 
will promote the four licensing objectives then it will exercise its discretion to 
dispense with a hearing.  If it does not agree, or if further clarification is required, an 
early date will be fixed for the parties to attend.  It is rare for the committee to 
expect the attendance of parties in such cases. 

 
Where relevant representations have been made and are not withdrawn or no 
agreement to dispense with a hearing is reached 
 
It does not follow that an application that complies with the policy will necessarily be 
granted or that an application that does not comply with it will necessarily be 
rejected. Where there have been relevant representations, the licensing authority 
will always consider the merits of the case, acting within the statutory constraints. 
 
Where a relevant representation refers to the absence of minimum expected steps 
as set out in this policy then in any hearing the applicant will be expected to rebut 
the policy presumption that the corresponding conditions should be imposed.  In the 
absence of a clear case for an exception in the particular case the Authority intends 
the policy to be strictly applied in order to achieve the purpose for which the 
particular policy provision concerned has been made. 
 

2.15 In determining applications the licensing sub-committee will have regard to other 
relevant local strategic plans and policies.  The Council recognises the importance 
of securing the proper integration with all relevant local strategies introduced for the 
management of town centres and the night-time economy.  Where applicants are 
able to demonstrate that their application fits with such strategies the sub-
committee will recognise that this is a relevant consideration and attach the 
appropriate weight to this when reaching a determination. 

 
 The Council’s “Local Plan” which includes policies for deciding planning applications 

in Bristol can be found at: 
 

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/planning-and-building-regulations/local-plan  
 

Page 54

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/planning-and-building-regulations/local-plan
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/planning-and-building-regulations/local-plan


11   

 

 

 

The Bristol Better Eating Award which is an award for food businesses that sell 
healthier food options and promote sustainability can be found at: 
 
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/web/bristol-eating-better-award/home  

 
3.     The Four Licensing Objectives 

3.1 Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 
3.1.1 Applicants are required by law to set out in their operating schedule the steps they 

propose to promote the prevention of crime and disorder. Responsible applicants 
will ensure proper regard in their operating schedule to the location, character and 
condition of the premises, the nature and extent of the proposed use and the 
persons likely to be attracted to the premises.    
 

3.1.2 The Council expects the authorisation holder to take steps to control excessive 
consumption and drunkenness on relevant premises. This will reduce the risk of 
anti-social behaviour occurring both on the premises and elsewhere after customers 
have departed. Authorisation holders are expected to be able to demonstrate a 
general duty of care to customers using their premises and others affected by their 
activities this may include developing a policy to prevent the sale of alcohol to drunk 
customers. 

 
3.1.3 The Secretary of State's guidance sets out measures that applicants, responsible 

authorities and licensing authorities could consider to further the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. Examples include the use of toughened glass and restrictions 
preventing the sale of drinks in bottles for consumption on the premises. When 
determining an application that is subject of relevant representations the Licensing 
Committee would need to give careful consideration to the location and style of the 
venue when assessing whether any such condition was appropriate.  In Bristol 
there have been a number of serious glass related injuries in and around licensed 
premises such as may make the imposition of such a condition appropriate for the 
promotion of the public safety objective. 

  
  
 

Licensed venues that provide the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises 
should consider the introduction of toughened/safety glass.  This policy expectation 
applies to those premises that would be considered as carrying a higher risk for 
potential crime and disorder.  In particular it is expected in premises considered to 
be high volume vertical drinking establishments and those premises open beyond 
midnight in areas where there is a high concentration of venues (but not premises in 
those areas that are viewed as low risk in this context).  

 
 For example in facilities for hotel residents and their guests it is not expected that a 

toughened/safety glass policy need operate and nor would it be appropriate in 
premises which operate as a restaurant where the bar is mainly provided for 
restaurant customers. The policy also applies where outside areas are provided for 
consumption of alcohol, particularly where the area is constructed of hard material 
and also where the outside area is in or adjacent to a public place. 

 
 

Page 55

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/web/bristol-eating-better-award/home


12   

 

 

 

Bottle Policy 
 

The Council considers it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives   
to prevent the passing of a glass bottle over the bar of premises licensed to supply 
alcohol for consumption on the premises where there is a poor history of crime and 
disorder where this is deemed sufficient to address the crime and disorder 
concerns. In some such cases rejection or revocation may be the most appropriate 
response. This expectation may fall to be considered as a result of relevant 
representations having been received on an application. Like other conditions set 
 out in this policy it may also be considered at a hearing following an application for 
review of an authorisation. 

3.1.4 The previous Government’s Alcohol Strategy published in March 2012 recognised 
the issues arising from binge drinking. The strategy proposed, amongst other 
measures: 

 

 To encourage greater use of existing powers to stop serving alcohol to 
people who have consumed too much. 

 Give more powers for Licensing Authorities to restrict opening and closing 
times through the use of Early Morning Restriction Orders (which came into 
force in October 2012).  

 Encourage local health bodies to share non confidential information with the 
 police and  to exercise their new powers as a Responsible Authority to make 
representations on licence applications and submit licence reviews.  

 Restrict the supply of cheap alcohol with the introduction of a minimum unit 
price for alcohol. 

 To work in partnership with business to drive down alcohol misuse and to 
encourage a culture of responsible drinking. 
 

 The Council will have regard to any future government alcohol strategy or similar 
plan.  

 
 The Council will work with the police and other relevant Responsible Authorities and 

licensees to encourage good practice in this area . In considering authorisation 
applications that have attracted relevant representations, the Council will also have 
regard to the following, where relevant: 

 

 Any representations made by the Police, or other relevant agency about the 
training given to staff in crime prevention measures appropriate to those 
premises. This could include training in specific areas such as recognising 
drunkenness, use of illegal substances and the assessment of drinks 
promotions. 

 The physical security features installed in the premises. This may include 
matters such as the position of cash registers, where alcohol is stored in ‘off-
licences’, the standard of CCTV that is installed, adequate lighting, metal 
detection and search facilities or the use of plastic bottles in pubs and clubs. 

 Procedures for risk assessing promotions such as ‘happy hours’ which may 
contribute to the impact on crime and disorder, and plans for minimising such 
risks. 

 The measures employed to prevent the consumption or supply of illegal 
drugs, including any search procedures and entry policies. 

Page 56



13   

 

 

 

 Where premises are subject to age-restrictions, the procedures in place to 
conduct age verification checks.  The Council will expect the premises 
licence holder to follow any guidance issued by the Home Office in this 
regard.  The current Home Office guidance is available at:  
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/false-id-guidance  

 The likelihood of any violence, public order or policing problem if the 
authorisation is granted. 

 Whether the design of the premises has been considered having regard to 
reducing conflict and minimising opportunities for crime. 

 Whether steps are proposed to avoid the adverse impact of the promotion of 
the licensing objectives which result from high strength alcohol being sold at 
a low price.  

 The measures taken to control admission to the premises and the use of and 
number of Security Industry Authority licensed door supervisors employed at 
the premises. 

 Measures taken to ensure that no public nuisance or other crime results from 
customers seeking to smoke tobacco and related products at or in the vicinity 
of the premises, and the extent to which these measures are likely to be 
effective. 

 Other appropriate measures, such as participation in a local pub watch 
scheme or other body designed to ensure effective liaison with the local 
community, subscription to dedicated security radio circuits and other 
examples of industry best practice. 

  
3.1.5 It is recommended that applicants discuss the crime prevention procedures in their 

premises with the Licensing Authority officers and the police before submitting their 
application. 

 
3.1.6 Where the law permits, authorisations for any form of regulated entertainment will 

be subject to conditions to prohibit entertainment (including film exhibitions) which is 
likely to lead to disorder, stir up hatred or incite violence towards any section of the 
public on the grounds of colour, race, ethnic or national origin, disability, religious 
beliefs, sexual orientation or gender. 

 

 
 
3.2.1 Applicants must by law detail in their operating schedule steps they propose to 

ensure public safety. This should include a fire risk assessment.  The need to do so 
has been highlighted  by Avon Fire and Rescue in the light of the enactment of the 
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order.   

   
3.2.2  Subject to certain provisos, at any time when this Order applies in relation to 

licensed premises, any term, condition or restriction imposed by the Licensing 
Authority has no effect in so far as it relates to any matter in relation to which 
requirements or prohibitions are or could be imposed by or under that Fire Safety 
Order.  In other words many fire safety concerns that need to be addressed 
following receipt of written representations on an application will not be capable of 
being addressed by means of a condition.  This does not remove the Licensing 
Authority’s duty to act with a view to promote the licensing objectives.  If following 
the receipt of relevant representations it was judged at a hearing that premises 
represented a fire risk because of the absence of proper fire safety measures 
having already been undertaken then it would not be consistent with the duty to 

Page 57

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/false-id-guidance


14   

 

 

 

promote the licensing objectives to grant an authorisation permitting those 
premises, or if applicable the affected part, to be used for licensable activities.  In 
the absence of being able to address that issue by means of condition the likelihood 
increases that the sub-committee would judge it appropriate to take the step of 
rejecting the application in whole or in part. 

 
Therefore through this policy the Licensing Authority emphasises to applicants the 
benefit to them (and to the promotion of the licensing objectives) of ensuring that 
steps sufficient to satisfy the appropriate responsible authorities are advanced for 
the promotion of public safety in their applications.  Applicants are expected to 
make it clear on their application forms that suitable and sufficient assessments of 
risks to health and safety, including fire safety, are in place before trading begins 
under any authorisation and can be provided to the relevant responsible authorities 
upon request.  This is especially appropriate in connection with those applications 
where the premises are not already known to the responsible authorities, perhaps 
not even yet constructed.  In such cases scrutiny of what is proposed could help to 
avoid a situation where the Licensing Authority inadvertently authorises the carrying 
on of licensable activities in dangerous premises with potentially catastrophic 
outcomes that are inimical to the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 

3.2.3 In considering what steps may be appropriate; applicants will be expected to have 
particular regard to:  

 

 The premises itself (are there for example any inherent hazards such as 
steps, open fires, use of shared areas, etc.). 

 The neighbouring area (are there for example particular problems with crime 
and disorder, is it a primarily residential area, is there a water frontage etc.). 

 The types of regulated entertainment they wish to provide and any hazards.  

 The type of persons that may be using the premises or place  (for example     
persons who are particularly vulnerable in some way such as the very old or 
very young, disabled, possibly impaired through drink or drugs, etc.).  

 The situation and circumstances of use (for example low lighting levels, loud 
noise, crowds, use of special effects, etc.). 
 

  The Act requires that applicants set out the steps they propose to promote public 
safety. The following are examples of the adequate steps regarding this that the 
Licensing Authority expects in premises where particular risks may arise:    

 
Where public safety may be compromised by an excessive number of customers, 
applicants are expected to propose capacity limits. This is especially important for 
premises where regulated entertainment (within the meaning of the Act) is being 
provided at nightclubs, cinemas and theatres. Other appropriate measures may 
include the use of door staff, CCTV, staff training, etc. 
 

3.2.4 Where the public needs to be protected from potentially dangerous sources of 
electricity expected measures may include: 
 

 An assurance that any alterations to the existing system will be made in line 
with the Electrical Equipment of Buildings issued by the Institution of 
Electrical Engineers (BS 7671) or as amended. 

Page 58



15   

 

 

 

 The use of residual current devices (RCDs) on high-risk circuits, such as 
those which may be used by entertainers for plugging in musical equipment 
or used for plugging in equipment to be used outdoors.   

 Other appropriate measures may include portable appliance and fixed 
appliance testing. 
 

3.2.5 The physical layout of the premises may present particular risks and in some 
situations (such as those in which vulnerable persons may be especially at risk) 
applicants will be expected to advance steps accordingly. For example: 
 

 For premises that have stairs, whether it is appropriate for appropriate 
handrails to be fitted together with contrasting nosings to the steps. 

 In respect of premises which have uneven flooring, how to minimise risks.  

 In respect of premises with outdoor areas that may be accessed by 
customers or the public (whether or not those areas form part of the place 
that is licensed) whether it is appropriate to provide appropriate lighting of 
these areas, use of toughened glasses and the provision of customer bins. 

 Steps expected for premises with working fireplaces  include guarding or 
similar; this is especially important where children may be permitted on the 
premises.  

 Applicants with premises which will be relying on the usage of shared areas, 
such as escape routes, are expected to advance measures that will ensure 
the usage of these areas will not create any risks to the public.   
 

Applicants are also expected to consider how the proposed activities may impact 
upon public safety/public nuisance and put forward steps accordingly. For example: 
 

 Applicants for authorisation of premises that are of high capacity or whose 
regulated entertainment may give rise to an increased risk of injuries 
occurring are expected to advance steps regarding first aid provision. 

  Applicants for authorisation of premises where special effects (such as 
fireworks/ foam/ lasers/ etc.)  are planned will be expected to propose 
measures that will ensure this will not create any safety risks.   
 

Where proposed licensable activity includes the consumption of alcohol or provision 
of late night refreshments on the premises, it is expected that applicants should 
advance steps regarding the provision of adequate and well-managed toilet and 
hand washing facilities. 
 

3.3 Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

 “A person is guilty of a public nuisance (also known as common nuisance), who (a) 
does an act not warranted by law, or (b) omits to discharge a legal duty, if the effect 
of the act or omission is to endanger the life, health, property,……. or comfort of the 
public, or to obstruct the public in the exercise or enjoyment of rights common to all 
Her Majesty’s subjects.”(Archbold) 
 
In the House of Lords case of Rimmington, Lord Rodger said: 
 
“A core element of the crime of public nuisance is that the defendant’s act should 
affect the community, a section of the public, rather than simply individuals.  
Obvious examples would be the release of smoke or fumes which affect a village or 

Page 59



16   

 

 

 

neighbourhood or the emission of loud noises which disturb the neighbourhood.”  
Private nuisance is not a licensing objective.  With regard to applications it is public 
nuisance that must be demonstrated and any conditions imposed on licences must 
relate to the prevention of public nuisance rather than private nuisance. 
 

3.3.1 The Act requires and the Council expects applicants to demonstrate within their 
operating schedule how they intend to prevent public nuisance arising in the nature 
of noise or other disturbance. This will be of particular importance where there are 
residential properties in the vicinity of the licensed premises. It should be noted that 
there is now residential accommodation in most parts of the city, including an 
increasing number of properties in the city centre that are being, or have already 
been, converted for residential use. 
 

3.3.2 When appropriate on application or review the Council will consider the adequacy of 
proposed measures to remove or effectively manage the potential for public 
nuisance, anti-social behaviour and other crime which may impact on the promotion 
of the licensing objectives.  

 
3.3.3 When an operating schedule does not sufficiently address the prevention of public 

nuisance and relevant representations are made in that regard the Licensing 
Authority will consider those representations and identify how to prevent public 
nuisance. In some locations it may be appropriate to limit opening hours or the 
times of other licensable activities. 

 
3.3.4 The factors that the Council will particularly consider when determining an 

application or undertaking a review include: 

 

Steps taken or proposed to be taken to prevent noise and vibration from 
entertainment causing nuisance and damage to residents hearing. This may include 
noise from music, human voices and other forms of entertainment whether 
amplified or not.  
 
Measures to prevent nuisance may include, where appropriate to the promotion of 
the licensing objectives: 
 

 The Installation of soundproofing.  

 Sound limitation devices. 

 Acoustic lobbies. 

 The prevention of music being played out of doors. 

  The restriction of times or types of entertainment. 

 Positioning of speakers. 
 

Steps taken or proposed to be taken to prevent noise and disturbance from 
customers causing nuisance. This may include noise and disturbance from 
customers on the premises and customers in outdoor areas such as terraces, beer 
gardens and smoking areas. It will also include noise, disturbance and obstruction 
from customers in the vicinity of the premises including customers congregating 

Page 60



17   

 

 

 

outside a premises to smoke or drink, customers arriving, leaving or queuing 
outside a premises. 
 
Applicants are expected to give particular consideration to the potential for public 
nuisance to occur from the use of any outside areas where customers are permitted 
to smoke. There is no legal requirement for licensed premises to provide an outdoor 
smoking area.  The Licensing Authority does not consider the expressed need or 
wish for a smoking area can justify public nuisance.  There is no licensing objective 
in favour of smoking; the Authority is under a duty to promote the prevention of 
public nuisance.   
 
Noise and disturbance from people outside and leaving premises can cause public 
nuisance even when those people are not behaving badly. This will be of more 
significance in areas with residential accommodation and will usually, but not 
exclusively, be of greater importance between 10 pm and 7 am. However it must be 
noted that noise and disturbance from customers in outside areas can cause public 
nuisance outside of these times.  
 
Measures to prevent nuisance may include the:  
 

 Use of time restrictions on certain areas. 

 Cessation of the use of certain areas. 

 Supervision of outdoor areas.  

 Suitable signage. 

 Restriction of seating or heating in outdoor areas. 

 Restriction on the times that food or drinks can be consumed or sold to be 
consumed outside the premises. 

 Limiting the hours at which premises are open to the public or during which 
outside areas may be used. 

  
 

 
Steps taken or proposed to be taken to prevent noise and vibration from plant or 
equipment causing nuisance. This includes noise and vibration from ventilation, air 
conditioning, refrigeration equipment, outlet pipes. 
Measures to prevent nuisance may include the: 
 

 Installation of acoustic enclosures. 

 Sound proofing, timing devices 

 Relocation or replacing equipment. 
 
 Noise from Servicing 
 

Steps taken or proposed to be taken to prevent noise from servicing of the premises 
causing nuisance. This may include noise from deliveries, collections and the on-
site disposal of bottles and other waste or recyclable materials.  
Measures to prevent nuisance may include the: 
 

 Restrictions on times of activities near to noise sensitive premises 

 the prevention of activities on certain parts of the premises. 
 
 

Page 61



18   

 

 

 

Noise – General 
 
When undertaking a review for any premises the Council will consider if alterations 
to the operation of the premises have occurred that have brought forward 
complaints from local residents.  If, it is apparent, that it is the local neighbourhood 
has changed and it is not the operating of the premises that has changed, then this 
will inform the Council’s determination.   
 
On review the Council will consider if improvements can be made to the internal 
fabric of the building or systems be imposed for ingress and egress of customers.  If 
such actions can prevent public nuisance occurring then these steps would take 
precedence over the restriction of operating times or licensable activities as it is 
recognised that such restrictions could have catastrophic effects on the continued 
existence of the venue.  The Council also recognises that premises licence holders 
have a duty to uphold the licensing objectives.  Where issues are raised with 
premises licence holders prior to a review application being submitted the Council 
expects that proactive action should be taken by the premises licence holder to 
ensure any issues are resolved.  
 
Odour 
 
Steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent odour from the 
premises causing nuisance. This can include the generation of odour from food 
preparation, refuse storage and or from smoking areas. 
 

Steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent artificial light from 
causing nuisance. This includes the siting of external lighting, security lighting and 
advertising lighting displays. 
 
Waste 
 
Steps taken or proposed to be taken to prevent nuisance being caused from the 
storage of refuse on or in the vicinity of the premises, measures may include:- 
 

 All waste and refuse to be contained in appropriate lockable containers.  

 Adequate off street storage for refuse bins between collections. 

 Refuse only to be placed out for collection at a specified time.  

 Cleansing regimes to ensure for the immediate clearing up of any waste 
spillages.  

 Implementation of a signed Trade Waste Agreement.  
 

Steps taken or proposed to be taken to prevent public nuisance from customers 
depositing litter without due care in the vicinity of the premises. Measures may 
include the: 
 

 Provision and regular emptying of litter bins.  

 Provision for the disposal of cigarette litter at entrances as well as where 
people are most likely to congregate.  However licence holders are 

Page 62



19   

 

 

 

encouraged to ensure that where possible smoking is discouraged by the 
entrance to the premises to avoid the need for other customers to inhale 
second hand smoke.  The licensing authority recognises however that in some 
cases no other suitable location may be available.” 

 Regular monitoring and cleaning of areas. 

 Reduction in the amount of packaging passed on to customers. 

 Provision of posters asking customers not to drop litter. 
 

 Steps taken to prevent fly posting and the distribution of fliers advertising the 
premises or events at the premises. 

 Steps taken by the applicant to remove graffiti and fly posting from their 
surfaces as soon as practicable after it appears. 

 Maintenance of a register of promoters in order to promote the prevention of 
crime and public nuisance objectives. 

 

 The availability of public and other transport provision in the locality (including 
taxis and private hire vehicles) for patrons. 

 The arrangements made or proposed for parking by patrons, and the effect of 
parking by patrons on local residents (including motorised vehicles and 
cycles). 

 The level of likely disturbance from associated vehicular movement. 
 Steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent queuing 

(either by pedestrian or vehicular traffic) or to manage queues.  
   

General 
 

 Any other relevant activity likely to give rise to nuisance. 

 The history of the applicant in controlling anti-social behaviour and 
preventing nuisance.   

 Any representations made by the Police, or other relevant agency or 
representative. 

 The history of previous nuisance complaints proved against the premises, 
particularly where statutory notices have been served on the present 
licensees. 

 

3.4 Protection of Children from Harm 
 

3.4.1 A number of specified "responsible authorities" will be notified of all authorisation 
variations and new applications.  These responsible bodies include the Police and 
Avon Fire and Rescue.  They also include: 

 
3.4.2 "A body which represents those who, in relation to any such area, are responsible 

for, or interested in, matters relating to the protection of children form harm, and is 
recognised by the Licensing Authority for that area for the purposes of this section 
as being competent to advise it on such matters" 

 
3.4.3 Full Council recommends that the Licensing Committee continue to ask the Council 

(in its capacity as Social Services Authority) to undertake this responsibility.  
Page 63



20   

 

 

 

 
3.4.4 The Council expects that, whether or not alcohol is supplied or proposed to be 

supplied on or in the vicinity of the premises, operating schedules will identify: 
 

 The extent to which it is proposed that children be admitted to the premises. 

 Whether it is proposed that unaccompanied children will be admitted. 

 If they are, the type of regulated entertainment provided whilst children are 
present. 

 The specific steps undertaken to ensure the safety of children and to further 
ensure that no products or services are sold to children that are not 
appropriate for their use or consumption. 

 In respect of alcohol delivery services steps taken to ensure alcohol is not 
sold or, delivered to children (that is, people under the age of 18). 
 

3.4.5 Applicants who propose to admit children, particularly where they would not require 
them to be accompanied by a responsible adult, should be especially careful in 
ensuring they meet the statutory requirement that their schedule fully and clearly 
sets out the nature of the activities for which permission is sought. In such cases 
the Council expects the operating schedule to specify in sufficient detail the 
measures and management controls proposed to protect children from harm.  

 
3.4.6 Nothing in the Council’s policy seeks to interfere with the right of an authorisation 

holder to preclude children from entry to their premises.  
 
3.4.7 Tackling Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) is a key target both locally and nationally 

as such the Licensing Authority expects Licence Holders to: 
 

• Understand that there are criminal offences in relation to sexual exploitation of a  
child 
• Ensure that they and their employees have a basic awareness of the signs of CSE  
and how to report it; 
• Report any concerns to the appropriate authorities or to the Licensing Authority  
who can advise them of the appropriate authority to report concerns to. 

 
3.5 Health Bodies Acting as Responsible Authorities 
 
3.5.1 The Licensing Authority recognise that the local authority’s Director of Public Health 

(DPH) may exercise their function as a responsible authority and that such 
representations may potentially cover any of the four licensing objectives.  
Representations should be evidenced based and, as recognised in the Secretary of 
State’s section 182 Guidance, the DPH may hold information that other responsible 
authorities do not which will assist the licensing authority in exercising its functions. 

 
3.5.2 Bristol is a socially responsible city that recognises the potential harms associated 

with alcohol misuse. The harms to health are widely documented including the part 
it can play in fuelling aggression, violence or assault. The rates of admission for 
alcohol specific conditions have been consistently higher than that for England for 
the last ten years for which we have data.  Alcohol specific mortality rates for Bristol 
are higher than that for England. 

 

Page 64



21   

 

 

 

3.5.3  The Licensing Authority will take into account the links between the availability of 

alcohol and alcohol-related harm when considering a licence application (for 

example take into account the number of alcohol outlets in a given area and times 

when it is on sale and the potential links to local crime and disorder and alcohol-

related illnesses and deaths). However the Licensing Authority recognises that the 

Licensing Act does not, as it stands, cover public health considerations.  

4. Administration, exercise and delegation of functions 
 
4.1 Guidance 
 
4.1.1 Guidance issued by the Secretary of State  recommends that statements of 

licensing policy should indicate how the licensing authority intends to approach its 
various functions.  As far as functions which are not the responsibility of the 
Licensing Committee are concerned, the Council has published its constitution 
which includes detailed and comprehensive information about how the Council and 
its Executive approach the discharge of their functions. This Constitution accords 
with the relevant statutory provisions which deal with the discharge of functions, in 
particular the Local Government Acts of 1972 and 2000. 

 
4.1.2 The discharge of functions by the Licensing Committee, however, is not primarily 

governed by the Council’s constitution and the legislation referred to above.  The 
proceedings of the Licensing Committee and its ability to delegate its functions to 
sub committees and officers are contained in the Licensing Act itself; for example at 
sections 7, 9 and 10.  

 

 
4.2.1 The Licensing Authority is allowed to arrange for “related functions” to be carried 

out by its Licensing Committee (section 7(3) of the 2003 Act).  A related function is 
one which relates to a matter which stands referred to the Licensing Committee but 
is not itself a licensing function. The Council has made arrangements in its 
constitution for the Licensing Committee to exercise functions related to the 
licensing of sex establishments. Through this policy the Council states its 
agreement that those empowered to discharge non-executive functions, be they 
Committees, sub committees or officers, should utilise this provision where they 
judge it appropriate.  Through this policy the Council further requests that the 
Elected Mayor consider making the same arrangements in respect of any of the 
functions for which he is responsible and which may fall into this category.  This 
may be considered particularly relevant in respect of those functions of the Weights 
and Measures Authority concerned with enforcement of underage sales on licensed 
premises. 

 
4.2.2 Section 7 (5) allows for the licensing authority to arrange for related functions to be 

considered together either by the Licensing Committee or by “another of its 
committees”.  This provision appears to assume that all related matters would fall 
within the responsibility of a Council committee.  In Bristol this is unlikely to be the 
case.  This is because, firstly, in accordance with Executive arrangements made 
under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2000, many functions are no 
longer legally capable of being decided by traditional Council committees.  
Secondly, even where a matter is one which is legally capable of being the 
responsibility of a Council committee, in practice most of the Council’s functions are 

Page 65



22   

 

 

 

discharged by officers and not by committees, in accordance with official guidance 
issued under the 2000 Act which anticipated an increase in decision making by 
officers acting under delegated powers. 

 
4.2.3 Even where the provision may be of relevance there are likely to be practical 

obstacles to invoking these arrangements.  For example the time limits imposed in 
the Licensing Act in respect of determination of various applications may render it 
impractical to achieve the making of such arrangements. This is particularly so in 
respect of the requirement that there be reports passing between the two 
committees concerned before decisions can be reached. 

 
4.2.4 It is therefore unlikely that Bristol will be well placed to take advantage of this 

provision on a regular basis.  However through this policy statement the Council 
makes clear that, where it is judged that the provision would aid effective decision-
making, then its officers are authorised to make the arrangements to put it into 
effect.  Applicants who are aware of related matters are requested to draw this to 
the attention of the Licensing officers, preferably before their application is lodged, 
so as to facilitate consideration of the decision making process in respect of all 
related matters at a sufficiently early stage to facilitate this provision being utilised 
where it would be of benefit to effective administration.  

 
 An example would be where a fresh application, or variation of an existing 

authorisation, necessitates planning application e.g. for longer hours than the 
current planning permission permits, or for a change of use, or perhaps other 
permissions in addition to the authorisation being applied for.  

 
4.3 Sub delegation of functions by the Licensing Committee  
 
4.3.1 The Council considers that the Licensing Committee is best placed to determine 

how its functions should be discharged within the constraints of the Licensing Act 
provisions.  The Council notes the committee has exercised its Section 10 powers 
to make arrangements and recommends that the committee continues to review 
their effectiveness from time to time and at least at each annual meeting.  

 

4.4.1 The Secretary of State has provided a table in the guidance which the committee 
may find a useful starting point in its considerations.  However the Council would 
not recommend that the Licensing Committee follow the recommendation regarding 
the decision on whether a matter is “frivolous or vexatious”.   The Secretary of State 
suggests this decision should be made by officers “in all cases”. The Council 
considers this is not appropriate.  

 
4.4.2 This provision of the Act is unusual in a local authority context since it requires that 

the Licensing Authority form an opinion about representations received from 
interested persons who are not “responsible authorities” regarding whether or not 
those representations are “frivolous or vexatious”.  

  
4.4.3 However deciding that interested citizens cannot be heard is a serious step to take, 

involving as it must judgments of the Council’s human rights obligations together 
with other considerations.  This is a process from which elected politicians should 
not be excluded.  The Council agrees with the Secretary of State that in a finely 

Page 66



23   

 

 

 

balanced case the maker of the representations should be given the benefit of the 
doubt.   

 
4.4.4 It may well be appropriate to make this judgment in the context of the application as 

a whole in order to properly understand the nature of the representations of the 
interested party.  In the Council’s experience to date, representations may turn out 
to be poorly expressed rather than frivolous or vexatious.  The Licensing Authority 
should not lose sight of the fact that many people are not experienced in making a 
case to a decision making body and it is not unknown for the full meaning of their 
concern to emerge during a hearing when the representations are clarified.   

 
4.4.5 The Council therefore recommends to the Licensing Committee that it continues to 

effect its delegations such that officers can only make this decision in those cases 
where officers would be empowered to go on to make the decision themselves if 
they judged the particular representations to fall into this category.  In all other 
cases it should be the body which will ultimately make the decision which should 
make this judgment. 

 
4.4.6 Whichever person or body makes the decision it is particularly important that 

appropriate legal advice is sought before a final decision is made that a person’s 
views will not be heard or taken into account, as they are judged to be frivolous or 
vexatious. 

 
5. The Film Classification Body 
 
5.1 Section 20 of the Act enables the Council to specify the film classification body in 

the authorisation.  The film classification body means the person designated under 
section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 as the authority to determine suitability 
of video works for classification; this is the British Board of Film Classification (the 
BBFC). 

 
5.2 Where the authorisation specifies the BBFC then admission of children must be 

restricted in accordance with any recommendations made by it. 
 
5.3 Where the BBFC is not so specified, or where the licensing authority has notified 

the holder of the authorisation that subsection 3(b) of section 20 of the Act applies, 
then admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any 
recommendation made by the licensing authority. 

 
5.4 The guidance issued by the Secretary of State (Paragraph 10.59) supports the 

specification of the BBFC on the basis of that organisation's expertise. 
 
5.5 The Council agrees with the Secretary of State with regard to the expertise of the 

BBFC.  The Council also agrees that the Board’s classifications should be those 
which normally apply.  However the Council considers there is good local reason for 
not specifying the board in Bristol authorisations.  Bristol is an area with an active 
and innovative arts and cultural scene.  There are many examples of films exhibited 
in Bristol which do not have a BBFC classification and which are not intended to be 
exhibited widely or even beyond the Bristol area; in such cases the film maker may 
not judge it to be economic to seek classification from the Board.  In such cases it 
has been the practice in Bristol for the Council itself to view the material and 
indicate the appropriate classification having regard to the BBFC guidelines.  The 

Page 67



24   

 

 

 

Council considers this practice to be of benefit to the arts in  the local area. It does 
not undermine the licensing objectives to allow it to continue.  

 
5.6 In Bristol the BBFC has not therefore been specified as the film classification body.  

Instead the Licensing Committee should enable its sub committees and/or officers 
to recommend classification and should publish its classification policy.  The 
classification policy should include the general application of the classification 
recommended by the BBFC where films have been submitted for classification.  
Where the Council is asked to consider classifying films which have not been 
submitted to the BBFC then the Council can if it wishes to do so consider issuing its 
own classification in respect of which regard should be had to the BBFC guidelines. 
The Licensing Authority wishes to retain the discretion to depart from the BBFC 
although it expects this discretion to be exercised sparingly.  As this is a 
discretionary service and having regard to the cost to the Council tax payer which 
would otherwise arise, any such request should be processed only on payment of a 
suitable fee.  Discretion should be retained under the classification regime of the 
Council enabling it to refuse to consider an application for classification itself but 
instead recommending the film for submission to the BBFC.  This should be done in 
cases where the summary of the film suggests that it may be considered for a 
Restricted 18 classification. A suggested film classification policy for Bristol is 
included at Appendix B. 

 
5.7 All premises authorisations permitting the exhibition of film should contain a 

condition permitting non classified films to be exhibited at the premises for the 
purpose of a private viewing by the Licensing Authority in its role as the 
classification body (but for no other purpose) in order to facilitate the effective 
implementation of this policy. 

 
6.1 Licensing of Premises and Places 

6.1.1 As emphasised throughout this policy, where there are no relevant representations, 
the Council may only impose conditions in line with the operating schedule 
submitted by the applicant. Having considered relevant representations and 
determining to grant the application (in whole or in part), the Council may impose 
conditions which modify the conditions that are consistent with the applicant’s 
operating schedule to the extent that the Committee considers appropriate  for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives.    

   
6.1.2 The Policy is not intended to encourage the duplication of existing legislation and 

regulatory regimes which place obligations on employers and premises owners 
seeking authorisations under the Act.  The Council would therefore not encourage 
the imposition of conditions which serve no purpose other than to replicate existing 
controls. 

 
6.1.3 However, where such controls do not exist, or where they fall short of what is 

reasonably required to promote the licensing objectives, it is proposed that the 
Licensing Committee should, where the law permits it to do so, impose conditions 
which do promote the achievement of those objectives. 

 
6.1.4 Where there are relevant representations which persuade the Licensing Committee 

that the application cannot proceed as proposed, then the committee should 

Page 68



25   

 

 

 

consider if the problems identified can be overcome by means of imposing 
appropriate conditions in accordance with the statutory provisions. 

 
6.1.5 If the committee is satisfied that implementing the permissions contained in the 

proposed authorisation would result in the commission of a criminal offence, the 
Council may think it appropriate to reject the application in order to promote the 
Licensing Objectives. 

 
 One example of when this may occur is where there is a dispute about whether or 

not an authorisation can be relied upon in particular circumstances.  
 
 In the Licensing Authority’s experience, this can occur in respect of premises where 

petrol is sold and an applicant seeks authority to supply alcohol.  Section 176 of the 
Act provides that premises used primarily as a garage or which form part of 
premises which are primarily so used are ‘excluded premises’.  No authorisation 
has effect to permit the sale by retail or supply of alcohol on or from excluded 
premises. 

 
 The question whether or not the premises are indeed excluded premises can be 

controversial; there may be a genuine dispute between the Authority and an 
applicant about whether or not supplies of alcohol could take place without an 
offence being committed.   

 
 The Licensing Authority will take care to secure all relevant information that is 

reasonably available to it to enable it to judge whether or not the premises for which 
authorisation is sought are excluded premises.  If the Authority reasonably believes 
that the premises are excluded premises then rejection of an application (or 
revocation on a review) is an appropriate and proportionate step given that the sale 
of alcohol in reliance upon such an authorisation from excluded premises would 
involve the commission of a crime.  The Authority should bear in mind that its role is 
to act with a view to preventing crime; it should not therefore allow a situation to 
develop where crime is likely to be committed. 

 
 A further example of the risk of crime being committed in reliance on an 

authorisation can be found in the provisions, which enable the Council to regulate 
‘sexual entertainment venues’.  The Council adopted these provisions in January 
2011 and has  developed policy in respect of the regulation of sexual entertainment 
venues, which it would not be appropriate to replicate in this policy but which can be 
viewed here:-  https://www.bristol.gov.uk/licences-permits/sexual-entertainment-
venues Those who hold a Licensing Act authorisation under which ‘relevant 
entertainment’ within the meaning of the sexual entertainment venue provisions 
may be provided will be able to claim an exemption from the need to secure a 
sexual entertainment venue licence if they fall within certain categories, one such is 
an occasional use exemption. 

 
 The definition of relevant entertainment is such that whether or not premises are 

being used for its provision may be an issue on which disagreement could arise. 
The Council considers that certain measures are appropriate in order to prevent the 
commission of the crime of providing relevant entertainment without a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence.  First, authorisations issued under the 2003 Act 
should clearly state whether or not adult entertainment/services etc. are permitted.  

Page 69



26   

 

 

 

 Second, where adult entertainment is permitted, then a condition requiring the 
authority to be notified of those occasions when adult entertainment is proposed to 
take place under the occasional exemption is a reasonably appropriate step to 
ensure the promotion of the crime prevention objective. 

 
6.1.6 In addition to mandatory conditions (as specified in the Act or by Order), other 

conditions may be tailored to the individual style and characteristics of the premises 
and events concerned.  

 
6.1.7 Where following receipt of relevant representations the Licensing Authority  

considers that to grant the authorisation, whether as sought, or with additional 
conditions, would result in a real risk of harm of the type that the licensing 
objectives seek to prevent then refusal (in whole or in part) should be considered.  
The health, safety and well-being of the public in the context of the duty to promote 
the four licensing objectives should be of paramount importance.  

  
6.1.8 The Pools of Conditions which have been developed by the Licensing Committee 

and can be found at www.bristol.gov.uk/licensingpolicy are considered by the 
Council to be a useful resource to the Licensing Committee in attaching conditions 
that are appropriate in the particular circumstances of the case.  However, the 
Council supports the Licensing Committee in utilising other conditions where they 
are judged reasonable and in particular where it is judged to be conducive to 
facilitate the promotion of a relevant statutory obligation.   

 
 

 
6.2.1 In Bristol there is a particular and widespread problem with illegal and nuisance 

advertising.  There are limited controls in place under planning law which make 
“flyposting” an offence; however those controls are inadequate as far as much 
nuisance advertising is concerned.  This is because the relevant planning 
regulations do not cover much of the activity which causes nuisance to residents 
and visitors alike, such as the flyers which litter our streets and the evidence on our 
City’s streets make plain that the existing legislation is not achieving the prevention 
of this criminal and nuisance activity.  Also some licensees leave the advertising of 
regulated entertainment in the hands of others, (e.g. events promoters), which can 
result in the licensees themselves not being answerable for crime which relates to 
activity on their premises.   
 

6.2.2 The Licensing Act is based upon an expectation of most licensees being 
responsible and law abiding. 

  
6.2.3 The Council expects licensees will ensure that the licensing objectives (particularly 

those relating to crime and disorder and public nuisance) are promoted by ensuring 
entertainment at their premises is not advertised in a manner which causes 
nuisance or which results in the commission of offences.  To this end, a responsible 
licensee is expected to take all reasonable steps and exercise due diligence to 
ensure advertising of licensable activities does not cause nuisance or annoyance or 
which results in a criminal offence.  Those steps should include the maintenance of 
a register of promoters that can be inspected by authorised officers or constables 
on request.   This should help to deter irresponsible promoters from allowing events 
to be unlawfully advertised and thereby serves to promote the licensing objectives. 

 

Page 70

http://www.bristol.gov.uk/licensingpolicy


27   

 

 

 

6.2.4 The Council therefore proposes that the Licensing Committee be encouraged to 
impose conditions to that effect in every case where the permitted regulated 
entertainment involves music/dance or similar entertainment and where such a 
condition would be consistent with the applicant’s operating schedule. 

 
6.2.5 The Council hopes that responsible applicants will want to work with the Council in 

tackling nuisance and criminal advertising and will play their part by submitting 
operating schedules that are consistent with this objective.  Applicants are referred 
to the Council Template Operating Schedules available on the Council’s website to 
assist in this regard. 

 
6.2.6 Where the Council believes the applicant’s operating schedule is not consistent with 

tackling nuisance and criminal advertising and where relevant representations have 
been made conditions to control fly posting, in line with this policy, should usually be 
considered to be appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives. 

 
6.3 Cumulative Impact 

 

6.3.1 The cumulative impact of the number, type and density of premises in particular 
areas, such as the city centre, may lead to them becoming saturated with premises 
of a certain type making them a focal point for large groups of people together 
leading to severe or chronic problems of public nuisance,anti- social behaviour or 
other alcohol related problems.  Local crime and related trauma data may be used 
to map the extent of such problems.  The licensing authority may consider 
publishing a cumulative impact assessment (CIA) to help limit the number of types 
of licence applications granted in such areas if it is satisfied that it is appropriate to 
include an approach to cumulative impact in its Licensing Policy Statement. It will 
take the decision only after it is satisfied that there is evidence to support such a 
decision. 

 
6.3.2 The effect of adopting a CIA of this kind is to create a  rebuttable presumption if 

relevant representations to that effect are received, that applications for new 
premises authorisations or club premises certificates or material variations will 
normally be refused, unless it can be demonstrated  that the operation of the 
premises involved will be unlikely to add to the cumulative impact already being 
experienced. What constitutes a material variation will depend upon the policy in 
place and the reasons for the area being designated as suitable for adoption of a 
special policy.   

 
6.3.3 The Secretary of State’s guidance encourages applicants  to address the CIA in 

their Operating Schedules in order to rebut such a presumption. Any CIA will stress 
that the presumption does not relieve responsible authorities or other persons of the 
need to make a relevant representation before the local authority may lawfully 
consider giving effect to its CIA. 

 
6.3.4 The Licensing Authority recognises that many different kinds and styles of  

premises sell alcohol, serve food and provide entertainment. It recognises  that 
some applications in a CIA area will be unlikely to add  to the problems arising from 
saturation. Where it can exercise discretion in determining applications in an area 
where a CIA is in force, that is, where relevant representations have been received, 
it will have full  regard to the impact different premises may have on the local 
community. 

Page 71



28   

 

 

 

 
6.3.5 The Licensing Authority must grant any application in a CIA area subject only to 

conditions that are consistent  with the operating schedule submitted by the 
applicant if it receives no relevant representation. 

 
6.3.6 The Licensing Authority will keep any cumulative impact assessment policy under 

review. Cumulative impact assessments’ were introduced in the 2003 Act by the 
Policing and Crime Act 2017, with effect from 6 April 2018.  The amendments 
require the Licensing Authority to review the CIA within three years of its 
publication. 

 
6.3.7 The absence of a CIA does not prevent any responsible authority or other person 

making evidence based relevant representations on a new application for the grant 
of an authorisation on the grounds that the premises will give rise to a negative 
cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. 

   
6.3.8  Having had regard to the guidance referred to above, consulted upon the issue, 

taken into account the views of respondents and considered the evidence the 
Council has determined that it is not appropriate to publish a cumulative impact 
assessment policy at this time. However at the time this policy was published the 
Council is considering publishing a Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy in 
respect of the city centre area of Bristol.  A consultation will be carried out in that 
respect. 

 
 
6.4 Content of Regulated Entertainment 
 
6.4.1 The Act prohibits the Council from seeking to regulate the content of the 

performance of a play (Section 22). This is the case whether or not there are 
relevant representations.  
 

6.4.2 However no such prohibition is contained in the Act in relation to other forms of 
regulated entertainment.  This does not mean that the Council has a free hand to 
control the content of regulated entertainment.  As previously stated the Council is 
not able to impose conditions that are not consistent with the applicant’s operating 
schedule unless relevant representations have been made. Even where such 
representations are made and the Licensing Committee is satisfied they are well 
founded, due regard would need to be had to the Secretary of State’s guidance. 
Through this policy the Council supports the Licensing Committee in deciding to 
depart from that guidance where there is good reason to do so. 

 
6.4.3 Under the previous public entertainment licensing regime the Council did restrict the 

content of entertainment in some respects.  For example the Council controlled the 
use of pyrotechnics and none of its licensed cinemas was authorised to exhibit R18 
rated films. Such restrictions now fall to be considered in the context of the 
Licensing Act. Restrictions may be applied where they are consistent with the 
applicant’s operating schedule if there are no relevant representations.  

 
In respect of some forms of adult entertainment, it is a fact that there are people 
who find this unacceptable and who have a moral opposition to it being permitted. 

Page 72



29   

 

 

 

Licensing Authorities cannot approach the issue in that way and cannot lawfully 
seek to prevent Applicants from exercising their right to submit any applications that 
they are entitled to make under the Act.   
 
Insofar as any particular form of regulated entertainment is not prohibited under the 
general law then it can be made subject of an application for authorisation.  When a 
valid application is made and properly advertised then, in the absence of relevant 
representations being received, it must be granted subject only to conditions that 
are consistent with the operating schedule that must accompany the application.  If 
relevant representations are received then this will trigger notice of a hearing.  
Relevant representations are defined in the Act by reference to the persons who are 
entitled to make them, the time and manner in which they must be made and the 
necessity that they are about the likely effect of the grant of the 
authorisation/variation as appropriate on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
As Bristol has adopted Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 (the 1982 Act) the position regarding the provision of many 
forms of what would be classified as adult entertainment e.g. strip tease style 
entertainment now falls under those provisions and Licensing Act authorisations 
can only be relied upon for the provision of ‘relevant entertainment’ in certain 
circumstances, i.e. where an exemption applies. 
 

 Because of the potential for adult entertainment or services to impact on the 
promotion of the licensing objectives the Secretary of State has ensured that 
prescribed information is forthcoming that will enable the impact on the objectives, 
in particular that concerned with protecting children from harm, to be assessed.   

 Applicants are required to:  
 
 “highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or 

matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect 
of children”. 

 
 The prescribed forms of application for authorisations and variations direct 

applicants to a guidance note which states that in providing this prescribed 
information, which forms part of the operating schedule, they should: 

 
 “give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to 

the use of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, 
regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for 
example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi nudity, films for restricted age groups, 
the presence of gaming machines” 

 
 If in response to this question an applicant makes no disclosure of such activity  

then a condition may be imposed on the authorisation to ensure that nothing may 
occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give rise to 
concern in respect of children, regardless of whether or not children have access to 
the premises, for example (but not exclusively relevant entertainment within the 
meaning of the 1982 Act) nudity or semi nudity, films for restricted age groups, 
provision of relevant entertainment within the meaning of the 1982 Act etc. 

 
Such a condition is consistent with an operating schedule completed in that manner 
and ensures the promotion of the licensing objectives, for example by ensuring that 

Page 73



30   

 

 

 

a licensee who wishes to use the premises for such activity in the future would need 
to seek to vary the authorisation so as to modify that condition, thus ensuring future 
impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives is afforded due scrutiny and, if 
representations are received, active consideration by the licensing authority. 
 

6.4.4  Authorisation holders will be expected to ensure that they and their premises 
comply at all times with any conditions attached to an authorisation. The Licensing 
Authority has developed pools of conditions which seek to promote the four 
licensing objectives, including restricting the content of regulated entertainment with 
a view to promoting the prevention of crime and disorder; and of public nuisance 
and to securing public safety and protecting children from harm.  
 

Equalities Obligations 
 
6.4.5 In view of the Councils duties under equalities legislation and its general strong 

commitment to equalities issues, the Council supports a robust approach to 
ensuring, so far as the law permits it to do so, that entertainment in the Bristol area 
should not include content which would be in conflict with its legal obligations and 
policy commitments in the area of Equalities.   
 

6.4.6 The introduction to this policy, including the section on how this policy applies, 
summarises the circumstances in which the Council can exercise substantial 
discretion when determining applications and indicates the constraints imposed by 
the statute governing the exercise of that discretion when it is engaged. 
 

6.5 Licensing Hours 
 
6.5.1 There are no fixed hours for trading under the Licensing Act. Applicants are 

required to identify the hours they propose to operate.  
 
6.5.2 The applicant needs to demonstrate in their operating schedule what steps they 

would take to promote the four licensing objectives.  
 
 It is suggested that the Licensing Committee, when considering each application on 

its merits following receipt of relevant representations, should have particular regard 
to the following factors when trading hours are an issue before the committee at a 
hearing:   

 

 Whether the licensed activities are likely to cause an adverse impact, 
especially on local residents, and what, if any, appropriate measures are 
proposed to prevent it; 

 Whether there will be a substantial increase in the cumulative adverse 
impact on an adjacent residential area; 

 Whether there is a suitable level of public transport accessibility to and from 
the premises at the appropriate times; 

 Whether the activity will be likely to lead to a harmful and unmanageable 
increase in the demand for car parking in any surrounding residential streets 
suffering from high levels of parking stress;   

 Whether the premises have an authorised or lawful use for the permissions 
sought under Town and Country planning legislation. 
 

Page 74



31   

 

 

 

6.5.3 The Council’s policy will not seek to prevent shops, stores and supermarkets 
providing sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises at any times when the 
retail outlet is open for shopping unless satisfied, following the statutory process 
prompted by the receipt of relevant representations, that there are good reasons 
based on evidence for restricting those hours with a view to promoting the licensing 
objective 

 
 Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMROs) 
 
6.5.4 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act enables licensing authorities to 

restrict the sale of alcohol in the whole or a part of their area for any specified time 
between 12 midnight and 6 am through the application of an Early Morning 
Restriction Order. The Council recognises that this may be a useful tool to help 
address specific, alcohol related problems in local communities, particularly where it 
is difficult to attribute the cause of the associated problems to any particular 
premises. This could be particularly relevant where there is a concentration of late 
night activity in one area. 

 
 By virtue of section 7 of the act, the function of making, and varying or revoking, an 

early morning restriction order, or any matter relating to the discharge of such 
function, is not the responsibility of the licensing committee and under current law 
must be decided by the full Council. 

 

6.6  Young People and alcohol 
 

6.6.1 An unaccompanied young person (i.e. somebody under the age of sixteen who is 
not accompanied by a person over the age of eighteen) must not be allowed into 
any premises which are "exclusively or primarily used for the supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises".   
 

6.6.2 Whether or not premises with a mixed use are "exclusively or primarily used" is a 
matter of judgment and will depend upon the particular circumstances of the case.  
The guidance makes it clear that this does not mean that where the supply of 
alcohol is not the exclusive or primary use then young people should automatically 
be given access. 

 
6.6.3 Where it is appropriate and permissible within the law (i.e. where it is in line with the 

application or where relevant representations have been received enabling a 
hearing to take place) the Licensing Committee should impose conditions that 
restrict young people from entering all or part of any premises licensed to supply 
alcohol: 

 

 at certain times of the day and/or; 

 when certain licensable activities are taking place and/or; 

 where there is an age limitation (over 18); 

 unless accompanied by an adult. 
 

6.6.4 Examples of premises where this policy expectation applies include premises 
where: 
 

 there is entertainment of an adult nature provided; 

Page 75



32   

 

 

 

 the premises have a reputation for under-age drinking and/or there have 
been convictions for age related alcohol offences; 

 there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; 

 there is a significant element of gambling on the premises; 

 there is a presumption that young people  under 18 should not be allowed 
(e.g. to nightclubs, except when under 18 discos are being held); 

 there are licensable activities appealing to young people under 16 taking 
place during times when they may be expected to be attending compulsory 
full-time education. 
 

   Save for mandatory conditions imposed by the Licensing Act itself, there are no 
standard conditions that automatically apply and this policy should be understood 
within that context.  The introduction to this policy,  including the section on how this 
policy applies summarise the circumstances in which the Council can exercise 
substantial discretion when determining applications and indicates the constraints 
imposed by the statute governing the exercise of that discretion when it is engaged. 

 
6.6.5 The Licensing Authority expects an adequate number of staff to be provided at 

premises specifically to ensure young people’s safety and to control their entrance 
and exit. 

 
6.6.6 Conditions may be imposed on authorisations for premises where young people will 

be present at places of public entertainment to the effect that a sufficient number of 
adults must be present to control the entrance and exit (including safe transport 
home) and to ensure the safety of young people in the premises.  

 
6.6.7 The Council will expect operating schedules to specify the measures and 

management controls in place to prevent alcohol being served to young people, 
other than in those limited circumstances where such service is permitted under the 
Act. 

 
6.6.8 In 2016 a report by the Health and Social Care Information Centre into smoking, 

drinking and drug use among young people in England collected information in 
respect of children at secondary schools aged between 11 and 15 drinking alcohol. 
The results showed that 44% of pupils aged 11-15 had drunk alcohol at least once 
(15% at age 11, and 73% at age 15 years). 10% of pupils said they drank alcohol at 
least once a week, of these the mean average was 9.6 units. 38% of pupils said 
that they drank alcohol at least a few times a year.  This increased sharply by age, 
from 8% of 11 year olds to 68% of 15 year olds, and therefore, the age profile of 
current drinkers is heavily weighted towards older pupils.  Current drinkers were 
most likely to buy alcohol from friends or relatives (22%), someone else (16%), an 
off-licence (10%) or a shop or supermarket (8%).  61% of current drinkers said they 
never buy alcohol.  The figures would suggest that a number of young people are 
attempting to buy alcohol from premises that hold an off licence (including 
supermarkets and smaller independent stores/off licences).  When compared to 
2010 figures the percentage of pupils purchasing from retail outlets has reduced. 
 
The 2019 Bristol Pupil Voice survey also reveals data about alcohol use of 
secondary pupils in Bristol.  Of the 3268 secondary pupils who gave a valid 
response, 25% reported they had had an alcoholic drink in the last four weeks. This 
was similar across gender with the percentages rising with age to 36% for those 
from year 10 (14- 15 year olds). Of those secondary school pupils who reported 

Page 76



33   

 

 

 

drinking alcohol, 71% report that their parents either “always know” (52%) or 
“usually know” (19%).  Overall approximate numbers reporting that they consumed 
alcohol during the last month are as follows:  
 
• Year 8: approximately 700 
• Year 10: approximately 1,600 
 

6.6.9 A major problem of underage drinking connected to disorder and crime in the city is 
from the purchasing of alcohol and drinking of it off site, mainly in parks and open 
spaces. 

 
6.6.10 It is consistent with the duty to promote the four licensing objectives for the Council 

to aim to ensure access to alcohol for consumption by young people is restricted.  
The Council also expects premises licence holders to consider how their role in the 
advertising of alcohol, through for example publicity materials, may impact on the 
protection of children from harm. 

 
6.6.11 The Licensing Authority expects that staff responsible for ensuring that 

 customers are old enough to purchase alcohol are fully trained in this respect. This 
is particularly relevant for bar staff working at premises where door supervisors 
control entry to premises.  Experience has shown that on occasions where door 
supervisors are employed there can be less vigilance shown by bar staff with regard 
to refusing the sale of alcohol to under age customers, perhaps due to an 
assumption that all identification has been verified. Particular care and appropriate 
measures should be in place for venues that, due to the nature of the events, attract 
both over and under 18 year old patrons.    

 
6.6.12 This statement of licensing policy therefore includes specific measures aimed at 

promoting the four licensing objectives in certain types of premises, especially off 
licences, located in areas where there are issues of social disorder, underage 
drinking etc.  Such measures include a general expectation that Applicants propose 
certain steps in their operating schedules (or, following relevant representations, 
conditions the committee is expected to impose where the applicant has not offered 
the appropriate step in their application). 

 
 
 
 
 

6.6.13 Examples of steps/conditions that the Council expects in such cases (where 
evidence suggests such conditions are appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives) include: 

 

 Implementation of the “Challenge 25” scheme (challenging anyone who looks 
under 25 to prove their age by use of an approved means of identification); 
for this to be advertised and enforced on the premises and to be a condition 
of the authorisation.  The Council recognises that some applicants may 
already operate an alternative scheme such as “Challenge 21” in other 
premises.  Where an applicant expresses a desire for an alternative scheme 

Page 77



34   

 

 

 

such as “Challenge 21” the Council would not seek to impose “Challenge 25” 
unless there was sufficient justification to do so.  

 The premises to have working CCTV in fixed locations (identified by 
reference to the plan)  which is able to clearly capture, record and store 
images of customers with that information to be retained (for a minimum of 
28 days) and made available to the police or the licensing Authority on 
justified request.  This is proposed for the purposes of identifying underage 
purchases or purchases by adults on behalf of underage individuals.  It 
should be a condition of the license that this equipment be kept in working 
order at all times.  

 Participation in any labelling (or similar sales identification process) scheme 
in operation in the area within which the premises are situated (where alcohol 
is permanently marked by the seller with a unique identifier for the premises 
where it is purchased, so better enabling authorities to investigate the source 
of alcohol when seized from underage drinkers). 

 That a refused sales log is maintained and kept available for inspection by a 
constable or authorised officer of the Council; 

 That, in respect of retail premises where the supply of alcohol is not the 
primary business,  applicants be expected to specify in their operating 
schedules (by reference to the plan of the premises) the area or areas within 
the premises where it is intended that alcohol can be displayed and that 
consideration should be given to placing displays in less prominent areas; 

 Details of training provided to members of staff to prevent underage sales to 
be maintained in a register and kept available for inspection by a constable 
or authorized officer of the Council. 

      
6.7 Young people and films 
 
6.7.1 The Council expects the operating schedule for premises with film exhibition to 

include a stipulation that young people will be restricted from viewing age-restricted 
films classified according to the recommendations of the British Board of Film 
Classification or the Licensing Authority as appropriate. 

 
6.8 Restricted 18 category films 

 

6.8.1 The British Board of Film classification guidelines for awarding an R18 certificate 
can be viewed here (www.bbfc.co.uk and select the R18 logo).   

 
6.8.2 The BBFC has statutory powers to designate videos so as to ensure that those 

rated R18 may only be sold through licensed sex shops. 
 
6.8.3 Under the previous licensing regime official guidance was issued that encouraged 

Councils to impose conditions which strictly regulate the circumstances in which 
R18 films can be viewed. The provisions under which this guidance was issued 
were  repealed when the Licensing Act came into force and the Council will need to 
have regard to the Secretary of State’s guidance under the Licensing Act 2003 
when determining applications concerned with the exhibition of films.  

 
6.8.4 Whilst the Council does not seek to encourage applications seeking permission to 

show R18 rated films, it recognises the right of any applicant to make any 
 application allowed under the Licensing Act 2003.  It is therefore appropriate for the 
Council to state in this policy its approach to such applications. 

Page 78

http://www.bbfc.co.uk/


35   

 

 

 

 
6.8.5 Given the explicit nature of the content of films classified as R18 the Council 

considers that they are suitable for showing only in suitable premises and under 
restricted “club” conditions.  In order to give effect to this, the Council has included a 
set of conditions based upon those contained in the guidance issued under the 
previous regime, namely Annex B to Home Office circular 98 of 1982, in the 
relevant template operating schedule.   

 
6.8.6 These conditions ensure that where R18 films are permitted they can only be 

shown when the cinema has, in effect, turned itself into a “club” for the purpose of 
restricting admission to members only, who must have enrolled at least 24 hours in 
advance of the exhibition.  Membership must be restricted to those aged over 18 
and a film in the Restricted 18 category may not be shown in a multi-screen 
complex at any time when people under the Age of eighteen are being admitted to 
other exhibitions at the premises unless an entirely separate entrance is provided 
and other facilities are completely segregated. Persons aged under 18 would not be 
permitted to be employed in any capacity in the premises and membership rules 
would have to include matters specified in the conditions.  The content of 
advertising should also be subject of an appropriate condition. 

 
6.8.7 The Council considers the above approach serves to promote the licensing 

objectives.  
 
6.8.8 Any applicant seeking to be permitted to exhibit films in the Restricted 18 category 

is therefore encouraged to discuss their proposed application at an early stage with 
the responsible authorities, in particular the Chief Constable and the body 
responsible for advising the Licensing Committee about the protection of children 
from harm.  Where representations are received in respect of an application to 
exhibit films in the Restricted 18 category then the application will be subject to 
anxious scrutiny, in particular where the operating schedule does not include the 
steps reflected in the conditions outlined above or where it is proposed that the 
supply of alcohol should also be permitted. 

 

7. The Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority 
 

The licensing authority is able to act as a responsible authority and so can make 
relevant representations on applications or seek reviews of existing authorisations. 
This means that Bristol City Council can now bring to bear on the decision making 
process another area of expertise - that of the professional licensing officer - in 
addition to the other areas of expertise it brings to the process in its various 
capacities as, for example, local planning authority, statutory nuisance  authority, 
child protection body, Director of Public Health, health & safety inspectors and 
weights & measures authority.  Although the Council operates these functions 
separately there is only one Council engaged in an administrative decision making 
process.   
 

7.1 The statutory purpose of the duty to adopt this policy (and indeed for the Secretary 
of State to issue guidance) is specific to the Council in its capacity  as the licensing 
authority and then only in respect of the exercise of licensing functions, that is the 
powers and duties of the licensing authority under the Licensing Act 2003. 
Therefore it is not usually the role of a statement of licensing policy to guide the 
making of relevant representations by any of the responsible authorities. The only 

Page 79



36   

 

 

 

exception being when the licensing authority itself is acting as a responsible 
authority.  

 
7.2 The Secretary of State’s guidance raises a potential “conflict of interest” and 

concerns about procedural fairness.  The Licensing Act itself ensures a fair process 
however; firstly by ensuring that officers simply cannot determine applications 
where relevant representations have been made and secondly by  providing a right 
of appeal to a tribunal that is both independent and impartial. In Bristol’s experience 
the elected members have proved themselves very capable of acting independently 
and impartially notwithstanding officers from the Council itself are parties before it.  
There is no reason to suppose that will change when a licensing officer is in 
attendance as a party. There are however some practical measures that are 
recommended to the Licensing committee: 

 

 the Licensing Committee ought not exercise its statutory right to 
delegate the making of relevant representations to one of its own sub 
committees; this role should be delegated to those officers the 
committee considers best placed to provide expert licensing advice 
since that will best serve to promote the licensing objectives; 

 The Licensing Committee should make it a rule that no officer who has 
been directly involved in the making of relevant representations on a 
particular application may make any decisions in relation to the fixing 
of  a hearing, or act as policy advisor to the decision making sub 
committee during a hearing, or remain with the sub committee when 
they are deliberating (unless all other parties are also permitted to 
remain);  

 Insofar as any member scrutiny of the exercise of this new function is 
required the Licensing Committee should request this be undertaken 
by the Council scrutiny function. 
 

 7.3 These measures should ensure the effective separation of those in the licensing 
authority entitled to determine applications where a hearing is triggered (elected 
members who are bound to act in the interests of the public) and those in the 
Council whose professional judgment may cause them to act so as to trigger a 
hearing (officers of the Council acting in various capacities, including but not 
exclusively as the licensing authority). 

 
7.4     In regard to the content of the representations and when they should be made, the 

Secretary of State appears to suggest that the Licensing Authority ought to avoid 
making representations they think another responsible authority may raise and only 
speak to limited matters seen as within the scope of the Licensing Authority.  This 
approach is not without risk to the promotion of the licensing objectives in particular 
if engaging in second guessing results in representations not being made that ought 
to have been forthcoming.  The Council’s expectation is that the Licensing Authority 
responsible authority will give due priority to the following: 

 

 issues arising out of the Licensing authorities role in regulating and 
enforcement; 

 the role as “gate keeper” of this statement of licensing policy 
 
 
 

Page 80



37   

 

 

 

8 Licensing and Planning  
 
8.1 The Secretary of State has provided guidance on the relationship between planning 

and licensing stating that they are separate regimes (Para 14.64). Where the 
Licensing Authority receives relevant representations that a licensing proposal is 
contrary to a planning consent and that to grant a licence for such activity would be 
likely to affect the licensing objectives then a refusal, or the attaching of conditions 
to prevent such a use until the position has been regularised may be appropriate. In 
appropriate situations a hearing could be deferred until planning consent has been 
obtained, or arrangements made for the applications to be considered together.  A 
responsible and prudent applicant would ensure that an appropriate planning 
consent was in place before submitting a licence application or choose to submit 
both at the same time.  The Council will not duplicate restrictions on planning 
permissions unless such restrictions are necessary to promote the licensing 
objectives. 

 
 Whilst recognising that licensing and planning are separate regimes the Licensing 

Authority will work closely with planning to ensure that where possible the two 
regimes will align with each other. The ‘agent of change’ principle which seeks to 
protect existing uses, particularly with regard to venues that provide regulated 
entertainment through permissions under the Licensing Act, is recognised as an 
important concept under both regimes and is supported by this policy.  Where  
reviews are sought by residents or responsible authorities in relation to public 
nuisance alleged to arise from a licensed premises, the nature of the premises, it's 
track record and length of time it has been providing the activities complained of will 
all be taken into account in determining the application. 

  
9 Enforcement  
 
9.1 All enforcement carried out under the Licensing Act should be undertaken having 

regard to Bristol City Council enforcement policies, the Secretary of State’s 
guidance, this policy and the Regulators Code which is available at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/regulators-code .  
 
The exercise of all other licensing functions and enforcement functions under the 
act that are the responsibility of the Licensing Authority must be undertaken with a 
view to promoting the four licensing objectives. 

 
 

Page 81

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/regulators-code


38   

 

 

 

           

                                                     
 List of persons who responded to the consultation 

 
Respondent      Total Responses 
 
Local community group representative  10 
Local Councillor or MP    5 
Member of the public    93 
Trade Representative    7 
Local business (no premises licence)  8 
Local business (with premises licence)  64 
Charity     1 
Responsible Authority (RA)   3 
Council Department (non RA)   2 
Other       6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



39   

 

 

 

 

1. Subject to any decision made under par 3 below, any classification of the BBFC shall be 
deemed to be a classification of the Licensing Authority; 
 
2. No film classified by the BBFC as "R18" may be exhibited in any premises unless that 
exhibition is specifically and explicitly permitted under an authorisation (within the meaning  
of Section 136 of the 2003 Act); 
 
3.  (a) Any person may request that the Council either: 
 

(i)  determine the appropriate classification of any film which has not been 
subject of classification by the BBFC; 

(ii)  determine a different classification to that determined by the BBFC to apply 
generally in Bristol and/or to apply to specific performance of the film in 
question. 

 
(b)  a request under 3 (i) or (ii) above should be made in the first instance to the 

Licensing manager and the applicant should enclose the following: 
 
(i) synopsis of film 
(ii) length of film 
(iii) appropriate fee  being a sum the licensing authority considers to be 

reasonable compensation to it for considering the initial application 
 

(c)  the licensing manager (or deputy in his absence) will respond in one of the 
following ways: 

 
(i) S/he will indicate if  the application will be considered and if so will 

indicate what arrangements are required for the exhibition of the film 
for the purpose of determining its classification, whether that  
determination will be made by officers, the Licensing committee or 
one of its sub committee and the further fee payable which is 
calculated having regard to the costs incurred by the Licensing 
Authority in considering the application; or 

(ii)  The Licensing Manager will respond that the Council is not inclined to 
consider the application and will indicate the reason for that decision 
as follows: 

 
(a)  that in respect the synopsis indicates a classification of R18 

falls to be considered; 
(b)  that the applicant seeks a more restrictive classification than 

that recommended by the BBFC and has not made a clear and 
convincing case that the BBFC guideline have been incorrectly 
applied; 

Page 83



APPENDIX 2 

 

 

 

 

 

CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT

 

 

Page 84



2   

 

 

 

 

Contents  

 

Introduction ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Purpose and Scope ................................................................................................................................. 3 

Cumulative Impact ................................................................................................................................. 3 

Interpreting the extent of a Cumulative Impact Assessment .................................................................... 6 

City Centre CIA ....................................................................................................................................... 7 

APPENDIX A - List of persons who responded to the consultation ............................................................ 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



3   

 

 

 

Introduction 

 

1. The Licensing Act gained Royal Assent on 10 July 2003 and replaced  regimes 

previously administered by either the Licensing Justices or the local authority with 

a unified system of  licensing under the control of the local authority. The new 

regime came into effect on 24 November 2005. The Council set up a Licensing 

Committee as part of these changes. 

2. Cumulative impact assessments’ were introduced in the 2003 Act by the Policing 

and Crime Act 2017, with effect from 6 April 2018.  The amendments require the 

Licensing Authority to review any Cumulative Impact Assessment (CIA) within 

three years of its publication.  From 1 August 2020 the Licensing Authority’s 

Statement of Licensing Policy will include a summary of any CIA in force.  Full 

details of any CIA will then be included in this Policy document.  

 

Purpose and Scope 

 

3. A cumulative impact assessment must set out the evidence for the authority's 

opinion and before publishing it, the licensing authority must consult with relevant 

parties, including the responsible authorities, businesses and the public. The 

assessment must be reconsidered every three years and any review must be 

consulted upon before deciding whether it remains or can be removed. A licensing 

authority must publish any revision of a cumulative impact assessment along with 

the evidence. 

Cumulative Impact 

 

4. A cumulative impact assessment must set out the evidence for the authority's 

opinion and before publishing it, the licensing authority must consult with relevant 

parties, including the responsible authorities, businesses and the public. The 

assessment must be reconsidered every three years and any review must be 

consulted upon before deciding whether it remains or can be removed. A licensing 

authority must publish any revision of a cumulative impact assessment along with 

the evidence. 

5. The cumulative impact of the number, type and density of premises in particular 

areas, such as the city centre, may lead to them becoming saturated with premises 

of a certain type making them a focal point for large groups of people together 

leading to severe or chronic problems of public nuisance and anti- social behaviour 

or other alcohol related problems.  Local crime and related trauma data may be 

used to map the extent of such problems.  The licensing authority may consider 

publishing a cumulative impact assessment (CIA) to help limit the number of types 

Page 86



4   

 

 

 

of licence applications granted in such areas if it is satisfied that it is appropriate to 

include an approach to cumulative impact in its Licensing Policy Statement. It will 

take the decision only after it is satisfied that there is evidence to support such a 

decision. 

6. The effect of adopting a CIA of this kind is to create a  rebuttable presumption if 

relevant representations to that effect are received, that applications for new 

premises authorisations or club premises certificates or material variations will 

normally be refused, unless it can be demonstrated  that the operation of the 

premises involved will be unlikely to add to the cumulative impact already being 

experienced. What constitutes a material variation will depend upon the policy in 

place and the reasons for the area being designated as suitable for adoption of a 

special policy.   

7. The Secretary of State’s guidance encourages applicants to address the CIA in 

their Operating Schedules in order to rebut such a presumption. Any CIA will stress 

that the presumption does not relieve responsible authorities or other persons of 

the need to make a relevant representation before the local authority may lawfully 

consider giving effect to its CIA. 

8. The Licensing Authority recognises that many different kinds and styles of  

premises sell alcohol, serve food and provide entertainment. It recognises  that 

some applications in a CIA area will be unlikely to add  to the problems arising 

from saturation. Where it can exercise discretion in determining applications in an 

area where a CIA is in force, that is, where relevant representations have been 

received, it will have full  regard to the impact different premises may have on the 

local community. 

9. The Licensing Authority must grant any application in a CIA area subject only to 

conditions that are consistent  with the operating schedule submitted by the 

applicant if it receives no relevant representation. 

10. The Licensing Authority will keep cumulative impact assessments under review. 

Cumulative impact assessments’ were introduced in the 2003 Act by the Policing 

and Crime Act 2017, with effect from 6 April 2018.  The amendments require the 

Licensing Authority to review the CIA within three years of its publication. 

11. The absence of a CIA does not prevent any responsible authority or other person 

making evidence based relevant representations on a new application for the grant 

of an authorisation on the grounds that the premises will give rise to a negative 

cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. 

12. Cumulative impact assessments are intended to be strictly applied.   Applications 

which would seek to be allowed as an exception to a special cumulative impact 

policy will generally be favourably considered if they are judged to encourage a 

greater variety of types of entertainment than currently exists in these areas. It is 

important to be clear that this does not mean that an applicant who believes their 

offer is different to what already exists in the area can assume a favourable 

Page 87



5   

 

 

 

outcome.  “Greater variety” must be understood in the context of the licensing 

objectives. In particular, the Licensing Authority welcomes those proposals which 

can be viewed as more family friendly and which offer a wider range of 

entertainment than that which is currently available because it is considered that 

such proposals will not usually add to the stress in the area and undermine the 

licensing objectives.  

However matters such as for example, 

 the premises will not add people to the area; 

 longer hours will create slower dispersal; 

 history of good management; 

 premises are well run; 

 premises application is small in nature 

 alcohol is not sold; 

 clientele are a cut above the usual; 

will not be considered exceptional circumstances, as the issue is crime and 

disorder/public nuisance in the area as a whole rather than that associated with 

individual premises and the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

Existing licensees who wish to materially alter and/or  extend the premises to which 

the authorisation relates are required to seek a new authorisation.  This is because 

the Act prohibits the use of  a variation application to substantially alter the 

premises to which the authorisation relates.  Where the only change is to the 

physical extent or material layout of the premises themselves (i.e. in the absence of 

additional features such as change in style of operation, capacity etc.) it is highly 

unlikely this would trigger the special policy.  Of course this policy cannot restrict the 

right of any responsible authority or other person to make relevant representations 

in that regard and if such are forthcoming they will be diligently considered, but the 

policy expectation is that the application should be granted unless the relevant 

representations demonstrate the change will be likely to add to the cumulative 

impact being experienced.  Where other change is envisaged then the presumption 

may arise. 

Applicants are reminded that they are entitled to seek a provisional statement in 

such circumstances. 

Applicants who have the benefit of a provisional statement and who have 

completed their works substantially in line with that statement should not have the 

assessment applied to them.  This is because the CIA could (indeed may) have 

been raised and considered prior to the provisional statement having been granted. 

Page 88



6   

 

 

 

13. The publication of a CIA should not be understood to be an absolute bar to new 

authorisations being issued or granting significant variations to existing licenses.  

Applicants are entitled to seek any of the permissions available to them in the Act 

and the Council does not in this policy intend to prevent applicants from exercising 

their statutory rights.  Each application will be considered on its own merits, within 

the constraints of the legislation and having due regard to the relevant guidance 

and policy. 

Interpreting the extent of a Cumulative Impact Assessment 

 

14. In respect of past policy, issues have occasionally arisen with regard to whether or 

not a particular premises that is located abutting or just outside of the indicated 

boundary for each CIA should be considered as being covered by the assessment. 

Through this policy the Council seeks to clarify that each CIA boundary line is 

intended to be indicative of the area that is affected by the stress underpinning the 

cumulative impact for the area concerned. The CIA purpose is to prevent that 

stress from worsening and to reduce it over time. That policy purpose is frustrated 

if premises such as those referred to above are automatically considered as being 

outside of the  CIA. 

It is intended that the wording of the cumulative impact assessments should be 

understood by the decision taker in a way that best ensures the purpose of the 

assessment is achieved. This is sometimes called a purposive interpretation Each 

application that falls to be considered at a hearing will be assessed on its own 

individual facts and merit.  Where relevant representations are received in respect 

of an application for any premises that is adjoining or is in close proximity to (but not 

within) the CIA defined boundary and where those representations raise a material 

impact on the CIA then the CIA may be triggered if the sub-committee reasonably 

judges that to grant the particular application would add to the cumulative impact 

being suffered in the defined area.  

 

15. Having had regard to the guidance referred to above, consulted upon the issue, 

taken into account the views of respondents and considered the evidence the 

Council has adopted a CIA in respect of one area of Bristol, namely: 

Page 89



7   

 

 

 

City Centre CIA 

 

The central area within the Cabot Sector as identified by Avon and Somerset Police 

including the Welsh Back area and Stokes Croft. 

 

 

Page 90



8   

 

 

 

Assessment 

Avon and Somerset Constabulary produced evidence to support their request that 

the central area of Bristol be designated a CIA. It remains at saturation point and 

the area, which has a significant concentration of alcohol led late night venues, 

witnesses a high number of assaults and other related crime and disorder including 

public nuisance and risk to public safety. The CIA will apply to further applications 

for the grant of new licenses or significant variations of existing licenses in respect 

of premises that primarily sell alcohol for consumption on the premises,  other late 

night uses, restaurants and take away outlets.  The main focus of the assessment is 

likely to be on alcohol led establishments and premises that keep customers in the 

area at times when the promotion of the licensing objectives is most challenging (for 

example late night refreshment from “fast food” outlets).  

Page 91



9   

 

 

 

APPENDIX A - List of persons who responded to the consultation 

 

 
Respondent      Total Responses 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92



APPENDIX 3 

 

List of persons who responded to the consultation 

 

 
Respondent      Total Responses 
 
Local community group representative  10 
Local Councillor or MP    5 
Member of the public    93 
Trade Representative    7 
Local business (no premises licence)  8 
Local business (with premises licence)  64 
Charity     1 
Responsible Authority (RA)   3 
Council Department (non RA)   2 
Other       6 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



APPENDIX 4 

List of amendments to the Draft Statement of Licensing Policy 

Paragraph Text removed or amended Amended text (amended text showed in bold italics) 

Contents 
page 

C         Model Operating Schedules  
D        Maps of Cumulative Impact Areas –   
City Centre, Gloucester Road, Clifton, Whiteladies Road, Bedminster & 
Southville. 

Removed 

1.4 By way of example, where no relevant representations are made on an 
application for a premises authorisation, the Council may only attach 
conditions that are in line with the applicant’s operating schedule.  
Those conditions can only be modified where relevant representations 
are received and where the council deems it appropriate to modify 
them to promote the licensing objectives.   The test of relevance 
includes that the representations are received within the time allowed 
by statute. 

By way of example, where no relevant representations are made on an application 
for a premises authorisation, the Council may only attach the mandatory 
conditions specified by the Act and conditions that are consistent with the 
applicant’s operating schedule.  Operating schedule conditions can only be 
modified where relevant representations are received and where the Council 
deems it appropriate to modify them to promote the licensing objectives.   The test 
of relevance includes that the representations are received within the time allowed 
by statute. 

1.12 Bristol is a major regional entertainment centre and regularly attracts in 
excess of 30,000 people into its city centre at weekends. The main 
entertainment areas are located within Harbourside, the Old City, 
Whiteladies Road and Gloucester Road. There are also local 
entertainment centres within areas such as Bedminster, Shirehampton 
and Westbury on Trym and there are many licensed premises situated 
in predominantly residential areas. A key issue for the Council is to 
achieve a balance that ensures the promotion of the licensing 
objectives across a variety of urban settings. Bristol has a rich mix of 
cultural diversity, epitomised by events such as the Bristol Harbour 
Festival, which is the largest free event in the South West and attracts 
over 250,000 visitors, St Pauls Carnival and Bristol Pride which all 
contribute to a vibrant leisure scene and night time economy. The 
Council is keen to promote the cultural life of Bristol and so licensing is 
approached with a view to encouraging forms of licensable activity 
consistent with the licensing objectives. 

Bristol is a major regional entertainment centre and regularly attracts in excess of 
30,000 people into its city centre at weekends. The main entertainment areas are 
located within the city centre, Stokes Croft, Southville and Gloucester Road. Bristol 
has a rich history of creative music. The underground Bristol music scene from the 
1990s produced bands such as Massive Attack, Portishead and Tricky and through 
its approach to drum and bass and trip hop produced a unique and distinctive 
Bristol sound. Bristol’s  cultural diversity plays a leading role in shaping the 
entertainment offer in the city and is showcased with the St Pauls Carnival which 
attracts  around 100, 000 residents and visitors in a celebration of the city’s Afro 
Caribbean culture and its history.. The Bristol Harbour Festival, which is the largest 
free event in the South West and attracts over 250,000 visitors, points back to the 
city’s maritime history.  Bristol Pride gives recognition to the LGBTQ community 
whilst South Bristol’s Upfest event celebrates the strong links in the city between 
music and graffiti art.  Bristol also has an impressive food scene which has won 
many accolades and awards in recent years.  Food led venues have helped change 
the character and feel of a number or areas of the city and the Council recognises 
the importance of the food industry in the night time economy.  The Council is 
keen to promote the cultural life of Bristol and so licensing is approached with a 
view to encouraging forms of licensable activity consistent with the licensing 
objectives. 

1.15 New paragraph This policy was approved by Bristol City Council on 7 July 2020 and came into 

P
age 94



effect on 1 August 2020. 

2.14 Most applications need to be supported by an operating schedule. The 
schedule must specify (among other things) the steps the applicant 
proposes to promote each of the licensing objectives.  
  
Uncontested applications 
If no responsible authority or other person makes a relevant 
representation then, providing the application has been validly made 
and the applicant shows it has been advertised as required by law, the 
licensing authority must grant the application as set out in the 
operating schedule and the only conditions that can be imposed are the 
mandatory conditions under the Licensing Act 2003 and those 
conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule.  The Act still 
requires that the Licensing Authority have regard to relevant policy and 
guidance and act with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives 
when it is dealing with uncontested applications, just as is the case 
where relevant representations are in play; but the Authority cannot, in 
the absence of relevant representations, exercise substantial discretion.  
The judgment of what conditions, consistent with the operating 
schedule, should be imposed on the authorisation falls to be made by 
duly authorised officers in such cases.   
Apart from the mandatory conditions, which are standard conditions 
applying to all relevant applications and are to be found in the Act or in 
Ministerial Orders, there is no obligation under The Act to impose any 
conditions. In cases where no relevant representations are received the 
licensing authority has power to impose conditions but only ones that 
are consistent with the steps advanced in the operating schedule.   
There is no legal obligation to impose a condition in respect of each and 
every step that may be contained in the operating schedule in such a 
case; there is simply a power to do so and that power must be 
exercised having regard to national guidance and local policy and acting 
with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives. That is:-  

- only conditions that are consistent with the operating 
schedule may be imposed (but they do not have to be imposed); 

- regard must be had to the Ministerial guidance and to 
local policy when deciding whether any conditions need to be 
imposed and if so what should be imposed; 

- when considering these matters and making decisions 

Most applications need to be supported by an operating schedule. The schedule 
must specify (among other things) the steps the applicant proposes to promote 
each of the licensing objectives.  
 
Uncontested applications 
 
If no responsible authority or other person makes a relevant representation then, 
providing the application has been validly made and the applicant shows it has 
been advertised as required by law, the licensing authority must grant the 
application as set out in the operating schedule and the only conditions that can be 
imposed are the mandatory conditions under the Licensing Act 2003 and those 
conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule.  The Act still requires 
that the Licensing Authority have regard to relevant policy and guidance and act 
with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives when it is dealing with 
uncontested applications, just as is the case where relevant representations are in 
play; but the Authority cannot, in the absence of relevant representations, exercise 
substantial discretion.  The judgment of what conditions, consistent with the 
operating schedule, should be imposed on the authorisation falls to be made by 
duly authorised officers in such cases.  
  
Apart from the mandatory conditions, which are standard conditions applying to all 
relevant applications and are to be found in the Act or in Ministerial Orders, there 
is no obligation under The Act to impose any conditions. In cases where no relevant 
representations are received the licensing authority has power to impose 
conditions but only ones that are consistent with the steps advanced in the 
operating schedule.   There is no legal obligation to impose a condition in respect of 
each and every step that may be contained in the operating schedule in such a 
case; there is simply a power to do so and that power must be exercised having 
regard to national guidance and local policy and acting with a view to promoting 
the four licensing objectives. That is:-  
 

- only conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule 
may be imposed (but they do not have to be imposed); 

- regard must be had to the Ministerial guidance and to local policy 
when deciding whether any conditions need to be imposed and if so what 
should be imposed; 

- when considering these matters and making decisions the 

P
age 95



the Authority must act with a view to promoting the Licensing 
objectives 

It is a matter for applicants to decide how to set out the steps they 
propose to take to promote the licensing objectives when they 
complete their operating schedules, providing they act in accordance 
with their statutory obligations and do not make any false or misleading 
statements.   
In order for this policy to be effective it is especially important that 
applicants comply with their obligation to provide the information 
prescribed on the form.  This can be particularly important when 
providing a description of the premises, when providing information to 
describe the activities applied for or when responding to questions 
intended to ensure the protection of children from harm. 
For example, the Authority expects applicants to accurately describe 
the type of premises, their general situation and layout and any other 
information which could be relevant to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.  What is relevant will vary from case to case but the 
following can reasonably be expected to be relevant to the 
consideration and evaluation of the licensing objectives and to 
therefore form part of the prescribed information required to make a 
compliant application: 

- any proposed use that is contrary to existing planning consents; 

- where the planned operation of the premises changes through 
the proposed licensed period. For example some licensed premises 
provide a food led offer during the day and early evening before 
changing to a drink led offer during later hours 

- the proximity of the premises to residential accommodation, 
schools etc  

- any features that might pose special risks such as ornate 
suspended ceilings  

Through this policy, the council aims to set out its minimum 
expectations of the steps it hopes will  be advanced by applicants 
seeking authorisation for certain types of premises, locations and 
activities.  The policy indicates the conditions that it would usually 
expect to be imposed by officers  when they are in line with such steps  
and no relevant representations have been received.   
Annexed to this policy are a number of appendixes that set out these 
policy expectations and summary reasons (in italics) why the conditions 

Authority must act with a view to promoting the Licensing objectives. 
 
It is a matter for applicants to decide how to set out the steps they propose to take 
to promote the licensing objectives when they complete their operating schedules, 
providing they act in accordance with their statutory obligations and do not make 
any false or misleading statements.   
 
In order for this policy to be effective it is especially important that applicants 
comply with their obligation to provide the information prescribed on the form.  
This can be particularly important when providing a description of the premises, 
when providing information to describe the activities applied for or when 
responding to questions intended to ensure the protection of children from harm. 
 
For example, the Authority expects applicants to accurately describe the type of 
premises, their general situation and layout and any other information which could 
be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives.  What is relevant will vary 
from case to case but the following can reasonably be expected to be relevant to 
the consideration and evaluation of the licensing objectives and to therefore form 
part of the prescribed information required to make a compliant application: 
 

- any proposed use that is contrary to existing planning consents; 

- where the planned operation of the premises changes through the 
proposed licensed period. For example some licensed premises provide a food led 
offer during the day and early evening before changing to a drink led offer during 
later hours 

- the proximity of the premises to residential accommodation, schools etc.  

- any features that might pose special risks such as ornate suspended 
ceilings. 
 

Through this policy, the council aims to set out its minimum expectations of the 
steps it hopes will  be advanced by applicants seeking authorisation for certain 
types of premises, locations and activities.  The policy indicates the conditions 
that it would usually expect to be imposed by officers  when they are in line with 
such steps  and no relevant representations have been received.   
 
Separate from this policy the Council publishes a number of templates that 
applicants may wish to refer to when completing an application.  They contain 
example conditions that may be relevant for particular types of premises for the 

P
age 96



there referred to  are generally considered to be ones that are 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  More 
detailed reasons for many such conditions are contained in the main 
body of this policy. 
Some applicants may offer steps beyond the ones usually expected 
through this policy.  That is their right. It is for applicants to decide what 
steps to put forward in their operating schedule. However, it does not 
follow that, where no relevant representations have been received, the 
licensing authority must impose conditions to reflect all of the steps 
that have been advanced. In some cases to do so could result in 
onerous conditions being imposed on the licence. The delegated officer 
determining an application where there are no relevant representations  
does enjoy limited discretion about which conditions should be 
imposed that are in line with the steps advanced. The officer should 
only impose steps beyond what is generally anticipated under this 
policy when it is considered appropriate to do so having regard to the 
Secretary of State’s guidance, to this policy and acting with a view to 
promoting the four licensing objectives.  
. 
The annexed minimum steps/ conditions have been developed in 
consultation with responsible authorities and have been subject to 
statutory consultation.  This policy does not aim to tell applicants what 
steps they should advance (other than expecting adherence to the legal 
obligation on applicants laid down in and under the Act) and nor does it 
seek to control the content of any relevant representations that any 
person or body may choose to make.  However it is hoped that the 
schedules will be of assistance to applicants and responsible authorities 
alike, when making applications or evaluating them, by making clear the 
minimum policy expectation of the Licensing Authority as to what will 
usually promote the licensing objectives. 
It should be made clear that the individual model operating schedules 
cannot cover all eventualities.  For example there may be premises that 
operate as a restaurant for most of the time but that cease serving food 
at some point during the night and then function as an alcohol led late 
night bar or entertainment venue.  In such cases, under this policy, the 
minimum steps for each type of venue, taken together, would be 
relevant policy provisions to guide in the processing of applications. The 
appendixes will be kept under review and further developed in the light 

promotion of the licensing objectives. It should be made clear that the individual 
templates are guides only and cannot cover all eventualities.  Equally the 
conditions contained within them may not be appropriate for all applications.  It 
is a matter for applicants to decide how to set out the steps they propose to take 
to promote the licensing objectives when they complete their operating 
schedules, providing they act in accordance with their statutory obligations and 
do not make any false or misleading statements.   
 
In cases where no relevant representations have been received, the licensing 
authority does not have to impose conditions to reflect all of the steps that have 
been advanced by the applicant. In some cases to do so could result in onerous 
conditions being imposed on the licence. The delegated officer determining an 
application where there are no relevant representations has limited discretion 
about which conditions should be imposed that are in line with the steps 
advanced. The officer should only impose conditions when it is considered 
appropriate to do so having regard to the Secretary of State’s guidance, to this 
policy and acting with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives.  
 
The conditions contained within the templates have been developed in 
consultation with responsible authorities and have been subject to statutory 
consultation.  This policy does not aim to tell applicants what steps they should 
advance (other than expecting adherence to the legal obligation on applicants 
laid down in and under the Act) and nor does it seek to control the content of any 
relevant representations that any person or body may choose to make.  However 
it is hoped that the templates will be of assistance to applicants and responsible 
authorities alike, when making applications or evaluating them. 
 
It should be made clear that the individual templates cannot cover all 
eventualities.  For example there may be premises that operate as a restaurant 
for most of the time but that cease serving food at some point during the night 
and then function as an alcohol led late night bar or entertainment venue.  In 
such cases applicants may wish to look at the templates for each type of venue, to 
guide their application. The appendixes will be kept under review and further 
developed as appropriate.   
 
Contested applications 
 
Where relevant representations are made the application must be determined by 

P
age 97



of experience of their operation.   
 
Contested applications 
Where relevant representations are made the application must be 
determined by either the full Licensing Committee or one of its duly 
authorised sub committees.  In Bristol it is usually a sub-committee that 
determines such applications and this determination will usually take 
place at a hearing.  The sub−committee in such cases has full discretion 
to take such steps that are set out in the Act as it considers appropriate 
to promote the licensing objectives. These steps may include modifying 
the conditions that are in line with those proposed in the operating 
schedule (see preceding paragraph) (or in the case of variations, on the 
existing authorisation) and/or rejecting the application in part, and/or 
excluding a licensable activity; or wholly rejecting the application. 
 
In exercising its discretion, the licensing sub−committee must have 
regard (amongst other things) to this licensing policy. Therefore, in 
drawing up their operating schedule, applicants should find it helpful to 
read this policy carefully and to understand what is expected by the 
licensing authority in order to promote the licensing objectives. As 
stated previously in this statement of policy, this does not mean an 
applicant has to apply in line with this policy. However it will enable 
applicants to decide if their prospective application might benefit from 
discussion with responsible authorities, for example to assuage any 
concerns that might otherwise result in relevant representations being 
made on the application. 
 

either the full Licensing Committee or one of its duly authorised sub committees.  
In Bristol it is usually a sub-committee that determines such applications and this 
determination will usually take place at a hearing.  The sub−committee in such 
cases has full discretion to take such steps that are set out in the Act as it considers 
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. These steps may include modifying 
the conditions that are in line with those proposed in the operating schedule (see 
preceding paragraph) (or in the case of variations, on the existing authorisation) 
and/or rejecting the application in part, and/or excluding a licensable activity; or 
wholly rejecting the application. In the case of applications to vary existing 
licences the Council expects responsible authorities and relevant persons to limit 
representations to the detail of the application itself and tailor any proposed 
conditions accordingly. 
 
In exercising its discretion, the licensing sub−committee must have regard 
(amongst other things) to this licensing policy. Therefore, in drawing up their 
operating schedule, applicants should find it helpful to read this policy carefully and 
to understand what is expected by the licensing authority in order to promote the 
licensing objectives. As stated previously in this statement of policy, this does not 
mean an applicant has to apply in line with this policy. However it will enable 
applicants to decide if their prospective application might benefit from discussion 
with responsible authorities, for example to assuage any concerns that might 
otherwise result in relevant representations being made on the application. 
 
The Licensing Authority will ensure that all personal data is processed fairly and 
lawfully and only kept for as long as is necessary. It will also ensure that personal 
data is kept secure and not disclosed unlawfully to another party. 
 
Any conditions imposed on licences must be compliant and complied with under 
the General Data Protection Regulation rules. 
 

2.14 Where relevant representations have been made and are not 
withdrawn or no agreement to dispense with a hearing is reached 
 
It does not follow that an application that complies with the policy will 
necessarily be granted or that an application that does not comply with 
it will necessarily be rejected. Where there have been relevant 
representations, the licensing authority will always consider the merits 
of the case, acting within the statutory constraints. 

Where relevant representations have been made and are not withdrawn or no 
agreement to dispense with a hearing is reached 
 
It does not follow that an application that complies with the policy will necessarily 
be granted or that an application that does not comply with it will necessarily be 
rejected. Where there have been relevant representations, the licensing authority 
will always consider the merits of the case, acting within the statutory constraints. 
Where a relevant representation refers to the absence of minimum expected steps 

P
age 98



Where a relevant representation refers to the absence of minimum 
expected steps as set out in this policy then in any hearing the applicant 
will be expected to rebut the policy presumption that the 
corresponding conditions should be imposed.  In the absence of a clear 
case for an exception in the particular case the Authority intends the 
policy to be strictly applied in order to achieve the purpose for which 
the particular policy provision concerned has been made. 
 
Not all premises types and activities are covered in the annexed 
schedules and the following policy on the promotion of the four 
licensing objectives remains relevant: 

as set out in this policy then in any hearing the applicant will be expected to rebut 
the policy presumption that the corresponding conditions should be imposed.  In 
the absence of a clear case for an exception in the particular case the Authority 
intends the policy to be strictly applied in order to achieve the purpose for which 
the particular policy provision concerned has been made. 
 
Not all premises types and activities are covered in the annexed schedules and the 
following policy on the promotion of the four licensing objectives remains 
relevant: 

2.15 New paragraph 2.15 In determining applications the licensing sub-committee will have regard 
to other relevant local strategic plans and policies.  The Council recognises the 
importance of securing the proper integration with all relevant local strategies 
introduced for the management of town centres and the night-time economy.  
Where applicants are able to demonstrate that their application fits with such 
strategies the sub-committee will recognise that this is a relevant consideration 
and attach the appropriate weight to this when reaching a determination. 
 
 The Council’s “Local Plan” which includes policies for deciding planning 
applications in Bristol can be found at: 
 
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/planning-and-building-regulations/local-plan   
 
The Bristol Better Eating Award which is an award for food businesses that sell 
healthier food options and promote sustainability can be found at: 
 
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/web/bristol-eating-better-award/home  

3.1.4 The previous Government’s Alcohol Strategy published in March 2012 
recognised the issues arising from binge drinking. The strategy 
proposed, amongst other measures: 
• To encourage greater use of existing powers to stop serving 
alcohol to people who have consumed too much. 
• Give more powers for Licensing Authorities to restrict opening 
and closing times through the use of Early Morning Restriction Orders 
(which came into force in October 2012).  
• Encourage local health bodies to share non confidential 
information with the  police and  to exercise their new powers as a 

The previous Government’s Alcohol Strategy published in March 2012 recognised 
the issues arising from binge drinking. The strategy proposed, amongst other 
measures: 
• To encourage greater use of existing powers to stop serving alcohol to 
people who have consumed too much. 
• Give more powers for Licensing Authorities to restrict opening and closing 
times through the use of Early Morning Restriction Orders (which came into force 
in October 2012).  
• Encourage local health bodies to share non confidential information with 
the  police and  to exercise their new powers as a Responsible Authority to 

P
age 99

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/planning-and-building-regulations/local-plan
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/web/bristol-eating-better-award/home


Responsible Authority to make representations on licence applications 
and submit licence reviews.  
• Restrict the supply of cheap alcohol with the introduction of a 
minimum unit price for alcohol. 
• To work in partnership with business to drive down alcohol 
misuse and to encourage a culture of responsible drinking. 
  

make representations on licence applications and submit licence reviews.  
• Restrict the supply of cheap alcohol with the introduction of a minimum 
unit price for alcohol. 
• To work in partnership with business to drive down alcohol misuse and to 
encourage a culture of responsible drinking. 
The Council will have regard to any future government alcohol strategy or similar 
plan.  

3.1.4 • Where premises are subject to age-restrictions, the procedures 
in place to conduct age verification checks 

• Where premises are subject to age-restrictions, the procedures in place to 
conduct age verification checks.  The Council will expect the premises licence 
holder to follow any guidance issued by the Home Office in this regard.  The 
current Home Office guidance is available at:  
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/false-id-guidance 

3.2.3 In considering what steps may be appropriate; applicants will be 
expected to have particular regard to:  
· The premises itself (are there for example any inherent hazards 
such as steps, open fires, use of shared areas, etc.). 
· The neighbouring area (are there for example particular 
problems with crime and disorder, is it a primarily residential area etc.). 

In considering what steps may be appropriate; applicants will be expected to have 
particular regard to:  
· The premises itself (are there for example any inherent hazards such as 
steps, open fires, use of shared areas, etc.). 
· The neighbouring area (are there for example particular problems with 
crime and disorder, is it a primarily residential area, is there a water frontage etc.). 

3.3 Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
“A person is guilty of a public nuisance (also known as common 
nuisance), who (a) does an act not warranted by law, or (b) omits to 
discharge a legal duty, if the effect of the act or omission is to endanger 
the life, health, property,……. or comfort of the public, or to obstruct 
the public in the exercise or enjoyment of rights common to all Her 
Majesty’s subjects.”(Archbold) 
 
In the House of Lords case of Rimmington, Lord Rodger said: 
 
“A core element of the crime of public nuisance is that the defendant’s 
act should affect the community, a section of the public, rather than 
simply individuals.  Obvious examples would be the release of smoke or 
fumes which affect a village or neighbourhood or the emission of loud 
noises which disturb the neighbourhood.”   

Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
“A person is guilty of a public nuisance (also known as common nuisance), who (a) 
does an act not warranted by law, or (b) omits to discharge a legal duty, if the 
effect of the act or omission is to endanger the life, health, property,……. or 
comfort of the public, or to obstruct the public in the exercise or enjoyment of 
rights common to all Her Majesty’s subjects.”(Archbold) 
 
In the House of Lords case of Rimmington, Lord Rodger said: 
 
“A core element of the crime of public nuisance is that the defendant’s act should 
affect the community, a section of the public, rather than simply individuals.  
Obvious examples would be the release of smoke or fumes which affect a village or 
neighbourhood or the emission of loud noises which disturb the neighbourhood.”  
Private nuisance is not a licensing objective.  With regard to applications it is 
public nuisance that must be demonstrated and any conditions imposed on 
licences must relate to the prevention of public nuisance rather than private 
nuisance. 
 

3.3.4 (Existing 3.3.4 text to remain with addition of a “Noise – General” Noise – General 

P
age 100



section)  
When undertaking a review for any premises the Council will consider if 
alterations to the operation of the premises have occurred that have brought 
forward complaints from local residents.  If, it is apparent, that it is the local 
neighbourhood has changed and it is not the operating of the premises that has 
changed, then this will inform the Council’s determination.   
 
On review the Council will consider if improvements can be made to the internal 
fabric of the building or systems be imposed for ingress and egress of customers.  
If such actions can prevent public nuisance occurring then these steps would take 
precedence over the restriction of operating times or licensable activities as it is 
recognised that such restrictions could have catastrophic effects on the continued 
existence of the venue.  The Council also recognises that premises licence holders 
have a duty to uphold the licensing objectives.  Where issues are raised with 
premises licence holders prior to a review application being submitted the Council 
expects that proactive action should be taken by the premises licence holder to 
ensure any issues are resolved. 

3.3.4 “…Litter 
 
Steps taken or proposed to be taken to prevent public nuisance from 
customers depositing litter without due care in the vicinity of the 
premises. Measures may include the: 
 

 Provision and regular emptying of litter bins.  

 Provision for the disposal of cigarette litter at entrances 
as well as where people are most likely to congregate. 

 Regular monitoring and cleaning of areas. 

 Reduction in the amount of packaging passed on to 
customers. 

 Provision of posters asking customers not to drop 
litter.” 

 

Litter 
 
Steps taken or proposed to be taken to prevent public nuisance from customers 
depositing litter without due care in the vicinity of the premises. Measures may 
include the: 
 

 Provision and regular emptying of litter bins.  

 Provision for the disposal of cigarette litter at entrances as well as 
where people are most likely to congregate. Provision for the disposal of 
cigarette litter at entrances as well as where people are most likely to 
congregate.  However licence holders are encouraged to ensure that where 
possible smoking is discouraged by the entrance to the premises to avoid the 
need for other customers to inhale second hand smoke.  The licensing 
authority recognises however that in some cases no other suitable location 
may be available.” 

 Regular monitoring and cleaning of areas. 

 Reduction in the amount of packaging passed on to customers. 

 Provision of posters asking customers not to drop litter. 
 

3.4.7 New paragraph Tackling Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) is a key target both locally and nationally 
as such the Licensing Authority expects Licence Holders to: 

P
age 101



 
• Understand that there are criminal offences in relation to sexual exploitation of 
a  
child 
• Ensure that they and their employees have a basic awareness of the signs of CSE  
and how to report it; 
• Report any concerns to the appropriate authorities or to the Licensing Authority  
who can advise them of the appropriate authority to report concerns to. 

3.5 New paragraph 3.5 Health Bodies Acting as Responsible Authorities 
 
3.5.1 The Licensing Authority recognise that the local authority’s Director of 
Public Health (DPH) may exercise their function as a responsible authority and 
that such representations may potentially cover any of the four licensing 
objectives.  Representations should be evidenced based and, as recognised in the 
Secretary of State’s section 182 Guidance, the DPH may hold information that 
other responsible authorities do not which will assist the licensing authority in 
exercising its functions. 
 
3.5.2 Bristol is a socially responsible city that recognises the potential harms 
associated with alcohol misuse. The harms to health are widely documented 
including the part it can play in fuelling aggression, violence or assault. The rates 
of admission for alcohol specific conditions have been consistently higher than 
that for England for the last ten years for which we have data.  Alcohol specific 
mortality rates for Bristol are higher than that for England. 
 
3.5.3  The Licensing Authority will take into account the links between the 
availability of alcohol and alcohol-related harm when considering a licence 
application (for example take into account the number of alcohol outlets in a 
given area and times when it is on sale and the potential links to local crime and 
disorder and alcohol-related illnesses and deaths). However the Licensing 
Authority recognises that the Licensing Act does not, as it stands, cover public 
health considerations. 

5.6 In Bristol the BBFC has not therefore been specified as the film 
classification body.  Instead the Licensing Committee should enable its 
sub committees and/or officers to recommend classification and should 
publish its classification policy.  The classification policy should include 
the general application of the classification recommended by the BBFC 
where films have been submitted for classification.  Where the Council 

In Bristol the BBFC has not therefore been specified as the film classification body.  
Instead the Licensing Committee should enable its sub committees and/or officers 
to recommend classification and should publish its classification policy.  The 
classification policy should include the general application of the classification 
recommended by the BBFC where films have been submitted for classification.  
Where the Council is asked to consider classifying films which have not been 

P
age 102



is asked to consider classifying films which have not been submitted to 
the BBFC then the Council can if it wishes to do so consider issuing its 
own classification in respect of which regard should be had to the BBFC 
guidelines. The Licensing Authority wishes to retain the discretion to 
depart from the BBFC although it expects this discretion to be exercised 
sparingly.  As this is a discretionary service and having regard to the 
cost to the Council tax payer which would otherwise arise, any such 
request should be processed only on payment of a suitable fee.  A 
discretion should be retained under the classification regime of the 
Council enabling it to refuse to consider an application for classification 
itself but instead recommending the film for submission to the BBFC.  
This should be done in cases where the summary of the film suggests 
that it may be considered for a Restricted 18 classification. A suggested 
film classification policy for Bristol is included at Appendix B. 

submitted to the BBFC then the Council can if it wishes to do so consider issuing its 
own classification in respect of which regard should be had to the BBFC guidelines. 
The Licensing Authority wishes to retain the discretion to depart from the BBFC 
although it expects this discretion to be exercised sparingly.  As this is a 
discretionary service and having regard to the cost to the Council tax payer which 
would otherwise arise, any such request should be processed only on payment of a 
suitable fee.  A Discretion should be retained under the classification regime of the 
Council enabling it to refuse to consider an application for classification itself but 
instead recommending the film for submission to the BBFC.  This should be done in 
cases where the summary of the film suggests that it may be considered for a 
Restricted 18 classification. A suggested film classification policy for Bristol is 
included at Appendix B. 

6.1.8 The Pools of Conditions which have been developed by the Licensing 
Committee and can be found at www.bristol.gov.uk/licensingpolicy are 
considered by the Council to be a useful resource to the Licensing 
Committee in attaching conditions that are appropriate in the particular 
circumstances of the case. However, the Council supports the Licensing 
Committee in utilising other conditions where they are judged 
reasonable and in particular where it is judged to be conducive to 
facilitate the promotion of a relevant statutory obligation. The local 
pools of conditions are contained in Appendix C. 

The Pools of Conditions which have been developed by the Licensing Committee 
and can be found at www.bristol.gov.uk/licensingpolicy are considered by the 
Council to be a useful resource to the Licensing Committee in attaching conditions 
that are appropriate in the particular circumstances of the case. However, the 
Council supports the Licensing Committee in utilising other conditions where they 
are judged reasonable and in particular where it is judged to be conducive to 
facilitate the promotion of a relevant statutory obligation. The local pools of 
conditions are contained in Appendix C. 

6.2.5 The council hopes that responsible applicants will want to work with 
the Council in tackling nuisance and criminal advertising and will play 
their part by submitting operating schedules that are consistent with 
this objective.  Applicants are referred to the model operating 
schedules to assist in this regard. 

The Council hopes that responsible applicants will want to work with the Council in 
tackling nuisance and criminal advertising and will play their part by submitting 
operating schedules that are consistent with this objective.  Applicants are referred 
to the Template Operating Schedules available on the Council’s website to assist 
in this regard. 

6.3.1 The cumulative impact of the number, type and density of premises in 
particular areas, such as the city centre, may lead to them becoming 
saturated with premises of a certain type making them a focal point for 
large groups of people together leading to severe or chronic problems 
of public nuisance and anti- social behaviour. The licensing authority 
may consider the adoption of a of refusing new premises authorisations 
within a defined area or areas if it is satisfied that it is appropriate to 
include an approach to cumulative impact in its Licensing Policy 
Statement. It will take the decision only after it is satisfied that there is 
evidence to support such a decision. 

The cumulative impact of the number, type and density of premises in particular 
areas, such as the city centre, may lead to them becoming saturated with premises 
of a certain type making them a focal point for large groups of people together 
leading to severe or chronic problems of public nuisance, and anti- social behaviour 
or other alcohol related problems.  Local crime and related trauma data may be 
used to map the extent of such problems.  The licensing authority may consider 
publishing a cumulative impact assessment (CIA) to help limit the number of types 
of licence applications granted in such areas if it is satisfied that it is appropriate to 
include an approach to cumulative impact in its Licensing Policy Statement. It will 
take the decision only after it is satisfied that there is evidence to support such a 

P
age 103

http://www.bristol.gov.uk/licensingpolicy
http://www.bristol.gov.uk/licensingpolicy


decision. 

6.3.6 The Licensing Authority will keep cumulative impact policies under 
review 

The Licensing Authority will any keep any cumulative impact assessment policy 
under review. Cumulative impact assessments’ were introduced in the 2003 Act by 
the Policing and Crime Act 2017, with effect from 6 April 2018.  The amendments 
require the Licensing Authority to review the CIA within three years of its 
publication. 

6.3.8 Cumulative impact policies are intended to be strictly applied.   
Applications which would seek to be allowed as an exception to a 
special cumulative impact policy will generally be favourably considered 
if they are judged to encourage a greater variety of types of 
entertainment than currently exists in these areas. It is important to be 
clear that this does not mean that an applicant who believes their offer 
is different to what already exists in the area can assume a favourable 
outcome.  “Greater variety” must be understood in the context of the 
licensing objectives. In particular, the Licensing Authority welcomes 
those proposals which can be viewed as more family friendly and which 
offer a wider range of entertainment than that which is currently 
available because it is considered that such proposals will not usually 
add to the stress in the area and undermine the licensing objectives.  
 
However matters such as for example, 

 the premises will not add people to the area; 

 longer hours will create slower dispersal; 

 history of good management; 

 premises are well run; 

 premises application is small in nature 

 alcohol is not sold; 

 clientele are a cut above the usual; 
will not be considered exceptional circumstances, as the issue is crime 
and disorder/public nuisance in the area as a whole rather than that 
associated with individual premises and the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 
Existing licensees who wish to materially alter and/or  extend the 
premises to which the authorisation relates are required to seek a new 
authorisation.  This is because the Act prohibits the use of  a variation 
application to substantially alter the premises to which the 
authorisation relates.  Where the only change is to the physical extent 
or material layout of the premises themselves (i.e. in the absence of 

Cumulative impact policies are intended to be strictly applied.   Applications 
which would seek to be allowed as an exception to a special cumulative impact 
policy will generally be favourably considered if they are judged to encourage a 
greater variety of types of entertainment than currently exists in these areas. It is 
important to be clear that this does not mean that an applicant who believes their 
offer is different to what already exists in the area can assume a favourable 
outcome.  “Greater variety” must be understood in the context of the licensing 
objectives. In particular, the Licensing Authority welcomes those proposals which 
can be viewed as more family friendly and which offer a wider range of 
entertainment than that which is currently available because it is considered that 
such proposals will not usually add to the stress in the area and undermine the 
licensing objectives.  
 
However matters such as for example, 

 the premises will not add people to the area; 

 longer hours will create slower dispersal; 

 history of good management; 

 premises are well run; 

 premises application is small in nature 

 alcohol is not sold; 

 clientele are a cut above the usual; 
will not be considered exceptional circumstances, as the issue is crime and 
disorder/public nuisance in the area as a whole rather than that associated with 
individual premises and the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
Existing licensees who wish to materially alter and/or  extend the premises to 
which the authorisation relates are required to seek a new authorisation.  This is 
because the Act prohibits the use of  a variation application to substantially alter 
the premises to which the authorisation relates.  Where the only change is to the 
physical extent or material layout of the premises themselves (i.e. in the absence 
of additional features such as change in style of operation, capacity etc) it is 
highly unlikely this would trigger the special policy.  Of course this policy cannot 
restrict the right of any responsible authority or other person to make relevant 

P
age 104



additional features such as change in style of operation, capacity etc) it 
is highly unlikely this would trigger the special policy.  Of course this 
policy cannot restrict the right of any responsible authority or other 
person to make relevant representations in that regard and if such are 
forthcoming they will be diligently considered, but the policy 
expectation is that the application should be granted unless the 
relevant representations demonstrate the change will be likely to add 
to the cumulative impact being experienced.  Where other change is 
envisaged then the presumption may arise. 
Applicants are reminded that they are entitled to seek a provisional 
statement in such circumstances. 
Applicants who have the benefit of a provisional statement and who 
have completed their works substantially in line with that statement 
should not have the policy applied to them.  This is because the 
cumulative impact policy could (indeed may) have been raised and 
considered prior to the provisional statement having been granted. 
 

representations in that regard and if such are forthcoming they will be diligently 
considered, but the policy expectation is that the application should be granted 
unless the relevant representations demonstrate the change will be likely to add 
to the cumulative impact being experienced.  Where other change is envisaged 
then the presumption may arise. 
Applicants are reminded that they are entitled to seek a provisional statement in 
such circumstances. 
Applicants who have the benefit of a provisional statement and who have 
completed their works substantially in line with that statement should not have 
the policy applied to them.  This is because the cumulative impact policy could 
(indeed may) have been raised and considered prior to the provisional statement 
having been granted. 
 
Having had regard to the guidance referred to above, consulted upon the issue, 
taken into account the views of respondents and considered the evidence the 
Council has determined that it is not appropriate to publish a cumulative impact 
assessment policy at this time. However at the time this policy was published the 
Council is considering publishing a Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy in 
respect of the city centre area of Bristol.  A consultation will be carried out in that 
respect.  

6.3.9 Having had regard to the guidance referred to above, consulted upon 
the issue, taken into account the views of respondents and considered 
the evidence the council has adopted a cumulative impact policy in 
respect of five areas of Bristol, namely: 
 
City Centre CIA 
 
The central area within the Cabot Sector as identified by Avon and 
Somerset Police and as extended to include the Welsh Back area, 
Stokes Croft and Cabot Circus (Map at Appendix D) 
 
Reason for Policy 
 
The Avon and Somerset Police produced evidence to support their 
request that the central area of Bristol be designated a CIA. It remains 
at saturation point and the Police produced evidence for extending the 
area to which the special policy should apply so as to include Stokes 
Croft and Cabot Circus.  In particular the area, which has a significant 

Removed 

P
age 105



concentration of alcohol led late night venues, witnesses a high number 
of assaults and other related crime and disorder including public 
nuisance and risk to public safety. The policy will apply to further 
applications for the grant of new licenses or significant variations of 
existing licenses in respect of premises that primarily sell alcohol for 
consumption on the premises,  other late night uses, restaurants and 
take away outlets.  The main focus of the policy is likely to be on alcohol 
led establishments and premises that keep customers in the area at 
times when the promotion of the licensing objectives is most 
challenging (for example late night refreshment from “fast food” 
outlets). 
 
Gloucester Road CIA 
 
The area covers a stretch of Gloucester Road from its junction with Pitt 
Road  and Rudthorpe Road to the Arches on Cheltenham Road and also 
includes a section of Zetland Road (Map at Appendix D).  
 
Reason for Policy 
 
This stretch of Gloucester Road, which is a major  transport  route in 
and out of the city, features a mix of retail and leisure uses with 
primarily residential areas behind the frontages. The request for a CIA 
to be introduced was made by the Police and supported by local 
residential amenity groups. The potential for increased public nuisance 
and crime and disorder arising from further licenses being granted is a 
major concern for local residents in this area and the Police.   In 
particular the area, which has a significant concentration of alcohol led 
late night venues, witnesses a high number of assaults and other 
related crime and disorder including public nuisance and risk to public 
safety.  
 
The ability to prevent further encroachment into the normal sleeping 
times of local residents is also a key aspect of this policy. The policy will 
apply to further applications for the grant of new licenses or significant 
variations of existing licenses in respect of premises that primarily sell 
alcohol for consumption on the premises,  other late night uses, 
restaurants and take away outlets.  The main focus of the policy is likely 

P
age 106



to be on alcohol led establishments and premises that keep customers 
in the area at times when the promotion of the licensing objectives is 
most challenging (for example late night refreshment from “fast food” 
outlets) 
 
Whiteladies Road CIA 
 
The area bounded by West Park and  that length of Whiteladies Road 
which extends from its junction with West Park to its junction with 
Imperial Road and that length of Cotham Hill extending from its 
junction with Whiteladies Road to its junction with West Park (Map at 
Appendix D) 
 
Reason for Policy 
 
This stretch of Whiteladies Road is predominantly characterised by 
properties with A3 leisure uses behind which are sited residential areas. 
The request for the CIA to be implemented was made by local amenity 
groups and supported by the Redland Sector of Avon and Somerset 
Police. This area differs from the city centre in that there is a greater 
emphasis on the need to promote the prevention of public nuisance 
objective. The ability to prevent further encroachment into the normal 
sleeping times of local residents is a key aspect of this policy.  The policy 
will  apply to the consideration of applications for the grant of new 
authorisations or for significant variations of existing authorisations in 
respect of premises that primarily sell alcohol for consumption on the 
premises,  other late night uses, restaurants and take away outlets.  
 
Clifton CIA 
 
An area comprising of Clifton Village and extending to Queens Road and 
Whiteladies Road (Map at Appendix D) 
 
Reason for Policy 
 
Clifton Village and the surrounding area has seen a rapid growth in 
restaurants, bars and cafes. These A3 uses are mixed with residential 
areas and have led to an increase in public nuisance. The request for 

P
age 107



the CIA was made by the Clifton and Hotwells Improvement Society and 
is supported by local residents and Avon and Somerset Constabulary. 
Clifton Village is a popular destination with a vibrant day and night time 
economy. The CIA policy will help to protect the residential amenity and 
ensure that further expansion with licensed premises is not to the 
detriment of this important and iconic part of Bristol. The policy, when 
triggered, will apply to applications for the grant of new licenses or 
significant variations of existing licenses in respect of premises that 
primarily provide alcohol for supply on the premises, restaurants and 
takeaway outlets. Applicants for licenses in the CIA area will need to be 
able to demonstrate that they can offer something different from what 
is currently available without adding to the impact already being 
experienced. 
 
Bedminster and Southville CIA 
 
The CIA comprises of two adjacent areas that have different 
characteristics. The North Street section places a greater emphasis on 
seeking to prevent public nuisance whilst the Cannon street area has 
more of an emphasis on preventing crime and disorder (Map at 
Appendix D) 
 
North Street (From the junction with Ashton Road to the junction with  
Greville Street) 
 
Reason for Policy 
 
This stretch of North Street is characterised by a varied range of food, 
drink and entertainment offers leading to a busy area, which has 
resulted in anti- social behaviour and loss of amenity for local residents. 
The policy will help to protect residential amenity from being harmed 
by public nuisance and will, when triggered by the receipt of relevant 
representations, give rise to a presumption of refusal of applications for 
the grant of new premises licences or for significant variation of existing 
licenses particularly where such proposals could increase anti-social 
behaviour. The policy is not designed to preclude high-quality food-led 
developments that are commensurate with the community’s longer 
term ambitions for the area.  

P
age 108



 
Cannon Street Area ( Cannon Street, North Street (from junction of 
Grenville Street to junction with Cannon Street), East Street (from 
junction with Little Paradise to junction with West Street/Sheene 
Road and West Street (from junction with East Street to junction with 
Victor Road) 
 
Reason for Policy 
 
The Cannon Street locality comprises of a close concentration of late 
night ‘destination’ bars, take away food outlets and premises supplying 
alcohol for consumption away from the premises (off-licences) that has 
resulted in a cumulative adverse impact on the promotion of the 
licensing objectives, in particular those concerning the prevention of 
crime and disorder and the prevention of public nuisance.  The policy, 
when triggered by the receipt of relevant representations, will apply to 
applications for the grant of new premises licences or for significant 
variation of existing licenses and is intended to prevent the further 
proliferation of the type of premises on offer in this locality.  In order to 
rebut the presumption of refusal applicants for licences will be 
expected to demonstrate through the operating schedule 
accompanying the application that what they propose is a significantly 
different type of operation than that which is currently on offer; a 
proposal that will result in a greater variety of range of venues and that 
it is demonstrated will not add to the problems currently being 
experienced which this policy aims to address.  The policy is intended to 
be strictly applied, i.e. to refuse applications with operating schedules 
that could enable a venue to operate as an additional late night alcohol 
led venue, or as a late night food take away outlet, or as an “off-
licence”.   

6.3.10 The adoption of such policies should not be understood to be an 
absolute bar to new authorisations being issued or granting significant 
variations to existing licenses.  Applicants are entitled to seek any of the 
permissions available to them in the Act and the Council does not in 
this policy intend to prevent applicants from exercising their statutory 
rights.  Each application will be considered on its own merits, within the 
constraints of the legislation and having due regard to the relevant 
guidance and policy. 

Removed 

P
age 109



 

6.3.11 Interpreting the extent of a Cumulative Impact Policy 
 
In respect of past policy, issues have occasionally arisen with regard to 
whether or not a particular premises that is located abutting or just 
outside of the indicated boundary for each CIA should be considered as 
being covered by the policy. Through this policy the council seeks to 
clarify that each CIA boundary line is intended to be indicative of the 
area that is affected by the stress underpinning the cumulative impact 
policy for the area concerned. The policy purpose is to prevent that 
stress from worsening and to reduce it over time. That policy purpose is 
frustrated if premises such as those referred to above are automatically 
considered as being outside of the policy. 
It is intended that the wording of the cumulative impact policies should 
be understood by the decision taker in a way that best ensures the 
purpose of the policy is achieved. This is sometimes called a purposive 
interpretation Each application that falls to be considered at a hearing 
will be assessed on it’s own individual facts and merit.  Where relevant 
representations are received in respect of an application for any 
premises that is adjoining or is in close proximity to (but not within) the 
CIA defined boundary and where those representations raise a material 
impact on the CIA then the CIA policy may be triggered if the sub 
committee reasonably judges that to grant the particular application 
would add to the cumulative impact being suffered in the defined area.  

Removed 

6.6.8 In 2010 a report by the Health and Social Care Information Centre into 
smoking, drinking and drug use among young people in England 
collected information in respect of children at secondary schools aged 
between 11 and 15 drinking alcohol. Results were that 13% of pupils 
had drunk alcohol in the previous week and the proportion of girls to 
boys was similar. This figure is lower when compared to 26% in 2001 
and 18% in 2009. Of these young people (13%) the report highlights 
that they drank a mean amount of 12.9 units and median amount of 8.5 
units. 36% of the pupils that reported to have obtained alcohol in the 
last 4 weeks 23% from friends, 20% from parents, 15% asked someone 
to buy it, 48% had bought the alcohol themselves. Of those that bought 
the alcohol themselves 26% purchased alcohol from friends/relatives, 
18% from someone else, 16% from off licences, 12% from 
shops/supermarkets. When compared to 1996 figures the percentage 

In 2016 a report by the Health and Social Care Information Centre into smoking, 
drinking and drug use among young people in England collected information in 
respect of children at secondary schools aged between 11 and 15 drinking alcohol. 
The results showed that 44% of pupils aged 11-15 had drunk alcohol at least once 
(15% at age 11, and 73% at age 15 years). 10% of pupils said they drank alcohol at 
least once a week, of these the mean average was 9.6 units. 38% of pupils said 
that they drank alcohol at least a few times a year.  This increased sharply by age, 
from 8% of 11 year olds to 68% of 15 year olds, and therefore, the age profile of 
current drinkers is heavily weighted towards older pupils.  Current drinkers were 
most likely to buy alcohol from friends or relatives (22%), someone else (16%), an 
off-licence (10%) or a shop or supermarket (8%).  61% of current drinkers said they 
never buy alcohol.  The figures would suggest that a number of young people are 
attempting to buy alcohol from premises that hold an off licence (including 
supermarkets and smaller independent stores/off licences).  When compared to 

P
age 110



of pupils purchasing from retail outlets has reduced. 2010 figures the percentage of pupils purchasing from retail outlets has reduced. 
 
The 2019 Bristol Pupil Voice survey also reveals data about alcohol use of 
secondary pupils in Bristol.  Of the 3268 secondary pupils who gave a valid 
response, 25% reported they had had an alcoholic drink in the last four weeks. 
This was similar across gender with the percentages rising with age to 36% for 
those from year 10 (14- 15 year olds). Of those secondary school pupils who 
reported drinking alcohol, 71% report that their parents either “always know” 
(52%) or “usually know” (19%).  Overall approximate numbers reporting that they 
consumed alcohol during the last month are as follows:  
 
• Year 8: approximately 700 
• Year 10: approximately 1,600 
 

6.6.10 6.6.10 It is consistent with the duty to promote the four licensing 
objectives for the Council to aim to ensure access to alcohol for 
consumption by young people is restricted.   

6.6.10 It is consistent with the duty to promote the four licensing objectives for 
the Council to aim to ensure access to alcohol for consumption by young people is 
restricted.  The Council also expects premises licence holders to consider how their 
role in the advertising of alcohol, through for example publicity materials, may 
impact on the protection of children from harm. 
 

6.6.13 Examples of steps/conditions that the council expects in such cases 
include: 

 Implementation of the “Challenge 25” scheme 
(challenging anyone who looks under 25 to 
prove their age by use of an approved means of 
identification); for this to be advertised and 
enforced on the premises and to be a condition 
of the authorisation. 

 

Examples of steps/conditions that the Council expects in such cases (where 
evidence suggests such conditions are appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives) include: 
 

 Implementation of the “Challenge 25” scheme (challenging 
anyone who looks under 25 to prove their age by use of an 
approved means of identification); for this to be advertised 
and enforced on the premises and to be a condition of the 
authorisation.  The Council recognises that some applicants 
may already operate an alternative scheme such as 
“Challenge 21” in other premises.  Where an applicant 
expresses a desire for an alternative scheme such as 
“Challenge 21” the Council would not seek to impose 
“Challenge 25” unless there was sufficient justification to 
do so.  

6.6.13 Save for mandatory conditions imposed directly through the Licensing 
Act itself, there are no standard conditions that automatically apply and 
this policy should be understood within that context. The introduction 

Removed (duplicated at para 6.6.4). 

P
age 111



to this policy including the section on how this policy applies summarise 
the circumstances in which the Council can exercise substantial 
discretion when determining applications and indicates the constraints 
imposed by the statute governing the exercise of that discretion when 
it is engaged. 

6.8.5 Given the explicit nature of the content of films classified as R18 the 
council considers that they are suitable for showing only in suitable 
premises and under restricted “club” conditions.  In order to give effect 
to this, the Council has included a set of conditions based upon those 
contained in the guidance issued under the previous regime, namely 
Annex B to Home Office circular 98 of 1982, in the relevant model 
operating schedule.   

Given the explicit nature of the content of films classified as R18 the Council 
considers that they are suitable for showing only in suitable premises and under 
restricted “club” conditions.  In order to give effect to this, the Council has included 
a set of conditions based upon those contained in the guidance issued under the 
previous regime, namely Annex B to Home Office circular 98 of 1982, in the 
relevant template operating schedule.   

8.1 The Secretary of State has provided guidance on the relationship 
between planning and licensing stating that they are separate regimes 
(Para 13.55). Where the Licensing Authority receives relevant 
representations that a licensing proposal is contrary to a planning 
consent and that to grant a licence for such activity would be likely to 
affect the licensing objectives then a refusal, or the attaching of 
conditions to prevent such a use until the position has been regularised 
may be appropriate. In appropriate situations a hearing could be 
deferred until planning consent has been obtained, or arrangements 
made for the applications to be considered together.  A responsible and 
prudent applicant would ensure that an appropriate planning consent 
was in place before submitting a licence application or choose to submit 
both at the same time. 

The Secretary of State has provided guidance on the relationship between planning 
and licensing stating that they are separate regimes (Para 14.64). Where the 
Licensing Authority receives relevant representations that a licensing proposal is 
contrary to a planning consent and that to grant a licence for such activity would be 
likely to affect the licensing objectives then a refusal, or the attaching of conditions 
to prevent such a use until the position has been regularised may be appropriate. In 
appropriate situations a hearing could be deferred until planning consent has been 
obtained, or arrangements made for the applications to be considered together.  A 
responsible and prudent applicant would ensure that an appropriate planning 
consent was in place before submitting a licence application or choose to submit 
both at the same time.  The Council will not duplicate restrictions on planning 
permissions unless such restrictions are necessary to promote the licensing 
objectives. 
 
Whilst recognising that licensing and planning are separate regimes the Licensing 
Authority will work closely with planning to ensure that where possible the two 
regimes will align with each other. The ‘agent of change’ principle which seeks to 
protect existing uses, particularly with regard to venues that provide regulated 
entertainment through permissions under the Licensing Act, is recognised as an 
important concept under both regimes and is supported by this policy.  Where 
reviews are sought by residents or responsible authorities in relation to public 
nuisance alleged to arise from a licensed premises, the nature of the premises, it's 
track record and length of time it has been providing the activities complained of 
will all be taken into account in determining the application. 

9.1 All enforcement carried out under the Licensing Act should be 
undertaken having regard to Bristol City Council enforcement policies, 

All enforcement carried out under the Licensing Act should be undertaken having 
regard to Bristol City Council enforcement policies, the Secretary of State’s 

P
age 112



the Secretary of State’s guidance and this policy. The exercise of all 
other licensing functions, and enforcement functions under the act that 
are the responsibility of the Licensing Authority must be undertaken 
with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives. 

guidance, this policy and the Regulators Code which is available at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/regulators-code .  
 
The exercise of all other licensing functions and enforcement functions under the 
act that are the responsibility of the Licensing Authority must be undertaken with a 
view to promoting the four licensing objectives. 
 

 

P
age 113

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/regulators-code


All Storm logs ASB CRIME GENERAL

PUBLIC 
SAFETY/WELFA
RE TRANSPORT Not recorded Sum:

Broadmead BN192 662 2029 608 1526 181 3 5009

Harbourside & Hotwells BN194 661 1719 729 1376 307 4792

Old City Docks BN191 1406 2554 1001 2475 306 2 7744

Redcliffe & Temple BN193 272 782 384 1071 165 2674

Stokes Croft & St Michael's BN190 470 1467 630 1670 176 8 4421

Sum: 3471 8551 3352 8118 1135 13 24640

Of which Licensed Premises ASB CRIME GENERAL

PUBLIC 
SAFETY/WELFA
RE TRANSPORT Not recorded Sum: ASB All

Broadmead BN192 35 105 67 67 4 1 279

Harbourside & Hotwells BN194 165 443 69 155 4 836

Old City Docks BN191 168 456 85 208 10 927

Redcliffe & Temple BN193 24 59 17 34 134

Stokes Croft & St Michael's BN190 49 124 18 44 5 240

Sum: 441 1187 256 508 23 1 2416 12.7% 9.8%

Broadmead Clifton
Harbourside & 
Hotwells Old City Docks

Redcliffe & 
Temple

Stokes Croft & St 
Michael's

BN192 BN195 BN194 BN191 BN193 BN190 Sum:

80 79 123 199 84 174 739

59 72 111 189 52 87 570

53 13 44 115 19 26 270

24 6 11 16 9 10 76

28 2 9 25 9 7 80

447 69 282 430 123 278 1629

81 6 51 116 22 33 309

50 17 67 76 31 47 288

1668 175 663 861 209 535 4111

33 227 123 295 94 80 852

513 162 637 735 249 474 2770

3036 828 2121 3057 901 1751 11694

Broadmead Clifton
Harbourside & 
Hotwells Old City Docks

Redcliffe & 
Temple

Stokes Croft & St 
Michael's

BN192 BN195 BN194 BN191 BN193 BN190 Sum:

3 12 17 5 4 41

4 7 22 26 2 4 65

1 2 2 5

1 1 2 4

2 1 1 4

10 6 68 58 9 13 164

2 7 4 1 14

1 22 17 2 5 47

25 5 107 126 8 42 313

1 8 12 3 24

41 10 155 138 17 44 405

91 28 404 403 48 112 1086 9.3%

All Crime

Arson and Criminal Damage

Burglary

Drug Offences

Miscellaneous Crimes Against Society

Possession of Weapons

Public Order Offences

Robbery

Sexual Offences

Theft

Vehicle Offences

Violence Against The Person

Sum:

Crime at Licensed Locations

Arson and Criminal Damage

Burglary

Drug Offences

Miscellaneous Crimes Against Society

Vehicle Offences

Violence Against The Person

Sum:

Possession of Weapons

Public Order Offences

Robbery

Sexual Offences

Theft

P
age 114



All Storm logs ASB CRIME GENERAL

PUBLIC 
SAFETY/WELFA
RE TRANSPORT Not recorded Sum:

Bishopston BN175 137 649 316 665 265 2032

Montpellier & St Werburghs BE111 234 872 440 1090 245 3 2884

Redland BN174 164 597 184 685 214 1844

Sum: 535 2118 940 2440 724 3 6760

Of which Licensed Premises ASB CRIME GENERAL

PUBLIC 
SAFETY/WELFA
RE TRANSPORT Sum: ASB All

Bishopston BN175 11 26 22 14 4 77

Montpellier & St Werburghs BE111 10 65 12 26 1 114

Redland BN174 40 67 5 22 2 136

Sum: 61 158 39 62 7 327 11.4% 4.8%

Bishopston Montpellier & St WerburghsRedland

BN175 BE111 BN174 Sum:

110 123 94 327

63 94 79 236

10 11 8 29

42 4 5 51

6 5 4 15

114 109 64 287

8 14 5 27

23 18 16 57

150 213 155 518

112 139 108 359

241 217 154 612

879 947 692 2518

Bishopston Montpellier & St WerburghsRedland

BN175 BE111 BN174 Sum:

4 5 9

1 1 6 8

1 1

1 1

7 10 11 28

1 1

All Crime

Arson and Criminal Damage

Burglary

Drug Offences

Miscellaneous Crimes Against Society

Possession of Weapons

Public Order Offences

Robbery

Sexual Offences

Theft

Vehicle Offences

Violence Against The Person

Sum:

Crime at Licensed Locations

Arson and Criminal Damage

Burglary

Miscellaneous Crimes Against Society

Possession of Weapons

Public Order Offences

Sexual Offences

P
age 115



8 18 29 55

1 1

5 14 18 37

23 48 70 141 5.6%Sum:

Theft

Vehicle Offences

Violence Against The Person

P
age 116



All Storm logs ASB CRIME GENERAL

PUBLIC 
SAFETY/WELFA
RE TRANSPORT Sum:

Clifton Down BN196 206 644 300 765 171 2086

Sum: 206 644 300 765 171 2086

Of which Licensed Premises ASB CRIME GENERAL

PUBLIC 
SAFETY/WELFA
RE TRANSPORT Sum: ASB All

Clifton Down BN196 22 46 19 23 2 112

Sum: 22 46 19 23 2 112 10.7% 5.4%

Clifton Down

BN196 Sum:

66 66

56 56

6 6

2 2

4 4

68 68

8 8

16 16

264 264

121 121

142 142

753 753

Clifton Down

BN196 Sum:

1 1

6 6

9 9

1 1

1 1

22 22

10 10

50 50 6.6%

Robbery

Sexual Offences

Theft

Arson and Criminal Damage

Burglary

Drug Offences

Miscellaneous Crimes Against Society

Theft

Violence Against The Person

Sum:

All Crime

Arson and Criminal Damage

Burglary

Public Order Offences

Robbery

Sexual Offences

Vehicle Offences

Violence Against The Person

Sum:

Crime at Licensed Locations

Possession of Weapons

Public Order Offences

P
age 117



All Storm logs ASB CRIME GENERAL

PUBLIC 
SAFETY/WELFA
RE TRANSPORT Not recorded Sum:

Clifton BN195 203 738 372 1183 164 2 2662

Sum: 203 738 372 1183 164 2 2662

Of which Licensed Premises ASB CRIME GENERAL

PUBLIC 
SAFETY/WELFA
RE TRANSPORT Sum: ASB All

Clifton BN195 15 48 6 24 5 98

Sum: 15 48 6 24 5 98 7.4% 3.7%

Clifton

BN195 Sum:

79 79

72 72

13 13

6 6

2 2

69 69

6 6

17 17

175 175

227 227

162 162

828 828

Clifton

BN195 Sum:

7 7

6 6

5 5

10 10

28 28 3.4%Sum:

Vehicle Offences

Violence Against The Person

Sum:

Crime at Licensed Locations

All Crime

Burglary

Public Order Offences

Theft

Violence Against The Person

Possession of Weapons

Public Order Offences

Robbery

Sexual Offences

Theft

Arson and Criminal Damage

Burglary

Drug Offences

Miscellaneous Crimes Against SocietyP
age 118



All Storm logs ASB CRIME GENERAL

PUBLIC 
SAFETY/WELFA
RE TRANSPORT Not recorded Sum:

Bedminster BS104 244 970 504 1199 339 1 3257

Southville BS142 595 1886 823 1841 387 1 5533

Sum: 839 2856 1327 3040 726 2 8790

Of which Licensed Premises ASB CRIME GENERAL

PUBLIC 
SAFETY/WELFA
RE TRANSPORT Sum: ASB All

Bedminster BS104 14 59 42 20 6 141

Southville BS142 98 319 44 73 13 547

Sum: 112 378 86 93 19 688 13.3% 7.8%

Bedminster Southville

BS104 BS142 Sum:

122 196 318

99 109 208

14 21 35

12 15 27

3 17 20

166 352 518

20 43 63

16 47 63

228 684 912

160 186 346

319 554 873

1159 2224 3383

Bedminster Southville

BS104 BS142 Sum:

2 10 12

3 9 12

1 2 3

13 48 61

3 3

1 1 2

17 164 181

3 8 11

All Crime

Arson and Criminal Damage

Burglary

Drug Offences

Miscellaneous Crimes Against Society

Possession of Weapons

Public Order Offences

Robbery

Sexual Offences

Theft

Vehicle Offences

Violence Against The Person

Sum:

Crime at Licensed Locations

Arson and Criminal Damage

Burglary

Possession of Weapons

Public Order Offences

Robbery

Sexual Offences

Theft

Vehicle Offences

P
age 119



17 64 81

57 309 366 10.8%Sum:

Violence Against The Person

P
age 120



Location Type Description Beat Name Beat Code

CAFE Bedminster BS104

HOTEL Bishopston BN175

LICENSED PREMISES Broadmead BN192

NIGHTCLUB Clifton BN195

OFF LICENCE Clifton Down BN196

PUBLIC HOUSE Harbourside & HotwellsBN194

RESTAURANT Montpellier & St WerburghsBE111

SOCIAL CLUB Old City DocksBN191

WINE BAR Redcliffe & TempleBN193

Redland BN174

Southville BS142

Stokes Croft & St Michael'sBN190

Page 121



Licensing Policy 

 
From:   Neil Cutler 
Sent:   12 November 2019 15:34 
To:   Licensing Policy 
Subject   POLICE STATISTICS REPORT - EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT CONTINUATION OF CUMULATIVE IMPACT AREAS IN BRISTOL 
 
 
Hello 

Below are some statistics I have generated to mainly support the City Centre CIA however there is evidence to support the Clifton and Bedminster Cia’s 

within this data. 

I have requested our Business Objects Team to prepare further Crime and ASB Statistics for the current 5 CIA’s and will forward these to you in due course 

but before Thursday deadline. 

 

Below chart shows numbers of calls over 12 month period regarding Crime and Disorder 

As you can see from the information 11 of the top 20 demand locations are within the City Centre CIA.  The statistics encompass the whole of Bristol and 

outer Bristol. 

P
age 122



 

 

 

 

IF I BREAK THIS INTO CRIME HARM TO THE COMMUNITY OVER LAST 12 MONTHS I GET THE FOLLOWING RESULTS 

13 out of 20 are in City Centre CIA 

3 are in Bedminster and 2 of these are in the Bedminster CIA.  Police would argue that ASDA Bedminster should be included within the Bedminster CIA due 

to amount of harm and as you can see from Storm  

Incidents in above graph it is the top location for calls to the Police. 

P
age 123



 

 

 

BELOW ARE THE TOP 20 ASB LOCATIONS IN BRISTOL 

 

P
age 124



 

 

BELOW ARE THE TOP 20 ASB LOCATIONS LINKED TO LICENSED PREMISES – 12 MONTHS DATA – Shown in cost to the force for ASB calls and attendance 

only. 

Again from this chart 10 of the top 20 are currently within the CIA City Centre. 

 

P
age 125



 

 

BELOW ARE 12 MONTH CRIME HARM DATA FOR PUBLIC ORDER ISSUES FOR THE WHOLE OF BRISTOL  

PARK ST SCORES HIGHER THAN ANYWHERE ELSE IN BRISTOL.  ST AUGUSTINES PARADE AND STOKES CROFT ALSO SCORE IN THE TOP 10. 

 

P
age 126



 

 

BELOW ARE THE SAME CRIME HARM STATISTICS FOR PUBLIC ORDER BUT ONLY FACTORING IN LICENSED PREMISES, PUBS, NIGHTCLUBS, RESTAURANTS 

AND TAKEAWAYS. 

ASDA BEDMINSTER TOPS THE LIST WHICH IS WHY POLICE FEEL IT SHOULD BE INCLUDED IN BEDMINSTER CIA. 

8 OF TOP 20 ARE IN CITY CENTRE CIA WITH A FEW FROM CHELTENHAM ROAD AND BEDMINSTER 

 

P
age 127



 

 

Serve 

Protect 

Respect 

 

Neil Cutler 

PC 1391 

Bristol Licensing Officer 

THE BRIDEWELL POLICE STATION 

 

 

P
age 128

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.google.co.uk_url-3Fsa-3Di-26rct-3Dj-26q-3D-26esrc-3Ds-26source-3Dimages-26cd-3D-26cad-3Drja-26uact-3D8-26ved-3D2ahUKEwi-2Dt8GdgrLaAhUCcRQKHcGqBP0QjRx6BAgAEAU-26url-3Dhttps-3A__www.police.uk_avon-2Dand-2Dsomerset_-26psig-3DAOvVaw182EcWoa8GRszmD4kZBFL-2D-26ust-3D1523529076121361&d=DwMFAg&c=1vnCWTgU_iH2bgveKnHUZ8hJXVq2EkkiN8FwZDwwznM&r=ULINFOGW7dOfu1afDpmHRGlX4JuORgm8QDnM0FczV4c&m=woQ1KANXPRKuP-plfQDDp8Qon0eaWM8ujd_JyEw6BAo&s=JQP5YL7SNF27z4Y4JywwXTU-jmlzi2jYbchhoDDg4ic&e=


Licensing Policy 

 
From:   Neil Cutler 
Sent:   12 November 2019 15:34 
To:   Licensing Policy 
Subject POLICE STATISTICS REPORT - EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT CONTINUATION OF 

CUMULATIVE IMPACT AREAS IN BRISTOL 

 
 
Hello 

 

The Data provided below (last 12 Months) highlights and reinforces Avon and Somerset 

Constabulary’s belief that the existing Cumulative Impact Areas are fundamental to our ability 

to reduce Crime and Disorder and Public Nuisance. 

 

The ability to have a Rebuttable Presumption to decline an application is paramount and still 

necessary using the figures from last 12 months. 

 

As you are well aware, the existence of a CIA does not preclude an application for a Licensed 

Premises but adds a certain amount of protection to promote public safety. 

 

In summary 

City Centre stats show 12.7% of all ASB is linked to Licensed Premises and 9.3% of all Crime is 

linked to Licensed Premises.   

Gloucester Road CIA are is 11.4% of all ASB is linked to Licensed Premises. 

Whiteladies Road Cia has 10.7% of all ASB linked to Licensed Premises. 

Clifton Cia has 7.4% of all ASB linked to Licensed Premises. 

Bedminster CIA has 13.3% of all ASB linked to Licensed Premises. 

 

These stats do NOT include incidents on the street outside Licensed Premises as these are more 

difficult to quantify.   

 

The Police recognise the need for a thriving night time economy but this has to be weighed up 

against delivering on the four licensing objectives and our promise to Serve, Protect and 

Respect. 

 

 
Serve 

Protect 

Respect 

 

Neil Cutler 
PC 1391 
Bristol Licensing Officer 

THE BRIDEWELL POLICE 

STATION 

 

 
 

Page 129

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.google.co.uk_url-3Fsa-3Di-26rct-3Dj-26q-3D-26esrc-3Ds-26source-3Dimages-26cd-3D-26cad-3Drja-26uact-3D8-26ved-3D2ahUKEwi-2Dt8GdgrLaAhUCcRQKHcGqBP0QjRx6BAgAEAU-26url-3Dhttps-3A__www.police.uk_avon-2Dand-2Dsomerset_-26psig-3DAOvVaw182EcWoa8GRszmD4kZBFL-2D-26ust-3D1523529076121361&d=DwMFAg&c=1vnCWTgU_iH2bgveKnHUZ8hJXVq2EkkiN8FwZDwwznM&r=ULINFOGW7dOfu1afDpmHRGlX4JuORgm8QDnM0FczV4c&m=jE6tZHVlrQQw652ZjsfW-ceQSI3gpApDEqznR_n1nn8&s=B6sTz1PDkkSkKpuPfIDPCw48T33yF-3EdyM6WmCnJz4&e=


 
 
 

BRISTOL  
ASB AND CRIME DATA TO SUPPORT 

CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 

CITY CENTRE CIA 

 

 

P
age 130



This presentation documents the City Centre CIA and the statistics are collated from  

2 Years of crime recording data obtained using our QlikSense Database. 
 
The term INCIDENT refers to anything that happens that results in Police action or attendance. 

The dictionary definition is an instance of something happening; an event or occurrence. 
Night Time Economy refers to the economy of licensed premises and their trading. 
 
ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR is defined as 'behaviour by a person which causes, or is likely to cause, harassment, alarm or distress to persons 
not of the same household as the person‘.  
NUISANCE ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR is when a person causes trouble, annoyance or suffering to a community 
 
The Theme of the statistics supports the 4 main Licensing Objectives which are 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety, Prevention of Public Nuisance, and Protection of Children from Harm. 
 
The data is collated using Beat Boundaries which are not aligned with the CIA boundary and as such Heat Maps  
have been used to provide a better visual correlation of Crime and Disorder and Nuisance demands upon the Police. 
 
Avon and Somerset Police are advocating and have evidenced a clear need for a continuation of the City Centre CIA based on this report. 
Avon and Somerset Police will propose a new boundary area for the CIA as the data shows there is no longer a need to include  
The Broadmead/Horsefair area. 
 
The current CIA map is included regularly through the report as a comparison tool for the Distribution and Heat Maps provided. 
 
Data collated for the other CIA’s of Clifton Village, Gloucester Road, Whiteladies Road, and Southville suggest that they are no longer 
a necessary requirement.  Indeed Operation Brio does not dedicate any resources to these other CIA’s.  Therefore this document makes 
no reference to any data from these other CIA’s 

 

P
age 131



P
age 132



Officer Hours at Scene. 
 
This bar chart shows where Police 
officers have spent most of their 
time dealing with incidents as part 
of calls to Licensed Premises and 
dealing with the Night time 
economy. 
This is data from the last 2 years. 
It is not a chart for volume of 
incidents at each location but more 
how long it has taken to deal with 
incidents. 
 
Park Street followed by Pryzm and 
O2 Academy are the highest.  
There are also 3 other pubs on 
Park Street on the chart. 
Park Street is known to have 
venues open until past 4am at 
weekends. 
 
All 30 locations are within the 
current Cumulative Impact 
Assessment area for the City 
Centre. 

P
age 133



This chart and the following Bar Chart 
shows the Top 20 City Centre locations for 
all Police Demand. 
 
Total incidents recorded over 2 years in this 
area is 44,709. 
The Top 20 circles shown here account for 
8,823 of the total.  They are the highest 
Police Demand locations for Central Bristol. 
 
The Red Circle depicts Stokes Croft and 
some of the St Pauls area. 
The dark Orange circle is Park Street area. 
Broadmead is in Orange. 
Light Blue larger circles are BRI Hospital, St 
Augustines Parade/ Broadquay. 
There is another cluster around Castle Park 
and the Broadmead. 
 
Every incident on this map is within the 
current City Centre Cumulative Impact 
Assessment.  

Stokes Croft 

Park Street 

B.R.I. 

P
age 134



Total Incidents 8,823 at our Top 20 locations in City Centre. This needed 11,617 Officer Hours at a cost of £313,658. 
The graph shows Police spent most time around Stokes Croft then Parks Street, then Broadmead and so on.  The bar  
chart shows where police spend most of their resources and time answering calls for service. 
ALL of these locations are within the current Cumulative Impact Area.   

P
age 135



STOKES CROFT – 958 Incidents 

 
The Bar charts show a reasonable spread and 
incidents occur at all times of the day.  Peaks are 
noticeable at 11am to Midday, 6pm and 10pm to 
2am. 
Saturday and Sunday are the busiest times for 
issues.   
Alcohol is readily available from Off Licences and 
Pubs at all times of the day.  It is one of the areas 
of the City Centre that is always busy and we 
advocate Stokes Croft remaining within the CIA for 
the City Centre. 

P
age 136



STOKES CROFT 
 
This bar chart shows a breakdown of 
the Crime stats from the Pie chart on 
the previous slide 
 
Assaults and Public Order crimes 
account for 157 of the total 333 
recorded crimes and these do mainly 
occur late evening to early morning. 
Main peaks are from 2200 to 0400 
hours which coincide with the busy 
night time economy on Stokes Croft. 
 
Other crime types of the total 333 are 
39 Robberies 
12 Criminal Damages 
7 Sexual Assaults 
 
 
The retention of this area into the CIA 
is requested. 

 

P
age 137



PARK STREET – 778 Incidents 

 
The bar charts show a very clear peak of calls 
for service between midnight and 4am. 
In terms of days of the week then Saturday and 
Sunday are far more busy than the rest of the 
week. 
 
Police attribute these spikes in demand to the 
night time economy with the amount of people 
in the city centre consuming alcohol. 
 

P
age 138



PARK STREET 
 
Bar Chart shows Assault and Public 
Order crimes on Park Street. 
 
Assaults and Public Order incidents 
account for 182 out of 321 Crime 
reports. 
Early hours of Sunday morning are 
the peak time.  Friday into Saturday 
morning also very busy.  This is 
consistent with bars staying open 
later on Park street and its proximity 
to city centre on busy weekends. 
 
Other crimes recorded: 
13 Robberies 
12 Criminal Damage 
8 Sexual Offences 

P
age 139



BROADMEAD – 629 Incidents 

 
This is the 3rd busiest area of City Centre.  Being the main 
retail area for the city the bar chart reflects an expected 
curve peaking between 1pm and 4pm and then declining 
into the evening.   In terms of days of the week there are 
no real peaks. 
A breakdown of crime does show assaults and public 
order issues but again these are mainly during the 
daytime hours. 
It is for this reason that Police no longer require 
Broadmead to be included in the CIA. 

The HORSEFAIR (4th on Demand list)shows a similar 

distribution so Police are not including any charts for this 
area and it does not merit inclusion into the CIA. 

P
age 140



BALDWIN STREET – 489 Incidents 

 
Peak for service to this location is from 11pm 
to 3am.  Peak days are Friday to Sunday. 
Police attribute these spikes in demand to 
the night time economy with the amount of 
people in the city centre consuming alcohol. 
There are many pubs open until the early 
hours plus Popworld Nightclub. 
 
83 of the total 142 Crime reports are for 
Assaults and Public Order incidents. 

P
age 141



BALDWIN STREET 
 
Assault and Public Order 
incidents account for 83 out of 
142 Crimes. 
 
Weekly analysis shows peaks 
from 11pm to 3am with busier 
days being Thursday, Saturday 
and Sunday. 
 
Other crime statistics from the 
total 142 include 
11 Robberies 
10 Criminal Damage 
5 Sexual offences. 
 

P
age 142



St Augustine's Parade and  
Broad Quay – 845 Incidents. 

 
The statistics for these areas are combined as they 
are immediately adjacent to each other in the city 
centre. 
 
Peak times are 11pm to 4am and peak days are 
Saturday and Sunday early hours. 
 
These Statistics are consistent with a busy night time 
economy on the city centre.  This is the spill out area 
where most people tend to disperse through 
following a night out and there are numerous 
licensed fast food outlets in this area open into the 
early hours.  

P
age 143



ST AUGUSTINE’S 
PARADE AND BROAD 
QUAY 
 
Assaults and Public Order 
incidents account for 185 out 
of 316 Crimes reports. 
 
The peak times are from 
Midnight to 4 am.   
Peak days are Saturday and 
Sunday. 
 
Other crimes recorded from 
the 316 total are; 
 
18 Robberies 
10 Criminal Damage 
4 Sexual Offences 
1 Grievous Bodily Harm 
assault. 

P
age 144



Not all incidents can be mapped to a location such as the streets listed previously. 
 
 
The following slides show distribution patterns and heat maps for the city centre. 
Statistics are included and the slides have been broken down into; 
 

Alcohol related incidents 
ASB Nuisance 

Assaults 
Public Order 

 
These are further split into incidents that have occurred during night time 

economy from 2000 – 0600hrs 
 

There are then further slides that are specific to calls to individual Licensed 
Premises and these are evaluated further to include Concern for Safety calls and 

Sexual Assaults. 
 

P
age 145



CURRENT CIA MAP FOR 
CITY CENTRE 
 
 
You can scroll up and down 
through slides to see  
overlap of crime data. 

P
age 146



Two Years of Crime Data 
May 2018 to May 2020 
 

Alcohol related 
incidents. 
 
Over 2095 out of a total 
of 44,709 incidents have 
been tagged as having 
Alcohol as a qualifier or 
factor that in some way 
influenced the situation. 
 
Please bear in mind 
Under reporting of  
Alcohol incidents. 
 
Use Mouse Scroll Wheel (Up 
and Down) to visualise crime 
data correlation with the 
existing City Centre CIA. 

P
age 147



Alcohol related  
incidents. 
 
Peak Times are Early Hours. 
 
For all our calls there is a clear 
spike between 2300 and 0400 
hrs.  Over the 2 year period calls 
involving alcohol virtually 
double during the night time 
economy. 
 
Peak Days are Weekend. 
Again there is a clear rise in the 
number of alcohol related 
incidents at Weekends.  We see 
a trend of less than 200 
midweek rising to over 500 on 
Saturdays and Sundays. 

P
age 148



CURRENT CIA MAP FOR 
CITY CENTRE 

P
age 149



Of the total of 44,709 incidents 
6585 were ASB Nuisance. 
 
1529 of these are in the Top 20 
demand areas and are shown on the 
adjacent map. 
 
This map shows all incidents of ASB 
Nuisance over a 24 hours period for 
the past 2 years. 
 
The reason we are showing this is to 
clearly illustrate how our demand 
location changes when you factor in 
the night time economy. 

ASB Nuisance in City Centre 

P
age 150



2 Yr. ASB Nuisance Map 2000-0600hrs. 
 
This map depicts the concentration of 
ASB Nuisance. 
It shows 2681 incidents of the total 
6585.  
These incidents occurred between the 
hours of 2000 and 0600 so it more 
reflects Police demand during the night 
time economy. 
From the map you can see the hotspot 
areas have drifted and you can clearly 
see Stokes Croft, Baldwin Street, 
Welshback, St Augustines Parade, Park 
Street and The Triangle.  All these areas 
are within the current City Centre CIA.  
All these areas have a concentration of 
Licensed Premises. 
The dots do not represent each incident 
as some locations would have more 
than one call to the venue or street. 

P
age 151



2 Yr. ASB Nuisance Top 20 Locations 2000-0600hrs 

657 out of 2681 occurred at our Top 20 locations shown on Bar Chart above.  Park Street again comes out top 
followed by Pryzm.  Baldwin Street, St Augustine's, Broad Quay, the O2 Academy are all in the Top 10.  

P
age 152



The above graph shows the 2681 ASB incidents between the hours of 2000 – 0600 broken down into each day of the week. 
It highlights the fact that ASB Nuisance calls to Police are more prevalent over the weekend when our Night  
Time economy is at is busiest.  Police officer hours at the scene total 1,518 over the 2 years.   
This is why we have Operation Brio as our response to keeping Bristol safe at Weekends. 

P
age 153



CURRENT CIA MAP FOR 
CITY CENTRE 

P
age 154



2 Yr. ASSAULTS 2000 – 0600hrs 

There were 1906 Assault reports over 
a 2 year period between 8pm and  
6am. 
1305 of these occurred Friday – Sunday. 
The estimated Crime Cost of these 1906 
Assaults is £1,541,201. 
Police hours spent dealing with these 
Assaults total 5,779. 
Stokes Croft is clearly visible, as are  
Pryzm and SWX nightclubs.  Baldwin 
Street, Corn Street and St Augustines 
Parade area account for the largest Hot 
Spot.   
The Triangle and Park Street are also  
Identifiable on the map. 

P
age 155



770 of the 1906 Incidents of Assault occurred at our Top 20 Locations.  535 of these occurred Friday – Sunday. 
Park Street accounts for the most assaults.  Police hours dealing with these 770 incidents total 2,255. 
Pryzm, SWX Nightclub, O2 Academy and mBargo are all in the top 10.  7 of the top 20 are Licensed Premises. 

2 Yr. ASSAULTS 2000 – 0600HRS – Top 20 Locations  

P
age 156



Assaults involving Alcohol Heat Map. 
 
Of the 1906 Assaults attended 343 
were listed as involving Alcohol. 
Again some of the dots cover more 
than one incident in the adjacent 
map. 
 
The amount of alcohol related 
assaults is under reported as it 
requires individual officers to select 
a crime qualifier and this is often 
forgotten. 
It does however still show the 
dispersal pattern of assaults as 
matching known key areas that are 
policed during Operation Brio. 
 
Again Baldwin Street onto the 
Centre, the Waterfront, The Triangle, 
Frogmore Street area, and Park 
Street are hotspots. 

P
age 157



CURRENT CIA MAP FOR 
CITY CENTRE 

P
age 158



2 Yr. PUBLIC ORDER 2000 – 0600HRS 
 
1142 Public Order incidents on 
adjacent map. 
Please note concentrations around 
Stokes Croft, St Augustine's Parade, 
Corn St/Baldwin Street, Park Street and 
The Triangle. 
 
2647 Officer hours. 
£198,029 is the estimated Crime Cost. 
 
  

P
age 159



363 incidents were at the Top 20 Demand locations.  Again Park Street comes out on top with 48 incidents.  
Baldwin Street is 2nd and Stokes Croft is 3rd.  273 of the 363 Public Order incidents occurred Friday to 
Sunday.  976 Officer Hours used. 

2 Yr. Public Order Top 20 Locations 2000 - 0600 

P
age 160



CURRENT CIA MAP FOR 
CITY CENTRE 

P
age 161



2 Yr. Public Order 2000 – 0600  
With Alcohol qualifier added. 
 
This map is very telling. 
Again low recording amount with 
Alcohol.  230 out of 1142 incidents but 
the spread is clearly around St 
Augustine's Parade, Broad Quay, Corn 
Street, Baldwin Street, Park Street and 
The Triangle.  There is also a spike 
around Stokes Croft.  
 
This also illustrates after adding the 
Alcohol Qualifier to the data 
parameters we have the same result 
where the high demand locations are 
concentrated with in the current CIA. 

P
age 162



Data for ALL incident in last 2 years involving a Licensed Premises in City Centre and Broadmead. 
3617 Calls to Police.  This figure does not include officers coming across issues when on patrol. 
 

Peak Times are between 2200 to 0300 hrs. Peak Days are Saturday and Sunday 

2 Yr. Data for ALL Incidents recorded against LICENSED PREMISES in City Centre/Broadmead 

P
age 163



2 YR ALL INCIDENTS AT LICENSED PREMISES – TOP 20 LOCATIONS 

1800 Incidents of the 3617 were at Top 20 Demand Locations above.  Top 3 are main Nightclubs all within the current CIA. 
Every Single venue listed in the Top 20 is WITHIN the current CIA boundary.  

P
age 164



Splitting ALL incidents at LICENSED PREMISES across a 2 year timeline shows a similar trend and the only drop off from  
March 2020 coincides with the Coronavirus Lockdown.  This illustrates that incidents within City Centre have not  
declined and the CIA is necessary and needs to be sustained. 

P
age 165



2 Yr. Alcohol Qualifier Data for  
Licensed Premises in City Centre and 
Broadmead 
 
 
600 of the 3617 incidents have been  
Linked to Alcohol. 
 
A map of this data shows a 
concentration around Baldwin Street, 
Queen Charlotte Street, Corn Street, 
Broad Quay, St Augustine's Parade, Park 
Street, The Triangle and the Waterfront. 
 
All of the red and yellow heat areas are 
within the existing CIA. 

P
age 166



CURRENT CIA MAP FOR 
CITY CENTRE 

P
age 167



2 Yr. Concern For Safety at  
Licensed Premises Map 
 
This heat map logs all calls for 
Public Safety that are linked with a 
Licensed Premises. 
 
There were 235 calls requiring 
553 Police Officer hours. 
The distribution again matches the 
current CIA with hot spots at 
Baldwin Street, Welshback, St 
Augustine's Parade and Broad 
Quay.  Park Street and The Triangle.  
All these streets are noted for 
having a higher than normal 
percentage of licensed premises. 
 
See next slide for breakdown. 

P
age 168



Peak Time for Concern for Safety 
calls at Licensed Premises is 2300 
to 0200.  There is a definite trend 
into the early hours.  Lots of 
licensed premises are open during 
the day and early evening but calls 
of this type are typical in the early 
hours when members of the public 
are more intoxicated. 
 
 
The calls are also more prevalent 
during the weekend when a larger 
proportion of the public are out 
enjoying the night time economy 
in the City Centre. 
The early hours of Saturday and 
Sunday morning are our peak time 
with over 50 recorded each of 
these days over the 2 year sample. 

P
age 169



Concern for Safety at Licensed Premises – Top 20 locations – 2yr Data. 
 

Top location is Thekla and this is due to it being a licensed premises on the water.  The top 2 Bristol 
nightclubs are in 2nd and 3rd place due to amount of people inside these venues.  
ALL of the Top 20 locations are within the CIA area for City Centre. 
  

P
age 170



Sexual Assaults linked to 
Licensed Premises 

 
Over 2 years there have been 91 
reports of Rape or Sexual Assault at 
Licensed Premises in Bristol City 
Centre. 
Officer hours dealing with these at the 
scene have totalled 258.  This does 
not include subsequent investigation 
hours. 
 
Sexual assaults are massively under 
reported.  We have established this 
during Operation Balsa which is a 
weekend operation run twice a month 
by the neighbourhood policing team.   

One of the strands of the operation is Sexual Assault prevention.  Officers 
conduct high visibility patrol between 1900 and 2300 and survey 
members of the public.  Most have stated they have been sexually 
assaulted in the past in a pub or nightclub venue but they did not think it 
was worth reporting at the time. 

P
age 171



Top 20 Location for Sexual Assault/Rape in Licensed Premises. 
 
This list accounts for 71 of the total 91 reports.  ALL venues are within the proposed CIA for the City Centre. 
The 3 biggest nightclubs in central Bristol are all in the top 5 for sexual assaults. 

P
age 172



Peak Times and Days for  
Sexual Assault/Rape 
reports. 
 
Peak times at Licensed Premises 
are between 2200 and 0300 
hours. 
 
All the venues listed open into 
the early hours and victims are 
more vulnerable when they are 
intoxicated.  
 
 
 
Peak Days are again the 
Weekend.  Figures jump from 
under 10 reports Monday to 
Thursday to 20 on Friday and 36 
on Saturday.  This coincides with 
more people being out in clubs 
and pubs over the weekend 
period. 

P
age 173



MAP OF PROPOSED CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT FOR BRISTOL CITY CENTRE 

The new City Centre CIA 
would map out very similarly 
to the previous one. 
 
Broadmead can be removed 
(Red hashed area) from the 
CIA as there is insufficient 
evidence to show that the 
area is at saturation for 
Licensed premises and 
associated crime and disorder 
and ASB/Safety issues. 
 
Avon and Somerset advocate 
a thriving night time economy 
and would support growth in 
Broadmead but would not 
want Nightclubs or premises 
opening past midnight here. 

P
age 174



Avon and Somerset Constabulary Business Objects team has produced the following statistics as an Appendix to this 
report.  Information and data will not correlate with previous figures.  Figures provided in the report are produced 
from the Data System QlikSense which has tight parameters to obtain information from.  The data provided by the 
Business Objects Team is wider searching and includes slightly different areas for search and can focus in to Key word 
searches too. 
The information is calculated on a Police Beat Area basis.  The City Centre CIA is made up of 4 of these Beat Areas.  
BN190, BN191, BN192, BN194.   
BN193 is Redcliffe &Temple.  You will see from the following pages that statistics for this beat are well below the 
other Beats. 

BN190 Stokes Croft & St Michael's 4215 468 163 

BN191 Old City Docks 7689 1990 378 

BN192 Broadmead 5057 509 125 

BN193 Redcliffe & Temple 2746 286 76 

BN194 Harbourside & Hotwells 4830 2215 346  
The chart is broken down into Total number of incidents in last 12 months, how many are linked with Licensed 
Premises and how many had an Alcohol Qualifier attached to the log.  The data is from our Webstorm application 
which details calls into Police from the public.  
 
NB: Qualifiers are designed to add value to closing codes by capturing key aspects and characteristics of an incident.  When a 
call to the police is closed or finalised the officer of member of staff can choose from a nationally recognised list of Qualifiers 
which add some clarity about the incident. In some instances qualifiers may influence the overall response to an incident and 
improve the production of actionable intelligence. 

P
age 175



Beat Areas 
BN190 – Stokes Croft  & St Michaels. 
BN191 – Old City Docks. 
BN192 – Broadmead. 
BN194 – Harbourside & Hotwells. 
 
All have part of the CIA inside. 

BN193 does not 
Include any of the 
CIA. 

P
age 176



This data shows different crime types and the information is related to the Night Time Economy. 

BN190 Stokes Croft & St Michael's 30 

BN191 Old City Docks 65 

BN192 Broadmead 30 

BN193 Redcliffe & Temple 27 

BN194 Harbourside & Hotwells 30 

CRIMINAL DAMAGE 

BN190 Stokes Croft & St Michael's 6 

BN191 Old City Docks 15 

BN192 Broadmead 4 

BN193 Redcliffe & Temple 7 

BN194 Harbourside & Hotwells 11 

SEXUAL ASSAULT 

BN190 Stokes Croft & St Michael's 272 

BN191 Old City Docks 533 

BN192 Broadmead 249 

BN193 Redcliffe & Temple 89 

BN194 Harbourside & Hotwells 475 

PUBLIC ORDER AND ASSAULT 

BN190 Stokes Croft & St Michael's 148 

BN191 Old City Docks 492 

BN192 Broadmead 144 

BN193 Redcliffe & Temple 89 

BN194 Harbourside & Hotwells 304 

ASB NUISANCE 

P
age 177



Ward Crime Disposals Crime with Alcohol 

Central 13488 602 

Hotwells & Harbourside 3461 329 

Sum: 16949 931 

Data has also been provided on a Bristol Ward Map basis using Central Ward and Hotwells and Harbourside Wards  

as these two cover the City Centre CIA. 
This is 2 years of data from Crime Reports rather than calls to the Police. 

Date Received (Day) Crime with Alcohol 

Monday    71 

Tuesday   70 

Wednesday 90 

Thursday  70 

Friday    109 

Saturday  241 

Sunday    280 

Sum: 931 

This shows a total amount of all crimes over 2 years in City 
Centre as 16949 and 931 of these were linked to Alcohol.   

The crimes 
linked to 
Alcohol can 
be further 
broken down 
into week 
days 
showing 
weekends as 
more 
prolific. 

P
age 178



Ward Incidents 

Central 5561 

Hotwells & Harbourside 1282 

Sum: 6843 

    

Ward NTE 

Central 1965 

Hotwells & Harbourside 708 

Sum: 2673 

    

Ward ASB N - Alcohl related 

Central 249 

Hotwells & Harbourside 139 

Sum: 388 

This Business Objects chart shows total ASB 
Nuisance over 2 years for Central and Hotwells & 
Harbourside wards to be 6843. 
 
 
 
 
 
2673 of these are related to the Night Time 
Economy. 
 
 
 
 
 
388 were related to Alcohol.  

ASB NUISANCE – 2 YEARS DATA 

P
age 179



Ward Incidents 

Central 2132 

Hotwells & Harbourside 487 

Sum: 2619 

    

Ward NTE 

Central 832 

Hotwells & Harbourside 313 

Sum: 1145 

PUBLIC ORDER – 2 YEARS DATA 

This Business Objects Chart shows total 
Public Order incidents over 2 years for 
Central and Hotwells & Harbourside Wards 
to be 2619. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1145 of these occurred during the Night 
Time Economy. 

P
age 180



Ward Incidents 

Central 149 

Hotwells & Harbourside 63 

Sum: 212 

    

Ward NTE 

Central 57 

Hotwells & Harbourside 28 

Sum: 85 

    

Ward SA - Alcohl related 

Central 7 

Hotwells & Harbourside 3 

Sum: 10 

SEXUAL ASSAULT – 2 YEARS DATA 

This Business Objects Chart shows total 
Sexual Assault incidents over 2 years for 
Central and Hotwells & Harbourside Wards to 
be 212. 
 
 
 
 
85 of these were committed during the Night 
Time Economy. 
 
 
 
 
10 were alcohol related. 
 

P
age 181



CONCLUSION 

The CIA for the City Centre is necessary as it enables the Police and other responsible authorities to more  
effectively manage and uphold the Licensing Objectives. 
Our ability to Serve and Protect would be diminished if the CIA’s were removed. 
The data provided shows that City Centre still experiences a negative cumulative impact due to the concentration of  
Licensed premises and associated issues. 
 
Avon and Somerset Police are requesting that the CIA for the City Centre remains in place but we are happy to adjust the 
boundary to remove Broadmead (the area south of James Barton Roundabout.  We would like Union Street to be the 
Eastern border so that SWX and other pubs remain within the CIA.  Stokes Croft, leading down into Rupert Street and on 
into St Augustine's need to remain.  Frogmore Street and the pubs and clubs including OMG and O2 need to remain 
within the CIA.  Welshback, Corn Street, Queen Charlotte Street, King Street and Baldwin Street will also remain in the 
CIA.   
New areas such as Wapping Wharf have yet to have an impact on our ability to effectively police the City Centre and in  
fact increasing the areas for Licensable activity outside of the CIA may dilute some of the problems of nuisance and 
disorder. 
 
Binge Drinking is still an issue for Bristol City centre and while the Licensing Team ensure Premises License conditions 
are strictly adhered to there are still many Licensed businesses in the city centre that thrive on focusing on young people 
and providing discounted alcohol and extended hours sometimes until 0600hrs.   

P
age 182



 
Bristol has an ever increasing proportion of young people enjoying its nightlife and this includes a huge and growing 
student population that need to be able to enjoy Bristol nightlife and the CIA’s seek to ensure a balanced night time 
economy where each additional premises must prove that their operating schedule is conducive to a varied and safe 
establishment . 
 
Dispersal of the general public has become more difficult since deregulation and premises are allowed to open  
well into the early hours. 
There are still a large number of vertical drinking venues.   
Alcopops and discounted drinking offers are still prevalent in most establishments within the city centre CIA. 
 
The Police support a thriving night time economy; and Bristol to an extent depends upon it; but the ability to ensure 
new premises or variations are in line with the Licensing Objectives and offer something new, different and ADD real  
value to Bristol cannot be underestimated. 
 
Operation Brio is the Avon and Somerset Police response to policing the night time economy in Bristol. 
This is a challenging operation within the City Centre CIA and premises that are open past 2 am have impacted our  
ability to provide the correct balance of resources across the City as a whole. 
Our operation used to close down around 3am allowing officers to return to their local areas and stations thereby  
allowing officers from late shifts to go home.  However with the extended hours in the city centre officers are  
routinely dealing with incidents after 4am. 
 

P
age 183



The Police support a thriving night time economy; and Bristol to an extent depends upon it; but the ability to ensure 
new premises or variations are in line with the Licensing Objectives and offer something new, different and ADD real  
value to Bristol cannot be underestimated. 
 
As part of the CIA application it can be for specific times of the day.  Throughout the document the Police have 
highlighted the times between 2000 hours and 0600 hours as our key times, and this can be interpreted that this is 
the time which the CIA should applied for.  The document clearly evidences this however the Police request that the 
CIA is applicable for all hours.  Restricting the CIA to a time frame allows for licenced premises to apply outside of 
these hours, this will then bring more people to the city centre to potentially drink longer and then remain the in 
CIA area already under the influence of alcohol impacting negatively on recorded incidents.  There is also the risk of 
the licensee extending operating hours and breaching the CIA time frame. 
 
The Police support the retention of the current CIA’s (with an adjusted border to remove Broadmead) and evidence 
suggests that without these crime associated with Licensed Premises would dramatically increase and the logistics 
of managing these premises both for the Police and other Responsible Authorities would be compromised. 
 
 
 

P
age 184



 

Licensing Policy Consultation Responses              APPENDIX 7 
 
 

Paragraph Existing (where applicable) Proposed Change Officer Comments 

1. Introduction  1.12 Bristol is a major regional 
entertainment centre… 
 
This is accurate but presents 
Bristol as a party city which is 
great but can we have a section 
entitled ‘Health’. In this section 
we can say that:  
 
“Bristol is a socially responsible 
city that recognises the potential 
harms associated with alcohol 
misuse. The harms to health are 
widely documented including the 
part it can play in fuelling 
aggression, violence or assault. 
The rates of admission for alcohol 
specific conditions have been 
consistently higher than that for 
England for the last ten years for 
which we have data. Alcohol 
specific mortality rates for Bristol 
are higher than that for England. 
 
THE LICENCING AUTHORITY would 
like to take into account the links 
between the availability of alcohol 
and alcohol-related harm when 
considering a licence application 
(for example take into account 
the number of alcohol outlets in a 
given area and times when it is on 
sale and the potential links to 

Amendment recommended.   
 
New section added at paragraph 3.5 

P
age 185



local crime and disorder and 
alcohol-related illnesses and 
deaths). However THE LICENCING 
AUTHORITY recognises that the 
Licensing Act does not, as it 
stands, cover public health 
considerations.  
 
Public Health BCC 

1. Introduction  We need to emphasise 
responsible drinking - The 
Licensing Authority expects 
alcohol to be promoted in a 
responsible way in Bristol. This 
should incorporate relevant 
industry standards, such as the 
Portman Group Code of Practice. 
Where appropriate and 
proportionate, if its discretion is 
engaged, the Licensing Authority 
will apply conditions to ensure 
responsible drinking. The 
Licensing Authority also 
recognises the positive 
contribution to best practice that 
"Pubwatch" and other similar 
schemes can make in promoting 
to achieving the licensing 
objectives and is committed to 
working with them. 
 
Although THE LICENCING 
AUTHORITY recognises that 
management aspects are outside 
the remit of the Licensing Act we 
would hope that license 
applicants and license holders to 
consider implementing a 

No change recommended.   
 
Pub watch scheme is covered at para 3.1.4 
 
Mandatory licence conditions cover the responsible 
promotion of alcohol. 
 
 

P
age 186



responsible workplace drug and 
alcohol policy for their staff. 
 
Public Health BCC 

1. Introduction  THE LICENCING AUTHORITY would 
anticipate that applicants 
consider how their role in 
advertising of alcohol, through for 
example publicity materials, may 
impact on the licensing duties 
particularly on protection of 
children from harm. 
 
Public Health BCC 

Amendment recommended  - Para 6.6.10 updated 

1. Introduction  THE LICENCING AUTHORITY and 
partners aim to use local crime 
and related trauma data to map 
the extent of alcohol-related 
problems. If an area is 'saturated' 
with licensed premises and the 
evidence suggests that additional 
premises may affect the licensing 
objectives, adopt a 'cumulative 
impact' policy. If necessary, limit 
the number of new licensed 
premises in a given area. 
 
Public Health BCC 

Amendment recommended – Para 6.3.1 updated 

Introduction  In the introduction of the policy 
there is little/ no recognition of 
the progress that Bristol has made 
in making food a reason to visit 
and of the importance of that 
industry sector in the night time 
licensed economy. The recent 
accolades and awards that have 
been hard earned by the city and 
its businesses should be 

Amendment recommended. 
 
 

P
age 187



recognised and applauded, this is 
not least because they have 
helped to change the character 
and feel of a number of the city 
centre areas e.g. Harbourside and 
Old City (as well as Stokes Croft) 
by the granting of appropriately 
conditioned licences under the 
existing Licensing policy. 
 
The purpose and aim of the 
Licensing Policy should include: 
 
the encouragement of a wide 
diversity of licensed premises 
appealing to the needs of all those 
who live work study and spend 
leisure time in our fine city. 
 
recognition of the need for a 
strong partnership of all those 
involved in the leisure and 
entertainment sector to ensure 
that Bristol remains a safe and 
welcoming city 
 
The purpose of this policy should 
be to develop Bristol as a centre of 
leisure and entertainment 
excellence. As it stands it is ‘for 
the council’ it could easily be more 
ambitious and lay out Bristol’s 
aspirations as, for example the 
‘City of Music and Food’. That 
would lay the basis for both 
businesses and the public to 
measure the city’s (and this 
policy’s) success. 

P
age 188



 
(Keith Rundle 
Operations Director 
City Centre BID) 

2. Purpose and Scope  2.4 Under The provision of late 
night refreshment:  
(Supply of hot food or drink from 
premises from 23.00 to 5.00 
hours the following day). 
 
As this policy does include ‘late 
night refreshments’, with hot 
food served between 11pm and 
5am, it would be worth adding in 
a sentence similar to that used for 
procurement of our catering/food 
contracts, including Leisure 
Centre food offers. Essentially it’s 
saying that they must adhere to 
THE LICENCING AUTHORITY Food 
and catering policy and therefore 
have a Bristol Eating Better 
award. 
 
Public Health BCC 

Amendment recommended – change to para 2.15 to link to 
the Better Eating Award. 

2. Purpose and Scope 
 

- Add in the following statement: 
 
'In determining licensing matters, 
the licensing committee will have 
regard to other relevant local 
strategies, including any Bristol 
master plan. Applicants who are 
able to demonstrate that their 
application fits with such 
strategies are more likely to be 
considered favourably. ' 
 
Plus the addition of links to 

Amendment recommended – see later comments from BCC 
Economic Development and City Centre Development Teams. 
 
And para 14.63 s182 guidance: 
 
Integrating strategies 
14.63 It is recommended that statements of licensing policy 
should provide clear indications of how the licensing authority 
will secure the proper integration of its licensing policy with 
local crime prevention, planning, transport, tourism, equality 
schemes, cultural strategies and any other plans introduced 
for the management of town centres and the night-time 
economy. Many of these strategies are not directly related to 

P
age 189



relevant Council strategies online 
i.e. Bristol master plan  
 
(TLT) 

the promotion of the licensing objectives, but, indirectly, 
impact upon them. Co-ordination and integration of such 
policies, strategies and initiatives are therefore important. 

2. Purpose and Scope  We feel that this policy would 
benefit from a more details 
relating to Integrating other 
guidance, policies, objectives and 
strategies into licensing decisions. 
 
Links to specific strategies, will 
also assist new potential 
businesses to understand and 
factor in the likely costs of entry 
into the city. 
 
(Punch Taverns) 

Amendment recommended – as above. 

2. Purpose and Scope 2.6 The Act requires the 
Council to actively seek the 
views of the following persons 
upon the proposals contained 
in this policy: 
*The chief officer of police; 
*The Fire and Rescue Authority; 
*The Director of Public Health 
each Local Health Board  
*such persons as the licensing 
authority considers to be 
representative of holders of 
premises licences, club 
premises certificates and 
personal licences issued by that 
authority; 
*such other persons as the 
licensing authority considers to 
be representative of businesses 
and residents in Bristol. 

I would like clarity or a definition 
of what constitutes an attempt to 
“actively seek the views” of the 
above parties. Refer back to my 
comments on section 1.14 and it 
seems like the lack of definition 
here allows too much leeway for a 
minimal effort. 
 
(1.14 Consultation is a 
requirement of the licensing policy 
and yet minimum effort was made 
to ensure stakeholders were 
aware of the consultation. 
Notifications were sent out to out-
of-date addresses and when the 
letters were returned no action 
was taken to ensure the licence 
holder was properly notified.) 
 
(Ralph Mizen – Townhouse RSL 

S5 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires the Council to consult 
with: 
 

(a) the chief officer of police for the licensing authority’s 
area, 

(b) the [F5fire and rescue authority] for that area, 
(ba) each  Local Health Board for an area any part of which is 
in the licensing authority's area,] 
 (bb) each local authority in England whose public health 
functions within the meaning of the National Health Service 
Act 2006 are exercisable in respect of an area any part of 
which is in the licensing authority's area,] 

(c) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be 
representative of holders of premises licences issued 
by that authority, 

(d) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be 
representative of holders of club premises certificates 
issued by that authority, 

(e) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be 
representative of holders of personal licences issued by 
that authority, and 

P
age 190



Ltd) (f) such other persons as the licensing authority considers 
to be representative of businesses and residents in its 
area. 

 
The Council is not required, for example, to consult with all 
premises licence holders.  Para 2.8 of the Statement of 
Licensing Policy states: 
 
The Council is able to go beyond the minimum statutory 
requirements.  It has actively sought the views of all 
stakeholders on its proposals and not just those persons who 
are representative of them. 
 
Letters were sent to all premises licence holders.  Letters were 
sent to the premises licence holders address, as specified on 
their premises licence.  Section 33 of the Licensing Act 2003 
states:  
 
33 Notification of change of name or address 
 

(1) The holder of a premises licence must, as soon as is 
reasonably practicable, notify the relevant licensing 
authority of any change in— 

 
(a) his name or address, 

 
A person guilty of an offence under this section is guilty on 
summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the 
standard scale. 
 
A number of letters were returned to the licensing authority.  
Where this happened a further letter was sent to the licensed 
premises address.  The consultation was extended by two 
weeks to allow licence holders who did not receive the 
original letter additional time to respond. 

2. Purpose and Scope  1.14 Consultation is a requirement 
of the licensing policy and yet 
minimum effort was made to 

As above 

P
age 191



ensure stakeholders were aware 
of the consultation. Notifications 
were sent out to out-of-date 
addresses and when the letters 
were returned no action was 
taken to ensure the licence holder 
was properly notified. 
 
(Will Price) 

2. Purpose and Scope  1.14 Consultation is a requirement 
of the licensing policy and yet 
minimum effort was made to 
ensure stakeholders were aware 
of the consultation. Notifications 
were sent out to out-of-date 
addresses and when the letters 
were returned no action was 
taken to ensure the licence holder 
was properly notified. 
 
(Thomas Smith) 

As above 

2. Purpose and Scope  I would like clarity or a definition 
of what constitutes an attempt to 
“actively seek the views” of the 
above parties. 
 
(Will Price) 

As above 

2. Purpose and Scope  I would like clarity or a definition 
of what constitutes an attempt to 
“actively seek the views” of the 
above parties. 
 
(Thomas Smith) 

As above 

2. Purpose and Scope  The need for more openness and 
transparency in the licensing 
system: 
 
On the face of it that seems a 

The licensing authority is investing in a new piece of software 
that will enable the full details of all issued licences to be 
publicly available on the Council’s website.  At present 
members of the public can request any relevant information 
from the Licensing Team.  A public register can also be 

P
age 192



good democratic check, but in 
Bristol and maybe nationally, this 
is not how it works out.  
-For residents to be able to 
challenge a license they need to 
know that one exists and then 
what it is. None of this is available 
in an easily accessible manner. It 
is difficult for us councillors to find 
out often.  
 
-Secondly when one gets to a 
review hearing, the public and 
their elected representatives face 
a biased process. The license 
holder (often with a solicitor) has 
access to all the documents: the 
representations from the 
authorities and the public. But the 
public and their councillors do not. 
This puts one side at a distinct 
disadvantage. (Although I wasn’t 
involved in the old system of 
magistrates court reviews I would 
have expected them to be like any 
other court process and that 
means both sides have access to 
the same evidence). 
 
(Councillor Clive Stevens, Clifton 
Down) 

inspected. 
 
Discussion has taken place with a BCC Senior Data Protection 
Officer;  
 
Concerns were raised regarding making personal information 
available in respect of other persons making representations.  
 
The Licensing Act and guidance is absent in respect of what 
information can be published in respect of representations 
and personal information whereas in planning law it is quite 
clear that full details of objections and objectors are made 
public. Therefore to publish information we would need a 
legitimate reason to do so and it would have to be in the 
public interest to do so. Publishing this information this could 
deter representations in the future. GDPR also relates to 
personal information and the Council would need express 
consent to publish this information which could again deter 
representations.  As such no change is recommended at this 
time. 
  
Consideration can be given to publish representations from 
Responsible Authorities which would inform the public 
regarding potential conditions and concerns. GDPR does not 
apply as personal information is not disclosed generally in 
representations. 
 
Guidance/webpages can be reviewed for residents to ensure 
that it is clear what happens with their information and will 
add that they could consider copying in their local councillors 
who can support them or if they do not want their personal 
information to be disclosed to the applicant they could 
approach a local councillor who may be willing to submit a 
representation based on their concerns.  
 
Consideration to be given as to whether redacted 
representations can be made available. 

2. Purpose and Scope  Our current Cumulative Impact An amendment to the Statement of Licensing Policy has been 

P
age 193



Area approach in the city centre is 
too restrictive by limiting 
additional licensed premises and 
is at odds with our planning 
policy, which is flexible and allows 
for a different mix of uses.  The 
Bristol Central Area Plan (adopted 
2015) states ‘The Primary 
Shopping Frontages of Bristol 
Shopping Quarter are 
characterised by their particularly 
strong and consistent retail 
character. Policies BCAP13, 
BCAP36 and this policy aim to 
maintain that retail strength. 
However, the introduction of 
some appropriately located cafés, 
restaurants, pubs and bars would 
be appropriate where they would 
help to complement the retail 
offer and visitor experience, 
support and encourage longer 
shopping trips and generate 
continued activity outside normal 
shopping hours. Planning 
conditions may be used to restrict 
subsequent change of use and to 
ensure activities and opening 
hours are appropriate to a family 
shopping area.’   
 
City Centre Development – Bristol 
City Council 

recommended to recognise the importance of its integration 
with all relevant local strategies. 
 
The proposed city centre CIA (to undergo consultation) has 
been reduced in size and would exclude the Broadmead area 
from its scope. 
 

2. Purpose and Scope  Any future CIA regime needs to 
recognise more regularly and be 
more closely aligned with the 
flexibility that already exists 
within the Council’s planning 

An amendment to the Statement of Licensing Policy has been 
recommended to recognise the importance of its integration 
with all relevant local strategies. 
 
The proposed city centre CIA (to undergo consultation) has 

P
age 194



policy regarding the city’s town 
centres as cited, for example, in 
BCS7 which states that uses 
“which contribute to maintaining 
the vitality, viability and diversity 
of centres will be encouraged” 
and, furthermore, in the Local 
Plan Review, which states that 
relevant policies “provide a very 
flexible approach to supporting 
centres whilst accommodating the 
changing face of the high street.”    
 
Economic Development – Bristol 
City Council 

been reduced in size and would exclude the Broadmead area 
from its scope 
 

2. Purpose and Scope 2.6 The Act requires the 
Council to actively seek the 
views of the following persons 
upon the proposals contained 
in this policy: 
*The chief officer of police; 
*The Fire and Rescue Authority; 
*The Director of Public Health 
each Local Health Board  
*such persons as the licensing 
authority considers to be 
representative of holders of 
premises licences, club 
premises certificates and 
personal licences issued by that 
authority; 
*such other persons as the 
licensing authority considers to 
be representative of businesses 
and residents in Bristol. 

I would like clarity or a definition 
of what constitutes an attempt to 
“actively seek the views” of the 
above parties. Refer back to my 
comments on section 1.14 and it 
seems like the lack of definition 
here allows too much leeway for a 
minimal effort. 
 
(1.14 Consultation is a 
requirement of the licensing policy 
and yet minimum effort was made 
to ensure stakeholders were 
aware of the consultation. 
Notifications were sent out to out-
of-date addresses and when the 
letters were returned no action 
was taken to ensure the licence 
holder was properly notified.) 
 
(BARBIE - Bristol Association of 
Restaurants, Bars & Independent 
Establishments) 

S5 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires the Council to consult 
with: 
 
(a) the chief officer of police for the licensing authority’s 
area, 
(b) the [F5fire and rescue authority] for that area, 
(ba) each  Local Health Board for an area any part of which is 
in the licensing authority's area,] 
 (bb) each local authority in England whose public health 
functions within the meaning of the National Health Service 
Act 2006 are exercisable in respect of an area any part of 
which is in the licensing authority's area,] 
(c) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be 
representative of holders of premises licences issued by that 
authority, 
(d) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be 
representative of holders of club premises certificates issued 
by that authority, 
(e) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be 
representative of holders of personal licences issued by that 
authority, and 
(f) such other persons as the licensing authority considers 
to be representative of businesses and residents in its area. 

P
age 195



  
The Council is not required, for example, to consult with all 
premises licence holders.  Para 2.8 of the Statement of 
Licensing Policy states: 
 
The Council is able to go beyond the minimum statutory 
requirements.  It has actively sought the views of all 
stakeholders on its proposals and not just those persons who 
are representative of them. 
 
Letters were sent to all premises licence holders.  Letters were 
sent to the premises licence holders address, as specified on 
their premises licence.  Section 33 of the Licensing Act 2003 
states:  
 
33 Notification of change of name or address 
 

(2) The holder of a premises licence must, as soon as is 
reasonably practicable, notify the relevant licensing 
authority of any change in— 

 
(b) his name or address, 

 
A person guilty of an offence under this section is guilty on 
summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the 
standard scale. 
 
A number of letters were returned to the licensing authority.  
Where this happened a further letter was sent to the licensed 
premises address.  The consultation was extended by two 
weeks to allow licence holders who did not receive the 
original letter additional time to respond. 

Part 2: General matters 
 
On and Off-Sales 

 We propose the following 
statement is adopted: 
 
"On and off-sales are defined by 
reference to the intention of the 
seller at the time of sale. A sale 

The definition of on and off-sales is not currently included 
within the Statement of Licensing Policy.  No change is 
proposed in this regard.   
 
 
 

P
age 196



made within the licensed premises 
in an open container for 
immediate consumption at the 
premises is an onsale. This 
extends to where the person who 
has purchased the drink at the bar 
and then consumes it either in a 
pub garden or on the pavement 
immediately outside the premises. 
 
An off-sale is a sale designed for 
consumption away from the 
premises and its immediate 
environs. This will usually be in a 
sealed container such as a bottle 
or can and the seller when selling 
that drink had no intention for the 
purchaser to remain at the 
premises to consume it", 
 
(TLT) 

Part 2: General matters 
 
On and Off-Sales 

 Recently we have become aware 
that the definition of on and off-
sales has caused some confusion. 
In particular there appears to be 
confusion around whether an off-
licence is required for customers 
to take drinks outside of a 
premises, for instance onto the 
pavement, and consume their 
drinks there. 
 
We contend that such a sale is an 
on-sale… 
 
…we feel that this needs to be 
clarified in the policy. We would 
propose a statement along the 

As above 

P
age 197



following lines:- 
 
"On and off-sales are defined by 
reference to the intention of the 
seller at the time of sale. A sale in 
an open container for immediate 
consumption at the premises is an 
on-sale. This extends to where the 
person who has purchased the 
drink at the bar and then 
consumes it either in a pub garden 
or on the pavement immediately 
outside the premises. 
 
An off-sale is a sale designed for 
consumption away from the 
premises and its immediate 
environs. This will usually be in a 
sealed container such as a bottle 
or can and the seller when selling 
that drink had no intention for the 
purchaser to remain at the 
premises to consume it". 
 
(Punch Taverns) 

3.1 Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder 
 

- Request for policy to expressly set 
out expectations in terms of 
evidence from police or other 
officers when bringing a review or 
objecting to a premises licence 
and: 
 
We propose that the policy states 
that the council's expectation is 
that evidence brought by the 
police or other responsible 
authorities/ other persons relating 
to the prevention of crime and 

No change recommended.  
 
Whilst in the majority of cases evidence from responsible 
authorities with regard to the crime and disorder objective is 
likely to relate to the licensable activities being provided in the 
premises themselves it is open to a responsible authority to 
present any evidence they consider may be relevant to show 
the premises is have a negative impact on the licensing 
objectives. The licensing committee will attach relevant 
weight to such representations.  Representations must still 
relate to the impact the premises is having (or will have) on 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 

P
age 198



disorder licensing objective will 
directly relate to the licensable 
activities being provided within 
the premises themselves. 
 
(TLT) 

For example para 11.24 of the s182 Guidance states: 
 
Reviews arising in connection with crime 
 
11.24 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime 
that is not directly connected with licensable activities. For 
example, reviews may arise because of drugs problems at the 
premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of 
contraband or stolen goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual 
exploitation of children. Licensing authorities do not have the 
power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is 
a matter for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when 
determining such a review is not therefore to establish the 
guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure the 
promotion of the crime prevention objective. 

3.1 Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder 

 We have become increasingly 
concerned that licensed premises 
are sometimes being unfairly held 
to a higher standard when it 
comes to prevention of crime and 
disorder than other public 
premises. For instance, when 
Police present evidence of crime 
and disorder in relation to 
licensed premises, they will often 
include references to any crime 
that is associated not just with the 
premises in terms of its operation 
as licensed premises but 
generally. 
 
Premises licence holders will also 
often find reference to offences 
that are not relevant to the 
licensing objectives themselves.  
 
We feel it is important that the 
council recognise in their policy 

No change recommended - As above 

P
age 199



that these are matters that are 
not relevant to the prevention of 
crime and disorder licensing 
objective and that the licensing 
authority's expectation is that 
they will only be presented with 
evidence where it directly relates 
to the licensable activities being 
provided within the premises 
themselves. 
 
(Punch Taverns) 

3.1 Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder 

 3.3.4 The factors that the Council 
will particularly consider when 
determining an application or 
undertaking a review include:  
 
The point relates to littering:  
“Provision for the disposal of 
cigarette litter at entrances as 
well as where people are most 
likely to congregate”.  
 
Litter absolutely does need to be 
avoided and cigarette bins are 
great, however, having them at 
entrances means non-smokers 
have to walk through the smoke 
to access the venue, and second 
hand smoke is a health hazard. 
Can we ask venues to consider 
encouraging smoking to take 
place away from where other 
people have to access the 
building? 
 
Public Health BCC 

Amendment recommended 
 
Change to para  3.3.4 
 
“Provision for the disposal of cigarette litter at entrances as 
well as where people are most likely to congregate.  However 
licence holders are encouraged to ensure that where possible 
smoking is discouraged by the entrance to the premises to 
avoid the need for other customers to inhale second hand 
smoke.  The licensing authority recognises however that in 
some cases no other suitable location may be available.” 

3.1 Prevention of Crime and  Verification checks. The policy Amendment recommended 

P
age 200



Disorder should be specific in what is 
expected of the confiscation 
procedures of fake ID. 
 
Public Health BCC 

3.1 Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder 

 The policy should contain some 
reference to data protection of 
images and the expected time 
duration for CCTV images to be 
kept. 

No change recommended.  The pools of conditions and 
template operating schedules contain further guidance on 
CCTV. 

3.1 Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder 

 Glass bottle policy-the policy 
quotes a ‘poor history of crime & 
disorder’. Can this be extended to 
‘poor history of crime & disorder, 
or where the client disposal of 
bottles will be in areas of high 
public traffic or environmentally 
sensitive area e.g. the waterfront. 
 
Public Health BCC 

No change recommended.   
 
Issues to be considered on a case by case basis as the 
imposition of this policy would not necessarily be appropriate 
in all high traffic areas depending on the premises. 

3.1.4 “…Other appropriate measures, 
such as participation in a local 
pub watch scheme or other 
body designed to ensure 
effective liaison with the local 
community, subscription to 
dedicated security radio circuits 
and other examples of industry 
best practice.” 

You have mentioned local pub 
watch and radio links. 
 
It is important that the liason role 
is made much clearer and that 
this needs to be someone with 
responsibility for the premises. 
Perhaps expand on what this is. 
“The inclusion of radio links and 
ring-round phone systems should 
be considered an appropriate 
condition for public houses, bars 
and nightclubs operating in city 
and town centre leisure areas 
with a high density of licensed 
premises. These systems allow 
managers of licensed premises to 
communicate instantly with the 

No change recommended.  The inclusion of such a condition 
for all public houses etc. in leisure areas would be unjustified.  
Consideration must be given on a case by case basis. 

P
age 201



police and facilitate a rapid 
response to any disorder which 
may be endangering the 
customers and staff on the 
premises”. 
 
Public Health BCC 

3.1 Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder 

 3.1 Prevention of crime and 
disorder 
Criminal Activity - There is certain 
criminal activity that may arise in 
connection 
with licensed premises which the 
Licensing Authority will treat 
particularly seriously. 
These are the use of the licensed 
premises: 
• for the sale and distribution of 
drugs controlled under the Misuse 
of Drugs 
Effective 1st November 20138 
15 
Act 1971 and the laundering of 
the proceeds of drugs crime; 
• for the sale and distribution of 
illegal firearms; 
• for the evasion of copyright in 
respect of pirated or unlicensed 
films and 
music, which does considerable 
damage to the industries affected; 
• for the illegal purchase and 
consumption of alcohol by minors 
which 
impacts on the health, 
educational attainment, 
employment prospects and 
propensity for crime of young 

No change recommended.   
 
All crime and disorder can be treated as serious by the 
licensing authority depending on its impact on the promotion 
of the licensing objectives. 

P
age 202



people; 
• for prostitution or the sale of 
unlawful pornography; 
• by organised groups of 
paedophiles to groom children; 
• as the base for the organisation 
of criminal activity, particularly by 
gangs; 
• for the organisation of racist 
activity or the promotion of racist 
attacks; 
• for employing a person who is 
disqualified from that work by 
reason of 
their immigration status in the 
UK; 
• for unlawful gambling; and 
• for the sale or storage of 
smuggled tobacco and alcohol. 
 
Public Health – BCC 

3.3 Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

3.3 Prevention of Public 
Nuisance 
 
 “A person is guilty of a 
public nuisance (also known as 
common nuisance), who (a) 
does an act not warranted by 
law, or (b) omits to discharge a 
legal duty, if the effect of the 
act or omission is to endanger 
the life, health, property,……. or 
comfort of the public, or to 
obstruct the public in the 
exercise or enjoyment of rights 
common to all Her Majesty’s 
subjects.”(Archbold)…. 

Request for the policy to 
recognise the distinction between 
“nuisance” i.e. private nuisance 
and public nuisance.  
 
We propose that the policy 
reflects the need for public 
nuisance to be demonstrated and 
for conditions relating to nuisance 
to relate to public nuisance rather 
than any wider definition. In 
particular, we suggest that 
expressly stating that private 
nuisance is not a licensing 
objective would assist in all 
parties understanding what is and 
is not the remit of licensing 

Amendment recommended - the policy already addresses the 
definition of public nuisance but further clarification could be 
provided. 
 
Private nuisance is not a licensing objective.  With regard to 
applications it is public nuisance that must be demonstrated 
and any conditions imposed on licences must relate to the 
prevention of public nuisance rather than private nuisance. 

P
age 203



legislation. 
 
(TLT) 

3.3 Prevention of Public Nuisance  The prevention of public nuisance 
licensing objective is to be widely 
interpreted, as set out in the 
Statutory Guidance. However, we 
often come across conditions 
imposed on licences, as well as 
the investigation of complaints 
that do not relate to public 
nuisance. For instance, conditions 
that refer to 'nuisance', rather 
than 'public nuisance', set a 
significantly higher barrier- one 
that was not intended by the 
Licensing Legislation. We also see 
this in terms of enforcement 
action where often enforcement 
officers will allege that a nuisance, 
often a private nuisance, has 
occurred and demand action 
under the terms of the premises 
licence. 
 
Clearly this is beyond that which 
was intended by Parliament and 
therefore we suggest that your 
policy reflects the need for public 
nuisance to be demonstrated and 
for conditions relating to nuisance 
to relate to public nuisance rather 
than any wider definition. In 
particular, we suggest that 
expressly stating that private 
nuisance is not a licensing 
objective would assist in all 
parties understanding what is and 

Amendment recommended 

P
age 204



is not the remit of licensing 
legislation. 
 
(Punch Taverns) 

3.3 Prevention of Public 
Nuisance 

 Proposed additional wording for 
3.3.4  
 
“When undertaking a review for 
any premises it shall be 
considered if any changes to the 
operating schedule of the venue 
have occurred that have brought 
forwards complaints from local 
residents.  If, it is apparent, that it 
is the local neighbourhood has 
changed and it is not the 
operating schedule of the venue 
that has changed, then weighting 
of any decision should be given in 
favour of the existing venue and 
its current licence.   
  
If clear improvements can be 
suggested to the internal fabric of 
the building or systems in place 
for ingress and egress of 
customers then these should take 
precedence, however restrictions 
on existing operating times, or 
internal sound levels, should only 
be considered as a last resort as it 
is understood that such 
restrictions could have 
catastrophic effects on the 
continued existence of the venue” 
 
(Tom Paine - Team Love - Love 
Saves The Day - Love International 

Amendment recommended. 
 
However with regard to improvements to the internal fabric 
of a building as a first resort as opposed to restricting hours 
etc. the policy should recognise that it is within the gift of the 
PLH to take action in this regard before these matters are 
raised as part of a review/complaint.   

P
age 205



Glastonbury Silver Hayes and 
Wow Stage - SimpleThings - The 
Downs - The Love Inn) 

3.3 Prevention of Public 
Nuisance 
 
Outdoor Events 

 There is no guidance here for 
setting the offsite sound levels for 
outdoor events.  This is something 
that is very much needed to be 
considered and would be very 
helpful. 
 
At present it falls upon the BCC 
Council Teams to recommend 
noise levels for outdoor licensed 
events and we believe this is 
unfair weight of responsibility on 
a small group of hard working 
individuals and would benefit 
from support written into 
licensing policy. 
  
There is also confusion as to the 
clarifications from government 
Code of Practice as to 
clarifications of what should be 
classified as ‘Urban Stadia or 
Arenas’ and what should be 
classified as ‘Other Urban Venue”, 
as these are recommended 
different levels of offsite sounds. 
  
Music and Festival Culture has 
changed a lot since this COP was 
produced, with Bristol City Council 
themselves designating a lot of 
park spaces as approved ‘event’ 
spaces, which we believe in turn 
would mean that should be 
classified as ‘Urban Stadia or 

No change recommended. 
 
Comments from BCC Pollution Control: 
 
As Tom states there is currently no BCC guidance on noise 
levels for outdoor events. Also, contrary to what Tom states 
there is also no current government or national guidance re 
noise levels at outdoor events. The guidance which Tom refers 
to is from the Noise Council’s Code of Practice on Control of 
Environmental Noise at Concerts. The only official copy of the 
code was kept on the Chartered Institute of Environmental 
Health Officer’s website https://www.cieh.org/  According to 
the CIEH they did an update of their website in June 2018 
when they reviewed all of their documents. They decided to 
remove some documents from their website, including this 
code, due to age. They advised me earlier this year that 
updated guidance should be published towards the end of 
2019. In the circumstances I feel it would be appropriate to 
wait to see what any proposed national guidance is before 
considering our own. 
 
As Tom mentions noise levels the Code of Practice on Control 
of Environmental Noise at Concerts did recommend different 
levels for different types of venues 75 dBA for stadiums and 
arenas and 65 dBA for all other venues (would include parks, 
open spaces such as the Amphitheatre). In Bristol we have 
tried to take a pragmatic approach and licences for Tokyo 
World & Love Saves the Day in Eastville Park, The Downs 
Festival and some events in the Amphitheatre have maximum 
noise levels of 70 dBA. 
 
For the Downs Concert and the Amphitheatre the licence levels 
appear to work and we don’t receive significant numbers of 
complaints about these events. Dependent on weather 
conditions we can however receive significant (over 20) 

P
age 206



Arenas’.  We also look elsewhere 
to park or greenspace areas in 
other UK cities that have flexible 
offside levels.  Good examples are 
Hyde Park in London, with 75db 
offsite limits, Heaton Park in 
Manchester with 80db offsite 
limits and South Park in Oxford, 
with offsite levels of 75db. 
  
We would like to suggest that 
levels of up to 75db would be 
considered to be granted as 
offsite levels for outdoor music 
events, when taken into 
consideration the maximum times 
per year an event with such levels 
take place, we suggest a 
maximum of 6-8 days can be 
considered, as long as such levels 
finish at 23:00hrs. 
 
(Tom Paine - Team Love - Love 
Saves The Day - Love International 
Glastonbury Silver Hayes and 
Wow Stage - SimpleThings - The 
Downs - The Love Inn) 

complaints regarding Tokyo World & Love Saves the Day and 
last year we received an Ombudsman enquiry as to why we 
allowed 70 dBA at Tokyo World when following the Code of 
Practice on Control of Environmental Noise at Concerts a level 
of 65 dBA should be used. 
 
I think for the time being we should continue to judge each 
event/application on its own merits. Applicants can ask for 
whatever noise levels they want and the licensing committee 
can condition these or alternative levels on a licence. 

3.4 Protection of children from 
harm 
 

6.6.13 Examples of 
steps/conditions that the 
Council expects in such cases 
(where evidence suggests such 
conditions are appropriate for 
the promotion of the licensing 
objectives) include: 
 
• Implementation of the 
“Challenge 25” scheme 
(challenging anyone who looks 

Request for policy to recognise 
that some operators have policies 
throughout estates to adhere to 
Challenge 21 policies rather than 
Challenge 25. 
 
We propose that the policy states 
that if an applicant expresses a 
preference for a particular 
'challenge policy', be it 'Challenge 
21 or Challenge 25', this should 

Amendment recommended 

P
age 207



under 25 to prove their age by 
use of an approved means of 
identification); for this to be 
advertised and enforced on the 
premises and to be a condition 
of the authorisation 

not be objected to unless there is 
good reason, backed by evidence, 
to do so. 
 
(TLT) 

3.4 Protection of children from 
harm 

 We note that responsible 
authorities often request 
'Challenge 25' as a standard 
condition. Many premises 
(especially multiple operators) 
operate Challenge 21 policies and 
have training and signage for this. 
To change it can be expensive 
and/ or time consuming. As such, 
we would suggest that the 
licensing authority would not 
expect responsible authorities to 
suggest a change to Challenge 25 
where a premises is already 
trading with a different challenge 
policy, unless there have been 
identified risks to children at the 
specific premises. It would assist if 
the policy reflected this. 
 
(Punch Taverns) 

Amendment recommended 

3.4 Protection of children from 
harm 

 Under section 3.4 Protection of 
Children from Harm 
Please insert the following. 
Home Office Guidance also 
expects Licensing authorities to 
consider the need to protect 
children from sexual exploitation 
when undertaking licensing 
functions. 
 
Tackling Child Sexual Exploitation 

Amendment recommended. 

P
age 208



(CSE) is a key target both locally 
and 
nationally as such the Licensing 
Authority expects Licence Holders 
to: 
• Understand that there are 
criminal offences in relation to 
sexual 
• exploitation of a child 
• Ensure that they and their 
employees have a basic 
awareness of the 
• signs of CSE and how to report 
it; 
• Report any concerns to the 
appropriate authorities or to the 
Licensing 
• Authority can advise them of 
the appropriate authority to 
report 
• concerns to. 
 
Public Health BCC 

3.4 Protection of children from 
harm 

 Please insert the following.  
 
“Ensure sanctions are fully applied 
to businesses that break the law 
on under-age sales, sales to those 
who are intoxicated and proxy 
purchases. This includes fixed 
penalty and closure notices (the 
latter should be applied to 
establishments that persistently 
sell alcohol to children and young 
people” 
 
Public Health BCC 

No change recommended.   
 
The Council’s Enforcement Policy will inform the approach 
taken to enforcement. 

6.2 Flyposting and nuisance 6.2 Flyposting and (C) Flyers and flyposting: No change recommended: 

P
age 209



advertising nuisance advertising 
 
6.2.6 Where the Council 
believes the applicant’s 
operating schedule is not 
consistent with tackling 
nuisance and criminal 
advertising and where relevant 
representations have been 
made conditions to control fly 
posting, in line with this policy, 
should  usually be considered  
to be appropriate to promote 
the Licensing Objectives 

Time to get a legal ruling that 
flyers and flyposting relating to 
particular clubs can be assumed 
to be the responsibility of that 
club. Our neighbourhood is often 
littered with such material from 
Propaganda and the Blue 
Mountain Club, but we are told 
they cannot be fined for this as 
the Council cannot prove that they 
are the culprits. 
 
This is ridiculous. 
 
(Emily Wolfe and Simon Margetts 
Dr Jill White 
Dr Penny Dobson) 

 
BCC Neighbourhood Enforcement Team comments: 
 
There is a statutory defence under S.224TCPA’90 that the 
venue was not aware. As venues are hired by promoters then 
we have to write to the venue to make them aware of 
individual posters & give them 48hrs to remove the poster. 
 
 
 

6.3 Cumulative Impact  We propose that the CIA section is 
expanded to explain more about 
CIA's and the effect of them, 
including that cumulative impact 
policies need to be reviewed every 
3 years, rather than the 5 for the 
policy itself. 
 
(TLT) 

Para 6.3.6 states that a CIA must be reviewed within three 
years of publication. 
 

6.3 Cumulative Impact  It would also assist if the CIA 
section were expanded to explain 
more about CIA's and the effect of 
them, including that cumulative 
impact policies need to be 
reviewed every 3 years, rather 
than the 5 for the policy itself. 
 
(Punch Taverns) 

As above. 

6.3 Cumulative Impact  We propose that the policy refers 
to the cumulative impact areas as 
'cumulative impact zones' ('CIZs') 

Cumulative Impact Zones may be clearer if this terminology 
had previously been used.  However to make the change now 
may cause additional confusion as Bristol has used the term 

P
age 210



to avoid confusion. 
 
(TLT) 

‘Cumulative Impact Areas’ since their adoption.  The policy 
itself must now be called a Cumulative Impact Assessment 
Policy (if adopted).  It is proposed to call any area designated 
under the policy a Cumulative Impact Assessment Area. 

6.3 Cumulative Impact  It would assist to refer to the 
areas as 'zones' and therefore 
'CIZs' to avoid confusion. 
 
(Punch Taverns) 

As above. 

6.3 Cumulative Impact  We propose that the CIZ's in 
Bristol are re-evaluated in line 
with the council planning and 
other strategies to ensure that 
there is no conflict. Where 
necessary, we suggest that the 
CIZ's are amended or removed. 
We also propose that those 
remaining CIZ's are reviewed and 
amended to promote the principle 
that smaller businesses looking to 
come into the area, and 
established businesses making 
applications to improve their 
existing offer, even if they go 
against the policy, will be 
considered on their merits as a 
means of ensuring continued 
investment in the city. 
 
(TLT) 

An amendment to the Statement of Licensing Policy has been 
recommended to recognise the importance of its integration 
with all relevant local strategies.  
 
An exemption for “smaller” businesses has not been included 
in the proposed CIA for the city centre (to be consulted on).  
Applications will be treated on their merits and can overcome 
the policy if they can demonstrate they will not add to the 
cumulative impact already experienced.   
 

6.3 Cumulative Impact  Under the CIA can we consider 
including the following as this 
explains one of the reasons for a 
CIA? 
 
“It describes a specific 
geographical area where there 
are already a lot of premises 

No change recommended.   The policy already covers anti-
social behaviour as a reason for adopting a CIA at para 6.3.1.  
this incorporates alcohol related disorder. 

P
age 211



selling alcohol – and where the 
awarding of any new licences to 
sell alcohol may contribute to an 
increase in alcohol-related 
disorder”. 
 
Public Health BCC 

6.5 Licensing Hours  6.5 Licensing hours 
We will consider every case and 
make decisions accordingly but do 
we not want to include framework 
hours? 
Sunday – 06:00 hours to 22:30 
hours 
Monday to Thursday – 06:00 
hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday – 0 6:00 
hours to 00:00 hours (midnight) 
 
Public Health - BCC 

No change recommended.  see para 10.13 of the s182 
guidance which states: 
 
Hours of trading 
10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing 
strategies may be appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the 
licensing authority power to make decisions about the hours 
during which premises can conduct licensable activities as part 
of the implementation of its licensing policy statement. 
Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about 
appropriate opening hours in their areas based on their local 
knowledge and in consultation with responsible authorities. 
However, licensing authorities must always consider each 
application and must not impose predetermined licensed 
opening hours, without giving individual consideration to the 
merits of each application. 
 
A CIA policy could take this stance if sufficient evidence 
available of negative impact after a set time.  however this is 
not currently apparent. 

6.5 Licensing Hours  Applications in respect of premises 
licences and club premises 
certificates to authorise licensable 
activities outside the framework 
hours, and in respect of 
which relevant representations 
are made, Insert the following 
 
 “To support residents 
expectations that their sleep will 

No change recommended.   
 
Applications must be treated on a case by case basis. 

P
age 212



not be unduly disturbed between 
the hours of 23:00 and 07:00 
consideration will be given to 
imposing stricter conditions in 
respect of noise control and 
antisocial behaviour where 
premises are situated close to 
local residents”.  
Page 40 
 
Public Health BCC 

6.5 Licensing Hours 6.5.1 There are no fixed 
hours for trading under the 
Licensing Act. Applicants are 
required to identify the hours 
they propose to operate. 
 
Also see 6.5.4 Early Morning 
Restriction Orders (EMROs) 
 

How to ensure a balance between 
later and later licenses and sleep 
times. 
 
In summary, I am suggesting new 
principles of opening times 
presumably possible only within 
Cumulative Impact Areas 
 
One way of stopping such license 
creep (assuming there is evidence 
to support it) is for the Licensing 
Authority to set broad policies 
about closing times in each area. 
For example it could be that 
licencing principles in The Triangle 
could be with restaurants open 
latest until midnight, large bars 
open until 11.30 pm, night clubs 
until say 3am. I’m not suggesting 
these times are correct, I am 
suggesting a new principle. In 
areas where one of the problems 
is disturbance of sleep due to 
noise from people leaving the 
area often all at once then you 
might even consider giving an 

No change recommended – see para 10.13 of the s182 
guidance which states: 
 
Hours of trading 
10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing 
strategies may be appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the 
licensing authority power to make decisions about the hours 
during which premises can conduct licensable activities as part 
of the implementation of its licensing policy statement. 
Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about 
appropriate opening hours in their areas based on their local 
knowledge and in consultation with responsible authorities. 
However, licensing authorities must always consider each 
application and must not impose predetermined licensed 
opening hours, without giving individual consideration to the 
merits of each application. 
 
A CIA policy could take this stance if sufficient evidence 
available of negative impact after a set time.  however this is 
not currently apparent. 

P
age 213



advantage to smaller premises 
which turn out forty people on 
closing and cause little 
disturbance compared with a 
place with say two hundred 
places. 
 
(Councillor Clive Stevens, Clifton 
Down) 

6.5 Licensing Hours 6.5.1 There are no fixed 
hours for trading under the 
Licensing Act. Applicants are 
required to identify the hours 
they propose to operate. 
 
Also see 6.5.4 Early Morning 
Restriction Orders (EMROs) 
 

(A) Climate change: 
The Council's low-emission targets 
would be far easier to achieve 
if the people of Bristol were out 
and about in daylight hours 
and asleep at night. Current 
licensed hours encourage the 
opposite behaviour. We need to 
return to earlier closing for pubs 
and far earlier closing for 
nightclubs, especially before 
weekdays. 
 
The current student model in our 
neighbourhood of preloading 
at home, then not heading out to 
the nightclub until about 11 pm is 
bad for the environment and 
energy use (and also disastrous 
for neighbours, and probably bad 
for the students themselves). 
 
(Emily Wolfe and Simon Margetts 
Dr Jill White 
Dr Penny Dobson) 

No change recommended – see above para 10.13 of the s182 
guidance 

6.6.8  6.6.8  
Under this section can we please 
refer to the 2019 Bristol Pupil 
Voice survey which gives us access 

Amendment recommended 

P
age 214



to an understanding of the views 
and behaviours of the general 
population of school aged children 
and young people in Bristol. 
 
Of the 3268 secondary pupils who 
gave a valid response, 25% 
reported they had had an 
alcoholic drink in the last four 
weeks. This was similar across 
gender with the percentages 
rising with age to 36% for those 
from year 10 (14- 15 year olds). Of 
those secondary school pupils who 
reported drinking alcohol, 71% 
report that their parents either 
“always know” (52%) or “usually 
know” (19%).  
Overall approximate numbers 
reporting that they consumed 
alcohol during the last month are 
as follows:  
• Year 8: approximately 700 
• Year 10: approximately 1,600 
 
Public Health BCC 

6.6.13  6.6.13 Examples of 
steps/conditions that the Council 
expects in such cases (where 
evidence suggests such conditions 
are appropriate for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives) 
include: 
Can we please include the 
following bullet point? 
“We will undertake test purchases 
(using 'mystery' shoppers) to 
ensure compliance with the law 

No change recommended 

P
age 215



on under-age sales. Test 
purchases will also be used to 
identify and take action against 
premises where sales are made to 
people who are intoxicated or to 
those illegally purchasing alcohol 
for others”. 
 
Public Health BCC 

8 Licensing and planning 8.1 The Secretary of State 
has provided guidance on the 
relationship between planning 
and licensing stating that they 
are separate regimes (Para 
14.64). Where the Licensing 
Authority receives relevant 
representations that a licensing 
proposal is contrary to a 
planning consent and that to 
grant a licence for such activity 
would be likely to affect the 
licensing objectives then a 
refusal, or the attaching of 
conditions to prevent such a 
use until the position has been 
regularised may be 
appropriate. In appropriate 
situations a hearing could be 
deferred until planning consent 
has been obtained, or 
arrangements made for the 
applications to be considered 
together.  A responsible and 
prudent applicant would ensure 
that an appropriate planning 
consent was in place before 
submitting a licence application 
or choose to submit both at the 

We propose that the policy 
explicitly states that where 
conditions on planning 
permissions regulate matters 
relevant to one or more of the 
licensing objectives, such 
conditions would not be expected 
to be duplicated on premises 
licences. 
 
(TLT) 

Conditions should not be placed on premises licences that 
require the PLH to adhere to planning conditions.  See s182 
para 14.65: 
 
14.65 There are circumstances when, as a condition of 
planning permission, a terminal hour has been set for the use 
of premises for commercial purposes. Where these hours are 
different to the licensing hours, the applicant must observe the 
earlier closing time. Premises operating in breach of their 
planning permission would be liable to prosecution under 
planning law. Proper integration should be assured by 
licensing committees, where appropriate, providing regular 
reports to the planning committee. 
 
However there may be situations where conditions are 
required which may duplicate these restrictions.  For example 
a planning restriction may limit the use of the external area 
after 23:00; however a licensing committee may still consider 
it appropriate to impose an identical condition if relevant 
representations are before them.  The test under each regime 
is different, and a condition on a planning consent would not 
relieve the committee from its duty to properly consider 
representations and impose conditions where appropriate to 
promote the licensing objectives. 

P
age 216



same time. 
  
 
Whilst recognising that 
licensing and planning are 
separate regimes the Licensing 
Authority will work closely with 
planning to ensure that where 
possible the two regimes will 
align with each other. The 
‘agent of change’ principle 
which seeks to protect existing 
uses, particularly with regard to 
venues that provide regulated 
entertainment through 
permissions under the Licensing 
Act, is recognised as an 
important concept under both 
regimes. 

8 Licensing and planning  We would also urge you to clarify 
in your policy that where 
conditions are stipulated on a 
planning permission, such as 
restriction on hours or activities, 
these do not need to be repeated 
in the premises licence, unless 
there is good reason to do so 
 
(Punch Taverns) 

Amendment recommended. 

8 Licensing and Planning 8.1 …Whilst recognising that 
licensing and planning are 
separate regimes the Licensing 
Authority will work closely with 
planning to ensure that where 
possible the two regimes will 
align with each other. The 
‘agent of change’ principle 
which seeks to protect existing 

We propose that the Agent of 
Change Principle is adopted into 
the licensing policy to ensure that 
where reviews are sought by 
residents or responsible 
authorities in relation to public 
nuisance alleged to arise from a 
licensed premises, the nature of 
the premises, it's track record and 

Amendment recommended. 
 
 

P
age 217



uses, particularly with regard to 
venues that provide regulated 
entertainment through 
permissions under the Licensing 
Act, is recognised as an 
important concept under both 
regimes. 

length of time it has been 
providing the activities 
complained of will all be taken 
into account in determining the 
matter. 
 
(TLT) 

8 Licensing and Planning 8.1 …Whilst recognising that 
licensing and planning are 
separate regimes the Licensing 
Authority will work closely with 
planning to ensure that where 
possible the two regimes will 
align with each other. The 
‘agent of change’ principle 
which seeks to protect existing 
uses, particularly with regard to 
venues that provide regulated 
entertainment through 
permissions under the Licensing 
Act, is recognised as an 
important concept under both 
regimes. 

Agent of Change: 
 
Whilst we recognise that the 
principle is currently being 
debated in terms of planning, it is 
equally as important in licensing. 
We recommend that the licensing 
policy expressly recognises that 
developers of new residential 
developments need to protect 
their buyers from potential 
sources of noise disturbance, not 
expect existing licensed premises 
to have to adapt their offer to 
accommodate the new 
development. In particular, small 
pubs often rely on live or recorded 
music, provision of social events 
and other community based 
promotions, such as beer festivals, 
in order to survive and thrive. 
 
(Punch Taverns) 

See above 

8.1 …The ‘agent of change’ 
principle which seeks to protect 
existing uses, particularly with 
regard to venues that provide 
regulated entertainment 
through permissions under the 
Licensing Act, is recognised as 
an important concept under 

No real examination or regard 
made to existing live music or 
other venues - ie where these 
have existed for a long time 
without hindrance.  For example 
licenses revoked or changed 
resulting from residential 
dwellings being built near existing 

Agent of change principle is recognised in the policy at para 
8.1.  further clarification to be provided. 

P
age 218



both regimes…. venues.  'Grandfather' rights 
should be respected 

8.1  More provision should be taken to 
protect late night venues from 
new developments 

See above 

8.1  The licensing regime should 
operate in conjunction with the 
planning permission and building 
control. For example, how can the 
licensing authority guarantee that 
walls will be insulated against 
noise in new or converted  
premises?  Impact on amenity and 
residents, and transport and car 
parking, late night taxi noise, food 
smells etc should be taken into 
account more often . 

Amendment recommended. 
 
The Statement of Licensing Policy will link to other Council 
policies such as planning. 
 
The licensing committee can impose conditions on premises 
licences as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.  Only the impact on the four objectives can be 
considered as part of the licensing regime. 

Appendix C: Model Operating 
Schedules 

 If there was one recommendation 
that we would make to promote 
both efficiency for the council and 
progress for operators it would be 
to stop the practice of insisting on 
large numbers of conditions as 
standard - with reference to 
model operating schedules. 
 
(See City of London comments) 
 
(TLT) 

Amendment recommended. 

Appendix C: Model Operating 
Schedules 

 We submit that the imposition of 
large numbers of conditions on a 
premises licence is self-defeating. 
Premises licences form one part of 
a significant number of regulatory 
requirements that must be 
observed by publicans and this is 
often forgotten by regulators who 
often only think in terms of their 

Amendment recommended. 

P
age 219



one area of expertise. This means 
that they often do not see the 
wood for the trees. Policies that 
set out an expectation of long 
operating schedules or worse, 
require officers to object to 
applications unless the applicant 
applies their standard conditions, 
place an unnecessary burden on 
operators without necessarily 
helping to promote the licensing 
objectives. The City of London 
licensing authority, for instance, 
will only impose conditions if 
deemed absolutely necessary. It is 
not unusual to see licences with 
only a handful of conditions. 
 
(Punch Taverns) 

Appendix C: Model Operating 
Schedules 

 Request to remove standardised 
approach of model operating 
schedules 
 
“Model pool of conditions 
 
Whilst we understand that for 
premises that are not late night 
entertainment venues, the 
authority is looking to remove the 
presumption (if I can use that 
phrase) that a raft of standardised 
conditions are appropriate to 
attach to applications/licences of 
particular types, for late night 
entertainment venues although 
there are revisions to some of the 
detail, there seems to be a 
presumption that 90 odd 

Amendment recommended. 

P
age 220



conditions is an appropriate 
starting place, so as to ensure that 
the licensing objectives are fairly 
promoted. 
 
I am bound to observe that 
Bristol, it seems to me, is almost 
unique across England and Wales 
in adopting that approach. It may 
help if I explain in a little more 
detail why it is not our view that 
that is an appropriate nor 
legitimate basis on which to 
consider and/or grant premises 
licences. Of whichever type or 
categorisation…” 
 
(Matthew Phipps – TLT) 

Appendix C: Model Operating 
Schedules 

 As the Pollution Control Team 
considers applications on an 
individual basis on their own 
merits and conditions are only 
requested where appropriate I 
feel that the need for Model 
Operating Schedules or template 
conditions are not worthwhile 
from a Pollution Control point of 
view. Nowadays there appears to 
be a propensity for premises to 
morph between different 
traditional types of licensed 
premises and I therefore that the 
Model Operating Schedules are 
becoming more difficult to apply.  
We do however feel that the 
Model Operating Schedules could 
have some use in directing an 
applicant lead process. 

Amendment recommended. 
 
Remove as a minimum but perhaps keep as examples 
applicants may wish to draw on for certain types of premises 
but making clear not all will necessarily be relevant in every 
case. 

P
age 221



 
Environmental Health (Pollution 
Control) Bristol City Council 

Appendix C: Model Operating 
Schedules 

 Punch has always been happy to 
work with licensing authorities in 
relation to conditions being 
imposed on a licence where they 
are necessary and proportionate 
to achieve an identifiable aim. 
However, we are concerned with 
the prevalence of standard 
conditions being used across all 
licences within any particular 
class, This has taken over from a 
proper analysis of the need for 
such conditions in the first place. 
 
(Punch Taverns) 

See above 

Appendix C: Model Operating 
Schedules 

 We propose that the policy states:  
 
Where breaches of condition 
occur and the breach does not 
materially undermine a licensing 
objective, this is a matter for the 
Courts and not for the licensing 
committee. The Licensing 
committee can and must only 
interest themselves in matters 
where there has been a material 
undermining of the licensing 
objectives. 
 
(TLT) 

No change recommended. 
 
The committee should attach the appropriate weight to 
representations/information before them.  “Technical” 
breaches of licence conditions where there has been no 
negative impact on the licensing objectives may be attached 
little weight, especially where no negative impact has 
resulted.  
 
However it is right that the committee should be able to 
consider such breaches as they may help ascertain how a 
premises may operate within the confines of the Licensing 
Act.  For example if such conditions had been originally 
proposed by the PLH or had been agreed as part of mediation 
the committee would be right to expect they are followed.  If 
in practice the PLH had deemed them unnecessary and of no 
value a minor variation application could have been submitted 
to remove them.  A blanket failure to comply may in some 
circumstances give the committee cause of concern.   
 

P
age 222



A breach of licence condition is an offence under s136 and as 
such would impact on the crime and disorder objective. 

Appendix C: Model Operating 
Schedules 

 Template 1 in the draft model 
operating schedule says 
 
“(iii) The premises licence holder 
shall ensure that they consult the 
Public Health Services of Bristol 
City Council and any other 
relevant authority (for example 
the Fire Rescue Service regarding 
emergency evacuation limitations) 
as to the occupancy figure. 
Confirmation of the consultation 
and any outcomes shall form an 
integral part of the risk 
assessment on which the capacity 
figure is based”.  
 
The term Public Health Services is 
confusing. Do we mean 
environmental health? 

Amendment recommended 

Conditions  We propose that the policy states:  
 
Where an applicant applies for a 
variation to their licence, the 
licensing committee will expect 
responsible authorities to limit 
representations to the detail of 
the application itself and tailor 
any proposed conditions 
accordingly.' 
 
The case of Taylor v Manchester 
City Council makes is clear that 
any conditions imposed on a 
premises licence when it is varied 
must relate to that application 

Amendment recommended. 

P
age 223



itself and should not stray into 
other areas that are not part of 
the application. 
 
(TLT) 

Conditions  In particular, we have seen a rise 
in conditions being imposed upon 
premises licences by responsible 
authorities, irrespective of the 
nature of the application being 
made. For instance, a variation to 
the plans attached to a licence to 
effect a simple alteration in layout 
and where there is no change in 
licensable activities, increase in 
customer area, or removal of 
internal lobbies, for instance, 
sometimes result in officers 
seeking to ride on the back of that 
application to impose conditions 
that are in no way relevant to it. 
 
(Punch Taverns) 

Amendment recommended. 

GDPR  We propose that GDPR is 
expressly dealt with in the policy 
to ensure that all parties 
understand that any conditions 
need to comply with GDPR and 
any evidence submitted to the 
local authority to be included in 
the public documents must 
likewise comply. 
 
(TLT) 

Amendment recommended: 
 
The Licensing Authority will ensure that all personal data is 
processed fairly and lawfully and only kept for as long as is 
necessary. It will also ensure that personal data is kept secure 
and not disclosed unlawfully to another party. 
 
Any conditions imposed on licences must be compliant and 
complied with under the General Data Protection Regulation 
rules. 
 
 
 

GDPR  We note that the policy does not 
make reference to the GDPR 

Condition reference CC01 has been amended to read: 
 

P
age 224



 
…the requirement for CCTV at a 
premises licence is not only 
expensive to install, but we 
question the value of such systems 
in terms of crime prevention and 
detection, especially in smaller 
community pubs. However, it is 
now commonplace for police to 
demand CCTV in almost all 
premises and to insist upon 
complicated and demanding CCTV 
condition's to be added to 
premises licences. In addition, 
operators of CCTV systems have to 
consider the GDPR implications. In 
particular, anyone who stores 
data, including CCTV footage of 
individuals, which is classed as 
data for the purposes of GDPR, 
must be responsible for its safe 
collection, storage, usage and 
disposal. Handing over CCTV 
footage to Police officers in the 
active investigation of a criminal 
offence, such as a fight, would 
obviously be a legitimate reason 
for providing data. However, a 
condition with a general 
requirement to hand over CCTV at 
the behest licensing officer or 
police officer would arguably 
breach GDPR were it to be 
enforced. This means that there 
are numerous CCTV conditions on 
licences that would likely, were 
one to try and enforce them as 
they are written, cause an 

(vi) The premises Licence holder shall ensure that there are 
trained members of staff available during licensable hours to 
be able to reproduce and download CCTV images into a 
removable format at the justified request of an authorised 
officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable. 
 
This ensures that the request must be compatible with GDPR. 
 

P
age 225



operator to breach GDPR. 
 
(Punch Taverns) 

General  The policy should be simple to use 
and accessible to both businesses 
and residents, currently it is really 
wordy and could easily be made 
more comprehensible and easy to 
read. 
 
(Keith Rundle 
Operations Director 
City Centre BID) 

Unclear as to which sections require action.  Subsequent 
reviews could address this issue. 

  (B) Night-time alcohol delivery: 
Surely we need a blanket ban on 
this. A good percentage of 
Bristol's population live in flats, so 
the likelihood of disturbance of 
neighbours is very high. And the 
majority of people using such 
services are surely vulnerable 
individuals---either alcohol addicts 
or people whose judgment is 
impaired by having had too much 
alcohol already. 
 
An ethical decision would be to 
save these people from 
themselves by removing this 
temptation. 
 
(Emily Wolfe and Simon Margetts 
Dr Jill White 
Dr Penny Dobson) 

Unclear on the evidence for the statement regarding 
customer base. 
 
Approximately 34.4% of Bristol accommodation is flats or 
shared housing (2011 Census data).  Disturbance could be 
caused by late night deliveries; however a blanket ban on 
alcohol delivery services is not possible under the 2003 Act. 

  (D) Noise limits: 
Noise limits on extraction systems, 
music etc need to be absolute, not 
relative (to background, say)---or 

No change recommended –  
 
Comments from BCC Pollution Control: 
 

P
age 226



it is just a building cycle for each 
new noise nuisance. 
 
Also the rules need setting such 
that they can be checked in the 
street (rather than via highly 
intrusive and disruptive late-night 
access to people's bedrooms). 
 
(Emily Wolfe and Simon Margetts 
Dr Jill White 
Dr Penny Dobson) 

I don’t really think it would be practical for levels to be 
absolute rather than compared to background levels. One of 
the fundamenftal ways of assessing noise nuisance is 
comparison of the noise to the background levels and a level 
that would not cause nuisance in the busy city centre could 
cause considerable nuisance in a pub in the outskirts of the 
city. If absolute levels were adopted then it is likely these 
would lead to unnecessarily low levels for pubs, bars or clubs 
in noisy areas or areas with no residents.  
 
Fully agree that the checking of noise levels should not be 
intrusive to residents and this has never, as far as I’m 
concerned, been a requirement of a licence condition. The 
condition  for monitoring stating the following: 
 
5. (i) The Designated Premises Supervisor or other competent 
person shall carry out observations in the vicinity of the 
residential accommodation in the area. on at least hourly 
intervals whilst regulated entertainment is taking place in 
order to establish whether there is a noise breakout from the 
premises.    
 
(j) If the observation reveals noise breakout at a level likely to 
cause disturbance to the occupants of properties in the vicinity 
then the volume of music shall be reduced to a level that does 
not cause disturbance. 
 
If noise monitoring is being carried out by officers of the 
Council in order to establish noise nuisance for possible legal 
action then it may be necessary for this evidence to be gained 
from within a complainant’s property. 

  (E) Lapsing of moribund licences: 
The very late opening of Dorma 
Nightclub gave rise to appalling 
strain for many in our 
neighbourhood. The club went 
into receivership and the premises 
has become a gym. 

This would require a change to the Licensing Act 2003. 

P
age 227



 
But, apparently, the owners retain 
the licence, so we live in fear of a 
return to the stress and disruption 
of the nightclub. Surely, some 
release from this pressure is 
appropriate: couldn't licences 
automatically lapse if not used for 
a given period of time? 
 
(Emily Wolfe and Simon Margetts 
Dr Jill White 
Dr Penny Dobson) 

  (F) Several clubs in an area: 
Round The Triangle, for example, 
there is a problem in challenging 
licensed premises as regards noise 
because of the difficulty of pinning 
down an individual culprit. 
 
It looked like the EMRO legislation 
should have led to a route for 
dealing with this, but it proved not 
fit for purpose. A replacement is 
urgently needed, in order that 
clearly outrageous/misguided 
licensing decisions affecting 
residential areas can be 
challenged as a group, and 
without having to go via the 
notoriously lenient and business-
biased magistrates courts. 
 
(Emily Wolfe and Simon Margetts 
Dr Jill White 
Dr Penny Dobson) 

Noise break out form a premises in the majority of cases can 
be identified by observations from the exterior of the 
premises. 
 
If problems are occurring reviews can be called, Para 11.7 of 
the s182 guidance states: 
 
11.7 In every case, any application for a review must relate to 
particular premises in respect of which there is a premises 
licence or club premises certificate and must be relevant to the 
promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Following 
the grant or variation of a licence or certificate, a complaint 
regarding a general issue in the local area relating to the 
licensing objectives, such as a general (crime and disorder) 
situation in a town centre, should generally not be regarded as 
a relevant representation unless it can be positively tied or 
linked by a causal connection to particular premises, which 
would allow for a proper review of the licence or certificate. 
For instance, a geographic cluster of complaints, including 
along transport routes related to an individual public house 
and its closing time, could give grounds for a review of an 
existing licence as well as direct incidents of crime and disorder 
around a particular public house. 

  (G) Agent of change: 
The `Agent of Change' legislation, 

Requires change to legislation. 
 

P
age 228



which was developed to protect 
established music venues from 
being closed following new 
residential property being built 
near them, should also apply in 
reverse: new licensed venues 
should not be allowed near 
established residential property. 
This is particularly important now 
that (following changes to 
legislation) an alcohol licence 
carries with it a right to host 
music performances. 
 
(Emily Wolfe and Simon Margetts 
Dr Jill White 
Dr Penny Dobson) 

Any new application will currently be considered on the basis 
of the impact the grant could have on the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. 

  (H) New licensing objective: 
There is a constant tension 
between people's `freedom' to 
party all night and people's 
`freedom' to sleep during normal 
sleeping hours of, say, 11 pm to 8 
am. It needs to be made clear in 
licensing law that the latter 
`freedom' is by far the more 
essential, especially now that it is 
so evident that loss of sleep 
is a factor in so many serious 
medical issues---diabetes, heart 
disease and Alzheimer's, for 
example. We suggest adding a 
new licensing objective: `To 
protect residents living within 2 
km of the premises from sleep 
disturbance between 10 pm and 8 
pm from Sunday night to 
Thursday night and between 11 

Requires change to legislation.  P
age 229



pm and 9 pm on Friday night and 
Saturday night.' 
 
(Emily Wolfe and Simon Margetts 
Dr Jill White 
Dr Penny Dobson) 

  On Take Away outlets that some 
form of notice be exibited at it and 
on take away boxes reminding 
users that they shouldn't eat the 
product and throw the container 
away when finished into the road 
or gardens of houses that can be a 
good way from the outlet. 

Blanket conditions should not be imposed. S182 guidance 
states: 
 
Licence conditions – general principles 
1.16… … Licence conditions:… …should not be standardised 
and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated that 
they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in an individual case; 
 
Conditions of this type could be added to the pool of 
conditions.  

  There are lots of things that seem 
to me to be essential that you are 
planning to drop: e.g., drinking up 
time, no re-entry, third-party use 
requirements, CCTV, air con noise, 
rubbish disposal. I am baffled by 
these changes, as the restrictions 
were there with good 
reason.Please rethink this. 
Re off-licences: should it be 
`Principal'  rather than `Principle'? 
Re night-time alcohol delivery 
services: I think that these should 
be totally banned. The likelihood 
of disturbance to neighbours, 
especially in flats, is very high. The 
only people likely to use such 
services are people who have 
already consumed too much, and 
are hence at high risk of making 
bad or even dangerous choices. 

Conditions are not being removed/dropped.  Instead the 
policy is recognising that each application must be treated on 
its own merits.  Conditions can be added when appropriate to 
promote the licensing objectives.  However conditions cannot 
be imposed as “standard” across all licences of a certain type. 
 
*Principle to be changed to Principal 
 
Approx 34.4% of Bristol accommodation is flats or shared 
housing (2011 Census data).  Disturbance could be caused by 
late night deliveries but a blanket ban on alcohol delivery 
services is not possible under the 2003 Act. 

P
age 230



They should be protected from 
themselves, not given further 
temptation. 

  It seems as if the new model 
allows much more noise, late 
night drinking and general 
nuisance. 

See above 

  THE RULES ABOUT ADULT ONLY 
ENTERTAINMENT SHOULD ALSO 
APPLY TO BCC EVENTS ON QUEEN 
SQUARE EG COMEDY GARDEN 
WHICH HAS BEEN COMPLAINED 
ABOUT  BY FAMILIES LIVING 
NEARBY ON WHICH THIS ADULT 
ONLY ENTERTAINMENT IS 
IMPOSED ON THEM, THE COARSE 
HUMOUR COMING OUT ON NON 
SOUND PROOFED TENETS AND 
THE ALL NIGHT ASB, EVERY YEAR 
DESPITE RESIDENT PROTESTS. 
 
AS STATED ABOVE BCC DO NOT 
PROPERLY WARN AND INVITE 
INPUT FROM RESIDENTS ABOUT 
LICENCE APPLICATIONS OR 
CHANGES, NOR ENFORCE 
EXISTING LICENCE CONDITIONS 
DESPITE RESIDEN COMPLAINS 
THEREFORE A MODEL OPERATING 
SCHEDULE SHOULD BE CREATED 
ALSO FOR THE REQUIRED 
ACTIONS AND BEHAVIOURS OF 
BCC ITSELF, WHO ARE PAID BY US 
THE RESIDENTS THROUGH OUR 
COUNCIL TAXES TO PERFORM 
SPECIFIC DUTIES AND  KEEP US 
SAFE BUT BLATANTLY REFUSE TO 
DO SO. 

Blanket conditions cannot be imposed on a type of event – 
see s182 guidance: 
 
Licence conditions – general principles 
1.16… … Licence conditions:… …should not be standardised 
and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated that 
they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in an individual case; 
 
If relevant representations are received with regard to an 
event the licensing committee can consider what conditions, if 
any, are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 
 
Unlike with planning legislation the Licensing Act 2003 does 
not permit the Council to write to residents to notify them of 
applications.  However a public register of all applications is 
kept on the Council’s website which any party can view.  
Notices are also displayed by the applicant at the premises 
and an advert placed in a local newspaper.  
 
Bristol City Council’s Enforcement Policy is available on the 
Council’s website and sets out the approach taken to 
Enforcement.  The policy was drawn up with due regard to the 
Regulator’s Code.  

P
age 231



  All seems fair except the blanket 
rule of closing outside areas at 
10pm - this should be managed on 
a site by site level and with 
communication channels from 
local residents. Some sites keep 
their outside areas open later and 
there is little to no nuisance 
caused and the staff are great at 
managing noise levels to reduce 
impact on local residents. Local 
residents should be given a voice 
on this but sound levels need to be 
monitored and if there is no cause 
for complaint then venues should 
be allowed to open their outsides 
later, on a site by site basis. Some 
venues could keep their areas 
open until midnight or later with 
no impact on local residents. 

Conditions with regard to outside areas will only be imposed 
on a case by case basis if appropriate to promote the licensing 
objectives. 

  Please include a section on the 
Responsibility of Licence Holders 
and Designated Premises 
Supervisors (DPS) 
“ When licence holders or 
designated premises supervisors 
move, leave a premises or dispose 
of their premises they remain 
responsible in law until they 
have informed the licensing 
authority and surrendered the 
licence or arranged a transfer, 
which may involve notification to 
the Police as well. Any licensees or 
designated premises supervisors 
who are not sure what to do 
should contact the licensing 
authority. Please note that should 

No change recommended.  However guidance for applicants 
to be updated to incorporate some elements. 

P
age 232



the DPS cease to work/be 
employed by the premises the 
Licensing Authority will consider 
that there is no DPS for those 
premises. This consideration shall 
apply regardless of whether 
that person is still named on the 
Premises Licence, or whether they 
have asked for their name to be 
removed from it. This 
consideration shall apply until 
such time that an application is 
received to nominate a new 
premises supervisor. In such cases, 
the Licensing Authority shall 
expect no sales of alcohol to take 
place until an application to vary 
the DPS has been submitted to the 
Licensing Authority 
• Every premises licence that 
authorises the sale of alcohol 
must specify a designated 
premises supervisor (DPS). This 
will normally be the person who 
has been given day to day 
responsibility for running the 
premises by the premises licence 
holder. The only exception is for 
community premises which 
have successfully made an 
application to remove the usual 
mandatory conditions set out in 
the 2003 Act. The DPS to be a 
person with day to day 
managerial control of the 
premises who will take reasonable 
steps to ensure the licensing 
objectives are promoted and 

P
age 233



licence conditions are adhered to. 
 
• Though there is no requirement 
for a designated premises 
supervisor (DPS) to be on the 
premises at all times that alcohol 
is being sold, the Licensing 
Authority expects where they are 
likely to be absent for a prolonged 
period, perhaps due to ill health, 
maternity leave or extended 
holiday, that a new DPS to be 
appointed to cover the period of 
absence. If there are concerns that 
a DPS is repeatedly absent, the 
Police may apply for a review of 
the Premises Licence if this gives 
rise to concerns about the 
operation of the premises and its 
impact on the licensing objectives. 
• Where the DPS is not present at 
the premises the Licensing 
Authority, following guidance by 
the Secretary of State, 
recommends that personal licence 
holders give specific written 
authorisations to individuals that 
they are authorising to retail 
alcohol. The letter of 
authorisation should state the 
following:- 
• the person(s) authorised to sell 
alcohol at any particular premises 
should be clearly identified; 
• the authorisation should have 
specified the acts which may be 
carried out by the person who is 
authorised to supply alcohol 

P
age 234



there should be an overt act of 
authorisation, for example, a 
specific written statement given 
to the individual who is authorised 
to supply alcohol; and 
• there should be in place sensible 
arrangements for the personal 
licence holder to monitor the 
activity that they have authorised 
on a reasonably regular basis. 
It should be noted that the 
responsibility remains with the 
Premises Licence Holder and the 
Designated Premises Supervisor. 
 
Public Health BCC 

  A premises should always offer a 
standard measure as the normal 
offer and not a double measure 
(I’m not sure the policy can do this 
but it is worth a mention). 
 
Public Health BCC 

No change recommended – already covered by mandatory 
licence conditions 

  We need to have a section on the 
following (apologies if this is in 
here and we have missed it). 
Home Office as a Responsible 
Authority 
• From 6th April 2017 the 
provisions of Immigration Act 
2016 which relate to 
Licensing became effective. These 
provisions amend the Licensing 
Act 2003 
making the Secretary of State a 
responsible authority in respect of 
premises 
licensed to sell alcohol or late 

No change recommended.   
 
Responsible authorities are dictated by legislation.  The 
Statement of Licensing Policy sets out the licensing authorities 
approach to undertaking its role.  The Secretary of States 
Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
covers additional aspects including the Home Office’s role as a 
responsible authority.   

P
age 235



night refreshment. In effect this 
conveys the role of responsible 
authority to Home Office 
Immigration Enforcement who 
exercises the powers on the 
Secretary of State’s behalf. For 
contact details please see the list 
of Responsible Authorities in 
Appendix 1. 
 
When Immigration Enforcement 
exercises its powers as a 
responsible authority it will do so 
in respect of the prevention of 
crime and disorder licensing 
objective because it is concerned 
with the prevention of illegal 
working or immigration offences 
more broadly. 
• From 6th April 2017 Licensing 
Authorities will check the 
eligibility to work for those 
applying for personal licences and 
premises licences for the sale of 
alcohol and late night refreshment 
(hot food or drink between 23:00 
and 05:00 hours). 
This does not apply to the 
licensable activity of Regulated 
Entertainment ONLY or Club 
premises certificate and 
temporary event notices (TEN). 
However, they will commit a 
criminal offence if they work 
illegally. 
• Those applying for a personal or 
premises licence (for sale of 
alcohol/provision of 

P
age 236



late night refreshment) must be 
able to satisfy the Licensing 
Authority that they have 
permission to be in the United 
Kingdom (UK), and are entitled to 
undertake work relating to the 
carrying on of a licensable activity. 
Essentially this means that licence 
cannot be granted to disqualified 
persons who are: 
• Unlawfully present in the UK, 
• Not permitted to work in the UK, 
• Permitted to work, but not in 
this licensable activity. 
Applications from disqualified 
persons above will be classed as 
invalid and will be rejected. 
• The application for personal and 
premises licences must submit one 
of the documents listed in Annex A 
of the Secretary of State’s 
Guidance with their application, 
to show that they have permission 
to be in the UK and to undertake 
work in a licensable activity. 
Applicants may provide 
photocopies or scanned copies of 
the documents, which do not need 
to be endorsed as a copy of the 
original. Applicants are not 
required to submit original copies 
of documents. 
• Where an applicant has 
restrictions on the length of time 
they may work in the UK, a 
premises licence or personal 
licence may still be issued, but the 
licence will cease to have effect 

P
age 237



when the right to work lapses. 
• A premises or personal licence 
issued in respect of an application 
made on or after 6 April 2017 will 
lapse if the holder’s permission to 
live or work in the UK comes to an 
end. The licensing authority is 
under no duty to carry out on-
going immigration checks to see 
whether a licence-holder’s 
permission to be in the UK has 
been brought to an end, and the 
Act does not place a duty on the 
licensing authority to withdraw or 
revoke the licence if this occurs. 
• The Home Office as a 
Responsible Authority may 
request a review of a licence, 
where a licence is prejudicial to 
the prevention of illegal working. 
This may be as a result of: 
• An enforcement operation or 
data sharing that identifies a 
relevant offence, 
• The issue of a civil penalty for 
employing illegal workers, 
• The identification of a licence 
holder whose leave to be in the 
UK, or their permission to work, 
has come to an end. 
 
Public Health BCC 

  You have made reference to 
discrimination but perhaps we can 
be more explicit? 
 
Prohibition signs 
When its discretion is engaged 

No change recommended – duplication of existing legislation 

P
age 238



and a relevant representation is 
made relating to the exclusion or 
discouragement of any minority 
adult group the Licensing 
Authority will add a condition 
which forbids such as practice. 
 
The Licensing Authority is 
especially concerned that such 
practices adversely affect social 
cohesion and are likely to hinder 
the promotion of the licensing 
objective relating to law and 
order. The Licensing Authority will 
also refer such practices to other 
authorities, where appropriate. 
Promotion of Racial Equality 
Legislation requires the local 
authority to have due regard to 
the elimination of unlawful 
discrimination and to promote 
equality of opportunity and good 
relations between persons of 
different racial groups. The 
Licensing Authority expects all 
licence applications to be 
consistent with this duty. 
The Council as an organisation 
has a race equality scheme and 
monitoring licensing forms a part 
of that overall scheme. 

  Add an appendix 
 
You have outlined good practice in 
the draft model operating 
schedule. But please consider 
including an appendix giving 
examples of what people can do 

No change recommended.  However guidance for applicants 
to be updated to incorporate some elements. 

P
age 239



to promote licensing objectives, as 
they have done in the Nottingham 
licensing statement below. This 
comes across as a helpful checklist 
at the end of the SLP. 
 
Extract from Nottingham’s 
licensing statement. 
 
“Appendix A 
PROMOTING THE LICENSING 
OBJECTIVES 
The Licensing Authority recognises 
that licensed premises come in 
different shapes and sizes and 
provide different activities. A 
venue’s operation may be geared 
to alcohol, entertainment, late 
night refreshment or a 
combination of two or more of 
these activities. Venues may be 
large or small, with high 
occupancy or low occupancy, in 
urban or suburban areas, with a 
predominantly young clientele or 
a mix of all ages. 
How operators of different 
licensed premises promote the 
licensing objectives varies from 
premises to premises. For 
example:- 
• Premises that supply alcohol will 
have different demands on them 
than those that do not. 
• High occupancy premises will 
have different issues to consider 
particularly in the areas of public 
nuisance, public safety and crime 

P
age 240



and disorder than low occupancy 
premises. 
• Premises with a predominantly 
young clientele will have different 
issues to consider than those 
frequented by a mixed age group. 
There is no definitive list of control 
measures that could (or should) 
be introduced by all premises. 
Licensed premises are assessed 
according to the activities they 
provide and the manner of their 
provision. Steps should be in place 
to proportionately address the 
individual risks of each premises’ 
activity. Preventing crime, 
disorder, public nuisance, ensuring 
public safety and protecting 
children (those aged under 18) 
from harm are ongoing 
responsibilities for all licence 
holders. Premises operators 
should address the risks relating 
to the activities their premises 
provides. Failure to do so may 
result in the licence being 
reviewed and subsequently 
suspended or revoked. 
The Licensing Authority does not 
want premises to lose their 
licences, it wants to see well 
managed premises that benefit 
from being able to provide the 
hours and the activities their 
customers and communities want. 
This means licensees should 
regularly consult with their local 
communities to inform them of 

P
age 241



the hours and activities they 
provide, gauging their concerns 
and addressing these. 
Licensees are encouraged to be 
both imaginative and proactive, 
seeking advice from Responsible 
Authorities and other local 
organisations that have 
professional advice to offer. 
 
The Licensing Authority 
recommends that operators: 
1. Read this Licensing Policy 
carefully – reading it indicates 
that you are taking the 
promotion of the licensing 
objectives seriously. 
2. Think about the activities you 
provide, the risks from those 
activities and the appropriate 
steps to tackle them. 
3. Consult local residents and local 
businesses and the Responsible 
Authorities. How do they feel 
about your operation? Are they 
currently experiencing problems? 
4. Undertake appropriate risk 
assessments and take appropriate 
steps to address any risks. 
5. Take action to put steps in place 
that will address risks and meet 
the concerns of your community. 
6. Consider whether you need to 
apply to vary your licence to 
ensure that you have all necessary 
measures in place to meet the 
four licensing objectives. This can 
reassure local residents and 

P
age 242



businesses and the Responsible 
Authorities that you take your 
responsibilities seriously and are a 
valuable asset to the community. 
Licensed premises will be 
continually monitored on how 
they impact on their local 
communities. Where operators 
fail to adequately address the 
concerns of local residents / 
businesses with respect to the 
licensing objectives, their premises 
may have its licence reviewed at 
any time. 
 
Potential risks to the Promotion of 
the Licensing Objectives and 
Possible Solutions 
The Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder 
1. What measures will you put in 
place to prevent disorderly and 
potentially violent behaviour both 
on and in the vicinity of your 
premises? 
• We will use CCTV 
• We will use text and radio pager 
systems to report incidents to the 
police and keep in contact with 
other venues (especially important 
in town and city centres with a 
high concentration of licensed 
premises). 
• We will determine sensible 
occupancy limits according to the 
nature of the premises and 
activities being carried out. 
• We will train staff to handle 

P
age 243



potential troublemakers and 
defuse difficult situations. 
• We will seek further advice from 
local Police, PubWatch and 
Responsible Authorities. 
2. What measures will you put in 
place to prevent drunkenness on 
your premises? 
• We will train staff to recognise 
those who are drunk and be 
vigilant in not serving those who 
are drunk or passing on alcohol to 
those who are drunk. 
• We will ensure sufficient staffing 
and managerial support to make 
the identification and non-service 
of those passing on drinks 
practicable. 
• We will refuse entry to those 
who have had too much to drink. 
• We will ensure that staff 
training is carried out regularly 
and includes knowledge testing 
and that all training is 
documented. 
3. How will you prevent drug 
dealing on and around your 
premises? 
How will you prevent offensive 
weapons being brought on to your 
premises? 
How will you prevent the sale of 
contraband or stolen goods? 
• We will install strategically 
located closed-circuit TV cameras 
inside and outside premises to 
deter/monitor illegal activity 
(footage can be used as evidence). 

P
age 244



• We will provide accredited staff 
training on these issues and 
ensure staff are on the look out 
for suspicious behaviour. 
• We will ban known offenders 
and share information with the 
police and licensed premises in the 
area. 
• We will consult our local police 
crime reduction adviser. 
4. How will you reduce the risk of 
glasses and bottles being used as 
weapons and causing accidents? 
• We will ensure glasses and 
bottles are collected on an on-
going and frequent basis, make 
regular inspections for broken 
glass and clear up glass and any 
spillages immediately. 
• We will, at those times where 
there is a risk of incident, use 
safety glass. 
• We will ensure drinks containers 
are not taken from the premises. 
• We will have a no glass policy. 
5. How will you prevent toilets 
from being a magnet for sexual 
assault, accidents and conflict? 
• We will ensure that sufficient 
toilets are available, with an 
appropriate number of 
male/female toilets as per British 
Standards. 
• We will ensure sufficient lighting 
levels. 
• We will keep toilets clean, well 
stocked; clearing spillages 
promptly to avoid accident. 

P
age 245



• We will install toilet attendants 
if problems occur. 
Further examples of risks that 
could undermine this licensing 
objective are: 
6. Late night refreshment – 
Applicants in respect of late-night 
takeaways should demonstrate 
that they have assessed the risk of 
persons congregating in large 
numbers in the vicinity of their 
premises. Where appropriate, 
applicants should demonstrate 
suitable measures to address this 
problem. 
7. Toughened / Safety Glass Policy 
Licensed venues that provide the 
sale of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises should consider the 
introduction of toughened / safety 
glass. This toughened / safety 
glass policy expectation applies to 
those premises that would be 
considered as carrying a higher 
risk for potential crime and 
disorder. In particular it is 
expected in premises considered 
to be high volume vertical 
drinking establishments and 
those premises open beyond 
midnight in areas where there is a 
high concentration of venues (but 
not premises in those areas that 
are viewed as low risk in this 
context. For example in facilities 
for hotel residents and their 
guests it is not expected that a 
toughened / safety glass policy 

P
age 246



need operate and nor would it be 
necessary in premises which 
operate primarily as a restaurant 
where the bar is primarily 
provided for restaurant 
customers). The toughened / 
safety glass policy also applies 
where outside areas are provided 
for consumption of alcohol, 
particularly where the area is 
constructed of hard material and 
also where the outside area is in 
or adjacent to a public place. 
8 Glass Bottle Policy 
The Licensing Authority considers 
it necessary for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives to prevent 
the passing of a glass bottle over 
the bar of premises licensed 
to supply alcohol for consumption 
on the premises where there is a 
poor history of crime and disorder. 
This expectation may be 
considered as a result of relevant 
representations having been 
received on an application. Like 
other conditions set out in this 
Licensing Policy it may also be 
considered at a hearing following 
an application for review of an 
authorisation. 
Public Safety 
1. How will you avoid 
overcrowding? 
• We will determine sensible 
occupancy limits according to the 
nature of the premises and 
activities being carried out. 

P
age 247



• We will use clickers to monitor 
and manage occupancy levels. 
2. How will you prevent drug 
taking on your premises and 
protect customers from harm? 
• We will make customers aware 
of the risk of drink-spiking. 
• We will train staff in drug 
awareness issues and ensure 
sufficient staffing and managerial 
support to make identification and 
handling of incidents practicable. 
3. What measures will you put in 
place to clear away broken glass 
promptly and effectively? 
• We will remove glasses 
promptly when empty. 
Further examples of risks that 
could undermine this licensing 
objective are: 
4. Emergencies – issues in relation 
to fires, emergency management, 
evacuation and overcrowding. 
5. Environment – issues 
concerning cooling and heating 
and access to drinking water. 
In considering what steps may be 
necessary, applicants will be 
expected to have particular 
regard to: 
• The premises itself (are there for 
example any inherent hazards 
such as steps, open fires, use of 
shared areas, etc.). 
• The neighbouring area (are 
there for example particular 
problems with crime and disorder, 
is it a primarily residential area, 

P
age 248



etc.). 
• The types of regulated 
entertainment they wish to 
provide and any hazards. 
• The type of persons that may be 
using the premises or place (e.g. 
persons who are very old or very 
young, disabled, possibly impaired 
through drink or drugs, etc.). 
• The situation and circumstances 
of use (e.g. low lighting levels, 
loud noise, crowds, use of special 
effects, etc.). 
Applicants must set out the steps 
they propose to promote public 
safety. The following are 
examples of the adequate steps 
regarding this that the Licensing 
Authority expects in premises 
where particular risks may arise. 
Where public safety may be 
compromised by an excessive 
number of customers, applicants 
are expected to propose capacity 
limits. This is especially important 
for premises where regulated 
entertainment (within the 
meaning of the Act) is being 
provided at nightclubs, cinemas 
and theatres. Other appropriate 
measures may include the use of 
door staff, CCTV, staff training, 
etc. 
Where the public needs to be 
protected from potentially 
dangerous sources of electricity 
expected measures may include: 
• An assurance that any 

P
age 249



alterations to the existing system 
will be made in line with the 
Electrical Equipment of Buildings 
issued by the institution of 
Electrical Engineers (BS 7671) or 
as amended. 
• The use of residual current 
devices (RCDs) on high-risk 
circuits, such as those which may 
be used by entertainers for 
plugging in musical equipment 
or used for plugging in equipment 
to be used outdoors. 
• Other appropriate measures 
may include portable appliance 
and fixed appliance testing. 
The physical layout of the 
premises may present particular 
risks and in some situations (such 
as those in which vulnerable 
persons may be especially at risk) 
applicants will be expected to 
advance steps accordingly. For 
example: 
• Applicants whose premises have 
stairs should consider whether it is 
necessary for appropriate 
handrails to be fitted together 
with contrasting nosings to the 
steps. 
• In respect of premises which 
have uneven flooring, applicants 
are expected to set out the steps 
they propose to minimise risks. 
• In respect of premises with 
outdoor areas that may be 
accessed by customers or the 
public (whether or not those areas 

P
age 250



form part of the place that is 
licensed) applicants should 
consider whether it is necessary to 
provide appropriate lighting of 
these areas, use of toughened 
glasses and the provision of 
customer bins. 
• Steps expected for premises with 
working fireplaces include 
guarding or similar; this is 
especially important where 
children may be permitted on the 
premises. 
• Applicants with premises which 
will be relying on the usage of 
shared areas, such as escape 
routes, are expected to advance 
measures that will ensure the 
usage of these areas will not 
create any risks to the public. 
Applicants are also expected to 
consider how the proposed 
activities may impact upon 
public safety / public nuisance and 
put forward steps accordingly. For 
example: 
• Premises that are of high 
capacity or whose regulated 
entertainment may give rise to an 
increased risk of injuries occurring 
are expected to advance steps 
regarding first aid provision. 
• Premises that plan to use special 
effects (such as fireworks / foam / 
lasers /etc.) will be expected to 
propose measures that will ensure 
this will not create any safety 
risks. Where proposed licensable 

P
age 251



activity includes the consumption 
of alcohol or provision of late 
night refreshments on the 
premises, it is expected that 
applicants should advance steps 
regarding the provision of 
adequate and well managed toilet 
and hand washing facilities. 
 
The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
1. How will you prevent the noise 
nuisance from outside drinking? 
• We will limit the number of 
people using outside areas. 
• We will ensure that drinkers 
remain seated and that they do 
not drift from the seated area 
(e.g. using barriers at those times 
where this is identified as a 
problem). 
• We will advise noisy customers 
to keep the noise down and ask 
them to leave if they disregard our 
advice. 
• We will determine a closing time 
on the use of outdoor areas in 
consultation with local residents. 
2. How will you prevent flyers 
becoming a source of litter? 
• Where we distribute flyers, we 
will ensure we have the necessary 
consent and take responsibility for 
picking up dropped flyers in the 
vicinity. 
3. How will you prevent 
disturbance to local residents 
from customers arriving and 
leaving your premises late at 

P
age 252



night? 
• We will consult local residents 
on their preferred closing time 
and come to an agreement. 
• We will display telephone 
numbers for taxi firms in a 
prominent location and provide a 
facility for customers to order 
cabs or operate a taxi call back 
service. 
• We will implement a ‘winding 
down period’ during the last hour 
of service. 
• We will ensure signs are in place 
asking customers to leave quietly. 
• We will ensure signage and staff 
remind customers to keep noise 
down as they leave. 
• We will hand out lollipops to 
customers as they leave. 
• Ensure that people do not 
congregate / queue outside 
premises. 
• We will have a detailed dispersal 
policy in place and train all 
relevant staff in its operation. 
4. What steps can you take to 
reduce the impact that sales of 
alcohol from your premises may 
have on the community around 
you? 
• We will implement a bottle 
marking scheme 
• We will take part in the 
Voluntary Code for Off-Licences or 
similar initiatives 
• We will ensure that sales are not 
made to people who already 

P
age 253



appear drunk 
• We will ensure sales are not 
made to known street drinkers 
• We will not sell beer, lager 
and/or cider with an ABV of 5.6 or 
above 
5. What measures will you put in 
place to ensure that local 
residents and local businesses are 
not upset by loud or persistent 
noise? 
• We will consult local residents 
on what noises disturb them and 
take steps to remedy these issues. 
• We will avoid emptying bins into 
skips, especially if they contain 
glass after 9pm and before 9am 
(10am on weekends). 
• We will instruct suppliers not to 
make deliveries after 9pm and 
before 9am (10am on weekends). 
• We will avoid refuse collections 
after 9pm and before 9am (10am 
on weekends). 
• We will ensure that noise from 
regulated entertainment is kept to 
a level that does not cause 
disturbance to local residents. 
Further examples of risks 
(particular with the increased use 
of smoking shelters) that could 
undermine this licensing objective 
are: 
6. Lighting – Excessive artificial 
lighting in the vicinity of licensed 
premises. 
7. Litter / waste – Litter and waste 
generated by the carrying out of 

P
age 254



licensable activities. For example, 
food wrappers, fly posting and 
cigarette butts. 
Measures to prevent litter may 
include 
• Providing litter bins 
• Sweeping up rubbish and 
clearing the vicinity 
8. Smoking - The Council 
acknowledges that smoking is not 
a licensing matter. However as an 
enforcement authority under the 
Health Act 2006, it recognises the 
significant changes to all licensed 
premises brought about by the 
implementation of the Smoke Free 
legislation on 1st July 2007. 
The Council also recognises the 
effect that the smoking ban has 
had on issues around public 
nuisance including noise and litter 
across the city. The Council 
expects that licensees will be able 
to manage those issues 
effectively. It must be noted that 
there is no legal requirement for 
licensed premises to provide an 
outdoor smoking area. 
9. Environmental issues - noise, 
litter and disturbance from 
customers Steps taken or 
proposed to be taken to prevent 
noise and disturbance from 
customers causing nuisance. This 
may include noise and disturbance 
from customers on the premises 
and customers in outdoor areas 
such as terraces, beer gardens 

P
age 255



and smoking areas. It will also 
include noise, disturbance and 
obstruction from customers in the 
vicinity of the premises including 
customers arriving, leaving or 
queuing outside a premises. 
Consideration has to be given to 
the potential for public nuisance 
arising from outside areas 
following the implementation of 
smoke free laws in July 2007. 
Noise and disturbance from 
people outside can cause public 
nuisance even when those people 
are not behaving badly. This will 
be of more significance in areas 
with residential accommodation 
and will usually, but not 
exclusively, be of greater 
importance between 10pm and 
7am. However, it must be noted 
that noise and disturbance from 
customers out of doors can cause 
public nuisance outside of these 
times. Measures to prevent 
nuisance may include the: 
• Use of time restrictions on 
certain areas; 
• The end of the use of certain 
areas; 
• Supervision of outdoor areas; 
• Suitable signage; 
• Restriction on the times that 
food or drinks can be consumed or 
sold to be consumed outside the 
premises; 
• In some cases the hours at 
which premises are open to the 

P
age 256



public will also be considered. 
10. Noise from plant and 
equipment  
Steps taken or proposed to be 
taken to prevent noise and 
vibration from plant or equipment 
causing nuisance. This includes 
noise and vibration from 
ventilation, air conditioning and 
refrigeration equipment. 
 
Measures to prevent nuisance 
may include the: 
• Installation of acoustic 
enclosures; 
• Sound proofing, timing device; 
• Relocation or replacing 
equipment; 
• Provision and regular emptying 
of litter bins; 
• Provision for the disposal of 
cigarette litter at entrances as 
well as where people are most 
likely to congregate; 
• Regular monitoring and cleaning 
of areas; 
• Reduction in the amount of 
packaging passed onto customer; 
• Provision of posters asking 
customers not to drop litter. 
11. Fly posting, flyers and graffiti 
Steps taken to prevent fly posting 
and the distribution of flyers 
advertising the premises or events 
at the premises. 
Steps taken by the applicant to 
remove graffiti and fly posting 
from their surfaces as soon as it 

P
age 257



appears. 
The Protection of Children From 
Harm 
1. What measures will you put in 
place to prevent underage 
drinking on and around your 
premises? 
• We will adopt a well-publicised 
Challenge 21 policy; asking those 
who appear to be under 21 to 
produce appropriate ID proving 
they are over 18 before 
considering serving them; 
• We will refuse service to those 
we believe to be passing on 
alcohol to under 18s (except 
where over 18s are buying beer, 
wine or cider for 16 or 17 year 
olds for consumption with a table 
meal); 
• We will display of prominent 
warning notices about the supply 
of alcohol to minors 
• We will give all relevant staff 
appropriate accredited training on 
the law relating to alcohol and 
those aged under 18 (e.g. a 
‘Responsible Retailing’ course); 
• We will ensure sufficient staffing 
and managerial support to 
monitor outside areas and make 
the identification and non service 
of those passing on drinks to 
under 18s practicable; 
• We will report those who pass 
on drinks to under 18s to the 
police; 
• We will use a ‘refusal book’ to 

P
age 258



record details of instances where 
staff have refused a customer 
thought to be under age; 
• We will use CCTV. 
• We will identify a child 
safeguarder. 
2. It is an offence to allow 
unaccompanied under 16s into 
primarily drinking venues. 
However, family friendly premises 
typically experience fewer 
problems of crime, disorder and 
public nuisance. What measures 
will you put in place to create a 
safe, child-friendly environment? 
• We will ensure vigilance re. the 
sale of alcohol to under 18s, to 
those who are drunk and to those 
passing on drinks to under 18s / 
those who are drunk; 
• We will ensure those who are 
drunk do not gain entry to the 
premises and those who become 
drunk on the premises are asked 
to leave (N.B. it is an offence to 
serve those who are drunk); 
• We will specify areas, activities 
and times that are suitable for 
children instead of merely placing 
restrictions on access to those 
areas, activities and during those 
times that are appropriate. 
Further examples of risks that 
could undermine this licensing 
objective are: 
3. Adult only entertainment – 
Where entertainment or services 
of an adult or sexual nature are 

P
age 259



commonly provided, ensuring that 
underage persons cannot enter 
the premises. There shall be no 
display of photographs or visual 
images advertising such 
entertainment outside the 
premises.” 
 
Public Health BCC 

 

P
age 260



APPENDIX 8 

City Centre CIA 
 

Effective date 1 August 2010 

The central area within the Cabot Sector as identified by Avon and Somerset Police and as extended to 

include the Welsh Back area, Stokes Croft and Cabot Circus. 

 

Reason for Assessment 

The Avon and Somerset Police produced evidence to support their request that the central area of Bristol 

be designated a CIA. It remains at saturation point and the Police produced evidence for extending the 

area to which the special policy should apply so as to include Stokes Croft and Cabot Circus. In particular 

the area, which has a significant concentration of alcohol led late night venues, witnesses a high number of 

assaults and other related crime and disorder including public nuisance and risk to public safety. The CIA 

will apply to further applications for the grant of new licenses or significant variations of existing licenses in 

respect of premises that primarily sell alcohol for consumption on the premises, other late night uses, 

restaurants and take away outlets. The main focus of the assessment is likely to be on alcohol led 

establishments and premises that keep customers in the area at times when the promotion of the licensing 

objectives is most challenging (for example late night refreshment from “fast food” outlets). 

 

 

Policy Consultation Results 
The consultation was run between the dates of 1 August 2019 and 14 November 2019. There were a total 
of 78 questions. A total of 156 full responses were received. This is a low number of responses.  
 
An additional 45 written responses were also received separate to the survey. Not all of these related to the 
City Centre CIA. We received 34 emails relating specifically to the City Centre CIA, and 71 responses from 
partially answered survey.  
 
The number of people who answered the majority of questions about the City Centre was between 99 and 
101.  
 Page 261



2   

 

 

It is important when considering these results that those who care more about the issues are more likely to 
answer the survey, whereas those who have no strong opinion are less likely to respond. This means that 
the sample may be biased, which is especially important to bear in mind given the low number of 
respondents.  
 
 

Summary of survey results 

 
The majority of respondents answered the question “to what extent do you agree or disagree with the 
proposal to continue with the CIAs for the City Centre” with either strongly agree or agree. When including 
any partial responses or email responses, the majority of respondents still agreed/strongly agreed with the 
statement. This question was the only one where we have considered the responses from partial survey 
responses or written responses.  
 
The majority of respondents (58%) visited the City Centre once a month or more for a night out. Those that 
would not go to the City Centre on a night gave preferring to go to other areas, the bars not appealing to 
them or the fear of crime as the main reasons why they would not go out there. Only 20 respondents 
answered this question (those who never visited the City Centre). 
 
When asked about the issues in the City Centre, litter was seen as the most serious or major problems, 
with fear of disturbance, criminal damage, and harassment as the next serious issues. 
 
The majority of respondents said that there were too few live music venues, traditional public houses and 
family orientated venues in the City Centre. For all other types of venues respondents believed there are 
about the right amount.  
 
When asked ‘to what extent would you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened’, 
the majority of respondents would agree with all type of venues being opened, except fast food 
establishments or off licences.  
 
The majority of respondents thought that current opening times for the food and alcohol outlets were about 
right. 
 

 

Page 262



APPENDIX 8 

Analysis of Full Survey Results 

 
When asked about whether we should continue with the CIA for the City Centre, the majority of people agreed that it should be kept. The below graph shows 

a combination of the survey (full and partial) responses, and comments from emails, where a large majority (32/34) said that the “…licensing policy in regards 

opening hours and number of venues needs to be relaxed…”  

 

 
Total respondents = 156 full survey responses (5 did not answer), 71 partial survey responses, and 34 email responses 

 

  

78 

36 

142 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Strongly disagree/disagree Neither agree or disagree Strongly agree/agree

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to 
continue with the CIAs for the City Centre, including partial 

respondents and email responses 

P
age 263



 

 

When looking at just the full survey responses, it shows that a larger majority of responses agreed with the proposal. There may be an element of sample 

bias, where the survey was seen as too long by some respondents and so their views would not be included in the full survey analysis, but they were more 

likely to be against the proposal.  

 

 
Total respondents: 156 full respondents 

 

Looking at just the full survey responses, of those that finished the survey, the large majority agreed with the statement. 

28 26 

97 

5 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Strongly disagree/
Disagree

Neither agree nor
disagree

Strongly agree/Agree No answer

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to continue 
with the CIAs for the City Centre - grouped, full survey responses 

P
age 264



 

 
If you break down the survey responses by type of person, can see that the two groups with the most respondents: a member of the public and a local 

business owner with a premises licence, are mostly aligned. Members of the public are more likely to support the CIA being in place (57%), but 48% of 

business owners also agree, with only 31% disagreeing.  

 

1 1 
2 

3 

5 5 

3 

8 

17 

28 

0 0 
1 

0 

3 

10 

6 

11 

9 

16 

0 0 0 0 

6 

0 0 

2 

0 

8 

1 
0 

1 
0 

2 
1 

0 
1 

0 0 
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree or disagree Agree Strongly Agree

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to continue with the CIAs for the City Centre - by type of 
person 

A person who works in Bristol A member of the public

A local Councillor or MP Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence

Other (please specify) A local community group representative

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence A Trade Representative (please specify)

P
age 265



 

 

Looking at the postcodes of the respondents, it can be seen that the majority of comments came from BS1- which is the area affected. However, even in this 
area, there were only 38 respondents, and  the difference between strongly agree and strongly disagree is only 5 people.  

Row Labels BS1  BS10 BS11 BS13 BS14 BS15 BS16 BS2  BS3  BS30 BS31 BS32 BS39 BS4  BS5  BS6  BS7  BS8  BS9  LS19 Total 

No answer 2 
  

1 
       

1 
        

4 

Strongly Agree 13 
 

1 4 1 
 

2 3 6 
 

1 
  

5 4 10 1 10 7 
 

68 

Agree 5 1 1 1 
  

2 2 2 1 
   

3 3 3 
 

5 
  

29 
Neither agree or 
disagree 6 2 

    
2 2 4 

   
1 1 2 2 

 
3 1 

 
26 

Disagree 4 
     

1 1 
      

1 1 1 
 

1 
 

10 

Strongly disagree 8 
    

1 
 

3 
 

1 
    

1 2 1 
  

1 18 

Grand Total 38 3 2 6 1 1 7 11 12 2 1 1 1 9 11 18 3 18 9 1 155 

 

P
age 266



 

The first question asked respondents how often they have visited the City Centre for a night out. This showed that the area is a popular place, with the 

majority of people visiting more than once a month, and only 22 people had not used it for a night out in the last 12 months.  

 

 
Total respondents = 156 
 

22 

35 

29 

62 

8 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Have not used this area for a
night out

Every 6 months Once a month More than once a month No answer

Over the past 12 months how often have you visited the City Centre after 7pm to enjoy a night out?  

P
age 267



 

 

 
 
When looking at the results split up by the type of respondent, can see that the majority of respondents where members of the public (61), followed by Local 
business owner/manager – that has a premises licence (53), go out in the City Centre a similar amount, although 30% of members of the public go out about 
once a month, as opposed of 12% of business owners.  A similar percentage (11% and 19%) of members of the public and business owners have not used 
this area for a night out. 

2 

5 

2 2 2 

7 

12 

18 

23 

1 1 1 
2 

7 

1 1 
2 2 

10 

14 

6 

22 

1 
2 

1 

3 

1 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Have not used this area for a night
out

Every 6 months Once a month More than once a month No answer

Over the past 12 months have you visited the City Centre to enjoy a night out- broken up by type of respondent 

A local community group representative A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify) Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence

Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence Other (please specify)

P
age 268



 

Of the 22 who do not use the City Centre for a night out, 20 responded to the question about why they would not go to the Centre for a night out. The most 
common reason was that they prefer to go to other areas, the bars don’t appeal to them, and the fear of crime. However, as the sample size is only 20 people, 
this is not a large enough sample size to draw meaningful results from. It is also worth noting that those who do not go to an area are less likely to know what 
the area is like. 
 

 
 

12 

11 

10 

6 

4 

3 

2 2 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

0 
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

I prefer to go to
other areas

The bars don’t 
appeal to me 

Fear of crime Litter from
venues

I don't live near
the area

There is not
enough public

transport to get
home

The bars are
open too late

Lack of cultural
activities on

offer e.g.
theatres

Lack of family-
friendly

restaurants

Lack of family-
friendly pubs or

bars

Lack of family-
friendly venues,

e.g. cinemas,
bowling alleys

There are not
enough taxis

available to get
home

Lack of live
music venues

Poor venue
accessibility

Lack of
accessible

public
transport

Lack of
restaurant

choice

In the previous question you selected that you do not use the City Centre for a night out.  Please tell us why this is by 
selecting up to five reasons from the list below 

P
age 269



 

 

 
 
By looking at the breakdown of the different types of people that chose different reasons. The sample size is not large enough to be representative. In general 
the members of the public and local business owners agree with the main issues.   

0 0 

2 

4 

1 
0 

5 5 

0 
1 

4 

0 
1 

0 
1 

0 0 
1 

0 

4 

1 

1 

4 

1 

0 

1 

4 

1 

3 

0 

0 

0 0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

0 

1 

0 

1 

1 

1 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

0 

1 
0 

0 0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

2 

0 

0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 0 

0 0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Lack of
restaurant

choice

Lack of family-
friendly

restaurants

Lack of family-
friendly pubs

or bars

The bars are
open too late

The bars don’t 
appeal to me 

Lack of cultural
activities on

offer e.g.
theatres

Lack of family-
friendly

venues, e.g.
cinemas,

bowling alleys

Fear of crime Litter from
venues

There are not
enough taxis

available to get
home

There is not
enough public
transport to

get home

I prefer to go
to other areas

Lack of live
music venues

I don't live
near the area

Poor venue
accessibility

Lack of
accessible

public
transport

City Centre Reason - by types of respondents 

A member of the public Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence

Other (please specify) A person who works in Bristol

A local community group representative A local Councillor or MP

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence A Trade Representative (please specify)

P
age 270



 

Respondents were then asked about the different issues that the City Centre has, and how much of a problem they were; whether they were a serious, 

moderate, minor, or not at all a problem. The major/moderate problems were believed to be litter, fear of disturbance/criminal damage, and fear of harassment 

or personal injury/assault. In general noise was thought of as either not a problem, or a minor problem.  

 

This question was answered by between 101 and 99 people for each problem.

78 77 

59 59 58 

53 
51 

49 

40 
38 38 

24 
21 20 

23 

41 
38 

40 

47 
49 

51 

58 

62 

58 

74 75 

3 
1 1 

3 2 1 1 1 
3 

1 
3 3 

5 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Litter outside fast food
establishments

Litter being dropped in
the street by people

who have visited
licensed premises/fast
food establishments

Fear of public
nuisance/disturbance

Fear of criminal
damage e.g. vandalism

Fear of harassment Litter outside licensed
premises

Fear of personal
injury/assault

Noise from people
gathered outside
licensed premises

(shouting etc.)

Noise from people
gathered outside fast
food establishments

Noise from people
travelling through

residential areas to get
to or from licensed

premises

Noise from empty
bottles being put into

trade bins

Music from licensed
premises

Noise from deliveries
to fast food

establishments or
licensed premises

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is? 

A serious/moderate problem A minor problem/ Not at all a problem Don’t know/No opinion 

P
age 271



 

 

When asked about their opinions about the number of venues, it shows that respondents believed that there were too few live music venues, traditional pubs 

and family orientated venues. However only a slightly fewer number of respondents believed there were the right number. There were believed to be enough 

restaurants, food orientated bars, and off licences. There was believed to be too many off licences.  

 
This implies that the current CIA is not ensuring that the ‘right type’ of venues are provided in the City Centre.  
 

 
This question was answered by between 100 and 98 people for each problem.  

47 46 
42 

30 30 

22 
19 

11 
7 

36 

44 

33 

42 
38 

71 

52 

46 

36 

9 
5 

3 

23 

18 

5 

18 
16 

51 

8 
5 

20 

4 

14 

2 

9 

26 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Live music venues Traditional public
houses

Family orientated
venues

Late night
alcohol/music

orientated bars

Nightclubs Restaurants Food orientated
bars

Off licences Fast food
establishments

Thinking about the City Centre, what is your opinion on the number of: 

There are too few There are about the right number There are too many Don’t know/no opinion 

P
age 272



 

When asked about whether they would agree or disagree with new premises being opened in the City Centre, the majority of respondents would agree with 
the opening of the majority of types of venues. This implies that respondents were not necessarily aware that the CIA was preventing these from being 
opened.  
 
The types of venues that respondents would most agree with being opened aligns approximately with those venues that are believed to be too few. Most 
people would oppose fast food establishments and off licences. 
 

 

11 10 

16 

10 

18 

33 31 

44 

32 

17 

24 22 

33 

27 

21 
24 

33 

50 

72 

66 
62 

57 55 

46 44 

23 
18 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Traditional public
house

Restaurants Live music venues Family orientated
venues

Food orientated
bars

Late night
alcohol/music

orientated bars

Nightclubs Fast food
establishments

Off licences

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the City Centre? 

Strongly disagree/disagree Neither agree or disagree Strongly agree/agree

P
age 273



 

 

When asked about opening hours of the venues that currently exist, the majority of people believe that premises close at about the right time; although a large 
percentage think that live music venues close too early.  
 

 
Total respondents: 98 and 99 
 

  

33 

28 
24 

9 
5 

44 

51 

65 

54 

63 

15 
19 

6 

15 

25 

7 

1 
4 

21 

5 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Live music venues Pubs/Bars Restaurants Off licences Fast food establishments

 How suitable do you feel the opening hours of food and alcohol outlets are for the City Centre? 

Close too early About right Open too late Don't know/No opinion

P
age 274



 

Appendix 

Question 13 graphs by type of person 

Total respondents 156 (including ‘No response’). 

 

In general, members of the public are more likely to view noise as a serious problem than business owners. Business owners are much more likely to say that 

the noise is not an issue.  

The majority of business holders do not see music from licensed premises being a problem. Members of the public are more likely to think of it as a problem; 

with 21% of those respondents (10 people) saying it was a serious problem.  

Only 2-3 business owners saw noise from people as being a serious problem, with a large proportion (between 33%-45%) believing it was not a serious 

problem. 36% of members of the public (15 people) believed that noise from people outside licensed premises was a serious problem, and between 45%-52% 

believed that other noise from people being outside being a moderate or minor problem. 

Noise from trade bins or deliveries was seen as much less of an issue for businesses. For members of the public, almost a half believed that it was a minor or 

moderate problem.   

 

 

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: 

 

 

1 
2 

1 

6 

2 2 

9 

2 

10 

2 

19 
21 

2 2 

6 

2 
1 1 

2 2 

9 

4 

1 

19 
21 

2 
1 

2 2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: Music from 
licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 275



 

 

 

 
 

1 1 
2 

6 

2 2 

11 
9 

15 

7 

21 

2 

5 

1 
2 2 

1 1 
2 

1 1 

11 

8 

2 
1 

11 

21 

1 

4 
2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: Noise from people 
gathered outside licensed premises (shouting etc.) 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)P

age 276



 

 

 
 

1 1 
2 

6 

2 2 

12 

6 

11 
13 

21 

3 
2 

1 

4 
2 

1 1 
3 

1 

9 

6 

2 
1 

15 

21 

2 
3 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: Noise from people 
travelling through residential areas to get to or from licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 1 1 

6 

1 1 
2 

14 

8 

11 

1 

8 

21 

2 
1 

4 
3 

2 
1 1 

2 2 

11 

5 
3 

1 

13 

21 

1 
2 2 2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: Noise from people 
gathered outside fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 277



 

 

 
 

  

2 
1 1 

6 

1 1 
2 

14 

6 6 

3 

13 

21 

3 
2 

5 

2 
1 1 

2 2 

9 

2 
1 

21 21 

2 
3 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: Noise from 
deliveries to fast food establishments or licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 
2 

1 

6 

2 2 

8 

13 

7 

2 

12 

21 

3 
2 

3 
4 

1 1 1 
3 

8 
6 

1 1 

17 

21 

1 
2 2 2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: Noise from empty 
bottles being put into trade bins 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 278



 

Question 14 graphs by type of person 

Total respondents 156/155 (including ‘No response’) 

In general, members of the public believe that fear of harassment, disturbance, criminal damage or personal assault/injury is a more serious problem than 

business owners.  

 

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: 

 

 
 

1 
2 

1 

6 

2 2 

14 

11 
10 

7 

21 

3 
2 2 

3 
2 

1 1 
2 2 

7 7 
6 

1 

12 

21 

1 

4 
2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: Fear of personal 
injury/assault 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 279



 

 

 
 

 
 

3 
1 

6 

2 2 

10 
12 

15 

5 

21 

2 
3 

2 
3 

2 
1 1 

2 
1 1 

11 

6 
8 

1 

7 

21 

1 

4 
2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: Fear of public 
nuisance/disturbance 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

3 
1 

6 

2 2 

9 

14 
12 

1 

6 

21 

1 
3 

1 

4 
2 

1 1 
3 

1 

10 
8 8 

2 

5 

21 

2 
3 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: Fear of criminal 
damage e.g. vandalism 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 280



 

 
 

 

  

3 
1 

6 

1 1 
2 

12 
14 

10 

1 

4 

21 

1 

5 

2 2 2 
1 1 

2 
1 1 

10 

5 

8 

1 

9 

21 

2 
3 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: Fear of 
harassment 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 281



 

 

Question 15 graphs by type of person 

Total respondents 156 (including ‘No response’) 

Members of the public were more likely to think that litter was an issue than businesses. This difference was especially clear with respect to fast food litter, 

with over half of the public thinking it was a serious issue, but under a third of business owners thought it was a serious issue. Businesses were more likely to 

say it was a minor or moderate issue. 

 

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: 

 

 
 

1 
3 

6 

2 2 

10 
9 

16 

7 

21 

4 
3 

2 
1 

2 
1 1 1 1 

2 

9 
10 

3 
1 

10 

21 

1 1 
3 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: Litter outside 
licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 282



 

 
 

  

3 
1 

6 

2 2 

6 

10 

24 

1 1 

21 

4 

1 

5 

2 1 1 1 2 1 

5 

15 

8 

2 
3 

21 

2 
3 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: Litter outside fast 
food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 
3 

6 

1 1 2 

5 

9 

26 

2 

21 

2 2 

5 

1 2 1 1 2 2 

8 

12 
10 

1 2 

21 

3 
2 2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the City Centre, how much of a problem do you think the following is: Litter being 
dropped in the street by people who have visited licensed premises/fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 283



 

 

Question 16 by type of person 

Total respondents 156 (including ‘No response’) 

 

Business owners in general were more likely to think that there were too few venues than members of the public; however only live music venues had a 

majority of business owners agreeing there are too few. A majority of members of the public believe that there are too many fast food establishments.  

 

Thinking about the City Centre, what is your opinion on the number of : 

 

 
 

3 

1 

6 

2 2 

5 

19 
18 

21 

5 5 

2 
1 1 

3 

1 

4 

12 

16 

22 

1 
2 2 2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Don’t know/no opinion There are too many There are about the
right number

There are too few No response

Thinking about the City Centre, what is your opinion on the number of: Traditional public houses 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 284



 

 
 

 

1 
3 

6 

1 
2 

21 

9 

12 

21 

5 
4 

1 
2 

1 1 1 1 
2 

3 

11 

14 

4 

22 

2 
3 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the City Centre, what is your opinion on the number of: Late night alcohol/music 
orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

3 

1 

6 

2 2 
3 

22 

6 

11 

21 

1 

5 

3 

1 
2 

1 1 

3 

1 

5 

14 

8 

3 

22 

2 
1 

2 2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the City Centre, what is your opinion on the number of: Food orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 285



 

 

 
 

 

3 

1 

6 

1 1 
2 

4 

18 

13 

7 

21 

2 

7 

1 
2 

1 1 1 

3 3 

9 

20 

22 

3 

1 1 
2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the City Centre, what is your opinion on the number of: Live music venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 
2 

1 

6 

1 1 
2 

9 

18 

14 

1 

21 

4 
5 

2 
1 1 1 1 

2 

9 
8 

13 

1 

22 

5 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the City Centre, what is your opinion on the number of: 
Family orientated venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 286



 

 
 

 

2 2 

6 

2 2 

16 

20 

2 

4 

21 

9 

1 
2 

1 1 
2 

1 1 

5 

12 

7 7 

22 

1 

3 

1 
2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the City Centre, what is your opinion on the number of: Off licences 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 

3 

6 

2 2 2 

13 

4 

23 

21 

1 

3 

1 

5 

2 
1 1 

2 
1 1 

3 

15 

1 

13 

22 

2 
3 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the City Centre, what is your opinion on the number of: Fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 287



 

 

 
 

  

4 
6 

2 2 

32 

8 

2 

21 

7 

3 2 1 1 
3 

1 2 

20 

9 

1 

22 

2 1 2 2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the City Centre, what is your opinion on the number of: Restaurants 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 

3 

6 

2 2 

10 

12 
11 

9 

21 

5 
4 

1 
2 

1 1 1 
2 

1 

3 

14 
13 

2 

22 

2 
3 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the City Centre, what is your opinion on the number of: Nightclubs 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 288



 

Question 17 by type of person 

Total respondents 156 (including ‘No response’) 

 

With all types of venues, members of the public mostly believed that venues closed at about the right time. Business owners agreed in the majority of cases 

however are much more likely to think that certain venues close too early.  

In the case of live music venues, 52% of business owners believed that they closed too early, as opposed to only 24% of members of the public. For  

With pubs/bars and fast food establishments, about a third of the members of the public said that they closed too late, whereas no business owners believed 

pubs/bars closed too early and only 3 (10%) believed fast food establishments do. 

 

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of food and alcohol outlets are for the City Centre? 

 

 

 
 

1 

3 

6 

2 2 

20 

9 

13 

21 

9 

1 
2 

1 1 1 

3 

16 

14 

1 

23 

2 
3 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Pubs/Bars are for the City Centre? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 289



 

 

 
 

 
 

1 1 
2 

6 

2 2 

19 

3 

13 

7 

21 

8 

1 1 
2 

1 1 

3 

1 

18 

4 

6 

3 

23 

4 

1 
2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Off licences are for the City Centre? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

3 
1 

6 

1 1 
2 

22 

3 3 

14 

21 

7 

2 2 
1 1 

3 
1 

25 

1 
2 

3 

23 

1 

4 
2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Fast food establishments are for the City Centre? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 290



 

 
 

 

2 
1 1 

6 

2 2 

33 

6 

1 
2 

21 

7 

2 
1 

2 
1 1 

3 
1 

15 
13 

3 

23 

2 
1 

2 2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Restaurants are for the City Centre? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 
2 

6 

2 2 

19 

10 

4 

9 

21 

4 
5 

1 
2 

1 1 
2 

1 1 

12 

16 

2 
1 

23 

3 
2 2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

 How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Live music venues are for the City Centre? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 291



 

 

Question 18 by type of person 

Total respondents: 156 (inc. ‘No response’) 

 

The majority of members of the public agree or strongly agree with all venue types apart from late night alcohol/music orientated bars, off licences, fast food 

establishments and nightclubs being opened. For business owners, in all cases they agreed with new venues opening. However in the examples of off 

licences and fast food establishments, there was only a difference of 2-4 people between agreeing and disagreeing.   

 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the City Centre? 

 

 

 
 

1 1 1 1 

6 

1 1 
2 

14 
16 

6 
4 

2 

21 

3 
5 

2 2 
1 1 

2 
1 1 

16 

7 
6 

2 
1 

22 

2 
1 1 1 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the City 
Centre?: Traditional public house 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence

P
age 292



 

 
 

 

1 
2 

1 

6 

1 1 
2 

10 

6 
8 

9 9 

21 

3 
4 

1 
2 2 

1 1 1 1 1 1 

12 

7 
8 

4 

1 

22 

1 1 
3 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the City 
Centre? Late night alcohol/music orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

2 
1 1 

6 

2 2 

5 

14 

10 10 

3 

21 

3 3 3 
1 

2 
1 1 1 1 

2 

13 
11 

6 

2 

22 

1 1 
2 

1 
2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the City 
Centre? Food orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 293



 

 

 
 

 

1 1 
2 

6 

2 2 

14 

9 
11 

4 4 

21 

4 
2 2 2 2 

1 1 1 
2 

1 

16 

7 
6 

2 
1 

22 

1 1 
2 

1 
2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the City 
Centre? Live music venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

2 2 

6 

1 1 
2 

8 

15 
14 

5 

21 

1 

4 4 

1 
2 

1 1 1 1 
2 

13 

7 
8 

3 
1 

22 

2 2 
1 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the City 
Centre? Family orientated venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 294



 

 
 

 

2 2 

6 

1 1 
2 

1 

5 

23 

10 

3 

21 

7 

2 
1 

2 
1 1 1 1 1 1 

7 

3 

15 

3 
4 

22 

2 2 
1 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the City 
Centre? Off licences 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 
2 

6 

2 2 2 

5 

14 14 

7 

21 

1 1 
3 

4 

1 
2 

1 1 1 1 
2 

8 

4 

13 

6 

1 

22 

1 
2 2 2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the City 
Centre? Fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 295



 

 

 
 

 

2 
1 1 

6 

2 2 
4 

23 

11 

4 

21 

2 

5 

2 
1 

2 
1 1 1 

2 
1 

12 
11 

7 

2 

22 

1 1 1 1 1 
2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the City 
Centre? Restaurants 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 
2 

1 

6 

1 1 
2 

8 

5 

9 
10 

9 

21 

4 
3 

2 
1 

2 
1 1 1 1 

2 

12 

8 8 

4 

22 

1 1 
3 

2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the City 
Centre? Nightclubs 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 296



APPENDIX 8 

Clifton CIA 
 

Effective January 2011  

 

An area comprising of Clifton Village and extending to Queens Road and Whiteladies Road. 

 
 

Reason for Assessment 

Clifton Village and the surrounding area has seen a rapid growth in restaurants, bars and cafes. These A3 

uses are mixed with residential areas and have led to an increase in public nuisance. The request for the 

CIA was made by the Clifton and Hotwells Improvement Society and is supported by local residents and 

Avon and Somerset Constabulary. Clifton Village is a popular destination with a vibrant day and night time 

economy. The CIA will help to protect the residential amenity and ensure that further expansion with 

licensed premises is not to the detriment of this important and iconic part of Bristol. The CIA, when 

triggered, will apply to applications for the grant of new licenses or significant variations of existing licenses 

in respect of premises that primarily provide alcohol for supply on the premises, restaurants and takeaway 

outlets. Applicants for licenses in the CIA area will need to be able to demonstrate that they can offer 

something different from what is currently available without adding to the impact already being experienced.

Policy Consultation Results 
The consultation was run between the dates of 1 August 2019 and 14 November 2019. There were a total 

of 78 questions. A total of 156 full responses were received. This is a low number of responses.  

 

An additional 45 written responses were also received separate to the survey. Not all of these related to the 

Clifton CIA. We received 24 emails relating to the Clifton CIA, and 68 responses that came from partially 

answered surveys. 

 

The number of people who answered the majority of questions about Clifton was 41-43. Page 297



APPENDIX 8 
It is important when considering these results that those who care more about the issues are more likely to 
answer the survey, whereas those who have no strong opinion are less likely to respond. This means that 
the sample may be biased, which is especially important to bear in mind given the low number of 
respondents.  
 

The small number of respondents means it is not possible to draw meaningful conclusions from these 

results. These figures cannot be seen as representative for the population of Bristol or the locality.  

 

 

Summary of survey results 

 

The majority of respondents to the question “to what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to 

continue with CIAs for Clifton” said they agreed or strongly agreed. When combined with the responses 

from the emails referencing Clifton and any partial responses, the strongly disagree and disagree numbers 

rise, but still the majority agree with keeping the CIAs. This question was the only one where we have 

considered the responses from partial survey responses or written responses. 

 

The majority of respondents (60%) did not go out in Clifton more than twice a year. Those who did not go 

out in Clifton were asked what the reasons were, the main ones being they don’t live in the area, preferring 

other areas, and the bars don’t appeal to them. 

 

Respondents were asked what they thought were serious, moderate or minor problems in Clifton. The ones 

that were considered more of a serious or moderate problem were litter and noise.  

 

When asked whether the number of different venues was too high, too low or just right, the majority places 

were said to have about the right number. Family orientated and live music venues were the exception with 

respondents saying there were too few.  

 

Then asked about whether they would agree or disagree with different types of venues opening in Clifton, 

only late night bars, nightclubs, fast food establishments and off licences were not wanted. For the other 

types of venues, most respondents would agree with their opening. This goes against the first question, 

and the Clifton CIA has been limiting the number of these venues that can be granted a licence. 

 

When asked about venue opening hours in Clifton, most respondents believed that they were about right 

for all types venues.  

 

 

Page 298



APPENDIX 8 
Analysis of Full Survey Results 

 

When asked about whether we should continue with the CIA for Clifton, the majority of people agreed that it should be kept. The below graph shows a 

combination of the survey (full and partial) responses, and comments from emails, where a large majority (22/24) said that the “…licensing policy in regards 

opening hours and number of venues needs to be relaxed…”. 

 

 
Total respondents = 156 full responses (5 did not answer), 24 emails, 68 partial responses 

 

  

70 

56 

117 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Strongly disagree/disagree Neither agree or disagree Strongly agree/agree

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to 
continue with the CIAs for Clifton 

P
age 299



APPENDIX 8 
When looking at just the full survey responses, it shows that a larger majority of responses agreed with the proposal. There may be an element of sample 

bias, where the survey was seen as too long by some respondents and so their views would not be included in the full survey analysis.  

 

 
Total respondents= 156 full responses 

 

The majority of respondents agree with keeping the Clifton CIA.  

30 

42 

79 

5 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Strongly disagree/
disagree

Neither agree nor
disagree

Strongly agree/ agree No answer

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to 
continue with the CIAs for Clifton - grouped, full responses only 

P
age 300



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

The two groups with the most respondents were a member of the public (62) and a local business owner with a premises licence (51). Public disagreed 17% 

(11 people), businesses disagreed 29% (15 people). The public were more likely to agree than businesses (58% vs 33%), but 37% of businesses neither 

agreed nor disagreed.  

 

  

0 0 

3 

4 

5 5 

6 

15 

17 

19 

0 0 

2 

0 

2 

8 

7 

19 

8 

9 

0 0 0 

2 

4 

0 0 

2 

3 

5 

1 

2 

0 0 

1 1 

0 

1 

0 0 
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree or disagree Agree Strongly Agree

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to continue with the CIAs for the Clifton - by type of person 

A person who works in Bristol A member of the public
A local Councillor or MP Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence
Other (please specify) A local community group representative
Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence A Trade Representative (please specify)

P
age 301



APPENDIX 8 
The majority of responses about Clifton were from BS1, BS8 and BS6. BS8 is the most affected by the CIA, and the majority of those residents agreed with 

keeping the CIA, however there was only a sample size of 19.  

 

 

Row Labels BS1  BS10 BS11 BS13 BS14 BS15 BS16 BS2  BS3  BS30 BS31 BS32 BS39 BS4  BS5  BS6  BS7  BS8  BS9  LS19 Total 

No answer 2 

  

1 

       

1 

        

4 

Strongly Agree 5 

 

1 4 1 

 

1 2 3 

    

4 3 6 

 

11 4 

 

45 

Agree 7 1 

 

1 

  

2 2 3 1 

   

2 4 3 

 

4 3 1 34 

Neither agree or 

disagree 11 2 1 

   

3 4 5 

 

1 

  

2 3 7 1 2 

  

42 

Disagree 5 

      

1 1 

   

1 1 1 

 

1 2 2 

 

15 

Strongly disagree 7 

    

1 1 2 

 

1 

     

2 1 

   

15 

Grand Total 37 3 2 6 1 1 7 11 12 2 1 1 1 9 11 18 3 19 9 1 155 

 

  P
age 302



APPENDIX 8 
The first question asked respondents how often they went to Clifton on a night out. It can be seen that the majority of respondents did not go to Clifton more 

than twice a year.  

 

 
Total respondents = 156 

 

51 

43 

26 25 

11 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Have not used this area
for a night out

Every 6 months Once a month More than once a month No answer

Over the past 12 months how often have you visited Clifton after 7pm to enjoy a night 
out? 

P
age 303



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

The majority of respondents were members of the public (61), followed by Local business owner/manager – that has a premises licence (52). In general they 

go out in Clifton a similar amount. 

 

  

3 

1 1 

3 
2 

1 1 

19 
18 

14 

9 

1 

3 
4 

1 

3 
2 

1 1 
2 

20 

18 

7 
6 

1 

3 

1 1 1 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Have not used this area for a night
out

Every 6 months Once a month More than once a month No answer

Over the past 12 months have you visited Clifton to enjoy a night out- broken up by type of respondent 

A local community group representative A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify) Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence

Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence Other (please specify)

P
age 304



APPENDIX 8 
When asked what the main reason was for not going out in Clifton, 48 of the 53 who did not go out in Clifton said that they did not live in the area, preferred 

other areas, and the bars don’t appeal to them.  

 

 
Total respondents = 48.  

28 

22 

20 

12 

8 

5 
4 4 

2 2 
1 1 1 1 1 1 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

I don't live near
the area

I prefer to go to
other areas

The bars don’t 
appeal to me 

There is not
enough public

transport to get
home

Lack of live
music venues

Lack of
accessible

public transport

Lack of cultural
activities on

offer e.g.
theatres

Fear of crime Lack of
restaurant

choice

Litter from
venues

Lack of family-
friendly

restaurants

Lack of family-
friendly pubs or

bars

The bars are
open too late

Lack of family-
friendly venues,

e.g. cinemas,
bowling alleys

There are not
enough taxis

available to get
home

Poor venue
accessibility

In the previous question you selected that you do not use Clifton for a night out. Please tell us why this is by selecting up 
to five reasons from the list below 

P
age 305



APPENDIX 8 

 
The two largest groups of respondents, members of the public and local business owners/managers with a premises licence, had the same reasons for not 

going to Clifton on a night out. 

  

0 0 0 0 6 1 0 2 1 0 5 11 3 12 1 4 1 1 1 0 

10 

3 
1 

1 
1 

0 

4 

7 

4 

9 

0 

0 

0 0 0 
0 

1 

0 

0 

1 
0 

1 

1 

1 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 0 0 
0 

2 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

1 

1 

2 

0 

1 

1 0 0 
1 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

1 

0 

0 

2 

0 

0 

0 
0 0 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

1 

1 

0 

2 

0 

0 

0 
0 0 0 

1 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 0 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Lack of
restaurant

choice

Lack of family-
friendly

restaurants

Lack of family-
friendly pubs or

bars

The bars are
open too late

The bars don’t 
appeal to me 

Lack of cultural
activities on

offer e.g.
theatres

Lack of family-
friendly venues,

e.g. cinemas,
bowling alleys

Fear of crime Litter from
venues

There are not
enough taxis

available to get
home

There is not
enough public

transport to get
home

I prefer to go to
other areas

Lack of live
music venues

I don't live near
the area

Poor venue
accessibility

Lack of
accessible

public transport

Clifton Reasons 

A member of the public Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence

Other (please specify) A person who works in Bristol

A local community group representative A local Councillor or MP

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence A Trade Representative (please specify)

P
age 306



APPENDIX 8 
Respondents were asked what they thought were major, moderate or minor problems, or not a problem at all. The most serious problems are litter and noise, 

although these problems are believed to be more a minor or not a problem than a serious or major problem. 

 

 
Total respondents = 43 to 44 

 

  

20 

18 18 18 
17 17 

15 15 

12 
11 11 11 

10 

21 21 21 
22 22 

24 
25 25 

28 

26 

22 

29 

23 

3 3 
4 

3 3 3 3 3 3 
4 

8 

3 

8 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Litter being dropped in
the street by people

who have visited
licensed premises/fast
food establishments

Noise from people
gathered outside
licensed premises

(shouting etc.)

Noise from people
travelling through

residential areas to get
to or from licensed

premises

Litter outside fast food
establishments

Noise from people
gathered outside fast
food establishments

Fear of public
nuisance/disturbance

Fear of criminal
damage e.g. vandalism

Litter outside licensed
premises

Fear of harassment Music from licensed
premises

Noise from deliveries
to fast food

establishments or
licensed premises

Fear of personal
injury/assault

Noise from empty
bottles being put into

trade bins

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is? 

A serious/moderate problem A minor problem/ Not at all a problem Don’t know/No opinion 

P
age 307



APPENDIX 8 
When asked about their opinions on the number of venues in Clifton, people said that there were about the right amount of most venues. However family 

orientated and live music venues were too few. Nightclubs split the vote three ways, and late night alcohol/music orientated bars was also very close in all 3 

directions.  

 

 
Total respondents = 41 to 44 

 

  

2 

6 

3 

6 

12 
11 

8 
9 

6 

12 

9 

21 21 

16 

11 

20 

23 

25 
24 

17 
16 

13 

11 11 
10 

6 

4 4 

9 

4 

2 

4 

9 

4 4 

7 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Family orientated
venues

Live music venues Traditional public
houses

Restaurants Late night
alcohol/music

orientated bars

Nightclubs Food orientated
bars

Fast food
establishments

Off licences

Thinking about Clifton, what is your opinion on the number of: 

There are too many There are about the right number There are too few Don’t know/no opinion 

P
age 308



APPENDIX 8 
When asked about whether they would agree or disagree with different types of premises being opened in the area, most respondents would agree with new 

family orientated venues, traditional pubs, restaurants, food orientated bars and live music venues. Nightclubs and late night bars split the vote. Fast food and 

off licences were not agreed with.  

 

 

 
Total respondents = 41 to 43 

 

  

3 

6 

10 10 

13 

21 

18 

20 

16 

11 
10 10 

11 
10 

6 

10 
11 

17 

28 

26 

22 
21 

19 

16 

13 

11 

9 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Family orientated
venues

Traditional public
house

Restaurants Food orientated
bars

Live music venues Late night
alcohol/music

orientated bars

Nightclubs Fast food
establishments

Off licences

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Clifton? 

Strongly disagree/disagree Neither agree or disagree Strongly agree/agree

P
age 309



APPENDIX 8 
When asked about opening hours, most people believed that places were open to about the right time.  

 

 
Total respondents = 41 to 42 

 

  

10 10 
9 

5 5 

22 

17 

26 

22 
21 

7 
8 

4 

8 

12 

2 

7 

3 

7 

4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Pubs/Bars Live music venues Restaurants Off licences Fast food establishments

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of food and alcohol outlets are for Clifton? 

Close too early About right Open too late Don't know/No opinion

P
age 310



APPENDIX 8 

Appendix 
Question 34 graphs by type of respondent 

Total respondents: 153/155 (inc. ‘No response’). This is a very small sample size. 

 

The number of respondents who responded were:  

Members of the public = 19, one person = 5% 

Local business owner/ manager with a premises licence = 10, one person = 10% 

This is an extremely small sample size, and cannot at all be seen as representative of the population of Bristol. 

 

Members of the public were more likely to think that noise was a more serious problem than business owners, however only noise from people travelling had a 

majority say it was either a major or serious problem.  Otherwise noise was seen as either not an issue, or a minor issue, by both the public and business 

owners 

 

 

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: 

 

 
 

2 2 
6 

1 1 2 1 2 
6 

2 

8 

42 

1 1 1 

8 

2 1 
3 4 

6 

44 

1 1 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Music from licensed 
premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 311



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 2 
6 

1 1 2 
4 4 

6 5 

42 

1 2 1 

8 

2 1 
3 

5 
2 3 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Noise from people 
gathered outside licensed premises (shouting etc.) 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 
3 

6 

1 1 2 
4 3 

7 

1 
5 

42 

1 2 1 

8 

2 1 
3 

6 
2 2 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Noise from people 
travelling through residential areas to get to or from licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 312



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

2 1 1 

6 

1 1 2 3 
5 5 6 

42 

1 2 1 

8 

2 1 
3 3 

1 

6 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Noise from people 
gathered outside fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 313



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

  

1 2 1 

6 

1 1 2 
4 4 3 2 

5 

42 

1 2 1 

8 

2 1 
3 2 1 1 

6 

44 

1 1 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Noise from deliveries to 
fast food establishments or licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 2 
6 

1 1 2 
4 5 

2 2 
5 

42 

1 2 1 

8 

2 1 
3 4 

1 1 
4 

44 

1 1 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Noise from empty bottles 
being put into trade bins 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 314



APPENDIX 8 
Question 35 graphs by type of respondent 

Total respondents: 153/155 (inc. ‘No response’). This is a very small sample size. 

 

The number of respondents who responded were:  

Members of the public = 20, one person = 5% 

Local business owner/ manager with a premises licence = 10, one person = 10% 

This is an extremely small sample size, and cannot at all be seen as representative of the population of Bristol. 

 

Members of the public were more likely to say that these fears were a problem than business owners. With fear of public disturbance, only 35% of members of 

the public said that it was a serious issue, and for fear of criminal damage only 45% said it was a moderate or serious issue. The majority of business owners 

said that these fears were either minor or not at all a problem.  

 

 

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: 

 

 
 

1 1 2 
6 

1 1 2 

8 
4 

1 

7 

42 

1 2 1 

8 

2 1 
3 3 

1 

6 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Fear of personal 
injury/assault 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 315



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 2 1 

6 

1 1 2 
5 4 

7 
5 

42 

1 2 1 

8 

2 1 
3 

5 5 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Fear of public 
nuisance/disturbance 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 2 1 

6 

1 1 2 
6 5 4 5 

42 

1 2 1 

8 

2 1 
3 

5 5 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Fear of criminal damage 
e.g. vandalism 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 316



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

  

1 1 1 1 

6 

1 1 2 

8 

4 
2 

6 

42 

1 2 1 

8 

2 1 
3 2 1 

7 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Fear of harassment 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 317



APPENDIX 8 
Question 36 graphs by type of respondent 

Total respondents: 153/155 (inc. ‘No response’). This is a very small sample size. 

The number of respondents who responded were:  

Members of the public = 20, one person = 5% 

Local business owner/ manager with a premises licence = 10, one person = 10% 

This is an extremely small sample size, and cannot at all be seen as representative of the population of Bristol. 

 

Litter was seen as a bigger problem for members of the public than for businesses. The majority of members of the public say it’s a fairly big or very big 

problem. The majority of business owners viewed litter as either not a problem or not a big problem.  

 

 

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: 

 

 
 

2 1 1 

6 
2 2 

6 
4 

6 
4 

42 

2 1 1 

8 

2 1 
3 4 

6 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A fairly big problem A very big problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not a big problem Not a problem at all No response

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Litter outside licensed 
premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 318



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 1 1 

6 

1 1 2 

8 
5 5 

2 

42 

2 1 1 

8 

2 1 
3 

1 

6 
3 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A fairly big problem A very big problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not a big problem Not a problem at all No response

 Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Litter outside fast food 
establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 1 1 

6 
2 2 

8 
5 6 

2 

42 

2 1 1 

8 

2 1 
3 2 

5 
3 

44 

1 1 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A fairly big problem A very big problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not a big problem Not a problem at all No response

Thinking about Clifton, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Litter being dropped in 
the street by people who have visited licensed premises/fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 319



APPENDIX 8 
Question 37 graphs by type of respondent 

Total respondents: 153/155 (inc. ‘No response’). This is a very small sample size. 

The number of respondents who responded were:  

Members of the public = 20, one person = 5% 

Local business owner/ manager with a premises licence = 10, one person = 10% 

This is an extremely small sample size, and cannot at all be seen as representative of the population of Bristol. 

 

In general, the public thinks that there is the right number of venues, except for nightclubs (40%), live music venues (19%), family orientated venues (30%) 

and late night alcohol/music orientated bars (38%). In the case of late night bars only 2 people separated those who thought there were too many (29%) and 

too few (19%). In the case of nightclubs, family orientated venues and live music venues, the largest proportion said that there were too few.  

Business owners also believe that the majority of types have the right number, except for live music venues and  family orientated venues., where they believe 

there are too few.  This suggests that the public are more likely to think that there should be more venues, and are more likely to think this than business 

owners.  

 

Thinking about Clifton, what is your opinion on the number of:  

 

 
 

3 
1 

6 

1 1 2 1 

12 

7 

1 

42 

1 
3 

8 

2 1 
3 

1 

5 
3 

1 

44 

1 1 

5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Clifton, what is your opinion on the number of: Traditional public houses 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 320



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 2 

6 

1 1 2 1 

7 

3 

9 

42 

1 1 2 

8 

2 1 
3 

1 

5 4 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Clifton, what is your opinion on the number of: Late night alcohol/music orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

3 
1 

6 

1 1 2 2 

8 

4 
6 

42 

1 2 

8 

2 1 
3 

1 

5 4 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Clifton, what is your opinion on the number of: Food orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 321



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 1 2 

6 

1 1 2 
5 4 

7 
4 

42 

2 

8 

2 1 
3 2 3 

5 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Clifton, what is your opinion on the number of: Live music venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)P

age 322



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

2 1 1 

6 

1 1 2 1 

6 

12 

1 

42 

3 

8 

2 1 
3 

1 2 

7 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Clifton, what is your opinion on the number of: Family orientated venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 2 1 

6 

1 1 2 
4 

11 

1 
4 

42 

1 1 1 

8 

2 1 
3 

1 

8 

1 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Clifton, what is your opinion on the number of: Off licences 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 323



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

 

2 1 1 

6 

1 1 2 

10 

2 

8 

42 

1 2 

8 

2 1 
3 

1 

7 

2 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Clifton, what is your opinion on the number of: Fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 2 
6 

1 1 2 

12 

4 4 

42 

3 

8 

2 1 
3 

1 
5 4 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Clifton, what is your opinion on the number of: Restaurants 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 324



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

  

1 1 2 

6 

1 1 2 
5 

3 4 

8 

42 

3 

8 

2 1 
3 2 

5 
3 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Clifton, what is your opinion on the number of: Nightclubs 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 325



APPENDIX 8 
Question 38 graphs by type of respondent 

Total respondents: 153/155 (inc. ‘No response’).  

The number of respondents who responded were:  

Members of the public = 20, one person = 5% 

Local business owner/ manager with a premises licence = 10, one person = 10% 

This is an extremely small sample size, and cannot at all be seen as representative of the population of Bristol. 

 

For all except fast food establishments and live music venues, members of the public believed that venues closed at about the right time. Fast food 

establishments were thought to close too early, whereas live music venues close too late – although only 2 people separated too early and too late. The 

majority of business owners believe that venues close at about the right time.  

 

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of food and alcohol outlets are for Clifton? 

 

 
 

1 1 2 

6 

1 1 2 

10 

3 
1 

5 

43 

2 1 

9 

2 1 
3 

6 
4 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Pubs/Bars are for Clifton? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 326



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

2 1 1 

6 

1 1 2 

10 

2 
4 4 

43 

1 1 1 

9 

2 1 
3 

6 

2 1 1 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Off licences are for Clifton? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

2 1 1 

6 

1 1 2 
5 

3 
1 

11 

43 

2 1 

9 

2 1 
3 

8 

1 1 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

 How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Fast food establishments are for Clifton? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 327



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

  

2 1 1 

6 

1 1 2 

12 

3 2 3 

43 

1 2 

9 

2 1 
3 

7 

3 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Restaurants are for Clifton? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 2 

6 

1 1 2 
5 4 5 6 

43 

1 2 

9 

2 1 
3 

7 

2 1 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Live music venues are for Clifton? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 328



APPENDIX 8 
Question 39 graphs by type of respondent 

Total respondents: 154/156 (inc. ‘No response’).  

The number of respondents who responded were:  

Members of the public = 20, one person = 5% 

Local business owner/ manager with a premises licence = 10, one person = 10% 

This is an extremely small sample size, and cannot at all be seen as representative of the population of Bristol. 

 

In general, the public is split by a couple of people on whether they agree or disagree with new premises opening. Exceptions being pubs, with 55% agreeing 

and 10% disagreeing, family orientated venues, with 60% agreeing and 5% (one person) disagreeing, and off licences and fast food establishments, 25% 

agreeing and 55% disagreeing. The majority of business owners agreed with new premises being opened for all types, although in the case of off licences 

only 3 people chose not to neither agree or disagree, .  

 

 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Clifton?: 

 

 
 

1 1 2 
6 

1 1 2 
5 6 7 

2 

42 

2 1 

9 

2 1 
3 4 3 2 1 

44 

1 1 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Clifton?: 
Traditional public house 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 329



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 2 1 

6 

1 1 2 
5 

1 
4 

6 5 

42 

2 1 

9 

2 1 
3 4 

1 1 2 2 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Clifton?: Late 
night alcohol/music orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 1 1 

6 
2 2 

4 4 5 4 3 

42 

2 1 

9 

2 1 
3 

5 
2 2 1 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Clifton?: 
Food orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 330



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 2 1 

6 

1 1 2 
6 

1 

6 
3 4 

42 

2 1 

9 

2 1 
3 3 3 2 2 

44 

1 1 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Clifton?: Live 
music venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence

2 1 1 

6 

1 1 2 
5 

8 
6 

1 

42 

2 1 

9 

2 1 
3 4 

2 3 
1 

44 

1 1 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Clifton?: 
Family orientated venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence

P
age 331



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

3 
1 

6 

1 1 2 2 3 4 
8 

3 

42 

1 1 1 

9 

2 1 
3 

1 1 

7 

1 

44 

1 1 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Clifton?: Off 
licences 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence

2 1 1 

6 

1 1 2 2 3 2 
5 

8 

42 

2 1 

9 

2 1 
3 

1 2 
5 

1 1 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Clifton?: Fast 
food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 332



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 1 1 

6 

1 1 2 3 
6 5 4 

2 

42 

2 1 

9 

2 1 
3 4 3 2 1 

44 

1 1 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Clifton?: 
Restaurants 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence

3 
1 

6 

1 1 2 3 2 
6 

4 4 

42 

2 1 

9 

2 1 
3 2 2 3 

1 2 

44 

2 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Clifton?: 
Nightclubs 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence

P
age 333



APPENDIX 8 

Gloucester Road CIA 
 

Effective January 2011 

 

The area covers a stretch of Gloucester Road from its junction with Pitt Road and Rudthorpe Road to the 

Arches on Cheltenham Road and also includes a section of Zetland Road. 

 

Assessment 

This stretch of Gloucester Road, which is a major transport route in and out of the city, features a mix of 

retail and leisure uses with primarily residential areas behind the frontages. The request for a CIA to be 

introduced was made by the Police and supported by local residential amenity groups. The potential for 

increased public nuisance and crime and disorder arising from further licenses being granted is a major 

concern for local residents in this area and the Police. In particular the area, which has a significant Page 334



2   

 

concentration of alcohol led late night venues, witnesses a high number of assaults and other related crime 

and disorder including public nuisance and risk to public safety.  

 

The ability to prevent further encroachment into the normal sleeping times of local residents is also a key 

aspect of this CIA. The assessment will apply to further applications for the grant of new licenses or 

significant variations of existing licenses in respect of premises that primarily sell alcohol for consumption 

on the premises, other late night uses, restaurants and take away outlets. The main focus of the 

assessment is likely to be on alcohol led establishments and premises that keep customers in the area at 

times when the promotion of the licensing objectives is most challenging (for example late night 

refreshment from “fast food” outlets) 

 

 
Policy Consultation Results 
The consultation was run between the dates of 1 August 2019 and 14 November 2019. There were a total 
of 78 questions. A total of 156 full responses were received. This is a low number of responses. 
 
An additional 45 written responses were also received separate to the survey. Not all of these related to the 
Gloucester Road CIA. We received 23 emails relating to the Gloucester Road CIA, and 71 responses that 
came from partially answered surveys. 
 
The number of people who answered the majority of questions about the Gloucester Road was 51-52. 
 
It is important when considering these results that those who care more about the issues are more likely to 
answer the survey, whereas those who have no strong opinion are less likely to respond. This means that 
the sample may be biased, which is especially important to bear in mind given the low number of 
respondents.  
 
The small number of respondents means it is not possible to draw meaningful conclusions from these 

results. These figures cannot be seen as representative for the population of Bristol or the locality.  

 
 

 

Summary of survey results 

 

The majority of respondents, when asked ‘to what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to 

continue with the CIAs for Gloucester Road’ agreed or strongly agreed. When adding in the partial and 

written responses the number who disagreed or strongly disagreed  with the proposal increased, although 

the majority still agreed with it. This question was the only one where we have considered the responses 

from partial survey responses or written responses. 

 

When asked how often respondents when on a night out on Gloucester Road, a large percentage of 

respondents (34%) had not used this area. Of those respondents, the main reasons for not going to 

Gloucester Road were that they did not live in that area or they preferred other areas.  

 

When asked about whether different issues were problems for Gloucester Road, litter was seen as the 

most serious/moderate problem.  

 

When asked about the number of venues, in most cases there were the right number, with only live music 

venues and family orientated venues seen as being too few.  

 

The majority of respondents would agree with the opening of traditional public houses, restaurants, family 

orientated venues, live music venues and food orientated bars being opened on Gloucester Road. This 

appears to go against the first question. Late night alcohol/music orientated bars, off licences and 

Page 335



 

nightclubs were split with only 6, 4 and 2 people respectively separating the vote between agreeing and 

disagreeing with one being opened. Fast food establishments were not wanted. 

 

The majority of respondents believed that venues closed at about the right time. However, a large 

proportion believed that pubs/bars and live music venues closed too early, 38% and 37% respectively.  

 

 

Page 336



APPENDIX 8 
Analysis of Full Survey Results  

 
When asked about whether we should continue with the CIA for Gloucester Road, the majority of people agreed that it should be kept. The below graph 

shows a combination of the survey (full and partial) responses, and comments from emails, where a large majority (21/23) said that the “…licensing policy in 

regards opening hours and number of venues needs to be relaxed…”  

 

 
Total respondents = 156 full survey responses (5 did not answer), 71 partial survey responses, and 23 email responses 

  

73 

46 

126 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Strongly disagree/disagree Neither agree or disagree Strongly agree/agree

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to 
continue with the CIAs for Gloucester Road 

P
age 337



 

When looking at just the full survey responses, it shows that a larger majority of responses agreed with the proposal. There may be an element of sample 

bias, where the survey was seen as too long by some respondents and so their views would not be included in the full survey analysis. 

 

 
Total respondents = 156 

 

The majority of respondents strongly agreed or agreed with the proposal.  

33 30 

88 

5 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Strongly disagree/
disagree

Neither agree nor
disagree

Strongly agree/ agree No answer

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to 
continue with the CIAs for the Gloucester Road - grouped, full survey 

only 

P
age 338



 

 
 

If you break down the survey responses by type of person, can see that the two groups with the most respondents: a member of the public (61) and a local 

business owner (52) with a premises licence, are mostly aligned. A larger portion of both groups agree with the proposal, 61% of public and 47% of business 

owners. Business owners are more split, with 47% agreeing and 31% disagreeing (an 8 person difference).   

 

 

1 1 

2 

3 

5 

7 

4 

12 

18 

20 

0 0 

1 

0 

3 

8 8 

12 

11 

13 

0 0 0 

1 

5 

0 0 

2 

3 

5 

1 

2 

0 0 

1 1 

0 

1 

0 0 
0

5

10

15

20

25

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree or disagree Agree Strongly Agree

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to continue with the CIAs for the Glouscester Road - by type 
of person 

A person who works in Bristol A member of the public
A local Councillor or MP Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence
Other (please specify) A local community group representative
Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence A Trade Representative (please specify)

P
age 339



 

Row Labels BS1  BS10 BS11 BS13 BS14 BS15 BS16 BS2  BS3  BS30 BS31 BS32 BS39 BS4  BS5  BS6  BS7  BS8  BS9  LS19 Total 

- 2 
  

1 
       

1 
        

4 

Strongly Agree 8 
 

2 4 1 
 

2 2 4 
    

4 4 9 
 

8 4 
 

52 

Agree 8 1 
 

1 
  

2 3 4 1 
   

2 4 3 
 

5 2 
 

36 
Neither agree or 
disagree 10 2 

    
2 2 4 

 
1 

  
2 1 1 1 3 1 

 
30 

Disagree 3 
      

2 
     

1 1 3 1 2 2 
 

15 
Strongly 
disagree 7 

    
1 1 2 

 
1 

  
1 

 
1 2 1 

  
1 18 

Grand Total 38 3 2 6 1 1 7 11 12 2 1 1 1 9 11 18 3 18 9 1 155 

 

The majority of people who answered this above question (full responses only) were from people living in BS1, followed by BS6 & BS8. BS7, where the 

majority of the CIA is located, only had 3 respondents 

  

P
age 340



 

The first question asked respondents how often they went to Gloucester Road on a night out. It can be seen that the majority of people (53 respondents, 34%) 

have not been there for a night out in the last 12 months.  

 

 
Total respondents = 156 

 

53 

34 

21 

32 

16 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Have not used this
area for a night out

Every 6 months Once a month More than once a
month

No answer

Over the past 12 months how often have you visited the Gloucester Road after 
7pm to enjoy a night out? 

P
age 341



 

 
 

The majority of respondents where members of the public (55), followed by Local business owner/manager – that has a premises licence (53). In general they 

go out on Gloucester Road a similar amount. However the members of the public answering this survey were more likely to not have used this area for a night 

out, whereas business owners were more likely to use this area once a month or more.  

1 

6 

1 1 
2 

1 1 

12 

27 

9 

6 

3 
2 

4 

2 2 
1 1 

2 
1 

15 

13 

16 

8 

1 1 

3 

1 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

No answer Every 6 months Have not used this area for a night
out

More than once a month Once a month

Over the past 12 months have you visited Gloucester Road to enjoy a night out- broken up by type of respondent 

A local community group representative A local Councillor or MP
A member of the public A person who works in Bristol
A Trade Representative (please specify) Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence Other (please specify)

P
age 342



 

Of those 53 people, 45 answered why they don’t visit the area. This is mostly because they don’t live near the area, and would prefer to go to other places. 

The fear of crime only has 11 people saying that this is an issue.  

 

 
Total respondents = 45 

29 

27 

11 11 

9 

7 

5 

3 3 
2 2 

1 1 1 1 
0 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

I don't live near
the area

I prefer to go to
other areas

The bars don’t 
appeal to me 

Fear of crime There is not
enough public
transport to

get home

Lack of cultural
activities on

offer e.g.
theatres

Litter from
venues

Lack of family-
friendly

venues, e.g.
cinemas,

bowling alleys

Lack of
accessible

public
transport

The bars are
open too late

Poor venue
accessibility

Lack of family-
friendly

restaurants

Lack of family-
friendly pubs or

bars

There are not
enough taxis

available to get
home

Lack of live
music venues

Lack of
restaurant

choice

In the previous question you selected that you do not use Gloucester Road for a night out. Please tell us why this is by 
selecting up to five reasons from the list below 

P
age 343



 

 
The two largest groups of respondents, members of the public and local business owners/managers with a premises licence, had the same reasons for not 

going out on Gloucester Road for  a night out. 

  

0 0 1 4 5 2 8 3 0 5 20 0 17 1 2 0 0 1 
0 

3 
1 

1 

2 

0 

0 

2 

4 

1 

4 

0 
1 

0 0 
0 0 

1 
0 

0 

1 

0 

1 

1 

1 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 0 
0 0 

1 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1 

1 

0 

0 0 
0 1 

1 

0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

1 

1 

0 

4 

0 
0 

0 0 
0 

0 

1 

1 

0 

0 

1 

0 

0 

1 

0 

2 

0 
0 

0 0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Lack of
restaurant

choice

Lack of family-
friendly

restaurants

Lack of family-
friendly pubs or

bars

The bars are
open too late

The bars don’t 
appeal to me 

Lack of cultural
activities on

offer e.g.
theatres

Lack of family-
friendly venues,

e.g. cinemas,
bowling alleys

Fear of crime Litter from
venues

There are not
enough taxis

available to get
home

There is not
enough public

transport to get
home

I prefer to go to
other areas

Lack of live
music venues

I don't live near
the area

Poor venue
accessibility

Lack of
accessible

public transport

Gloucester Road Reasons 

A member of the public Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence

Other (please specify) A person who works in Bristol

A local community group representative A local Councillor or MP

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence A Trade Representative (please specify)

P
age 344



 

Respondents were asked what they thought were major, moderate or minor problems, or not a problem at all. It can be seen that litter is the most serious type 

of problems. Noise and fear of harassment or public nuisance is mostly seen as a minor problem.  

 

 
Total respondents = 52 

  

33 
31 

22 22 22 
21 21 21 

17 
16 

14 

10 
8 

19 
21 

29 
30 30 

31 31 
30 

35 
34 

35 

40 
41 

0 0 
1 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
2 

3 
2 

3 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Litter outside fast food
establishments

Litter being dropped in
the street by people

who have visited
licensed premises/fast
food establishments

Noise from people
gathered outside
licensed premises

(shouting etc.)

Fear of harassment Litter outside licensed
premises

Noise from people
gathered outside fast
food establishments

Fear of public
nuisance/disturbance

Fear of criminal
damage e.g. vandalism

Fear of personal
injury/assault

Noise from people
travelling through

residential areas to get
to or from licensed

premises

Noise from empty
bottles being put into

trade bins

Noise from deliveries
to fast food

establishments or
licensed premises

Music from licensed
premises

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is? 

A serious/moderate problem A minor problem/ Not at all a problem Don’t know/No opinion 

P
age 345



 

When asked about their opinions on the number of venues, people said that there were not enough live music or family orientated venues in the areas, 

although the majority of types of venues have the right amount. Saying that, a large proportion of respondents also said there were too few traditional pubs 

and restaurants.  

 

Fast food establishments were considered about the right number, but with a large proportion of respondents thinking there are too many. 

 

 
Total respondents = 51 or 52. 

  

27 
26 

19 
18 

17 17 

13 

6 
5 

15 

19 

32 

29 

24 

19 

26 
25 

35 

4 

1 1 

3 

9 

6 

11 

19 

9 

6 6 

0 

2 2 

9 

2 2 
3 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Live music venues Family orientated
venues

Traditional public
houses

Restaurants Late night
alcohol/music

orientated bars

Nightclubs Food orientated
bars

Fast food
establishments

Off licences

Thinking about Gloucester Road, what is your opinion on the number of: 

There are too few There are about the right number There are too many Don’t know/no opinion 

P
age 346



 

When asked about whether they would agree or disagree with different types of premises being opened in the area, for most types of venues respondents 

agreed with them being opened. Nightclubs and late night music venues were split on whether they would want them. The fact that respondents would agree 

with new venues, especially traditional pubs, live music venues and food orientated bars being opened suggests that the CIA is not bringing in the types of 

venues that citizens are interested in. 

 

 

 
Total respondents = 51 or 52. 

  

4 
6 5 

10 10 

18 

21 

16 

21 

9 8 

13 

9 
11 10 

12 

23 

18 

39 38 

34 
32 

30 

24 

19 

12 12 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Traditional public
house

Restaurants Family orientated
venues

Live music venues Food orientated
bars

Late night
alcohol/music

orientated bars

Nightclubs Off licences Fast food
establishments

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Gloucester Road? 

Strongly disagree/disagree Neither agree or disagree Strongly agree/agree

P
age 347



 

When asked about opening hours, most people believed that places closed at about the right time, although the results for pubs/bars and live music venues is 

very close. This would suggest that the CIA is possibly having an effect on the closing times, which respondents believe should be relaxed. In addition, as the 

CIA is in place to protect normal sleeping times, people believing that places should be open later suggests that the CIA is being used in a way that is not 

helpful for this. 

 

 
Total respondents = 51 or 52, which is not large enough for a representative sample. 

 

 

  

20 
19 

17 

7 
5 

27 
25 

32 
31 

30 

5 
3 

1 

11 11 

0 

5 

1 
2 

6 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Pubs/Bars Live music venues Restaurants Fast food establishments Off licences

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of food and alcohol outlets are for Gloucester Road? 

Close too early About right Open too late Don't know/No opinion

P
age 348



 

Appendix 

Question 20 by type of respondent 

Total respondents = 156 (inc. ‘No response’).  

The total number of respondents who responded to the question: 

Member of the public = 21 people 

Local business owner/ manager that has a premises licence = 19 people 

 

In general, noise is seen more as a minor/moderate problem – with more people thinking minor than moderate – rather than a serious problem. The issues 

that the public said were the most serious was noise from people gathered outside licensed premises and gathered outside fast food establishments (4 

people, 19%).  The issue that business owners said was the most serious was people gathered outside fast food restaurants (4 people, 21%). The public and 

business owners align mostly on this; however the sample size means that is impossible to say that this is representative of the people of Bristol or the 

locality.   

 

 

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: 

 

 
 

10 

1 1 2 

7 

3 
1 

10 

42 

2 2 

8 

2 1 2 1 

9 

2 1 

7 

35 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Music from licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not
have a premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a
premises licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 349



 

 
 

 

10 

1 1 2 
5 

7 

2 

7 

42 

1 1 2 

8 

2 1 2 1 

8 

4 4 3 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Noise from people gathered 
outside licensed premises (shouting etc.) 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

10 

1 1 2 

7 

3 3 

8 

42 

2 2 

8 

2 1 2 1 

5 5 
2 1 

6 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Noise from people travelling 
through residential areas to get to or from licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 350



 

 
 

 
 

10 

1 1 2 

6 5 4 
6 

42 

1 1 2 

8 

2 2 1 1 

6 6 

2 
5 

35 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

A minor problem A moderate problem A serious problem Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Noise from people gathered 
outside fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence

Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence

Other (please specify)

10 

1 1 2 

6 
4 

2 

9 

42 

2 2 

8 

2 1 2 1 

7 

2 1 

9 

35 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Noise from deliveries to fast food 
establishments or licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 351



 

 
 

  

10 

1 1 2 

7 
4 

2 1 

7 

42 

1 
3 

8 

2 1 2 1 

6 
4 

1 1 

7 

35 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Noise from empty bottles being 
put into trade bins 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 352



 

Question 21 by type of respondent 

Total respondents = 156 (inc. ‘No response’). This is a very small sample size. 

The total number of respondents who responded to the question: 

Member of the public = 21 people 

Local business owner/ manager that has a premises licence = 19 people 

 

In general, business owners are less likely to think of these fears as much of a problem as members of the public, but the members of the public mostly view 

these issues as a minor problem, not a serious one. The issue that had the most members of the public view as serious was fear of criminal damage (5 

people, 24%), and for business owners was fear of harassment (4 people, 21%). 

 

 

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: 

 

 
 

10 

1 1 2 

10 

3 3 
5 

42 

4 

8 

2 1 2 1 
4 3 3 

9 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

A minor problem A moderate problem A serious problem Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Fear of 
personal injury/assault 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 353



 

 
 

 
 

10 

1 1 2 

6 6 
4 5 

42 

4 

8 

2 2 1 1 
4 4 3 

8 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

A minor problem A moderate problem A serious problem Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Fear of public 
nuisance/disturbance 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

10 

1 1 2 

7 
4 5 5 

42 

4 

8 

2 1 1 1 1 

8 

3 3 4 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

A minor problem A moderate problem A serious problem Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Fear of criminal 
damage e.g. vandalism 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 354



 

 
 

  

10 

1 1 2 

9 

4 4 4 

42 

4 

8 

2 2 1 
4 3 4 4 

8 

35 

2 1 1 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

A minor problem A moderate problem A serious problem Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Fear of 
harassment 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Other (please specify)

Local business owner/manager No reponse that has a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager No reponse that does not
have a premises licenceP

age 355



 

Question 22 by type of respondent 

Total respondents = 156 (inc. ‘No response’).  

The total number of respondents who responded to the question: 

Member of the public = 21 people 

Local business owner/ manager that has a premises licence = 19 people 

 

Litter was viewed as a serious problem by 29-38% of members of the public (6-8 people). Litter outside fast food establishments was the one that more 

members of the public said was a serious problem (38%, 8 people). For business owners, 32% (6 people) thought that litter from or outside fast food 

establishments was a serious issue.  

 

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: 

 

 

10 

1 1 2 
4 5 6 6 

42 

1 
3 

8 

2 1 2 1 

5 4 4 
6 

35 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

A minor problem A moderate problem A serious problem Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Litter outside 
licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 356



 

 
 

 

  

10 

1 1 2 2 

7 8 

4 

42 

2 1 1 

8 

2 2 1 1 

5 5 6 
3 

35 

1 2 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

A minor problem A moderate problem A serious problem Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: Litter outside 
fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

10 

1 1 2 
5 6 7 

3 

42 

1 2 1 

8 

2 2 1 1 

7 
4 

6 

2 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

A minor problem A moderate problem A serious problem Not at all a problem No response

Litter being dropped in the street by people who have visited licensed premises/fast food 
establishments A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 357



 

Question 23 by type of respondent 

Total respondents = 156 (inc. ‘No response’). This is a very small sample size. 

The total number of respondents who responded to the question: 

Member of the public = 21 people 

Local business owner/ manager that has a premises licence = 19 people 

 

In general, most types of venues have about the right number of premises, with the exceptions being live music venues, family orientated venues, and fast 

food establishments. With live music venues, 42% of the members of the public and 48% of business owners say that there are too few. For family orientated 

venues, 48% of members of the public and 47% of business owners say there are too few. With fast food establishments, 52% of the members of the public 

said there were too many, whereas only 21% of business owners said this.  

 

 

 

Thinking about Gloucester Road, what is your opinion on the number of: 

 

 

10 

2 2 

14 

7 

42 

1 
3 

8 

2 3 
1 

10 
8 

1 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

There are about the right
number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Traditional public houses 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 358



 

 
 

 

10 

2 2 

10 

6 5 

42 

2 2 

8 

2 1 2 1 2 

7 7 

3 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Late night alcohol/music 
orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

10 

2 2 1 

7 6 7 

42 

1 2 1 

8 

2 3 
1 1 

11 

5 
2 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Food orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 359



 

 
 

 

10 

1 1 2 3 

7 
9 

2 

42 

1 
3 

8 

2 1 2 1 
3 2 

12 

2 

35 

3 4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Live music venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

10 

2 2 2 

9 10 

42 

1 
3 

8 

2 1 2 1 
3 

6 
9 

1 

35 

1 2 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Family orientated venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 360



 

 
 

 

10 

1 1 2 2 

16 

1 2 

42 

2 1 1 

8 

2 2 1 1 1 

11 

2 
5 

35 

3 4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Off licences 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

10 

2 2 

9 

1 

11 

42 

2 1 1 

8 

2 3 
1 2 

9 

4 4 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 361



 

 
 

  

10 

2 2 

11 
8 

2 

42 

1 
3 

8 

2 3 
1 2 

10 

6 

1 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Restaurants 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

10 

1 1 2 

6 6 6 
3 

42 

2 2 

8 

2 2 1 1 1 

7 8 

2 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Don’t know/no 
opinion 

There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many (blank) No response

Thinking about Gloucester Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Nightclubs 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 362



 

Question 24 by type of respondent 

Total respondents = 156 (inc. ‘No response’). This is a very small sample size. 

The total number of respondents who responded to the question: 

Member of the public = 21 people 

Local business owner/ manager that has a premises licence = 19 people 

 

In general, off licences, fast food establishments and restaurants are thought to close at about the right time, by both members of the public and local 

business owners. With restaurants 47% of local business owners said they closed too early, with 42% saying they closed at about the right time – this is a 

difference of one person. For pubs, 48% of the members of the public thought they closed at about the right time, but 33% (7 people) said they closed too 

early. Business owners were split 47% to 47% on whether they closed too early or just right. Live music venues had the most difference, with 48% of 

members of the public saying that they closed at the right time, but 53% of business owners saying they closed too early. However the difference between 

closing too early (53%) and closing at about the right time (42%) was 2 people. 

 

 

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of food and alcohol outlets are for Gloucester Road? 

 

 
 

10 

2 2 

10 
7 

4 

42 

2 2 

8 

2 1 2 1 

9 9 

1 

35 

3 4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

About right Close too early Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Pubs/Bars are for Gloucester Road? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 363



 

 
 

 

10 

2 2 

13 

2 3 3 

42 

3 
1 

8 

2 2 1 1 

9 

2 3 
5 

35 

3 4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of off licences are for Gloucester Road? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

10 

2 2 

11 

3 
6 

42 

3 
1 

8 

2 3 
1 

12 

3 2 2 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Fast food establishments outlets are for Gloucester Road? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 364



 

 
 

  

10 

2 2 

16 

5 

42 

2 2 

8 

2 2 1 1 

8 9 

1 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Restaurants are for Gloucester Road? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

10 

2 2 

10 

6 
3 2 

42 

2 2 

8 

2 1 1 1 1 

8 
10 

1 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Live music venues are for Gloucester Road? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 365



 

Question 25 by type of respondent 

Total respondents = 156 (inc. ‘No response’). This is a very small sample size. 

The total number of respondents who responded to the question: 

Member of the public = 21 people 

Local business owner/ manager that has a premises licence = 19 people 

 

For pubs and live music venues, members of the public are more likely to agree with new premises than local business owners, although in both cases the 

majority of business owners agreed. Late night bars and restaurants had about the same amount of support (42% and 47% for late night bars, 71% and 74% 

for restaurants).  For food bars, 74% of local business owners agree with a new one, as opposed to only 48% of members of the public. This is the biggest 

difference between the two groups of people. 

Off licences and fast food establishments do not have a strong majority either way. Local business owners are split 32% for and against off licences, whereas 

for members of the public mostly disagree (38%), and only have 10% (2 people) agreeing. Nightclubs split the local business owners, with only 1 person 

difference between agree and disagree. Members of the public are split by 2 people, but are more likely to disagree than agree (33% agree, 43% disagree).  

 

 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Gloucester Road? 

 

 
 

10 

2 2 

7 
9 

4 
1 

42 

3 
1 

8 

2 1 1 1 1 

10 

3 4 
1 1 

35 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Gloucester 
Road? Traditional public house 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 366



 

 
 

 

10 

1 1 2 

6 
3 

5 5 
2 

42 

3 
1 

8 

2 1 1 1 1 

7 

2 2 

6 

2 

35 

1 2 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Gloucester 
Road? Late night alcohol/music orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

10 

1 1 2 
5 5 5 4 

2 

42 

3 
1 

8 

2 1 1 1 1 

8 
6 

2 2 

35 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Gloucester 
Road? Food orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 367



 

 
 

 

10 

2 2 

8 

4 5 
2 2 

42 

3 

8 

2 1 1 1 1 

8 
5 

3 3 

35 

1 2 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Gloucester 
Road? Live music venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

10 

1 1 2 
5 

10 

4 
2 

42 

2 1 1 

8 

2 1 2 1 

7 
4 5 

2 1 

35 

1 2 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Gloucester 
Road? Family orientated venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 368



 

 
 

 

10 

1 2 1 1 

11 

6 

2 

42 

1 1 2 

8 

2 1 2 1 
4 

2 

7 

3 3 

35 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Gloucester 
Road? Off licences 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

10 

1 2 
4 

8 
5 4 

42 

1 
3 

8 

2 1 1 1 1 

5 
2 

6 
4 

2 

35 

3 4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Gloucester 
Road? Fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 369



 

 
 

 

10 

2 2 

6 
9 

3 3 

42 

1 2 1 

8 

2 3 
1 

8 
6 

3 2 

35 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Gloucester 
Road? Restaurants 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

10 

1 1 2 
5 

2 
5 6 

3 

42 

1 2 1 

8 

2 2 1 1 

6 
3 2 

7 

1 

35 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Gloucester 
Road? Nightclubs 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 370



APPENDIX 8 

Whiteladies Road CIA 

 

Effective January 2008 

 

The area bounded by West Park and that length of Whiteladies Road which extends from its junction with 

West Park to its junction with Imperial Road and that length of Cotham Hill extending from its junction with 

Whiteladies Road to its junction with West Park.

 

Reason for Assessment 
This stretch of Whiteladies Road is predominantly characterised by properties with A3 leisure uses behind 

which are sited residential areas. The request for the CIA to be implemented was made by local amenity 

groups and supported by the Redland Sector of Avon and Somerset Police. This area differs from the city 

centre in that there is a greater emphasis on the need to promote the prevention of public nuisance 

objective. The ability to prevent further encroachment into the normal sleeping times of local residents is a 

key aspect of this policy. The policy will apply to the consideration of applications for the grant of new 

authorisations or for significant variations of existing authorisations in respect of premises that primarily sell 

alcohol for consumption on the premises, other late night uses, restaurants and take away outlets.  

 

 

Policy Consultation Results 
The consultation was run between the dates of 1 August 2019 and 14 November 2019. There were a total 

of 78 questions. A total of 156 full responses were received. This is a low number of responses. 

 

An additional 45 written responses were also received separate to the survey. Not all of these related to the 

Gloucester Road CIA. We received 26 emails relating to the Whiteladies Road CIA, and 67 responses that 

came from partially answered surveys. 

 

The number of people who answered the majority of questions about the Whiteladies Road was 47-50. Page 371



APPENDIX 8 
 

It is important when considering these results that those who care more about the issues are more likely to 

answer the survey, whereas those who have no strong opinion are less likely to respond. This means that 

the sample may be biased, which is especially important to bear in mind given the low number of 

respondents.  

 

The small number of respondents means it is not possible to draw meaningful conclusions from these 

results. These figures cannot be seen as representative for the population of Bristol or the locality. 

 

 

 

Summary of survey results 

 

The majority of respondents when asked ‘to what extent do you agree with the proposal to continue with 

the CIAs for Whiteladies Road’ agreed or strongly agreed with the proposal. When adding the partial 

responses and the written responses the number that disagree or strongly disagree increases, however the 

majority still believe the CIA should be kept. This question was the only one where we have considered the 

responses from partial survey responses or written responses. 

 

The majority of respondents (59%) visit Whiteladies Road twice a year or less for a night out. Those that 

did not go out on Whiteladies Road said the main reasons were because they prefer other areas and they 

didn’t live near this area.  

 

When asked what the biggest issues on Whiteladies road were, the main ones were noise and fear of 

harassment. Music from licensed premises was the issue that the majority of people saw as a serious or 

major issue.  

 

When asked about the number of different types of venues, most were thought to have the right number, 

but traditional pubs, live music venues and family orientated venues were viewed as being too few.  

 

When asked whether they would agree or disagree with new different types of venues opening on 

Whiteladies Road, most respondents agreed with traditional pubs, live music venues, off licences, 

restaurants and food orientated bars being opened. Family orientated venues were split almost in half, with 

only 1 person difference. Most respondents disagreed with fast food restaurants. Most respondents neither 

agreed nor disagreed with night clubs and late night alcohol/music bars being opened, however the number 

that neither agreed nor disagreed was only 2 more than the number of those who disagreed. 

 

When asked about opening hours, the majority of respondents believe that venues closed about the right 

time. However with pubs/bars, restaurants and live music venues, a large proportion said they closed too 

early. Especially live music venues, where only one person separated the vote between closing at the right 

time and closing too early.  

 

Page 372



APPENDIX 8 
Analysis of full survey results 

 

When asked about whether we should continue with the CIA for Whiteladies Road, the majority of people agreed that it should be kept. The below graph 

shows a combination of the survey (full and partial) responses, and comments from emails, where a large majority (23/26) said that the “…licensing policy in 

regards opening hours and number of venues needs to be relaxed…”  

 

 
Total respondents = 156 (7 did not answer), 26 emails and 67 partial responses 

 

  

74 

46 

122 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Strongly disagree/disagree Neither agree or disagree Strongly agree/agree

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to 
continue with the CIAs for Whiteladies Road? 

P
age 373



APPENDIX 8 
When looking at just the full survey responses, a larger majority of responses agreed with the proposal. There may be an element of sample bias, where the 

survey was seen as too long by some respondents and so their views would not be included in the full survey analysis. 

  

 
Total respondents = 156 full responses 

 

The majority of respondents strongly agreed or agreed with the proposal.  

35 32 

82 

7 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Strongly disagree/
disagree

Neither agree nor
disagree

Strongly agree/ agree No answer

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to 
continue with the CIAs for the Whiteladies Road - grouped, full 

responses only 

P
age 374



APPENDIX 8 

 
If you break down the survey responses by type of person, can see that the two groups with the most respondents: a member of the public (61) and a local 

business owner with a premises licence (52), are mostly aligned. However local business owners with premises licences are slightly less likely to agree with 

the policy. 

2 

0 

2 

3 

5 5 

8 

12 

17 

19 

0 0 

1 1 

2 

10 

7 

15 

9 

10 

0 0 0 

2 

4 

0 0 

1 

3 

5 

2 

0 0 

1 1 1 

0 

1 

0 0 
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree or disagree Agree Strongly Agree

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to continue with the 
CIAs for the Whiteladies Road - by type of person 

A person who works in Bristol A member of the public

A local Councillor or MP Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence

Other (please specify) A local community group representative

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence A Trade Representative (please specify)

P
age 375



APPENDIX 8 
 

The majority of responses for this CIA came from BS1, BS8 and BS6. BS6 and BS8 said that they would strongly agree with the CIAs staying in place. BS8 

covers the area of the CIA, and while it is the area with the second highest number of people responding, there were only 18 responses.  

Response BS1  BS10 BS11 BS13 BS14 BS15 BS16 BS2  BS3  BS30 BS31 BS32 BS39 BS4  BS5  BS6  BS7  BS8  BS9  LS19 Total 

No answer 2 

  

1 

       

1 

        

4 

Strongly Agree 6 

 

1 4 1 

 

1 2 3 

    

4 2 9 

 

9 4 

 

46 

Agree 8 1 

 

1 

  

3 2 3 1 

   

2 5 3 

 

4 3 

 

36 

Neither agree or 

disagree 10 2 

    

1 4 4 

 

1 

  

2 2 2 1 2 1 

 

32 

Disagree 3 

 

1 

    

1 1 

   

1 1 2 1 1 2 1 

 

15 

Strongly 

disagree 9 

    

1 1 2 

 

1 

     

3 1 1 

 

1 20 

Grand Total 38 3 2 6 1 1 6 11 11 2 1 1 1 9 11 18 3 18 9 1 153 

 

 

  

P
age 376



APPENDIX 8 
The first question asked respondents how often they went to Gloucester Road on a night out. It can be seen that the majority of people (92) either have not 

been there for a night out in the last 12 months or only go every 6 months. This suggests that Whiteladies Road is not a place that the majority of respondents 

visit. 

 

 
Total respondents = 156 

 

48 
44 

22 

27 

15 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Have not used this area for
a night out

Every 6 months Once a month More than once a month No answer

Over the past 12 months how often have you visited the Whiteladies Road after 7pm to 
enjoy a night out? 

P
age 377



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

The majority of respondents where members of the public (56), followed by Local business owner/manager – that has a premises licence (52). In general they 

go out on Whiteladies Road a similar amount.  

3 
2 

3 
2 

1 1 

20 
19 

10 

6 

1 
2 

4 
3 3 

2 
1 1 

2 

17 
18 

6 

10 

1 

3 
2 

1 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Have not used this area for a night
out

Every 6 months Once a month More than once a month No answer

Over the past 12 months have you visited Whiteladies Road to enjoy a night out- broken up by type of respondent 

A local community group representative A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify) Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence

Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence Other (please specify)

P
age 378



APPENDIX 8 
Then, 41 of the 48 that said they do not go for a night out on Whiteladies Road. The two main reasons are that they don’t live in the area or they prefer other 

areas. The next highest reason is that the bars don’t appeal to them.  

 

 
Total respondents = 41 

23 23 

14 

9 

6 
5 

3 3 
2 2 2 2 2 

1 1 1 

0

5

10

15

20

25

I prefer to go to
other areas

I don't live near
the area

The bars don’t 
appeal to me 

There is not
enough public

transport to get
home

Fear of crime Lack of
accessible

public transport

Lack of cultural
activities on

offer e.g.
theatres

Lack of live
music venues

Lack of family-
friendly pubs or

bars

The bars are
open too late

Lack of family-
friendly venues,

e.g. cinemas,
bowling alleys

Litter from
venues

There are not
enough taxis

available to get
home

Lack of
restaurant

choice

Lack of family-
friendly

restaurants

Poor venue
accessibility

In the previous question you selected that you do not use Whiteladies Road for a night out. Please tell us why this is by 
selecting up to five reasons from the list below 

P
age 379



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

In general the two largest groups, members of the public and local business owner/managers with a premises licence, align with their choices of what the 

reasons are. 

  

0 0 1 2 4 2 1 3 2 0 5 11 0 11 1 4 1 1 
1 

0 

7 

1 
1 

2 
0 

1 

2 

8 

3 

6 

0 

0 

0 0 
0 0 

1 

0 
0 

1 

0 
1 

1 

1 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 0 
0 0 

1 

0 
0 

0 

0 0 

0 

1 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 0 
0 0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 0 

0 

0 

0 

2 

0 

1 

0 0 
0 0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 0 

1 

1 

0 

2 

0 

0 

0 0 
0 0 

1 

0 
0 

0 

0 0 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 0 
0 0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Lack of
restaurant

choice

Lack of family-
friendly

restaurants

Lack of family-
friendly pubs or

bars

The bars are
open too late

The bars don’t 
appeal to me 

Lack of cultural
activities on

offer e.g.
theatres

Lack of family-
friendly venues,

e.g. cinemas,
bowling alleys

Fear of crime Litter from
venues

There are not
enough taxis

available to get
home

There is not
enough public

transport to get
home

I prefer to go to
other areas

Lack of live
music venues

I don't live near
the area

Poor venue
accessibility

Lack of
accessible

public transport

Whiteladies Road Reasons 

A member of the public Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence

Other (please specify) A person who works in Bristol

A local community group representative A local Councillor or MP

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence A Trade Representative (please specify)

P
age 380



APPENDIX 8 
Respondents were asked what they thought were major, moderate or minor problems, or not a problem at all. Most things were either not an issue or a minor 

issue. Music from licensed premises is viewed as the most serious issue, which is different from the other CIAs, and may be due to the nightclub Dorma that 

used to be next to the Clifton Down train station.  

 

 
Total respondents = 47 to 49 

  

27 

24 
22 

20 

17 
16 

13 
12 

11 11 
10 

9 
8 

22 
24 24 

26 
28 

30 

34 
35 

33 
31 

37 37 
35 

0 
1 

2 2 2 
1 1 1 

3 
5 

1 
2 

4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Music from licensed
premises

Noise from deliveries
to fast food

establishments or
licensed premises

Fear of harassment Litter being dropped in
the street by people

who have visited
licensed premises/fast
food establishments

Noise from people
gathered outside
licensed premises

(shouting etc.)

Fear of criminal
damage e.g. vandalism

Noise from empty
bottles being put into

trade bins

Fear of personal
injury/assault

Litter outside fast food
establishments

Litter outside licensed
premises

Fear of public
nuisance/disturbance

Noise from people
travelling through

residential areas to get
to or from licensed

premises

Noise from people
gathered outside fast
food establishments

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is? 

A serious/moderate problem A minor problem/ Not at all a problem Don’t know/No opinion 

P
age 381



APPENDIX 8 
When asked about the number of different types of venues, traditional pubs, live music venues, and family orientated venues were believed to be too few. 

Late night alcohol/music orientated bars, nightclubs, and food orientated were very close between too few and just the right amount, which implies that there 

are people wanting more drinking orientated late night venues opening.  

 

 
Total respondents = 47 to 49 

 

A number of the email responses referenced that Whiteladies Road has “become completely stagnant and dead”.  

 

  

25 
24 

23 

17 
16 

14 
13 

7 
6 

22 

16 

19 
18 

23 

26 

17 

27 

29 

1 

3 

1 

12 

8 

6 

4 

11 

7 

1 

5 
4 

0 
1 1 

14 

3 

5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Traditional public
houses

Live music venues Family orientated
venues

Late night
alcohol/music

orientated bars

Food orientated
bars

Restaurants Nightclubs Fast food
establishments

Off licences

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, what is your opinion on the number of: 

There are too few There are about the right number There are too many Don’t know/no opinion 

P
age 382



APPENDIX 8 
When asked about whether they would agree or disagree with new venues opening on Whiteladies Road, the majority of respondents would want more 

traditional pubs, live music venues, off licences, restaurants and food orientated bars. Family orientated venues and fast food establishments were closely 

split agree/disagree. Late night alcohol/music orientated bars and nightclubs were mostly disagreed with. The majority of the respondents to the survey were 

over 35 years of age (for example 87.1% of respondents to the question do you agree with more nightclubs opening were over 35) and as such may be less 

likely to wish to go to venues of this type. The information would suggest that the CIA is acting as a barrier to new venues opening.  

 

 
Total respondents = 49 to 50 

 

  

9 

5 

8 

11 

14 

21 

24 

18 
20 

7 

11 

14 14 

11 

7 

10 

20 
22 

34 
33 

27 

24 24 
22 

15 

10 

7 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Traditional public
house

Live music venues Off licences Restaurants Food orientated
bars

Family orientated
venues

Fast food
establishments

Late night
alcohol/music

orientated bars

Nightclubs

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Whiteladies Road? 

Strongly disagree/disagree Neither agree or disagree Strongly agree/agree

P
age 383



APPENDIX 8 
The opening hours were mostly thought to be about right, with pubs/bars and live music venues possibly closing too early. As the CIA is in place to also 

protect “normal sleeping times”, there is a slight juxtaposition between the results to the question “to what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to 

continue with the CIAs for Whiteladies Road?”, and this question. The majority of people said they wanted to keep the CIA, but the suggestion that some 

venues close too early implies that greater flexibility may be required with regard to terminal hours. 

 

 
Total respondents = 48 

  

17 
16 16 

6 

4 

23 

27 

17 

28 
29 

5 

3 
4 

7 

11 

3 
2 

11 

7 

4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Pubs/Bars Restaurants Live music venues Off licences Fast food establishments

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of food and alcohol outlets are for Whiteladies Road? 

Close too early About right Open too late Don't know/No opinion

P
age 384



APPENDIX 8 
Appendix 

 

Question 27 graphs by type of person 

Total respondents: 155/156 (including ‘No response’).  

Member of the public = 18 or 19 

Local business owners that have a premises licence = 14 or 15 

 

Noise from licensed premises or from travelling to/from premises is not seen as an issue by members of the public or local business owners. Noise from 

people gathered outside either premises or fast food establishments is viewed as a moderate or serious problem by members of the public (56%). Local 

business owners did not see them as problems. 

 

 

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is? 

 

 
 

1 2 

7 

1 1 2 3 
5 

1 2 

7 

45 

3 

9 

2 2 1 1 
3 

1 

11 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think music from licensed premises is? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 385



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

2 1 

7 

1 1 2 
4 

6 
4 

1 
4 

44 

3 

9 

2 2 1 1 
5 

3 
1 

6 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think noise from people gathered outside licensed 
premises (shouting etc.) is? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 2 

7 

1 1 2 
6 5 

3 
1 

4 

44 

3 

9 

2 2 1 1 

8 

2 1 
3 

40 

1 2 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think noise from people travelling through residential 
areas to get to or from licensed premises is? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 386



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 1 1 

7 

1 1 2 3 
6 

4 
1 

5 

44 

3 

9 

2 2 1 1 
3 

5 
1 

6 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think noise from people gathered outside fast food 
establishments is? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 387



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 1 

7 

1 1 2 
5 4 

1 2 
6 

45 

3 

9 

2 1 2 1 

7 

1 1 

6 

39 

3 4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think noise from deliveries to fast food establishments 
and licensed premises is? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 1 

7 

1 1 2 

7 
3 2 

6 

45 

3 

9 

2 1 2 1 

9 

1 1 
4 

39 

3 4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think noise from empty bottles being put into trade 
bins is? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 388



APPENDIX 8 
 

Question 28 graphs by type of person 

The number of people who responded to this question: 

Members of the public = 17 or 18 people 

Local business owners with a premises licence = 15 people 

 

The majority of members of the public and local business owners believe that these fears are either not a problem or a minor problem. Local business owners 

are more likely to think that it is not an issue. 

 

 

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: 

 

 

 
 

1 1 1 

7 

1 1 2 

8 
4 

6 

45 

1 
3 

8 

2 2 1 1 
3 

1 1 

10 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think fear of personal injury/assault 
is? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 389



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 1 

7 

1 1 2 

6 5 

1 

5 

46 

1 
3 

8 

2 2 1 1 
4 4 

7 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think fear of public nuisance/disturbance is? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence

2 1 

7 

1 1 2 

7 
3 2 

6 

45 

1 
3 

8 

2 2 1 1 
5 

2 1 

7 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think fear of criminal damage e.g. 
vandalism is? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 390



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

  

1 1 1 

7 

1 1 2 

8 

3 
1 

6 

45 

1 
3 

8 

2 2 1 1 
4 

1 1 

9 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think fear of harassment is? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)P

age 391



APPENDIX 8 
Question 29 graphs by type of person 

The number of people who responded to this question: 

Members of the public = 18 or 19 people 

Local business owners with a premises licence = 15 people 

 

Litter outside licensed premises was seen as either not a problem or a minor problem by the majority of both members of the public and local business 

owners. Litter outside fast food establishments or dropped in the street by people who have been to a licensed premises or fast food establishment is seen as 

a serious problem by 39% of members of the public (7 people). Members of the public are more likely to say litter is an issue than local business owners.  

 

 

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think the following is?: 

 

 
 

1 1 1 

7 

1 1 2 
6 

2 
4 

1 
5 

45 

1 
3 

8 

2 1 2 1 
5 

2 

8 

39 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think litter outside licensed premises 
is? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 392



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

2 1 

7 

2 2 

7 
3 

7 

1 1 

44 

2 2 

8 

2 1 1 1 1 
4 

6 

1 
4 

39 

1 2 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think litter outside fast food 
establishments is? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 1 

7 

2 2 
4 

6 7 

2 

44 

2 2 

8 

2 1 1 1 1 

5 5 
2 3 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

A minor problem A moderate problem A serious problem Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, how much of a problem do you think litter being dropped in the 
street by people who have visited licensed premises/fast food establishments is? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 393



APPENDIX 8 
 

Question 30 graphs by type of person 

The number of people who responded to this question: 

Members of the public = 17 to 19 people 

Local business owners with a premises licence = 14 or 15 people 

 

Both members of the public and local business owners said there is the right number of off licences.  

Pubs were split between about right and too few, with only 3 business owners between them. Local business owners were more likely to say that there was 

the right number of fast food established, as opposed to the public who had 44% say the right amount vs 33% saying too many. The majority of local business 

owners said there were too few restaurants, where 47% of members of the public said there were about the right number.  

Members of the public disagreed with local business owners with respect to late night bars, food orientated bars and nightclubs, with business owners saying 

there were too few. Live music and family orientated venues were said to be too few by both groups. 

 

 

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, what is your opinion on the number of: 

 

 
 

2 1 

7 

1 1 2 

9 9 

1 

44 

1 
3 

8 

2 2 1 1 1 

6 
8 

39 

1 2 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, what is your opinion on the number of: 
Traditional public houses 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 394



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 1 

7 

1 1 2 

8 
4 5 

45 

4 
8 

2 2 1 1 
5 

7 
3 

39 

1 2 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

There are about the right
number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Late night alcohol/music 
orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

2 1 

7 

2 2 1 

8 

3 
6 

45 

4 

8 

2 3 
1 

6 
9 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Food orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 395



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 1 1 

7 

1 1 2 
4 4 

8 

2 

45 

4 

8 

2 2 1 1 1 

5 

9 

39 

3 4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Live music venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)P

age 396



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

2 1 

7 

2 2 2 

7 8 

1 

45 

1 
3 

8 

2 1 2 1 1 

6 7 

40 

1 2 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Family orientated venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

2 1 

7 

2 2 3 

11 

3 

46 

2 1 1 

8 

2 2 1 1 2 

10 

2 1 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Off licences 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 397



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

2 1 

7 

2 2 2 

8 

2 

6 

45 

2 2 

8 

2 3 
1 1 

10 

3 
1 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 398



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

2 1 

7 

2 2 1 

8 

3 
5 

46 

2 2 

8 

2 3 
1 

7 8 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Restaurants 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 2 

7 

1 1 2 

8 

3 4 3 

45 

4 

8 

2 2 1 1 2 

7 
5 

1 

39 

3 4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about Whiteladies Road, what is your opinion on the number of: Nightclubs 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 399



APPENDIX 8 
 

Question 31 graphs by type of person 

Total respondents: 155/156 (including ‘No response’). The number of actual responses is very low, and not representative, 

The number of people who responded to this question: 

Members of the public = 18 people 

Local business owners with a premises licence = 15 people 

 

For pubs, off licences, fast food establishments and restaurants, members of the public said that they closed at the right time. Local business owners agreed, 

except for pubs, where 53% said they closed too early. Live music venues had a large proportion not give an opinion, but members of the public mostly said 

they closed at about the right time, whereas 47% of business owners said they closed too early.  

 

 

 

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of food and alcohol outlets are for Whiteladies Road? 

 

 

 
 

1 1 1 

7 

2 2 

10 

3 2 3 

45 

1 
3 

8 

2 1 2 1 

5 
8 

1 1 

39 

3 4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Pubs/Bars outlets are for Whiteladies Road? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 400



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

2 1 

7 

2 2 

11 

1 
3 3 

45 

3 
1 

8 

2 2 1 1 

7 

3 4 
1 

39 

3 4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Off licences are for Whiteladies Road? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 1 

7 

2 2 

8 

2 2 

6 

45 

3 
1 

8 

2 3 
1 

12 

1 1 1 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Fast food establishments are for Whiteladies Road? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 401



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 1 1 

7 

2 2 

11 

4 
2 1 

45 

1 
3 

8 

2 1 2 1 

9 
6 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Restaurants are for Whiteladies Road? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 402



APPENDIX 8 

 

 

Question 32 graphs by type of person 

Total respondents: 155/156 (including ‘No response’). The number of actual responses is very low, and not representative, 

The number of people who responded to this question: 

Members of the public = 18 to 20 people 

Local business owners with a premises licence = 14 or 15 people 

 

Members of the public and local business owners both agree with new traditional public houses or family orientated venues opening. For nightclubs and fast 

food establishments, members of the public and local business owners said they disagreed with these new premises being opened. Late night bars, food 

orientated bars and restaurants split business owners and members of the public, as members of the public were less likely to agree them the business 

owners. Off licences split the local business owner votes, with 20% agreeing and 20% disagreeing with new premises being opened. Live music venues split 

the members of the public, with 37% agreeing and 37% disagreeing with the new premises.  

 

 

 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Whiteladies Road? 

 

 

1 1 1 

7 

2 2 

7 
5 4 

2 

45 

1 2 1 

8 

2 1 1 1 1 
3 

7 
5 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Live music venues are for Whiteladies Road? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)P

age 403



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 2 

7 

2 2 
6 6 

3 3 2 

43 

3 
1 

8 

2 2 1 1 

6 5 
3 

1 

39 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Whiteladies 
Road? Traditional public house 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 1 

7 

1 1 2 
4 

1 
3 

7 
5 

43 

3 
1 

8 

2 1 2 1 
5 6 

2 2 

39 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Whiteladies 
Road? Late night alcohol/music orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 404



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 2 

7 

2 2 3 2 
6 7 

1 

44 

3 
1 

8 

2 1 2 1 

7 
4 3 

1 

39 

3 4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Whiteladies 
Road? Food orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 405



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 1 

7 

1 1 2 

7 
5 4 3 

44 

3 
1 

8 

2 1 2 1 
5 5 

2 3 

39 

1 2 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Whiteladies 
Road? Live music venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence

1 1 1 

7 

1 1 2 
5 

8 
4 

2 

44 

2 1 1 

8 

2 3 
1 

4 
7 

2 1 1 

39 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Whiteladies 
Road? Family orientated venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 406



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

2 1 

7 

2 2 
4 5 

7 

2 

45 

1 2 1 

8 

2 1 1 1 1 1 2 

9 

3 

39 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Whiteladies 
Road? Off licences 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 407



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

3 
7 

2 2 1 1 

7 
5 5 

44 

2 2 

8 

2 3 
1 1 2 

8 
4 

39 

2 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Whiteladies 
Road? Fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 1 

7 

2 2 3 4 
7 

3 2 

44 

2 1 1 

8 

2 2 1 1 

6 5 
3 

1 

39 

1 1 1 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Whiteladies 
Road? Restaurants 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 408



APPENDIX 8 
 

 

1 2 

7 

1 1 2 
4 

1 
3 3 

8 

44 

3 
1 

8 

2 1 1 1 1 
3 2 

4 5 
1 

39 

1 2 
4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in Whiteladies 
Road? Nightclubs 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 409



APPENDIX 8 

Bedminster and Southville CIA 
Effective from 10 September 2013 

 

The CIA comprises of two adjacent areas that have different characteristics. The North Street 

section places a greater emphasis on seeking to prevent public nuisance whilst the Cannon street 

area has more of an emphasis on preventing crime and disorder. 

 

Reason for Assessment 

This stretch of North Street is characterised by a varied range of food, drink and entertainment offers 

leading to a busy area, which has resulted in anti- social behaviour and loss of amenity for local residents. 

The CIA will help to protect residential amenity from being harmed by public nuisance and will, when 

triggered by the receipt of relevant representations, give rise to a presumption of refusal of applications for 

the grant of new premises licences or for significant variation of existing licenses particularly where such 

proposals could increase anti-social behaviour. The CIA is not designed to preclude high-quality food-led 

developments that are commensurate with the community’s longer term ambitions for the area.  

 

 

Cannon Street Area (Cannon Street, North Street (from junction of Grenville Street to 

junction with Cannon Street), East Street (from junction with Little Paradise to junction with 

West Street/Sheene Road and West Street (from junction with East Street to junction with 

Victor Road) 

Reason for Assessment 

The Cannon Street locality comprises of a close concentration of late night ‘destination’ bars, take away 

food outlets and premises supplying alcohol for consumption away from the premises (off-licences) that has 

resulted in a cumulative adverse impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives, in particular those 

concerning the prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention of public nuisance.  The CIA, when 

triggered by the receipt of relevant representations, will apply to applications for the grant of new premises Page 410



APPENDIX 8 
licences or for significant variation of existing licenses and is intended to prevent the further proliferation of 

the type of premises on offer in this locality.  In order to rebut the presumption of refusal applicants for 

licences will be expected to demonstrate through the operating schedule accompanying the application that 

what they propose is a significantly different type of operation than that which is currently on offer; a 

proposal that will result in a greater variety of range of venues and that it is demonstrated will not add to the 

problems currently being experienced which this policy aims to address.  The CIA is intended to be strictly 

applied, i.e. to refuse applications with operating schedules that could enable a venue to operate as an 

additional late night alcohol led venue, or as a late night food take away outlet, or as an “off-licence”.   

 
 

Policy Consultation Results 
The consultation was run between the dates of 1 August 2019 and 14 November 2019. There were a total 

of 78 questions. A total of 156 full responses were received. This is a low number of responses.  

 

An additional 45 written responses were also received separate to the survey. Not all of these related to the 

North Street or Cannon Street CIA. For the North Street CIA, we received an additional 19 emails related to 

the CIA, and 70 responses that came from partially answered surveys. For the Cannon Street we received 

17 comments in emails, and 69 responses from partially answered surveys. 

 

The number of people who answered the majority of questions about North Street was 31-32, for Cannon 

Street was 25.  

 

It is important when considering these results that those who care more about the issues are more likely to 

answer the survey, whereas those who have no strong opinion are less likely to respond. This means that 

the sample may be biased, which is especially important to bear in mind given the low number of 

respondents.  

 

The small number of respondents means it is not possible to draw meaningful conclusions from these 

results. These figures cannot be seen as representative for the population of Bristol or the locality.  

 

 
 

Summary of survey results 

 

The majority of respondents to the survey agreed that the CIA should remain in North Street and Cannon 

Street. When adding in the partial and written responses to the data the majority is still for keeping the CIA. 

This is the only question where the partial and written responses are considered.  

 

When asked how often they visited the area for a night out, most (50% North Street, 58% Cannon Street) 

said that they have not used this area for a night out in the past 12 months. When asked why, the main 

reasons were that they do not live in that area, and that they prefer to go to other areas.  

 

For both areas, litter was seen as being a serious/moderate issue, and the other issues were only 

considered a minor problem or not a problem.  

 

When asked about the current number of venues on North Street, live music venues were thought to be too 

few, although there is only a difference of three people between this and saying there are about the right 

number. In most cases the respondents believed there were about the right number of venues. For Cannon 

Street, most venue types were thought to have the right amount, although there was no strong majority on 

any of the options due to the lack of responses. Respondents said that there were too few family orientated 

venues. Page 411



APPENDIX 8 
 

The majority of respondents said that they would agree with most type of new venues opening on North 

Street. The exceptions are fast food establishments and off licences. The same is true for Cannon Street, 

although nightclubs are split three ways between agreeing, disagreeing and neither agreeing or disagreeing 

on whether a new one would be wanted on Cannon Street.  

 

When asked about opening hours, the majority of respondents said they were about right for both North 

Street and Cannon Street.  

 

 

Page 412



APPENDIX 8 
Analysis of Full Survey Results 

 
When asked about whether we should continue with the CIA for Bedminster and Southville, the majority of people agreed that it should be kept. The below 

graph shows a combination of the survey (full and partial) responses, and comments from emails.  

 

 
Total respondents = 156 full responses (7 did not answer (NS) & 8 did not answer (CS)), 70 (NS) & 69 (CS) partial survey responses, and 19 (NS) & 17 (CS) 

email responses. 

 

 

  

65 
69 

104 

60 

74 

100 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Strongly disagree/disagree Neither agree or disagree Strongly agree/agree

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to 
continue with the CIAs for North Street and Cannon Street 

North Street Cannon Street

P
age 413



APPENDIX 8 
When looking at just the full survey responses, it shows that a larger majority of responses agreed with the proposal. There may be an element of sample 

bias, where the survey was seen as too long by some respondents and so their views would not be included in the full survey analysis. 

  

 

 
Total respondents = 156 

 

The majority of respondents agreed with the proposal.  

32 

43 

74 

7 

31 

46 

71 

8 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Strongly disagree/
disagree

Neither agree nor
disagree

Strongly agree/ agree No answer

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to 
continue with the CIAs for North Street and Cannon Street 

North Street Cannon Street

P
age 414



APPENDIX 8 

   

0 0 

4 4 4 

7 

4 

19 

17 

13 

0 0 0 

1 

3 

8 

10 

17 

8 

9 

0 0 0 

2 

3 

0 0 

2 

3 

5 

1 1 

0 0 

2 

1 

0 

1 

0 0 
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree or disagree Agree Strongly Agree

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to continue with the CIAs for North Street - by type of person 

A person who works in Bristol A member of the public

A local Councillor or MP Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence

Other (please specify) A local community group representative

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence A Trade Representative (please specify)

P
age 415



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

The two groups with the most respondents were a member of the public (60) and a local business owner with a premises licence (52). 50% of the members of 

the public agree or strongly agree with the proposal, as opposed to 33% of local business owners. 35% of local business owners disagreed or strongly 

disagreed with the proposal, but the difference between those who agreed and those who disagreed was 1. 

  

0 0 

4 4 4 

7 

4 

19 

17 

13 

0 0 0 

1 

3 

8 

10 

17 

8 

9 

0 0 0 

2 

3 

0 0 

2 

3 

5 

1 1 

0 0 

2 

1 

0 

1 

0 0 
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree or disagree Agree Strongly Agree

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to continue with the CIAs for Cannon Street - by type of person 

A person who works in Bristol A member of the public

A local Councillor or MP Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence

Other (please specify) A local community group representative

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence A Trade Representative (please specify)

P
age 416



APPENDIX 8 
North Street CIA: 

Row Labels BS1  BS10 BS11 BS13 BS14 BS15 BS16 BS2  BS3  BS30 BS31 BS32 BS39 BS4  BS5  BS6  BS7  BS8  BS9  LS19 Total 

No answer 2 

  

1 

       

1 

        

4 

Strongly Agree 4 

 

1 5 1 

 

1 1 4 

    

4 2 6 1 6 3 

 

39 

Agree 8 

 

1 

   

3 2 3 1 

   

1 4 4 

 

5 2 1 35 

Neither agree or 

disagree 13 2 

    

2 3 5 

 

1 

  

3 3 3 

 

4 4 

 

43 

Disagree 3 

      

3 

    

1 1 1 3 1 2 

  

15 

Strongly disagree 8 

    

1 1 2 

 

1 

    

1 2 1 

   

17 

(blank) 

                     Grand Total 38 2 2 6 1 1 7 11 12 2 1 1 1 9 11 18 3 17 9 1 153 

 

 

Cannon Street CIA 

Row Labels BS1  BS10 BS11 BS13 BS14 BS15 BS16 BS2  BS3  BS30 BS31 BS32 BS39 BS4  BS5  BS6  BS7  BS8  BS9  LS19 Total 

No answer 2 

  

1 

       

1 

        

4 

Strongly Agree 4 

 

2 5 1 

 

1 1 5 

    

4 2 6 1 6 4 

 

42 

Agree 7 

     

3 2 2 

    

1 4 3 

 

5 1 1 29 

Neither agree or 

disagree 14 2 

    

2 4 4 

 

1 

  

3 3 4 

 

5 4 

 

46 

Disagree 3 

      

2 1 

   

1 1 1 3 1 1 

  

14 

Strongly disagree 8 

    

1 1 2 

 

1 

    

1 2 1 

   

17 

(blank) 

                     Grand Total 38 2 2 6 1 1 7 11 12 1 1 1 1 9 11 18 3 17 9 1 152 

 

As can be seen, BS3, the area that is most affected by the CIA, has only received 12 responses in total. This means that this area was not well represented in 

this survey. 

  

P
age 417



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
Total respondents = 156 

 

It can be seen that the majority of respondents don’t go for a night out on North Street or Cannon Street. 

 

91 

17 16 13 
19 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Have not used
this area for a

night out

Every 6 months Once a month More than
once a month

No answer

Over the past 12 months how often have you visited 
Cannon Street after 7pm to enjoy a night out? 

78 

28 

17 17 16 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Have not used
this area for a

night out

Every 6 months Once a month More than once
a month

No answer

Over the past 12 months how often have you visited North 
Street after 7pm to enjoy a night out? 

P
age 418



APPENDIX 8 

 

1 

6 

2 
3 

1 1 

10 

38 

4 
5 

3 3 3 

1 1 1 
2 2 

1 

13 

23 

9 

5 

1 

3 

1 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

No answer Every 6 months Have not used this area for a night
out

More than once a month Once a month

Over the past 12 months have you visited North Street to enjoy a night out- broken up by type of respondent 

A local community group representative A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify) Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence

Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence Other (please specify)

P
age 419



APPENDIX 8 

 
The majority of respondents did not use this area for a night out – this was common across all respondent types. Local business owners with a premises 

licence are more likely to go out monthly or more than once a month.  

1 

6 

2 
3 

1 1 

6 

41 

4 
3 3 

4 

1 
2 

1 1 
3 

1 1 

6 

30 

8 
6 

1 

4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

No answer Every 6 months Have not used this area for a night
out

More than once a month Once a month

Over the past 12 months have you visited Cannon Street to enjoy a night out- broken up by type of respondent 

A local community group representative A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify) Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence

Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence Other (please specify)

P
age 420



APPENDIX 8 

 
Total respondents = 73 

 
Total respondents = 84 

48 

36 

16 16 
10 

7 6 5 5 
2 2 2 1 1 0 0 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

I don't live near
the area

I prefer to go to
other areas

The bars don’t 
appeal to me 

There is not
enough public

transport to get
home

Fear of crime Lack of
accessible

public transport

Lack of cultural
activities on

offer e.g.
theatres

Lack of
restaurant

choice

Lack of family-
friendly venues,

e.g. cinemas,
bowling alleys

Litter from
venues

There are not
enough taxis

available to get
home

Lack of live
music venues

Lack of family-
friendly pubs or

bars

Poor venue
accessibility

Lack of family-
friendly

restaurants

The bars are
open too late

In the previous question you selected that you do not use North Street for a night out. Please tell us why this is by 
selecting up to five reasons from the list below 

60 

44 

20 
17 

11 
6 5 5 5 3 3 2 2 1 1 1 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

I don't live near
the area

I prefer to go to
other areas

The bars don’t 
appeal to me 

There is not
enough public

transport to get
home

Fear of crime Lack of
accessible

public transport

Lack of cultural
activities on

offer e.g.
theatres

Lack of family-
friendly venues,

e.g. cinemas,
bowling alleys

Litter from
venues

Lack of
restaurant

choice

Lack of live
music venues

Lack of family-
friendly

restaurants

Lack of family-
friendly pubs or

bars

The bars are
open too late

There are not
enough taxis

available to get
home

Poor venue
accessibility

In the previous question you selected that you do not use Cannon Street for a night out. Please tell us why this is by 
selecting up to five reasons from the list below 

P
age 421



APPENDIX 8 
The main reasons why people don’t go to these areas are that they don’t live in the area, or that they prefer other areas. This makes sense as the majority of 

respondents were not from the BS3 area.  

 

 

0 0 0 0 8 4 3 7 2 0 7 21 1 24 1 4 3 0 1 0 

4 

1 1 

2 

0 
0 

4 

6 

1 

13 

0 

0 0 

0 0 0 

1 

0 0 

1 

0 
1 

1 

1 

0 

1 

0 

0 0 

0 0 0 

1 

0 0 

0 

0 0 

0 

1 

0 

2 

0 

1 1 

0 0 0 

0 

0 1 

0 

0 1 

0 

2 

0 

4 

0 

1 0 

0 0 0 

0 

0 0 

0 

0 0 

2 

3 

0 

2 

0 

0 
1 

0 0 0 

2 

1 0 

0 

0 0 

2 

2 

0 

2 

0 

1 0 

0 0 0 

0 

0 0 

0 

0 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Lack of
restaurant

choice

Lack of family-
friendly

restaurants

Lack of family-
friendly pubs or

bars

The bars are
open too late

The bars don’t 
appeal to me 

Lack of cultural
activities on

offer e.g.
theatres

Lack of family-
friendly venues,

e.g. cinemas,
bowling alleys

Fear of crime Litter from
venues

There are not
enough taxis

available to get
home

There is not
enough public

transport to get
home

I prefer to go to
other areas

Lack of live
music venues

I don't live near
the area

Poor venue
accessibility

Lack of
accessible

public transport

North Street Reasons 

A member of the public Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence Other (please specify)

A person who works in Bristol A local community group representative A local Councillor or MP

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence A Trade Representative (please specify)

P
age 422



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

If you break down the survey responses by type of person, can see that the two groups with the most respondents: a member of the public and a local 

business owner with a premises licence, are mostly aligned. 

  

0 0 0 1 10 3 3 8 5 0 8 26 2 28 1 4 2 2 1 0 

5 

0 1 

1 
0 

0 

4 

10 

1 

18 

0 
1 

0 0 0 0 

1 

0 0 

1 

0 

1 

1 

1 

0 

2 

0 

0 
0 0 0 0 

1 

1 1 

1 

0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

2 

0 

0 
0 0 1 0 

1 

0 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

5 

0 

0 
0 0 0 0 

0 

0 0 

0 

0 

0 

2 

2 

0 

3 

0 

1 
1 0 0 0 

2 

1 0 

0 

0 

0 

2 

3 

0 

2 

0 

0 
0 0 0 0 

0 

0 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Lack of
restaurant

choice

Lack of family-
friendly

restaurants

Lack of family-
friendly pubs or

bars

The bars are
open too late

The bars don’t 
appeal to me 

Lack of cultural
activities on

offer e.g.
theatres

Lack of family-
friendly venues,

e.g. cinemas,
bowling alleys

Fear of crime Litter from
venues

There are not
enough taxis

available to get
home

There is not
enough public

transport to get
home

I prefer to go to
other areas

Lack of live
music venues

I don't live near
the area

Poor venue
accessibility

Lack of
accessible

public transport

Cannon Street Reasons 

A member of the public Local business owner/manager - that has a premises licence Other (please specify)

A person who works in Bristol A local community group representative A local Councillor or MP

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a premises licence A Trade Representative (please specify)

P
age 423



APPENDIX 8 
North Street issues 

 

The serious issue is litter. Noise and the other reasons are not seen as such a serious issue. 

 

 
Total respondents = 31 to 32 

  

16 
15 

11 
10 10 

9 9 
8 8 

7 7 7 

5 

14 14 

19 19 
20 20 20 

22 
21 

23 23 

21 

23 

2 2 2 
3 

2 
3 3 

2 
3 

2 2 

4 
3 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Litter outside fast food
establishments

Litter being dropped in
the street by people

who have visited
licensed premises/fast
food establishments

Noise from people
travelling through

residential areas to get
to or from licensed

premises

Fear of public
nuisance/disturbance

Litter outside licensed
premises

Fear of criminal
damage e.g. vandalism

Fear of harassment Noise from people
gathered outside fast
food establishments

Fear of personal
injury/assault

Noise from people
gathered outside
licensed premises

(shouting etc.)

Noise from deliveries
to fast food

establishments or
licensed premises

Noise from empty
bottles being put into

trade bins

Music from licensed
premises

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? 

A serious/moderate problem A minor problem/ Not at all a problem Don’t know/No opinion 

P
age 424



APPENDIX 8 
Cannon Street issues 

 

Similarly to North Street, litter is a serious issue, but noise etc. are not seen as serious an issue. 

 

 
Total respondents = 25 

  

15 

13 

9 9 9 9 
8 8 

7 
6 

5 5 
4 

8 

10 

13 13 13 
14 14 14 

15 
16 16 16 

17 

2 2 
3 3 3 

2 
3 3 3 3 

4 4 4 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Litter being dropped
in the street by people

who have visited
licensed premises/fast
food establishments

Litter outside fast food
establishments

Noise from people
gathered outside
licensed premises

(shouting etc.)

Fear of personal
injury/assault

Fear of criminal
damage e.g. vandalism

Litter outside licensed
premises

Noise from people
travelling through

residential areas to
get to or from licensed

premises

Fear of harassment Noise from people
gathered outside fast
food establishments

Fear of public
nuisance/disturbance

Music from licensed
premises

Noise from deliveries
to fast food

establishments or
licensed premises

Noise from empty
bottles being put into

trade bins

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? 

A serious/moderate problem A minor problem/ Not at all a problem Don’t know/No opinion 

P
age 425



APPENDIX 8 
North Street, current number of venues 

 

Most places there are about the right number, or too few. Fast food establishments and off licences are the venues most likely to be said to have too many. 

 
Total respondents = 31 to 32 

  

2 

0 
1 

4 
3 

0 

3 

7 

9 

11 

13 

15 

13 

16 

7 

17 
18 

17 

14 
13 

12 

9 9 9 
8 

3 
2 

5 
6 

4 

6 

4 

15 

4 4 4 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

Live music venues Family orientated
venues

Traditional public
houses

Late night
alcohol/music

orientated bars

Restaurants Nightclubs Food orientated
bars

Off licences Fast food
establishments

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, what is your opinion on the number of: 

There are too many There are about the right number There are too few Don’t know/no opinion 

P
age 426



APPENDIX 8 
Cannon Street, current number of venues. 

 

 

There are thought to be the right amount of most things except for family orientated venues.  

 
Total respondents = 24 to 25 

  

1 1 

2 

0 0 

2 2 

5 

6 6 

12 

10 

11 

14 14 

7 

11 11 

13 

8 8 8 

7 

4 4 

3 3 

5 

4 

5 5 

4 

5 

12 

6 

5 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Family orientated
venues

Food orientated
bars

Live music venues Restaurants Traditional public
houses

Late night
alcohol/music

orientated bars

Nightclubs Off licences Fast food
establishments

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, what is your opinion on the number of: 

There are too many There are about the right number There are too few Don’t know/no opinion 

P
age 427



APPENDIX 8 
North Street new venues 

 

Most people would agree with new venues being opened on North Street, the only exceptions being off licences and fast food establishments. 

 

 
Total respondents = 32 

  

1 1 1 

7 

3 

7 
8 

9 9 

6 
8 

12 

8 

13 
11 11 

13 

17 

25 
23 

19 
17 

16 
14 

13 

10 

6 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Family orientated
venues

Traditional public
house

Restaurants Live music venues Food orientated
bars

Nightclubs Late night
alcohol/music

orientated bars

Off licences Fast food
establishments

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in North Street? 

Strongly disagree/disagree Neither agree or disagree Strongly agree/agree

P
age 428



APPENDIX 8 
Cannon Street new venues 

 

People would be ok with new venues, although nightclubs, off licences and fast food establishments split the vote (due to a small sample size). 

 
Total respondents = 25 

  

1 

3 3 
2 

3 

6 

8 8 8 
7 

6 

8 

12 
11 

10 
9 

11 
12 

17 
16 

14 

11 11 

9 
8 

6 
5 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Family orientated
venues

Traditional public
house

Restaurants Food orientated
bars

Live music venues Late night
alcohol/music

orientated bars

Nightclubs Off licences Fast food
establishments

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the Cannon Street Area? 

Strongly disagree/disagree Neither agree or disagree Strongly agree/agree

P
age 429



APPENDIX 8 
North Street opening hours 

 

Most people believe that places close at about the right time. 

 
Total respondents = 31 

  

9 

8 

6 6 

3 

19 

13 

17 

22 22 

1 

2 

4 

1 

4 

2 

8 

4 

2 2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Pubs/Bars Live music venues Off licences Restaurants Fast food establishments

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of food and alcohol outlets are for North Street? 

Close too early About right Open too late Don't know/No opinion

P
age 430



APPENDIX 8 
Cannon Street opening hours 

 

Most places are open until about the right time. 

 
Total respondents = 25 

 

  

6 6 

4 4 

3 

13 13 

10 

9 

14 

2 

1 

6 

2 2 

4 

5 5 

10 

6 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Pubs/Bars Restaurants Fast food establishments Live music venues Off licences

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of food and alcohol outlets are for the Cannon Street Area? 

Close too early About right Open too late Don't know/No opinion

P
age 431



APPENDIX 8 
Appendix 1 – North Street 
Total respondents: 155/156 (inc. no answer)  

The number of people who responded to this question: 

Members of the public = 12 people 

Local business owners with a premises licence = 12 people 

This is a very small sample size, and cannot be seen as representative of the population of Bristol or the locality. 

 

Question 41 graphs by type of person 

 

In general, the majority of the public did not believe that noise was an issue, the exceptions being noise from outside fast food establishments and deliveries 

to fast food places or licenced premises where 42% said it was not a problem. For noise from delivers 33% said it was a minor problem. For outside fast food 

establishments 25% (3 people) said it was a serious problem.  

Local business owners also mostly said that noise was not at all a problem or a minor problem.  

 

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? 

 

 
 

2 

8 

1 1 2 1 1 

9 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 
3 3 2 1 

6 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate problem Don’t know/No opinion Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Music 
from licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 432



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 
5 

2 
5 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 
7 

1 1 1 2 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Noise 
from people gathered outside licensed premises (shouting etc.) 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 2 3 1 

6 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 3 3 1 1 
4 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Noise 
from people travelling through residential areas to get to or from licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 433



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 3 1 3 
5 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 
7 

1 1 3 

42 

1 
6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Noise 
from people gathering outside fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 434



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

2 

8 

1 1 2 4 2 1 
5 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 3 2 1 

6 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Noise 
from deliveries to fast food establishments and licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 2 1 2 
7 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 4 
1 1 1 

5 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Noise 
from empty bottles being put into trade bins 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 435



APPENDIX 8 
 

Question 42 graphs by type of person 

 

In general, both members of the public and local business owners viewed these fears as either not at all a problem or a minor problem.  

 

 

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? 

 

 
 

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 2 3 
7 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 
3 4 3 

1 
4 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Fear 
of personal injury/assault 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 436



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 3 4 5 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 4 3 1 
4 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Fear 
of public nuisance/disturbance 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 2 3 1 

6 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 3 1 2 1 
5 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Fear 
of criminal damage e.g. vandalism 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 437



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

 

  

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 2 3 
7 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 3 4 
1 

4 

42 

1 
6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Fear 
of harassment 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 438



APPENDIX 8 
Question 43 graphs by type of person 

 

Members of the public mostly say that litter is either a minor or not a problem. Local business owners are more likely to think that there is an issue, 42% said 

that noise outside fast food  establishments was a moderate problem, and 25% (3 people) said it noise from deliveries was a serious problem.  

 

 

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? 

 

 
 

1 1 

8 

2 2 4 
1 2 

5 

51 

2 

10 

2 1 
3 2 2 1 2 

5 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Litter 
outside licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 439



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

2 

8 

1 1 2 4 2 2 4 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 2 
5 

1 2 2 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Litter 
outside fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 4 2 2 4 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 3 3 2 3 2 2 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Litter 
being dropped in the street by people who have visited licensed premises/fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 440



APPENDIX 8 
Question 44 graphs by type of person 

 

Food orientated bars, off licences, and fast food establishments were said to have about the right number by both groups. Both groups also said that there 

were too few live music venues.  

Members of the public said that there were too few traditional pubs and family orientated venues. 42% of local business owners said that both types had the 

right number of venues; however 42% also said that there were too few family orientated venues. Nightclubs, restaurants and late night alcohol/music 

orientated bars were very close between the options of too few and about right, and the small number of responses means it is not possible to draw reliable 

conclusions.  

 

 

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, what is your opinion on the number of: 

 

 
 

2 

8 

2 2 2 
4 6 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 
3 2 

5 4 
1 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, what is your opinion on the number of: Traditional public 
houses 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 441



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 

8 

2 2 2 
5 5 

51 

2 

10 

2 1 3 2 4 3 3 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, what is your opinion on the number of: Late night 
alcohol/music orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 2 
6 

3 
1 

51 

2 

10 

2 1 
3 2 

6 
4 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, what is your opinion on the number of: Food orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 442



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 2 
4 

6 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 
3 

1 
3 

6 
2 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, what is your opinion on the number of: Live music venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)P

age 443



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 1 
5 6 

51 

2 

10 

2 1 3 2 
5 5 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the right
number

There are too few No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, what is your opinion on the number of: Family orientated 
venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 

8 

2 2 1 

9 

2 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 
3 3 

6 
2 1 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, what is your opinion on the number of: Off licences 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 444



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

2 

8 

2 2 1 
6 

1 
4 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 2 
7 

1 2 

42 

1 
6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, what is your opinion on the number of: Fast food 
establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 445



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

  

2 

8 

2 2 1 
5 5 

1 

51 

2 

10 

2 1 
3 3 4 4 

1 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, what is your opinion on the number of: Restaurants 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

2 

8 

2 2 

7 

1 
4 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 
3 3 4 4 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the right
number

There are too few No response

Thinking about this stretch of North Street, what is your opinion on the number of: Nightclubs 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 446



APPENDIX 8 
Question 45 graphs by type of person 

 

The majority of members of the public said that all opening hours were about right. The larger proportion of local business owners agreed that the opening 

hours were about right, but were more likely to think that the close too early. 

 

 

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of food and alcohol outlets are for North Street? 

 

 
 

2 

8 

2 2 

8 
4 

51 

2 

10 

2 1 
3 

5 
3 2 1 

43 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Pubs/Bars are for North Street? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 447



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 

9 

2 1 

51 

2 

10 

2 1 
3 4 3 3 

1 

43 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Off licences are for North Street? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

2 

8 

1 1 2 

8 

2 2 

51 

2 

10 

2 1 
3 

8 

1 2 

43 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Fast food establishments are for North Street? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence

P
age 448



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

2 

8 

2 2 

9 

3 

51 

2 

10 

2 1 
3 

6 
3 2 

43 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Restaurants are for North Street? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)P

age 449



APPENDIX 8 

 
  

2 

8 

1 1 2 
6 

3 3 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 
3 

5 4 
1 1 

43 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Live music venues are for North Street? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 450



APPENDIX 8 
Question 46 graphs by type of person 

 

Traditional public houses, restaurants, live music venues, family orientated venues and food orientated bars have support from both members of the public 

and local business owners with the majority agreeing with new premises being opened. With late night bars and nightclubs, members of the public are more 

likely to agree than disagree, but with no large majority. Local business owners have a majority agreeing with new nightclubs and late night bars. For off 

licences and fast food establishments, members of the public disagree with new premises open. 

 

 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in North Street? 

 

 
 

1 1 

8 

2 2 
6 

3 2 1 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 3 4 5 

42 

1 
6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in North Street? 
Traditional public house 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 451



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 4 
1 

4 2 1 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 2 4 3 3 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in North 
Street? Late night alcohol/music orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

2 

8 

1 1 2 3 3 4 
1 1 

51 

2 

10 

2 1 3 3 
5 

3 1 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in North Street? 
Food orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence

P
age 452



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 
6 

1 3 1 1 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 4 3 3 2 

42 

1 
6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in North Street? 
Live music venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 453



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

2 

8 

2 2 
5 5 

2 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 3 
5 

3 1 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in North Street? 
Family orientated venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 3 
5 

3 1 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 3 2 
6 

1 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in North Street? 
Off licences 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 454



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 1 

8 

1 1 2 3 4 3 2 

51 

2 

10 

2 1 3 2 1 

8 

1 

42 

1 
6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in North Street? 
Fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 455



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

  

2 

8 

2 2 4 4 3 1 

51 

2 

10 

2 1 3 4 4 4 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in North Street? 
Restaurants 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

2 

8 

1 1 2 4 
1 

4 
1 2 

51 

1 1 

10 

2 1 3 3 4 4 
1 

42 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in North Street? 
Nightclubs 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 456



APPENDIX 8 
Appendix 2- Cannon Street 
The number of people who responded to this question: 

Members of the public = 11 people 

Local business owners with a premises licence = 8 people 

This is a very small sample size, and given the size we are unable to draw any meaningful conclusions in the comparisons between members of the public 

and local business owners with a premises licence. 

 

Question 48 graphs by type of person 

Total respondents: 155/156 (inc. no answer) this is a very small sample size. 

 

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? 

 

 
 

1 

9 

2 2 1 3 
7 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 3 1 2 2 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Music 
from licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 457



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 

9 

1 1 2 4 2 1 
4 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 3 1 1 2 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Noise 
from people gathered outside licensed premises (shouting etc.) 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 

9 

1 1 2 3 2 1 
5 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 3 1 1 2 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Noise 
from people travelling through residential areas to get to or from licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 458



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 

9 

1 1 2 4 2 1 
4 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 4 
1 2 1 

46 

1 
6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Noise 
from people gathering outside fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 459



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 

9 

1 1 2 4 2 1 
4 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 4 
1 2 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Noise 
from deliveries to fast food establishments and licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 

9 

1 1 2 2 1 1 

7 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 4 
1 2 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Noise 
from empty bottles being put into trade bins 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 460



APPENDIX 8 
 

 

Question 49 graphs by type of person 

Total respondents: 155/156 (inc. no answer) This is a very small sample size. 

 

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? 

 

 
 

1 

9 

1 1 2 3 4 4 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 
4 3 2 2 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Fear of 
personal injury/assault 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 461



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 

9 

1 1 2 4 2 1 
4 

52 

2 

10 

2 4 4 
1 2 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Fear of 
public nuisance/disturbance 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 

9 

1 1 2 4 3 1 3 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 3 2 2 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Fear of 
criminal damage e.g. vandalism 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 462



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

  

1 

9 

1 1 2 3 3 
5 

52 

2 

10 

2 4 4 
1 2 1 

46 

1 
6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Fear of 
harassment 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 463



APPENDIX 8 
Question 50 graphs by type of person 

Total respondents: 155/156 (inc. no answer) 

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? 

 

 
 

1 

9 

1 1 2 4 2 
5 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 2 2 1 2 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Litter 
outside licensed premises 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 464



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 

9 

2 2 
5 

2 2 2 

52 

2 

10 

2 4 2 2 1 2 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Litter 
outside fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 

9 

1 1 2 3 
5 

1 2 

52 

2 

10 

2 4 2 2 1 2 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A minor problem A moderate
problem

A serious problem Don’t know/No 
opinion 

Not at all a problem No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, how much of a problem do you think the following is? Litter 
being dropped in the street by people who have visited licensed premises/fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 465



APPENDIX 8 
 

Question 51 graphs by type of person 

Total respondents: 155/156 (inc. no answer) 

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, what is your opinion on the number of: 

 

 
 

1 

9 

1 1 2 1 
6 4 

52 

2 

10 

2 4 2 
5 

1 

46 

1 
6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the right
number

There are too few No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, what is your opinion on the number of: Traditional public 
houses 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 466



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 

9 

2 2 1 

8 

2 

52 

2 

10 

2 4 2 2 2 2 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, what is your opinion on the number of: Late night 
alcohol/music orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 

9 

1 1 2 1 

7 
3 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 
4 

2 1 
4 

1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, what is your opinion on the number of: Food orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 467



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 

9 

1 1 2 1 
5 5 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 
4 

2 3 2 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, what is your opinion on the number of: Live music venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)P

age 468



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 

9 

1 1 2 1 
4 

6 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 2 2 4 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, what is your opinion on the number of: Family orientated 
venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 

9 

1 1 2 1 

7 

1 2 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 
4 3 3 

1 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, what is your opinion on the number of: Off licences 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 469



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 

9 

1 1 2 1 

7 

1 2 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 2 2 2 2 

46 

1 
6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

 Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, what is your opinion on the number of: Fast food 
establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 470



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 

9 

1 1 2 2 
6 

3 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 
4 

2 2 3 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few (blank) No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, what is your opinion on the number of: Restaurants 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 

9 

1 1 2 
5 4 

2 

52 

2 

10 

2 
4 3 2 2 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Don’t know/no opinion There are about the
right number

There are too few There are too many No response

Thinking about the Cannon Street Area, what is your opinion on the number of: Nightclubs 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 471



APPENDIX 8 
 

Question 52 graphs by type of person 

Total respondents: 155/156 (inc. no answer) 

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of food and alcohol outlets are for the Cannon Street Area? 

 

 
 

1 

9 

1 1 2 

7 
3 

1 

52 

2 

10 

2 
4 

1 
3 2 2 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Pubs/Bars are for the Cannon Street Area? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 472



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 

9 

1 1 2 
6 

2 2 1 

52 

2 

10 

2 
4 4 

1 
3 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Off licences are for the Cannon Street Area? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 

9 

1 1 2 
5 

2 1 
3 

52 

2 

10 

2 
4 

2 2 3 
1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Fast food establishments are for the Cannon Street Area? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 473



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 

9 

1 1 2 

6 
3 2 

52 

2 

10 

2 
4 3 3 2 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Restaurants are for the Cannon Street Area? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)P

age 474



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

Question 53 graphs by type of person 

Total respondents: 155/156 (inc. no answer) 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the Cannon Street Area? 

 

 

1 

9 

2 2 

7 

2 2 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 
4 

1 2 
4 

1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

About right Close too early Don't know/No opinion Open too late No response

How suitable do you feel the opening hours of Live music venuesfood and alcohol outlets are for the 
Cannon Street Area? 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)P

age 475



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 

9 

1 1 2 4 4 
1 2 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 
1 2 4 

1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the Cannon 
Street Area? Traditional public house 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 

9 

1 1 2 2 
5 

2 2 

52 

2 

10 

2 4 
1 1 3 2 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the Cannon 
Street Area? Late night alcohol/music orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 476



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 

9 

1 1 2 3 4 4 

52 

2 

10 

2 4 
1 2 3 1 1 

46 

1 
6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the Cannon 
Street Area? Food orientated bars 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 477



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 

9 

2 2 
6 

1 3 1 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 
1 1 

4 
1 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the Cannon 
Street Area? Live music venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 

9 

1 1 2 
5 

3 3 

52 

2 

10 

2 4 
1 3 3 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the Cannon 
Street Area? Family orientated venues 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 478



APPENDIX 8 
 

 
 

1 

9 

1 1 2 3 4 4 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 
1 1 

4 
1 1 

46 

1 
6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the Cannon 
Street Area? Off licences 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 479



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

 

1 

9 

1 1 2 1 1 
5 

2 2 

52 

1 1 

10 

2 4 
1 2 3 1 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the Cannon 
Street Area? Fast food establishments 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

1 

9 

1 1 2 
5 

2 3 1 

52 

2 

10 

2 4 
1 2 3 1 1 

46 

1 

6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the Cannon 
Street Area? Restaurants 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 480



APPENDIX 8 
 

 

1 

9 

1 1 2 3 2 1 2 3 

52 

2 

10 

2 4 
1 2 3 1 1 

46 

1 
6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree or
disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree No response

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following new premises being opened in the Cannon 
Street Area? Nightclubs 

A local community group representative

A local Councillor or MP

A member of the public

A person who works in Bristol

A Trade Representative (please specify)

Local business owner/manager - that does not have a
premises licence
Local business owner/manager - that has a premises
licence
Other (please specify)

P
age 481



 

          Appendix 9 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
 

TEMPLATE OPERATING 
SCHEDULES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 482



 

 1 

TEMPLATE OPERATING SCHEDULES 
 

 
This document contains template operating schedules that applicants may wish to use as 
a guide when completing an application.  It should be made clear that the individual 
templates are guides only and cannot cover all eventualities.  Equally the conditions 
contained within them may not be appropriate for all applications.  It is a matter for 
applicants to decide how to set out the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing 
objectives when they complete their operating schedules, providing they act in accordance 
with their statutory obligations and do not make any false or misleading statements.   
 
 
 
 
 
CONTENTS 
            Page 
Template 01   Operating Schedule Late night entertainment venues  02 
Template 02  Operating Schedule Public House in commercial area  12 
Template 03  Operating Schedule Public House in residential area  16 
Template 04  Operating Schedule Hot Food Takeaways   20 
Template 05  Operating Schedule small to medium mixed retail  21 
Template 06  Operating Schedule Large mixed retail    23 
Template 07  Operating Schedule Principal Off Licences   25  
Template 08  Operating Schedule  Main Use Cinemas and Theatres  27 
Template 09   Operating Schedule Restaurants      32 
Template 10  Operating Schedule Alcohol Delivery Service   33 
Template 11  Operating Schedule Sexual Entertainment   34 
 
 
See paragraph 2.14 of the policy, decision making on new applications for authorisations.

Page 483



 

 2 

           TEMPLATE 01 
 

Type of Premises: Late Night Entertainment venues (commonly referred to as 
nightclubs) i.e. those premises licensed for the sale of alcohol and regulated 
entertainment which trade beyond midnight on any day.  
 

Measures will 
be put in place 
to ensure the 
safety of 
customers 
entering, 
exiting and 
whilst on the 
premises.  
 
These 
measures are 
not only 
necessary to 
ensure public 
safety but also 
to prevent 
crime and 
disorder. The 
Licensing 
Authority 
expects 
applicants to 
identify the 
capacity 
proposed for 
their premises. 
 
 
 

Overcrowding of premises can impinge on the safety of the public in that 
violence can erupt from such situations as spilt drinks or accidental 
barging between customers. In the event of an emergency overcrowding 
can also seriously impact on public safety. Overcrowding may also create 
opportunities for criminal activity such as pick-pocketing. 
 
CA08 The licence holder shall determine the occupant capacity of the 
premises on the basis of documented risk assessment(s).  
(i) The risk assessment(s) must take into account all relevant factors 
including space, means of access and egress, toilet provision, load-
bearing capacity of floors, ventilation, etc. and must be reviewed regularly, 
and if circumstances change. 
(ii)Where necessary separate occupancy levels must be set for different 
parts of the premises. 
(iii) The premises licence holder shall ensure that they consult the Health 
and Safety Department of Bristol City Council and any other relevant 
authority (for example the Fire Rescue Service regarding emergency 
evacuation limitations) as to the occupancy figure. Confirmation of the 
consultation and any outcomes shall form an integral part of the risk 
assessment on which the capacity figure is based.  
(iv)The capacity figure proposed by the premises licence holder shall be 
notified to the Licensing Authority in writing prior to the commencement of 
the licence. 
(v)Measures must be put in place to ensure that the capacity is not 
exceeded at any time. 
(vi) All documentation pertaining to the proposed figure must be kept on 
the premises and must be available immediately on request to any 
authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable. 
 
CA11: The occupancy shall be restricted to (Insert number) persons in the 
premises. (Limits may be also be appropriate for different rooms or floors 
of premises) The occupancy figure includes staff, performers and public. 
The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that there are appropriate 
management controls to ensure that the occupancy figure is not exceeded 
at any time. Appropriate controls shall be put in place to ensure that the 
occupancy of the premises / specified areas are not exceeded at any time. 
 
CA12: Manual or automatic electronic number control systems shall be 
installed, used and maintained at the premises at all times the premises is 
open to the public.  
 

Prevention of 
glassing 
incidents 

There have been ‘glassing’ incidents in nightclubs resulting in serious 
injuries. 
 

Page 484



 

 3 

 GB01. The premises licence holder shall ensure that any bottles or 
glasses are removed from persons leaving the premises. 
 
GB04. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all drinking glasses 
used within the premises are of toughened or safety glass to the 
appropriate safety standard, in that they shall not produce sharp shards 
when broken 
 

Control and 
management of 
the sale of 
alcohol 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SA01:  All staff to be trained in the prevention of underage sales to a level 
commensurate with their duties. All such training to be updated as 
necessary, for instance when legislation changes, and should include 
training on how to deal with difficult customers. The training should be 
clearly documented and signed and dated by both the trainer and the 
member of staff receiving it. The documentation shall be available for 
inspection on request by an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or 
a constable. 
 
SA02: (i) An approved proof of age scheme shall be adopted, 
implemented and advertised within the premise such as “Challenge 25” 
whereby an accepted form of photographic identification shall be 
requested before any alcohol is sold to any person who appears to be 
under 25 years of age. Acceptable proof of age shall include identification 
bearing the customers photograph, date of birth and integral holographic 
mark or security measure. Suitable means of identification would include 
PASS approved proof of age card, photo-card driving licence and 
passport.  
(ii) Publicity materials notifying customers of the operation of the 
Challenge 25 scheme shall be displayed at the premises, including a 
Challenge 25 sign of at least A5 size at the entrance to the premises and 
where practicable at each point of sale. 
 
SA03:The premises licence holder shall require the DPS, or in his/her 
absence other responsible person, to keep an 'incident/refusals logbook in 
a bound book in which full details of all incidents are recorded. This shall 
include details of any refused sales and shall give details of the persons 
involved, incident description, time and date, actions taken and final 
outcome of the situation. This shall be completed as soon as possible and 
in any case no later than the close of business on the day of the incident. 
The time and date when the report was completed, and by whom, is to 
form part of the entry. The logbook is to be kept on the premises at all 
times and shall be produced to an authorised officer of the Licensing 
Authority or a constable when required. 
 
TL01: The premises license holder, or the person appointed by the 
premises licence holder to be in charge of the premises when licensable 
activities are taking place, shall provide or have the unhampered use of a 
telephone on the licensed premises for use in an emergency. In premises 
that do not have the benefit of a permanent phone installation then a 
mobile phone must be available. 
 

Page 485



 

 4 

Advertising Advertising of events can result in fly posting resulting in litter and 
nuisance. 
AD01: The premises licence holder shall take all reasonable precautions 
and exercise all due diligence to ensure that no licensable activity shall be 
advertised in a manner which contravenes the general law or cause a 
nuisance to the general public. 
 

Provision of 
door 
supervisors 

The provision of door supervisors are key to the control and management 
of the premises both inside and outside, so as to prevent crime and 
disorder and to promote public safety. 
 
DC01: Door supervisors who have been approved by the Security Industry 
Authority or any accreditation scheme recognised by the Licensing 
Authority, shall be used to vet customers and maintain public order. The 
vetting process must include implementation of the premises' proof of age 
policy. All door supervisors must ensure that identification bearing the 
customers photograph, date of birth and integral holographic mark or 
security measure is produced before allowing entry and where it 
is not, entry shall be refused. Suitable means of identification would 
include PASS approved proof of age card, photo-card driving licences and 
passports. 
 
DC03: [A] The premises licence holder shall ensure that the following 
details for each door supervisor, are contemporaneously entered into a 
bound register kept for that purpose: 
(i) Full name,  
(ii) SIA Certificate number and or badge number, or registration number of 
any accreditation scheme recognised by the Licensing Authority (including 
expiry date of that registration or accreditation),  
(iii) The time they began their duty  
(iv) The time they completed their duty. 
This register is to be kept at the premises at all times and shall be so 
maintained as to enable an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or 
a constable to establish the particulars of all door stewards engaged at the 
premises during the period of not less than 31 days prior to the request 
and shall be open to inspection by authorised officers of the Licensing 
Authority or a constable upon request.  
[B] The premises licence holder shall ensure that the following details for 
each door supervisor are entered into a bound register kept for that 
purpose to include the following details: 
(i) Name 
(ii) Date of birth 
(iii) Address  
(iv) Contact telephone numbers 
(iv) SIA Certificate number, or registration number of any accreditation 
scheme recognised by the Licensing Authority.   
(v) Commencement date of performing duties at the premises. 
(vi) The full details of any agency through which they have been allocated 
to work at the premises if appropriate 
These details should be easily accessible to any authorised officer of the 

Page 486



 

 5 

Licensing Authority or a constable.   
 
DC05: The premises licence holder shall ensure that all door supervisors 
on duty at the premises wear a current identification badge, issued by the 
Security Industry Authority or any accreditation scheme recognised by the 
Licensing Authority, in a conspicuous position to the front of their upper 
body. 
 
DC10: The Premises Licence Holder shall keep a register of all security 
personnel employed at the premises, such a register to include the 
following details of those personnel and is to be kept on the premises at 
all times:  Full Name, Date of Birth, Full Address and employing agency (if 
appropriate).  This register will be made immediately available to an 
authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable upon 
requirement.    
 
DC11: The premise licence holder shall require the designated premises 
supervisor, or in his/her absence other responsible person to identify by 
name, those persons performing duty as door security personnel to an 
authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a Constable. 
 
DC18 The minimum number of door supervisors provided at venues, 
holding regulated entertainment for less than 500 persons, shall be based 
on a risk assessment. 
 
DC19 The minimum number of door supervisors provided at venues, 
holding regulated entertainment for more than 500 persons, shall be 
based on a risk assessment. The risk assessment shall follow the 
recommendations as laid out in the Health and Safety Executive’s Event 
Safety Guide or any other similar guidance recognised by the Licensing 
Authority 
 
DC24: All door supervisors shall be capable of communicating instantly 
with one another by way of radio or other simultaneous system of 
communication. 
 

Provision of 
CCTV 

CCTV is a key tool in the management and control of premises, not only 
providing the Police with evidence of crime but also for the premises 
licence holder as it can provide an overview of the whole premises and 
assist in management decision making 
 
CC17: CCTV shall be in use at the premises.  
(i) Where a CCTV system is to be installed, extended or replaced, it shall 
be to an appropriate standard as agreed with the Licensing Authority in 
consultation with the Police. Where a CCTV system is to be installed it 
shall be fully operational before the licence is used to authorise licensable 
activities. (ii) The CCTV equipment shall be maintained in good working 
order and continually record when licensable activity takes place and for a 
period of two hours afterwards. 
(iii) The premises licence holder shall ensure images from the CCTV are 

Page 487



 

 6 

retained for a period of 31 days.  This image retention period may be 
reviewed as appropriate by the Licensing Authority 
(iv) The correct time and date will be generated onto both the recording 
and the real time image screen. 
(v) If the CCTV equipment (Including any mobile units in use at the 
premises) breaks down the Premises Licence Holder shall ensure the 
designated premises supervisor, or in his/her absence other responsible 
person, verbally informs the Licensing Authority and the Police as soon as 
is reasonably practicable. This information shall be contemporaneously 
recorded in the incident report register and shall include the time, date and 
means this was done and to whom the information was reported.  
Equipment failures shall be repaired or replaced as soon as is reasonably 
practicable and without undue delay. The Licensing Authority and the 
Police shall be informed when faults are rectified. 
(vi) The premises Licence holder shall ensure that there are trained 
members of staff available during licensable hours to be able to reproduce 
and download CCTV images into a removable format at the justified 
request of an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable.  
(vii) There shall be clear signage indicating that CCTV equipment is in use 
and recording at the premises. 
 
CC12: The CCTV system shall include all external areas of the premises. 
 
CC14: CCTV cameras shall monitor all areas used by patrons including 
any external smoking area to monitor numbers and prevent crime and 
disorder. 
 

Staff Training A lack of training for staff has often been identified as a factor in poorly run 
premises or in situations where control of a premises has broken down 
often resulting in licence reviews being instigated. 
 
TR03: The premises license holder shall provide training for all staff to 
ensure that they are familiar with all means of ingress and egress and the 
appropriate procedures in case of any emergencies that require an 
immediate evacuation of the premises. A record of the training shall be 
maintained and shall be available upon request by officers of the City  
Council of Bristol. 
 
TR04: All staff are to be trained with respect to underage sales, such 
training to be updated as necessary when legislation changes and should 
include training in how to refuse sales to difficult customers. 

 
TR05: A record of all staff training shall be maintained at the premises and 
made immediately available upon request to an authorised officer of the 
Licensing Authority or the Police.  The documentation relating to training 
should extend back to a period of three years and should specify the time, 
date and details of the persons both providing the training and receiving 
the training. 
 

Security / Due to the volumes of people that nightclubs attract and that often the 

Page 488



 

 7 

Searching of 
customers 

patrons may be inebriated the crime statistics are generally higher for this 
type of venue. Security and searching policies are therefore a key tool for 
premises licence holders to properly manage and control their premises. 
PS06: The premises licence holder shall ensure that signage is 
appropriately displayed in the premises advising all customers not to leave 
any belongings unattended. 
 
PS07: The premises licence holder shall ensure that a search policy is 
implemented at the premises. Searches shall only be conducted by same 
sex searchers. 
 
PS08: Drugs and weapons seized will be placed in a locked receptacle set 
aside for this purpose. The means for securing or unlocking the receptacle 
will be retained by the premises licence holder or the designated premises 
supervisor or in their absence any other responsible person. A record 
shall be made of the seizure, the time, date and by whom, and to whom 
the items were handed on to in a bound book specifically kept for that 
purpose. Such a book to be produced to an authorised officer of the 
Licensing Authority or a constable upon request. The premises licence 
holder shall make suitable arrangements with the Police for the collection 
of any seized items.  
 
PS10: An incident report logbook shall be held at the premises at all times 
and shall be produced to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority 
or a constable immediately upon request. It shall contain the details of 
persons involved, incident description, time and date, actions taken and 
final outcome of the situation. 
 

Control of 
Drugs 

A proactive approach to the control and management of the use of illegal 
substances should assist premises licence holders in the prevention of 
criminal activity. 
 
DA01:  Where there is reasonable suspicion that drugs, defined as Class 
A,B or C controlled substances under the Misuse of Drugs Act, or 
weapons are being carried, the premises licence holder shall ensure that 
the outer clothing, pockets and bags of those entering the premises are 
searched by door security personnel. In any event where controlled 
substances or weapons are found, the premises licence holder shall 
ensure that the designated premises supervisor or nominated person shall 
immediately inform the Police. 
 
DA02: The premises licence holder shall put up a clearly visible notice 
advising those attending that the Police will be informed if anyone is found 
in possession of controlled substances or weapons. 
 
DA03: The premises licence holder shall ensure that documented security 
arrangements are implemented at the premises to discourage the sale 
and consumption of controlled substances. Security arrangements shall 
include having a member of staff regularly check toilet areas, the date and 
times of all checks to be recorded in a bound book kept for that purpose 

Page 489



 

 8 

and to be produced upon request to an authorised officer of the Licensing 
Authority or a constable. Signage shall also be placed in the toilet areas 
advising patrons that checks are conducted regularly. 
 
DA05: The premises licence holder shall ensure that, with regard to 
controlled substances, harm reduction information is displayed within the 
venue and that there are suitably experienced members of staff, or 
outreach workers from a local drugs agency, dedicated to providing harm 
reduction information and to dealing with drug related incidents or 
emergencies appropriately. 
 
DA06: The premises licence holder shall provide rest facilities, when 
required, to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority which are cooler, 
quieter and preferably separate from the main dance area(s). These areas 
should offer adequate seating. 
 

Liaison with 
external 
agencies 
and/or local 
forums 
 

Co-operation, liaison and sharing of information can be beneficial to 
premises licence holders in promoting the licensing objectives. 
PW01:The premises licence holder shall ensure participation in any Pub 
Watch or similar scheme operating in the locality of the licensed premises.  

First Aiders FA01: For events where it is anticipated that more than 100 persons will 
be in attendance the premises licence holder shall ensure that adequate 
first aid provision is available at all times that the license is in force and 
shall have a suitably qualified first-aider on the premises during the event. 
 

Noise control 
 
Steps should 
be advanced to 
avoid harm that 
can be caused 
by noise.  

Noise nuisance arising from the operation of premises is a common factor 
in complaints from local residents. The following conditions are therefore 
aimed at controlling the incidents of noise breakout which undermines the 
prevention of nuisance objective 
 
NP02: Music shall not be played at a level that will cause unreasonable 
disturbance  to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity. 
 
NP03: Except for access and egress all doors and windows shall be kept 
closed after (Insert) hours. 
 
NP04: No speakers for amplification of music shall be placed on the 
outside of the premises or on the outside of any building forming a part of 
the premises. 
 
NP39: (Condition regarding limiter only triggered if  nuisance witnessed) 
(i) If officers of the council witness noise at a level that causes 
unreasonable disturbance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity 
then a noise limiting device shall be used in relation to all sound 
amplification equipment used in conjunction with the Premises Licence. 
(ii) The noise limiting device shall be installed and set at a level approved 
by the Council through an authorised officer of the Pollution Control Team 
within 1 month of notification, for its requirement, from the Licensing 

Page 490



 

 9 

section. 
(iii) The noise limiting device shall be properly secured so that it cannot be 
tampered with. 
(iv) The noise limiting device shall only be reset with the authority of the 
Council through an authorised officer of the Pollution Control Team. 
(v) If deemed necessary, the noise limiting device shall be reset to a level 
approved by the Council through an authorised officer of the Pollution 
Control Team within 14 days of notification. 
 
In those instances where premises abut residential accommodation there 
will be a requirement for an assessment of the potential for noise 
transmission which results in noise nuisance. 
NP32: A report shall be submitted detailing and recommending a scheme 
of sound insulation works for the partition between the licensed premises 
and adjacent residential useage.  The report shall also consider the noise 
leakage from the building and also consider the volume and nature of the 
music likely to be desired by the premises.  The report shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Council through an authorised officer of 
the Pollution Control Team and all recommended works carried out in full 
prior to the commencement of any regulated entertainment should the 
Premises Licence be granted.  
 
Guidance 
The noise assessment shall be carried out by a suitably qualified acoustic 
consultant/engineer and shall take into account the provisions of PPG 24 
Planning Policy Guidance: Planning and Noise, BS4142: 1997. "Method of 
rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas" and 
BS 8233: 1999 "Sound Insulation and Noise Insulation for Buildings - 
Code of Practice". 
 
The recommended design criteria for dwellings are as follows: 
Daytime (07.00 – 23.00) LAeq(16 hours) 35 dB & Noise Rating Curve 

NR35 in all rooms 
Nightime (23.00 – 07.00) LAeq(8 hours) 30 dB & Noise Rating Curve 

NR20 to NR25 in bedrooms 
 
NP19: Monitoring 
The manager, licence holder or other competent person shall carry out 
observations in the vicinity of the properties at (insert location), on at least 
(insert time period e.g. hourly) intervals between (insert start time) and 
(insert finish time) whilst the Premises Licence is being exercised in order 
to establish whether there is a noise breakout from the premises. If the 
observation reveals noise breakout at a level likely to cause disturbance to 
the occupants of properties in the vicinity then the volume of music shall 
be reduced to a level that does not cause disturbance. A record of such 
observations shall be kept in a book for that purpose, such a book shall be 
completed immediately after the observation detailing the time, location 
and duration of the observation, the level of noise breakout and any action 
taken to reduce noise breakout. Such book to be made available at all 
times upon request to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a 

Page 491



 

 10 

constable. 
 
NP57: Clear notices displayed at all points where customers leave the 
building must instruct them to respect the needs of local residents and 
leave the premises and the area quietly. 
 
NP65: A clear notice shall be displayed at any exit to the premises to 
instruct customers to respect the needs of local residents and leave the 
premises and the area quietly. 
 

Special effects 
or novel 
performances 
 
Steps 
advanced to 
ensure safety 
during the use 
of special 
effects 

Special effects and unusual or novel performances often have inherent 
risks which can undermine the promotion of the public safety objectives.  
Pyrotechnics and other special effects. 
 
SX01: (i) All special effects, equipment and mechanical installations shall 
be selected, arranged, stored and used so as to minimise any risk to the 
safety of the audience, performance and staff. This must be on the basis 
of a written risk assessment.  
(ii) ‘Special effects’ include:  
dry ice machines, cryogenic fog machines, smoke machines and any 
other type of fog generators, pyrotechnics including fireworks, explosives 
and other highly flammable substances, real flame, firearms, motor 
vehicles, strobe lighting, lasers, foam, any other unusual or novel effect. 
(iii) Furthermore written permission must be sought from the licensing 
authority before using any of the above - for the first time and after any 
significant changes have been made to the venue, usage of the effect or 
the equipment itself. 
 
SX05: Except where expressly permitted no lasers, smoke producing 
effects, light shows (strobe lights) or pyrotechnics shall be used at any 
time when licensable activity is taking place 
 
SX06: Except where expressly permitted, explosives or highly flammable 
substances shall not be brought on to or used in the premises at any time 
when any licensable activity is taking place 
 

Control of 
waste materials  

WM7: WM7. Activities relating to the on-site disposal (including placing into 
external receptacles) and collection of refuse, bottles and recyclable 
materials shall only take place between (insert hours and days as 
necessary).   
 
WM8: The collection of refuse, bottles and recyclable materials shall only 
take place (insert hours and days as necessary).  
 
WM9: Activities relating to deliveries shall only take place between (insert 
hours and days as necessary).  
 

Smoking Areas 
/ Outdoor 
Areas 

Disorder can arise from patrons seeking to leave premises to smoke and 
being refused re- admittance or from patrons congregating outside of 
venues alongside those queuing to enter. There is also a potential for 

Page 492



 

 11 

increased nuisance arising from patrons congregating outside a venue. 
 
Dedicated smoking areas within the curtilage of premises.  
SM01: The smoking area shall be permanently monitored by a minimum 
of (Insert number)  SIA or other accredited scheme recognised by the 
Licensing Authority registered door staff during (Insert Hours) hours.  The 
amount of people in this area will not exceed (Insert occupancy number) 
persons; this shall be monitored with (insert method of monitoring 
occupancy number) from a position (insert positions from which 
monitoring is to take place).  The numbers and location shall be 
permanently monitored by an SIA or other accredited scheme recognised 
by the Licensing Authority registered door supervisor (or door supervisors 
accredited by a scheme recognised by the Licensing Authority) located at 
(insert location from which door staff can conduct this duty). 
 
NP63: The premises supervisor, manager or other competent person shall 
manage any outdoor area to ensure that customers do not behave in a 
noisy, rowdy or offensive manner. 
 
NP64: Clear notices must be displayed at prominent points in all outdoor 
areas (informing them as to the requirements of points (insert & insert i.e. 
no drinks, hours of use, above and) requesting that they respect the 
needs of local residents and behave in a quiet and orderly manner. 
 
PS01: Outdoor lighting shall be positioned, so far as is reasonably 
practicable, so as to limit its intrusion into residential accommodation in 
the vicinity of the licensed premises whilst maintaining an adequate level 
of lighting for the safe access and egress of customers and persons 
employed at the premises. 
 

 

Page 493



 

 12 

TEMPLATE 02
    

Type of Premises: Traditional public house type premises in predominantly 
commercial areas. 
 

External Areas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where a premises has external areas such as beer gardens or forecourts 
that it is intended are to be used by patrons it is anticipated that specific 
steps will be proffered to address the control and management of those 
areas. Of particular concern is the potential for noise nuisance arising from 
the use of such areas. 
 
NP63: The premises supervisor, manager or other competent person shall 
manage the outdoor area to ensure that customers do not behave in a 
noisy, rowdy or offensive manner. 
 
NP64: Clear notices must be displayed at prominent points in all outdoor 
areas (informing them as to the requirements of points (insert & insert i.e. 
no drinks, hours of use, above and) requesting that they respect the needs 
of local residents and behave in a quiet and orderly manner. 

Prevention of 
underage sales 

SA01:  All staff to be trained in the prevention of underage sales to a level 
commensurate with their duties. All such training to be updated as 
necessary, for instance when legislation changes, and should include 
training on how to deal with difficult customers. The training should be 
clearly documented and signed and dated by both the trainer and the 
member of staff receiving it. The documentation shall be available for 
inspection on request by an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or 
a constable. 
 
SA02: (a) An approved proof of age scheme shall be adopted, implemented 
and advertised within the premise such as “Challenge 25” whereby an 
accepted form of photographic identification shall be requested before any 
alcohol is sold to any person who appears to be under 25 years of age. 
Acceptable proof of age shall include identification bearing the customers 
photograph, date of birth and integral holographic mark or security 
measure. Suitable means of identification would include PASS approved 
proof of age card, photo-card driving licence and passport.  
(b) Publicity materials notifying customers of the operation of the Challenge 
25 scheme shall be displayed at the premises, including a Challenge 25 
sign of at least A5 size at the entrance to the premises and where 
practicable at each point of sale. 
 
SA03: The premises licence holder shall require the designated premises 
supervisor, or in his/her absence other responsible person, to keep an 
'incident/refusals logbook in a bound book in which full details of all 
incidents are recorded. This shall include details of any refused sales and 
shall give details of the persons involved, incident description, time and 
date, actions taken and final outcome of the situation. This shall be 
completed as soon as possible and in any case no later than the close of 
business on the day of the incident. The time and date when the report was 

Page 494



 

 13 

completed, and by whom, is to form part of the entry. The logbook is to be 
kept on the premises at all times and shall be produced to an authorised 
officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable when required. 
 

Noise control 
 
Applicants 
should carefully 
consider the 
steps they will 
take to ensure 
that any noise 
emanating from 
the premises is 
reduced so as 
not to cause a 
nuisance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Noise nuisance arising from the operation of premises is a common factor 
in complaints from local residents. The following conditions are therefore 
aimed at controlling the incidents of noise breakout which undermines the 
prevention of nuisance objective 
 
This condition is directed at those premises which have residential 
accommodation either above or are directly joined with. 
 
A report shall be submitted detailing and recommending a scheme of sound 
insulation works for the partition between the licensed premises and 
adjacent residential useage. The report shall also consider the noise 
leakage from the building and also consider the volume and nature of the 
music likely to be desired by the premises.  The report shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Council through an authorised officer of the 
Pollution Control Team and all recommended works carried out in full prior 
to the commencement of any regulated entertainment should the Premises 
Licence be granted.  
Guidance 
The noise assessment shall be carried out by a suitably qualified acoustic 
consultant/engineer and shall take into account the provisions of PPG 24 
Planning Policy Guidance: Planning and Noise, BS4142: 1997. "Method of 
rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas" and 
BS 8233: 1999 "Sound Insulation and Noise Insulation for Buildings - Code 
of Practice". 
The recommended design criteria for dwellings are as follows: 
Daytime (07.00 – 23.00) LAeq(16 hours) 35 dB & Noise Rating Curve NR35 

in all rooms 
Nightime (23.00 – 07.00) LAeq(8 hours) 30 dB & Noise Rating Curve NR20 

to NR25 in bedrooms 
 
NP02: Music shall not be played at a level that will cause unreasonable 
disturbance  to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity. 
 
NP03: Except for access and egress all doors and windows shall be kept 
closed during periods of entertainment associated with the Premises 
Licence. 
 
NP04: No speakers for amplification of music shall be placed on the outside 
of the premises or on the outside of any building forming a part of the 
premises. 
 
NP19: Monitoring 
The manager, licence holder or other competent person shall carry out 
observations in the vicinity of the properties at (insert location), on at least 
(insert time period e.g. hourly) intervals between (insert start time) and 
(insert finish time) whilst the Premises Licence is being exercised in order to 

Page 495



 

 14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

establish whether there is a noise breakout from the premises. If the 
observation reveals noise breakout at a level likely to cause disturbance to 
the occupants of properties in the vicinity then the volume of music shall be 
reduced to a level that does not cause disturbance. A record of such 
observations shall be kept in a book for that purpose, such a book shall be 
completed immediately after the observation detailing the time, location and 
duration of the observation, the level of noise breakout and any action taken 
to reduce noise breakout. Such book to be made available at all times upon 
request to a police officer or an officer of City Council of Bristol. 
 
Where there is residential accommodation within the vicinity of the premises 
the following condition should be considered as a protective measure to 
prevent the potential occurrence of noise nuisance. 
NP39: (Condition regarding limiter only triggered if  nuisance witnessed) 
(i) If officers of the council witness noise at a level that causes 
unreasonable disturbance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity 
then a noise limiting device shall be used in relation to all sound 
amplification equipment used in conjunction with the Premises Licence. 
(ii) The noise limiting device shall be installed and set at a level approved 
by the Council through an authorised officer of the Pollution Control Team 
within 1 month of notification, for it's requirement, from the Licensing 
Authority. 
(iii) The noise limiting device shall be properly secured so that it cannot be 
tampered with. 
(iv) The noise limiting device shall only be reset with the authority of the 
Council through an authorised officer of the Pollution Control Team. 
(v) If deemed necessary, the noise limiting device shall be reset to a level 
approved by the Council through an authorised officer of the Pollution 
Control Team within 14 days of notification. 
 
A noise limiter may be required for those premises where there is a known 
history of noise nuisance or transmission and that this is not the first 
occasion when a premises licence has been applied for or granted to the 
premises. Applicants should consult the Pollution control section of Bristol 
City Council to discuss this point prior to submission of an application. 
 
NP57: Clear notices displayed at all points where customers leave the 
building must instruct them to respect the needs of local residents and 
leave the premises and the area quietly. 
 
NP65: A clear notice shall be displayed at any exit to the premises to 
instruct customers to respect the needs of local residents and leave the 
premises and the area quietly. 
 
WM7: Activities relating to the on-site disposal (including placing into 
external receptacles) and collection of refuse, bottles and recyclable 
materials shall only take place between (insert hours and days as 
necessary).   
 
WM8: The collection of refuse, bottles and recyclable materials shall only 

Page 496



 

 15 

 
 
 
 
 

take place (insert hours and days as necessary).  
 
WM9: Activities relating to deliveries shall only take place between (insert 
hours and days as necessary).  

Staff Training TR04: All staff are to be trained with respect to underage sales, such 
training to be updated as necessary when legislation changes and should 
include training in how to refuse sales to difficult customers. 

 
TR05: A record of all staff training shall be maintained at the premises and 
made immediately available upon request to an authorised officer of the 
Council or the Police.  The documentation relating to training should extend 
back to a period of three years and should specify the time, date and details 
of the persons both providing the training and receiving the training. 
 

 
           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 497



 

 16 

TEMPLATE 03 

Type of Premises: Traditional public house type premises in predominantly residential 
areas. 
 

External Areas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where a premises has external areas such as beer gardens or forecourts 
that it is intended are to be used by patrons it is anticipated that specific 
steps will be proffered to address the control and management of those 
areas. Of particular concern is the potential for noise nuisance arising from 
the use of such areas. 
 
Any external area 
NP29: The premises licence holder shall take all reasonable steps to 
ensure that patrons using any outside areas (such as terraces and beer 
gardens) do so in a quiet and orderly fashion. 
 
NP64: Clear notices must be displayed at prominent points in all outdoor 
areas (informing them as to the requirements of points (insert & insert i.e. 
no drinks, hours of use, above and) requesting that they respect the needs 
of local residents and behave in a quiet and orderly manner. 
 

Prevention of 
underage sales 

SA01:  All staff to be trained in the prevention of underage sales to a level 
commensurate with their duties. All such training to be updated as 
necessary, for instance when legislation changes, and should include 
training on how to deal with difficult customers. The training should be 
clearly documented and signed and dated by both the trainer and the 
member of staff receiving it. The documentation shall be available for 
inspection on request by an authorised officer of the Council or the Police. 
 
SA02: An approved proof of age scheme shall be adopted, implemented 
and advertised within the premise such as “Challenge 25” whereby an 
accepted form of photographic identification shall be requested before any 
alcohol is sold to any person who appears to be under 25 years of age. 
Acceptable proof of age shall include a passport, a photo driving licence or 
a PASS approved proof of age card. 
 
SA03: The premises licence holder shall require the DPS, or in his/her 
absence other responsible person, to keep an 'incident/refusals logbook in 
a bound book in which full details of all incidents are recorded. This shall 
include details of any refused sales and shall give details of the persons 
involved, incident description, time and date, actions taken and final 
outcome of the situation. This shall be completed as soon as possible and 
in any case no later than the close of business on the day of the incident. 
The time and date when the report was completed, and by whom, is to form 
part of the entry. The logbook is to be kept on the premises at all times and 
shall be produced to a Police or Licensing Officer when required. 
 

Noise control 
 
Applicants 
should carefully 

Noise nuisance arising from the operation of premises is a common factor 
in complaints from local residents. The following conditions are therefore 
aimed at controlling the incidents of noise breakout which undermines the 
prevention of nuisance objective 

Page 498



 

 17 

consider the 
steps they will 
take to ensure 
that any noise 
emanating from 
the premises is 
reduced so as 
not to cause a 
nuisance. 
 

 
This condition is directed at those premises which have residential 
accommodation either above or are directly joined with. 
A report shall be submitted detailing and recommending a scheme of 
sound insulation works for the partition between the licensed premises and 
adjacent residential useage. The report shall also consider the noise 
leakage from the building and also consider the volume and nature of the 
music likely to be desired by the premises.  The report shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Council through an authorised officer of the 
Pollution Control Team and all recommended works carried out in full prior 
to the commencement of any regulated entertainment should the Premises 
Licence be granted.  
Guidance 
The noise assessment shall be carried out by a suitably qualified acoustic 
consultant/engineer and shall take into account the provisions of PPG 24 
Planning Policy Guidance: Planning and Noise, BS4142: 1997. "Method of 
rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas" and 
BS 8233: 1999 "Sound Insulation and Noise Insulation for Buildings - Code 
of Practice". 
 
The recommended design criteria for dwellings are as follows: 
Daytime (07.00 – 23.00) LAeq(16 hours) 35 dB & Noise Rating Curve 

NR35 in all rooms 
Nightime (23.00 – 07.00) LAeq(8 hours) 30 dB & Noise Rating Curve NR20 

to NR25 in bedrooms 
 
NP02: Music shall not be played at a level that will cause unreasonable 
disturbance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity. 
 
NP03: Except for access and egress all doors and windows shall be kept 
closed during periods of entertainment associated with the Premises 
Licence. 
 
NP04: No speakers for amplification of music shall be placed on the 
outside of the premises or on the outside of any building forming a part of 
the premises. 
 
NP19: Monitoring 
The manager, licence holder or other competent person shall carry out 
observations in the vicinity of the properties at (insert location), on at least 
(insert time period e.g. hourly) intervals between (insert start time) and 
(insert finish time) whilst the Premises Licence is being exercised in order 
to establish whether there is a noise breakout from the premises. If the 
observation reveals noise breakout at a level likely to cause disturbance to 
the occupants of properties in the vicinity then the volume of music shall be 
reduced to a level that does not cause disturbance. A record of such 
observations shall be kept in a book for that purpose, such a book shall be 
completed immediately after the observation detailing the time, location and 
duration of the observation, the level of noise breakout and any action 
taken to reduce noise breakout. Such book to be made available at all 

Page 499



 

 18 

times upon request to a police officer or an officer of City Council of Bristol. 
 
Where there is residential accommodation within the vicinity of the 
premises the following condition should be considered as a protective 
measure to prevent the potential occurrence of noise nuisance. 
NP39: (Condition regarding limiter only triggered if  nuisance witnessed) 
(i) If officers of the council witness noise at a level that causes 
unreasonable disturbance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity 
then a noise limiting device shall be used in relation to all sound 
amplification equipment used in conjunction with the Premises Licence. 
(ii) The noise limiting device shall be installed and set at a level approved 
by the Council through an authorised officer of the Pollution Control Team 
within 1 month of notification, for its requirement, from the Licensing 
Authority. 
(iii) The noise limiting device shall be properly secured so that it cannot be 
tampered with. 
(iv) The noise limiting device shall only be reset with the authority of the 
Council through an authorised officer of the Pollution Control Team. 
(v) If deemed necessary, the noise limiting device shall be reset to a level 
approved by the Council through an authorised officer of the Pollution 
Control Team within 14 days of notification. 
 
A noise limiter may be required for those premises where there is a known 
history of noise nuisance or transmission and that this is not the first 
occasion when a premises licence has been applied for or granted to the 
premises. Applicants should consult the Pollution control section of Bristol 
City Council to discuss this point prior to submission of an application. 
 
NP57: Clear notices displayed at all points where customers leave the 
building must instruct them to respect the needs of local residents and 
leave the premises and the area quietly. 
 
NP65: A clear notice shall be displayed at any exit to the premises to 
instruct customers to respect the needs of local residents and leave the 
premises and the area quietly. 
 
WM7: Activities relating to the on-site disposal (including placing into 
external receptacles) and collection of refuse, bottles and recyclable 
materials shall only take place between (insert hours and days as 
necessary).   
 
WM8: The collection of refuse, bottles and recyclable materials shall only 
take place (insert hours and days as necessary).  
 
WM9: Activities relating to deliveries shall only take place between (insert 
hours and days as necessary).  
 

Staff Training TR04: All staff are to be trained with respect to underage sales, such 
training to be updated as necessary when legislation changes and should 
include training in how to refuse sales to difficult customers. 

Page 500



 

 19 

 
TR05: A record of all staff training shall be maintained at the premises and 
made immediately available upon request to an authorised officer of the 
Council or the Police.  The documentation relating to training should extend 
back to a period of three years and should specify the time, date and 
details of the persons both providing the training and receiving the training. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 501



 

 20 

          TEMPLATE 04 
 

Type of  Premises: Hot food takeaway premises (Mobile and static) 
 

All of the following suggestions may not be appropriate for mobile food takeaways such as 
burger vans but proprietors of such vehicles must be extra vigilant to ensure that the 
operation of their premises do not undermine the licensing objectives. 

Management of 
waste. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Improper or inconsiderate storage or disposal of waste can cause 
public nuisance. Matters such as grease being allowed to build up 
on sites which when not being used for siting the mobile trader and 
are used by the public as a footway, can cause serious slip 
hazards. 
 
WM3: The licence holder shall ensure that adequate measures are 
in place to remove litter or waste arising from their customers and 
to prevent such litter from accumulating in the immediate vicinity of 
their premises.  In particular, where necessary the premises licence 
holder shall ensure that adequate measures are in place to provide 
customers with sufficient receptacles for the depositing of waste 
materials such as food wrappings, drinks containers, smoking 
related litter, etc.  
 
WM4 The premises licence holder shall ensure that  a sufficient 
number of suitable receptacles are located in appropriate locations 
for the depositing of waste materials such as food wrappings, 
drinks containers, smoking related litter, etc. by customers.  
 
WM7: Activities relating to the on-site disposal (including placing 
into external receptacles) and collection of refuse, bottles and 
recyclable materials shall only take place between (insert hours 
and days as necessary).   
 
WM8: The collection of refuse, bottles and recyclable materials 
shall only take place (insert hours and days as necessary).  
 
WM9: Activities relating to deliveries shall only take place between 
(insert hours and days as necessary).  
 

Noise Control NP57: Clear notices displayed at all points where customers leave 
the building must instruct them to respect the needs of local 
residents and leave the premises and the area quietly. 
 

 
 

Page 502



 

 21 

           TEMPLATE 05 
 

Type of Premises: Small to medium mixed retail use premises to be licensed for the 
‘off’ sales of alcohol. 
 

Prevention of underage 
sales 

The issue of underage drinking is of serious concern and 
undermines the protection of children from harm objective 
SA01:  All staff to be trained in the prevention of underage 
sales to a level commensurate with their duties. All such 
training to be updated as necessary, for instance when 
legislation changes, and should include training on how to 
deal with difficult customers. The training should be clearly 
documented and signed and dated by both the trainer and 
the member of staff receiving it. The documentation shall be 
available for inspection on request by an authorised officer 
of the Licensing Authority or a constable. 
 
SA02: (a) An approved proof of age scheme shall be 
adopted, implemented and advertised within the premise 
such as “Challenge 25” whereby an accepted form of 
photographic identification shall be requested before any 
alcohol is sold to any person who appears to be under 25 
years of age. Acceptable proof of age shall include 
identification bearing the customers photograph, date of birth 
and integral holographic mark or security measure. Suitable 
means of identification would include PASS approved proof 
of age card, photo-card driving licence and passport.  
(b) Publicity materials notifying customers of the operation of 
the Challenge 25 scheme shall be displayed at the 
premises, including a Challenge 25 sign of at least A5 size 
at the entrance to the premises and where practicable at 
each point of sale. 
 
SA03: The premises licence holder shall require the 
designated premises supervisor, or in his/her absence other 
responsible person, to keep an 'incident/refusals logbook in 
a bound book in which full details of all incidents are 
recorded. This shall include details of any refused sales and 
shall give details of the persons involved, incident 
description, time and date, actions taken and final outcome 
of the situation. This shall be completed as soon as possible 
and in any case no later than the close of business on the 
day of the incident. The time and date when the report was 
completed, and by whom, is to form part of the entry. The 
logbook is to be kept on the premises at all times and shall 
be produced to an authorised officer of the Licensing 
Authority or a constable when required. 
 

Location of alcohol 
 

The location of alcohol in stores often gives rise to concerns 
regarding potential for theft and availability to underage 

Page 503



 

 22 

 
 
 
 
 

purchasers. This is of particular importance in the smaller 
premises where staff numbers are limited. 
PS11: Spirits shall be located (insert location), and all other 
alcoholic beverages to be located on display in such a 
position that it is not obscured from the constant view of the 
cashier / staff by other fixtures.  (If this is not reasonably 
practical because of refrigeration or other limitations, the 
Licensing Authority shall be consulted regarding other 
suitable locations in the premises). 
 

Waste Management WM8: The collection of refuse, bottles and recyclable 
materials shall only take place (insert hours and days as 
necessary).  
 
WM9: Activities relating to deliveries shall only take place 
between (insert hours and days as necessary).  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 504



 

 23 

TEMPLATE 06 
 

Type of Premises: Large mixed retail use premises to be licensed for the ‘off’ sales 
of alcohol, i.e. supermarkets. 
 

Prevention of underage 
sales 

The issue of underage drinking is of serious concern and 
undermines the protection of children from harm objective. 
Persons who make such sales are committing an offence 
and therefore it is of assistance to premises licence holders 
to be able to demonstrate they have made their best 
endeavours to prevent such occurrences within their 
premises. 
 
SA01:  All staff to be trained in the prevention of underage 
sales to a level commensurate with their duties. All such 
training to be updated as necessary, for instance when 
legislation changes, and should include training on how to 
deal with difficult customers. The training should be clearly 
documented and signed and dated by both the trainer and 
the member of staff receiving it. The documentation shall be 
available for inspection on request by an authorised officer 
of the Licensing Authority or a constable. 
 
SA02: (i) An approved proof of age scheme shall be 
adopted, implemented and advertised within the premise 
such as “Challenge 25” whereby an accepted form of 
photographic identification shall be requested before any 
alcohol is sold to any person who appears to be under 25 
years of age. Acceptable proof of age shall include 
identification bearing the customers photograph, date of birth 
and integral holographic mark or security measure. Suitable 
means of identification would include PASS approved proof 
of age card, photo-card driving licence and passport.  
(ii) Publicity materials notifying customers of the operation of 
the Challenge 25 scheme shall be displayed at the 
premises, including a Challenge 25 sign of at least A5 size 
at the entrance to the premises and where practicable at 
each point of sale. 
 
SA03: The premises licence holder shall require the 
designated premises supervisor, or in his/her absence other 
responsible person, to keep an 'incident/refusals logbook in 
a bound book in which full details of all incidents are 
recorded. This shall include details of any refused sales and 
shall give details of the persons involved, incident 
description, time and date, actions taken and final outcome 
of the situation. This shall be completed as soon as possible 
and in any case no later than the close of business on the 
day of the incident. The time and date when the report was 
completed, and by whom, is to form part of the entry. The 

Page 505



 

 24 

logbook is to be kept on the premises at all times and shall 
be produced to an authorised officer of the Licensing 
Authority or a constable when required. 

 
CV15: Documented delegation of authorisations to sell 
alcohol shall be maintained at the premises and shall be 
available on request by the Police and authorised officer of 
the Council. 
 

Waste management WM8: The collection of refuse, bottles and recyclable 
materials shall only take place (insert hours and days as 
necessary).  
 
WM9: Activities relating to deliveries shall only take place 
between (insert hours and days as necessary).  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 506



 

 25 

          TEMPLATE 07  
 

Type of Premises: Premises primarily selling alcohol by way of ‘Off’ sales only. 
 

Prevention of underage 
sales 

The issue of underage drinking is of serious concern and 
undermines the protection of children from harm objective. 
Persons who make such sales are committing an offence 
and therefore it is of assistance to premises licence holders 
to be able to demonstrate they have made their best 
endeavours to prevent such occurrences within their 
premises. 
 
SA01:  All staff to be trained in the prevention of underage 
sales to a level commensurate with their duties. All such 
training to be updated as necessary, for instance when 
legislation changes, and should include training on how to 
deal with difficult customers. The training should be clearly 
documented and signed and dated by both the trainer and 
the member of staff receiving it. The documentation shall be 
available for inspection on request by an authorised officer 
of the Licensing Authority or a constable. 
 
SA02: (i) An approved proof of age scheme shall be 
adopted, implemented and advertised within the premise 
such as “Challenge 25” whereby an accepted form of 
photographic identification shall be requested before any 
alcohol is sold to any person who appears to be under 25 
years of age. Acceptable proof of age shall include 
identification bearing the customers photograph, date of birth 
and integral holographic mark or security measure. Suitable 
means of identification would include PASS approved proof 
of age card, photo-card driving licence and passport.  
(ii) Publicity materials notifying customers of the operation of 
the Challenge 25 scheme shall be displayed at the 
premises, including a Challenge 25 sign of at least A5 size 
at the entrance to the premises and where practicable at 
each point of sale. 

 
SA03: The premises licence holder shall require the 
designated premises supervisor, or in his/her absence other 
responsible person, to keep an 'incident/refusals logbook in 
a bound book in which full details of all incidents are 
recorded. This shall include details of any refused sales and 
shall give details of the persons involved, incident 
description, time and date, actions taken and final outcome 
of the situation. This shall be completed as soon as possible 
and in any case no later than the close of business on the 
day of the incident. The time and date when the report was 
completed, and by whom, is to form part of the entry. The 
logbook is to be kept on the premises at all times and shall 

Page 507



 

 26 

be produced to an authorised officer of the Licensing 
Authority or a constable when required. 

 
CV15: Documented delegation of authorisations to sell 
alcohol shall be maintained at the premises and shall be 
available on request by the Police and authorised officer of 
the Council. 
 

Prevention Of Nuisance WM8: The collection of refuse, bottles and recyclable 
materials shall only take place (insert hours and days as 
necessary).  
 
WM9: Activities relating to deliveries shall only take place 
between (insert hours and days as necessary).  
 

           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 508



 

 27 

TEMPLATE 08 
 

Type of  Premises: Main Use Cinemas and Theatres 
 

Prevention Of 
Nuisance 
 

In those instances where premises abut residential accommodation 
there will be a requirement for an assessment of the potential for noise 
transmission which results in noise nuisance. 
 
NP32: A report shall be submitted detailing and recommending a 
scheme of sound insulation works for the partition between the licensed 
premises and adjacent residential useage. The report shall also 
consider the noise leakage from the building and also consider the 
volume and nature of the music likely to be desired by the premises.  
The report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Council 
through an authorised officer of the Pollution Control Team and all 
recommended works carried out in full prior to the commencement of 
any regulated entertainment should the Premises Licence be granted.  
Guidance 
The noise assessment shall be carried out by a suitably qualified 
acoustic consultant/engineer and shall take into account the provisions 
of PPG 24 Planning Policy Guidance: Planning and Noise, BS4142: 
1997. "Method of rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and 
industrial areas" and BS 8233: 1999 "Sound Insulation and Noise 
Insulation for Buildings - Code of Practice". 
The recommended design criteria for dwellings are as follows: 
Daytime (07.00 – 23.00) LAeq(16 hours) 35 dB & Noise Rating Curve 

NR35 in all rooms 
Nightime (23.00 – 07.00) LAeq(8 hours) 30 dB & Noise Rating Curve 

NR20 to NR25 in bedrooms 
 
NP02: Amplified music shall not be played at a level that will cause 
unreasonable disturbance to the occupants of any properties in the 
vicinity. 
 

Protection Of 
Children where 
films are to be 
shown. 

The following conditions only pertain to those premises where 
application is made for the exhibition of films. 
 
CE CINEMATOGRAPHIC / FILM EXHIBITIONS 
CE01: Careful consideration should be given as to the circumstances in 
which these conditions may be pertinent i.e. main use cinema or video 
juke boxes in pubs and clubs. 
No film shall be exhibited unless – 
(i) it has received a ;U’, ‘PG’, ‘12A’, ‘15’ or ‘18’ certificate of the British 
Board of Film Classifications; or 
(ii) it is a current newsreel, which has not been submitted to the British 
Board of Film Classification. 
(iii) no film classified as R18 may be exhibited in these premises. 
 
CE02: No person apparently under the age of eighteen years shall be 

Page 509



 

 28 

admitted to any exhibition at which there is to be shown any film which 
has received an ‘18’ certificate from the British Board of Film 
Classification. In such circumstances a "Challenge 25 policy should be 
adhered to and valid proof of age required before admittance. 
 
CE03: No person apparently under the age of fifteen years shall be 
admitted to any exhibition at which there is to be shown any film which 
has received an ‘15’ certificate from the British Board of Film 
Classification. 
 
CE04: No person apparently under the age of twelve years shall be 
admitted to any exhibition at which there is to be shown any film which 
has received an ‘12A’ certificate from the British Board of Film 
Classification unless accompanied by an adult. 
 
CE05: Notwithstanding the classification requirements, a film may be 
exhibited, or persons or any class of persons, may be admitted thereto if 
the permission of the Licensing Authority is first obtained and any 
conditions of such permission are complied with. 
 
CE06: A representation or written statement of the terms of any 
certificate given by the British Board of Film Classification shall be 
shown on the screen immediately before the showing of any film to 
which it relates and the representation or statement shall be shown for 
long enough and in a form large enough for it to be read from any seat 
in the auditorium. 
 
CE07: There shall be prominently exhibited at each public entrance 
whenever the premises are open to the public a notice indicating in 
tabular form and in clear bold letters and figures- 
(i) the title of each film to be shown on that day, other than trailers and 
films of less than five minutes duration: 
(ii) the approximate times of commencement of each such film; 
(iii) whether each such film has received a ‘U’, ‘PG’, ‘12A’, ‘15’ or ‘18’ 
certificate from the British Board of Film Classification, and 
(iv) the effect of such ‘U’, ‘PG’, ‘12A’, ‘15’ or ‘18’ certificates in relation to 
the admission of persons under the age of eighteen years. 
 
CE08: The notice shall be not less than 36 inches in dimensions and 
shall be in the form specified hereunder, the distinguishing initial letters 
‘U’, ‘PG’, ‘12A’, ‘15’ and ‘18’ being not less than 1 ½ inches in height. 
CATEGORY ‘U’: Passed for universal exhibition. 
CATEGORY ‘PG’: Passed for universal exhibition but parents are 
advised that he film contains some scenes which may be unsuitable for 
young children. 
CATEGORY ‘12A’: Passed as suitable only for exhibition to persons of 
twelve years and over. Children under 12 must be accompanied by an 
adult. 
CATEGORY ‘15’: Passed as suitable only for exhibition to persons of 
fifteen years and over. 

Page 510



 

 29 

CATEGORY ‘18’: Passed as suitable only for exhibition to adults. When 
a programme includes an ‘18’ film no persons under eighteen years can 
be admitted. 
 
CE09: The nature of any certificate received in respect of a film from the 
British Board of Film Classification shall be clearly indicated by the 
figure ‘U’, ‘PG’, ‘12A’, ‘15’ or ‘18’ in any advertisement of the film 
displayed at the premises. 
 
CE10: No advertisement displayed at the premises of a film to be 
exhibited at the premises shall depict as a scene or incident in the film 
any scene or incident which is not included in the film as certified by the 
British Board of Film Classification or approved for exhibition by the 
licensing authority, as the case may be. 
 
CE11: Where the Licensing Authority has given notice in writing to the 
licensee of the premises objecting to an advertisement on the ground 
that, if displayed, it would offend against good taste or decency or be 
likely to encourage or incite to crime or to lead to disorder or to be 
offensive to public feeling that advertisement shall not be displayed at 
the premises except with the consent in writing of the Licensing 
Authority. 
 
CE12: Where the Licensing Authority has given notice in writing to the 
licensee of the premises prohibiting the exhibition of a film on the ground 
that it contains matter which, if exhibited, would offend against good 
taste or decency or would be likely to encourage or incite to crime or to 
lead to disorder or to be offensive to public feeling, that film shall not be 
exhibited in the premises except with the consent in writing of the 
Licensing Authority. 
 
CE13: If the Licensing Authority request the licensee to exhibit to them 
any film shown or proposed to be shown by him, he shall do so at such 
time and to such persons as the Licensing Authority may direct. 
 
CE14: No persons shall be permitted to enter or continue within the 
licensed premises in a state of intoxication. All persons within the 
premises whose conduct is deemed by the licensee to be conductive to 
any breach of the peace, tumult or disorder shall be forthwith removed 
there from. The licensee shall be responsible for the maintenance of 
good order and decent behaviour in the licensed premises, and he shall 
by himself and his servants assist to the utmost in the capture and 
expulsion of any offender. 
 
CE15: There shall be fixed on each floor of the hall a special white 
signal light, to the approval of the Chief Constable, which shall be 
operated by a switch in the operator’s box, and by a switch or switches, 
fitted in an approved position in the hall. This light shall be used as a 
warning to attendants that an emergency exists and upon receiving the 
signal, attendants will take steps forthwith to control the movements of 

Page 511



 

 30 

the audience and ensure the orderly and safe clearance of the hall. 

The licensing 
authority does 
not encourage 
applications for 
the exhibition of 
R18 films in its 
area but where 
permission to do 
so is sought, 
applicants are 
expected to offer 
“restricted club” 
type conditions in 
line with BBFC 
and other long 
standing 
guidance 

Conditions to be complied with when showing ‘RESTRICTED (18)’ 
films 
 
CE16: No films in the ‘RESTRICTED (18)’ category may be exhibited 
except in a cinema operating as a club in accordance with the conditions 
set out below. 
 
CE17: No club showing films in the ‘RESTRICTED (18)’ category may 
operate in a multi-screen complex whilst persons under the age of 18 
are being admitted to any performance given in that complex. 
 
CE18: An exception may be made to the above condition only if the 
cinema club and all facilities adjacent thereto, including foyers, 
lavatories and refreshment areas, are wholly segregated and accessible 
only through a separate entrance and box office. 
 
CE19: All registers of members and visitors books of their guests shall 
be available for immediate inspection by the licensing authority during 
any performance, or at any other reasonable time. 
 
CE20: Tickets shall in no circumstances be sold to persons other than 
members. 
 
CE21: Front of house advertising for films in the ‘RESTRICTED (18)’ 
category will specify the category in which the film has been passed for 
exhibition but will include no pictorial material or other information about 
the names of performers or the plot. Newspaper advertisements for an 
exhibition will be limited to the inclusion of the titles of such films in the 
film listings column together with the category in which the film has been 
passed for exhibition. 
 
CE22: No persons under 18 years of age shall be employed in any 
capacity at licensed premises which are operating as cinema clubs 
showing films in the ‘RESTRICTED (18)’ category. 
 
CE23: Except with the prior consent of the licensing authority in writing, 
no intoxicating drinks shall be consumed, supplied or sold on the 
premises. 
 
CE24: Membership rules for club cinemas shall include the following: 
(i) only members and their guests shall attend exhibitions of moving 
pictures classified in the ‘RESTRICTED (18)’ category. 
(ii) membership shall be open to persons of both sexes of not less than 
18 years of age. Applications for membership, including both name and 
address, shall be in writing, signed by the applicant, and if deemed 
necessary such applications shall provide satisfactory references and 
proof of age. 
(iii) no person shall be admitted to membership until the expiration of at 
least 24 hours after such written application has been approved by the 

Page 512



 

 31 

licensed proprietors. 
(iv) members shall be entitled on any one day to bring not more than 
one guest to accompany the member and the name of the guest shall 
be entered in the visitor’s book and countersigned by the member. 
(v) tickets shall be sold only to members on the production of a 
membership card, and members shall, if required, sign an 
acknowledgement for the ticket or tickets issued. 
(vi) membership cards shall be personal to the member and shall not be 
transferable to any other person. 
(vii) neither membership tickets nor guest tickets shall be transferable. 
(viii) no member shall introduce as a guest any person under the age of 
18 or any person whose application for membership has been refused. 
(ix) proof of identity, or of age, or of any particulars of any guest shall be 
produced by any member or guest if demanded by the proprietors. 
(x) an annual subscription shall be fixed for the club and shall run for 12 
months from the date of registration. 
(ii) a subscription may not entitle the club member to attend other clubs 
under the same management unless the prior consent of the licensing 
authority has been obtained. 
(xii) on admission a member shall be bound by the rules of the club and 
by any byelaws and regulations made thereunder. 
 
CE25: For the purposes of these conditions ‘film’ means any exhibition 
of moving pictures produced otherwise than by the simultaneous 
reception and exhibition of television programmes broadcast by the 
British Broadcasting Corporation or the Independent Broadcasting 
Authority or programmes included in a cable programme service which 
is, or does not require to be, licensed under section 4 of the Cable and 
Broadcasting Act 1984. 

 

Page 513



 

 32 

           TEMPLATE 09 
 

Type of  Premises: Restaurants 
 

Prevention Of 
Nuisance 

Customer Noise 
NP57: Clear notices displayed at all points where customers leave the 
building must instruct them to respect the needs of local residents and 
leave the premises and the area quietly. 
 
Signage 
WM7: Activities relating to the on-site disposal (including placing into 
external receptacles) and collection of refuse, bottles and recyclable 
materials shall only take place between (insert hours and days as 
necessary).   
 
WM8: The collection of refuse, bottles and recyclable materials shall 
only take place (insert hours and days as necessary). 
 
WM9: Activities relating to deliveries shall only take place between 
(insert hours and days as necessary). 
 

Prevention of 
underage sales 

SA02 An approved proof of age scheme shall be adopted, implemented 
and advertised within the premise such as “Challenge 25” whereby an 
accepted form of photographic identification shall be requested before 
any alcohol is sold to any person who appears to be under 25 years of 
age. Acceptable proof of age shall include identification bearing the 
customers photograph, date of birth and integral holographic mark or 
security measure. Suitable means of identification would include PASS 
approved proof of age card, photo-card driving licence and passport.  
(b) Publicity materials notifying customers of the operation of the 
Challenge 25 scheme shall be displayed at the premises, including a 
Challenge 25 sign of at least A5 size at the entrance to the premises 
and where practicable at each point of sale. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 514



 

 33 

TEMPLATE 10 
 

Type of  Premises: Alcohol Delivery Service 
 

Control and 
management of 
the sale of 
alcohol 

SA01 All staff to be trained in the prevention of underage sales to a level 
commensurate with their duties. All such training to be updated as 
necessary, for instance when legislation changes, and should include 
training on how to deal with difficult customers. The training should be 
clearly documented and signed and dated by both the trainer and the 
member of staff receiving it. The documentation shall be available for 
inspection on request by an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority 
or a constable. 
 
SA08 All advertising and promotional material for the business, including 
the website, shall make it clear that it operates an approved proof of age 
scheme such as Challenge 25 with respect to sales of alcohol, tobacco 
and other age restricted products. This shall make it explicit that the 
buyer will be required to provide valid photographic proof of age before 
the goods are handed over by the delivery driver. The advertising and 
promotional material shall make it clear that if such proof of age cannot 
be provided then the delivery will be refused.  
 
SA09 All drivers shall carry a log book in which details of refused sales 
and other incidents are noted This shall give details of the persons 
involved, incident description, time and date, actions taken and final 
outcome of the situation. The time and date when the report was 
completed and by whom is to form part of the entry.  These details shall 
be filed centrally at the end of each shift or as soon as practicable 
afterwards. In any case this shall be no later than the close of business 
on the day of the incident. The central file shall be kept at the premises 
and produced upon request to a constable or an authorized officer of the 
Licensing Authority. 
 
SA10 Alcohol must only be sold in sealed containers 
 
CV06 If the recipient of a delivery of alcohol or the collection or delivery 
of a takeaway meal which includes alcohol, appears under 25 years of 
age, recognised photographic identification will be requested before any 
intoxicating liquor is handed over. Acceptable proof of age shall include 
identification bearing the customers photograph, date of birth and 
integral holographic mark or security measure. Suitable means of 
identification would include PASS approved proof of age card, photo-
card driving licence and passport. 
 

Staff Training TR05 A record of all staff training shall be maintained at the premises 
and made immediately available upon request to an authorised officer of 
the Council or the Police. The documentation relating to training should 
extend back to a period of three years and should specify the time, date 
and details of the persons both providing the training and receiving the 
training. 

Page 515



 

 34 

TEMPLATE 11 
 

Type of  Premises: Sexual Entertainment 
 

 SE01: Striptease or adult types of entertainment will only take place in 
designated areas approved by the Licensing Authority. Arrangements 
for access to the dressing room shall be approved by the Licensing 
Authority and shall be maintained at all times whilst strip tease is taking 
place and immediately thereafter. 
 
SE02: Whilst striptease entertainment is taking place, no person aged 
under the age of 18 will be allowed on that part of the licensed premises 
where the striptease/entertainment is taking place and such part must 
not be visible from other parts of the premises. A clear notice shall be 
displayed at each entrance to the premises in a prominent position so 
that it can be easily read by persons entering the premises on the 
following terms: - “No person under 18 years will be admitted” 
 
SE03: Dancers not performing must not be in the in a state of undress in 
any area to which the public have access. 
 
SE04: Dancers shall only perform on the stage area or to seated 
customers. 
 
SE05: Performers shall be aged not less than 18 years. 
 
SE06: The premises licence holder must not permit the display outside 
of the premises of photographs or other images which indicate and 
suggest that striptease or similar dancing takes place on the premises. 
 
SE07: There shall be at least (Insert number) registered door 
supervisor(s) on the premises when the striptease entertainment is 
taking place. 
 
SE08: There shall be no physical contact between customer and the 
performer before, during or after the performance other than the placing 
of money or tokens into the hands of the dancer, or by the placing of 
notes by the customer in a garter worn by the performer for that 
purpose. 
 
SE09: The premises licence holder, performer and any person 
concerned in the organisation or management of the entertainment shall 
not encourage, or permit encouragement of the audience to throw 
money at or otherwise give gratuities to the performers (other than in 
accordance with SE8 above). 
 
SE10: The performer shall at all times wear, for females a g-string and 
males appropriate clothing to cover their genitalia adequately and the 
clothing shall not be transparent or removed. 
 

Page 516



 

 35 

SE11: No performer shall at any time reveal any part of their genitalia or 
anus. 
 
SE12: No sex act shall take place. 
 
SE13: The area proposed for striptease shall: 
a) be in a position where the performance cannot be seen from the 
street. 
b) be in a designated area of the premises with segregation from the 
audience. 
c) be in a position where the performers will have direct access to the 
dressing room without passing through or in close proximity to the 
audience. 
 
SE14: The entertainment shall be given only by performers / 
entertainers and the audience shall not be permitted to participate. 
 
SE15: Persons appearing on stage shall go directly between the 
dressing room and designated performance area without passing 
through or in close proximity to the audience. 
 
SE16: Striptease / exotic / adult entertainment dancers (including table 
side / lap / pole dancers) must immediately dress at the conclusion of 
each performance. 
 
SE17: Entertainment provided by topless (only) dancers to customers 
seated at tables may only take part in those parts of the premises 
approved by the Licensing Authority. No audience participation shall be 
permitted. 
 
SE18: Should a customer attempt to touch a dancer, the dancer must 
withdraw and report the matter to her / his manager /supervisor. 
 
SE19: No telephone number, address or information leading to any 
further meeting may be passed from customer to dancer or vice versa. 
 
SE20: No dancer may perform if they are intoxicated. 
 
SE21: No member of the public shall be admitted or allowed to remain in 
the dance area if they appear to be intoxicated. 
 
SE22: All members of the public shall remain seated in the dance area 
other than when they arrive, depart, visit the toilet or go to the bar. 
 
SE23: Signs must be displayed at the entrance to the dance area 
stating: 
(i) “Any customer attempting to make physical contact with a dancer will 
be asked to leave”. 
(ii) Signs must be sufficient in size, legible and positioned so as to be 
read by all customers entering the dance area. 

Page 517



 

 36 

 
SE24: No dancer shall perform any sexually explicit or lewd act. 
 
SE25: Whilst dancing takes place not less that (insert agreed number) of 
Door Supervisors registered Security Industry Authority or other 
accredited scheme recognised by the Licensing Authority shall be 
employed in the part of the premises used for dancing unless alternative 
arrangements are approved by the Licensing Authority. 
 
SE26: CCTV shall be installed to cover all areas where dancing will take 
place. All cameras shall continually record whilst the premises are open 
to the public. 
 
SE27: Striptease entertainment or any exotic entertainment involving full 
nudity shall not be permitted at the premises. 
 

 
 

Page 518



Licensing Policy Consultation Responses 
 

 
 
 
BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY RESPONSE 
 
TLT LLP Response 
 
1 About TLT 
 
Overview 
 

Created in Bristol in 2000, we set out to be a different kind of law firm, one that pushed the 
boundaries with new ways of working and thinking. 
 
Since then, we've grown rapidly and are privileged to support some of the UK's major 
institutions, high growth businesses and well-known brands. Our head office is in Bristol, but 
we also have offices in Manchester, London, Glasgow, Edinburgh, Belfast and Greece. We are 
a major employer in Bristol, currently employing 779 solicitors and support staff. 
We have significant experience working with organisations in the Clean Energy; Digital; 
Financial Services; Leisure, Food & Drink; Public Sector; Real Estate and Retail & Consumer 
Goods sectors and can advise in all three UK legal jurisdictions. 
 
Licensing 
 
We are regularly ranked as one of the leading licensing advisers in England and Wales in 
Chambers and Legal 500, which are annual independent guides to the legal sector driven by 
client feedback. 
 
TLT's licensing practice is ranked 'Band 1' in Chambers and Partners for licensing in the 
regions (one of only three firms nationwide to hold this ranking) and 'Tier 1' for the South West 
in the Legal 500. Chambers and Partners states: 
 
'Universally respected practice covering the full range of premises licence matters. Liquor 
licensing is a key area of focus, and the team is especially active in the food and drink and 
retail sectors. Enjoys a fine reputation for its representation of music festival clients with regard 
to licence applications and enforcement matters. Equally capable of representing both single-
premises clients and large chains.' 
 
Our clients hold premises licences in every local authority area in England, Wales and 
Scotland. This genuine UK-wide presence gives us a breadth of expertise combined with the 
local knowledge and relationships that allow us to best advise clients on their licensing issues, 
no matter where they are based or the size of their estate. 
 
Both Matthew Phipps (head of licensing England and Wales) and Piers Warne regularly appear 
before Bristol City Council's Licensing Sub-Committee and Piers sits on the mayoral 'Bristol at Night' 
panel, as well as attending 'Nitewatch' meetings to advise bar and club operators on updates in 
licensing matters. Matthew sits on various panels and boards including for the Institute of Licensing 
and BII. Both regularly lecture on licensing matters to operators, councillors and other interested 
parties. 
 
We advise a broad range of clients from hotels, bars, clubs and restaurants to major music festivals, 
pub companies, sports clubs and race course operators. We support one-off events or venues to 
businesses with property estates that sometimes run into the thousands. 
 
Our advice is bespoke and designed around business need. Our client portfolio requires us to 
understand and advise on all aspects of premises licensing, whether it is technical legal advice or 
business oriented operational guidance. 

Page 519



 
As such, TLT LLP is ideally placed to respond to the Bristol City Council consultation on licensing 
policy. 
 
2 RESPONSE 
 
We have divided the response into two discrete sections: the first relates to specific items in the draft 
policy (numbered with the paragraph number of the policy section), the second makes more general 
comments that we feel would assist all parties who deal with licensing matters were they to be 
adopted within the policy. We have given recommendations in each section in bold. 
 
Part 1: Specific comments in relation to the draft policy 
 
2 Purpose and Scope 
 
Strategies 
 
Licensing policies works best when they reference, and indeed work with, other council strategic 
plans and policies. For instance, planning strategies and local cultural strategies often inform 
applicants for either new licences or variations to licences as to what the council are looking to do in 
terms of promoting culture, leisure use and night-time economy uses in a particular area. 
 
There has been a focus in Bristol, through Bristol @ Night and other panels on how the strategic 
vision for Bristol needs to incorporate all aspects of development and regulatory strategy, including 
licensing. This has been an area that has proven particularly difficult for licensing, where it has been 
deliberately separated from planning, for instance. That being said, the review of licensing 10 years 
on by the House of Lords, saw this as an arbitrary division that they criticised. The House of Lords 
recommendation, rejected by the Secretary of State called for licensing and planning to be merged. 
 
We propose that the policy states: 
 
'In determining licensing matters, the licensing committee will have regard to other relevant 
local strategies, including any Bristol master plan. Applicants who are able to demonstrate 
that their application fits with such strategies are more likely to be considered favourably. ' 
 
However, integrating strategies, by definition, requires the council to carefully consider where areas of 
licensing policy would conflict. For instance, cumulative impact zones are inflexible and often will 
conflict with overall strategies if they are not reflected upon in light of such matters. 
 
In any event, often it is difficult to find the local council strategy and other relevant documents online. 
Therefore we feel that this policy would benefit from providing some guidance relating to Integrating 
other guidance, policies, objectives and strategies into licensing decisions. 
 
We propose that links to specific strategies within the policy, will assist new potential 
businesses to understand and factor in the likely costs of entry into the city. 
 
3 The Four Licensing Objectives 
 
3.1 Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 
The prevention of crime and disorder is a major pillar of licensing legislation and one of two 
objectives, along with prevention of public nuisance, that drives the majority of representations 
to applications and reviews. 
 
However, we have become increasingly concerned that licensed premises are sometimes being 
unfairly held to a higher standard when it comes to prevention of crime and disorder than other public 
premises. Because premises undertaking licensable activities require a licence, this is often used to 
drive premises licence holders to accept conditions on their licence that have associated costs other 
premises would not be required to meet. Because breaches of condition can lead to prosecution or 
review of the licence, such conditions force costs onto premises that often can play a part in perfectly 

Page 520



good businesses folding. Bricks and mortar businesses are already under severe financial pressures 
from minimum wage, rates and other levies, so these costs that may appear small when imposed can 
be the tipping point as to whether a business can survive or not. For instance, the approximate cost 
for hiring two door supervisors for four hours on a Friday ad Saturday night alone per annum is 
around £14,000. 
 
It would also assist if the policy could expressly set out what it expects in terms of evidence from 
police or other officers when bringing a review or objecting to a premises licence. When Police 
present evidence of crime and disorder in relation to licensed premises, they will often include 
references to any crime that is associated not just with the premises in terms of its operation as 
licensed premises but generally. For instance, the Police will often include reference to all calls where 
those calls have referenced the premises as a local landmark which can include anything from 
criminal activity from people who have not been customers of the premises, offences in relation to 
taxis, or general disturbance and noise nuisance in a town centre where it cannot be said to be 
relevant to the premises. 
 
Premises licence holders will also often find reference to offences that are not relevant to the licensing 
objectives themselves. So, for instance, robberies at residential premises above a licensed premises 
are sometimes included. 
 
We feel it is important that the council recognise this in their policy. 
 
We propose that the policy states that the council's expectation is that evidence brought by 
the police or other responsible authorities/ other persons relating to the prevention of crime 
and disorder licensing objective will directly relate to the licensable activities being provided 
within the premises themselves. 
 
3.3 Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
The prevention of public nuisance licensing objective is to be widely interpreted. The S182 Statutory 
Guidance requires this. However, we often come across conditions on premises licences that 
reference 'nuisance', rather than 'public nuisance'. This sets a significantly higher barrier- one that 
was not intended by the Licensing Legislation. We also see this in terms of enforcement action where 
often enforcement officers will allege that a nuisance, often a private nuisance, has occurred and 
demand action under the terms of the premises licence. It should be recognised in the policy that this 
goes beyond that which was intended by Parliament. 
 
We propose that the policy reflects the need for public nuisance to be demonstrated and for 
conditions relating to nuisance to relate to public nuisance rather than any wider definition. In 
particular, we suggest that expressly stating that private nuisance is not a licensing objective 
would assist in all parties understanding what is and is not the remit of licensing legislation. 
 
3.4 Protection of children from harm 
 
Since the current policy came into force, a mandatory condition has been added to all premises 
licences permitting sales of alcohol requiring the premises licence holder to implement a policy to 
prevent underage sales of alcohol and for the DPS to implement that policy. 
 
We note that responsible authorities often request 'Challenge 25' as a standard condition. Many 
premises (especially multiple operators) operate Challenge 21 policies throughout their estates and 
have training and signage prepared for this. To change it can be expensive and/ or time consuming. 
 
We propose that the policy states that if an applicant expresses a preference for a particular 
'challenge policy', be it 'Challenge 21 or Challenge 25', this should not be objected to unless 
there is good reason, backed by evidence, to do so. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 521



6.3 Cumulative Impact 
 
Cumulative impact has been brought onto a statutory footing since the current policy was last revised. 
In particular the law requires licensing authorities to undertake cumulative impact assessments 
('CIA's') once every three years. 
 
We note that your cumulative impact policy section references cumulative impact assessments 
('CIA's') but only to state it 'may consider publishing' a CIA. We propose that the CIA section is 
expanded to explain more about CIA's and the effect of them, including that cumulative impact 
policies need to be reviewed every 3 years, rather than the 5 for the policy itself. 
 
We also note that there is a reference in the policy to CIA's, but in reference to 'cumulative impact 
areas', as opposed to cumulative impact assessments. We propose that the policy refers to the 
cumulative impact areas as 'cumulative impact zones' ('CIZs') to avoid confusion. 
 
Bristol has various cumulative impact policies that have been introduced at various times over the 
years. We believe that in light of the new assessments, the policy areas should be more thoroughly 
reviewed. 
 
We understand that there are occasions where CIZ's provide a valuable tool to licensing authorities in 
regulating the night time economy. However, our experience is that they can also be an impediment 
to businesses and the development of a thriving economy. We have represented a number of 
potential operators who have wanted to open premises in Bristol who have decided not to go ahead 
once the likely consequences of the policy are explained to them. This has included innovative small 
business operators looking to open their first premises, as well as more established operators. The 
effect can be that premises in the city centre remain boarded up when they could be otherwise 
occupied and benefiting the city as a whole. 
 
For this reason, cumulative impact policies unintentionally penalise operators considering smaller 
more novel applications (simply because of the prohibitive cost), often resulting in them looking to 
take their ideas elsewhere and thereby wasting a chance to develop a more rounded and vibrant 
economy in those areas of the city. 
 
For the same reason, such policies also promote ubiquity and stagnation as the only operators willing 
to take on the risk and outlay of applying in cumulative impact zones are larger established chains 
with the financial backing to fight for a licence. On occasion, operators will accept licences, or have 
licences imposed upon them that prove to be unworkable, simply to be able to have the chance to 
trade. This again promotes a kind of ubiquity. 
 
Given the plight of the casual dining market in recent times, evidenced by the spate of closures 
across Bristol from local and national operators alike, this is an issue that needs to be taken seriously. 
It can be forcefully argued that they failed in part because their offers were unable to adapt as the 
market developed around them, because the conditions on their licence prohibited it and the chances 
of varying the licenses to allow for change was restricted by licensing policy and the use of CIZs in 
particular. 
 
We feel that this is particularly important in relation to some of the zones in Bristol that have existed 
since 2006 and we have yet to see any evidence presented as to the negative effects that this may 
have had on businesses in the area. A cursory look at the changes to Whiteladies Road is telling. 
Likewise, the manner in which smaller traditional premises in Clifton Village are struggling to adapt to 
changing customer need but find the policy an impediment to their continued survival. 
 
We propose that the CIZ's in Bristol are re-evaluated in line with the council planning 
and other strategies to ensure that there is no conflict. Where necessary, we suggest that the 
CIZ's are amended or removed. We also propose that those remaining CIZ's are reviewed and 
amended to promote the principle that smaller businesses looking to come into the area, and 
established businesses making applications to improve their existing offer, even if they go 
against the policy, will be considered on their merits as a means of ensuring continued 
investment in the city. 
 

Page 522



8 Licensing and planning 
 
We have dealt with our proposal that the policy references and encourages integrated thinking 
between all city strategies and policies above.  
 
We would also urge you to clarify in your policy that where conditions are stipulated on a planning 
permission, such as restriction on hours or activities, these do not need to be repeated in the 
premises licence without good reason to do so. Often conditions relating to extract systems, closing 
times of external areas, deliveries of goods or collection of waste appear on both permissions and on 
occasion they do not even mirror each other. This leads to additional and unnecessary expense for 
licence holders should such conditions need to be amended. Again, this is an unnecessary burden for 
premises struggling to stay afloat and needing to deal with these matters quickly and cost effectively. 
 
We propose that the policy explicitly states that where conditions on planning permissions 
regulate matters relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives, such conditions would 
not be expected to be duplicated on premises licences. 
 
9 Enforcement 
 
We propose the policy specifically references the Regulator's Code and provides a link 
to it. This is useful for all parties to licensing matters and recognises the important role that 
businesses play in local communities. 
 
Appendix C: Model Operating Schedules 
 
We recognise the importance of conditions on premises licences in certain circumstances, such as to 
prevent or to mitigate the potential risk of certain activities undermining the licensing objectives. 
Nevertheless, Bristol stands out amongst all local authorities for imposing the greatest number of 
conditions on premises licences as a matter of common practice. This is led by the policy and causes 
significant problems for officers looking to draw up licenses, as well as operators drowning in a sea of 
conditions. Ten well drafted and pertinent conditions are much better than fifty 'standard' conditions 
applied because the policy requires it. The effect of this aspect of the current policy is akin to 
Japanese knotweed. It endangers the growth of anything it affects, eventually suffocating the host. 
Worse, it seems to be impossible to remove once there. If there was one recommendation that we 
would make to promote both efficiency for the council and progress for operators it would be 
to stop the practice of 
insisting on large numbers of conditions as standard - with reference to model operating 
schedules. 
 
A separate concern in relation to having such a significant number of conditions on a premises licence 
is that it leads to breaches of the licence without any evidence that the breach undermines any 
particular licensing objective. This is regularly raised at hearings as a failure by a premises licence 
holder in situations where if the condition were not there there would be no undermining of any 
licensing objective. Breaches of conditions are, in and of themselves, an offence under Section 136 of 
the Licensing Act and on summary conviction can lead to an unlimited fine and/or up to 6 months in 
prison. It is important that this distinction is recognised in the policy. We propose that the policy 
states: Where breaches of condition occur and the breach does not materially undermine a 
licensing objective, this is a matter for the Courts and not for the licensing committee. The 
Licensing committee can and must only interest themselves in matters where there has been a 
material undermining of the licensing objectives. 'This can happen irrespective of conditions being 
on the licence. We would suggest that this distinction is made in your policy as it will re-enforce the 
message both for responsible authorities and for operators who hold premises licences in your area. 
 
We have also seen a rise in conditions being requested and imposed upon premises licences by 
responsible authorities, irrespective of the nature of the application being made. The case of Taylor v 
Manchester City Council makes is clear that any conditions imposed on a premises licence when it is 
varied must relate to that application itself and should not stray into other areas that are not part of the 
application. It is important again that this is referenced in policy in order to prevent unnecessary 
hearings and often additional expense to applicants seeking to make simple changes to their licence 
but are then held to ransom by responsible authorities who know that operators are unlikely to 

Page 523



challenge their right to impose such conditions where the cost would be send the matter to a hearing. 
We propose that the policy states: Where an applicant applies for a variation to their licence, 
the licensing committee will expect responsible authorities to limit representations to the 
detail of the application itself and tailor any proposed conditions accordingly.' 
 
For the reasons stated above, we submit that the imposition of large numbers of conditions on a 
premises licence is self-defeating. Premises licences form one part of a significant number of 
regulatory requirements that must be observed by publicans and this is often forgotten by regulators 
who often only think in terms of their one area of expertise. Policies that set out an expectation of long 
operating schedules or worse, require officers to object to applications unless the applicant applies 
their standard conditions, place an unnecessary burden on operators without necessarily helping to 
promote the licensing objectives. The City of London licensing authority, for instance, will only impose 
conditions if deemed absolutely necessary. It is not unusual to see licences with only a handful of 
conditions. 
 
The reason for this is that they expect operators to promote the licensing objectives, not go through 
the motions of complying with conditions because they have to. We have seen no evidence to 
suggest such premises have undermined the licensing objectives more in the City of London than in 
Bristol. 
 
We would challenge any authority to suggest that this approach leads to more issues with licence 
holders undermining the objectives. If anything this clarity of approach means that operators are freed 
up to adapt their businesses as the demands of the market change, freeing up officers from having to 
undertake lengthy inspections of licences and then having to send out enforcement letters relating to 
conditions that are breached in the observation without any real evidence that the breaches 
themselves undermine the objectives. This in turn frees up resources for enforcement against poorly 
behaving premises and dealing with unlicensed 
Operators 
. 
Part 2: General matters 
 
On and Off-Sales 
 
Recently we have become aware that the definition of on and off-sales has caused some confusion. 
In particular there appears to be confusion around whether an off-licence is required for customers to 
take drinks outside of a premises, for instance onto the pavement, and consume their drinks there. 
 
We contend that such a sale is an on-sale. If one considers the nature of the offence of selling alcohol 
without the appropriate licence, it is clear that the intention is that the person making the sale is the 
one who would be charged with the offence, rather than, say, the purchaser. Therefore, in selling a 
drink in an open container for immediate consumption, it cannot be argued that the publican has 
made anything other than an on-sale. It is inconceivable that the law intended that should this person 
step outside the premises, or indeed take that drink away with him, that this would somehow 
transform that on-sale to an off-sale. The terms 'on' and 'off sales originate from the Licensing Act 
1964. Analysis of the legislation (by reference to offsales) demonstrates that all off-sales had to be 
intended to be sold for consumption away from not only the licensed premises but any land 
associated with that premises or land immediately adjoining it for them to be considered an off sale. 
The intention was to ensure that in a situation where a seller makes an on-sale, that on-sale does not 
become an off-sale simply by means of it being consumed in the immediate environment of the 
premises, such as an unlicensed garden or on the pavement outside the pub. 
 
As such, we feel that this needs to be clarified in the policy. We propose the following statement is 
adopted: 
 
"On and off-sales are defined by reference to the intention of the setter at the time of sale. A 
sate in an open container for immediate consumption at the premises is an onsale. This 
extends to where the person who has purchased the drink at the bar and then consumes it 
either in a pub garden or on the pavement immediately outside the premises. 
 

Page 524



An off-sale is a sate designed for consumption away from the premises and its immediate 
environs. This will usually be in a seated container such as a bottle or can and the setter when 
selling that drink had no intention for the purchaser to remain at the premises to consume it", 
 
GDPR 
 
We note that the policy does not make reference to the GDPR.  
 
One of the most significant changes in recent times has been the change to data protection legislation 
introduced via GDPR. Whilst the obvious effects of this regulatory change relate to protecting 
personal data held on behalf of individuals, such as social media, mailing lists, email data bases and 
various other forms of storage of someone else's data, there are other effects that need to be 
reflected in licensing policy. 
 
For instance, the requirement for CCTV at a premises licence is not only expensive to install, but we 
question the value of such systems in terms of crime prevention and detection, especially in smaller 
restaurants and event spaces. However, it is now commonplace for police to demand CCTV in almost 
all premises and to insist upon complicated and demanding CCTV condition's to be added to 
premises licences. In addition, operators of CCTV systems have to consider the GDPR implications. 
In particular, anyone who stores data, including CCTV footage of individuals, which is classed as data 
for the purposes of GDPR, must be responsible for its safe collection, storage, usage and disposal. 
Handing over CCTV footage to Police officers in the active investigation of a criminal offence, such as 
a fight, would obviously be a legitimate reason for providing data. However, a condition with a general 
requirement to hand over CCTV at the behest licensing officer or police officer would arguably breach 
GDPR were it to be enforced. This means that there are numerous CCTV conditions on licences that 
would likely, were one to try and enforce them as they are written, cause an operator to breach 
GDPR. Similarly, club scan conditions need to be thought about in terms of GDPR and the obligations 
of the data holder. For instance, the time for which any data is stored and the purpose for storing that 
data needs to be made clear to people handing over their data. Again conditions that require such 
data to be handed over at the behest of an officer other than in investigating a criminal offence would 
in all likelihood breach GDPR. 
 
We have also seen evidence submitted to licensing sub-committees by responsible authorities and 
other persons and therefore made public, that has been in breach of an individual's rights under 
GDPR. 
 
We feel therefore that this need to be addressed in the policy in order to ensure that conditions are 
updated to ensure compliance and that CCTV in particular is not being universally required where 
there is no real and pressing need for it. 
 
We propose that GDPR is expressly dealt with in the policy to ensure that all parties 
understand that any conditions need to comply with GDPR and any evidence submitted to the 
local authority to be included in the public documents must likewise comply. 
 
Agent of Change 
 
In recent years, Bristol has lost venues providing music and dancing to its citizens at an alarming rate. 
We understand that somewhere in the region of 10,000 customer spaces have been lost during the 
time of the current licensing policy being in force. A lot of this can be attributed to the development of 
the City, with some of it directly resulting from residential properties being built in the immediate 
vicinity of these premises, often without adequate noise protection for the residents. This development 
should not, however, lead to the venue being required to implement expensive works to ensure their 
survival. We act for clients who have very genuine concerns that their premises are likely to fall victim 
of this ongoing drive to build residential property without proper care and attention being paid to the 
diverse mix of licensed premises that make Bristol the unique creative hub it is recognised as being 
worldwide. 
 
Whilst we recognise that the principle is currently being debated in terms of planning, it is equally as 
important in licensing. We recommend that the licensing policy expressly recognises that developers 
of new residential developments need to protect their buyers from potential sources of noise 

Page 525



disturbance, not expect existing licensed premises to have to adapt their offer to accommodate the 
new development. In particular, smaller venues often rely on live or recorded music, provision of 
social events and other community based promotions, such as beer festivals, in order to survive and 
thrive. Such premises remain under threat and often cannot afford to fight review proceedings. 
 
We have, unfortunately, seen a rise in complaints and reviews directed at existing premises that have 
often been at the heart of the communities, from residents moving into new properties nearby. Whilst 
it is incumbent upon licence holders to promote the licensing objectives, it is iniquitous and arguably a 
breach of their Article 1, Protocol 1 human right to peaceful enjoyment of property, which includes 
their premises licence, to have their livelihood threatened and sometimes taken away because of 
poorly designed and constructed residential property built next door. 
 
We therefore propose that the Agent of Change Principle is adopted into the licensing policy 
to ensure that where reviews are sought by residents or responsible authorities in relation to 
public nuisance alleged to arise from a licensed premises, the nature of the premises, it's track 
record and length of time it has been providing the activities complained of will all be taken 
into account in determining the matter. 
 
Submitted on behalf of TLT LLP 
TLT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 526



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [Premises Licence Holder] 
 
My postcode is BS9 XXX 
 
I am commenting as: a local business owner and a premises license holder. 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of or areas of  
 
Gloucester Road 
Whiteladies Road 
City Centre 
Clifton Village 
 
The reason for this is  
 
I would like to be able to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night. 
Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 527



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council  
 
My name is [Resident] 
 
My postcode is BS13 XXX 
 
I am commenting as a freelance designer and photographer with an invested interest in Bristol 
nightlife and bars.  
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through.  
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of or areas of: 
 
Gloucester Road 
Whiteladies Road 
City Centre 
Clifton Village 
Bedminster and Southville – North Street Area 
Bedminster and Southville – Cannon Street Area  
 
The reasons for this cutting down opening hours for venues will put many at risk, and in turn allow 
for less budget to employ working sole-traders like myself for art, photography and design 
commissions. I personally would also like to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night as again 
my work (and that of my peers) frequently requires later social hours.  
 
Bristol is a 24 hour city, our venues need to be able to operate in a safe way but with extended 
operating hours. 
 
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times.  
 
Kind Regards,  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 528



My name is [Resident] 
 
My postcode is BS2 XXX 
 
I am commenting as: A Member of the public & Worker in Bristol 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of or areas of  
 
Gloucester Road 
Whiteladies Road 
City Centre 
Old Market – West Street 
Clifton Village 
Bedminster and Southville – North Street Area 
Bedminster and Southville – Cannon Street Area 
 
The reason for this is: 
I would like to be able to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night especially after a hard day 
at work. 
 
Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. 
Bristol is a 24 hour city, our venues need to be able to operate in a safe way but with extended 
operating hours. 
 
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times. 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 529



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [Premises Licence Holder], proprietor of Aqua Restaurants 
My postcode is BS1 XXX 
 
I am commenting as a Local business owner or manager as a premises license holder. 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of or areas of; 
 
• Whiteladies Road 
• City Centre 
 
This is down to a number of reasons, mainly the high street economy is really suffering right now 
and policies need to be relaxed to encourage more people to come out later and stay out later. 
People are just being discouraged to go out right now and this is having massive consequence for 
our local independent businesses. This cannot be sustained.  
 
Too many restrictions are having a negative impact on the hospitality sector. As a trader for coming 
up to 25 years now I have personally seen a massive movement on the high street, it is being killed 
by policies and over inflated rates and fees. Something has to be done. 
 
 
Kind Regards, 
 
Operations Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 530



BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY RESPONSE 
 
Punch Taverns Response 
 
Punch is one of the UK's largest leased pub companies, with around 1300 pubs across the UK. From 
the spirit of our local community pubs, the energy of our lively city centre hot spots and sports bars, 
to the warmth and calm of our inviting country inns; our pubs are the heart of all we do. 
 
We are a business of people that love pubs! With a mixed estate of high quality leased, tenanted and 
retail pubs, our years of experience have enabled us to develop a leading proposition for those 
wishing to work with us and run a pub business of their own. We provide industry leading, tailored 
business support to our Publicans and develop market-leading, flexible agreements and retail 
concepts to suit all aspirations. 
 
Under the ownership of Patron and May Capital, we have exciting plans to grow our business: longer 
term through potential acquisition opportunities and – in the here and now – by substantially 
investing in our teams, our pubs and Publicans. 
 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is embedded across many elements of our business, from 
corporate fundraising to responsible retailing. We have dedicated teams in place to assist in ensuring 
that our premises operate to the highest standards. We strive to ensure that our pubs are not 
operating irresponsible drinks promotions or serving underage drinkers or those who are 
intoxicated. 
 
The Punch Buying Club, our online ordering and communications portal, also has a section dedicated 
to Risk Management providing our Publicans with a wide range of downloadable educational tools, 
advice and pub-friendly materials, which can be used pub managers and team members. 
 
As supporters of Drinkaware we do not condone irresponsible promotions and pricing of alcohol, 
and we have actively supported Drinkaware’s campaigns to help tackle binge drinking amongst 18 to 
25 year olds. Responsible retailing forms a key part of our Publican training and we provide clear 
guidance on current legislation and best practice. We also support industry led initiatives to promote 
responsible retailing and are active members of industry trade bodies such as British Beer Pub 
Association (BBPA) and the British Institute of Innkeeping (BII). 
 
We are pleased to be able to contribute to this consultation, we have always prided ourselves with 
working with Local Authorities and Responsible authorities. 
Punch operate 6 premises within Bristol 
 
We would like to make the following points some which are specific to the policy and referenced and 
some which are more general which we would ask be taken into account. 
 
RESPONSE 
 
2 Purpose and Scope 
 
Strategies 
 
We feel that this policy would benefit from a more details relating to Integrating other guidance, 
policies, objectives and strategies into licensing decisions. 

Page 531



Licensing policies works best when they reference, and indeed work with, other council strategic 
plans and policies. For instance, planning strategies and local cultural strategies often inform 
applicants for either new licences or variations to licences as to what the council are looking to do in 
terms of promoting culture, leisure use and night-time economy uses in a particular area. 
 
Often it can be difficult to find these documents online and therefore reference to them and indeed 
a general statement that the authority will take into account other strategies is both a pertinent and 
of benefit to applicants and responsible authorities alike. 
 
Links to specific strategies, will also assist new potential businesses to understand and factor in the 
likely costs of entry into the city. 
 
3 The Four Licensing Objectives 
 
3.1 Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 
The prevention of crime and disorder is one of the 4 licensing objectives and clearly a major pillar of 
licensing legislation. However, we have become increasingly concerned that licensed premises are 
sometimes being unfairly held to a higher standard when it comes to prevention of crime and 
disorder than other public premises. For instance, when Police present evidence of crime and 
disorder in relation to licensed premises, they will often include references to any crime that is 
associated not just with the premises in terms of its operation as licensed premises but generally. 
For instance, the Police will often include reference to all calls where those calls have referenced the 
premises as a local landmark which can include anything from criminal activity from people who 
have not been customers of the premises, offences in relation to taxis, or general disturbance and 
noise nuisance in a town centre where it cannot be said to be relevant to the premises. 
 
Premises licence holders will also often find reference to offences that are not relevant to the 
licensing objectives themselves. So, for instance, robberies at residential premises above a licensed 
premises are sometimes included. We feel it is important that the council recognise in their policy 
that these are matters that are not relevant to the prevention of crime and disorder licensing 
objective and that the licensing authority's expectation is that they will only be presented with 
evidence where it directly relates to the licensable activities being provided within the premises 
themselves. 
 
3.3 Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
The prevention of public nuisance licensing objective is to be widely interpreted, as set out in the 
Statutory Guidance. However, we often come across conditions imposed on licences, as well as the 
investigation of complaints that do not relate to public nuisance. For instance, conditions that refer 
to 'nuisance', rather than 'public nuisance', set a significantly higher barrier- one that was not 
intended by the Licensing Legislation. We also see this in terms of enforcement action where often 
enforcement officers will allege that a nuisance, often a private nuisance, has occurred and demand 
action under the terms of the premises licence. 
 
Clearly this is beyond that which was intended by Parliament and therefore we suggest that your 
policy reflects the need for public nuisance to be demonstrated and for conditions relating to 
nuisance to relate to public nuisance rather than any wider definition. In particular, we suggest that 
expressly stating that private nuisance is not a licensing objective would assist in all parties 
understanding what is and is not the remit of licensing legislation. 
 

Page 532



3.4 Protection of children from harm 
 
We note that responsible authorities often request 'Challenge 25' as a standard condition. Many 
premises (especially multiple operators) operate Challenge 21 policies and have training and signage 
for this. To change it can be expensive and/ or time consuming. As such, we would suggest that the 
licensing authority would not expect responsible authorities to suggest a change to Challenge 25 
where a premises is already trading with a different challenge policy, unless there have been 
identified risks to children at the specific premises. It would assist if the policy reflected this. 
 
6.3 Cumulative Impact 
 
We note that your cumulative impact policy section references cumulative impact assessments 
('CIA's') but only to state it 'may consider publishing' a CIA. There is, later, a confusing reference to 
CIA's, but in reference to 'cumulative impact areas'. It would assist to refer to the areas as 'zones' 
and therefore 'CIZs' to avoid confusion. It would also assist if the CIA section were expanded to 
explain more about CIA's and the effect of them, including that cumulative impact policies need to 
be reviewed every 3 years, rather than the 5 for the policy itself. 
 
We note that you have various cumulative impact policies that have been introduced at various 
times. Whilst we also commend the policy on distinguishing between and narrowing the effect of 
certain policy areas to ensure that they only relate to specific premises types, we believe that the 
policy areas should be more thoroughly reviewed. 
 
We understand that there are occasions where CIP's provide a valuable tool to local authorities in 
regulating the night time economy. However, our experience is that they can also be an impediment 
to businesses and the development of a thriving night time economy. Punch, as a promoter of 
entrepreneurship within our estate of leased pubs understands very well the challenges that small 
business operator's face when looking to enter a new market or adapt their offer. 
 
Cumulative impact policies can have the effect of dissuading operators from even attempting to get 
a licence. This unintentionally penalises operators considering smaller more novel applications 
(simply because of the prohibitive cost), often resulting in them looking to take their ideas elsewhere 
and thereby wasting a chance to develop a more rounded and vibrant economy in the CIP. For the 
same reason, such policies also promote ubiquity and stagnation as the only operators willing to 
take on the risk and outlay of applying in cumulative impact zones are larger established chains with 
the financial backing to fight for a licence. Given the plight of the pub market 7 years ago and now 
the casual dining market, in part because their offers failed to change as the market developed 
around them, the use of CIPs needs careful oversight. 
 
We feel that this is particularly important in relation to some of the zones in Bristol that have existed 
since 2006 and we have yet to see any evidence presented as to the negative effects that this may 
have had on businesses in the area. 
 
8 Licensing and planning 
 
We would also urge you to clarify in your policy that where conditions are stipulated on a planning 
permission, such as restriction on hours or activities, these do not need to be repeated in the 
premises licence, unless there is good reason to do so. Often conditions relating to extract systems, 
closing times of external areas, etc. appear on both permissions and on occasion they do not even 
mirror the other. This leads to additional and unnecessary expense for licence holders should such 
conditions need to be amended. 

Page 533



9 Enforcement 
 
We suggest this policy specifically references the Regulator's Code and provides a link. This is useful 
for all parties to licensing matters and recognises the important role that businesses play in local 
communities. 
 
Appendix C: Model Operating Schedules 
 
Whilst Punch Taverns recognise the importance of conditions on premises licences in certain 
circumstances, such as to prevent or to mitigate the potential risk of certain activities undermining 
the licensing objectives, we have a concern that more and more conditions are being placed on a 
licence that are then enforced as breaches of the licence in their own right. Licensing authorities are 
obliged to promote the 4 licensing objectives. Breaches of condition in and of themselves are an 
offence under Section 136 of the Licensing Act and on summary conviction can lead to an unlimited 
fine and/or up to 6 months in prison. It is important that this distinction is recognised in your policy 
and that breaches of condition in and of themselves are a matter for the Courts; whereas an 
undermining of the licensing objectives, which can happen with or without conditions being on the 
licence in any event, are the province of the licensing authority to deal with. We would suggest that 
this distinction is made in your policy as it will re-enforce the message both for responsible 
authorities and for operators who hold premises licences in your area. 
 
Punch has always been happy to work with licensing authorities in relation to conditions being 
imposed on a licence where they are necessary and proportionate to achieve an identifiable aim. 
However, we are concerned with the prevalence of standard conditions being used across all 
licences within any particular class, This has taken over from a proper analysis of the need for such 
conditions in the first place. 
 
In particular, we have seen a rise in conditions being imposed upon premises licences by responsible 
authorities, irrespective of the nature of the application being made. For instance, a variation to the 
plans attached to a licence to effect a simple alteration in layout and where there is no change in 
licensable activities, increase in customer area, or removal of internal lobbies, for instance, 
sometimes result in officers seeking to ride on the back of that application to impose conditions that 
are in no way relevant to it. The case of Taylor v Manchester City Council makes is clear that any 
conditions imposed on a premises licence when it is varied must relate to that application itself and 
should not stray into other areas that are not part of the application. It is important again that this is 
referenced in policy in order to prevent unnecessary hearings and often additional expense to 
applicants seeking to make simple changes to their licence but are then held to ransom by 
responsible authorities who know that operators are unlikely to challenge their right to impose such 
conditions where the cost would be send the matter to a hearing. 
 
We submit that the imposition of large numbers of conditions on a premises licence is self-defeating. 
Premises licences form one part of a significant number of regulatory requirements that must be 
observed by publicans and this is often forgotten by regulators who often only think in terms of their 
one area of expertise. This means that they often do not see the wood for the trees. Policies that set 
out an expectation of long operating schedules or worse, require officers to object to applications 
unless the applicant applies their standard conditions, place an unnecessary burden on operators 
without necessarily helping to promote the licensing objectives. The City of London licensing 
authority, for instance, will only impose conditions if deemed absolutely necessary. It is not unusual 
to see licences with only a handful of conditions. 
 

Page 534



The reason for this is that they expect operators to promote the licensing objectives, not go through 
the motions of complying with conditions because they have to. Also, licences grandfathered in 2005 
would, likely have few or no conditions on them. We have seen no evidence to suggest such 
premises have undermined the licensing objectives more than "conditioned licences." 
 
We would challenge any authority to suggest that this approach leads to more issues with licence 
holders undermining the objectives. If anything this clarity of approach means that operators are 
freed up to adapt their businesses as the demands of the market change, freeing up officers from 
having to undertake lengthy inspections of licences and then having to send out enforcement letters 
relating to conditions that are breached in the observation without any real evidence that the 
breaches themselves undermine the objectives. This in turn frees up resources for enforcement 
against poorly behaving premises and dealing with unlicensed operators. 
 
OTHER MATTERS WE WOULD ASK YOU TO CONSIDER REFLECTING IN YOUR POLICY 
 
On and Off-Sales 
 
Recently we have become aware that the definition of on and off-sales has caused some confusion. 
In particular there appears to be confusion around whether an off-licence is required for customers 
to take drinks outside of a premises, for instance onto the pavement, and consume their drinks 
there. 
 
We contend that such a sale is an on-sale. If one considers the nature of the offence of selling 
alcohol without the appropriate licence, it is clear that the intention is that the person making the 
sale is the one who would be charged with the offence, rather than, say, the purchaser. Therefore, in 
selling a drink in an open container for immediate consumption, it cannot be argued that the 
publican has made anything other than an on-sale. It is inconceivable that the law intended that 
should this person step outside the premises, or indeed take that drink away with him, that this 
would somehow transform that on-sale to an off-sale. The terms 'on' and 'off' sales originate from 
the Licensing Act 1964. Analysis of the legislation (by reference to off-sales) demonstrates that all 
off-sales had to be intended to be sold for consumption away from not only the licensed premises 
but any land associated with that premises or land immediately adjoining it for them to be 
considered an off sale. The intention was to ensure that in a situation where a seller makes an on-
sale, that on-sale does not become an off-sale simply by means of it being consumed in the 
immediate environment of the premises, such as an unlicensed garden or on the pavement outside 
the pub. 
 
As such, we feel that this needs to be clarified in the policy. We would propose a statement along 
the following lines:- 
 
"On and off-sales are defined by reference to the intention of the seller at the time of sale. A sale in 
an open container for immediate consumption at the premises is an on-sale. This extends to where 
the person who has purchased the drink at the bar and then consumes it either in a pub garden or 
on the pavement immediately outside the premises. 
An off-sale is a sale designed for consumption away from the premises and its immediate environs. 
This will usually be in a sealed container such as a bottle or can and the seller when selling that drink 
had no intention for the purchaser to remain at the premises to consume it". 
 
GDPR 
 
We note that the policy does not make reference to the GDPR 

Page 535



One of the most significant changes in recent times has been the change to data protection 
legislation introduced via GDPR. Whilst the obvious effects of this regulatory change relate to 
protecting personal data held on behalf of individuals, such as social media, mailing lists, email data 
bases and various other forms of storage of someone else's data, there are other effects that need 
to be reflected in licensing policy. 
 
For instance, the requirement for CCTV at a premises licence is not only expensive to install, but we 
question the value of such systems in terms of crime prevention and detection, especially in smaller 
community pubs. However, it is now commonplace for police to demand CCTV in almost all premises 
and to insist upon complicated and demanding CCTV condition's to be added to premises licences. In 
addition, operators of CCTV systems have to consider the GDPR implications. In particular, anyone 
who stores data, including CCTV footage of individuals, which is classed as data for the purposes of 
GDPR, must be responsible for its safe collection, storage, usage and disposal. Handing over CCTV 
footage to Police officers in the active investigation of a criminal offence, such as a fight, would 
obviously be a legitimate reason for providing data. However, a condition with a general 
requirement to hand over CCTV at the behest licensing officer or police officer would arguably 
breach GDPR were it to be enforced. This means that there are numerous CCTV conditions on 
licences that would likely, were one to try and enforce them as they are written, cause an operator 
to breach GDPR. 
 
Similarly, club scan conditions need to be thought about in terms of GDPR and the obligations of the 
data holder. For instance, the time for which any data is stored and the purpose for storing that data 
needs to be made clear to people handing over their data. 
 
Again conditions that require such data to be handed over at the behest of an officer other than in 
investigating a criminal offence would in all likelihood breach GDPR. 
We feel therefore that this need to be addressed in the policy in order to ensure that conditions are 
updated to ensure compliance and that CCTV in particular is not being universally required where 
there is no real and pressing need for it. 
 
Agent of Change 
 
Whilst we recognise that the principle is currently being debated in terms of planning, it is equally as 
important in licensing. We recommend that the licensing policy expressly recognises that developers 
of new residential developments need to protect their buyers from potential sources of noise 
disturbance, not expect existing licensed premises to have to adapt their offer to accommodate the 
new development. In particular, small pubs often rely on live or recorded music, provision of social 
events and other community based promotions, such as beer festivals, in order to survive and thrive. 
 
We have, unfortunately, seen a rise in complaints and reviews directed at existing premises that 
have often been at the heart of the community for over a century, from residents moving into new 
properties nearby. Whilst it is incumbent upon licence holders to promote the licensing objectives, it 
is iniquitous and arguably a breach of their Article 1, Protocol 1 human right to peaceful enjoyment 
of property, which includes their premises licence, to have their livelihood threatened and 
sometimes taken away because of poorly designed and constructed residential property built next 
door. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 536



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [Resident] 
My postcode is bs15 XXX 
 
I am commenting as: 
 
A member of the public 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of o Gloucester Road Whiteladies Road City Centre Clifton 
Village Bedminster and Southville – North Street Area Bedminster and Southville – Cannon Street 
Area 
 
The reason for this is I feel Bristol nightlife has become quite sterile and boring. 
I would like to be able to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night. 
I would like to have a choice of venues to attend, people of a certain age don’t necessarily want to 
go to rave music venues. If there were bars and restaurants open later that would be ideal. 
Bristol benefits hugely from the night time economy – I don’t understand why the council don’t 
support the venue owners. 
 
Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. 
Venues need to stay open later in order for to survive. 
 
Bristol is a 24 hour city or at least it used to be. our venues need to be able to operate in a safe way 
but with extended operating hours. 
 
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times. 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 537



 
 
Hi  
As requested Re- CIA please find our feedback regarding the CIA 
 
We do not agree with the Avon and Somerset police’s assertion that Cabot Circus / QF / Broadmead 
is a crime and anti-social behaviour hotspot related to alcohol consumption.   
 
 
• The wide extent of the City Centre Cumulative Impact Policy area seriously restricts the 
investment in a diverse night time economy in Bristol City Centre, particularly as a change in the 
retail landscape is requiring landlords and property owners to find alternative and financially viable 
uses for vacant premises; 
• The policy makes it difficult for alternative offerings to be provided for a wide range of 
customer demographics/markets which may provide an alternative to the late night economy and an 
opportunity to bring positive benefits to upholding the licensing objectives; in fact it should aid 
natural surveillance in the area, bringing about a reduction in both criminal activity and the fear of 
crime. 
• Well planned leisure schemes bring a mix of leisure activities including a well thought out 
combination of  high quality restaurants, wet led premises and other leisure based operators can 
offer real benefits to the City centre and its late night economy without having a negative impact on 
crime and disorder and public nuisance in the area. 
•         We would propose that any future requests are based on a case by case basis not a blanket 
ban 
• The majority of this area is actively managed by the centre management team and has 24 
hour security in place  
• We do not believe there to be an over concentration of such in the vicinity, and it remains a 
key objective for the future Broadmead Development a varied mix use to enhance the area  
 
We would expect to be fully consulted and engaged in a dialogue on this moving forward and 
believe an assumption against the grant of further alcohol licences within Broadmead needs to be 
very carefully considered and would place a significant hindrance on its future regeneration.   
 
 
Regards 
 
 
Andrew 
 
 
    
 Andrew Gibbens   
 General Manager   
 Direct Line:   
 Mobile:   
 Cabot Circus | The Management Suite | Glass House | Bristol | BS1 3BX | 
https://www.cabotcircus.com  
  
 
 
 

Page 538



 
 
To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
My name is [Resident] 
My postcode is BS15 XXX 
I am commenting as a local manager as a non premises license holder. 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the areas of Gloucester Road, Whiteladies Road, City Centre, 
Bedminster and Southville – North Street Area & Cannon Street Area 
 
The reason for this is that over the past decade the nightlife in the city has slowly been diminished 
and losing the diversity it had when I arrived here for University. Smaller independent venues are 
being lost and town planning has seen the closure of many live music and licensed venues due to the 
masses of flats being built with low levels of noise insulation stripping the city of its cultural music 
scene along with a lack of protection to stop venues being turned into flats or offices. 
 
These closures have a knock on effect where more people are living and going out in the city with 
fewer places to go. Causing more people to congregate in fewer areas adding to issues with large 
crowds of intoxicated people descending on the street at the same time. This also causes issues with 
gangs and criminal aspects of the night time economy being forced into a smaller area and large 
fights breaking out and a noticeable rise in knife crime since I moved to the city over a decade ago. 
Whiteladies road is an example where overly strict licensing regulations have seen the bars struggle 
to contend with other areas of town and is no longer the destination area that it once was due to 
being forced to close earlier than their competitors. I have lived in the city centre and by licensed 
venues with drunk people making noise outside on any day of the week and have never complained 
unless a criminal element has occurred. The reason for this, I had made the choice to live there and 
knew what that would entail. You don’t rent or buy on or near main roads in the city centre unless 
you’re understanding that living by bars and clubs means noise and intoxicated people will be 
vacating the premises and be in the vicinity. Licensed venues shouldn’t be held to such scrutiny after 
bringing much of the culture and entertainment to these areas then to be pushed aside and not 
taken care of due to the post code they are situated in. 
 
Bristol is a destination city for the night time economy, we have swathes of stag and hen parties who 
inject thousands into the economy each year and they expect a diverse array of entertainment and 
venues for which to go. Most of which are not upmarket cocktail bars which appears to be the only 
licences being greenlit in the city over the past few years. We also have a huge thriving student body 
in the city which are looking for more bars and clubs to frequent as well as work in. We also have no 
late night eateries serving decent food, other cities have restaurants opening far later than our own 
embracing the more diverse living schedule that the inhabitants of a modern 24 hour city now 
expect. Give more venues flexible opening hours and stop allowing the inhabitants who choose to 
move near to licensed premises all the power, they have to take some responsibility for choosing to 
live where they are. Support the businesses that pay rates and taxes whilst offering careers or part 
time flexible work as without us the city will lose the identity it has a reputation for having. 
Safeguard the night time economy and encourage smaller premises to open to redistribute the night 
time crowd evenly across the city whilst encouraging it to grow and compete nationally with other 
cities. 
 

Page 539



 
 
To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [Premises Licence Holder] 
My postcode is BS13 XXX 
 
I am commenting as the owner proprietor of The Golden Guinea Public House in BS1, but also as 
someone in their mid forties who uses the bars and restaurants of the city. 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of or areas of Brustol city centre. 
 
The reason for this is: 
 
I would like to be able to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night. 
I would like to have a choice of venues to attend, people of a certain age don’t necessarily want to 
go to rave music venues. If there were bars and restaurants open later that would be ideal. 
Bristol benefits hugely from the night time economy – I don’t understand why the council don’t 
support the venue owners. 
Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. 
Venues need to stay open later in order for to survive. 
Bristol is a 24 hour city, our venues need to be able to operate in a safe way but with extended 
operating hours. 
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times. 
 
Kind Regards  
 
 
The Rising Sun 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 540



Carl 
  
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to comment on the licensing policy review and the CIAs 
which are currently in force.  I have submitted my responses to the survey online. 
  
The worry for me is that the way the survey is structured and its length is an obstacle to members of 
the general public, particularly those who are not part of organised residents groups.  There is a real 
risk that if the CIAs continue as they are this will stifle the growth of the city’s night time economy, 
which is such an essential part of the city’s growth and prosperity.   
  
We have recently been named the Best Food Destination by the World Food Association.  This is 
great for the city and should result in more visitors, which should lead to an increase in demand for 
not only restaurants but late night venues that those visitors can go on to afterwards.  We need to 
be able to increase our capacity easily.  With the CIA and Licensing Regime as it stands my view is 
that new operators may think twice before considering opening a new establishment here 
particularly if the process is too difficult. 
  
As it stands there are parts of the city which fall within areas covered by the existing CIAs which 
clearly need more night time activity. By encouraging night time activity in these areas and 
increasing footfall this makes these areas safer, creates the critical mass to attract people to a 
particular area and boosts the economy for venues. For example, Nelson Street falls within the same 
CIA as King Street but in my mind would massively benefit from an increase in night time activity 
whereas King Street is probably at an optimum level.  
  
If I take Broadmead as another example right at the heart of a CIA, it  is also desperately in need of 
more night time activity if it is to become a flagship area at the heart of the city. There are several 
developments planned for Broadmead which will hopefully lead to positive change in the 
atmosphere and culture of this struggling retail district, however this may not happen as anticipated 
unless the relevant CIA area is amended.   
  
Visitors to Bristol probably find it strange that there is more activity outside of the main shopping 
district than in it particularly when compared to other city centres in the UK and in Europe.  If you 
look at shopping districts in cities such as Leeds and Manchester, these have changed dramatically in 
the last decade and you can see that developers have successfully provided mixed use schemes 
which include a blend of retail and leisure and has led to a shopping districts that are busy both night 
and day.   
  
It seems to me that the Clifton and Whiteladies Road CIA have also failed the city and led to an area 
which was very vibrant throughout the 90’s but now because of the amount of closures is lagging 
behind other areas such as Gloucester Road and North St.  If you choose to go out in Clifton and 
Whiteladies Road and your first choice is not open or at capacity then you are likely be forced into 
having to go to another area due to there being limited other options within that CIA. It seems to me 
that pressure points (for example, the area around the triangle) within the CIA has led to blanket 
policies across the Clifton and Whiteladies Road CIA which does not allow trade to flourish. Certain 
operators will continue to struggle if they are not allowed to stay open later and if they are not close 
to similar operations.   
  
As it currently stands with the CIAs it will be difficult for new premises to obtain licenses because of 
the restrictions and the presumption that no additional venues will be licensed or it is difficult to 
increase the hours of existing venues which are well run and cause no issues to local residents.   
  

Page 541



My view is that the new proposed Licensing Policy is an improvement as it seems open for the 
applicants to make changes and choose which conditions, from the pool of conditions, are 
appropriate for their establishment.  It is also appreciated that the aim seems to be to promote what 
is a vibrant night time economy and shows an understanding of how important this is to the city.  
Notwithstanding that, in my mind the standardised approach is not helpful as I consider that each 
applicant should be considered on its individual merits.  The approach seems to be too formulaic. 
  
I hope you find this feedback useful and it leads to Bristol adopting policies which will support our 
great night time economy which is such an integral part of our city’s story. 
  
Kind regards 
  
Marti 
Chair of Bristol @ Night 
  
Marti Burgess | Partner 
for Bevan Brittan LLP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 542



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
My name is [Resident] 
My postcode is BS8 XXX 
I am commenting as a Clifton resident and as a prospective local business owner who has operated 
bars and pubs in the city over the last decade up to the present.  
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for all currently operational CIA's in the city, but with special mind to 
Clifton and the City Centre as these are where I operate.  
My business partner and I, have reviewed the policy and have the following comments: 
 
1.14 Consultation is a requirement of the licensing policy and yet minimum effort was made to 
ensure stakeholders were aware of the consultation. Notifications were sent out to out-of-date 
addresses and when the letters were returned no action was taken to ensure the licence holder was 
properly notified. 
When we arrived for the consultation session, we found that we had been assigned an extremely 
small meeting room, suggesting that they expected very few people would come. This suggests an 
intentional lack of effort was put into notifying relevant parties. 
This section states that the policy must be reviewed and a new statement made every five years. As 
discussed in the consultation, five years is too long of a period and the city changes significantly over 
that time. For example, the current CIAs were implemented in 2015. They have now gone far beyond 
their original intent and are now simply negatively impacting businesses. 
2.3 This section used to contain this statement for clarity. 
“The Council’s Scrutiny function plays a key role in keeping the policy under review and exercising 
statutory powers that enable scrutiny members to make recommendations to the full council.” 
Why has this been removed? 
2.6 From the draft: 
“The Act requires the Council to actively seek the views of the following persons upon the proposals 
contained in this policy: 
- The chief officer of police; 
- The Fire and Rescue Authority; 
- The Director of Public Health 
- each Local Health Board 
- such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders of premises 
licences, club premises certificates and personal licences issued by that authority; 
- such other persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of businesses and 
residents in Bristol.” 
I would like clarity or a definition of what constitutes an attempt to “actively seek the views” of the 
above parties. Refer back to my comments on section 1.14 and it seems like the lack of definition 
here allows too much leeway for a minimal effort. 
2.8 This section states that the council is able to go beyond minimum statutory requirements 
because “it has actively sought the views of all stakeholders on its proposals”. This is a statement 
written before the fact and is still unclear on what constitutes ‘actively seeking.’ 
Furthermore 
Section 2.9 thanks those who responded referring to appendix A. Appendix A of the 2015 policy 
makes it clear that not enough effort was made to consult stakeholders. It lists only 37 people and 
only two of those are premises licence holders. 
The reason so many stakeholders were not notified based on the current system was due to out of 
date addresses held in the council’s records. This clearly isn’t working so I would like to see new 
systems put in place to allow better future communication. 

Page 543



6.3.9 This section contains a note stating that it will likely change as a result of the consultation. I 
feel that at this stage amendments should already have been made. Section 6.3.6 states that the 
council will keep cumulative impact assessments under review. The fact that section 6.3, pertaining 
to cumulative impact areas, is almost word for word identical to the 2015 proposal suggests that 
either the assessments were either never reviewed, or that those reviews were completely ignored. 
The descriptions and reasoning behind the current CIAs has literally not been altered at all despite 
two significant factors: 
1. Each part of the city under a CIA has changed extensively in the last five years. 
2. The impact of late night entertainment in these areas has since been shown to be the cause 
of either; people returning late from the centre, or people drinking without regulation in private 
residences. This is something the council is aware of as evidenced by new measures being brought in 
to reduce or restrict student house parties. 
 
As a business person looking to start a responsible and well managed business I have found the 
process of trying to find suitable premises very difficult, to the point that someone with less drive 
than Ourselves, who would succeed in other industries may look for an alternative locations within 
the country to make there vision reality. This is not my understanding of the function of a council 
and there responsibility to residents in providing paying jobs and the small businesses themselves, 
especially as the four licensing objectives set out by the Licensing Act 2003 are being meet in the 
vast majority of licensed venues within the CIA's (this is supported by crime stats both locally and 
nationally). The red tape and potential issues surrounding the licensed trade is driving landlords 
away from letting suitable premises to entrepreneurs in favor of retail and office space nether of 
which are in great demand, as a short walk up Park street and Clifton triangle from your office will 
demonstrate through the alarming number of empty shops and office spaces being advertised.  
 
A vibrant and successful nightlife in Bristol will produce jobs, increase tax revenue and provide a safe 
environment for the consumption of alcohol rather than the unregulated house parties that are 
starting to cause real nuisance to residents, something i'm sure you are aware, meets all four of the 
licensing objectives.  
 
I hope my comments prove helpful in informing the councils path forward and I look forward to 
seeing the promotion of responsible nightlife businesses in the future,  
 
Kind regards, 
 
Townhouse RSL Ltd. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 544



 
To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
My name is [Resident] 
My postcode is BS8 XXX 
I am a member of the public and I live and work in Bristol 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the areas of  
 
Whiteladies Road 
City Centre 
Clifton Village 
The reason for this is  since the introduction of the CIA on Whiteladies Road, the area has become 
completely stagnant and dead. The once vibrant street, used to have  2 late nightclubs, and the 
ability to play live music. It also had many bars and clubs which stayed open late.. it is now a dead 
zone , with only a few places left open after 11 such as Miss Millies and Mr Doner. There is nothing 
for young people to do and it’s boring .. they end up hanging around because there is nowhere for 
them to go, and sometimes I would like to go out later than 11.  
Clifton Village is dead.  
Please do not make the City Centre like these areas.. there is no live music, not everyone wants to go 
to the same nightclub or the same chain pub..  people need to be able to go out and choose what 
sort of entertainment they want. 
Bristol benefits hugely from the night time economy from tourism to Bristol citizens.. why do you 
feel it necessary to fill the town centre with soul less flats, with soulless people loving in them that 
complain about the noise.. I suspect this is what all this is about , however,  I don’t understand why 
the council doesn’t  support the venue owners who tirelessly bring revenue to the City . People  go 
out later and you are forcing them to be in bed by 11 with these 1950’s draconian laws.  To 
compensate with the current financial climate, venues are clinging on by staying open later in order 
to survive and they cannot do this under these proposed laws.  
On one hand you say Bristol is a thriving creative city, etc etc .. but these do not allow Bristol citizens 
to be creative .. you are taking away their choice and that of honest venue owners who are trying to 
make a living .. what would happen is everyone closed.. 
Bristol is a 24 hour city, our venues need to be able to operate in a safe way but with extended 
operating hours. 
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times. 
 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 545



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council  
 
I am commenting as a local business owner with a premises license. 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy was difficult to follow with huge 
numbers of pages of policy to read through, despite this I filled it in with my best intentions. 
I would also like to submit my comments for consideration about the licensing policy in regards to 
operating hours and the number of venues needs in the city centre in support of Bristol's nightlife.  
 
Bristol City Centre is a vibrant, and eclectic space to be part of, and having operated a licenced 
premises here for the best part of ten years, I very much see myself staying here for the 
considerable future. 
I don't operate particularly late into the night other than at weekends, and would consider my 
business as a low impact venue in regards to the licensing objectives, and feel I have a decent 
rapport with my local residents.  
 
I have seen growth in the number of people coming to the city centre later in the night, and wanting 
to stay out longer as eating and drinking habits change. Provided there is variety of course. People 
will be encouraged to spend, and stay longer if businesses are given the opportunity to 
accommodate them.  
Allowing longer opening hours, or encouraging new businesses to use currently vacant holdings 
should be seen as a positive for Bristol's nightlife. 
 
Whilst I appreciate restrictions in CIA areas are to primarily minimise the impact of licensed venues 
on local residents, and to minimise the impact some of the larger venues have on Bristol's 
emergency services, I believe Bristol's late night economy should be encouraged and nurtured. 
 
I have visited many cities across the UK, and mainland Europe that efficiently license their late night 
economy, and encourage businesses to thrive. Many allowing 24 hour licences, provided that 
licensing objectives are adhered to. 
 
I understand these policies need to be updated, and they are there to protect residents and the 
overall reputation Bristol must present, but they also need to provide fair opportunities for 
businesses who want to encourage grassroots live music, food, and other ventures for the late night 
scene.  
 
I appreciate your time and your consideration.  
 
Kind regards 
 
 
 
 
-- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 546



 
To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
My name is [Premises Licence Holder] 
My postcode is BS30 XXX 
I am commenting as a local business owner and a premises license holder. 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of or areas of  
Gloucester Road 
Whiteladies Road 
City Centre 
Clifton Village 
Bedminster and Southville – North Street Area 
Bedminster and Southville – Cannon Street Area 
The reason for this is habits have changed and people like to go out at all different times. Some 
people like to go out during the day, some early evening and others may not come out till 10/11pm 
and like to socialise till the early hours. As someone that has worked nights for over 16 years I am 
someone that likes to go out to eat, drink and socialise later in the evening. As someone who works 
in the hospitality trade I also tend to go out during the week a lot as I work weekends. This is when I 
notice the lack of options and how many businesses can not cater to people like myself who would 
want to socialise past 11pm! The Cumulative Impact Zones reduces the amount of choice of venues 
as once a certain number is reached it means other businesses who apply for licences are normally 
refused. Bristol then loses some fantastic new and exciting businesses due to them not being 
granted licences. We end up with the same venues for many years. I have been running a venue for 
over 16 years but I also feel other new exciting businesses should be given the chance to open up as 
well as it adds new life to the area, will increase Bristol’s offering and attract more people to the city 
centre and surrounding areas. I feel the operators of the businesses should be able to decide which 
hours work best for their business. Many will thrive having later licences and some will simply not 
want them due to the offering of their business. These people know what their customers wants and 
should be consulted on any changes. Something a little better than this ridiculously long and hideous 
survey! 
 
Bristol is a 24 hour city and the offering of night time economy venues should reflect this. I am 100% 
in favour of these venues being regulated to ensure they operate safely but I feel the current 
restrictions imposed on certain businesses and areas massively effect businesses which makes 
trading very difficult for them and even results in closure of some businesses. A classic example of 
how this has effected an area is Whiteladies Road. Once a bustling and renown area for people to 
socialise its now ghost town. Very few bars in that area and the ones currently still trading are 
struggling because they can not trade the later hours required to be financially viable. The area not 
having new and exciting businesses opening has also had an effect on the area and it feels very 
outdated and stale. Lessons should be learnt from this to make sure this does not happen to other 
areas that are in these Cumulative Impact Zones. The city centre has lost many venues to student 
housing and offices and I fear that the city centre could become the next victim like Whiteladies 
Road. The night time economy should be embraced and exciting and new businesses encouraged to 
open. 
 
The city centre being in a Cumulative Impact Zone has just moved the nighttime economy to other 
areas like Clifton Village, Gloucester Road and Bedminster. When licences are constantly refused or 

Page 547



un reasonable operating times and conditions are imposed these businesses look for somewhere 
else to operate. The night time economy venues then end up being spread all over the city. People 
have to travel to these venues which causes unnecessary journeys by taxi’s and buses creating 
unnecessary pollution or people walk to different areas to get from venue to venue and when in 
high spirits unintentionally cause noise and anti social behaviour. The city centre has always been 
the place to go for a night out in any big city. No matter where you go in the UK if you what to go 
drinking, dancing or to a restaurant you would always head to a city centre. By capping numbers of 
venues and restricting trading hours this has just moved the nightlife out of the city centre to more 
residential areas which then causes problems. Bristol now has several key areas as listed above 
which are clear hotspots with different offerings so I think these areas should be embraced as night-
time economy areas. All that will happened if these CIZ restrict them too much is move the problems 
to another part of the city and put the established business at risk of closure when certain areas 
then become ghost towns like Whiteladies Road! 
 
The other thing that must be taken into consideration is that when planning is grated for new 
student housing these young people need somewhere to go! The students will want to party and if 
there are not enough bars and clubs in the area for them to do this or they close too early they just 
have their own big parties or illegal raves and free parties. This is totally unregulated, unsafe and 
causing huge problems in residential areas.  
 
Bristol’s night time scene should be embraced not constantly restricted. It’s a huge part of the 
economy, employs thousands of people and also vital to tourism/stag and hen industry that brings a 
lot of revenue to the city for many different businesses.  
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 548



To Carl Knights,  
Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [Resident], postcode BS7 XXX 
I am commenting as a bartender who has lived and worked here for four years.  
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of or areas of: 
 
Gloucester Road 
Whiteladies Road 
City Centre 
Clifton Village 
 
The reason for this is I would like to be able to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night. 
There are no one-size-fits-all solutions to nightlife policy and each venue should be able to set their 
own hours.  
Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. It's 
kind of embarrassing that there are nights when Bristol just stops. For the city to stay relevant and 
retain economically mobile young professionals it's needs to offer world class amenities and here 
licensing is massively falling us with draconian legislation.  
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times. 
 
Having read through the draft of the new licensing policy I have the following comments, labelled by 
relevant section. 
1.14 Consultation is a requirement of the licensing policy and yet minimum effort was made to 
ensure stakeholders were aware of the consultation. Notifications were sent out to out-of-date 
addresses and when the letters were returned no action was taken to ensure the licence holder was 
properly notified. 
When we arrived for the consultation session, we found that we had been assigned an extremely 
small meeting room, suggesting that they expected very few people would come. This suggests an 
intentional lack of effort was put into notifying relevant parties. 
This section states that the policy must be reviewed and a new statement made every five years. As 
discussed in the consultation, five years is too long of a period and the city changes significantly over 
that time. For example, the current CIAs were implemented in 2015. They have now gone far beyond 
their original intent and are now simply negatively impacting businesses. 
2.3 This section used to contain this statement for clarity. 
“The Council’s Scrutiny function plays a key role in keeping the policy under review and exercising 
statutory powers that enable scrutiny members to make recommendations to the full council.” 
Why has this been removed? 
2.6 From the draft: 
“The Act requires the Council to actively seek the views of the following persons upon the proposals 
contained in this policy: 
- The chief officer of police; 
- The Fire and Rescue Authority; 
- The Director of Public Health 
- each Local Health Board 

Page 549



- such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders of premises 
licences, club premises certificates and personal licences issued by that authority; 
- such other persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of businesses and 
residents in Bristol.” 
I would like clarity or a definition of what constitutes an attempt to “actively seek the views” of the 
above parties. Refer back to my comments on section 1.14 and it seems like the lack of definition 
here allows too much leeway for a minimal effort. 
2.8 This section states that the council is able to go beyond minimum statutory requirements 
because “it has actively sought the views of all stakeholders on its proposals”. This is a statement 
written before the fact and is still unclear on what constitutes ‘actively seeking.’ 
Furthermore 
Section 2.9 thanks those who responded referring to appendix A. Appendix A of the 2015 policy 
makes it clear that not enough effort was made to consult stakeholders. It lists only 37 people and 
only two of those are premises licence holders. 
The reason so many stakeholders were not notified based on the current system was due to out of 
date addresses held in the council’s records. This clearly isn’t working so I would like to see new 
systems put in place to allow better future communication. 
6.3.9 This section contains a note stating that it will likely change as a result of the consultation. I 
feel that at this stage amendments should already have been made. Section 6.3.6 states that the 
council will keep cumulative impact assessments under review. The fact that section 6.3, pertaining 
to cumulative impact areas, is almost word for word identical to the 2015 proposal suggests that 
either the assessments were either never reviewed, or that those reviews were completely ignored. 
The descriptions and reasoning behind the current CIAs has literally not been altered at all despite 
two significant factors: 
Each part of the city under a CIA has changed extensively in the last five years. 
The impact of late night entertainment in these areas has since been shown to be the cause of 
either; people returning late from the centre, or people drinking without regulation in private 
residences. This is something the council is aware of as evidenced by new measures being brought in 
to reduce or restrict student house parties. 
 
Kind regards,  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 550



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council, 
 
 
My name is: [Premises Licence Holder] 
My postcode is: BS5 XXX 
I am commenting as:  
Local Business Manager as a Premises license holder. 
 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the areas of Gloucester Road, City Centre (Harbourside, King Street, 
Park Street) 
 
The reason for this is large volume of customers are going out later and there is less choice of 
venues; 
Drinks sales-driven establishments are struggling to survive due to early licensing hours; 
Bristol bars and late night establishments scene is one of the biggest attractions in the city, and the 
variety of the aforementioned is part of what makes Bristol night life so successful; 
Bristol is a 24 hour city, our venues need to be able to operate in a safe way but with extended 
operating hours. 
 
 
 
Kind Regards, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 551



 
Hi Carl, 
 
Hope you are well. 
 
Please find my input into the licensing review.  I have completed the questionnaire online but I 
wanted to send this in addition, specifically with regards to Noise Control and because there is no 
proposed guidance with regards to outdoor events, which I think would be an opportunity missed 
here. 
 
Thoughts below. 
 
 
In the House of Lords case of Rimmington, Lord Rodger said:  
  
“A core element of the crime of public nuisance is that the defendant’s act should affect the 
community, a section of the public, rather than simply individuals. Obvious examples would be the 
release of smoke or fumes which affect a village or neighbourhood or the emission of loud noises 
which disturb the neighbourhood.” 
  
This is a very important statement, the key part of it should lead all decisions where by a clear 
section of the public are affected by a premises, rather than an individual or small group of 
individuals 
  
Point 3.3.4 = The factors that the Council will particularly consider when determining an application 
or undertaking a review include: 
  
I think this is a good opportunity from the licensing committee to put in a caveat to protect licences 
for existing venues that are clearly run well, 
  
For example, it could be worded in addition. 
  
“When undertaking a review for any premises it shall be considered if any changes to the operating 
schedule of the venue have occurred that have brought forwards complaints from local residents.  If, 
it is apparent, that it is the local neighbourhood has changed and it is not the operating schedule of 
the venue that has changed, then weighting of any decision should be given in favour of the existing 
venue and its current licence.   
  
If clear improvements can be suggested to the internal fabric of the building or systems in place for 
ingress and egress of customers then these should take precedence, however restrictions on existing 
operating times, or internal sound levels, should only be considered as a last resort as it is 
understood that such restrictions could have catastrophic effects on the continued existence of the 
venue” 
  
Outdoor Events 
  
There is no guidance here for setting the offsite sound levels for outdoor events.  This is something 
that is very much needed to be considered and would be very helpful. 
 

Page 552



At present it falls upon the BCC Council Teams to recommend noise levels for outdoor licensed 
events and we believe this is unfair weight of responsibility on a small group of hard working 
individuals and would benefit from support written into licensing policy. 
  
There is also confusion as to the clarifications from government Code of Practice as to clarifications 
of what should be classified as ‘Urban Stadia or Arenas’ and what should be classified as ‘Other 
Urban Venue”, as these are recommended different levels of offsite sounds. 
  
Music and Festival Culture has changed a lot since this COP was produced, with Bristol City Council 
themselves designating a lot of park spaces as approved ‘event’ spaces, which we believe in turn 
would mean that should be classified as ‘Urban Stadia or Arenas’.  We also look elsewhere to park or 
greenspace areas in other UK cities that have flexible offside levels.  Good examples are Hyde Park in 
London, with 75db offsite limits, Heaton Park in Manchester with 80db offsite limits and South Park 
in Oxford, with offsite levels of 75db. 
  
We would like to suggest that levels of up to 75db would be considered to be granted as offsite 
levels for outdoor music events, when taken into consideration the maximum times per year an 
event with such levels take place, we suggest a maximum of 6-8 days can be considered, as long as 
such levels finish at 23:00hrs. 
 
 
 
 
Best 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Team Love - Love Saves The Day - Love International 
Glastonbury Silver Hayes and Wow Stage - SimpleThings - The Downs - The Love Inn 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 553



Hi Carl 
 
Pollution Controls comment as follows: 
 
Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy 
 
BCC enforcement of noise issues dealt with by the Council are usually based on individual premises 
causing noise from within their premises rather than specific areas, issues often being down to poor 
management rather than an accumulation of a particular type of premise in an area.   
 
For example, the Pollution Control Team has been involved in assessing the suitability of a number 
of planning applications for licensed premises in the Queens Road/Triangle area in relation to noise 
where the current numbers of licensed premises and noise from them has been raised by residents 
in objections against some premises, particularly pubs/bar. The complaints received by Bristol City 
Council regarding noise in this area do not appear to fully reflect the objections made by residents. 
The Council would not usually investigate complaints of noise or anti-social behaviour from people in 
the street and therefore it may be more suitable for the Police to comment on CIA’s. 
 
Model Operating Schedules 
 
As the Pollution Control Team considers applications on an individual basis on their own merits and 
conditions are only requested where appropriate I feel that the need for Model Operating Schedules 
or template conditions are not worthwhile from a Pollution Control point of view. Nowadays there 
appears to be a propensity for premises to morph between different traditional types of licensed 
premises and I therefore that the Model Operating Schedules are becoming more difficult to apply.  
We do however feel that the Model Operating Schedules could have some use in directing an 
applicant lead process. 
 
Following our recent meeting we would agree that the Pool of Conditions needs reviewing but I 
understand that this is not a priority for this review. 
 
 
Happy to discuss further if needed. 
 
All the best. 
 
Mark 
 
 
Mark Curtis 
Pollution Control Team 
Bristol City Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 554



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [Resident] 
My postcode is BS30 XXX 
 
I am commenting as: 
 
Member of the public 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the areas listed below. 
 
Gloucester Road 
Whiteladies Road 
City Centre 
Clifton Village 
Bedminster and Southville – North Street Area 
Bedminster and Southville – Cannon Street Area 
 
The reason for my email is I would like to be able to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night. 
I would like to have a choice of venues to attend, people of a certain age don’t necessarily want to 
go to rave music venues and I don’t want to spend all my social time in family friendly venues that 
close early. If there were bars and restaurants open later that would be ideal. 
Bristol benefits hugely from the night time economy – I don’t understand why the council don’t 
support the venue owners. 
Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. 
Venues need to stay open later in order for to survive. 
Bristol is a 24 hour city, our venues need to be able to operate in a safe way but with extended 
operating hours. 
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times. 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 555



RE:      LICENSING ACT 2003  - STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY AND CUMULATIVE IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT POLICY REVIEW  
Response – Councillor Clive Stevens, Clifton Down Page | 1 
 
Thank you for inviting me to respond to your consultation.  
  
 
In a crowded city there will inevitably be tensions between the need for a thriving evening economy, 
a successful sector of high street trade and nearby residents needing a good night’s sleep so they 
can go to work and work in safe and effective manner the next morning. Such tensions need to be 
resolved using a fair process, officers to understand the strengths and weaknesses of the statute and 
their own systems and revised policy (regarding cumulative impact areas (CIAs).  
 
Therefore this response is split into four sections. 
 
-The need for more openness and transparency in the licensing system,  
-How to stop the drive towards later and later licenses and  
-Issues in the two CIAs that impact Clifton Down residents 
-Emerging issues: 
 
 
1) The need for more openness and transparency in the licensing system:  
One of the powers within the Licensing Act 2003 is the opportunity to trigger a license review. 
Operators of premises, councillors, residents or indeed anyone can challenge a license and request a 
review.  
 
On the face of it that seems a good democratic check, but in Bristol and maybe nationally, this is not 
how it works out.  
-For residents to be able to challenge a license they need to know that one exists and then what it is. 
None of this is available in an easily accessible manner. It is difficult for us councillors to find out 
often.  
-Secondly when one gets to a review hearing, the public and their elected representatives face a 
biased process. The license holder (often with a solicitor) has access to all the documents: the 
representations from the authorities and the public. But the public and their councillors do not. This 
puts one side at a distinct disadvantage. (Although I wasn’t involved in the old system of magistrates 
court reviews I would have expected them to be like any other court process and that means both 
sides have access to the same evidence). 
 
In summary this lack of access to information creates a bias that needs to be changed please. 
Without change your department will cause more frustration and conflict. 
  
 
2) How to ensure a balance between later and later licenses and sleep times. 
In an area in and near the ward I represent, Clifton Down, owners of premises in areas like the 
Triangle or Cotham Hill are seemingly in a race to try to get a later licence and an advantage over 
their competitors. Such behaviour is quite understandable from an individual business’s standpoint 
trying to maximise profits but such behaviour damages residents’ amenity and confidence in the 
fairness of the licensing system. 
 
Let me explain with a hypothetical example: Imagine all licenses in an area were until midnight. 
There would be a large advantage to any premises getting an 00.30 license. The financial gains are 

Page 556



large, not only the extra 30 minutes of customer spending but many other customers will be 
attracted to it, choosing this establishment over others earlier in the night because this one is open 
until 00.30. I know, I used to do this in my younger days. Once the first premises gets 00.30 then the 
others lose a bit of business and will request 00.30 too. The result is everywhere is open half an hour 
later, each business might be gaining some business but residents are losing amenity (from loss of 
sleep, litter) and the police and council have more costs. There needs to be a way of effectively 
balancing the benefits and harm something additional to go within CIA policy.  
  
One way of stopping such license creep (assuming there is evidence to support it) is for the Licensing 
Authority to set broad policies about closing times in each area. For example it could be that 
licencing principles in The Triangle could be with restaurants open latest until midnight, large bars 
open until 11.30 pm, night clubs until say 3am. I’m not suggesting these  times are correct, I am 
suggesting a new principle. In areas where one of the problems is disturbance of sleep due to noise 
from people leaving the area often all at once then you might even consider giving an advantage to 
smaller premises which turn out forty people on closing and cause little disturbance compared with 
a place with say two hundred places. 
  
Such a policy would bring more certainty to the whole licensing regime and to the retailer’s offer. If 
someone opens a new bar they know they have to make it work with midnight closing instead of 
trying to push the system and add an extra half hour on every few years. 
 
In summary, I am suggesting new principles of opening times presumably possible only within 
Cumulative Impact Areas 
  
 
3) Comments on the two Cumulative Impact Areas CIAs that impact Clifton Down residents.... 
  
3.1 Whiteladies Road CIA - The CIA objective at the moment is to prevent encroachment on normal 
sleeping times. This has generally worked but is closing is getting later and later. There is also a 
legacy problem, for example there is a premises with a valid night club license until 4am, it is 
currently a 24/7 gym but if it reverted to a night club it would again cause immense harm through 
physical and mental ill health to some residents living around Cotham Hill, Hampton Park, Imperial 
Road, Whatley Road and surrounds.  
  
There are now so many alcohol outlets, offering effectively the same product and thus competing on 
price that I would suggest that adding the principle from Clifton’s CIA objective (the need to offer 
something distinctive) would improve the situation. Night time disturbance can mean that families 
are being discouraged from living in and around this CIA due to the nature of the retail offer and the 
noise from the street even at midnight. That is leading to an unbalanced community. 
  
Litter is a problem too because there are so many food establishments and takeaways. Litter and 
refuse from the venues themselves; there isn’t enough street space for all the commercial bins, 
especially now as the emerging Local Plan is allocating Hampton Lane for housing. This is where 
many of the commercial waste bins are currently stored. Pittville Place is usually in an appalling state 
with very poor refuse control. Additionally Whiteladies Rd bus stop (South bound) is often occupied 
by more bins than bus passengers. 
  
Residents are still kept awake well past midnight. The CIA objective talks about not encroaching into 
normal sleeping hours. It depends what you mean by “normal sleeping times” for small children, 
those doing exams and older people.  
  

Page 557



I think if a place opened that was offering something genuinely different and clearly wasn’t going to 
cause a disturbance when people left and walked up residential streets then it would be understood 
and perhaps even welcomed. So we request an addition of the CIA clause to include; ”to get a 
license, the premises need to offer something new and distinctive.” 
  
3.2 Clifton CIA - A small part of this is in Clifton Down ward. The main complaint from our residents 
is large groups of people making a noise late at night as they walk back to Halls or housing leaving a 
venue (or venues) often in The Triangle and all leaving at about the same time. Many complaints are 
aimed at a large bar to the North of this area which is masquerading as a restaurant (Planning 
enforcement currently investigating). Richmond Hill seems to get the worst of it but other roads 
also. Residents are regularly woken at 2am, 3am or 4am even.  
  
 
4. Emerging issues 
Finally, I appreciate this topic isn’t licensing yet but it is beginning to be reported that noise and litter 
issues also apply to some Airbnb residencies where a “large party group” will stay the weekend and 
make a lot of noise having first partied the evening away on the Triangle. They then continue in the 
house or flat. It adds to the cumulative disturbance and a lot of litter as they often don’t put the 
waste out for collection.  
 
Also some student parties should be licensed I’m sure, selling tickets in advance, bought in DJs and 
bouncers.  
  
 
 
Thank you for your time in reading this. I am happy for this whole statement to be published  
 
 
- Councillor Clive Stevens (Clifton Down ward) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 558



To Carl Knights,  
Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [Resident] 
My postcode is BS2 XXX.  
I am commenting as a local business manager as a non premises license holder. 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of or areas of:  
Gloucester Road 
Whiteladies Road 
City Centre 
Clifton Village 
The reasons for this is: 
Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. 
Bristol is a 24 hour city, our venues need to be able to operate in a safe way but with extended 
operating hours. 
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times. 
 
Best regards, 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 559



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [Resident/Worker] 
My postcode is bs15 XXX 
 
I am commenting as: 
 
A Bristol worker 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of o Gloucester Road Whiteladies Road City Centre Clifton 
Village Bedminster and Southville – North Street Area Bedminster and Southville – Cannon Street 
Area 
 
The reason for this is I feel Bristol nightlife has become quite sterile and boring. 
I would like to be able to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night. 
I would like to have a choice of venues to attend, people of a certain age don’t necessarily want to 
go to rave music venues. If there were bars and restaurants open later that would be ideal. 
Bristol benefits hugely from the night time economy – I don’t understand why the council don’t 
support the venue owners. 
Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. 
Venues need to stay open later in order for to survive. 
Bristol is a 24 hour city or at least it used to be. our venues need to be able to operate in a safe way 
but with extended operating hours. 
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times. 
 
Best regards, 
 
from my iPhone 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 560



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [Resident] 
My postcode is bs8 XXX 
 
I am commenting as: 
 
A member of the public 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of o Gloucester Road Whiteladies Road City Centre Clifton 
Village Bedminster and Southville – North Street Area Bedminster and Southville – Cannon Street 
Area 
 
The reason for this is I feel Bristol nightlife has become quite sterile and boring. 
I would like to be able to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night. 
I would like to have a choice of venues to attend, people of a certain age don’t necessarily want to 
go to rave music venues. If there were bars and restaurants open later that would be ideal. 
Bristol benefits hugely from the night time economy – I don’t understand why the council don’t 
support the venue owners. 
Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. 
Venues need to stay open later in order for to survive. 
Bristol is a 24 hour city or at least it used to be. our venues need to be able to operate in a safe way 
but with extended operating hours. 
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times. 
 
Best regards, 
 
 from my iPhone 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 561



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [Resident] 
My postcode is bs15 XXX 
 
I am commenting as: 
 
A member of the public 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of o Gloucester Road Whiteladies Road City Centre Clifton 
Village Bedminster and Southville – North Street Area Bedminster and Southville – Cannon Street 
Area 
 
The reason for this is I feel Bristol nightlife has become quite sterile and boring. 
I would like to be able to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night. 
I would like to have a choice of venues to attend, people of a certain age don’t necessarily want to 
go to rave music venues. If there were bars and restaurants open later that would be ideal. 
Bristol benefits hugely from the night time economy – I don’t understand why the council don’t 
support the venue owners. 
Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. 
Venues need to stay open later in order for to survive. 
Bristol is a 24 hour city or at least it used to be. our venues need to be able to operate in a safe way 
but with extended operating hours. 
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times. 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 562



To Carl Knights,  
Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
My name is: [Business owner] 
 
My postcode is: BS2 XXX  
I am commenting as a local business owner. 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of or areas of 
Gloucester Road 
Whiteladies Road 
City Centre 
Clifton Village 
Bedminster and Southville – North Street Area 
Bedminster and Southville – Cannon Street Area 
The reasons for this are as follows: 
 
With the dissolution of public spaces we need pubs and bars to enhance our communities by giving 
spaces people can meet. Many people work transient jobs late into the night and need places to 
wind down with colleagues and friends.  
Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. 
Venues need to stay open later in order for to survive. Bristol is a 24 hour city, our venues need to 
be able to operate in a safe way but with extended operating hours. 
On top of this, Bristol benefits hugely from the night time economy – I don’t understand why the 
council don’t support the venue owners. 
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times. 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 563



Dear Sir/ Madam, 
 
I have commented on this today. I live in the centre- want a good night time scene- but one that is 
proportionate and safe. It isn't at the moment. 
 
My main comments- some of which were difficult to place were/ are: 
 
1. Individual licensing can only have a marginal impact- there needs to be a Centre/ City wide 
policy on opening hours and safety. Not just a maximum- as in the CIZs 
2. The City needs a clearer strategy on what it wants at night. Not just late opening clubs- but 
more of a mix, family and tourist friendly. It's not enough to say it values the night time economy- 
we need to define what we want and where. 
3. It needs to recognise that the scene at the moment very late is dangerous and unappealing. 
4. It is dangerously under policed and very unsafe. It could still work late- if properly policed in 
all kinds of ways. Wardens, door supervisors, street chaplains etc etc 
5. The night time scene and city centre need to be actively managed- including involving the 
many thousands of residents and ordinary businesses. Maybe use the BID more? 
6. The major problem is groups of very drunk people very late out side and between venues. 
Open until 6am on Park Street- REALLY!!! Bound to cause trouble! 
 
This is now a really big issue because of the increasing number of City centre residents, all those 
students and the high level of crime.  
 
It needs a proper review of where we want to be- not just of licensing- which should serve and 
follow that. And actively managed with wide engagement.( not just weakly enforced) 
 
The Centres great most of the time. 
 
Best wishes 
 
 
Resident 
Chair of Age UK Bristol and BAB 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 564



Good afternoon Carl 
 
I hope this email finds you remarkably well  
 
I have laid out below a submission on the Licensing Policy on behalf of the City Centre & Broadmead 
BIDs and their levy payers 
 
In the introduction of the policy there is little/ no recognition of the progress that Bristol has made in 
making food a reason to visit and of the importance of that industry sector in the night time licensed 
economy. The recent accolades and awards that have been hard earned by the city and its businesses 
should be recognised and applauded, this is not least because they have helped to change the 
character and feel of a number of the city centre areas e.g. Harbourside and Old City (as well as 
Stokes Croft) by the granting of appropriately conditioned licences under the existing Licensing policy. 
 
The purpose and aim of the Licensing Policy should include: 
 

the encouragement of a wide diversity of licensed premises appealing to the needs of all 
those who live work study and spend leisure time in our fine city. 
                recognition of the need for a strong partnership of all those involved in the leisure and 
entertainment sector to ensure that Bristol remains a safe and welcoming city  
 
There has been discussion over many years as to the benefits of a night-time vision for the city 
centre. That clarity of purpose from the city as to what it sees as its desire for the night-time 
economy is still sorely needed and should be developed alongside this policy. 
 
The purpose of this policy should be to develop Bristol as a centre of leisure and entertainment 
excellence. As it stands it is ‘for the council’ it could easily be more ambitious and lay out Bristol’s 
aspirations as, for example the ‘City of Music and Food’. That would lay the basis for both businesses 
and the public to measure the city’s (and this policy’s) success. 
 
The policy should be simple to use and accessible to both businesses and residents, currently it is 
really wordy and could easily be made more comprehensible and easy to read. 
 
The City Centre CIA as currently drafted is in dire need of review. It was set in place when the city 
centre was a very different place and had a significantly different offer to that which is currently 
available. Specific examples would be the changes to operators and venues within the Old City and 
the Harbourside the vertical drinking venues that proliferated in those areas have now all but gone as 
has the need for the Cumulative Impact areas for these sections of the city centre. The majority of 
venues in these areas are now more focused on food and drink or primarily food offers, other 
premises have ceased to be licensed premises and the area is no longer ‘at saturation point’.  
 
The Broadmead and Cabot Circus have also altered significantly and the CIA now simply stymies 
development and changes with in the city centre. There may be specific areas of the city centre in 
which a CIA is required but that must be justified by relevant and targeted crime and disorder data.  
 
In considering the police crime and disorder data there should be consideration should be given to 
the experience of venues and others present in the city centre -  that experience is that evening and 
night-time policing has reduced significantly. This is especially so in the visibility of officers patrolling 
on foot to deter and respond immediately to crime and disorder incidents. There is a clear 
assumption to be drawn that crime and disorder has reduced significantly to justify such a reduction 
and that officers have been deployed to areas of greater concern. The City Centre BID has 

Page 565



Safeguarding Marshals patrolling from midnight to 5 a.m. and their data continually indicates that 
the police are now rarely present on foot and are responding to incidents by vehicle presumably from 
further afield. 
 
As the city centre continues to change, and developments are planned in both the Broadmead 
(Callowhill Court) and Nelson Street (NatWest Court) significant benefits could accrue to the city 
centre and the wider city. Mixed developments such as these help to build and improve the character 
of the city centre. Currently both these are within the city centre CIA which carries the presumption 
there can be no new licensed premises. 
 
The inappropriate application of such a Cumulative Impact Policy is likely to prevent or reduce these 
benefits by stopping the addition of well located additional licensed premises that animate streets 
and areas and add to safety whilst also further adding to the diversity and range of offer that is 
available to residents and visitors alike. 
 
My experience of Bristol’s Licensing Committees is that they are capable of making effective and 
sound judgements without the need for ill-defined and outdated CIAs, they should be permitted to do 
so..  
 
There is adequate provision within the Licensing Act for the density of premises to be a consideration 
in determining applications and Licensing Committees have made such judgements outside of the 
specified CIAs. Applications should be considered primarily on the benefits it brings to the area in 
which it operates.   
 
Finally, the Licensing Policy must set expectations that assist in the promotion of the Licensing 
objectives. For example there should be a clear timescale for the issue of licences and amendments to 
licences. Operators should not be expected to wait months for the issue of a licence under which they 
are expected to operate – the expectation should be that licences are issued to operators and 
Responsible Authorities within one month of decision.  
 
Best wishes 
 
Keith 
 

Keith Rundle 

Operations Director 

 

Website: bristolcitycentrebid.co.uk 

Twitter: @briscentrebid  
 

First Floor, 8, Unity Street, Bristol BS1 5HH 

 

 

—————————————————————————— 

 

Page 566

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__bristolcitycentrebid.co.uk_&d=DwMFAg&c=1vnCWTgU_iH2bgveKnHUZ8hJXVq2EkkiN8FwZDwwznM&r=0DA0CydvvaQDJNOi4WKINRrMlNIveruu55IWQVdy51k&m=r0Ofo5ELQ17tVxCCSTw2feRui0IDmxgiEg0PkCpiBm4&s=c8S8D0189FMBmdFcu3S_jlKpzgnza40tbb3uff4pJBo&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__twitter.com_BrisCentreBID_&d=DwMFAg&c=1vnCWTgU_iH2bgveKnHUZ8hJXVq2EkkiN8FwZDwwznM&r=0DA0CydvvaQDJNOi4WKINRrMlNIveruu55IWQVdy51k&m=r0Ofo5ELQ17tVxCCSTw2feRui0IDmxgiEg0PkCpiBm4&s=hDvsku6Xmbu0-Z5KClOUI9meigpQ0e-1drAJrYOxCvM&e=


We’ve just published our latest annual report. Read it here. 

 

——————————————————————————— 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 567

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__issuu.com_bristolcitycentrebid_docs_bid-5Fannualreport18-5F19-5Fsinglepage-5Fdigital-5F6.0&d=DwMFAg&c=1vnCWTgU_iH2bgveKnHUZ8hJXVq2EkkiN8FwZDwwznM&r=0DA0CydvvaQDJNOi4WKINRrMlNIveruu55IWQVdy51k&m=r0Ofo5ELQ17tVxCCSTw2feRui0IDmxgiEg0PkCpiBm4&s=HaQZygaL9a93nqevey7DRzgroraZ7Mm5340ubN1h_mE&e=


To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [resident/business owner]. My postcode is BS8. I am commenting as: a local business 
owner or manager as a non premises license holder. 
Having read through the draft of the new licensing policy I have the following comments, labelled by 
relevant section. 
 
1.14 Consultation is a requirement of the licensing policy and yet minimum effort was made to 
ensure stakeholders were aware of the consultation. Notifications were sent out to out-of-date 
addresses and when the letters were returned no action was taken to ensure the licence holder was 
properly notified.  
When we arrived for the consultation session, we found that we had been assigned an extremely 
small meeting room, suggesting that they expected very few people would come. This suggests an 
intentional lack of effort was put into notifying relevant parties. 
 
This section states that the policy must be reviewed and a new statement made every five years. As 
discussed in the consultation, five years is too long of a period and the city changes significantly over 
that time. For example, the current CIAs were implemented in 2015. They have now gone far beyond 
their original intent and are now simply negatively impacting businesses. 
 
2.3 This section used to contain this statement for clarity. 
“The Council’s Scrutiny function plays a key role in keeping the policy under review and exercising 
statutory powers that enable scrutiny members to make recommendations to the full council.”  
Why has this been removed? 
 
2.6 From the draft: 
“The Act requires the Council to actively seek the views of the following persons upon the proposals 
contained in this policy:  
- The chief officer of police;  
- The Fire and Rescue Authority; 
- The Director of Public Health  
- each Local Health Board  
- such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders of premises 
licences, club premises certificates and personal licences issued by that authority;  
- such other persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of businesses and 
residents in Bristol.” 
I would like clarity or a definition of what constitutes an attempt to “actively seek the views” of the 
above parties. Refer back to my comments on section 1.14 and it seems like the lack of definition 
here allows too much leeway for a minimal effort. 
 
2.8 This section states that the council is able to go beyond minimum statutory requirements 
because “it has actively sought the views of all stakeholders on its proposals”. This is a statement 
written before the fact and is still unclear on what constitutes ‘actively seeking.’ 
 
Furthermore 
Section 2.9 thanks those who responded referring to appendix A. Appendix A of the 2015 policy 
makes it clear that not enough effort was made to consult stakeholders. It lists only 37 people and 
only two of those are premises licence holders. 
 

Page 568



The reason so many stakeholders were not notified based on the current system was due to out of 
date addresses held in the council’s records. This clearly isn’t working so I would like to see new 
systems put in place to allow better future communication. 
 
6.3.9 This section contains a note stating that it will likely change as a result of the consultation. I 
feel that at this stage amendments should already have been made. Section 6.3.6 states that the 
council will keep cumulative impact assessments under review. The fact that section 6.3, pertaining 
to cumulative impact areas, is almost word for word identical to the 2015 proposal suggests that 
either the assessments were either never reviewed, or that those reviews were completely ignored. 
 
The descriptions and reasoning behind the current CIAs has literally not been altered at all despite 
two significant factors: 
1. Each part of the city under a CIA has changed extensively in the last five years. 
2. The impact of late night entertainment in these areas has since been shown to be the cause 
of either; people returning late from the centre, or people drinking without regulation in private 
residences. This is something the council is aware of as evidenced by new measures being brought in 
to reduce or restrict student house parties. 
Kind Regards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 569



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
My name is [Resident], my home postcode is BS3 XXX, though I also work in the city centre (BS1 
XXX) 
I am commenting as a worker in Bristol and manager as a non premises license holder. 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through an d it becomes rather confusing, even to 
someone that works in the hospitality industry. 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the areas of Gloucester Road, Whiteladies Road, City Centre and 
Bedminster and Southville – North Street Area. 
 
The reason for this is that I would like to be able to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night. 
Working in the hospitality industry I often find myself socialising with colleagues later in the evening 
due to when we finish work. It's great that we currently have a choice of venues, albeit a small 
choice, rather than a very low number being open at certain times. 
Furthermore, I believe the proposed review would negatively impact not only the business that I 
work for but businesses owned and operated by my peers who depend on having a later license. 
Warm regards, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 570



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [Resident] 
 
My postcode is BS7 XXX 
 
I am commenting as: Member of the public. 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of or areas of: 
 
Gloucester Road 
 
Whiteladies Road 
 
City Centre 
 
Clifton Village 
 
Bedminster and Southville – North Street Area 
 
Bedminster and Southville – Cannon Street Area 
 
The reason for this is: 
I would like to be able to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night. 
 
I would like to have a choice of venues to attend, people of a certain age don’t necessarily want to 
go to rave music venues. If there were bars and restaurants open later that would be ideal. 
 
Bristol benefits hugely from the night time economy – I don’t understand why the council don’t 
support the venue owners. 
 
Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. 
 
Venues need to stay open later in order for to survive. 
 
Bristol is a 24 hour city, our venues need to be able to operate in a safe way but with extended 
operating hours. 
 
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times. 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 571



Here are some points that we would like to see considered. 
(A) Climate change: 
The Council's low-emission targets would be far easier to achieve 
if the people of Bristol were out and about in daylight hours 
and asleep at night. Current licensed hours encourage the opposite 
behaviour. We need to return to earlier closing for pubs and 
far earlier closing for nightclubs, especially before weekdays. 
The current student model in our neighbourhood of preloading 
at home, then not heading out to the nightclub until about 
11 pm is bad for the environment and energy use (and also 
disastrous for neighbours, and probably bad for the students 
themselves). 
(B) Night-time alcohol delivery: 
Surely we need a blanket ban on this. A good percentage of 
Bristol's population live in flats, so the likelihood of 
disturbance of neighbours is very high. And the majority 
of people using such services are surely vulnerable 
individuals---either alcohol addicts or people whose 
judgment is impaired by having had too much alcohol already. 
An ethical decision would be to save these people from 
themselves by removing this temptation. 
(C) Flyers and flyposting: 
Time to get a legal ruling that flyers and flyposting 
relating to particular clubs can be assumed to be the 
responsibility of that club. Our neighbourhood is often 
littered with such material from Propaganda and the Blue 
Mountain Club, but we are told they cannot be fined for 
this as the Council cannot prove that they are the culprits. 
This is ridiculous. 
(D) Noise limits: 
Noise limits on extraction systems, music etc need to 
be absolute, not relative (to background, say)---or it 
is just a building cycle for each new noise nuisance. 
Also the rules need setting such that they can be checked 
in the street (rather than via highly intrusive and 
disruptive late-night access to people's bedrooms). 
(E) Lapsing of moribund licences: 
The very late opening of Dorma Nightclub gave rise to 
appalling strain for many in our neighbourhood. The club 
went into receivership and the premises has become a gym. 
But, apparently, the owners retain the licence, so we 
live in fear of a return to the stress and disruption 
of the nightclub. Surely, some release from this pressure 
is appropriate: couldn't licences automatically lapse if 
not used for a given period of time? 
(F) Several clubs in an area: 
Round The Triangle, for example, there is a problem in 
challenging licensed premises as regards noise because of 
the difficulty of pinning down an individual culprit. 
It looked like the EMRO legislation should have led to 
a route for dealing with this, but it proved not fit 

Page 572



for purpose. A replacement is urgently needed, in order 
that clearly outrageous/misguided licensing decisions affecting 
residential areas can be challenged as a group, and without 
having to go via the notoriously lenient and business-biased 
magistrates courts. 
(G) Agent of change: 
The `Agent of Change' legislation, which was developed to 
protect established music venues from being closed following 
new residential property being built near them, should also 
apply in reverse: new licensed venues should not be allowed 
near established residential property. This is particularly 
important now that (following changes to legislation) an 
alcohol licence carries with it a right to host music performances. 
(H) New licensing objective: 
There is a constant tension between people's `freedom' to party 
all night and people's `freedom' to sleep during normal sleeping 
hours of, say, 11 pm to 8 am. It needs to be made clear in 
licensing law that the latter `freedom' is by far the more 
essential, especially now that it is so evident that loss of sleep 
is a factor in so many serious medical issues---diabetes, heart 
disease and Alzheimer's, for example. We suggest adding a new 
licensing objective: `To protect residents living within 2 km 
of the premises from sleep disturbance between 10 pm and 8 pm 
from Sunday night to Thursday night and between 11 pm and 9 pm 
on Friday night and Saturday night.' 
  
From: 
Bristol BS6 XXX 
 
[Resident x 4] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 573



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [Resident] 
My postcode is bs15 XXX 
 
I am commenting as: 
 
As a bristol worker  
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for the area of o Gloucester Road Whiteladies Road City Centre Clifton 
Village Bedminster and Southville – North Street Area Bedminster and Southville – Cannon Street 
Area 
 
The reason for this is I feel Bristol nightlife has become quite sterile and boring. 
I would like to be able to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night. 
I would like to have a choice of venues to attend, people of a certain age don’t necessarily want to 
go to rave music venues. If there were bars and restaurants open later that would be ideal. 
Bristol benefits hugely from the night time economy – I don’t understand why the council don’t 
support the venue owners. 
Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. 
Venues need to stay open later in order for to survive. 
Bristol is a 24 hour city or at least it used to be. our venues need to be able to operate in a safe way 
but with extended operating hours. 
It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at certain 
times. 
 
Best regards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 574



 
Dear both, 
 
Piers Warne in my team will be responsible for collating the formal TLT response to the statement of 
licensing policy revisions, as currently being consulted upon. These are to be treated as my 
comments and if you will, a personal response. But having been a licensing solicitor practising in the 
city and nationally for the best part of twenty years I hope they have some value and credibility. 
 
Model pool of conditions 
 
Whilst we understand that for premises that are not late night entertainment venues, the authority is 
looking to remove the presumption (if I can use that phrase) that a raft of standardised conditions are 
appropriate to attach to applications/licences of particular types, for late night entertainment venues 
although there are revisions to some of the detail, there seems to be a presumption that 90 odd 
conditions is an appropriate starting place, so as to ensure that the licensing objectives are fairly 
promoted. 
 
I am bound to observe that Bristol, it seems to me, is almost unique across England and Wales in 
adopting that approach. It may help if I explain in a little more detail why it is not our view that that is 
an appropriate nor legitimate basis on which to consider and/or grant premises licences. Of whichever 
type or categorisation. 
 
Light Touch Legislation 
 
This legislation was heralded as being “light touch”. The starting point for licence premises, surely, is 
that there are to be no conditions imposed on a premises licence, unless they are seen to be 
appropriate (necessary as was) by the licensing authority. 
 
Therefore, it is perfectly legitimate for a premises licence holder to submit an application for a new 
licence, or a variation, and propose no conditions or perhaps in the case of a variation application no 
new conditions.  
 
But, of course they then risk the receipt of representations that may challenge the applicant to show 
why it is fairly said that no conditions are required, in lieu of an extension or the grant of a licence. 
And absent a cogent answer, an application risks being refused or only part granted, in those 
circumstances.  
 
Additionally it strikes me that it is perfectly legitimate for licensing authorities to indicate that for certain 
types of activity, certain types of conditions are if not “recommended”, then propositioned as the 
means by which an applicant can fairly balance an application for perhaps extended hours or 
extended licensable activities, so as to adequately demonstrate that they are going to promote the 
licensing objectives.  
 
But the current template which seems to be the basis on which the authority is currently consulting, 
suggests that “these measures are not only necessary to ensure public safety but also to prevent 
crime and disorder.” That indicates, and to my mind the remainder of all of the template 1 indicates, 
that all late night entertainment venues are being treated as likely “suffering” from the same problems 
and therefore necessitating the same conditionality. 
 
This is the point at which it strikes me that the policy and perhaps the consultation is flawed.  
 
Each Application on it individual merits 
 
It is an absolute fundamental of premises licensing that each application could and should be 
considered on its individual merits. A premises conducting late night entertainment might be a small 
prohibition style bar perhaps with a dance floor for a dozen, with or without a DJ. And it might equally 
be a 2,000 capacity nightclub operating through until the early hours of the morning with extensive live 
and recorded music.  
 

Page 575



90 odd conditions where as an example CCTV is simply presumed to be an integral part of any crime 
and disorder management plan, where smoking areas are to be monitored by door staff, where glass 
is a prohibited near dance floor seems to miss that fundamental point.  
 
Excessive protectionism 
 
Two additional points stand out. Picking up on the idea of excluding glass from dance floors within all 
premises that have such seems to me to impose a nanny sate approach to the management of 
licenced premises. What is the evidence or where are the statistics that suggest that this is an 
appropriate condition for all late night entertainment licenced premises in the city? Someone, once, 
cutting themselves on a broken glass, having taken their shoes off to dance, is not the legitimate 
basis on which all glass should be banned from dancefloor areas. Conceivable risk is not the same as 
proportionate, balanced, reasonable precautions. 
 
The question to be asked, is not, "why would you object to such a protection?", the question is rather, 
"is this appropriate and necessary in an the circumstances, based on the evidence and the 
application?" 
 
Onus and obligation should not be imposed on the Licence Holder. 
 
Similarly it has long been a theme in Bristol that the child protection services submit, I would venture 
to suggest as standard, a request for challenge 25 to be introduced as a proof of age scheme. Many 
of our clients have accepted that condition not because it is a legitimate, appropriate, balanced or 
reasonable condition commensurate with the operation in question, but because they simply cannot 
afford to instruct solicitors to contest  such a condition before a licensing committee.  
 
This "policy", again risks falling into the fair categorisation of a nanny state request.  
 
That some youngsters access alcohol in late night entertainment venues is, of course, beyond 
challenge. But does that mean that every single premises in the entire city that makes an application 
for a new licence or a variation needs to have a challenge 25 policy imposed upon it? With all due 
respect, such an approach appears to be hostile to business and hostile to licence applicants.  
 
If the nature, type and style of the application fairly considered following submission and perhaps 
considering the history of the operation merits it, then of course one is respectful of the request. But it 
could not and should not be approached as blanket policy, as a number of these extensive (standard) 
conditions appear to be.  
 
Culture 
 
Part of the unique attraction of Bristol is that it has a thriving, interesting, independent and 
entrepreneurial air that is reflected in its people and its licence premises.  
 
A generic standardised approach, seeking to manage away every conceivable risk, without fair regard 
to the individual circumstances of the individual matter, that homogenises and normalises ubiquity, 
does not fairly reflect the city and its culture. I would invite you to reflect on whether that is an 
approach that the authority could and/or should continue with across the next several years. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
Matthew Phipps 
Partner 
Head of Licensing England and Wales 
for TLT LLP 
www.TLTsolicitors.com  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 576

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.TLTsolicitors.com&d=DwMGaQ&c=1vnCWTgU_iH2bgveKnHUZ8hJXVq2EkkiN8FwZDwwznM&r=0DA0CydvvaQDJNOi4WKINRrMlNIveruu55IWQVdy51k&m=87472SrPy67QyDSQO6jVHenGfT_ul7Yy3sTHBkGXUTQ&s=0du7EQJXxlXFlIMM65V1KSwAfA719px2jXVurD1BSOU&e=


To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
 
My name is [Resident], my postcode is BS1 XXX 
 
I am commenting as a worker and resident in Bristol 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete with 
huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards to operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed in the city centre area. 
 
There are many reasons for this, I would like to have more options personally in terms of what is 
available, and I hear that from the customers I work with. In regards to opening hours, I think it's best 
to let the market self regulate opening hours, and let the council regulate how to operate within the 
opening hours.  
 
Also speaking as a worker, the work provided by the night life industry is great for workers, as it 
allows many people to have flexible work that they can balance around their personal needs, many of 
my co workers work the occasional late night shift to help with saving towards houses and flats, it also 
provides flexibility to parents that would struggle to get that from your average job.  
 
I believe relaxing the policy around opening hours and venue limits would indirectly benefit the Bristol 
economy as a whole, as the more people we can cater to; the more likely people are to view Bristol as 
a good destination, our customers are also providing business for the larger economy.  
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 577



To Carl Knights, 
Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 
  
Dear Sir 
My name is [Resident] and I live and work in central Bristol ( my postcode is BS1 XXX) 
  
I am commenting as I have been a General Manager of several bars, restaurants and nightclubs in 
central Bristol since 1999. I have seen the city change, develop and thrive in that time. 
 
The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 
with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 
I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number of 
venues needs to be relaxed for all the areas mentioned, but specifically central Bristol, although 
Clifton and Gloucester Road are close to my heart and I have recently moved in closer proximity to 
Bedminster. 
  
I know a lot of people who work in the industry and hence rely on this for their livelyhoods. 
  
Not only are we passionate about what we do, but we like to live and work in a safe and welcoming 
environment. 
 
We work unsociable hours and like everyone else like to have places we can go to unwind, but find 
the choices limited by these hours. 
  
In the twenty years I have been here, I have seen a number of venues open, change, close and it is 
testament to the uncertain times we live in. Many businesses rely on their opening hours for thier 
survival 
  
Not only is it a shame that certain venues have gone by the wayside, but it limits the choice and 
diversity of this city. 
  
I also believe that fewer venues will lead to more people being crammed in to venues which increses 
flashpoints for anti social behaviour. 
  
for us in the trade it would be great to have a variety of venues and times to choose from to fit in 
with our lives which we do to serve the general public. 
  
With Bristol being a cosmopolitan city, I think it only right that our nightlife diversity reflects this. 
  
Regards 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 578



 
To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 

My name is Eoin Fenton, my postcode is BS6 XXX. 

I am writing to you as a concerned party on two fronts; One; as the Head of Marketing at Lakota 

Bristol, 

Two; an avid fan of the nightlife industry in Bristol as a punter and DJ.  

The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to complete 

with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 

I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and number 

of venues needs to be relaxed for the areas of  

Gloucester Road 

City Centre 

Bedminster  

The reason for this is whilst Lakota is very fortunate to have a ~24 hour license for music and bar 

sales, other venues are restricted in what they can do. With the eventual closure of Lakota, Blue 

Mountain and (hopefully not) Motion/Marble Factory, the city is in desperate need of relaxed 

licensing policies.  

Bristol is a cultural hotspot with a vibrant cultural history for music and arts (from film, theatre, 

food and beyond). With the number of students being welcomed to this beautiful city I'm now 

proud to call home alongside an influx from elsewhere, the nightlife industry stands to better itself 

year on year. Areas such as Gloucester Road and the city centre come alive in the evening and 

night time 7 days a week for all manner of people, why should venues who hire within the local 

economy, bringing locals and visitors alike together spending in their establishments and 

elsewhere in the city - creating that coveted multiplier effect with choices on a night out, such as 

moving to different bars and clubs, using a taxi and getting food becoming the standard for those 

going out - be penalised with restricted opening hours, thus reducing their revenue and in turn 

their ability to survive what is an increasingly difficult economy to operate in? You are essentially 

in control of how successful Bristol's nightlife industry can become and by working together on 

this, we truly can implement change for the better.  

 

 

 

 

Page 579

https://democracy.bristol.gov.uk/documents/s11240/lakota%20transfer%20part%20a%20AH%2021.12.16.pdf


 
 

FOR THE URGENT ATTENTION OF:    

 

 

 

Page 580



Page 581



To Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer, Bristol City Council 

My name is Glen Dawkins of XXXX  

I am commenting as a local business owner and premises license holder with multiple venues 

in Bristol. 

The survey on your website for the consultation on licensing policy is extremely hard to 

complete with huge numbers of pages of policy to read through. 

I would like to submit my comments that licensing policy in regards operating hours and 

number of venues needs to be relaxed for the area of or areas of:  

Whiteladies Road 

City Centre 

Clifton Village 

The reason for this is:- 

 Consumers would like to be able to go out and eat, drink and socialise later at night. 
 People of a certain age don’t necessarily want to go to rave music venues. If there were bars 

and restaurants open later that would be ideal. 
 Bristol benefits hugely from the night time economy – I don’t understand why the council 

don’t support the venue owners. 

 

Habits have changed, people are going out later and there is less choice of venues these days. 

Venues need to stay open later in order for to survive. Bristol is a 24 hour city, our venues 

need to be able to operate in a safe way but with extended operating hours. 

It would be great to have a choice of venues rather than a very low number being open at 

certain times. 

Best regards, 

Glen Dawkins 

 

Dawkins Ales 

www.dawkinsales.com 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 582

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.dawkinsales.com_&d=DwMFaQ&c=1vnCWTgU_iH2bgveKnHUZ8hJXVq2EkkiN8FwZDwwznM&r=ULINFOGW7dOfu1afDpmHRGlX4JuORgm8QDnM0FczV4c&m=KYnkl6IbiJoV9xbwRaLVEpjsR6kZfgyt3oAacNj1Cj4&s=HE9HInDItWDmH22lc7ckjnQd0qBMGatL6IP5mNELBY8&e=


Licensing Policy Review – comments from City Centre Development 

perspective 

In common with many other city centres across the UK, Bristol City Centre needs to 

adapt to rapid changes being experienced in the retail and leisure sectors.  Whilst 

there is a decline in the demand for retail space, there is a growing demand for 

entertainment and leisure spaces as people demand experiences.   

The Shape of Retail – Assessing the role of physical space in the UK Retail industry 

states ‘Based on current market forecasts, Retail Economics estimates that there is 

overcapacity of between 15-20% of retail space for multiple retailers in the UK, and 

the subsequent adjustment in the industry will occur over the next 10 years to reach 

a steady state. …….The rise of independent retailers and an explosion of 

entertainment services and leisure outlets will be most notable over the next 

decade.’ 

Our current Cumulative Impact Area approach in the city centre is too restrictive by 

limiting additional licensed premises and is at odds with our planning policy, which is 

flexible and allows for a different mix of uses.  The Bristol Central Area Plan 

(adopted 2015) states ‘The Primary Shopping Frontages of Bristol Shopping Quarter 

are characterised by their particularly strong and consistent retail character. Policies 

BCAP13, BCAP36 and this policy aim to maintain that retail strength. However, the 

introduction of some appropriately located cafés, restaurants, pubs and bars would 

be appropriate where they would help to complement the retail offer and visitor 

experience, support and encourage longer shopping trips and generate continued 

activity outside normal shopping hours. Planning conditions may be used to restrict 

subsequent change of use and to ensure activities and opening hours are 

appropriate to a family shopping area.’   

Given changes in the market, a restrictive approach is likely to lead to an increasing 

retail property vacancy rate, which will inevitably impact both the day and night time 

economies.  At July 2019, the City Centre currently had a vacancy rate of 9.5%, the 

Bristol Shopping Quarter was 11.9%, compared to a national rate of 10.3%.   

Major regeneration plans are due to come forward shortly for large parts of Bristol 

Shopping Quarter focused on Callowhill Court (part of Broadmead), The Galleries 

and St Mary le Port.  A greater mix of uses will be sought, including evening and 

night time uses.  Crime and safety within the area are currently a concern due to a 

lack of activity and natural surveillance after dark.   

 

 

Areas outside of the Bristol Shopping Quarter, including Park Street/Queen’s Road, 

Old City, Old Market, Stokes Croft, Christmas Steps/Colston Street and Harbourside 

need to have a mix of uses across the day and night time economies.  License 

Page 583



applications for these areas should be considered on a case by case basis in order 

to take into account issues such as local crime and safety, needs, market trends, 

establishment type and management.  

If Bristol City Centre is to be economically and culturally vibrant, inclusive and 

sustainable in the future, it is vital that day and night time uses are supported to meet 

the needs of a growing resident population and provide an experience visitors want 

to return to. 

We would like to work with you to develop a policy which reflects the different needs 

of the various parts of the City Centre. 

 

Jason Thorne, Senior Project Manager – City Centre Development,  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 584



Licensing Policy Review – comments from Economic Development 

perspective on High Streets 

There is an ever increasing body of evidence clearly pointing to the fact that high 

streets are changing and can no longer predominantly rely on retail activity to survive 

as effective community hubs.  

In its response to the House of Commons Housing, Communities and Local 

Government Committee’s report High Streets and Town Centres in 2030 (published 

in February 2019), the UK Government recognised that “high streets and town 

centres will need to respond to how people want to use them”; agreed that 

“community must be at the heart of all high streets and town centres”; and 

acknowledged that people “increasingly prize experiences and leisure opportunities 

over simply purchasing goods”. 

While there is in theory an element of flexibility within the Cumulative Impact 

Assessment (CIA) regime in Bristol, in practice it is often too strictly applied, and as 

such is not taking into full account the changing nature of those major high streets 

and centres beyond the city centre – Gloucester Road,  Whiteladies Road, Clifton, 

and Bedminster & Southville – where CIAs are currently in place, the habits of those 

who use/frequent them (both local and visitors from further afield), and their long 

term prospects as attractive places to fully enjoy, day or night. 

Any future CIA regime needs to recognise more regularly and be more closely 

aligned with the flexibility that already exists within the Council’s planning policy 

regarding the city’s town centres as cited, for example, in BCS7 which states that 

uses “which contribute to maintaining the vitality, viability and diversity of centres will 

be encouraged” and, furthermore, in the Local Plan Review, which states that 

relevant policies “provide a very flexible approach to supporting centres whilst 

accommodating the changing face of the high street.”    

License applications should be considered on a case by case basis in order to take 

into account issues such as local crime and safety, needs, market trends, 

establishment type and management.  

If Bristol’s high streets are to be economically and culturally vibrant, inclusive and 

sustainable in the future, it is vital that day and night time uses are supported to meet 

the needs of residents and provide an experience people want to return to. 

We would like to work with you to develop a policy which reflects the different needs 

of our high streets. 

 

Declan Murphy, Town & District Centres Liaison Officer – Economic Development,  

 

Page 585



 
Hi Carl, 
   
BARBIE have gone through the survey and our comments regarding it are below.  If you need 
anything further from us on this matter then please let me know. 
  
  

Having read through the draft of the new licensing policy I have the following comments, labelled by 

relevant section. 

1.14 Consultation is a requirement of the licensing policy and yet minimum effort was made to 

ensure stakeholders were aware of the consultation. Notifications were sent out to out-of-date 

addresses and when the letters were returned no action was taken to ensure the licence holder was 

properly notified. 

When we arrived for the consultation session, we found that we had been assigned an extremely 

small meeting room, suggesting that they expected very few people would come. This suggests an 

intentional lack of effort was put into notifying relevant parties. 

This section states that the policy must be reviewed and a new statement made every five years. As 

discussed in the consultation, five years is too long of a period and the city changes significantly over 

that time. For example, the current CIAs were implemented in 2015. They have now gone far 

beyond their original intent and are now simply negatively impacting businesses. 

2.3 This section used to contain this statement for clarity. 

“The Council’s Scrutiny function plays a key role in keeping the policy under review and exercising 

statutory powers that enable scrutiny members to make recommendations to the full council.” 

Why has this been removed? 

2.6 From the draft: 

“The Act requires the Council to actively seek the views of the following persons upon the proposals 

contained in this policy: 

- The chief officer of police; 

- The Fire and Rescue Authority; 

- The Director of Public Health 

- each Local Health Board 

- such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders of premises 

licences, club premises certificates and personal licences issued by that authority; 

- such other persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of businesses and 

residents in Bristol.” 

I would like clarity or a definition of what constitutes an attempt to “actively seek the views” of the 

above parties. Refer back to my comments on section 1.14 and it seems like the lack of definition 

here allows too much leeway for a minimal effort. 

Page 586



2.8 This section states that the council is able to go beyond minimum statutory requirements because 

“it has actively sought the views of all stakeholders on its proposals”. This is a statement written 

before the fact and is still unclear on what constitutes ‘actively seeking.’ 

Furthermore 

Section 2.9 thanks those who responded referring to appendix A. Appendix A of the 2015 policy 

makes it clear that not enough effort was made to consult stakeholders. It lists only 37 people and 

only two of those are premises licence holders. 

The reason so many stakeholders were not notified based on the current system was due to out of 

date addresses held in the council’s records. This clearly isn’t working so I would like to see new 

systems put in place to allow better future communication. 

6.3.9 This section contains a note stating that it will likely change as a result of the consultation. I feel 

that at this stage amendments should already have been made. Section 6.3.6 states that the council 

will keep cumulative impact assessments under review. The fact that section 6.3, pertaining to 

cumulative impact areas, is almost word for word identical to the 2015 proposal suggests that either 

the assessments were either never reviewed, or that those reviews were completely ignored. 

The descriptions and reasoning behind the current CIAs has literally not been altered at all despite 

two significant factors: 

1. Each part of the city under a CIA has changed extensively in the last five years. 

2. The impact of late night entertainment in these areas has since been shown to be the cause of 

either; people returning late from the centre, or people drinking without regulation in 

private residences. This is something the council is aware of as evidenced by new measures 

being brought in to reduce or restrict student house parties. 

  
  
Due to a number of major changes over the recent years: closure of a number of large late night 
venues reducing the capacities of areas, changes in drinking habits of the public and also a reduction 
of crime in a number of the CIA's that are related to the night-time economy, we feel that there needs 
to be a relaxation of the times venues are restricted to trade from and also new licenses being 
granted, especially when a new venue is offering something different to an area. 
  
We would also like to help if we can in assuring that BCC have the correct information from the 
premises licenses of venues that are members of BARBIE.  If there is anything else that we can help 
with then please just ask. 
  
  
Regards, 
Andy Dodd 
  
Chairman of BARBIE 
Bristol Association of Restaurants, Bars & Independent Establishments  
  
Facebook | Twitter | www.barbiebristol.com 

 

Page 587

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__ww.facebook.com_groups_624699487672671&d=DwMFaQ&c=1vnCWTgU_iH2bgveKnHUZ8hJXVq2EkkiN8FwZDwwznM&r=ULINFOGW7dOfu1afDpmHRGlX4JuORgm8QDnM0FczV4c&m=zj3QiW5QxFlUmuNSh1x_doV8tBSohYBt6Wq-ehFOgN8&s=23S_UcTAmcCdXqVb2tAl2CCKdbYYGipqbdirXTKgelM&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__twitter.com_barbie-5Fbristol&d=DwMFaQ&c=1vnCWTgU_iH2bgveKnHUZ8hJXVq2EkkiN8FwZDwwznM&r=ULINFOGW7dOfu1afDpmHRGlX4JuORgm8QDnM0FczV4c&m=zj3QiW5QxFlUmuNSh1x_doV8tBSohYBt6Wq-ehFOgN8&s=r5coA9RL1baaehqffz-gv-k4pKFbbHZKlh02fMeryP4&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.barbiebristol.com&d=DwMFaQ&c=1vnCWTgU_iH2bgveKnHUZ8hJXVq2EkkiN8FwZDwwznM&r=ULINFOGW7dOfu1afDpmHRGlX4JuORgm8QDnM0FczV4c&m=zj3QiW5QxFlUmuNSh1x_doV8tBSohYBt6Wq-ehFOgN8&s=is-RR7b161gjm5gRt09wOpUfLeCV7ri7oGlI5M_BAQ8&e=


Bristol City Council Equality Impact Assessment Form 

(Please refer to the Equality Impact Assessment guidance when 

completing this form)  

Name of proposal  Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy 

Directorate and Service Area Growth and Regeneration – 
Regulatory Services 

Name of Lead Officer Nick Carter – Regulatory Services 
Manager 

 

Step 1: What is the proposal?  

Please explain your proposal in Plain English, avoiding acronyms and jargon. 

This section should explain how the proposal will impact service users, staff 

and/or the wider community.  

1.1 What is the proposal?  
Bristol City Council (The Council) is the ‘Licensing Authority’ for all licensable 
activities under Licensing Act 2003 within Bristol.  Licensable activities are: 
 
• The sale of alcohol by retail 
• The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order 
of, a member of the club 
• The provision of regulated entertainment 
• The provision of late night refreshment 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 (The Act) is prescriptive with regard to how policy 
should be formulated and guidance is provided by the Secretary of State for 
local authorities to use when developing licensing policies. The Council are 
required to have a Statement of Licensing Policy which identifies the Councils 
approach to meeting the four licensing objectives under the act, namely the 
prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, prevention of public nuisance 
and the protection of children from harm. 
 
The last review of the Council’s full licensing policy took place in 2014/15 and 
came into effect in August 2015.   The Council’s current policy includes 
reference to a number of Cumulative Impact Areas.  When the policy was 
published in August 2015 cumulative impact was a concept introduced in the 
Government’s Section 182 Guidance issued under the Licensing Act 2003.  The 

Page 588



Policing and Crime Act 2017, with effect from 6 April 2018, introduced 
cumulative impact policies into law so that they now have a legal footing. 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 now states a licensing authority may publish a 
document (a Cumulative Impact Assessment) stating that it considers that the 
number of premises licences or club premises certificates is at such a level that 
it would be inconsistent with the promotion of the licensing objectives to grant 
any further licences or certificates in that area and restrict changes to 
licensable activities of existing licences. 
 
A Cumulative Impact Assessment must set out the evidence for the authority's 
opinion and before publishing the assessment the authority must consult with 
those affected, including the public, businesses and responsible authorities.  
The assessment must be reviewed every three years. 
 
A Cumulative Impact Assessment is a discretionary policy, and the Council does 
not have to adopt one.  As a result of the consultation undertaken (detailed 
below) the working group is recommending that it is not appropriate to adopt 
a Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy at this time.  However evidence put 
forward by Avon and Somerset Constabulary supports a revised policy in 
respect of the city centre (to now exclude the Broadmead area).  It is 
recommended that the draft policy in respect of the city centre is consulted 
upon for a two month period to ensure all relevant factors have been 
considered.  The results will then be brought back to Full Council for 
consideration. 
 
Function of the policy 
 
The cumulative impact of the number, type and density of premises in 
particular areas, such as the city centre, may lead to them becoming saturated 
with premises of a certain type making them a focal point for large groups of 
people together leading to severe or chronic problems of public nuisance and 
anti- social behaviour.  The licensing authority may consider publishing a 
Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy to help limit the number of types of 
licence applications granted in such areas if it is satisfied that it is appropriate 
to do so.  It will take the decision only after it is satisfied that there is evidence 
to support such a decision. 
 
The effect of adopting a policy of this kind is to create a rebuttable 
presumption if relevant representations to that effect are received, that 

Page 589



applications for new premises authorisations or club premises certificates or 
material variations will normally be refused, unless it can be demonstrated 
that the operation of the premises involved will be unlikely to add to the 
cumulative impact already being experienced. What constitutes a material 
variation will depend upon the policy in place and the reasons for the area 
being designated as suitable for adoption of a special policy.   
 
Development of the policy 
 
Only Full Council can make licensing policy decisions, no delegation is 
permitted to committees or officers of these tasks. 
 
On 7 February 2019 the Licensing Committee approved the establishment of a 
member /officer working group to commence a review of the Council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy in order to assist Full Council  in connection with 
the discharge of its’ functions under section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003, with 
the following terms of reference:  
 

 To consider current policy and engage with stakeholders in line with the 
directions of the Council’s licensing committee and produce a draft 
policy for Full Council consideration by 21 May 2019. 

 

 Subject to Full Council approval, carry out full public consultation on the 
draft policy.  The results of the consultation to be brought back before 
the member/officer working group for consideration prior to a final 
policy being presented to Full Council on 11 February 2020, with 
implementation in August 2020. 

 
The report for Full Council was delayed to 16 July 2019 to provide more time 
for the members of the working group to hear evidence from interested 
parties to inform the draft policy and public consultation.  On 16 July 2019 Full 
Council approved a full public consultation on the draft Cumulative Impact 
Assessment Policy.  The consultation was carried out from 1 August 2019 to 14 
November 2019 (the initial deadline of 31 October 2019 was extended by two 
weeks to allow members of the licensed trade additional time to respond). The 
policy has been updated following the consultation process. 

 

 

 

Page 590



Step 2: What information do we have?  

Decisions must be evidence-based, and involve people with protected 

characteristics that could be affected. Please use this section to demonstrate 

understanding of who could be affected by the proposal.  

2.1 What data or evidence is there which tells us who is, or could be affected? 

The Council’s current Statement of Licensing Policy includes Cumulative Impact 
Areas (CIAs) located in: 
 • City Centre 
• Gloucester Road 
• Clifton 
• Whiteladies Road 
• Bedminster and Southville 
 
The full consultation carried out gathered evidence to ascertain if the retention 
of these CIAs is appropriate or if new CIAs are required for other areas. 
 
The operation of a CIA can however impact on those who do not live in its 
geographical area, for example those impacted may wish to open a business in 
the area or frequent licensed premises in the area.   
 
It is not recommended to publish a Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy at 
this time.  However information received from Avon and Somerset 
Constabulary shows that the city centre area is still at saturation point with a 
high number of incidents of crime or disorder centred around licensed 
premises, especially at night.  However the crime statistics provided do not 
support the retention of the policy in its present form and Avon and Somerset 
Constabulary have recommended that the Broadmead area be excluded from 
the scope of the policy. It is proposed that a further consultation is carried out 
to seek the views of all parties on this revised area to ensure all relevant 
factors are considered.  
 
Evidence received in relation to the existing Cumulative Impact Areas located 
outside of the centre is insufficient to support their retention.  In addition, in 
their response, Avon and Somerset Constabulary state that these Cumulative 
Impact Areas are no longer a necessary requirement.   
 
 
 

Page 591



General: 
 
Bristol Quality of Life (QOL) survey - Public safety 
 
The 2019-20 QoL Survey indicates that: 
 
• 14.4% of respondents said that they have been victims of crime in the 

past 12 months - this has reduced in recent years from 18% in 2017-18. 
• However a significantly higher proportion of Black Asian and minority 

ethnic (BAME) people (18.7%), Disabled people (17.9%) and single 
parents (20.6%) say they have been victims of crime. 

• BAME people (29.7%) and disabled people (39.6%) are more likely to 
agree that anti-social behaviour is a problem in their neighbourhood 
compared to the average of 33.3% in Bristol. 

• 66.9% of respondents feel safe outdoors after dark. However some 
groups are less likely than average to feel safe outdoors after dark e.g. 
disabled people (47.1%), females (61.2%), young people aged 16-24 
(60.4%) and BAME people (61.3%). 

 
Licence holders 
 
There are approximately 1,800 holders of Premises Licences in the city, each 
licence permits a range of regulated activity including the supply of alcohol and 
provision of regulated entertainment.  There is no data available specifically in 
respect of the demography of licence holders in Bristol.  This is primarily 
because the application forms are prescribed by the Home Office and currently 
do not request equalities information. Furthermore licence holders are often 
businesses. Having said that many licences are held by business organisations, 
particularly large entertainment venues (cinemas, night clubs etc.).  The largely 
anecdotal information and observation from officers indicates that holders of 
Licences for premises such as off licences, restaurants and takeaways are in the 
majority from the BAME community.  Therefore when considering the impact 
on licence holders and the public we need to rely on data covering the whole 
of the city whilst bearing in mind that spatially the demography of Bristol 
varies. 
 
Night time Economy  
 
We have no data concerning the demographics of who makes use of the night 
time economy in Bristol.  

Page 592



 
Age  
 
The 2011 Census tells us that; 
 
• The median age of people living in Bristol is 33 compared to the UK 
median of 39. The age profile of people using the NTE would be mostly the 
median age and younger. 
 
• 8.3% of students make up the population in Bristol 
 
Health and lifestyle Related Data 
 
The Smoking, Drinking and Drug Use survey 2016 estimates that 44% of pupils 
aged 11-15 had drunk alcohol at least once (15% at age 11, and 73% at age 15 
years). 10% of pupils said they drank alcohol at least once a week, of these the 
mean average was 9.6 units. 38% of pupils said that they drank alcohol at least 
a few times a year.  This increased sharply by age, from 8% of 11 year olds to 
68% of 15 year olds, and therefore, the age profile of current drinkers is heavily 
weighted towards older pupils.  Current drinkers were most likely to buy 
alcohol from friends or relatives (22%), someone else (16%), an off-licence 
(10%) or a shop or supermarket (8%).  61% of current drinkers said they never 
buy alcohol.  The figures would suggest that a number of young people are 
attempting to buy alcohol from premises that hold an off licence (including 
supermarkets and smaller independent stores/off licences). 
 
Sex 
 

 49.8% of population of Bristol are male and 50.2% female (Census 2011) 

 Anecdotal observations by officers suggest that premises licence holders 
are often male. 

 There is a link between alcohol and severities of abuse against women. 

 Nationally, 27% of women experience domestic abuse in their lifetimes, 
with negative impacts on mental and physical health and further impact on 
families including children. The rate of recorded domestic abuse incidents in 

Page 593



Bristol has shown a significant rise over the last 2 years and 74% of victims 
were female1. 

 Alcohol misuse is much more prevalent in men (23%) than women (18%). 
Males were more likely to be admitted to hospital with alcohol related 
diseases, injuries and conditions than females, with 65% of the overall 
admissions being male patients however amongst under 16s, the opposite 
is true where females were more likely to be admitted to hospital with 
alcohol related diseases, injuries and conditions than males, with females 
accounting for 55% of all admissions (Source: 2014, The Health and Social 
Care Information Centre). 

 
Ethnicity 
 
• The 2011 Census shows us that about 16% of the Bristol population are 
from minority ethnic groups compared to 8% from the 2001 Census. 
 
• Alcohol misuse is more prevalent (popular) in the White British and 
White Irish populations than in many of the other ethnic groups. Other 
ethnicities do not have such high level of alcohol misuse prevalence, and some 
have very low levels of misuse due to cultural and physiological reasons. 
Evidence from the World Health Organisation shows us that Eastern Europeans 
have higher numbers of abstinent people in their populations, but of those 
who do drink alcohol they consume more alcohol than the UK average. 
 
Disability 
 
• 16.8% of the population of Bristol have a disability or long term health 
problem (Census 2011). 
 
Sexual Orientation 
 
• Around 4% of respondents to the Bristol Quality of Life survey said they 
were Lesbian, Gay or Bisexual. Based on city population estimates this suggests 
there may be around 27,000 LGB adults in Bristol. 
• There are two main areas of gay night-time economy (or ‘scene’) in 
Bristol – the ‘Strip’ which is focused around the Frogmore Street area and the 
‘Village’ which is in Old Market. These are highly frequented and popular areas 

                                                           
1
 Bristol Women’s Health 2017 JSNA Chapter  

Page 594

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/1655362/JSNA+Chapter+Women%27s+Health+%28V14%29/9024901c-46fe-e13a-a194-0260ed22a3c1


for LGB and T people in the city. The level of binge drinking is higher in the LGB 
community than the UK average level (The Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Trans 
Public Health Outcomes Framework Companion Document 2013) 
 
• Lesbian and bisexual women are considered to drink more alcohol and 
binge-drink more often that heterosexual women 
http://www.stonewall.org.uk/documents/prescription_for_change.pdf (page 
4-8) 
 
The Public Health England - Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Trans Public Health 
Outcomes Framework Companion Document 2013 highlights that: 
 
• 42% of gay and bisexual men drink alcohol on three or more days a week 
compared to 35% of men in general 
 
• 41% of lesbian and bisexual women drink on three or more days in a 
week compared to 36% of women in general 
 
Transgender 
 
The Public Health England - Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Trans Public Health 
Outcomes Framework Companion Document 2013 highlights that: 
 
• 64% of Trans people have experienced domestic violence and abuse, 
compared to 29% of non-trans respondents. 
 
• 53% of Trans people have self-harmed at some point, with 11% currently 
self-harming. 
 
• 62% of transgender people may be dependent or engage in alcohol 
misuse. 
 
Religion and belief  
 
• Some religions require abstinence and followers do not visit venues 
where alcohol is being served. Jainism, Islam, Sikhism, Buddhism generally 
avoid alcohol; Hinduism, Christianity and Judaism allow modest levels of 
alcohol consumption.  
 
• 46.8% of the population of Bristol identified as Christian in 2011 Census. 

Page 595

http://www.stonewall.org.uk/documents/prescription_for_change.pdf


Compared to 62.1% 2001 Census. 
 
• 37.4% of population of Bristol identified that they have no religion and 
5.0% as Muslim (Census 2011). 
 
• Some events in places of religious worship do not require a licence 
 
2.2 Who is missing? Are there any gaps in the data?  

As detailed above there is no data available specifically in respect of the 
demography of licence holders in Bristol.  This is primarily because the 
application forms are prescribed by the Home Office and currently do not 
request equalities information.  
 
The consultation survey provided information from members of the public, 
business owners and other parties.  The survey had a section of questions on 
each current Cumulative Impact Area.  Not all respondents answered all 
sections.  For the City Centre areas we received between 99-101 responses 
which is the minimum sample size accepted to achieve a meaningful result.  
For all other areas we received a response rate which was below an acceptable 
sample size (approximately 50 for each with the exception of one area where 
only 25 responses were received, and of those only 12 respondents lived in the 
affected area). 
 
In the case of each policy currently in force the respondents were in favour of 
retaining the policy.  However most respondents also agreed that new venues 
of a variety of types should be permitted to open in each location which the 
existing policies may be preventing.  It would appear that whilst respondents 
like the protection a policy may bring it could be said that the policies have 
been too effective and have prevented the ‘right’ type of new venues from 
opening.  However due to the limited sample size and Police statistics more 
evidence is needed to ensure that if a policy is required for any given area it 
protects the needs of those living or working there but also helps develop a 
successful night time economy. 
 

2.3 How have we involved, or will we involve, communities and groups that 
could be affected? 

 
A ‘Call for Evidence’ was undertaken in respect of the CIAs included in the 
Council’s current Statement of Licensing Policy.  This ran from 21 March until 
30 April 2019 and was sent to residents associations, business groups, and a 

Page 596



number of equalities groups.  A number of parties who had been instrumental 
in the introduction of the CIAs were also invited to present their views to the 
members of the Working Group (made up of Councillors and Council Officers) 
with a view to informing the full consultation.  The full consultation took place 
from 1 August 2019 to 14 November 2019 and in addition to being published 
on the Council’s Consultation and Engagement Hub the following parties were 
notified of the consultation; premises licence holders, club premises certificate 
holders, local residents groups, a variety of charities, legal firms, and the 
Business Improvement Districts. 
 
Responses received show an under-representation of women and young 
people.  Also of note is the under-representation of BAME respondents given 
what is anecdotally known about relevant trades.  Notification of the 
consultation was sent to a variety of equalities groups, including those 
representing BAME groups and women.  No written responses from these 
groups were received however 10 responses to the survey were received from 
a representative of a local community group.  
 
Also interesting is over-representation of White other (16% of respondents) 
given that census data records this group as 6%.  The reason for the over-
representation of this group is not known. 
 
Respondents who identified as LGBT made up 8% compared with a census 
figure of 6%. Respondents who identified as disabled made up 7% of 
respondents with census data showing 8% (Based on day to day activities 
limited a lot). 

 

Step 3: Who might the proposal impact? 

Analysis of impacts on people with protected characteristics must be rigorous.  

Please demonstrate your analysis of any impacts in this section, referring to all 

of the equalities groups as defined in the Equality Act 2010.  

 

3.1 Does the proposal have any potentially adverse impacts on people with 
protected characteristics?  
The removal of the CIAs may exacerbate the fear of crime felt as it might be 
perceived the night time economy is not as strictly managed. This may have a 
disproportionate impact on some groups who will fear there may be an 

Page 597



increase in anti-social behaviour or harassment etc. 
 
Age 
 
It is not anticipated that the removal of the CIAs will have a negative impact on 
the basis of age.  Each licence application, where representations are made, 
will be considered against the four key Licensing Act objectives, namely public 
safety, prevention of public nuisance, protection of children from harm and the 
prevention of crime and disorder. 
 
The Statement of Licensing Policy will have a Positive impact on age. Actions 
and objectives are stated in the policy that will help protect vulnerable and 
young people.  Paragraph 6.6 outlines what the licensing authority expects 
from licence holders in respect of protecting young people from harm. 
Measures to reduce underage drinking identify the Challenge 25 scheme as a 
way to protect under- 18s.  Paragraphs 6.7 and 6.8 of the policy outline 
expectations from applicants when submitting applications to show films with 
regard to protecting young people. 
 
The Statement of Licensing Policy makes provision for Children and Young 
Peoples services to act as the responsible authority for matters relating to the 
protection of children from harm and enables them to comment on 
variations/new applications and request reviews of licences. 
 
Disability 
 
Each licence application, where representations are made, will be considered 
against the four key Licensing Act objectives, namely public safety, prevention 
of public nuisance, protection of children from harm and the prevention of 
crime and disorder 
 
In the Statement of Licensing Policy applicants are requested to have regard to 
the type of people that are likely to visit their premises in their application 
when identifying the steps they will take to promote the licensing objectives. 
Applicants will be expected to propose steps to ensure that the physical layout 
of the premises does not present any risks to ‘vulnerable’ people, some of 
whom may be disabled. 
 
 
 

Page 598



Ethnicity 
 
Anecdotally licences for a significant proportion of off-licences and food 
outlets are held by BAME people. Some aspects of the policy may restrict the 
ability to gain a licence in some localities with a high BAME population which 
could have a disproportionate impact on this group. However such provisions 
will be designed to maximise public safety and will not be as a result of any 
other factor.  The proposed removal of the Cumulative Impact Assessment 
areas will remove the rebuttable presumption against obtaining a licence.  This 
may make it easier for BAME led businesses to obtain a licence in these areas.  
Applications will still be considered against their impact on the four licensing 
objectives and the Statement of Licensing Policy still enables the Council to 
consider cumulative impact.  Obtaining a licence is an applicant led process 
and the policy includes a statement of how important it is to promote the 
diverse life of Bristol (1.12).  Each process and each application is considered 
on its own merits.  Decisions must be taken with a view to promoting the four 
statutory licensing objectives.  Applicants may demonstrate in their application 
how the operation of the premises will not have a negative impact on the 
objectives.  Any person may make a representation in relation to an 
application and representations can be negative or positive. The policy will 
ensure that all services are aware of the need to abide by the Equality Act 
(2010).  
 
Sex 
 
Women will benefit from a better managed NTE environment when the 
various approaches set out in the policy to restrict alcohol related violence are 
applied. Women are more severely harmed, emotionally and physically, in 
alcohol related violence in the NTE and in the home and any activities to lessen 
such violence is of benefit to women. Better managed premises also benefit 
women who have drunk harmful amounts of alcohol because such premises 
will put in place measures to promote a safe drinking environment which 
restricts serving to people who have consumed harmful levels of alcohol. They 
will also have procedures in place to assist vulnerable people leaving venues. 
The removal of the CIAs will not impact on this. 
 
Better management of licensed venues will also benefit men who may be 
deterred from alcohol related violence. Men are more likely to commit crimes 
when under the influence of alcohol. Nearly a fifth (19%) of all adult binge 
drinkers reported committing an offence in the previous year compared with 

Page 599



6% of other regular drinkers and 3% of those who occasionally or never drank 
alcohol (Source: General Lifestyle Survey, 2011).  The removal of the CIAs does 
not impact on the management of individual licensed venues. 
 
Pregnancy & maternity 
 
No impact identified at this stage 
 
LGBT 
 
Old Market has a limited number of drinking-only licensed premises and the 
overall mix of premises in Old Market is varied. The area has a diverse 
customer base. Again a well-managed NTE is to the benefit of LGBT customers 
as the area can be targeted for hate crime.  The removal of the CIAs does not 
impact upon this. 
 

3.2 Can these impacts be mitigated or justified? If so, how?  

See 3.1 above for specific mitigations. 
 
Whilst the removal of the CIAs does remove the rebuttable presumption 
against obtaining a licence it does not mean the night time economy is any less 
controlled.  Applications will still be considered based on their impact on the 
four licensing objectives and the cumulative impact of the number of licensed 
premises can still be considered.  The operation of individual venues is not 
affected by the removal of a CIA. 
 
The retention of the existing CIAs cannot be justified based on the evidence 
received as a result of the consultation.  The necessity for a Cumulative Impact 
Assessment Policy will be reviewed as required.  Paragraph 6.3.7 the 
Statement of Licensing Policy states: 
 
The absence of a CIA does not prevent any responsible authority or other 
person making evidence based relevant representations on a new application 
for the grant of an authorisation on the grounds that the premises will give rise 
to a negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. 
 
This will ensure that where an area may be experiencing issues due to the 
number of licensed premises objections can still be raised and taken into 
account by the Council when determining applications. 
 

Page 600



3.3 Does the proposal create any benefits for people with protected 
characteristics?  
See 3.1 above for specific benefits. 
 
The removal of the CIAs removes the rebuttable presumption against the grant 
of a licence.  This does not impact on the operation of an individual licensed 
venue.  However the removal may mean that a greater number of premises 
may open which may benefit BAME businesses and result in more LGBT led 
venues. 
 

3.4 Can they be maximised? If so, how?  
 
The removal of the CIAs may make it easier to obtain a licence however the 
Council has a duty to promote the licensing objectives contained within the 
Licensing Act 2003, namely; 
  

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; and 

 The protection of children from harm. 
 
The cumulative impact of licensed premises can still be considered even in the 
absence of a Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy.  The Council hopes that 
residents and visitors to Bristol will be able to enjoy their leisure time safely 
without fear of violence, intimidation or disorder while at licensed premises. In 
addition, and in response to concerns about the impact of longer trading hours 
on behaviour and disturbance at night, we give the protection of local 
residents a central place in our strategy. 
 
An effective Statement of Licensing Policy, alongside other initiatives, works to 
promote the positive aspects of the flexibility afforded to applicants under the 
Act, such as promotion of tourism, increased leisure provision and encouraging 
the regeneration of both the city centre and local centres.  It also facilitates 
control of   the negative impacts such as increase in noise, nuisance, anti-social 
behaviour and crime and disorder. 
 
A key issue for the Council is to achieve a balance that ensures the promotion 
of the licensing objectives across a variety of urban settings. Bristol has a rich 
mix of cultural diversity, epitomised by events such as the Bristol Harbour 
Festival, which is the largest free event in the South West and attracts over 

Page 601



250,000 visitors, St Pauls Carnival and Bristol Pride which all contribute to a 
vibrant leisure scene and night time economy. The Council is keen to promote 
the cultural life of Bristol and so licensing is approached with a view to 
encouraging forms of licensable activity consistent with the licensing 
objectives. 
 
The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy will ensure that any new licences 
granted will not have an adverse impact on the NTE and as such maximise the 
benefits highlighted above to those with protected characteristics. 
 

 

Step 4: So what? 

The Equality Impact Assessment must be able to influence the proposal and 

decision. This section asks how your understanding of impacts on people with 

protected characteristics has influenced your proposal, and how the findings of 

your Equality Impact Assessment can be measured going forward.  

4.1 How has the equality impact assessment informed or changed the 
proposal?  
The adoption of a Cumulative Impact Assessment policy must be supported by 
evidence.  The Council currently holds insufficient evidence to support the 
adoption of a policy. 
    
 

4.2 What actions have been identified going forward?  
This EqIA details the potential impacts for equalities groups.  The consultation 
did not raise any further issues.   
 
A further public consultation will be carried out in respect of a new Cumulative 
Impact Assessment Policy for the city centre.  The consultation will take place 
over a two month period and the results brought back to Full Council for 
consideration. 
 
The Council will keep the requirement for a Cumulative Impact Assessment 
Policy for all other areas of the city under review as required. 
4.3 How will the impact of your proposal and actions be measured moving 
forward?  
The next stage is for the matter to be considered at a Full Council meeting on 7 

Page 602



July 2020.  If the working group recommendations are approved all current 
CIAs will be removed on 1 August 2020.   
 
The results of the consultation for the draft city centre Cumulative Impact 
Assessment Policy will be considered by the Licensing Committee.  A decision 
will then be taken whether to adopt the policy.  If adopted a statement 
summarising the policy will be added to the Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy, this will be referred to Full Council for approval.  In respect of other 
areas of the city the Council may decide to adopt a Cumulative Impact 
Assessment Policy at any time (subject to a further consultation).  This will be 
kept under review and a consultation undertaken if required. 
 

 

Service Director Sign-Off: 

 
 
Stephen Peacock 
 

Equalities Officer Sign Off:  
Reviewed by Equality and Inclusion 
Team 

Date: 26.6.2020 Date: 26/6/2020 
 

Page 603



Bristol City Council Equality Impact Assessment Form 

(Please refer to the Equality Impact Assessment guidance when 

completing this form) 

Name of proposal  Statement of Licensing Policy 

Directorate and Service Area Growth and Regeneration – 
Regulatory Services 

Name of Lead Officer Nick Carter – Regulatory Services 
Manager 

 

Step 1: What is the proposal?  

Please explain your proposal in Plain English, avoiding acronyms and jargon. 

This section should explain how the proposal will impact service users, staff 

and/or the wider community.  

1.1 What is the proposal?  
This is an Equality Impact Assessment of Bristol City Council’s draft Statement 
of Licensing Policy. 
 
Bristol City Council (The Council) is the ‘Licensing Authority’ for all licensable 
activities under Licensing Act 2003 within Bristol.  Licensable activities are: 
 
• The sale of alcohol by retail 
• The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order 
of, a member of the club 
• The provision of regulated entertainment 
• The provision of late night refreshment 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 (The Act) is prescriptive with regard to how policy 
should be formulated and guidance is provided by the Secretary of State for 
local authorities to use when developing licensing policies. The Council are 
required to have a Statement of Licensing Policy which identifies the Councils 
approach to meeting the four licensing objectives under the act, namely the 
prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, prevention of public nuisance 
and the protection of children from harm. 
 
The last review of the Council’s full licensing policy took place in 2014/15 and 
came into effect in August 2015.  The new policy must be adopted by 1 August 

Page 604



2020.  
 
Function of the policy 
 
The licensing policy may be referred to by officers and members of committees 
when determining licensing applications and is available for all parties when 
applying for licences and submitting representations. As mentioned above this 
policy is relevant to various permissions and authorisations under the Licensing 
Act relating to alcohol and entertainment, there are separate policies for other 
areas of licensing e.g. street trading, taxis and sexual entertainment venues. 
 
Development of the policy 
 
Only Full Council can make licensing policy decisions, no delegation is 
permitted to committees or officers of these tasks. 
 
On 7 February 2019 the Licensing Committee approved the establishment of a 
member /officer working group to commence a review of the Council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy in order to assist Full Council  in connection with 
the discharge of its’ functions under section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003, with 
the following terms of reference:  
 

 To consider current policy and engage with stakeholders in line with the 
directions of the Council’s licensing committee and produce a draft 
policy for Full Council consideration by 21 May 2019. 

 

 Subject to Full Council approval, carry out full public consultation on the 
draft policy.  The results of the consultation to be brought back before 
the member/officer working group for consideration prior to a final 
policy being presented to Full Council on 11 February 2020, with 
implementation in August 2020. 

 
The report for Full Council was delayed to 16 July 2019 to provide more time 
for the members of the working group to hear evidence from interested 
parties to inform the draft policy and public consultation.  On 16 July 2019 Full 
Council approved a full public consultation on the draft Statement of Licensing 
Policy.  The consultation was carried out from 1 August 2019 to 14 November 
2019 (the initial deadline of 31 October 2019 was extended by two weeks to 
allow members of the licensed trade additional time to respond). The policy 
has been updated following the consultation process. 

Page 605



 

Step 2: What information do we have?  

Decisions must be evidence-based, and involve people with protected 

characteristics that could be affected. Please use this section to demonstrate 

understanding of who could be affected by the proposal.  

2.1 What data or evidence is there which tells us who is, or could be affected? 

 
The Council’s Licensing Policy covers the whole of Bristol and the current 
includes special policies such as Cumulative Impact Areas (CIA’s) that relate to 
particular areas of the city.  The proposed policy does not include any CIA’s as 
these must now be contained in a Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy if they 
are to be adopted. 
 
Bristol Quality of Life (QOL) survey - Public safety 
 
The 2019-20 QoL Survey indicates that: 
 
• 14.4% of respondents said that they have been victims of crime in the past 

12 months - this has reduced in recent years from 18% in 2017-18. 

 However a significantly higher proportion of Black Asian and minority ethnic 
(BAME) people (18.7%), Disabled people (17.9%) and single parents (20.6%) 
say they have been victims of crime. 

• BAME people (29.7%) and disabled people (39.6%) are more likely to agree 
that anti-social behaviour is a problem in their neighbourhood compared to 
the average of 33.3% in Bristol. 

• 66.9% of respondents feel safe outdoors after dark. However some groups 
are less likely than average to feel safe outdoors after dark e.g. disabled 
people (47.1%), females (61.2%), young people aged 16-24 (60.4)%) and 
BAME people (61.3%). 

 
 
Licence holders 
 
There are approximately 1,800 holders of Premises Licences in the city, each 
licence permits a range of regulated activity including the supply of alcohol and 
provision of regulated entertainment.  There is no data available specifically in 
respect of the demography of licence holders in Bristol.  This is primarily 
because the application forms are prescribed by the Home Office and currently 

Page 606



do not request equalities information. Furthermore licence holders are often 
businesses. Having said that many licences are held by business organisations, 
particularly large entertainment venues (cinemas, night clubs etc.).  The largely 
anecdotal information and observation from officers indicates that holders of 
Licences for premises such as off licences, restaurants and takeaways are in the 
majority from BAME communities.  Therefore when considering the impact on 
licence holders and the public we need to rely on data covering the whole of 
the city whilst bearing in mind that spatially the demography of Bristol varies. 
 
Night time Economy  
 
We have no data concerning the demographics of who makes use of the night 
time economy in Bristol.  
 
Age  
 
The 2011 Census tells us that; 
 
• The median age of people living in Bristol is 33 compared to the UK 
median of 39. The age profile of people using the NTE would be mostly the 
median age and younger. 
 
• 8.3% of students make up the population in Bristol, 
 
Health and lifestyle Related Data 
 
The Smoking, Drinking and Drug Use survey 2016 estimates that 44% of pupils 
aged 11-15 had drunk alcohol at least once (15% at age 11, and 73% at age 15 
years). 10% of pupils said they drank alcohol at least once a week, of these the 
mean average was 9.6 units. 38% of pupils said that they drank alcohol at least 
a few times a year.  This increased sharply by age, from 8% of 11 year olds to 
68% of 15 year olds, and therefore, the age profile of current drinkers is heavily 
weighted towards older pupils.  Current drinkers were most likely to buy 
alcohol from friends or relatives (22%), someone else (16%), an off-licence 
(10%) or a shop or supermarket (8%).  61% of current drinkers said they never 
buy alcohol.  The figures would suggest that a number of young people are 
attempting to buy alcohol from premises that hold an off licence (including 
supermarkets and smaller independent stores/off licences). 
 
Sex 

Page 607



 

 49.8% of population of Bristol are male and 50.2% female (Census 2011) 

 Anecdotal observations by officers suggest that premises licence holders 
are often male. 

 There is a link between alcohol and severities of abuse against women. 

 Nationally, 27% of women experience domestic abuse in their lifetimes, 
with negative impacts on mental and physical health and further impact on 
families including children. The rate of recorded domestic abuse incidents in 
Bristol has shown a significant rise over the last 2 years and 74% of victims 
were female1. 

Alcohol misuse is much more prevalent in men (23%) than women (18%). 
Males were more likely to be admitted to hospital with alcohol related 
diseases, injuries and conditions than females, with 65% of the overall 
admissions being male patients however amongst under 16s, the opposite is 
true where females were more likely to be admitted to hospital with alcohol 
related diseases, injuries and conditions than males, with females accounting 
for 55% of all admissions (Source: 2014, The Health and Social Care 
Information Centre). 
 
Ethnicity 
 
• The 2011 Census shows us that about 16% of the Bristol population are 
from minority ethnic groups compared to 8% from the 2001 Census. 
• Alcohol misuse is more prevalent (popular) in the White British and 
White Irish populations than in many of the other ethnic groups. Other 
ethnicities do not have such high level of alcohol misuse prevalence, and some 
have very low levels of misuse due to cultural and physiological reasons. 
Evidence from the World Health Organisation shows us that Eastern Europeans 
have higher numbers of abstinent people in their populations, but of those 
who do drink alcohol they consume more alcohol than the UK average. 
 
Disability 
 
• 16.8% of the population of Bristol have a disability or long term health 
problem (Census 2011). 
 

                                                           
1
 Bristol Women’s Health 2017 JSNA Chapter  

Page 608

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/1655362/JSNA+Chapter+Women%27s+Health+%28V14%29/9024901c-46fe-e13a-a194-0260ed22a3c1


Sexual Orientation 
 
• Around 4% of respondents to the Bristol Quality of Life survey said they 
were Lesbian, Gay or Bisexual. Based on city population estimates this suggests 
there may be around 27,000 LGB adults in Bristol. 
 
• There are two main areas of gay night-time economy (or ‘scene’) in 
Bristol – the ‘Strip’ which is focused around the Frogmore Street area and the 
‘Village’ which is in Old Market. These are highly frequented and popular areas 
for LGB and T people in the city. The level of binge drinking is higher in the LGB 
community than the UK average level (The Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Trans 
Public Health Outcomes Framework Companion Document 2013) 
 
• Lesbian and bisexual women are considered to drink more alcohol and 
binge-drink more often that heterosexual women 
http://www.stonewall.org.uk/documents/prescription_for_change.pdf (page 
4-8) 
 
The Public Health England - Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Trans Public Health 
Outcomes Framework Companion Document 2013 highlights that: 
 
• 42% of gay and bisexual men drink alcohol on three or more days a week 
compared to 35% of men in general 
 
• 41% of lesbian and bisexual women drink on three or more days in a 
week compared to 36% of women in general 
 
Transgender 
 
The Public Health England - Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Trans Public Health 
Outcomes Framework Companion Document 2013 highlights that: 
 
• 64% of Trans people have experienced domestic violence and abuse, 
compared to 29% of non-trans respondents. 
 
• 53% of Trans people have self-harmed at some point, with 11% currently 
self-harming. 
 
• 62% of transgender people may be dependent or engage in alcohol 
misuse. 

Page 609

http://www.stonewall.org.uk/documents/prescription_for_change.pdf


 
Religion and belief  
 
• Some religions require abstinence and followers do not visit venues 
where alcohol is being served. Jainism, Islam, Sikhism, Buddhism generally 
avoid alcohol; Hinduism, Christianity and Judaism allow modest levels of 
alcohol consumption.  
 
• 46.8% of the population of Bristol identified as Christian in 2011 Census. 
Compared to 62.1% 2001 Census. 
 
• 37.4% of population of Bristol identified that they have no religion and 
5.0% as Muslim (Census 2011). 
 
• Some events in places of religious worship do not require a licence 
 

2.2 Who is missing? Are there any gaps in the data?  

 
As detailed above there is no data available specifically in respect of the 
demography of licence holders in Bristol.  This is primarily because application 
forms are prescribed by the Home Office and currently do not request 
equalities information.  
 
2.3 How have we involved, or will we involve, communities and groups that 
could be affected? 
 
A ‘Call for Evidence’ was undertaken in respect of the Cumulative Impact Areas 
included in the Council’s current Statement of Licensing Policy.  This ran from 
21 March until 30 April 2019 and was sent to residents associations, business 
groups, and a number of equalities groups.  A number of parties who had been 
instrumental in the introduction of the Cumulative Impact Areas were also 
invited to present their views to the members of the Working Group (made up 
of Councillors and Council Officers) with a view to informing the full 
consultation.  The full consultation took place from 1 August 2019 to 14 
November 2019 and in addition to being published on the Council’s 
Consultation and Engagement Hub the following parties were notified of the 
consultation; premises licence holders, club premises certificate holders, local 
residents groups, a variety of charities, legal firms, and the Business 
Improvement Districts. 
 

Page 610



Responses received show an under-representation of women and young 
people.  Also of note is the under-representation of BAME respondents given 
what is anecdotally known about relevant trades.  Notification of the 
consultation was sent to a variety of equalities groups, including those 
representing BAME groups and women.  No written responses from these 
groups were received however 10 responses to the survey were received from 
a representative of a local community group.  
 
Also interesting is over-representation of White other (16% of respondents) 
given that census data records this group as 6%.  The reason for the over-
representation of this group is not known. 
 
Respondents who identified as LGBT made up 8% compared with a census 
figure of 6%. Respondents who identified as disabled made up 7% of 
respondents with census data showing 8% (Based on day to day activities 
limited a lot). 

 

Step 3: Who might the proposal impact? 

Analysis of impacts on people with protected characteristics must be rigorous.  

Please demonstrate your analysis of any impacts in this section, referring to all 

of the equalities groups as defined in the Equality Act 2010.  

3.1 Does the proposal have any potentially adverse impacts on people with 
protected characteristics?  

Age 
 
No negative impact anticipated but each licence application, where 
representations are made, will be considered against the four key Licensing Act 
objectives, namely public safety, prevention of public nuisance, protection of 
children from harm and the prevention of crime and disorder. 
 
This policy will have a positive impact on age. Actions and objectives are stated 
in the policy that will help protect vulnerable and young people. 
 
The policy at 6.6 outlines what the licensing authority expects from licence 
holders in respect of protecting young people from harm. Measures to reduce 
underage drinking identify the Challenge 25 scheme as a way to protect under 
18s.  Paragraphs 6.7 and 6.8 of the policy outline expectations from applicants 
when submitting applications to show films with regard to protecting young 

Page 611



people. 
 
The policy makes provision for Children and Young Peoples services to act as 
the responsible authority for matters relating to the protection of children 
from harm and enables them to comment on variations/new applications and 
request reviews of licences. 
 
Disability 
 
No positive or negative impact anticipated but each licence application, where 
representations are made, will be considered against the four key Licensing Act 
objectives, namely public safety, prevention of public nuisance, protection of 
children from harm and the prevention of crime and disorder 
 
In the policy applicants are requested to have regard to the type of people that 
are likely to visit their premises in their application when identifying the steps 
they will take to promote the licensing objectives. Applicants will be expected 
to propose steps to ensure that the physical layout of the premises does not 
present any risks to ‘vulnerable’ people, some of whom may be disabled. 
 
Ethnicity 
 
Anecdotally licences for a significant proportion of off licences and food outlets 
are held by BAME people. Some aspects of the policy may restrict the ability to 
gain a licence in some localities with a high BAME population which could have 
a disproportionate impact on this group. However such provisions will be 
designed to maximise public safety and will not be as a result of any other 
factor.  Decisions must be taken with a view to promoting the four statutory 
licensing objectives.  Applicants may demonstrate in their application how the 
operation of the premises will not have a negative impact on the objectives.  
Any person may make a representation in relation to an application and 
representations can be negative or positive. The policy will ensure that all 
services are aware of the need to abide by the Equality Act (2010).  
 
Sex 
 
Women will benefit from a better managed NTE environment when the 
various approaches set out in the policy to restrict alcohol related violence are 
applied. Women are more severely harmed, emotionally and physically, in 
alcohol related violence in the NTE and in the home and any activities to lessen 

Page 612



such violence is of benefit to women. Better managed premises also benefit 
women who have drunk harmful amounts of alcohol because such premises 
will put in place measures to promote a safe drinking environment which 
restricts serving to people who have consumed harmful levels of alcohol. They 
will also have procedures in place to assist vulnerable people leaving venues.  
 
Better management of licensed venues will also benefit men who may be 
deterred from alcohol related violence. Men are more likely to commit crimes 
when under the influence of alcohol. Nearly a fifth (19%) of all adult binge 
drinkers reported committing an offence in the previous year compared with 
6% of other regular drinkers and 3% of those who occasionally or never drank 
alcohol (Source: General Lifestyle Survey, 2011) 
 
Pregnancy & maternity 
 
No impact identified at this stage. 
 
LGBT 
 
Old Market has a limited number of drinking only licensed premises and the 
overall mix of premises in Old Market is varied. The area has a diverse 
customer base. Again a well-managed NTE is to the benefit of LGBT customers 
as the area can be targeted for hate crime. 
 
3.2 Can these impacts be mitigated or justified? If so, how?  

 
Whilst some aspects of the policy may restrict the ability to gain a licence in 
some localities which could have a disproportionate impact on members of  
BAME communities, this approach can be justified as such provisions will be 
designed to maximise public safety and will not be as a result of any other 
factor.  
 

3.3 Does the proposal create any benefits for people with protected 
characteristics?  

 
As set out above a well-managed NTE is to the benefit of LGBT customers who 
could otherwise suffer from hate crime.    
 
Women will also benefit from a better managed NTE environment when the 
various approaches set out in the policy to restrict alcohol related violence are 

Page 613



applied.  Better managed premises also benefit women who have drunk 
harmful amounts of alcohol because such premises will put in place measures 
to promote a safe drinking environment which restricts serving to people who 
have consumed harmful levels of alcohol. They will also have procedures in 
place to assist vulnerable people leaving venues.  
 
Better management of licensed venues will also benefit men who may be 
deterred from alcohol related violence.  
 

3.4 Can they be maximised? If so, how?  

The Statement of Licensing Policy’s aim is to promote the licensing objectives 
contained within the Licensing Act 2003, namely; 
  

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; and 

 The protection of children from harm. 
 
As stated in the policy itself the Council hopes that residents and visitors to 
Bristol will be able to enjoy their leisure time safely without fear of violence, 
intimidation or disorder while at licensed premises. In addition, and in 
response to concerns about the impact of longer trading hours on behaviour 
and disturbance at night, we give the protection of local residents a central 
place in our strategy. 
 
An effective Licensing Policy, alongside other initiatives, works to promote the 
positive aspects of the flexibility afforded to applicants under the Act, such as 
promotion of tourism, increased leisure provision and encouraging the 
regeneration of both the city centre and local centres.  It also facilitates control 
of   the negative impacts such as increase in noise, nuisance, anti-social 
behaviour and crime and disorder. 
 
A key issue for the Council is to achieve a balance that ensures the promotion 
of the licensing objectives across a variety of urban settings. Bristol has a rich 
mix of cultural diversity, epitomised by events such as the Bristol Harbour 
Festival, which is the largest free event in the South West and attracts over 
250,000 visitors, St Pauls Carnival and Bristol Pride which all contribute to a 
vibrant leisure scene and night time economy. The Council is keen to promote 
the cultural life of Bristol and so licensing is approached with a view to 
encouraging forms of licensable activity consistent with the licensing 

Page 614



objectives. 
 
A robust, well thought out, Statement of Licensing Policy will maximise the 
benefits highlighted above to those with protected characteristics. 

 

Step 4: So what? 

The Equality Impact Assessment must be able to influence the proposal and 

decision. This section asks how your understanding of impacts on people with 

protected characteristics has influenced your proposal, and how the findings of 

your Equality Impact Assessment can be measured going forward.  

4.1 How has the equality impact assessment informed or changed the 
proposal?  

The EqIA has highlighted that a disproportionate number of BAME led 
businesses could be affected. This needs to be reviewed regularly by officers 
responsible for the policy to ensure they are aware of complaints and can 
review mitigations if needed. This is in line with the Council’s duty to eliminate 
discrimination and foster good relations 
 
4.2 What actions have been identified going forward?  

This EqIA details the potential impacts for equalities groups.  The consultation 
did not raise any further issues and the working group are recommending to 
Full Council that the policy be adopted. 
 
The Council is under a duty to keep the policy under review and if any 
subsequent issues are highlighted that give cause for concern appropriate 
amendments can be made at a future date. 
4.3 How will the impact of your proposal and actions be measured moving 
forward?  
The next stage is for the draft policy to be considered at a Full Council meeting 
on 7 July 2020.   
 
If adopted the policy will be kept under review and must be fully reviewed (and 
new policy adopted) following a further full public consultation no later than 1 
August 2025.  

 

 

Page 615



Service Director Sign-Off: 

 
Acting Director, Management of Place 

Equalities Officer Sign Off:  
Reviewed by Equality and Inclusion 
Team 

Date: 12/06/20 Date: 9/6/2020 
 

Page 616



Name of Meeting – Report

Full Council
7 July 2020

Report of: Tim Borrett, Director: Policy, Strategy and Partnerships

Title: Equality and Inclusion Annual Report 2019-2020

Ward: City Wide

Member Presenting Report: Cllr Asher Craig, Deputy Mayor (Communities, 
Events and Equalities)

Recommendation

To note the Equality and Inclusion Annual Progress Report 2019-2020

Summary

Our Equality and Inclusion Policy and Strategy 2018-23 sets out our commitment to 
equality and diversity, and how we will:

• tackle equalities issues
• aim to eliminate discrimination
• create good relationships between communities in Bristol
• ensure those from different backgrounds have similar life opportunities

The ‘Equality and Inclusion Annual Progress Report 2019-20’ shows what we have done 
in the period April 2019 to March 2020 to achieve these aims and the progress we have 
made.

Page 617

Agenda Item 9



Name of Meeting – Report

Policy

1. Equality and inclusion is at the heart of the council’s overall vision (set out in the Corporate Strategy 2018 – 
2023) to ‘play a leading role in driving a city of hope and aspiration where everyone can share in its success’.

2. The council’s Equality and Inclusion Strategy 2018 - 2023 sets out the opportunities and challenges facing 
Bristol (both the city and its council) and how it plans to address these. Within this is a commitment to 
provide an annual report on its progress against the strategy, as noted in the Bristol City Council Business 
Plan 2019/20.

Context

3. Whilst this report captures an important moment in time – the first full financial year following the 
adoption of its new Equality and Inclusion Policy and Strategy – the council has a long-standing commitment 
to equality, diversity and inclusion, and living up to this is a constant journey of learning, engagement and 
improvement. The council’s high aspirations haven’t always been adequately reflected in its strategic 
framework, its practice or its outcomes, and the Annual Progress Report seeks to more openly discuss and 
draw attention to progress and challenges.

4. The timeframe of the report mostly pre-dates the Covid-19 pandemic’s emergence in the UK and 
completely pre-dates the recent high profile removal of Bristol’s statue of Edward Colston, a moment which 
brought long-standing issues of systemic and structural race inequality even more sharply in to focus for the 
city. Whilst this Annual Progress Report does not address this more recent context, it is an issue which is 
very much part of our ongoing improvement journey as an institution and as a city, and we will be engaging 
further with the city and our staff about its implications.

5. Race equality was already a major internal focus for the council and during 2019/20 much work was 
undertaken to acknowledge and address institutional racism. This included independent support, 
facilitation and review which concluded after the end of the time period covered in the Annual Progress 
Report. The findings from this process have helped inform our ongoing work to improve practice across the 
council, and a forward-looking report about next steps will be presented to Cabinet on 14 July 2020.

6. In October 2019 the council helped to organise and host ‘Race and The City: Tackling Race Equality’ Bristol’s 
first Race Equality Conference - alongside Bristol Festival of Ideas, Bristol One City Office and the Cabinet 
Office’s Race Disparity Unit. This conference brought together leaders from across government, public and 
private sectors to celebrate the progress made in tackling racial inequality and discuss how remaining 
challenges can be overcome.

7. There was significant progress against our existing plans in 2019/20, though pace and leadership were 
impacted by a challenging recruitment process to find and appoint a permanent Head of Equality and 
Inclusion as part of a strengthened central equalities structure established following Full Council’s budget 
approval in February 2019.

8. Despite this, the year saw significant improvements in the delivery of training throughout the Council and 
encouraging staff survey results (whereby around three-quarters of staff felt treated fairly and able to be 
themselves at work), albeit this statistic also shows that there is still more room to improve.

9. The year also saw much progress in the necessary but unseen work of building stronger foundations for our 
corporate equalities practice. This included all council services completing an Equality Action Plan; 
establishing new governance structures and Equality Champions; reviewing the role of Staff Led Groups; 
reviewing HR policies for unconscious bias and more.

Page 618

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/33620/BCC+Business+Plan+2019+to+2020.pdf/a0db5349-c23b-0bfa-0314-604845c3087b
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/33620/BCC+Business+Plan+2019+to+2020.pdf/a0db5349-c23b-0bfa-0314-604845c3087b


Name of Meeting – Report

10. Meanwhile a range of diversity initiatives continued, including the multiple award-winning Stepping UP 
programme which operates City-wide to promote diversity in city leadership. Towards the end of the year, a 
new scheme was put in place to help improve corporate practice around implementing reasonable 
adjustments for disabled employees.

11. Whilst the council has continued to perform better than many comparable organisations in relation to pay 
gaps facing female, BAME and disabled staff, there are still disparities which are detailed in Appendix D, a 
pay gap report recently presented to HR Committee on 2 July 2020. There is no requirement upon 
employers to publish their ethnicity or disability pay gaps, but it is the Council’s policy is to publish this 
information as part of our drive to become an inclusive employer with a workforce that reflects the 
communities we serve. Work to further close these gaps in pay includes talent mapping, structured 
development opportunities, senior-level apprenticeships and embedding positive action principles in all 
recruitment and selection processes.

12. Given the current context of Covid-19 and our desire to become an exemplar employer and city leader in 
relation to equality, diversity and inclusion, a further review of the Council’s Equality and Inclusion Policy 
and Strategy will be undertaken in coming months. This is one of many strands of strategic work considering 
the Council’s and the City’s future as it recovers from the impact of the pandemic and the additional 
challenges it has brought people who were already deeply affected by systemic and structural inequality.

13. In the meantime the council will continue to take all opportunities to support BAME staff and communities 
within the city, building upon existing activities. These have included writing to all BAME staff about Covid-
19 and its disproportionate impact; conducting Covid-19 risk assessments for BAME staff in work settings; 
ensuring managers take necessary actions and organising all-staff webinars about race equality.

Consultation

14. Internal

 Staff Led Groups: Black and Minority Ethnic Employee Group; Disabled Employees Group; LGBT+ Group; 
Young Employee Voice.

 Policy, Strategy and Partnerships Divisional Management Team
 Corporate Leadership Board
 Deputy Mayor (Communities, Events and Equalities)

15. External

We circulated a draft version of the Annual Progress Report to key external stakeholders and their feedback 
has informed the final report: Bristol Disability Equality Forum, Bristol Hate Crime and Discrimination 
Services, Bristol Multi Faith Forum, Bristol Muslim Strategic Leadership Group, Bristol Older People’s Forum, 
Bristol Women’s Commission, Commission on Race Equality, Off The Record, The Care Forum, Voice and 
Influence Partnership, VOSCUR, WECIL.

Proposal

16. Full Council is asked to note APPENDIX A Equality and Inclusion Annual Report 2019-2020. 

Other Options Considered

Not applicable

Page 619



Name of Meeting – Report

Risk Assessment

Not applicable

Public Sector Equality Duties

16.a. Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker 
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected 
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the 
need to:

i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under 
the Equality Act 2010.

ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, 
to the need to --

- remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic;

- take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled 
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons' 
disabilities);

- encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in 
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –

- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.

16.b.   The Equality and Inclusion Annual Progress Report 2019-20 is a review of our progress on the 
objectives in The Equality and Inclusion Policy and Strategy – which set the standards and mechanism 
to ensure the council fulfils its obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty.

An Equalities Relevance Check has been carried out as is available at Appendix D.

Legal and Resource Implications

Legal
Regulation 5 of the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public Authorities) Regulations 2017  
requires some public authorities, including Bristol City Council, to prepare and publish one or more 
objectives it thinks it should achieve to do any of the things mentioned in paragraphs (a) to (c) of 
section 149(1) of the Equality Act i.e. 

Page 620



Name of Meeting – Report

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or 
under this Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and persons who do not share it;
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons 
who do not share it.

An objective published by a public authority in compliance with the Regulations must be specific and 
measurable.

The Equality and Inclusion Annual Progress Report 2019-20 details Bristol City Council’s objectives and 
is prepared and published to comply with the Regulation.

(Legal advice provided by Sarah Sharland - Team Leader Litigation Regulatory and Community Team, 
20th May 2020)

Financial (Revenue and Capital)

Noting of Bristol City Council’s Equality and Inclusion Annual Progress Report for 2019/20 is requested. 
The report is a retrospective assessment of progress against the 2018-23 strategy. There are no 
financial implications arising from this report.

(Financial advice provided by Jemma Prince - Finance Business Partner, 20 May 2020)

Land

Not applicable

Personnel

No direct HR implications as the report is for information.

(Personnel advice provided by James Brereton - People & Culture Manager, 18th May 2020)

Appendices:

APPENDIX A – Equality and Inclusion Annual report 2019-2020
APPENDIX B – Workforce Diversity Statistics Report 
APPENDIX C – Workforce Pay Gaps Report
APPENDIX D – Equalities Relevance Check

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers: None

Page 621



Page 1 

Equality and Inclusion
Annual Progress Report 2019-20
Introduction
The Equality Duty is supported by specific duties, set out in regulations which came into 
force on 10 September 2011. The specific duties require public bodies to:

 publish relevant, proportionate information demonstrating their compliance with the 
Equality Duty;

 to prepare and publish one or more specific, measurable objectives at least every four 
years and to report progress annually;

 publishing relevant equality information which will make public bodies transparent 
about their decision making processes, and accountable to their service users;

 information needs to be published and accessible to the public

Our Equality and Inclusion Policy and Strategy 2018-23 sets out our commitment to 
equality and diversity, and how we will:

 tackle equality issues
 aim to eliminate discrimination
 create good relationships between communities in Bristol
 ensure those from different backgrounds have similar life opportunities

This annual report shows what we have done in the period April 2019 to March 2020 to 
achieve the objectives of our Equality and Inclusion Policy and Strategy and the progress 
we have made in relation to equality and inclusion work across the council.

Making fair decisions
Equality Objective E01 – “Our handling of equality and inclusion will reach the high 
standards we expect of ourselves and others will look to us as a source of good practice.”

This objective is about what we will do to support the quality of decision making.

Structure and governance

Core staff structure and resources

We have established a new senior Head of Equality and Inclusion post and realigned our 
existing Equality Officers and Diversity, Inclusion and Employee Initiative Officers into a 
dedicated Equality & Inclusion Team. 

APPENDIX A

Page 622



Page 2 

We have also recruited a new Diversity Consultant and a new Equalities and Community 
Cohesion Officer into the team. The need for resources will be reviewed on an on-going 
basis.

Equality and Inclusion Champions

We have agreed a new Corporate Equality Governance Structure part of which includes 
the setting up of a new network of Equality and Inclusion Champions based throughout 
the council to focus on implementing Service Level equality action plans and 
championing equality.

Mike Jackson – Chief Executive is our senior equality and inclusion champion.

We have established new mechanisms for on-going dialogue, more interconnected and 
joined up working between teams, and created opportunities for sharing problems and 
good practice across the council.

We are establishing regular liaison meetings between these new structures and other 
relevant groups including our Staff-Led Groups, Bristol Commissions, and other relevant 
civil society organisations. 

Equality and Inclusion events

In October 2019 the council helped to organise and host ‘Race and The City: Tackling 
Race Equality’ Bristol’s first Race Equality Conference - alongside Bristol Festival of Ideas, 
Bristol One City Office and the Cabinet Office’s Race Disparity Unit. This conference 
brought together leaders from across government, public and private sectors to 
celebrate the progress made in tackling racial inequality and discuss how remaining 
challenges can be overcome.

Our Equality and Inclusion Strategy says that we will host an annual event to discuss the 
council’s progress against our objectives, identify upcoming issues and celebrate 
successes.

We hope to hold our next annual Equality and Inclusion event in late 2020. We will invite 
internal teams, Bristol Equality Network partners, Bristol commissions, relevant partners and 
civil society organisations with an interest in equality and inclusion to participate.

Improving Equality Impact Analysis

Bristol City Council uses Equality Impact Assessments (EqIA) as a way to evaluate our 
proposals to see whether they have the potential to affect people differently and support 
our decision making process. Their purpose is to identify and address any existing or 
potential inequalities to make what we do as fair as possible. We also use Equality 
Relevance Checks as a screening tool to identify whether particular proposals will require 

Page 623

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7np8n3HrQE8&t=12s


Page 3 

a full assessment. During 2019-20 we carried out 87 full Equality Impact Assessments and 79 
Equality Relevance Checks1.

An independent review of our Equality and Diversity Function2 in 2018 identified that 
equality impact assessments (EQIAs) were often undertaken after, rather than before, 
service design or service changes have been proposed, and that knowledge, skills and 
aptitude to understand how this agenda applies to service areas varied widely across the 
council. 

In response our Equality and Inclusion Team delivered Equality Impact Assessment training 
for over 100 council officers during 2019-20. Feedback from this training shows that our 
workforce has:

 Increased confidence in carrying out Equality Impact Assessments
 Gained a better understanding of equalities groups in Bristol
 More knowledge of where to find relevant data and evidence
 More insight into how proposals can affect different groups

Further to this in 2020-21 we will be undertaking a comprehensive review of our corporate 
Equality Impact Assessment process to make sure that equality and inclusion is considered 
as an ongoing process throughout our project lifecycles and reviewed at all decision-
making stages. We will work with internal and external stakeholders to produce an 
updated toolkit and templates which will ensure that our equality analysis:

 is timely, relevant and used to inform decisions;
 leads to clear actions and measures for success;
 includes methodology for cumulative impact assessments and budget setting;
 considers other relevant groups which are not explicitly protected by the Equality 

Act 2010

Our Workforce

Equality Objective E02 – “To build an inclusive organisation where the workforce reflects 
the city we serve and the needs of all citizens, and where colleagues feel confident about 
being themselves at work”.

This objective is about the council’s role as an employer.

We publish a quarterly Workforce Diversity Statistics Report (APPENDIX B) which provides 
staff data in terms of Age, Disability, Ethnicity, Gender, Religion / Belief and Sexual 
Orientation.

For each of these characteristics we report on: 

1 For more information including where to find published Equality Impact Assessments see 
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/people-communities/equalities-impact-assessments
2 Review of Bristol City Council’s Equality And Diversity Function - June 2018; Report Author: Kamaljit Poonia

Page 624

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/people-communities/equalities-impact-assessments
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/3188217/Review+BCC+Equality+and+Diversity+Function+-+June+2018.pdf/9214687d-5ac9-cf29-b024-cff5efa099c0


Page 4 

 Applications Received
 Applications Shortlisted
 Job Offers
 Employees in Post
 Employees in Post by Salary
 Training
 Grievances
 Disciplinaries
 Leavers and Leaving Reason
 Temporary Promotions/Secondments

Please see Workforce Diversity Data – Summary Analysis below for more information about 
what this data shows us.

Gaps in diversity reporting

We do not currently report on Marriage and Civil Partnership, or Pregnancy and Maternity 
in our workforce diversity monitoring. Gender reassignment has not historically been 
recorded on our staff diversity monitoring system, and there is a lack of robust population 
data for comparison. Our HR system now includes diversity monitoring for gender 
reassignment and we will analyse this for future reporting. 

Although our workforce diversity monitoring uses established categories3 for recording 
ethnic group and religion, corporate reporting has historically aggregated this data into 
broader categories such as ‘Black and Minority Ethnicity’. Our future reporting will have 
more detail to make it easier to identify and address any disparity for particular groups. 
This information will support the Council with any future workforce planning.

Organisational Improvement Plan
Our Organisational Improvement Plan, launched in 2019 provides the framework for our 
transformation journey; creating the conditions for everyone to perform at their best and 
help us create an inclusive, high-performing, healthy and motivated work place and 
become an employer of choice.

Complementing our core programme of HR and learning and development support, the 
five-year Organisational Improvement Plan outlines the cross-cutting actions that we will 
take to support this journey. One of the work-streams is diversity and inclusion and 
captures the actions we will take within the workforce.

Learning and Development

Equality is a golden thread through all our learning and development starting with the 
corporate induction for all new recruits to the council. A dedicated equality session within 
induction was delivered to 821 council officers in 2019/20. This initial experience is built on 

3 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/methodology/classificationsandstandards/measuringequality/ethnicgroupnationali
dentityandreligion

Page 625

https://www.ons.gov.uk/methodology/classificationsandstandards/measuringequality/ethnicgroupnationalidentityandreligion
https://www.ons.gov.uk/methodology/classificationsandstandards/measuringequality/ethnicgroupnationalidentityandreligion


Page 5 

through a programme of core equality training; 1,603 council officers completed “Your 
Rights, Your Responsibilities” e-learning in 2019/20 bringing the total to 4,293. Face to face 
workshops include Equality Foundation and Inclusive Leadership.

In addition to Inclusive Leadership with a strong focus on unconscious bias “Managing 
Diversity” is part of the core manager training with 183 managers completing the e-
learning during 2019/20, bringing the total to 918. A series of workshops focusing on line 
managers applying HR policies in a fair and inclusive way have been delivered within the 
People Directorate. This is also a focus within the Team Leader Development Programme 
which 147 leaders have participated in. The planned roll-out of the HR workshops within 
Growth and Regeneration has been paused due to the coronavirus pandemic. Inclusion 
is a cornerstone of the Director development work that took place during 2019 and all 
Directors have received Cultural Intelligence training.

During 2019-20 Staff Led Groups were offered 1-1 coaching and a full day training 
workshop. These groups were consulted in the process of developing new learning 
materials to ensure that provision was accessible and inclusive input by providing 
involvement at the planning stage for digital inclusion. Insight from staff led groups will be 
sought to design the specification for the next iteration of “Bristol Leads”. 

In addition we have drawn on the expertise of local partners to deliver specific training 
including the Black South West Network for race equality, the British Dyslexia Association 
for dyslexia and dyscalculia training; SARI (Stand Against Racism and Inequality) for 
cultural awareness and WECIL (West of England Centre for Inclusive Living) for disability 
equality. Funding has also been made available for Learning Disability training for 
colleagues in Adult Care.   

Our Organisational Improvement Plan makes clear that we are committed to equality 
and inclusion. The Plan’s one year review reported on the refresh of the e-learning 
programme to ensure it reflects good equality practice and meets business needs. This 
includes Equality Impact Assessment e-learning which 354 council officers have 
completed, (210 of these during 2019/20). Also Reasonable Adjustments e-learning which 
a total of 440 colleagues have completed (289 during 2019/20). There is a dedicated fund 
for translation and interpreting services to ensure that all training is accessible and £4,203 
was drawn down for this during 2019/20.

  We have begun work on e-learning packages to support positive action initiatives, such 
as gender pay gap.. More e-learning is planned e.g. on understanding neuro-diversity. 
The Organisational Development team is working on making equality and inclusion more 
explicit in the programmes and frameworks being designed and updated in 2020. Work 
has continued to embed organisational values throughout 2019, over 3,000 colleagues 
attended a values workshops   and a values e-learning package  has been developed. 

We are aligning learning and development to a cohesive talent management strategy to 
build inclusion and to develop talent from under-represented groups.

Page 626



Page 6 

A new learning and development module has been rolled out as part of our HR and 
Payroll system. This will enable us to re-start  the collation of equality data of participants  
so we can present a more detailed overview of take up in future reports.

See Summary of our Equality and Inclusion Training Offer section below.

Review of HR policies
We have reviewed our HR policies to identify potential for unconscious bias and make 
good practice improvements. This has included consultation workshops with managers, 
Trades Unions and our staff led groups on revised HR policies.

As part of this process we have been exploring reasons behind grievances and 
disciplinary actions involving under-represented groups so we can ensure our HR policies 
enable appropriate action to deal with any equality issues identified.

Staff Led Groups 
Our staff-led groups (SLGs) act as ambassadors for the council and help to make sure that 
decisions are properly informed by diverse and representative points of view. The groups 
are run by their members and SLGs work together to inform our policies, processes and 
training, and help all of us celebrate our diversity with events throughout the year. 
Members elect a chair, or co-chairs, for the group, along with several other roles. This core 
team takes responsibility for leading the SLGs’ agenda and delivery.

In 2019-20 the membership of our Staff-Led Groups increased by 20%, and our employee 
survey shows 64% awareness of the groups in our workforce.

However there was also acknowledgement that the 
interface between SLGs and the wider council and 
leadership was not always functioning as effectively as it 
could, and some important issues were not being fully 
addressed. In response to this we commissioned a 
comprehensive review to support the role and work of the 
SLGs and to maximise the effectiveness of the system. This 
started in July 2019. The scope of this review addressed a 
range of issues including internal dynamics, the 
governance framework, and the way in which the wider 
council and its leadership interact with the SLGs. 

Subsequently there has been collaborative work around 
the remit and influence of SLGs, resulting in new Terms of 
Reference and a refreshed Corporate Reporting 
Structure. These changes will allow quick decision making and further support and 
expand the SLGs’ voice within the Council.

Young Employees Voice 
has recently produced 
an external video to 
promote Bristol City 
Council as an employer 
of young people. It 
includes messages from 
young staff and details of 
how to contact the YEV 
staff led group for advice 
on employment for those 
aged16-27. 

Page 627



Page 7 

Purpose of our Staff-led groups4

Black and Minority Ethnic Employee Group

 To support and advise Bristol City Council in 
raising awareness on equality and diversity 
issues within the workplace.

 To maintain a network for Bristol City Council 
employees from a Black and Minority Ethnic 
(BME) background to support one another 
on work related issues.

 To ensure that BME staff have a voice and 
are fully involved in helping shape and 
improve how Bristol City Council operates.

 To continue to develop a working 
relationship with other Staff-Led Groups. 

Disabled Employees Group

 Work with the council to improve the 
recruitment, retention and training of 
disabled staff

 Ensure that disabled staff have a voice and 
are fully involved in helping shape and 
improve how Bristol City Council operates

 Maintain a network for disabled Bristol City 
Council employees and provide a safe 
space in which issues can be raised
work with other staff led groups to promote 
and champion diversity and equality issues

LGBT+ Group

 Support and advise Bristol City Council in 
raising awareness on equality and diversity 
issues within the workplace.

 Maintain a network for Bristol City Council 
employees from a Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual 
and Transgender (including Genderqueer, 
Non Binary, Questioning, Intersex and 
Asexual) background to support one 
another on work related issues.

 Continue to develop a working relationship 
with other Staff-Led Groups (SLGs) including 
the Promoting Diversity in the Workforce 
Group.

 Ensure that SLG staff have a voice and are 
fully involved in helping shape and improve 
how Bristol City Council operates.

Young Employee Voice

 To support and advise Bristol City Council in 
raising awareness on equality and diversity 
issues within the workplace.

 To maintain both a professional and social 
network for young employees at Bristol City 
Council.

 To continue to develop a working 
relationship with other Staff-Led Groups 
(SLGs) including the Promoting Diversity in 
the Workforce Group.

 To ensure that young employees have a 
voice and are fully involved in helping 
shape and improve how Bristol City Council 
operates.

Workforce Diversity Initiatives

Reverse mentoring

The Reverse Mentoring programme is open to all staff and offers the opportunity for our 
managers to learn from our diverse staff through gathering an understanding of 
viewpoints from under-represented groups within the council. For example a manager 
may have little or no engagement with members of the LGBTQ+ community and seeks to 
expand on their understanding of issues and requests a mentor. We have 12 new Reverse 

4 This section shows the stated purpose of our Staff Led Groups during 2019-20. The remit and influence of 
these groups has subsequently been reviewed and this will be reflected in future reporting.

Page 628



Page 8 

Mentors in place so colleagues from under-represented groups have an opportunity to 
mentor senior leaders and receive advice or learn new skills in return.

Diverse Recruiters 

The Diverse Recruiters scheme is designed and managed by the Equalities and Inclusion 
Team to help us recruit the best talent for roles within the Council. The objective is to help 
managers and candidates get the best possible experience and outcome from a job 
interview. Diverse Recruiters also help to ensure interview panels are aware of 
unconscious bias and have sufficient diversity of thought and experience. Our Diverse 
Recruiters scheme has 50 new participants to ensure some recruitment panels include 
members from underrepresented groups in our workplace.

Project Bristol Internship

Our Project Bristol Internship has 10 young people 
aged 18-24 years with learning disabilities on 
programme with a 65% success rate in obtaining 
permanent roles or apprenticeships.

Stepping Up Programme
The Stepping Up programme was launched in January 
2018 as a Bristol city-wide accelerated BAME 
leadership experience to create a diverse talent pool 
in Bristol, and supply a ready flow of individuals with 
aspiration and skills to reach the more senior roles. The 
design of the talent pipeline and pool has been co-
created with employers.

Cohort 1 launched with 45 participants and Cohort 2 
of the Stepping Up programme was expanded to 
include women and to disabled people whether or 
not they are also BAME with 55 participants.

The programme has demonstrated a positive impact with 100% of participants expressing 
increased confidence and 60% achieving promotion into management and leadership 
roles, as well as other achievements including a participant becoming a magistrate.

The Stepping Up programme won the South West Mentoring Award, the National PPMA 
Diversity Award and the Bristol Diversity Award. It has also recently been short listed for the 
Local Government Chronical National Diversity Award. Cohort 3 was recently launched 
with the same broad diversity lens and has 55 participants on programme.

Horumar

“I got my promotion - all 
down to Stepping Up”

“My confidence has 
increased beyond my 
expectations”

“The leadership modules
exceeded my  
expectations. It’s inspiring 
to be a part of this 
community of leaders 
stepping up!”

Page 629

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/mayor/stepping-up-programme


Page 9 

Bristol Somali community raised concerns with Stepping Up about a lack of engagement 
and involvement in city issues. Within 12 months of the engagement meeting 9% of 
Stepping Up participants were from the Somali community and over 30 Somali women 
have signed up to take part in Horumar (Going Forward in Somali) -  a  spin-off from the 
main Stepping Up Programme which forms part of the distributed model of social change 
movement. Horumar is a community based women’s development programme providing 
access to meaningful professional well-paid employment or self-employment. It develops 
women through a number of modules focussing on helping women obtain work, start 
businesses in their home, and to be a voice in their community. 

Disability Peer Navigator Scheme

In February 2020 we launched a Disability Peer Navigator Scheme to help ensure new 
disabled employees were provided with appropriate reasonable adjustments in a timely 
way. This worked by linking their Managers up with trained peers already working for the 
council, and supporting managers to increase their understanding and effectiveness in 
providing reasonable adjustments for disabled employees. We responded to feedback 
from disabled colleagues about the proposal for this scheme to ensure it was correctly 
described and designed in a way that best reflects the social model of disability.

Employee Engagement Survey
Our 2019 employee engagement survey tells us:

 73% of respondents report that they agree or strongly agree that “I feel able to be 
myself in the workplace”.

 76% feel ‘I am treated fairly by Bristol City Council’.

 71% of staff said they believe the council is committed to creating a diverse and 
inclusive environment.

We also included a set of questions related to specific protected characteristics:
% of respondents to the question “I am not treated inappropriately or unfairly because of my…”

View Age Sex Ethnicity Sexual 
Orientation

Religion/
Beliefs Disability Gender 

reassignment

Marriage/
Civil 

Partnership

Pregnancy/
Maternity

Strongly 
agree 34% 35% 37% 38% 35% 10% 7% 18% 7%

Agree 49% 49% 45% 46% 44% 16% 11% 24% 10%
Neither agree 
nor disagree 11% 11% 14% 14% 17% 11% 9% 10% 10%

Disagree 4% 3% 3% 1% 1% 2% 0.4% 1% 1%
Strongly 
disagree 2% 1% 2% 1% 2% 1% 0.1% 0.3% 0.3%

Not 
applicable - - - - - 59% 72% 47% 72%

We will compare these findings with the results of the 2020  Employment Engagement 
Surveys to help us measure the positive impact of our workforce equality and inclusion 
initiatives.

Page 630



Page 10 

Providing Inclusive Services

Equality Objective E03 – “To provide inclusive services which actively address inequality 
and exclusion and enable all of Bristol’s citizens to realise their potential and live safely” 

This objective is about the council’s role as a deliverer and commissioner of services.

Service Area Equality Action Plans
This year all our service areas have carried out a review of their functions to produce an 
Equality Action Plan for 2020-21. These plans prioritise relevant equality issues for their area 
of work, including addressing any under-representation and identify ways to address 
them with measurable targets to track progress.

Case study: Housing and Landlord Services

Housing and Landlord Services has implemented measures to increase the number of 
BAME employees within the service. The service aims to be representative of the wider 
Bristol community at all levels.

We have established a performance scorecard, a workforce plan and an equalities 
action plan that directly targets our ability to recruit and retain BAME staff. Each 
colleague will also have a development plan and access to relevant training. Race 
and equalities issues are discussed regular at the leadership team level and round 
table discussions have been initiated with BAME colleagues within the service to 
understand what we need to do to become an equal, inclusive and diverse service. 
We are also planning to pilot initiatives that are emerging from the Councils review of 
diversity and inclusion – including positive action for recruitment and employee 
development.

A service wide transformation programme called Moving Forward Together is 
specifically targeting race related issues within the service. A good example that is 
representative of the priority we give this issue concerns the recruitment of multi-trade 
apprentices. On average we recruit between 10-15 multi trade apprentices per 
annum. We take pride in having a very good induction and apprenticeship 
programme for those who secure employment with us. 90% of all apprentices 
eventually secure permanent roles within the service. For a number of years we have 
taken positive action to recruit BAME and female apprentices into the trade teams. 
75% of all apprentices recruited in the past four years have been from under-
represented groups to increase the diversity within the team. This is to ensure better 
representation to the tenants and residents we provide the service too. Historically we 
have been rewarded with recognition of this work from the Onsite Annual 
Apprenticeship awards. 

Page 631



Page 11 

From 2020-21 service area Equality Actions Plans will be reviewed and updated as part of 
our annual business planning cycle with support from our Equality and Inclusion Team. 

Commissioning and procurement

This year we have been working with council teams to ensure that we have a consistent 
and robust approach to equality in the commissioning and procuring of goods, works and 
services. This is so we can make sure that external organisations providing services on 
behalf of the council are able to demonstrate:

 A good understanding of the Equality Act 2010, including the Public Sector Equality 
Duty.

 As an employer that equality of opportunity is integral to vacancy advertising, 
recruitment, retention, promotion, training and grievances. 

 That services will be tailored and regularly reviewed to include understanding of the 
various service user needs, backgrounds and their differing requirements.

We will also be establishing new metrics to measure equality outcomes via the Social 
Value Portal.

Improving digital accessibility
Further to the commitment made through the Future State Assessment in 2018, the IT 
Transformation Programme (ITTP), together with Microsoft, demonstrated the new 
accessibility features of Windows 10 and Microsoft 365 to the BCC Disabled Employees’ 
Group. These new features and collaboration tools were generally well received with 
positive comments. However it was recognised that these new tools can only be fully 
experienced and exploited by our disabled staff when implemented in real work 
situations. We are now checking what IT related reasonable adjustments are in place so 
that we can exploit new accessibility technologies and ensure that existing arrangements 
are maintained where needed.

Communications support

A refreshed Communication Strategy was launched in 2019. As part of the action plan the 
council’s External Communications and Consultation Teams Internal Communications 
team have been developing a new Accessible Communications Policy to set out clear 
standards and principles on accessibility to apply across all communications, ensuring it’s 
based on best practice and via consultation with affected groups.

The council will also produce new guidance and a toolkit on our ‘House Style’ to increase 
accessibility and consistency in our written communications. 

A ‘Communications Basics’ session will be incorporated into mandatory corporate 
induction to make sure everyone knows our corporate narrative (the story of who we are, 
what we’re all about and what our top priorities are), what is expected of them and how 
they contribute to good, accessible communication. 

Page 632

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/tenders-contract/procurement-rules-regulations
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/tenders-contract/procurement-rules-regulations


Page 12 

Our Translation and Interpreting Service provides written translation in most languages 
and interpreters in over 40 languages including the languages most requested in Bristol: 
Arabic, Bengali, British Sign Language, Cantonese and Mandarin, Czech, Farsi, Kurdish, 
Polish, Portugese, Punjabi, Romanian, Somali, Turkish, Urdu, and Vietnamese. Where 
appropriate, telephone or video interpreting (for BSL only) will be offered as an alternative 
to face to face interpreting.

Our role as a leading agency 

Equality Objective E04 – “To achieve a measurable increase in the extent to which 
communities facing inequality can share in and contribute to the city’s success”. 

This objective is about the council’s role as a leading agency in the city.

Supporting the Mayoral Commissions - Women’s Commission and 
Commission on Race Equality (CORE)
We have established new Terms of Reference for Bristol Women’s Commission and Bristol 
Commission on Race Equality (CORE) to provide a clearly agreed scope of influence and 
mechanisms to feed into decision making processes in a timely manner. 

Bristol Women’s Commission was formed in 2015 as a partnership to meet Bristol’s 
obligations as a signatory to the European Charter for Equality between Women and Men 
in Public Life. The Women's Commission has established multi-agency task groups to 
address Women's Safety; Women's Representation in Public Life; Women and Transport; 
Women's Health; and Women and the Economy. For more information please see 
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/mayor/womens-commission 

The Bristol Commission on Race Equality (CORE) was formed in 2018 and works in 
partnership with cross-sector BAME networks to advance and prioritise race equality, 
influence local leaders, and increase the power and influence of BME people in Bristol. For 
more information see https://www.corebristol.com/ 

Bristol Equality Charter and Bristol Equality Network

In November 2018 we launched the Bristol Equality Charter - a city-wide initiative which 
has been co-produced by 20+ private, public and voluntary sector organisations in 
conjunction with Bristol City Council. The charter sets out a number of commitments to 
help with the aim of making Bristol a fairer, safer, accessible and inclusive city where 
everyone feels they belong, has a voice and an equal opportunity to succeed and thrive.

The Bristol Equality Charter now has 150+ signatories and we are supporting a Bristol 
Equality Network to work collectively on a citywide equality action plan. The Bristol 
Equality Network is open to representatives of organisations who have signed the Bristol 
Equality Charter.

Page 633

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/people-communities/translation-and-interpreting
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/mayor/womens-commission
https://www.corebristol.com/
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/people-communities/bristol-equality-charter


Page 13 

The purpose of the Bristol Equality Network is to support network members to achieve the 
aims and commitments of the Bristol Equality Charter; Develop excellent equalities 
practice through cross-sector partnership working and knowledge sharing; and 
encourage more organisations to sign the Bristol Equality Charter and participate in the 
network. The network is chaired on a rotating basis and has four main meetings where 
members come together to promote partnership working and to share information and 
good practice.

Bristol Race Equality Strategic Leaders Group
The city-wide Strategic Leadership Group is Chaired and supported by Bristol City Council. 
The group was set up in response to the Manifesto for Race Equality, to bring together all 
public sector organisations in the city to work collaboratively to tackle the endemic issues 
that the Manifesto raised. The key strategic challenge set by the group was to work 
collaboratively to share our Equality related HR data with the vision of producing a data 
picture of all Public Sector employment in Bristol.

Through positive partnership working the Leaders group produced and formally launched 
the first, ever award winning, Public Sector Race Equality Data product for Bristol. This first 
data picture, given the importance of the Public Sector as an employer now clearly sets 
out the challenge.

Future work will ensure actions focus on where we can make a measurable collective 
difference to the city of Bristol. A number of high level objectives have been agreed with 
all members, which it is hoped will have a positive impact on the data picture across the 
public sector in the City.

Voice and Influence Partnership
We commission The Voice and Influence Partnership to ask Bristol citizens from several 
equality groups for their views on our proposals and policies. The partnership brings 
together The Care Forum, Bristol Older People’s Forum, Centre for Deaf and Hard of 
Hearing People, OTR Freedom and  WECIL as delivery partners, with SARI and VOSCUR as 
advisory partners, to bring about positive change in local communities. During 2019-20 the 
Voice and Influence Partnership helped us to make public engagement with several 
major consultations including Clean Air Zone and Annual Budget Setting more 
representative of Bristol’s diverse population.

Bristol Muslim Strategic Leadership Group
The purpose of the Bristol Muslim Strategic Leadership Group (BMSLG) is to develop 
and strengthen Muslim communities in Bristol.

We are working with the BMSLG as part of a council services task group with the aim to 
work at policy and strategy design level so that service delivery is more responsive to the 
diversity of Bristol’s citizens, with a particular focus on Muslims. 

Page 634

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/policies-plans-strategies/bristol-race-equality-strategic-leaders-group
https://www.thecareforum.org/voice-influence-partnership/
https://www.thecareforum.org/
https://bopf.org.uk/
http://cfd.org.uk/
http://cfd.org.uk/
https://www.otrbristol.org.uk/what-we-do/freedom/
https://www.wecil.co.uk/
https://bmslgroup.wixsite.com/bmslgroup


Page 14 

Our role in the community

Equality Objective E05 – “Progressive building of good relationships between different 
communities in Bristol so everyone is able to participate and contribute”

This objective is about the council’s role in the community.

Fostering good relations

Part of our Public Sector Equality Duty is to foster good relations between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. This includes 
community activities to tackle prejudice (a stereotypical opinion or feeling about 
individuals who share a particular protected characteristic), and promote understanding 
(a proper knowledge of the real nature and circumstances of individuals who share a 
particular protected characteristic).

Case study: Safeguarding and FGM

Since professionals have had a statutory duty towards preventing and responding to 
cases of Female Genital Mutilation (FGM), significant awareness and robust action was 
taken to try and stop the practice and keep girls safe. This led to an increase of 
referrals being made to statutory safeguarding agencies to take proactive action 
where FGM was suspected. 

A new multi-agency tool, the FGM Referral Risk Assessment tool was developed by 
multi-agency partners and representatives of FGM affected communities. This was in 
response to feedback from communities about concerns for families being 
disproportionately referred into statutory agencies for assessments when they were 
planning on going holiday .

Since the tool has come into effect the number of referrals to has dropped significantly 
into safeguarding agencies. The tool has been accompanied by a refreshed multi-
agency training with explicit reference to cultural competency being included the 
aims and objectives. Our collaborative approach in working in partnership with 
communities for this piece of work has been recognised locally, nationally and 
internationally. The Keeping Bristol Safe Partnership has also commissioned an 
independent review into the impact of the tool on the communities and the 
effectiveness in keeping children safe.

Page 635

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty


Page 15 

Examples of what we are doing now and will be doing in future

 Develop an ‘inclusive communities’ approach in the way Bristol City Council and 
partners work in and with place based communities to build more welcoming and 
inclusive places to live5.

 Deliver and build on projects such as Everyday Integration, Inclusive Cities and City of 
Sanctuary.

 Work as partners in the multi-agency Tackling Islamophobia Working Group, set up by 
SARI in response to a rise in hate crime against Muslims. Recent activities include an 
awareness raising event to promote responsible, fair reporting from all media outlets.

 Work with Bristol Ageing Better to help create Age Friendly Streets
 Work with partners in 10 neighbourhoods across Bristol to build communities – 

facilitating connections between neighbours and communities who may not otherwise 
come together to take action on shared interests

 Continue to support International Women’s Day with an annual event at City Hall 
hosted by Bristol Women’s Voice.

 Collaborate with others to create spaces for sharing knowledge, insight and 
experience between place based communities and communities of interest to build 
alliances and understanding

 Promote and celebrate Bristol’s diversity and cultural heritage by supporting 
community-led initiatives, e.g. Black History Month, Pride, and the International Day of 
Disabled People.

 Leading an innovative city-wide approach in improving the quality of race related 
data recorded, reported and shared across Bristol.

 Our actions to meet this objective will be updated and amplified once our 
Neighbourhoods and Communities service plan has been finalised, following a 
significant reshaping of this area of our work.

Next Steps

The Equality & Inclusion Team will be expanding and will be looking to make a positive 
impact on equality, diversity and inclusion in the service. 

Governance - E&I Structure 

This will include a more strategic role with more operational touch points in services. We 
are looking to develop a more robust organisation wide ED&I reporting structure which will 
include a Strategic Equality & Inclusion Leaders Group with the establishment of  E&I 
meetings to service each of the Directorates. It is envisaged that representation will be 
from across the Directorates including the Equality Champions and members of the E&I 
team. We are also looking to develop a more meaningful inclusion agenda with a focus 
on inclusive leadership without the dilution of individual equality themes and the ‘lived in 
experience’.

5 See https://www.bristol.gov.uk/people-communities for examples of specific strands of community 
cohesion work.

Page 636

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/people-communities


Page 16 

Equality Framework for Local Government

We are aiming to reach ‘Achieving’ status of the Equality Framework for Local 
Government in 2020-21. The Equality Framework for Local Government (EFLG) provides a 
framework which will enable all services to embed equality, diversity and inclusion and 
develop good practice. There are 3 levels of accreditation which are ‘Developing’, 
‘Achieving’ and Excellent status. There are 11 local authorities at ‘Excellent’ status. 
Reaching Achieving and Excellence will enable the Council to demonstrate our 
commitment and outcomes to our communities, staff, partners and the city.

During the journey to reaching ‘Achieving’ we will be developing a range of Equality 
Diversity and Inclusion change management programmes which will aim to tackle 
inequality in employment, service delivery, customer service, consultation/engagement 
and commissioning of services. This will be building on an ongoing piece of work within 
the Council to ensure equality and inclusion practices are meeting best practice and 
tackling underlying issues that have been raised, including several new initiatives within HR 
around recruitment, learning and development and talent management.

Stonewall Workplace Equality Index

We are working towards the Stonewall UK Workplace Equality Index, however due to 
COVID 19, Stonewall have changed the normal annual submission and benchmarking 
index and have replaced it with a comprehensive series of Workplace Equality Index 
Support for 2021. This will enable us to ensure that LBGT inclusion continues to thrive during 
this period and BCC will use this period and work to prepare for its annual submission 
during 2022. 

The Workplace Equality Index Support Series will consist of new criteria webinars, 
consultancy sessions and common challenge webinars. This support package will 
commence during June 2020 and ends during March 2021.

Workforce initiatives 

We commissioned an external consultant who highlighted a number of areas of 
improvement in relation to our workforce. A range of initiatives have now being 
developed under three thematic areas, Strategy and Change, Recruitment, Selection 
and Talent Management, Performance and Culture. These initiatives will  aim to drive 
change in relation to developing a more inclusive workforce by, introducing values based 
recruitment and selection, providing greater opportunities in relation to secondments, 
promotions and learning opportunities for under-represented groups, developing 
effective and positive and communication messaging across the organisation, 
improvement of data collection and the establishment of a data warehouse and 
delivering a range of  programmes to develop inclusive leaders with the right capabilities 
to be a leader in the a diverse workplace and community.

Page 637

https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/equality-frameworks/equality-framework-local-government
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/equality-frameworks/equality-framework-local-government
https://www.stonewall.org.uk/creating-inclusive-workplaces/workplace-equality-indices/uk-workplace-equality-index


Page 17 

Refresh of the Equality& Inclusion Policy and Strategy - 2018 – 2023

BCC has now has its Equality & Inclusion Policy and Strategy in place for just over 18 
months. This report has already highlighted the improvements and progress the council 
has been making in relation to the five E&I objectives during the past 18 months.

During the next reporting period a refresh of the Policy and Strategy will be undertaken. 
This refresh demonstrates that we do not see this document as something that just sits on a 
shelf, but is a ‘living’ document that will be changed and updated to reflect national, 
local issues, best practice and demographic changes. 

Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA)

It is our intention to undertake a review of the current EqIA toolkit and training 
programme. The Equality and Inclusion team recognise that EqIAs need to be refreshed 
and reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that managers are using the EqIA toolkit to 
support key impacts and support the decision making pathways.

Staff Engagement

We have  commenced a range of open dialogue sessions with staff members, managers 
and our Executive leaders to discuss impacts of COVID 19, Black Lives Matter and 
structural racism. It is envisaged that these sessions will provide a safe space to staff 
members to ask questions and work with leaders to identify solutions to new ways of 
working and dismantling racism and discrimination. This will be supported by a range of 
resources and toolkits to support managers and staff members to fully understand these 
issues. 

Equality & Inclusion Annual Event

We will plan to host another annual Equality & Inclusion, to discuss the council’s progress 
against our objectives, identify upcoming issues and celebrate successes. We will invite 
internal teams, Bristol Equality Network partners, Bristol commissions, relevant partners and 
civil society organisations with an interest in equality and inclusion to participate. 

Service Equality Action Plans

Last year all service areas produced their first Service Equality Plan, it is envisaged that 
regular monitoring will be undertaken monitoring progress against each of the actions 
identified in the action plans. The progress of these action plans are now supported by a 
new Key Performance Indicator (KPI.  Service Areas will self-assess their progress and the 
Equality and Inclusion team will monitor and report twice a year to the Corporate 
Leadership Board (CLB). 

COVID-19 Response

The Equality and Inclusion Team have also played an active role in identifying and 
addressing the differing needs of vulnerable citizens during the COVID-19 outbreak, and 

Page 638



Page 18 

continues to play vital a role in the recovery work so that good practice is at the heart of 
it. This includes facilitating citywide discussions about inclusive recovery, contributing to 
equalities focused task and finish groups, and providing a regularly updated equality 
impact assessment summarising known equalities issues and potential mitigations, for use 
by council teams.

For further information about what the council and other groups and organisations have 
done to help communities, businesses and individuals affected by coronavirus in Bristol 
see https://www.bristol.gov.uk/council-and-mayor/bristols-response-to-coronavirus-covid-
19. 

Page 639

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/council-and-mayor/bristols-response-to-coronavirus-covid-19
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/council-and-mayor/bristols-response-to-coronavirus-covid-19


Page 19 

Summary of our Equality and Inclusion Training Offer

Unconscious Bias Training
We have refreshed our training offer to include more time for unconscious bias in 
recruitment training. Unconscious Bias is included in our Diverse Recruiter training 
and has been incorporated into recruitment guidance notes and training for 
Managers.
Diverse Recruiters
Diverse recruiters is both a programme and a course (see section above)  
A two hour training programme has been designed and facilitated for staff wishing 
to become Diverse Recruiters. The course is part of a selection process that involves 
the completion of the relevant Fair Recruitment and Selection Training. 
The course content covers;

 The role and responsibility of Diverse Recruiters.
 Overview of the Public Sector Duty of the Equality Act 2010.
 Understanding our unconscious biases.
 Identifying unconscious bias in the recruitment and selection processes.
 Demonstrates constructive challenge as an approach to challenging biases in 

the selection process.

We are now extending the initiative by working with Bristol University on a joint 
programme whereby the Council will be offering Diverse Recruiters from Bristol 
University to broaden the diversity lens and to increase the numbers of Diverse 
Recruiters available for panels.
Reverse Mentoring
Reverse Mentoring is both a programme and a training course (see section above).
The course content covers:

 The role and responsibilities of Reverse Mentoring.
 Communicating and agreeing the 6 month programme.
 Managing confidentiality and timescales. 
 Challenging behaviours for the mentor or mentee.

The matching, management and evaluation is managed by the Equalities and 
Inclusion Team. The Reverse Mentoring programme was piloted with the MOD in 
2019 and a new programme launched in 2020 with a view to increasing the 
numbers on programme.
Women in Leadership

Page 640



Page 20 

This is a joint programme with South Gloucestershire Council. We piloted a Women In 
Leadership Programme jointly with South Gloucestershire Council. The course was 
spread over 3 months and was 2.5 days in duration. The course is aimed at women 
or those who identify as female. The details are:

Women who wish to progress into a more Senior Management Role or those who 
wish to take the first steps into management

This women’s leadership development programme seeks to address the under 
representation of women in management roles within the Council through a 
women’s only programme which builds confidence, informal networks and 
develops an understanding of women as future leaders. This inspiring and engaging 
programme is for either existing female managers who wish to progress in their 
careers or those aspiring to be managers and leaders.

Due to Covid 19 restrictions the 2020 programme has been delayed but we have  
participants who will be starting the virtual programme in September.

Stepping Up Programme 
Stepping Up is a senior leadership Positive Action Programme aimed at improving 
the representation of Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic people, disabled people and 
women in senior leadership roles within Bristol and the wider region (see section 
above). The duration is 12 months. 

There are plans to extend this programme further to ensure that there is a regional 
reach in line with the WECA funding requirement. Its success has also meant that 
there is more interest in developing the programme more widely and it is becoming 
a recognised brand.
Rights and Responsibilities Training
This is a 2 hour course delivered by the Equalities and Inclusion Team mainly in ‘hot 
spot’ areas or where a specific request has been made by a Service Manager or 
Director.
The course covers the rights model for embedding effective equality, diversity and 
inclusion at work, whilst understanding the legal requirements under the Equality Act 
2010 and the specific duty. It helps to demonstrate to participants how to challenge 
inappropriate/ unacceptable language and behaviours in the workplace and 
beyond. It seeks to embed diversity and inclusion through behavioural change.
Project Bristol
This is a 9 month internship programme based within the council for young people 
aged 18-25 with learning disabilities (see section above). It works on a 3 month 
rotation, rotating into various roles and seeks to help young people into permanent 
roles or apprenticeships. Delivered by the Equalities and Inclusion Team and a 
remote team in Temple Street.
Equalities Impact Assessment Training
This course is delivered to managers and those who need to understand how to 
develop an EQIA (see section above). It was delivered a monthly basis throughout 
2019-20 by the Equalities and Inclusion Team.
Cultural Intelligence

Page 641



Page 21 

Pilot cultural intelligence session run with  Senior Leadership Team 

This workshop helps leaders explore how their own cultural values and preferences 
impact on their inclusive leadership style and approach to working within diverse 
cultural contexts.
 

E-learning

 Induction (virtual and face to face)
  

 Implementing Reasonable Adjustments 
 Managing Diversity - Mandatory for all managersEquality and Diversity – Your 

Rights and Responsibilities
 Managing Diversity - be completed before attending Inclusive Leadership
 Equality Impact Assessments – Mandatory for All Managers
 Implementing Reasonable Adjustments
 Managing Diversity
 Trans Awareness
 Basic Autism Awareness
 Drug and Alcohol Awareness
 Mental Health Awareness
 Personal Resilience
 Stress Awareness
 Supporting You Through Change
 Agile Working – An Introduction 
 Emotional Intelligence
 Personal Resilience
 Project Management
 Questioning Techniques
 Assertive Communication
 Fair Selection and Recruitment Refresher Training
 Mental Health awareness Agile Working – Advice for Managers
 Giving and Receiving Feedback
 People Management – Supporting Attendance


Trainer delivered courses

 Corporate Induction which includes an equality and inclusionelement
 Inclusive Leadership 
 Fair Selection and Recruitment Training – Mandatory if Manager is to recruit 

employees
 Mental Health First Aid
 Having effective  Conversations
 Equalities Foundation – rights and responsibilities workshop
 Beyond Belief – Religion , Faith and Belief in the Workplace
 Assistive Technology – Foundation Assistive Technology – Refresher
 Restorative Approaches

Page 642



Page 22 

 Loss and Bereavement
 Autism Spectrum Conditions

Workforce Diversity Data – Summary Analysis
The section summarises the key highlights from our detailed quarterly reports6. For more 
information see Appendix A – Workforce Diversity Statistics Report.

Bristol City Council
Bristol Economically Active 
Citizens (Census 2011)7

AGE GROUPS
16 to 24 3.8% 17%
25 to 34 18.1% 29%
35 to 44 22.3% 22%
45 to 54 28.8% 19%
55 to 64 23.7% 11%
65 plus 3.3% 2%
DISABILITY
Not Disabled 81.2% 93%
Disabled 9% 12%
Unknown 9.8% -
ETHNICITY
Black and Minority 
Ethnicity 11.6% 13%
White Minority 
Ethnicity 5% 8%
White British 74.3% 80%
Unknown 9.1% -
SEX
Female 59.7% 47%
Male 40.3% 53%
RELIGION OR BELIEF
No religion or 
belief 36% 45%
Christian 40% 42%
Other religion or 
belief 24% 7%
SEXUAL ORIENTATION
Heterosexual 94% 94%
Lesbian, Gay or 
Bisexual 6% 6%

6 Analysis is based on HR records from 31 December 2019.
7 We have used diversity data from Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual 
Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS) as a benchmark for comparison, however we acknowledge that a 
proportion of council employees live outside of the Bristol local authority boundary.

Page 643



Page 23 
Page 644



Page 24 

Age

16 to 24
 4%

25 to 34
 18% 35 to 44

 22%
45 to 54

 29%

55 to 64
 24%

65 plus
 3%

Recruitment and representation

The numbers of employees aged 16 to 24 as a proportion of the entire workforce had 
been slowly increasing over the last five years, however in the past year this has 
plateaued with very little increase. There is a relatively high number of applications from 
the 16 to 24 age group but they are not being shortlisted and offered jobs at the same 
rate. The 25 to 34 age group is receiving a third of all job offers which should help push the 
Employee in Post percentage up towards the Census percentage.

Both younger and older employees are leaving proportionally more compared to 
Employees in Post. The 45 to 54 age group are steadfastly staying on. A large proportion 
of under 35's are leaving after the end of a fixed term contract. This could be an 
indication that younger employees are choosing to work more flexibly.

Pay

The proportion of employees aged 16-24 in the “£20k to £29k” pay bracket has increased 
from 2.57% last year to  3.64% this year, and the proportion in the “Less than £20k” pay 
bracket has increased from 7% last year to 11.69%  this year.

Grievance and disciplinary

Older employees are slightly more likely to submit a grievance.

Page 645



Page 25 

Disability

Not Disabled
 81%

Disabled
 9%

Unknown
 10%

Recruitment and representation

Over the previous five years the proportion of disabled employees has been stable and 
slowly increasing. There is some variance between the directorates in the proportion of 
disabled employees. Currently 9.8% of employees are disabled.

Job offers by disabled status 7.21% is slightly above the Bristol Local Authority (7%) and 
Travel to Work Area economically active populations. However this is lower than the Bristol 
working age population of disabled people (12.4%) 

The proportion of disabled employees shortlisted (7.89%) suggests that the policy of 
guaranteeing an interview for disabled employees who meet the essential criteria is 
having a positive effect.

Pay

In 2019-20 Disabled employees were over-represented in the salary band earning £20k-
29k (11.24%), though not in the lowest salary bands. They were also somewhat under-
represented in those earning £50k+ (8.28%).

Grievance and disciplinary

Disabled employees were over-represented in grievances (14.29%), and disciplinaries 
(20.59%).

Page 646



Page 26 

Ethnicity

Black and Minority 
Ethnicity

 12%

White Minority 
Ethnicity

 5%

White British
 74%

Unknown
 9%

Recruitment and representation

The overall percentage of our Black Asian and Minority Ethnicity workforce has increased 
from 10.5% in 2017 to 12.72%. The proportion of BAME employees has increased over the 
past five year but at a slowing rate.

20.98% of council job applications were from BAME candidates, compared to the working 
age Bristol BAME population of 13%. 17.5% of shortlisted candidates were BAME, and 
13.7% of those offered jobs were BAME applicants. Therefore, there is some variance from 
application to jobs offered.

There is a disproportionately large number of BAME employees on fixed term contracts. 
The low retirement figure coupled with the high number of fixed term contracts suggests 
that BAME employees have a younger age profile.

Pay

In 2019-20 BAME employees were proportionally under represented on higher salary 
bands and earned on average 12.06% less than White British employees. Only 4.35% of 
those council employees earning £50k+ were BAME. However this race pay gap has been 
reducing year on year and was 15.38% in 2016-17. The percentage difference in 
progression rate of BAME employees and non BAME employees was 1.09%. 

Grievance and disciplinary

Black and Minority Ethnicity staff are statistically more likely to be subject to formal 
grievance (33% of all grievances) & disciplinaries (17.65%).

Page 647



Page 27 

Sex

Female
 60%

Male
 40%

Recruitment and representation

Men are somewhat under-represented in our workforce (38.59%) however there is wide 
variance between the directorates in the proportion of female and male employees, and 
in some service areas women are under-represented.

60% of our permanent female employees work part time compared to 21% of our 
permanent male employees8. The council has a Flexible Working Policy9 and is committed 
to helping all its employees achieve a balance between their working life and other 
priorities such as parental and caring responsibilities etc.

Pay

We publish our gender pay gap every 12 months. The gender pay gap report shows the 
pay gap between female and male Bristol City Council employees for the year ending 31 
March 201810. This report shows that we have been making progress to closing the gender 
pay gap of 8.9%. Female employees are proportionally over-represented on the lowest 
salary band.

Bristol City Council will continue to address the ongoing difference in both mean and 
median percentages through further analysis of the reasons for disparity at a service level. 
Some of these are for historic and cultural reasons (national and local), which will take 

8 HR Records March 2020
9 BCC Flexible Working Policy for Employees
10 The deadline for 2019/20 was 30 March 2020. Due to Coronavirus (COVID-19), enforcement of reporting 
deadlines does not apply to organisations in the 2019/20 reporting year.

Page 648

https://gender-pay-gap.service.gov.uk/employer/Ccu4bZ7O
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/33892/Flexible_Working_Policy_for_Employees_0.pdf/e2ee880a-d53c-4c80-99e2-d360c3b3521a


Page 28 

time to find a resolution. These include encouraging female applicants into traditional 
male occupations (e.g. engineering and traffic management).

Grievance and disciplinary

Men are more often subject to grievance and disciplinary measures (62.5% compared to 
40% of the overall workforce).

Religion and Belief
No religion or belief

 36%
Christian

 40%
Other religion or belief

 24%

Recruitment and representation

The number of employees declaring themselves as having no religion or belief has been 
increasing rapidly over the last five years (37% compared to 41.5% of the Bristol working 
age population11).

There are a large number of "unknowns" that need to be reduced to improve the 
accuracy of this information.

The high proportion job offers suggest that the amount of employees with no religion or 
belief will continue to increase at a rapid pace.

Pay

The category "Other religion or belief" is disproportionately represented at the lowest 
salary bracket.

11 2011 Census information

Page 649



Page 29 

Grievance and disciplinary

No statistically significant disparity identified.

Sexual Orientation

Heterosexual
 94%

Lesbian, Gay or 
Bisexual

 6%

Recruitment and representation

The application rate for Lesbian, Gay or Bisexual (LGB) employees 5.81%, compared to 
LGB economically active citizens (4%), the shortlist rate is similar (5.57%) and is the job offer 
rate (5.02%). The LBG workforce is currently 6.3% and the leaver rate is 8.82%

The number of employees declaring themselves as LGB has been increasing over the last 
five years. However LGB employees are leaving at a somewhat higher rate than 
heterosexual employees. There are a large number of "unknowns" that need to be 
reduced to improve the accuracy of this information.

Pay

No statistically significant disparity identified.

Grievance and disciplinary

No statistically significant disparity identified.

Page 650



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

HR Management Information Report 
31 March 2020 

Workforce Diversity Statistics 
 
 

Produced by the HR Reward and Analytics team in Bristol City Council. 
In case of query, please email hr.analytics@bristol.gov.uk 

Page 1 of 70

P
age 651

APPENDIX B

mailto:hr.analytics@bristol.gov.uk


Contents 

 
Key observations 3 
Explanatory notes 4 
Diversity reports  
The characteristics of Age, Disability, Ethnicity, Gender, Religion 
/ Belief and Sexual Orientation have reports on Applications 
Received, Applications Shortlisted, Job Offers, Employees in 
Post, Employees in Post by Salary, Training, Grievances, 
Disciplinaries, Leavers and Leaving Reason. 

 

Age 5 
Disability 15 
Ethnicity 25 
Gender 35 
Religion / Belief 45 
Sexual Orientation 55 

 

Page 2 of 70

P
age 652



Key observations and questions raised in this report 

 
Recruitment 
We are attracting large numbers of BME and young applicants but they are not getting shortlisted or job offers at the same rate. 
Pages 7 and 29 have more details. 
 
Disabled employees 
Over the previous five years the proportion of disabled employees has been increasing. 
Page 19 has more details. 
 
Salary 
The number of BME and female employees on lower salary brackets is disproportionately high. 
Pages 29 and 42 have more details. 
 
Fixed term contracts 
Younger and BME employees are more likely to be employed on fixed term contracts than non-BME employees. 
Pages 15 and 37 have more details. 
 
Religion / Belief 
The number of employees declaring themselves as having no religion or belief has increased rapidly over the last five years. 
Page 52 has more details. 
 
Sexual orientation 
The number of employees declaring themselves as LGB has been increasing over the last five years. 
Page 63 has more details. 

Page 3 of 70

P
age 653



Explanatory notes 
 
 
Data excludes: casuals; agency staff; volunteers; employees of other organisations. 
 
Applications, shortlisted applications and job offers don’t include apprenticeships or chief officer posts. 
 
Employees with more than one job with the council are included once for each job. 
 
Training data only covers the period 1 January 2019 to 31 March 2019. iTrent does not currently hold training data. 
 
The Resources directorate includes Mayor officers. 
 
Source: iTrent; Selima Vision HR; Unit4 Recruitment; HR Casework database; Census 2011; Annual Population Survey; Quality of Life 
2015/16. 
  

Page 4 of 70

P
age 654



Applications Received by Age

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 1103 17.94% 2458 39.99% 1185 19.28% 1633 26.57% 898 14.61% 922 15.00% 472 7.68% 31 0.50% 432 6579 100%

People 764 17.56% 1642 37.73% 998 22.93% 1362 31.30% 644 14.80% 567 13.03% 287 6.59% 17 0.39% 153 4505 100%

Resources 446 16.46% 1060 39.13% 568 20.97% 801 29.57% 428 15.80% 385 14.21% 190 7.01% 17 0.63% 284 2993 100%

Bristol City Council 2313 17.51% 5160 39.07% 2751 20.83% 3796 28.74% 1970 14.92% 1874 14.19% 949 7.19% 65 0.49% 869 14077 100%

Bristol LA* 16% 28% 31% 23% 2%
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 15% 25% 32% 25% 3%
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

268,100         

483,200         

16 to 24 45 to 54 55 to 64 65 plus Total35 to 4425 to 34 35 to 49 50 to 64

Page 5 of 70

P
age 655



Applications Shortlisted by Age

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 187 12.04% 542 34.90% 342 22.02% 487 31.36% 303 19.51% 329 21.18% 171 11.01% 8 0.52% 102 1655 100%

People 163 10.88% 537 35.85% 383 25.57% 537 35.85% 280 18.69% 259 17.29% 133 8.88% 2 0.13% 73 1571 100%

Resources 81 10.47% 301 38.89% 191 24.68% 256 33.07% 131 16.93% 131 16.93% 65 8.40% 5 0.65% 72 846 100%

Bristol City Council 431 11.27% 1380 36.08% 916 23.95% 1280 33.46% 714 18.67% 719 18.80% 369 9.65% 15 0.39% 247 4072 100%

Bristol LA* 16% 28% 31% 23% 2%
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 15% 25% 32% 25% 3%
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Apps Received 2313 17.51% 5160 39.07% 2751 20.83% 3796 28.74% 1970 14.92% 1874 14.19% 949 7.19% 65 0.49% 869 14077 100%

268,100           

483,200           

16 to 24 45 to 54 55 to 64 65 plus Total35 to 4425 to 34 35 to 49 50 to 64

Page 6 of 70

P
age 656



Job Offers by Age

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 43 14.68% 105 35.84% 62 21.16% 93 31.74% 56 19.11% 50 17.06% 25 8.53% 2 0.68% 10 303 100%

People 24 7.62% 136 43.17% 65 20.63% 94 29.84% 64 20.32% 61 19.37% 26 8.25% 0 0.00% 25 340 100%

Resources 17 8.90% 88 46.07% 47 24.61% 60 31.41% 27 14.14% 25 13.09% 11 5.76% 1 0.52% 15 206 100%

Bristol City Council 84 10.51% 329 41.18% 174 21.78% 247 30.91% 147 18.40% 136 17.02% 62 7.76% 3 0.38% 50 849 100%

Bristol LA* 16% 28% 31% 23% 2%
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 15% 25% 32% 25% 3%
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Apps Shortlisted 431 11.27% 1380 36.08% 916 23.95% 1280 33.46% 714 18.67% 719 18.80% 369 9.65% 15 0.39% 247 4072 100%

Apps Received 2313 17.51% 5160 39.07% 2751 20.83% 3796 28.74% 1970 14.92% 1874 14.19% 949 7.19% 65 0.49% 869 14077 100%

Employees in Post 247 3.82% 1166 18.05% 1438 22.26% 1866 28.88% 1866 28.88% 1530 23.68% 1530 23.68% 214 3.31% 0 6461 100%

Comments

268,100      

483,200      

There is a relatively high number of applications from the 16 to 24 age group but they are not being shortlisted and offered jobs at the same rate.
The 25 to 34 age group is receiving over a third of all job offers which should help push the Employee in Post percentage up towards the Census percentage.

16 to 24 45 to 54 55 to 64 65 plus Total35 to 4425 to 34 35 to 49 50 to 64

Page 7 of 70

P
age 657



Employees in Post by Age

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 134 5.44% 431 17.49% 526 21.35% 840 34.09% 704 28.57% 968 39.29% 578 23.46% 91 3.69% 0 2464 100%

People 49 2.17% 434 19.18% 544 24.04% 828 36.59% 621 27.44% 889 39.28% 552 24.39% 63 2.78% 0 2263 100%

Resources 64 3.69% 301 17.36% 368 21.22% 626 36.10% 541 31.20% 683 39.39% 400 23.07% 60 3.46% 0 1734 100%

Bristol City Council 247 3.82% 1166 18.05% 1438 22.26% 2294 35.51% 1866 28.88% 2540 39.31% 1530 23.68% 214 3.31% 0 6461 100%

Bristol LA* 16% 28% 31% 23% 2%
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 15% 25% 32% 25% 3%
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Comments

5 4 3 2 1 Now
16-24 3.91% 4.27% #### 3.88% 3.91% 3.82%
65+ 3.14% 1.99% #### 2.79% 2.93% 3.31%

268,100      

483,200      

35 to 49 50 to 64

Numbers of employees aged 65 plus as a proportion of the entire workforce has been slowly increasing over the last five years, while the number of 16-24 year olds has remained stable.

16 to 24 45 to 54 55 to 64 65 plus Total35 to 4425 to 34

5 4 3 2 1 Now
16-24 3.91% 4.27% 4.45% 3.88% 3.91% 3.82%
65+ 3.14% 1.99% 2.62% 2.79% 2.93% 3.31%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

%
 o

f w
or

kf
or

ce
 

Years ago 

Change in percentage of 16-24 and 65+ age groups 

16-24

65+

Page 8 of 70

P
age 658



Employees in Post by Salary and by Age

Salary Unknown

Less than £20k 138 12.34% 149 13.33% 151 13.51% 271 24.24% 268 23.97% 468 41.86% 320 28.62% 92 8.23% 0 1118 100%
£20k-£29k 94 3.64% 596 23.06% 559 21.62% 856 33.11% 706 27.31% 979 37.87% 570 22.05% 60 2.32% 0 2585 100%
£30k-£39k 15 0.75% 373 18.68% 556 27.84% 845 42.31% 581 29.09% 716 35.85% 424 21.23% 48 2.40% 0 1997 100%
£40k-£49k 0 0.00% 42 7.47% 126 22.42% 229 40.75% 219 38.97% 280 49.82% 164 29.18% 11 1.96% 0 562 100%
£50k+ 0 0.00% 6 3.02% 46 23.12% 93 46.73% 92 46.23% 97 48.74% 52 26.13% 3 1.51% 0 199 100%

Bristol City Council 247 3.82% 1166 18.05% 1438 22.26% 2294 35.51% 1866 28.88% 2540 39.31% 1530 23.68% 214 3.31% 0 6461 100%

Bristol LA* 16% 28% 31% 23% 2%
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 15% 25% 32% 25% 3%
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Comments
ONE year ago
12.34% of employees in the salary bracket "Less than £20,000" were aged 16 to 24
3.64% of employees in the salary bracket "£20k to £29k" were aged 16 to 24

TWO years ago
7.00% of employees in the salary bracket "Less than £20,000" were aged 16 to 24
2.57% of employees in the salary bracket "£20k to £29k" were aged 16 to 24

THREE years ago
8.47% of employees in the salary bracket "Less than £20,000" were aged 16 to 24
3.08% of employees in the salary bracket "£20k to £29k" were aged 16 to 24

483,200      

16 to 24 45 to 54 55 to 64 65 plus Total35 to 4425 to 34 35 to 49 50 to 64

268,100      

Page 9 of 70

P
age 659



Training by Age

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

People 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Resources 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol City Council 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol LA* 16% 28% 31% 23% 2%
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 15% 25% 32% 25% 3%
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Employees in Post 247 3.82% 1166 18.05% 1438 22.26% 2294 35.51% 1866 28.88% 2540 39.31% 1530 23.68% 214 3.31% 0 6461 100%

Comments
No training has been recorded on the HR database during the last 12 months. iTrent is currently being developed to record training.

16 to 24 45 to 54 55 to 64 65 plus Total35 to 4425 to 34 35 to 49 50 to 64

268,100         

483,200         

Page 10 of 70

P
age 660



Temporary Promotions / Secondments by Age

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 1 12.50% 6 75.00% 1 12.50% 1 12.50% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 8 100%

People 0 0.00% 3 37.50% 3 37.50% 4 50.00% 1 12.50% 1 12.50% 1 12.50% 0 0.00% 0 8 100%

Resources 2 11.11% 6 33.33% 6 33.33% 8 44.44% 3 16.67% 2 11.11% 1 5.56% 0 0.00% 0 18 100%

Bristol City Council 3 8.82% 15 44.12% 10 29.41% 13 38.24% 4 11.76% 3 8.82% 2 5.88% 0 0.00% 0 34 100%

Bristol LA* 16% 28% 31% 23% 2%
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 15% 25% 32% 25% 3%
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Employees in Post 247 3.82% 1166 18.05% 1438 22.26% 2294 35.51% 1866 28.88% 2540 39.31% 1530 23.68% 214 3.31% 0 6461 100%

Comments
Younger employees are going on secondment proportionally more than older employees

268,100             

483,200             

16 to 24 45 to 54 55 to 64 65 plus Total35 to 4425 to 34 35 to 49 50 to 64

Page 11 of 70

P
age 661



Grievances by Age

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 1 9.09% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 4 36.36% 9 81.82% 5 45.45% 1 9.09% 0 11 100%

People 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 3 50.00% 4 66.67% 3 50.00% 2 33.33% 0 0.00% 0 6 100%

Resources 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 2 33.33% 3 50.00% 2 33.33% 3 50.00% 2 33.33% 0 0.00% 0 6 100%

Bristol City Council 1 4.35% 0 0.00% 2 8.70% 6 26.09% 10 43.48% 15 65.22% 9 39.13% 1 4.35% 0 23 100%

Bristol LA* 16% 28% 31% 23% 2%
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 15% 25% 32% 25% 3%
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Employees in Post 247 3.82% 1166 18.05% 1438 22.26% 2294 35.51% 1866 28.88% 2540 39.31% 1530 23.68% 214 3.31% 0 6461 100%

Comments
Data source: HR Casework database
Older employees are more likely to submit a grievance.

268,100            

483,200            

16 to 24 45 to 54 55 to 64 65 plus Total35 to 4425 to 34 35 to 49 50 to 64

Page 12 of 70

P
age 662



Disciplinaries by Age

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 0 0.0% 4 22.2% 1 5.6% 3 16.67% 6 33.3% 10 55.56% 6 33.3% 1 5.6% 0 18 100%

People 0 0.0% 2 50.0% 1 25.0% 1 25.00% 1 25.0% 1 25.00% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 4 100%

Resources 0 0.0% 5 45.5% 4 36.4% 4 36.36% 0 0.0% 1 9.09% 1 9.1% 1 9.1% 0 11 100%

Bristol City Council 0 0.0% 11 33.3% 6 18.2% 8 24.24% 7 21.2% 12 36.36% 7 21.2% 2 6.1% 0 33 100%

Bristol LA* 16% 28% 31% 23% 2%
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 15% 25% 32% 25% 3%
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Employees in Post 247 3.82% 1166 18.05% 1438 22.26% 2294 35.51% 1866 28.88% 2540 39.31% 1530 23.68% 214 3.31% 0 6461 100%

Comments
Data source: HR Casework database

268,100             

483,200             

65 plus16 to 24 45 to 54 55 to 64 Total35 to 4425 to 34 35 to 49 50 to 64

Page 13 of 70

P
age 663



Leavers by Age

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 46 15.92% 69 23.88% 47 16.26% 67 23.18% 36 12.46% 76 26.30% 60 20.76% 31 10.73% 0 289 100%

People 28 8.67% 94 29.10% 68 21.05% 107 33.13% 65 20.12% 80 24.77% 54 16.72% 14 4.33% 0 323 100%

Resources 26 7.81% 62 18.62% 84 25.23% 114 34.23% 62 18.62% 101 30.33% 69 20.72% 30 9.01% 1 334 100%

Bristol City Council 100 10.58% 225 23.81% 199 21.06% 288 30.48% 163 17.25% 257 27.20% 183 19.37% 75 7.94% 1 946 100%

Bristol LA* 16% 28% 31% 23% 2%
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 15% 25% 32% 25% 3%
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Employees in Post 247 3.82% 1166 18.05% 1438 22.26% 2294 35.51% 1866 28.88% 2540 39.31% 1530 23.68% 214 3.31% 0 6461 100%

Comments
Both younger and older employees are leaving proportionally more compared to Employees in Post. The 45 to 54 age group are staying on in proportionally greater numbers.

268,100            

483,200            

16 to 24 45 to 54 55 to 64 65 plus Total35 to 4425 to 34 35 to 49 50 to 64

Page 14 of 70

P
age 664



Leaving Reason by Age

Leaving Reason Un-
known

Died 0 0.0% 0 0% 1 20.0% 1 20.0% 1 20.00% 4 80.0% 3 60.0% 0 0.0% 0 5 100%
Dismissed 4 5.3% 10 13% 9 11.8% 9 11.8% 20 26.32% 37 48.7% 26 34.2% 7 9.2% 0 76 100%
End of Temp / FTC 51 23.0% 38 17% 47 21.2% 47 21.2% 38 17.12% 60 27.0% 39 17.6% 9 4.1% 0 222 100%
Ill health retirement 0 0.0% 0 0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.00% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 100%
Other reason 0 0.0% 0 0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.00% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 100%
Probation unsatisfactory 0 0.0% 0 0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.00% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 100%
Redundant: compulsory 0 0.0% 2 12% 3 17.6% 3 17.6% 4 23.53% 6 35.3% 5 29.4% 3 17.6% 0 17 100%
Redundant: voluntary 0 0.0% 0 0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.00% 5 83.3% 5 83.3% 1 16.7% 0 6 100%
Resigned 45 8.7% 173 34% 138 26.7% 138 26.7% 94 18.22% 92 17.8% 57 11.0% 9 1.7% 0 516 100%
Retirement 0 0.0% 0 0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.00% 44 51.8% 44 51.8% 41 48.2% 0 85 100%
Settlement agreement 0 0.0% 2 11% 1 5.6% 1 5.6% 6 33.33% 9 50.0% 4 22.2% 5 27.8% 0 18 100%
Transferred: another employer 0 0.0% 0 0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.00% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 100%

Bristol City Council 100 10.6% 225 24% 199 21.1% 199 21.1% 163 17.25% 257 27.2% 183 19.4% 75 7.9% 0 945 100%

Bristol LA* 16% 28% 31% 23% 2%
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 15% 25% 32% 25% 3%
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Employees in Post 247 3.8% 1166 18.0% 1438 22.3% 2294 35.5% 1866 28.88% 2540 39.3% 1530 23.7% 214 3.3% 0 6461 100%

Comments

268,100           

483,200           

A large proportion of under 35's are leaving after the end of a fixed term contract. This could be an indication that younger employees are choosing to work more flexibly.

16 to 24 45 to 54 55 to 64 65 plus Total35 to 4425 to 34 35 to 49 50 to 64

Page 15 of 70

P
age 665



Applications Received by Disabled Status

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 5870 93.26% 424 6.74% 285 6579 100%

People 4174 94.20% 257 5.80% 74 4505 100%

Resources 2575 92.93% 196 7.07% 222 2993 100%

Bristol City Council 12619 93.50% 877 6.50% 581 14077 100%

93% 7% 228,078   

87.6% 12.4% 293,605   

93% 7% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

Not Disabled Disabled Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Page 16 of 70

P
age 666



Applications Shortlisted by Disabled Status

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 1465 91.45% 137 8.55% 53 1655 100%

People 1406 92.14% 120 7.86% 45 1571 100%

Resources 709 89.63% 82 10.37% 55 846 100%

Bristol City Council 3580 91.35% 339 8.65% 153 4072 100%

93% 7% 228,078   

87.6% 12.4% 293,605   

93% 7% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Apps Received 12619 93.50% 877 6.50% 581 14077 100%

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

Not Disabled Disabled Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Page 17 of 70

P
age 667



Job Offers by Disabled Status

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 275 92.28% 23 7.72% 5 303 100%

People 299 92.86% 23 7.14% 18 340 100%

Resources 177 90.77% 18 9.23% 11 206 100%

Bristol City Council 751 92.15% 64 7.85% 34 849 100%

93% 7% 228,078   

87.6% 12.4% 293,605   

93% 7% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Apps Shortlisted 3580 91.35% 339 8.65% 153 4072 100%

Apps Received 12619 93.50% 877 6.50% 581 14077 100%

Employees in Post 5245 90.03% 581 9.97% 635 6461 100%

Comments

Not Disabled Disabled Total

The relatively high proportion of disabled employees shortlisted suggests that the policy of guaranteeing an interview for disabled employees who meet 
the essential criteria is having a positive effect.

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

Page 18 of 70

P
age 668



Employees in Post by Disabled Status

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 2076 91.25% 199 8.75% 189 2464 100%

People 1802 89.12% 220 10.88% 241 2263 100%

Resources 1367 89.40% 162 10.60% 205 1734 100%

Bristol City Council 5245 90.03% 581 9.97% 635 6461 100%

93% 7% 228,078   

87.6% 12.4% 293,605   

93% 7% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Comments
Over the previous five years the proportion of disabled employees has been increasing.

5 4 3 2 1 Now
6.60% 6.66% 6.71% 7.74% 7.89% 9.97%

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

Not Disabled Disabled Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

5 4 3 2 1 Now
Series1 6.60% 6.66% 6.71% 7.74% 7.89% 9.97%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

%
 o

f w
or

kf
or

ce
 

Years ago 

Change in percentage of disabled employees 

Page 19 of 70

P
age 669



Employees in Post by Salary and by Disabled Status

Salary Unknown

Less than £20k 847 90.11% 93 9.89% 178 1118 100%
£20k-£29k 2119 89.15% 258 10.85% 208 2585 100%
£30k-£39k 1679 90.71% 172 9.29% 146 1997 100%
£40k-£49k 456 91.57% 42 8.43% 64 562 100%
£50k+ 144 90.00% 16 10.00% 39 199 100%

Bristol City Council 5245 90.03% 581 9.97% 635 6461 100%

93% 7% 228,078   

87.6% 12.4% 293,605   

93% 7% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

Not Disabled Disabled Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Page 20 of 70

P
age 670



Training by Disabled Status

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

People 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Resources 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol City Council 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

93% 7% 228,078   

87.6% 12.4% 293,605   

93% 7% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Employees in Post 5245 90.03% 581 9.97% 635 6461 100%

Comments
No training has been recorded on the HR database during the last 12 months. iTrent is currently being developed to record training.

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

Not Disabled Disabled Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Page 21 of 70

P
age 671



Temporary Promotions / Secondments by Disabled Status

Directorate Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 3 60.00% 2 40.00% 3 8 100%

People 6 85.71% 1 14.29% 1 8 100%

Resources 14 93.33% 1 6.67% 3 18 100%

Bristol City Council 23 85.19% 4 14.81% 7 34 100%

93% 7% 228,078   

87.6% 12.4% 293,605   

93% 7% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Employees in Post 5245 90.03% 581 9.97% 635 6461 100%

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

Not Disabled Disabled Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Page 22 of 70

P
age 672



Grievances by Disabled Status

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 9 100.00% 0 0.00% 2 11 100%

People 2 33.33% 4 66.67% 0 6 100%

Resources 4 100.00% 0 0.00% 2 6 100%

Bristol City Council 15 78.95% 4 21.05% 4 23 100%

93% 7% 228,078   

87.6% 12.4% 293,605   

93% 7% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Comments
Data source: HR Casework database

Not Disabled Disabled Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

Page 23 of 70

P
age 673



Disciplinaries by Disabled Status

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 12 85.71% 2 14.29% 4 18 100%

People 1 25.00% 3 75.00% 0 4 100%

Resources 5 71.43% 2 28.57% 4 11 100%

Bristol City Council 18 72.00% 7 28.00% 8 33 100%

93% 7% 228,078   

87.6% 12.4% 293,605   

93% 7% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Comments
Data source: HR Casework database

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

Not Disabled Disabled Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Page 24 of 70

P
age 674



Leavers by Disabled Status

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 224 88.19% 30 11.81% 35 289 100%

People 231 91.30% 22 8.70% 70 323 100%

Resources 222 87.06% 33 12.94% 79 334 100%

Bristol City Council 677 88.85% 85 11.15% 184 946 100%

93% 7% 228,078   

87.6% 12.4% 293,605   

93% 7% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Employees in Post 5245 90.03% 581 9.97% 635 6461 100%

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

Not Disabled Disabled Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Page 25 of 70

P
age 675



Leaving Reason by Disabled Status

Leaving Reason Unknown

Died 4 80.00% 1 20.00% 0 5 100%
Dismissed 58 84.06% 11 15.94% 7 76 100%
End of Temp / FTC 130 95.59% 6 4.41% 87 223 100%
Ill health retirement 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Other reason 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Probation unsatisfactory 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Redundant: compulsory 10 62.50% 6 37.50% 1 17 100%
Redundant: voluntary 6 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 6 100%
Resigned 387 88.76% 49 11.24% 80 516 100%
Retirement 71 89.87% 8 10.13% 6 85 100%
Settlement agreement 11 73.33% 4 26.67% 3 18 100%
Transferred: another employer 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol City Council 677 88.85% 85 11.15% 184 946 100%

93% 7% 228,078   

87.6% 12.4% 293,605   

93% 7% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Employees in Post 5245 90.03% 581 9.97% 635 6461 100%

Bristol Travel to Work Area economically 
active population*

Not Disabled Disabled Total

Bristol Local Authority economically active 
population*
Bristol Local Authority working age 
population*

Page 26 of 70

P
age 676



Applications Received by Ethnicity

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 4122 68.12% 713 11.78% 1216 20.10% 528 6579 100%

People 2874 66.64% 551 12.78% 888 20.59% 192 4505 100%

Resources 1740 65.27% 297 11.14% 629 23.59% 327 2993 100%

Bristol City Council 8736 67.05% 1561 11.98% 2733 20.97% 1047 14077 100%

80% 8% 13% 228,078   

15%

86% 6% 9% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

White British White Minority Ethnic BAME

Page 27 of 70

P
age 677



Applications Shortlisted by Ethnicity

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 1152 74.81% 126 8.18% 262 17.01% 115 1655 100%

People 1078 72.25% 157 10.52% 257 17.23% 79 1571 100%

Resources 531 69.78% 78 10.25% 152 19.97% 85 846 100%

Bristol City Council 2761 72.79% 361 9.52% 671 17.69% 279 4072 100%

80% 8% 13% 228,078   

15%

86% 6% 9% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Apps Received 8736 67.05% 1561 11.98% 2733 20.97% 1047 14077 100%

Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

White British White Minority Ethnic BAME

Page 28 of 70

P
age 678



Job Offers by Ethnicity

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 241 82.25% 22 7.51% 30 10.24% 10 303 100%

People 252 79.50% 28 8.83% 37 11.67% 23 340 100%

Resources 141 75.81% 16 8.60% 29 15.59% 20 206 100%

Bristol City Council 634 79.65% 66 8.29% 96 12.06% 53 849 100%

80% 8% 13% 228,078   

15%

86% 6% 9% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Apps Shortlisted 2761 72.79% 361 9.52% 671 17.69% 279 4072 100%

Apps Received 8736 67.05% 1561 11.98% 2733 20.97% 1047 14077 100%

Employees in Post 4797 81.68% 326 5.55% 750 12.77% 588 6461 100%

Comments

White British White Minority Ethnic BAME Total

We receive a disproportionately high number of applications from BAME candidates. The economically active population is 13%; we received 21% of 
applications from BAME candidates, shortlisted 18% and offer 12%.

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

Page 29 of 70

P
age 679



Employees in Post by Ethnicity

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 1943 84.63% 116 5.05% 237 10.32% 168 2464 100%

People 1635 80.34% 130 6.39% 270 13.27% 228 2263 100%

Resources 1219 79.05% 80 5.19% 243 15.76% 192 1734 100%

Bristol City Council 4797 81.68% 326 5.55% 750 12.77% 588 6461 100%

80% 8% 13% 228,078   

15%

86% 6% 9% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Comments
The proportion of BAME employees has increased over the last five years but at a slowing rate.

5 4 3 2 1 Now
10.98% 11.51% 12.24% 12.43% 12.55% 12.77%

Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

White British White Minority Ethnic BAME

5 4 3 2 1 Now
Series1 10.98% 11.51% 12.24% 12.43% 12.55% 12.77%

10.00%

10.50%

11.00%

11.50%

12.00%

12.50%

13.00%

%
 o

f w
or

kf
or

ce
 

Years ago 

Change in percentage of BAME employees 

Page 30 of 70

P
age 680



Employees in Post by Salary and by Ethnicity

Salary Unknown

Less than £20k 670 70.82% 67 7.08% 209 22.09% 172 1118 100%
£20k-£29k 1985 82.47% 130 5.40% 292 12.13% 178 2585 100%
£30k-£39k 1569 84.81% 96 5.19% 185 10.00% 147 1997 100%
£40k-£49k 422 84.06% 26 5.18% 54 10.76% 60 562 100%
£50k+ 151 89.88% 7 4.17% 10 5.95% 31 199 100%

Bristol City Council 4797 81.68% 326 5.55% 750 12.77% 588 6461 100%

80% 8% 13% 228,078   

15%

86% 6% 9% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Comments
BAME staff are proportionally under represented on higher salary bands.

Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

White British White Minority Ethnic BAME

Page 31 of 70

P
age 681



Training by Ethnicity

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

People 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Resources 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol City Council 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

80% 8% 13% 228,078   

15%

86% 6% 9% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Employees in Post 4797 81.68% 326 5.55% 750 12.77% 588 6461 100%

Comments
No training has been recorded on the HR database during the last 12 months. iTrent is currently being developed to record training.

Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

White British White Minority Ethnic BAME

Page 32 of 70

P
age 682



Temporary Promotions / Secondments by Ethnicity

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 4 57.14% 0 0.00% 3 42.86% 1 8 100%

People 7 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 8 100%

Resources 12 80.00% 1 6.67% 2 13.33% 3 18 100%

Bristol City Council 23 79.31% 1 3.45% 5 17.24% 5 34 100%

80% 8% 13% 228,078   

15%

86% 6% 9% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Employees in Post 4797 81.68% 326 5.55% 750 12.77% 588 6461 100%

Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

White British White Minority Ethnic BAME

Page 33 of 70

P
age 683



Grievances by Ethnicity

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 8 80.00% 0 0.00% 2 20.00% 1 11 100%

People 5 83.33% 0 0.00% 1 16.67% 0 6 100%

Resources 1 33.33% 0 0.00% 2 66.67% 3 6 100%

Bristol City Council 14 73.68% 0 0.00% 5 26.32% 4 23 100%

80% 8% 13% 228,078   

15%

86% 6% 9% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Comments
Data source: HR Casework database
Disproportinately high number of grievances from BAME employees

Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

White British White Minority Ethnic BAME

Page 34 of 70

P
age 684



Disciplinaries by Ethnicity

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 11 73.33% 0 0.00% 4 26.67% 3 18 100%

People 4 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 4 100%

Resources 5 83.33% 0 0.00% 1 16.67% 5 11 100%

Bristol City Council 20 80.00% 0 0.00% 5 20.00% 8 33 100%

80% 8% 13% 228,078   

15%

86% 6% 9% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Comments
Data source: HR Casework database
Disproportinately high number of disciplinaries for BAME employees

Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

White British White Minority Ethnic BAME

Page 35 of 70

P
age 685



Leavers by Ethnicity

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 193 77.51% 22 8.84% 34 13.65% 40 289 100%

People 174 73.11% 23 9.66% 41 17.23% 85 323 100%

Resources 185 71.43% 25 9.65% 49 18.92% 75 334 100%

Bristol City Council 552 73.99% 70 9.38% 124 16.62% 200 946 100%

80% 8% 13% 228,078   

15%

86% 6% 9% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Employees in Post 4797 81.68% 326 5.55% 750 12.77% 588 6461 100%

Total

Bristol Local Authority 
economically active population*

Bristol Local Authority working 
age population*

Bristol Travel to Work Area 
economically active population*

White British White Minority Ethnic BAME

Page 36 of 70

P
age 686



Leaving Reason by Ethnicity

Leaving Reason Unknown

Died 5 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 5 100%
Dismissed 46 69.70% 6 9.09% 14 21.21% 10 76 100%
End of Temp / FTC 92 73.60% 10 8.00% 23 18.40% 98 223 100%
Ill health retirement 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Other reason 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Probation unsatisfactory 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Redundant: compulsory 12 75.00% 1 6.25% 3 18.75% 1 17 100%
Redundant: voluntary 4 66.67% 0 0.00% 2 33.33% 0 6 100%
Resigned 309 71.53% 47 10.88% 76 17.59% 84 516 100%
Retirement 72 90.00% 3 3.75% 5 6.25% 5 85 100%
Settlement agreement 12 75.00% 3 18.75% 1 6.25% 2 18 100%
Transferred: another employer 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol City Council 552 73.99% 70 9.38% 124 16.62% 200 946 100%

80% 8% 13% 228,078   

15%

86% 6% 9% 402,065   

*Source: Census 2011 ONS

Employees in Post 4797 81.68% 326 5.55% 750 12.77% 588 6461 100%

Comments
There is a disproportionately large number of BME employees on fixed term contracts.

The low retirement figure coupled with the high number of fixed term contracts suggests that BME employees have a younger age profile.

Total

Bristol Local Authority economically active 
population*

Bristol Local Authority working age 
population*

Bristol Travel to Work Area economically 
active population*

White British White Minority Ethnic BAME

Page 37 of 70

P
age 687



Applications Received by Gender

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 3249 51.62% 3012 47.86% 33 0.52% 285 6579 100%

People 3389 76.48% 1031 23.27% 11 0.25% 74 4505 100%

Resources 1463 52.80% 1294 46.70% 14 0.51% 222 2993 100%

Bristol City Council 8101 60.03% 5337 39.55% 58 0.43% 581 14077 100%

Bristol LA* 47% 53% 268,100   
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 48% 52% 483,200   
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Female Male Transgender Total

Page 38 of 70

P
age 688



Applications Shortlisted by Gender

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 816 50.94% 784 48.94% 2 0.12% 53 1655 100%

People 1197 78.44% 325 21.30% 4 0.26% 45 1571 100%

Resources 448 56.64% 341 43.11% 2 0.25% 55 846 100%

Bristol City Council 2461 62.80% 1450 37.00% 8 0.20% 153 4072 100%

Bristol LA* 47% 53% 268,100   
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 48% 52% 483,200   
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Apps Received 8101 60.03% 5337 39.55% 58 0.43% 581 14077 100%

Female Male Transgender Total

Page 39 of 70

P
age 689



Job Offers by Gender

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 150 50.34% 148 49.66% 0 0.00% 5 303 100%

People 255 79.19% 67 20.81% 0 0.00% 18 340 100%

Resources 108 55.38% 87 44.62% 0 0.00% 11 206 100%

Bristol City Council 513 62.94% 302 37.06% 0 0.00% 34 849 100%

Bristol LA* 47% 53% 268,100   
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 48% 52% 483,200   
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Apps Shortlisted 2461 62.80% 1450 37.00% 8 0.20% 153 4072 100%

Apps Received 8101 60.03% 5337 39.55% 58 0.43% 581 14077 100%

Employees in Post 3858 59.71% 2603 40.29% 0 0.00% 0 6461 100%

Comments
Male employees are under-represented compared to the percentage of economically active citizens.

Female Male Transgender Total

Page 40 of 70

P
age 690



Employees in Post by Gender

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 1054 42.78% 1410 57.22% 0 0.00% 0 2464 100%

People 1829 80.82% 434 19.18% 0 0.00% 0 2263 100%

Resources 975 56.23% 759 43.77% 0 0.00% 0 1734 100%

Bristol City Council 3858 59.71% 2603 40.29% 0 0.00% 0 6461 100%

Bristol LA* 47% 53% 268,100   
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 48% 52% 483,200   
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Comments
There is wide variance between the directorates in the proportion of female and male employees.

5 4 3 2 1 Now
60.43% 60.28% 60.44% 60.37% 59.88% 59.71%

Female Male Transgender Total

5 4 3 2 1 Now
Series1 60.43% 60.28% 60.44% 60.37% 59.88% 59.71%

59.20%

59.40%

59.60%

59.80%

60.00%

60.20%

60.40%

60.60%

%
 o

f w
or

kf
or

ce
 

Years ago 

Change in percentage of female employees 

Page 41 of 70

P
age 691



Employees in Post by Salary and by Gender

Salary Unknown

Less than £20k 716 64.04% 402 35.96% 0 0.00% 0 1118 100%
£20k-£29k 1609 62.24% 976 37.76% 0 0.00% 0 2585 100%
£30k-£39k 1099 55.03% 898 44.97% 0 0.00% 0 1997 100%
£40k-£49k 318 56.58% 244 43.42% 0 0.00% 0 562 100%
£50k+ 116 58.29% 83 41.71% 0 0.00% 0 199 100%

Bristol City Council 3858 59.71% 2603 40.29% 0 0.00% 0 6461 100%

Bristol LA* 47% 53% 268,100   
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 48% 52% 483,200   
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Comments
Female employees are proportionally over-represented on the lowest salary band.

Female Male Transgender Total

Page 42 of 70

P
age 692



Training by Gender

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

People 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Resources 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol City Council 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol LA* 47% 53% 268,100   
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 48% 52% 483,200   
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Employees in Post 3858 59.71% 2603 40.29% 0 0.00% 0 6461 100%

Comments
No training has been recorded on the HR database during the last 12 months. iTrent is currently being developed to record training.

Female Male Transgender Total

Page 43 of 70

P
age 693



Temporary Promotions / Secondments by Gender

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 5 62.50% 3 37.50% 0 0.00% 0 8 100%

People 6 75.00% 2 25.00% 0 0.00% 0 8 100%

Resources 9 50.00% 9 50.00% 0 0.00% 0 18 100%

Bristol City Council 20 58.82% 14 41.18% 0 0.00% 0 34 100%

Bristol LA* 47% 53% 268,100   
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 48% 52% 483,200   
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Employees in Post 3858 59.71% 2603 40.29% 0 0.00% 0 6461 100%

Female Male Transgender Total

Page 44 of 70

P
age 694



Grievances by Gender

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 4 36.36% 7 63.64% 0 0.00% 0 11 100%

People 3 50.00% 3 50.00% 0 0.00% 0 6 100%

Resources 3 50.00% 3 50.00% 0 0.00% 0 6 100%

Bristol City Council 10 43.48% 13 56.52% 0 0.00% 0 23 100%

Bristol LA* 47% 53% 268,100   
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 48% 52% 483,200   
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Comments
Data source: HR Casework database

Female Male Transgender Total

Page 45 of 70

P
age 695



Disciplinaries by Gender

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 2 11.11% 16 88.89% 0 0.00% 0 18 100%

People 3 75.00% 1 25.00% 0 0.00% 0 4 100%

Resources 5 45.45% 6 54.55% 0 0.00% 0 11 100%

Bristol City Council 10 30.30% 23 69.70% 0 0.00% 0 33 100%

Bristol LA* 47% 53% 268,100   
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 48% 52% 483,200   
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Comments
Data source: HR Casework database
Male employees are proportionally more likely to be subject to disciplinaries.

Female Male Transgender Total

Page 46 of 70

P
age 696



Leavers by Gender

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 147 50.87% 142 49.13% 0 0.00% 0 289 100%

People 265 82.04% 58 17.96% 0 0.00% 0 323 100%

Resources 171 51.20% 163 48.80% 0 0.00% 0 334 100%

Bristol City Council 583 61.63% 363 38.37% 0 0.00% 0 946 100%

Bristol LA* 47% 53% 268,100   
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 48% 52% 483,200   
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Employees in Post 3858 59.71% 2603 40.29% 0 0.00% 0 6461 100%

Female Male Transgender Total

Page 47 of 70

P
age 697



Leaving Reason by Gender

Leaving Reason Unknown

Died 2 40.00% 3 60.00% 0 0.00% 0 5 100%
Dismissed 35 46.05% 41 53.95% 0 0.00% 0 76 100%
End of Temp / FTC 142 63.68% 81 36.32% 0 0.00% 0 223 100%
Ill health retirement 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Other reason 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Probation unsatisfactory 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Redundant: compulsory 6 35.29% 11 64.71% 0 0.00% 0 17 100%
Redundant: voluntary 1 16.67% 5 83.33% 0 0.00% 0 6 100%
Resigned 338 65.50% 178 34.50% 0 0.00% 0 516 100%
Retirement 54 63.53% 31 36.47% 0 0.00% 0 85 100%
Settlement agreement 5 27.78% 13 72.22% 0 0.00% 0 18 100%
Transferred: another employer 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol City Council 583 61.63% 363 38.37% 0 0.00% 0 946 100%

Bristol LA* 47% 53% 268,100   
*Bristol Local Authority economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)
Bristol TTWA# 48% 52% 483,200   
#Bristol Travel to Work Area economically active population (Source: Annual Population Survey Oct-18 - Sep-19 ONS)

Employees in Post 3858 59.71% 2603 40.29% 0 0.00% 0 6461 100%

Female Male Transgender Total

Page 48 of 70

P
age 698



Applications Received by Religion/Belief

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 3334 60.52% 1579 28.66% 596 10.82% 1070 6579 100%

People 2356 59.14% 1219 30.60% 409 10.27% 521 4505 100%

Resources 1411 56.64% 733 29.43% 347 13.93% 502 2993 100%

Bristol City Council 7101 59.25% 3531 29.46% 1352 11.28% 2093 14077 100%

Bristol* 45.15% 48.21% 6.64%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Census 2011 ONS)

No religion or belief Christian Other religion or belief Total

Page 49 of 70

P
age 699



Applications Shortlisted by Religion/Belief

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 902 64.06% 378 26.85% 128 9.09% 247 1655 100%

People 838 61.39% 418 30.62% 109 7.99% 206 1571 100%

Resources 427 60.48% 199 28.19% 80 11.33% 140 846 100%

Bristol City Council 2167 62.29% 995 28.60% 317 9.11% 593 4072 100%

Bristol* 45.15% 48.21% 6.64%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Census 2011 ONS)

Apps Received 7101 59.25% 3531 29.46% 1352 11.28% 2093 14077 100%

No religion or belief Christian Other religion or belief Total

Page 50 of 70

P
age 700



Job Offers by Religion/Belief

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 187 71.65% 54 20.69% 20 7.66% 42 303 100%

People 192 66.21% 84 28.97% 14 4.83% 50 340 100%

Resources 114 66.28% 39 22.67% 19 11.05% 34 206 100%

Bristol City Council 493 68.19% 177 24.48% 53 7.33% 126 849 100%

Bristol* 45.15% 48.21% 6.64%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Census 2011 ONS)

Apps Shortlisted 2167 62.29% 995 28.60% 317 9.11% 593 4072 100%

Apps Received 7101 59.25% 3531 29.46% 1352 11.28% 2093 14077 100%

Employees in Post 1646 37.39% 1743 39.60% 1013 23.01% 2059 6461 100%

Comments
These job offer figures suggest that the amount of employees with no religion or belief will continue to increase rapidly.

No religion or belief Christian Other religion or belief Total

Page 51 of 70

P
age 701



Employees in Post by Religion/Belief

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 631 36.92% 706 41.31% 372 21.77% 755 2464 100%

People 603 39.70% 589 38.78% 327 21.53% 744 2263 100%

Resources 412 35.09% 448 38.16% 314 26.75% 560 1734 100%

Bristol City Council 1646 37.39% 1743 39.60% 1013 23.01% 2059 6461 100%

Bristol* 45.15% 48.21% 6.64%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Census 2011 ONS)

Comments
The introduction of additional descriptions on iTrent has coincided with a large increase in the number of employees declaring a religion or belief.
There are a large number of "unknowns" that need to be reduced to improve the accuracy of this information.

5 4 3 2 1 Now
54.29% 51.95% 51.27% 50.08% 48.56% 62.61%

No religion or belief Christian Other religion or belief Total

5 4 3 2 1 Now
Series1 54.29% 51.95% 51.27% 50.08% 48.56% 62.61%

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

%
 o

f w
or

kf
or

ce
 

Years ago 

Change in percentage of employees with a religion or belief 

Page 52 of 70

P
age 702



Employees in Post by Salary and by Religion/Belief

Salary Unknown

Less than £20k 194 29.44% 278 42.19% 187 28.38% 459 1118 100%
£20k-£29k 723 39.64% 704 38.60% 397 21.77% 761 2585 100%
£30k-£39k 563 39.56% 542 38.09% 318 22.35% 574 1997 100%
£40k-£49k 123 33.51% 165 44.96% 79 21.53% 195 562 100%
£50k+ 43 33.33% 54 41.86% 32 24.81% 70 199 100%

Bristol City Council 1646 37.39% 1743 39.60% 1013 23.01% 2059 6461 100%

Bristol* 45.15% 48.21% 6.64%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Census 2011 ONS)

Comments
The category "Other religion or belief" is disproportionately represented at the lowest salary bracket.

No religion or belief Christian Other religion or belief Total

Page 53 of 70

P
age 703



Training by Religion/Belief

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

People 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Resources 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol City Council 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol* 45.15% 48.21% 6.64%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Census 2011 ONS)

Employees in Post 1646 37.39% 1743 39.60% 1013 23.01% 2059 6461 100%

Comments
No training has been recorded on the HR database during the last 12 months. iTrent is currently being developed to record training.

No religion or belief Christian Other religion or belief Total

Page 54 of 70

P
age 704



Temporary Promotions / Secondments by Religion/Belief

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 0 0.00% 3 42.86% 4 57.14% 1 8 100%

People 2 33.33% 2 33.33% 2 33.33% 2 8 100%

Resources 5 41.67% 3 25.00% 4 33.33% 6 18 100%

Bristol City Council 7 28.00% 8 32.00% 10 40.00% 9 34 100%

Bristol* 45.15% 48.21% 6.64%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Census 2011 ONS)

Employees in Post 1646 37.39% 1743 39.60% 1013 23.01% 2059 6461 100%

No religion or belief Christian Other religion or belief Total

Page 55 of 70

P
age 705



Grievances by Religion/Belief

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 2 25.00% 5 62.50% 1 12.50% 3 11 100%

People 2 40.00% 0 0.00% 3 60.00% 1 6 100%

Resources 1 33.33% 0 0.00% 2 66.67% 3 6 100%

Bristol City Council 5 31.25% 5 31.25% 6 37.50% 7 23 100%

Bristol* 45.15% 48.21% 6.64%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Census 2011 ONS)

Comments
Data source: HR Casework database

No religion or belief Christian Other religion or belief Total

Page 56 of 70

P
age 706



Disciplinaries by Religion/Belief

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 4 33.33% 8 66.67% 0 0.00% 6 18 100%

People 1 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 3 4 100%

Resources 3 50.00% 1 16.67% 2 33.33% 5 11 100%

Bristol City Council 8 42.11% 9 47.37% 2 10.53% 14 33 100%

Bristol* 45.15% 48.21% 6.64%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Census 2011 ONS)

Comments
Data source: HR Casework database

No religion or belief Christian Other religion or belief Total

Page 57 of 70

P
age 707



Leavers by Religion/Belief

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 78 39.59% 67 34.01% 52 26.40% 92 289 100%

People 76 38.78% 73 37.24% 47 23.98% 127 323 100%

Resources 59 29.65% 71 35.68% 69 34.67% 135 334 100%

Bristol City Council 213 35.98% 211 35.64% 168 28.38% 354 946 100%

Bristol* 45.15% 48.21% 6.64%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Census 2011 ONS)

Employees in Post 1646 37.39% 1743 39.60% 1013 23.01% 2059 6461 100%

No religion or belief Christian Other religion or belief Total

Page 58 of 70

P
age 708



Leaving Reason by Religion/Belief

Leaving Reason Unknown

Died 1 33.33% 2 66.67% 0 0.00% 2 5 100%
Dismissed 12 24.49% 25 51.02% 12 24.49% 27 76 100%
End of Temp / FTC 38 38.38% 29 29.29% 32 32.32% 124 223 100%
Ill health retirement 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Other reason 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Probation unsatisfactory 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Redundant: compulsory 2 18.18% 8 72.73% 1 9.09% 6 17 100%
Redundant: voluntary 2 66.67% 0 0.00% 1 33.33% 3 6 100%
Resigned 145 39.84% 111 30.49% 108 29.67% 152 516 100%
Retirement 10 19.23% 31 59.62% 11 21.15% 33 85 100%
Settlement agreement 3 27.27% 5 45.45% 3 27.27% 7 18 100%
Transferred: another employer 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol City Council 213 35.98% 211 35.64% 168 28.38% 354 946 100%

Bristol* 45.15% 48.21% 6.64%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Census 2011 ONS)

Employees in Post 1646 37.39% 1743 39.60% 1013 23.01% 2059 6461 100%

No religion or belief Christian Other religion or belief Total

Page 59 of 70

P
age 709



Applications Received by Sexual Orientation

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 4935 92.92% 376 7.08% 1268 6579 100%

People 3789 95.27% 188 4.73% 528 4505 100%

Resources 2315 95.66% 105 4.34% 573 2993 100%

Bristol City Council 11039 94.29% 669 5.71% 2369 14077 100%

Bristol* 96% 4%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Quality of Life 2015/16)

Heterosexual LGB Total

Page 60 of 70

P
age 710



Applications Shortlisted by Sexual Orientation

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 1255 92.89% 96 7.11% 304 1655 100%

People 1297 94.81% 71 5.19% 203 1571 100%

Resources 646 94.86% 35 5.14% 165 846 100%

Bristol City Council 3198 94.06% 202 5.94% 672 4072 100%

Bristol* 96% 4%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Quality of Life 2015/16)

Apps Received 11039 94.29% 669 5.71% 2369 14077 100%

Heterosexual LGB Total

Page 61 of 70

P
age 711



Job Offers by Sexual Orientation

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 227 89.72% 26 10.28% 50 303 100%

People 272 95.77% 12 4.23% 56 340 100%

Resources 164 94.25% 10 5.75% 32 206 100%

Bristol City Council 663 93.25% 48 6.75% 138 849 100%

Bristol* 96% 4%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Quality of Life 2015/16)

Apps Shortlisted 3198 94.06% 202 5.94% 672 4072 100%

Apps Received 11039 94.29% 669 5.71% 2369 14077 100%

Employees in Post 4277 93.45% 300 6.55% 1884 6461 100%

Heterosexual LGB Total

Page 62 of 70

P
age 712



Employees in Post by Sexual Orientation

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 1647 93.31% 118 6.69% 699 2464 100%

People 1486 93.11% 110 6.89% 667 2263 100%

Resources 1144 94.08% 72 5.92% 518 1734 100%

Bristol City Council 4277 93.45% 300 6.55% 1884 6461 100%

Bristol* 96% 4%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Quality of Life 2015/16)

Comments
The number of employees declaring themselves as LGB has been increasing over the last five years.
There are a large number of "unknowns" that need to be reduced to improve the accuracy of this information.

5 4 3 2 1 Now
4.28% 4.40% 4.65% 5.16% 5.55% 6.55%

Heterosexual LGB Total

5 4 3 2 1 Now
Series1 4.28% 4.40% 4.65% 5.16% 5.55% 6.55%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

%
 o

f w
or

kf
or

ce
 

Years ago 

Change in percentage of LGB employees 

Page 63 of 70

P
age 713



Employees in Post by Salary and by Sexual Orientation

Salary Unknown

Less than £20k 630 92.38% 52 7.62% 436 1118 100%
£20k-£29k 1764 93.04% 132 6.96% 689 2585 100%
£30k-£39k 1382 93.95% 89 6.05% 526 1997 100%
£40k-£49k 374 95.65% 17 4.35% 171 562 100%
£50k+ 127 92.70% 10 7.30% 62 199 100%

Bristol City Council 4277 93.45% 300 6.55% 1884 6461 100%

Bristol* 96% 4%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Quality of Life 2015/16)

Heterosexual LGB Total

Page 64 of 70

P
age 714



Training by Sexual Orientation

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

People 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Resources 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol City Council 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol* 96% 4%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Quality of Life 2015/16)

Employees in Post 4277 93.45% 300 6.55% 1884 6461 100%

Comments
No training has been recorded on the HR database during the last 12 months. iTrent is currently being developed to record training.

Heterosexual LGB Total

Page 65 of 70

P
age 715



Temporary Promotions / Secondments by Sexual Orientation

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 6 85.71% 1 14.29% 1 8 100%

People 5 83.33% 1 16.67% 2 8 100%

Resources 12 92.31% 1 7.69% 5 18 100%

Bristol City Council 23 88.46% 3 11.54% 8 34 100%

Bristol* 96% 4%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Quality of Life 2015/16)

Employees in Post 4277 93.45% 300 6.55% 1884 6461 100%

Heterosexual LGB Total

Page 66 of 70

P
age 716



Grievances by Sexual Orientation

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 9 100.00% 0 0.00% 2 11 100%

People 5 100.00% 0 0.00% 1 6 100%

Resources 4 100.00% 0 0.00% 2 6 100%

Bristol City Council 18 100.00% 0 0.00% 5 23 100%

Bristol* 96% 4%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Quality of Life 2015/16)

Comments
Data source: HR Casework database

Heterosexual LGB Total

Page 67 of 70

P
age 717



Disciplinaries by Sexual Orientation

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 11 91.67% 1 8.33% 6 18 100%

People 4 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 4 100%

Resources 5 100.00% 0 0.00% 6 11 100%

Bristol City Council 20 95.24% 1 4.76% 12 33 100%

Bristol* 96% 4%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Quality of Life 2015/16)

Comments
Data source: HR Casework database
No LGB staff were subject to disciplinary action.

Heterosexual LGB Total

Page 68 of 70

P
age 718



Leavers by Sexual Orientation

Department Unknown

Growth and 
Regeneration 185 87.26% 27 12.74% 77 289 100%

People 187 93.03% 14 6.97% 122 323 100%

Resources 192 93.20% 14 6.80% 128 334 100%

Bristol City Council 564 91.11% 55 8.89% 327 946 100%

Bristol* 96% 4%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Quality of Life 2015/16)

Employees in Post 4277 93.45% 300 6.55% 1884 6461 100%

Comments
LGB employees are leaving at higher rate than heterosexual employoees.

Heterosexual LGB Total

Page 69 of 70

P
age 719



Leaving Reason by Sexual Orientation

Leaving Reason Unknown

Died 3 100.00% 0 0.00% 2 5 100%
Dismissed 45 93.75% 3 6.25% 28 76 100%
End of Temp / FTC 98 90.74% 10 9.26% 115 223 100%
Ill health retirement 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Other reason 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Probation unsatisfactory 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%
Redundant: compulsory 11 91.67% 1 8.33% 5 17 100%
Redundant: voluntary 4 100.00% 0 0.00% 2 6 100%
Resigned 347 90.36% 37 9.64% 132 516 100%
Retirement 46 92.00% 4 8.00% 35 85 100%
Settlement agreement 10 100.00% 0 0.00% 8 18 100%
Transferred: another employer 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 100%

Bristol City Council 564 91.11% 55 8.89% 327 946 100%

Bristol* 96% 4%

*Economically active citizens (Source: Quality of Life 2015/16)

Employees in Post 4277 93.45% 300 6.55% 1884 6461 100%

Heterosexual LGB Total

Page 70 of 70

P
age 720



Cook950 

Pay Gap Report 

www.bristol.gov.uk 

Data based as at March 2019 

 
Workforce & Change 
 
March 2020 

 

Page 721

APPENDIX C

http://www.bristol.gov.uk/


 

 

2 

Table of Contents 
1. Introduction .................................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Calculating the Pay Gap .................................................................................................................. 4 

3. Pay Gap ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

4. Full time v Part time ...................................................................................................................... 10 

5. Analysis by Grade .......................................................................................................................... 13 

6. Closing the gap .............................................................................................................................. 15 

 

 

  

Page 722



 

 

3 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The gender pay gap reporting is a requirement of the Equality Act 2010 (Specific 

Duties and Public Authorities) regulations 2017 for employers with 250 employees or 

more at a ‘snapshot date’. This report also considers both the ethnicity and disability 

pay gap at the Council. Unlike the gender pay gap there is currently no legal 

requirement for employers to report their race and disability pay gaps. 

1.2 Gender Pay is not the same as equal pay. Equal pay is about ensuring that both men 

and women are paid the same for doing the same or similar jobs. Gender pay looks to 

see how the balance of pay is distributed in an organisation irrespective of job roles.  

1.3 Bristol City Council uses a job evaluation scheme to rank jobs ensures equal pay for 

work of equal value. These arrangements apply to the vast majority of jobs. The 

remaining jobs are covered by national collective agreements and local pay 

agreements (Craft).  

1.4 The Gender Pay Gap measures the overall difference in actual hourly rates of pay 

between men and women by both mean and median calculations. Mean being the 

comparison of the average pay of men and women. Median being the comparison of 

the mid-point value of the payments for men and women. A zero percentage indicates 

parity between men and women. This same method is also applied to the Ethnicity 

and Disability Pay Gap to show the difference between Black and Minority Ethnic 

(BAME) employees and White British employees and also Disabled employees against 

Non-Disabled employees.  

1.5 Local authority maintained schools are excluded from this dataset as reporting is the 

responsibility of the governing body but is only required if the school has over 250 

employees. 

1.6 As at March 2019 the headcount was 6,248 employees, of which 3,741 (60%) were 

women. The Female economically active population is 47%. 711 (13%) employee 

declared themselves as Black and Minority Ethnic (BAME), against an economically 

active population of 15%. 446 (8%) employees reported as being disabled, against a 

economically active population of (12%) (Office for National Statistics published data). 

At the time of writing this report the ethnicity of 511 employees and the disability 

status for 594 employees are unknown. 

Page 723



 

 

4 

1.7 All pay calculations have been based on the formula as outlined in the Gender Pay 

Gap Reporting legislation and covers all full pay relevant employees. The same 

formula has been applied to cover both the race and disability pay gaps. Full pay 

relevant employees are those that are employed on the snapshot date of 31 March 

2019 and have been paid in the period that the snapshot date falls without any 

reductions in pay.  

 

1.8 The ethnic groups that make up BAME are; Black/African/Caribbean/Black British, 

Asian/Asian British, mixed/multiple ethnic groups and other ethnic groups. The ethnic 

groups that make up White Minority Ethnic are; Gypsy/Roma/Traveller/Irish Traveller, 

Irish, Other European and Other White background. 

2. Calculating the Pay Gap 

2.1. The mean figure is derived by adding the hourly pay rate for all employees then 
dividing by the number of employees. The mean gender pay gap is the difference 
between the mean hourly rate of pay of male full-pay relevant employees and that 
of female full-pay relevant employees. 
 

2.2. The median figure is the middle value of pay rates. Half our employees will earn 
more than the median and half will earn less. The median gender pay gap is the 
difference between the median hourly rate of pay of male full-pay relevant 
employees and that of female full-pay relevant employees. 
 

2.3. The mean figure is derived by adding the hourly pay rate for all employees then 
dividing by the number of employees. The mean race pay gap is the difference 
between the mean hourly rate of pay of White British full-pay relevant employees 
and that of BAME or White Minority Ethnic full-pay relevant employees. 
 

2.4. The median figure is the middle value of pay rates. Half our employees will earn 
more than the median and half will earn less. The median race pay gap is the 
difference between the median hourly rate of pay of White British full-pay relevant 
employees and that of BAME or White Minority Ethnic full-pay relevant employees. 
 

2.5. The mean figure is derived by adding the hourly pay rate for all employees then 
dividing by the number of employees. The mean disability pay gap is the difference 
between the mean hourly rate of pay of non-disabled full-pay relevant employees 
and that of disabled full-pay relevant employees. 
 

2.6. The median figure is the middle value of pay rates. Half our employees will earn 
more than the median and half will earn less. The median disability pay gap is the 
difference between the median hourly rate of pay of non-disabled full-pay relevant 
employees and that of disabled full-pay relevant employees. 

Page 724



 

 

5 

 
 

3. Pay Gap 

3.1 Gender Pay Gap 

 Mean Median 
ONS 

Mean 
ONS 

Median 

Women £14.77 per hour £13.72 per hour 
  

Men £15.39 per hour £15.06 per hour 
  

Difference £0.62 per hour £1.34 per hour   

Pay Gap 4.08% 8.90% 17.2% 17.3% 

 

3.1.1 The Councils gender pay gap analysis indicates that mean pay for men is 4.08% 

higher than that of women and the median pay for men is 8.9% higher than that of 

women. The difference between the median and the mean figures is due to the high 

proportion of women in the top quartile of employees. The mean gender pay gap is 

significantly lower than that of the national average, which is currently 17.2%. The 

median gender pay gap is also significantly lower than the national average of 17.3%. 

 

 

 

3.1.2 The Councils gender pay gap has reduced from a mean of 5.47% and a median of 

18.1% in 2015, to a mean of 4.08% and a median of 8.9% in 2019. This report aims 

look in more detail into the reasons behind our pay gap with a view to identifying 

areas to address the pay gap.  

5.47% 
4.19% 4.07% 3.99% 4.08% 

18.10% 

15.43% 

13.49% 

8.90% 8.90% 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

%
 G

ap
 

Mean Median

Page 725



 

 

6 

3.1.3 To put this into context the below table shows the Gender Pay Gap Statistics 

published by Core Cities and Local Public Sector Organisations for the HM 

Government Gender Pay Gap Service.  

31st March 2019 

 
Organisation 

Mean gender 
pay gap 

Median gender 
pay gap 

Core 
Cities 

Bristol 4.1 8.9 

Birmingham   

Cardiff   

Leeds 5.9 7.8 

Liverpool   

Manchester 8.1 9.8 

Newcastle 3.6 6.0 

Nottingham 3.3 0.0 

Sheffield 1.4 5.6 

Public 
Sector 
Data 

Avon & Somerset Police 11.0 14.9 

Avon & Wiltshire Mental Health 
Partnership NHS 

14.4 11.0 

South West Ambulance Service 4.6 16.0 

Bristol University 18.6 13.7 

North Bristol NHS Trust 23.5 6.5 

University of the West of England 11.2 11.7 

Avon Fire & Rescue Service   

University Hospitals Bristol NHS 20.6 1.4 

3.1.4 Whilst the mean pay gap is lower, it is the median figure that requires some 

attention as it indicates that either women are under represented at the higher pay 

levels, or women are over represented at the lower pay levels. To illustrate this we 

have divided the pay into four equal quartiles. 

  

Page 726



 

 

7 

 

 Employees 
Ratio 

Men:Women 

Quartile (Hourly rate range) Men Women Total BCC = 41:59 

Quartile 1  
(£5.00 - £11.23) 

553 961 1514 37:63 

Quartile 2  
(£11.24 - £14.18) 

582 1010 1592 37:63 

Quartile 3  
(£14.20 - £17.18) 

712 849 1561 46:54 

Quartile 4  
(£17.23 - £85.52) 

635 775 1410 45:55 
 

3.1.5 A higher proportion of the top 25 percent (Quartile 4) of jobs are occupied by 

women (55%). The greatest disparity between men and women is in the lowest 25 

percent (Quartile 1) of jobs where a significant number of jobs, whilst attracting less 

pay, have traditionally offered more flexible working arrangements (e.g. term time 

hours) or part time hours, which have proven to be an attraction for women for a 

number of work life balance reasons. The number of care, cleaning and 

administrative roles in the lower quartile has therefore had an impact on the overall 

gender pay gap figure. 

 

3.2 Ethnicity Pay Gap 

 

 Mean Median 
Mean Pay 

Gap 
Median Pay 

Gap 

BAME £13.43 per hour £12.07 per hour 12.06% 17.56% 

White Minority Ethnic £15.08 per hour £14.63 per hour 1.31% 0% 

White British £15.28 per hour £14.63 per hour   

 

3.2.1 The Councils ethnicity pay gap analysis indicates that mean pay for BAME staff is 

12.06% lower than that of  White British staff and the median pay for BAME staff is 

17.56% lower than that of White British staff.  

 

Page 727



 

 

8 

 

3.2.2 The Councils ethnicity pay gap (BAME) has reduced significantly from a mean of 

15.38% in 2016, to a mean of 12.06% in 2019.  

 

3.2.3 To put this into context the below table shows the published Ethnicity Pay Gap 

Statistics published by some Local Authorities and other organisations.  We have 

found few organisations that publish their race pay gap. 

 

 31st March 2019 

Organisation 
Mean ethnicity pay gap 

(BAME) 
Bristol City Council 12.06 

Deloitte UK 14.5 

London Borough of Hillingdon 17.03 

Croydon Council 8.7 

Royal Borough of Kensington and 
Chelsea 

11.8 

 

 

  

15.38% 

12.96% 12.62% 12.06% 

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

2016 2017 2018 2019

%
G

ap
 

Mean Pay Gap

Page 728



 

 

9 

 Employees 
Ratio 

BAME:WME:WB 

Quartile (Hourly rate 
range) 

BAME WME 
White 
British 

Total BCC = 13:5:82 

Quartile 1  
(£5.00 - £11.23) 

263 70 1000 1333 20:5:75 

Quartile 2  
(£11.24 - £14.18) 

185 70 1219 1474 13:5:83 

Quartile 3  
(£14.20 - £17.18) 

142 69 1247 1458 10:5:85 

Quartile 4  
(£17.23 - £85.52) 

112 76 1101 1289 9:6:85 

 

3.2.4 The difference between the median and the mean figures is due to a lower 

proportion of BAME staff in the quartiles 3 & 4, against a high proportion of BAME 

staff in quartile 1. The greatest disparity between BAME and White British staff is in 

the top 25 percent (Quartile 4). 

 

3.3 Disability Pay Gap 

 

 Mean Median 

Disabled £14.77 per hour £13.72 per hour 

Not Disabled £15.06 per hour £14.18 per hour 

Pay Gap 1.97% 3.25% 

 

3.3.1 The Councils disability pay gap analysis indicates that mean pay for disabled staff is 

1.97% lower than that of  non-disabled staff and the median pay for disabled staff is 

3.25% lower than that of non-disabled staff. The difference between the median and 

the mean figures is due to a lower proportion of disabled staff in the top quartile of 

employees. 

  

Page 729



 

 

10 

 

 Employees 
Ratio 

Disabled:Not 
Disabled 

Quartile (Hourly rate range) 
Disabled 

Not 
Disabled 

Total BCC = 8:92 

Quartile 1  
(£5.00 - £11.23) 

102 1227 1329 8:92 

Quartile 2  
(£11.24 - £14.18) 

134 1329 1463 9:91 

Quartile 3  
(£14.20 - £17.18) 

113 1353 1466 8:92 

Quartile 4  
(£17.23 - £85.52) 

94 1196 1290 7:93 

 

3.3.2 The greatest disparity between disabled and non-disabled staff is in the top 25 

percent (Quartile 4).  We have not found any published information from other 

organisations so we can compare performance, however the Trades Union Congress 

(TUC) estimate the disability pay gap to be 15.5% across the UK and 8.5% in the 

South West. 

4. Full time v Part time 

4.1 Gender 

 

 

 

 

 

4.1.1 Whilst it is only necessary to report all full pay relevant employees together, this 

report further breaks the gender group down into part and full time employees to 

help explain the broader influences that can exacerbate a gender pay gap. 

4.1.2 There is a disparity between male and female working full time and part time. The 

full time working ratio is split 53:47 in favour of males, whereas part time working is 

79% female. When the mean pay gap is compared we see the full time mean is 

1.11% and the part time mean is -7.75%.  

 Full time Part time 

Women £15.86 per hour £13.74 per hour 

Men £16.04 per hour £12.75 per hour 

Pay Gap 1.11% -7.75% 

Page 730



 

 

11 

79% 

21% 

Part Time 47% 
53% Full Time 

Female

Male

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.1.3 The gender split for full time employees is more even. In contrast nearly 80% of part-

time workers are women. This is influenced by the far higher proportion of women 

tending to seek a work-life balance due to primary carer commitments. 

Consequently women tend to be attracted to part-time roles that can offer more 

flexibility. The gender distribution in full and part-time working is consistent with the 

wider economy – see Office for National Statistics. 

 

4.2 Ethnicity 

 

 
Full Time 

Mean 
Full Time Mean 

Pay Gap 
Part Time 

Mean 

Part Time 
Mean Pay 

Gap 

BAME £14.64 per hour 8.87% £11.71 per hour 16.09% 

White Minority Ethnic £15.52 per hour 3.37% £14.35 per hour -2.88% 

White British £16.07 per hour  £13.95 per hour  

 

4.2.1 The profile of BAME staff and White British staff working full time and part time is 

very similar. 12% of BAME staff work full time and 83% White British and 5% White 

Minority Ethnic. 14% of BAME staff work part time and 81% White British and 5% 

White Minority Ethnic. When the mean pay gap is compared we see the full time 

mean is 8.87% and the part time mean is 16.09%. Part time BAME staff have the 

biggest race pay gap. 

 

 

Page 731

https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/earningsandworkinghours/bulletins/genderpaygapintheuk/2019


 

 

12 

8.02% 

91.98% 

Part Time 

7.96% 

92.04% 

Full Time Disabled

Not Disabled

81.07% 

13.74% 

5.18% 

Part Time 

82.93% 

11.97% 
5.10% 

Full Time 

White British

BAME

White Minority
Ethnic

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.3 Disability 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.3.1. There is a small difference between number of Disabled staff and Non-Disabled staff 

working full time and part time. 7.96% of Disabled staff work full time compared to 

92% Non-Disabled staff. 8.02% of Disabled staff work part time and 92% Non-

Disabled staff. When the mean pay gap is compared we see the full time mean pay 

gap is 0.02% and the part time mean pay gap  is -2.82%. 

 Full time Part time 

Disabled £15.26 per hour £13.97 per hour 

Non -
Disabled 

£15.97 per hour £13.59 per hour 

Pay Gap 0.02% -2.82% 

Page 732



 

 

13 

5. Analysis by Grade 

5.1 Gender 

 

5.1.1 The largest gap is in the TP1+, and is in favour of women, which partly arises because 

the majority of top paid employees are women and their pay is significantly higher 

than the average for the grade. 

5.1.2 However distribution between pay grades is uneven for example, the median (50%) 

pay for women lies in grade BG9, whereas for men it lies in grade BG10. The lower 

quartile (25%/Quartile 1) level for women is close to the top of grade BG6, whereas 

for men it is the top of grade BG7.  

5.1.3 Bristol City Council job evaluation scheme ensures that jobs are ranked correctly and 

the assigned a grade based on the job evaluation score.  The job evaluation score is 

then assigned to a grade. Each grade has a range of job evaluation points. The values 

for the mean gender pay gap correlate with the male to female ratio in the four 

quartiles. As we have identified there are many more female staff than male at the 

lower paid levels this is the reason for the negative pay gap at the lower levels. 

  

-10.00%

-8.00%

-6.00%

-4.00%

-2.00%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

BG1-4 BG5 BG6 BG7 BG8 BG9 BG10 BG11 BG12 BG13 BG14 BG15 TP1+

Mean Pay Gap Median Pay Gap

Page 733



 

 

14 

5.2 Ethnicity 

 

 

5.2.1 The largest gap is in BG6 and shows a pay gap of 6.27% for BAME staff against White 

British staff, a large number of these roles relate to administrative jobs. 

5.2.2 Pay distribution amongst pay grades shows that the median (50%) pay for BAME 

staff lies in grade BG8, whereas for White British it lies in grade BG10.  

5.2.3 The values for the mean ethnicity pay gap correlate with the BAME to White British 

ratio in the four quartiles. As we have identified there are many more BAME staff 

than White British staff at the lower paid levels this is the reason for the negative 

pay gap at the lower levels. 

 

5.3 Disability 

 

-2.00%

-1.00%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

BG1-4 BG5 BG6 BG7 BG8 BG9 BG10 BG11 BG12 BG13 BG14 BG15 TP1+

Mean Pay Gap Median Pay Gap

-10.00%

-5.00%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

BG1-4 BG5 BG6 BG7 BG8 BG9 BG10 BG11 BG12 BG13 BG14 BG15 TP1+

Mean Pay Gap Median Pay Gap

Page 734



 

 

15 

5.3.1 The largest gap is in BG6 and shows a pay gap of 7.82% for Disabled staff against 

Non-Disabled staff, a large number of these roles relate to administrative jobs. The 

second largest gap is at TP1+ with a pay gap of 6.14% for Disabled staff. 

5.3.2 Pay distribution amongst pay grades shows that the median (50%) pay for Disabled 

staff lies towards the middle of grade BG9, whereas for Non-Disabled lies towards 

the top of grade BG9.  

5.3.3 The values for the mean disability pay gap correlate with the pay ratio in the four 

quartiles. As we have identified the difference between the median and the mean 

figures is due to a lower proportion of disabled staff in the top quartile of 

employees. 

6. Closing the gap 

6.1 Bristol City Council will continue to address the ongoing difference in both mean and 

median percentages through further analysis of the reasons for disparity.  

6.2 Our equality policy and strategy sets out our commitment to equality and diversity, 

and how we will; tackle equalities issues, aim to eliminate discrimination, foster good 

relationships between communities in Bristol and ensure those from different 

backgrounds have similar life opportunities.  The annual report will be considered at 

Full Council on 7th July 2020 and this will set out the Council’s priorities for the next 

twelve months. 

6.3 Our Organisational Improvement Plan sets out our workforce priorities. This plan is 

being refreshed at the moment and will include new targets and priorities that will 

support narrowing the pay gaps identified in this report. In particular, we will be 

setting new stretching diversity targets and in particular to increase the number of 

BAME, disabled and women colleagues in senior management positions using positive 

action initiatives. Specific action that is being taken that will contribute to closing pay 

gaps are set out below:- 

 

6.3.1 A range of changes to recruitment and selection processes including new 

secondment (previously ‘acting up’) policy. Changes include ensuring all 

opportunities are widely promoted across the organisation rather than to specific 

teams/groups and will remove the option of direct appointments to short term roles.  

There will also be positive action guidance.  These changes will be implemented 

from July 2020 and will increase opportunities for career progression and will 

improve the diversity of the workforce at higher pay grades. 

 

Page 735



 

 

16 

6.3.2 Increasing the proportion of employees who have declared their ethnic origin 

and whether they have a disability to 95% by December 2020.  This will improve the 

accuracy of pay gap reporting. 

6.3.3 Talent management plans to be introduced. To include positive action policy 

and initiatives:- 

 talent mapping and leadership pipeline 

 identifying talent and encouraging colleagues to seek advancement 

 use apprenticeships systematically as pathways into professions where there is 

occupational segregation and poor representation e.g. women and BAME 

workers  

 increased offer of structured development opportunities 

 Offer defined secondment and/or project opportunities for BCC Stepping Up 

graduates, and colleagues completing apprenticeships, Bristol Leads and other 

learning programmes 

 Career passports 

This intervention is designed to improve the diversity of the workforce and will contribute 

to closing pay gaps. 

6.3.4 We have set the following organisational targets for 2020/21:- 

 Increase the percentage of employment offers made to people living in the 10% 

most deprived areas – Target 6.5% 

 Percentage of top earners who are women – Target 55% 

 Reduce the mean gender pay gap – Target 3.85% 

 Reduce the mean race pay gap – Target 11.75% 

 Reduce the mean disability pay gap – Target 1.75%  

 Difference between progression rate of BAME and non-BAME employee –  Target 

0% (no difference) 

 Difference between progression rate of Women and Men – Target 0% (no 

difference)  

Page 736



 

 

17 

6.4 We are supporting ‘Staff Led Groups’ (SLG) representing BAME, LGBT+, disabled and 

young employees to have a more influential voice in the organisation. We continue to 

expand our ‘Stepping Up’ partnership programme for aspiring BAME leaders, and this 

has now been extended to other under-represented groups.  

6.5 We will continue to develop new ways of working that offers flexibility that enables all 

employees to continue to develop their careers within the organisation whilst still 

achieving a good work-life balance. 

6.6 We are striving to create a workforce which is representative of the city we serve at all 

levels of the organisations. We are placing equality and inclusion at the heart of our 

organisational plans and priorities. 

Page 737



Bristol City Council Equality Impact Relevance Check 

This tool will identify the equalities relevance of a proposal, and establish whether a 
full Equality Impact Assessment will be required. Please read the guidance prior to 
completing this relevance check. 

What is the proposal?
Name of proposal Equality and Inclusion Annual Report 2019-20
Please outline the proposal. To approve the ‘Equality and Inclusion Annual Report 2019-20’ which 

shows what we have done in the period April 2019 to March 2020 to 
achieve the aims of our Equality and Inclusion Policy and Strategy 
2018-23.

What savings will this proposal 
achieve?

None

Name of Lead Officer Duncan Fleming

Could your proposal impact citizens with protected characteristics?
(This includes service users and the wider community)

Please outline where there may be significant opportunities or positive impacts, and for whom.

No impact identified

Please outline where there may be significant negative impacts, and for whom. 

No impact identified

Could your proposal impact staff with protected characteristics?
(i.e. reduction in posts, changes to working hours or locations, changes in pay)

Please outline where there may be significant opportunities or positive impacts, and for whom.

No impact identified

Please outline where there may be negative impacts, and for whom. 

No impact identified

Is a full Equality Impact Assessment required? 
Does the proposal have the potential to impact on people with protected characteristics in the following 
ways:

 access to or participation in a service,
 levels of representation in our workforce, or
 reducing quality of life (i.e. health, education, standard of living) ?

Please indicate yes or no. If the answer is yes then a 
full impact assessment must be carried out. If the 
answer is no, please provide a justification. 

No. We have not identified any negative impact from 
this update report. The Equality and Inclusion Policy 
and Strategy 2018-23 was subject to a separate EqIA.

Service Director sign-off and date:
Tim Borrett – 18 June 2020

Equalities Officer sign-off and date: 
Reviewed by Equality and Inclusion Team 12/5/2020

APPENDIX D

Page 738

https://democracy.bristol.gov.uk/documents/s26411/Appendix%20B%207%20-%20E%20EqIA%20Equalities%20and%20Inclusion%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%2012.10.18.pdf

	Agenda
	1 Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 26/05/2020 Full Council
	Minutes


	8 Council's Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment Policy
	Appendix 1 DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2020
	Appendix 2 DRAFT CIA Policy
	Appendix 3 - List of Persons who responded
	Appendix 4 List of amendments to Statement of Licensing Policy
	Appendix 5 Avon and Somerset Constabulary Response DATA
	Appendix 5 Avon and Somerset Constabulary Response
	Appendix 5i Avon and Somerset Constabulary Response
	Appendix 6 Avon and Somerset Constabulary Response
	Appendix 7 Comments RE Draft Statement of Licensing Policy
	Appendix 8 City Centre CIA
	Appendix 8i Clifton CIA
	Appendix 8ii Gloucester Road CIA
	Appendix 8iii Whiteladies Road CIA
	Appendix 8iv Bedminster and Southville CIA
	Appendix 9 Template Operating Schedules 2020
	Appendix 10 Written policy responses
	Appendix 11 EqIA CIA Policy
	Appendix 11i EqIA Statement of Licensing Policy

	9 Equality and Inclusion Annual Report 2019-2020
	APPENDIX A - Equality and Inclusion Annual Report 2019-2020
	APPENDIX B - BCC Workforce Diversity Statistics 31.3.20
	Equalities Title Page
	HR Management Information Report
	31 March 2020
	Workforce Diversity Statistics


	Contents-2
	Key observations-3
	Explanatory notes-4
	WDS 31 Mar 2020 v1
	AR Age
	SH Age
	JO Age 7
	EiP Age
	EiP Sal Age
	Train Age
	Sec Age
	Griev Age
	Disc Age
	Leavers Age
	LR Age 15
	AR Disability
	SH Disability
	JO Disability
	EiP Disability 19
	EiP Sal Disability
	Train Disability
	Sec Disability
	Griev Disability
	Disc Disability
	Leavers Disability
	LR Disability
	AR Ethnicity
	SH Ethnicity
	JO Ethnicity 29
	EiP Ethnicity
	EiP Sal Ethnicity
	Train Ethnicity
	Sec Ethnicity
	Griev Ethnicity
	Disc Ethnicity
	Leavers Ethnicity
	LR Ethnicity 37
	AR Gender
	SH Gender
	JO Gender
	EiP Gender
	EiP Sal Gender 42
	Train Gender
	Sec Gender
	Griev Gender
	Disc Gender
	Leavers Gender
	LR Gender
	AR Religion-Belief
	SH Religion-Belief
	JO Religion-Belief
	EiP Religion-Belief 52
	EiP Sal Religion-Belief
	Train Religion-Belief
	Sec Religion-Belief
	Griev Religion-Belief
	Disc Religion-Belief
	Leavers Religion-Belief
	LR Religion-Belief
	AR Sexual Orientation
	SH Sexual Orientation
	JO Sexual Orientation
	EiP Sexual Orientation 63
	EiP Sal Sexual Orientation
	Train Sexual Orientation
	Sec Sexual Orientation
	Griev Sexual Orientation
	Disc Sexual Orientation
	Leavers Sexual Orientation
	LR Sexual Orientation


	APPENDIX C - BCC Gender Pay Gap Report - 310319
	APPENDIX D - Equalities Relevance Check - Equality and Inclusion Annual Report 2019-20




